

# BOOK OF ABSTRACTS



14TH INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCE ON CERAMIC MATERIALS AND COMPONENTS FOR ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS

18-22 AUGUST 2024 BUDAPEST, HUNGARY • BUDAPEST CONGRESS CENTER PLATINUM SPONSOR

Interdisciplinary Materials------

**GOLD SPONSOR** 



**BRONZE SPONSORS** 









# **SPRINGER NATURE**

PARTNERS



Centre for Energy Research















LINDA

ORLD

CADEMY OF

EXHIBITORS





Academic Open Access Publishing since 1996

#### CMCEE14

#### 14th International Conference on Ceramic Materials and Components for Energy and Environmental Systems

18–22 August 2024 Budapest Congress Center Budapest, Hungary

AKCongress P.O. Box 245, H-1519 Budapest, Hungary E-mail: cmcee14@akcongress.com https://akcongress.com/cmcee14/

#### Please be aware that certain changes introduced in the Conference programme after editing has been closed may not be included in this Book of Abstracts due to the publishing deadline.

© Akadémiai Kiadó, Budapest, 2024 P.O. Box 245, H-1519 Budapest, Hungary Phone: +36 1 464 8240 E-mail: ak@akademiai.hu www.akjournals.com / www.akademiai.hu ISBN 978-963-664-060-6

# CONTENTS

| Plenary   | 1        |
|---|----------|
| Keynote   | 7        |
| T1 Ceramics for Energy Conversion, Storage, and Distribution Systems<br>T1.1 High-Temperature Fuel Cells and Electrolysis | 7<br>7   |
| Direct Conversion and Thermal Energy Harnessing   | 9        |
| Energy  | 11<br>12 |
| TO Advanced Datteries and Supercapacitors for Energy Storage Applications   | 17       |
| T2 1 Advanced Fiber Reinforced Composites for Turbine Engines   | 17       |
| T2.1 Advanced Ceramic Coatings for Power Systems  | 21       |
| T2 3 Engineering Ceramics: Advanced Processing Properties   | 21       |
| and Applications  | 23       |
| T2 5 Advanced Polymer Derived Ceramics (PDCs) and Related Materials   | 25       |
| for Energy Annlications   | 24       |
| T2 6 Sustainable Materials and Systems for Energy Efficient Building  | 21       |
| and Structures  | 26       |
| T3 Ceramics for Environmental Systems   | 27       |
| T3.2 Ceramics for Carbon Capture and Storage Technologies   | 27       |
| T3.5 Advanced Sensors for Energy. Environment and Health Applications   | 29       |
| T4 Cross-Cutting Materials Technologies   | 35       |
| T4.1 Computational Design and Modeling  | 35       |
| T4.2 Additive Manufacturing & 3D Printing Technologies  | 37       |
| T4.3 Novel, Green, and Strategic Processing and Manufacturing   |          |
| Technologies  | 39       |
| T4.4 Powder Processing Technology for Advanced Ceramics   | 41       |
| T4.5 Advanced Materials, Technologies, and Devices for Electrooptical   |          |
| and Biomedical Applications   | 45       |
| T4.6 Multifunctional Coatings for Energy and Environmental  |          |
| Applications Applications   | 46       |
| T4.7 Materials for Extreme Environments: Ultrahigh Temperature Ceramics   |          |
| (UHTCs) and Nano-laminated Ternary Carbides and Nitrides  |          |
| (MAX Phases) Applications   | 48       |
| T4.8 Design, Processing, and Applications of Nanolaminated Ternary Transition   |          |
| Metal Carbides/Nitrides/Borides and MXenes and Mbenes   | 51       |
| T4.10 Environmental Friendly and Energy Efficient Manufacturing Routes for  |          |
| the Production Root Technology Applications   | 54       |
| T4.12 Graphene and 2D materials   | 56       |

| T5 Technology, Society and Sustainability                               | 57  |
|---|-----|
| and Biotechnologies   | 57  |
| T5.2 Global Young Investigator Forum                                    | 60  |
| 6 6   |     |
| Invited   | 61  |
| T1 Ceramics for Energy Conversion, Storage, and Distribution Systems    | 61  |
| T1.1 High-Temperature Fuel Cells and Electrolysis                       | 61  |
| Direct Conversion and Thermal Energy Harnessing                         | 73  |
| Technologies  | 102 |
| T1 4 Material Science and Technologies for Advanced Nuclear Fission     | 102 |
| and Fusion Energy   | 105 |
| T1.5 Nanostructured, and Hybrid Functional Materials for Energy         | 105 |
| T1.6 Advanced Batteries and Superconnectors for Energy Storage          | 123 |
| Applications  | 120 |
| T1 8 High Temperature Superconductors: Materials Technologies           | 120 |
| and Systems   | 171 |
| T1 9 Recycling  | 173 |
| T2 Ceramics for Energy Conservation and Efficiency                      | 177 |
| T2 1 A dyanced Fiber Reinforced Composites for Turbine Engines          | 177 |
| T2.2 Advanced Ceramic Coatings for Power Systems                        | 187 |
| T2.3 Engineering Ceramics: Advanced Processing Properties               | 107 |
| and Applications  | 197 |
| T2 5 Advanced Polymer Derived Ceramics (PDCs) and Related Materials     | 1)/ |
| for Energy Applications   | 204 |
| T2 6 Sustainable Materials and Systems for Energy Efficient Building    | 204 |
| and Structures  | 206 |
| T2.7 Energy Efficiency and Green Technologies in Ceramic Manufacturing  | 200 |
| Industries  | 208 |
| T3 Ceramics for Environmental Systems                                   | 209 |
| T3.1 Photocatalysts for Energy and Environmental Applications           | 209 |
| T3.2 Ceramics for Carbon Capture and Storage Technologies               | 213 |
| T3.3 Geopolymers, Inorganic Polymer Ceramics and Sustainable Composites | 227 |
| 13.4 Porous and Cellular Ceramics: Porosity Design and Engineering      |     |
| Applications  | 235 |
| T3.5 Advanced Sensors for Energy, Environment and Health Applications   | 242 |
| 13.6 Advanced Materials and Membrane Technologies for                   |     |
| Sustainable Water Purification and Desalination Systems                 | 244 |
| T4 Cross-Cutting Materials Technologies                                 | 249 |
| T4.1 Computational Design and Modeling                                  | 249 |
| T4.2 Additive Manufacturing & 3D Printing Technologies                  | 257 |

| T4.3 Novel, Green, and Strategic Processing and Manufacturing  |   |
|--|---|
| Technologies   | 266   |
| T4.4 Powder Processing Technology for Advanced Ceramics  | 278   |
| T4.5 Advanced Materials, Technologies, and Devices for Electrooptical  |   |
| and Biomedical Applications  | 284   |
| T4.6 Multifunctional Coatings for Energy and Environmental   | -   |
| Applications   | 305   |
| T4 7 Materials for Extreme Environments: Ultrahigh Temperature Ceramics  | 505   |
| (UHTCs) and Nano-laminated Ternary Carbides and Nitrides (MAX Phases)  |   |
| Applications   | 308   |
| TA & Decign Processing and Applications of Nanalaminated Termany Transition  | 500   |
| Matal Carbidas/Nitridas/Daridas and Myanas and Mhanas  | 210   |
| T4.0 Commis Integration Technologics for Engrate and Environmental   | 510   |
| 14.9 Ceramic Integration Technologies for Energy and Environmental   | 210   |
| $T_{4,10} = r_{1,2} + 1 E_{1,2} + 1 E_{2,2} = E_{1,2} + M_{2,2} + 1 E_{2,2} +$ | 319   |
| 14.10 Environmental Friendly and Energy Efficient Manufacturing Routes   | 224   |
| for the Production Root Technology Applications  | 324   |
| 14.12 Graphene and 2D materials  | 333   |
| T5 Technology, Society and Sustainability  | 337   |
| T5.1 Global Innovations in Biomaterials, Biomanufacturing,   |   |
| and Biotechnologies  | 337   |
| T5.2 Global Young Investigator Forum   | 348   |
| T5.6 FunGlass  | 355   |
|  |   |
| Oral   | 361   |
| T1 Ceramics for Energy Conversion, Storage, and Distribution Systems   | 361   |
| T1.1 High-Temperature Fuel Cells and Electrolysis  | 361   |
| T1.2 Ceramics-Related Materials, Devices, and Processing for   |   |
| Heat-to-Electricity Direct Conversion and Thermal Energy Harnessing  | 381   |
| T1.3 Emerging Materials and Technologies for Solar Cells and Solar Fuel  |   |
| Technologies   | 386   |
| T1 4 Material Science and Technologies for Advanced Nuclear Fission and  | 500   |
| Fusion Energy  | 389   |
| Tusion Energy  |   |
| T1.5 Nanostructured and Hybrid Functional Materials for Energy and   |   |
| T1.5 Nanostructured, and Hybrid Functional Materials for Energy and  | 306   |
| T1.5 Nanostructured, and Hybrid Functional Materials for Energy and<br>Sustainability  | 396   |
| <ul> <li>T1.5 Nanostructured, and Hybrid Functional Materials for Energy and<br/>Sustainability</li> <li>T1.6 Advanced Batteries and Supercapacitors for Energy Storage</li> </ul>   | 396   |
| <ul> <li>T1.5 Nanostructured, and Hybrid Functional Materials for Energy and<br/>Sustainability</li> <li>T1.6 Advanced Batteries and Supercapacitors for Energy Storage<br/>Applications</li> <li>T1.7 Materials for Solar Thermal Energy Conversion and Storage</li> </ul>  | 396<br>402  |
| <ul> <li>T1.5 Nanostructured, and Hybrid Functional Materials for Energy and<br/>Sustainability</li> <li>T1.6 Advanced Batteries and Supercapacitors for Energy Storage<br/>Applications</li> <li>T1.7 Materials for Solar Thermal Energy Conversion and Storage</li> <li>T1.8 Uick Temperature Supercapacity Materials</li> </ul>   | <ul><li>396</li><li>402</li><li>423</li></ul>   |
| <ul> <li>T1.5 Nanostructured, and Hybrid Functional Materials for Energy and<br/>Sustainability</li> <li>T1.6 Advanced Batteries and Supercapacitors for Energy Storage<br/>Applications</li> <li>T1.7 Materials for Solar Thermal Energy Conversion and Storage</li> <li>T1.8 High Temperature Superconductors: Materials, Technologies</li> </ul>  | <ul> <li>396</li> <li>402</li> <li>423</li> <li>425</li> </ul>  |
| <ul> <li>T1.5 Nanostructured, and Hybrid Functional Materials for Energy and<br/>Sustainability</li> <li>T1.6 Advanced Batteries and Supercapacitors for Energy Storage<br/>Applications</li> <li>T1.7 Materials for Solar Thermal Energy Conversion and Storage</li> <li>T1.8 High Temperature Superconductors: Materials, Technologies<br/>and Systems</li> </ul>  | <ul> <li>396</li> <li>402</li> <li>423</li> <li>425</li> <li>427</li> </ul>                           |
| <ul> <li>T1.5 Nanostructured, and Hybrid Functional Materials for Energy and<br/>Sustainability</li> <li>T1.6 Advanced Batteries and Supercapacitors for Energy Storage<br/>Applications</li> <li>T1.7 Materials for Solar Thermal Energy Conversion and Storage</li> <li>T1.8 High Temperature Superconductors: Materials, Technologies<br/>and Systems</li> <li>T1.9 Recycling</li> </ul>  | <ul> <li>396</li> <li>402</li> <li>423</li> <li>425</li> <li>427</li> <li>426</li> </ul>              |
| <ul> <li>T1.5 Nanostructured, and Hybrid Functional Materials for Energy and<br/>Sustainability</li> <li>T1.6 Advanced Batteries and Supercapacitors for Energy Storage<br/>Applications</li> <li>T1.7 Materials for Solar Thermal Energy Conversion and Storage</li> <li>T1.8 High Temperature Superconductors: Materials, Technologies<br/>and Systems</li> <li>T1.9 Recycling</li> <li>T2 Ceramics for Energy Conservation and Efficiency</li> </ul>  | <ul> <li>396</li> <li>402</li> <li>423</li> <li>425</li> <li>427</li> <li>438</li> <li>426</li> </ul> |
| <ul> <li>T1.5 Nanostructured, and Hybrid Functional Materials for Energy and<br/>Sustainability</li> <li>T1.6 Advanced Batteries and Supercapacitors for Energy Storage<br/>Applications</li> <li>T1.7 Materials for Solar Thermal Energy Conversion and Storage</li> <li>T1.8 High Temperature Superconductors: Materials, Technologies<br/>and Systems</li> <li>T1.9 Recycling</li> <li>T2 Ceramics for Energy Conservation and Efficiency</li> <li>T2.1 Advanced Fiber Reinforced Composites for Turbine Engines</li> </ul>   | <ul> <li>396</li> <li>402</li> <li>423</li> <li>425</li> <li>427</li> <li>438</li> <li>438</li> </ul> |

| T2.3 Engineering Ceramics: Advanced Processing, Properties,                   |                     |
|---|---------------------|
| and Applications  | 448                 |
| T2.4 Materials for Solid State Lighting                                       | 469                 |
| T2.5 Advanced Polymer Derived Ceramics (PDCs) and Related Materials           |                     |
| for Energy Applications   | 473                 |
| T3 Ceramics for Environmental Systems   | 483                 |
| T3.1 Photocatalysts for Energy and Environmental Applications                 | 483                 |
| T3 2 Ceramics for Carbon Capture and Storage Technologies                     | 491                 |
| T3 4 Porous and Cellular Ceramics: Porosity Design and Engineering            | 171                 |
| Annlications  | 494                 |
| T3 5 Advanced Sensors for Energy Environment and Health Applications          | 502                 |
| T3.6 Advanced Materials and Membrane Technologies for Sustainable Water       | 002                 |
| Purification and Desalination Systems   | 504                 |
| T4 Cross-Cutting Materials Technologies                                       | 506                 |
| T4 1 Computational Design and Modeling  | 506                 |
| T4 2 Additive Manufacturing & 3D Printing Technologies                        | 513                 |
| T4 3 Novel Green and Strategic Processing and Manufacturing                   | 010                 |
| Technologies  | 517                 |
| T4.4 Powder Processing Technology for Advanced Ceramics                       | 524                 |
| T4.5 Advanced Materials. Technologies, and Devices for Electrooptical and     | <i>v</i> <b>_</b> . |
| Biomedical Applications   | 531                 |
| T4.6 Multifunctional Coatings for Energy and Environmental                    |                     |
| Applications Applications   | 541                 |
| T4.7 Materials for Extreme Environments: Ultrahigh Temperature Ceramics       |                     |
| (UHTCs) and Nano-laminated Ternary Carbides and Nitrides                      |                     |
| (MAX Phases) Applications   | 545                 |
| T4.8 Design, Processing, and Applications of Nanolaminated Ternary Transition |                     |
| Metal Carbides/Nitrides/Borides and MXenes and Mbenes                         | 547                 |
| T4.9 Ceramic Integration Technologies for Energy and Environmental            |                     |
| Applications  | 551                 |
| T4.10 Environmental Friendly and Energy Efficient Manufacturing Routes for    |                     |
| the Production Root Technology Applications                                   | 554                 |
| T4.11 Hybrid and Bio-inspired Materials                                       | 567                 |
| T4.12 Graphene and 2D materials   | 570                 |
| T5 Technology. Society and Sustainability                                     | 574                 |
| T5.1 Global Innovations in Biomaterials. Biomanufacturing.                    |                     |
| and Biotechnologies   | 574                 |
| T5.2 Global Young Investigator Forum  | 577                 |
| T5.6 FunGlass   | 581                 |

| Poster  | 605        |
|---|------------|
| T1 Ceramics for Energy Conversion, Storage, and Distribution Systems<br>T1.1 High-Temperature Fuel Cells and Electrolysis | 605<br>605 |
| 11.5 Nanostructured, and Hybrid Functional Materials for Energy and   | (10        |
| T1.6 Advanced Batteries and Supercapacitors for Energy Storage  | 610        |
| Applications  | 615        |
| T2 Ceramics for Energy Conservation and Efficiency  | 620        |
| T2.1 Advanced Fiber Reinforced Composites for Turbine Engines   | 620        |
| T2.2 Advanced Ceramic Coatings for Power Systems  | 622        |
| T2.3 Engineering Ceramics: Advanced Processing, Properties,<br>and Applications   | 623        |
| T2.5 Advanced Polymer Derived Ceramics (PDCs) and Related Materials for   | 025        |
| Fnerov Annlications   | 626        |
| T3 Ceramics for Environmental Systems   | 627        |
| T3 1 Photocatalysts for Energy and Environmental Applications   | 627        |
| T3.2 Ceramics for Carbon Capture and Storage Technologies   | 620        |
| T3.3 Geopolymers, Inorganic Polymer Ceramics and Sustainable  | 029        |
| Composites  | 635        |
| T3.5 Advanced Sensors for Energy, Environment and Health Applications   | 640        |
| T4 Cross-Cutting Materials Technologies   | 642        |
| T4.1 Computational Design and Modeling  | 642        |
| T4.2 Additive Manufacturing & 3D Printing Technologies  | 649        |
| T4.3 Novel, Green, and Strategic Processing and Manufacturing   |            |
| Technologies  | 650        |
| T4.4 Powder Processing Technology for Advanced Ceramics   | 652        |
| T4.5 Advanced Materials, Technologies, and Devices for Electrooptical   |            |
| and Biomedical Applications   | 657        |
| T4.6 Multifunctional Coatings for Energy and Environmental  |            |
| Applications Applications   | 660        |
| T4.7 Materials for Extreme Environments: Ultrahigh Temperature Ceramics   |            |
| (UHTCs) and Nano-laminated Ternary Carbides and Nitrides  |            |
| (MAX Phases) Applications   | 663        |
| T4.8 Design, Processing, and Applications of Nanolaminated Ternary Transition   |            |
| Metal Carbides/Nitrides/Borides and MXenes and Mbenes   | 665        |
| T4.9 Ceramic Integration Technologies for Energy and Environmental  |            |
| Applications  | 666        |
| T4.10 Environmental Friendly and Energy Efficient Manufacturing Routes for  |            |
| the Production Root Technology Applications   | 667        |
| me reasoned recentered, representers  | 507        |

### PLENARY

# The heat is on: Power electronics and the challenge of cooling in a changing world

#### Christian Kasztelan

Infineon Technologies Cegléd Kft., Budapest, Hungary E-mail: christian.kasztelan@infineon.com

Keywords: power modules, power electronics, energy conversion, ceramics, direct copper bond

The challenge of global warming (1) (2) has made it essential to improve how we produce and use energy, with a focus on renewable sources like solar and wind power. Efficiently managing this energy is crucial, especially when it comes to transporting and utilizing it in devices that rely on electricity. Modern power electronics play a critical role in this, as they control complex energy conversions and help to distribute energy effectively.

To meet the increasing demand for these technologies, materials science has made significant strides, particularly in the use of advanced ceramics (3)

These materials are critical because they provide both high electrical insulation and excellent thermal conductivity — key features for the next generation of power modules that must operate at high temperatures above 175°C (4) and withstand harsh conditions over extended periods.

Ceramics have proven to be indispensable in this sector due to their durability at high temperatures, resistance to sudden temperature changes, and inertness to chemicals. They are becoming increasingly important for power electronics that are striving for better efficiency and smaller sizes (5).

There's a growing interest in wide bandgap technologies, such as SiC and GaN, which offer compact solutions and increased power density compared to traditional silicon-based power transistors like IGBT (6). The use of wide bandgap technologies also necessitates power electronics that can perform at higher operating temperatures. Although ceramics like AlN and SiN are known for their superior performance, their high cost remains a barrier for widespread application.

To truly transition from fossil fuels to green energy, it's imperative to intensify research and development into new, cost-effective ceramic materials that can conduct heat well. Investing in the innovation of such materials is a crucial step toward a sustainable energy future powered by advanced, efficient, and more affordable power electronics.

#### Figures



Figure 1: Earth temperature & CO2 development, Source: NASA GISS, NOAA NCEI, ESRL



**Figure** 2: Current Smart City with examples of energy paths starting from electrical energy creation (e.g. off shore wind, solar panels) to its consumption (e.g. trams/trains, heat pumps, EV charging, factory motors, data centers) and energy storage systems (solid state batteries, water reservoirs).



**Figure** 3: On the left side a 3D drawing of an Infineon Econo2 Power Module including the current path (red) from DC input to AC output. On the right hand side an examplary cross section throuth the same module. The power chips (IGBT or SiC Power Mosfets) are die attached onto a direct copper bond (DCB) here called substrate). The DCB core is typically Al2O3, SiN, AlN. Its most important function is high electrical isolation (to an external heasink) and high thermal conductivity (heat from chips to baseplate and external heatsink, not depicted here).

#### Acknowledgments

Many thanks to Dr. Jean-Laurent Deborde the ceramic expert from Infineon Technology Warstein and Dr. Marianna Nomann the Head of Engineering at Infineon Cegléd for their contributions and significant support in the creation of this abstract and presentation. Their expertise and their assistance throughout this process has been greatly appreciated.

- 1. Improvements in the GISTEMP uncertainty model. J. Geophys. Res. Atmos., 124, no. 12, 6307–6326.
- GISS Surface Temperature Analysis (GISTEMP), version 4. NASA Goddard Institute for Space Studies. Dataset accessed at data.giss.nasa.gov/gistemp/.
- 3. Ceramic substrates for high voltage power electronics: past, present and future
- 4. Higher Junction Temperature in Power Modules a demand from hybrid cars, a potential for the next step increase in power density for various Variable Speed Drives Dr. Reinhold Bayerer, Infineon Technologies AG, Max-Planck-Str. 5, Warstein, Germany
- Driving Change With WBG Technologies for a Sustainable Future, Maurizio Di Paolo Emilio, powerelectronicsnews 2024, https://www.powerelectronicsnews.com/infineons-global-forum-driving-change-with-wbg-technologies-for-a-sustainable-future/
- The Future of Power Semiconductors, Dr. Peter Friedrichs and Marc Buschkühle, Infineon Technologies AG, Bodo Power Systems, 2016, ISSN: 1863-5598

# Advancements in material selection and optimization for high-efficiency halide perovskite solar cells

#### Sang Il Seok

Department of Energy and Chemical Engineering, Ulsan National Institute of Science and Technology (UNIST), Ulsan, South Korea \*E-mail: seoksi@unist.ac.kr

**Keywords**: halide perovskite solar cells, electron transporting layer, perovskite crystallization, alkylammonium chlorides, TiO<sub>2</sub>, SnO<sub>2</sub>

Halide perovskite solar cells (PSCs) hold immense promise for next-generation photovoltaic technology, boasting high efficiency and cost-effective fabrication. The architecture of PSCs typically involves a layered structure comprising transparent conductive oxide (TCO), electron transport layer (ETL), perovskite, hole transport layer (HTL), and counter electrode stacks. Meticulous material selection and preparation, particularly focusing on ETLs, HTLs, and perovskites, significantly influence both structural and optoelectronic properties, thereby maximizing performance. Recent advancements in perovskite research have highlighted the efficacy of alkylammonium chlorides (RACl), notably methylammonium chloride (MACl), in modulating perovskite crystallization dynamics, resulting in improved device performance. While TiO<sub>2</sub> stands as one of the most efficient ETL materials, its high-temperature processing poses challenges. Low-temperature processed ETLs, such as SnO<sub>2</sub>, have been explored to address this, with novel strategies involving synthesizing SnO<sub>2</sub> colloids in an H<sub>2</sub>O<sub>2</sub> solution to reduce oxygen vacancies within the lattice, resulting in enhanced device performance. Furthermore, a hybrid electrode comprising a blend of TiO<sub>2</sub> nanosols and SnO<sub>2</sub> colloidal solution has been introduced, offering superior mechanical reliability and efficiency compared to standalone SnO<sub>2</sub> colloids. Flexible PSCs fabricated with this hybrid electrode demonstrate promising performance, emphasizing the importance of strategic material selection and optimization in achieving highly efficient and stable PSCs. In this presentation, our contributions to optimizing key materials for PSCs will be discussed, encompassing advancements in material synthesis, interface engineering, and device fabrication techniques aimed at pushing the boundaries of PSC efficiency and stability.

### Novel oxide ceramic LSI device for the AI age

#### Shunpei Yamazaki

Semiconductor Energy Laboratory Co., Ltd., 398 Hase, Atsugi, Kanagawa 243-0036 Japan E-mail: yamazaki@sel.co.jp

#### Keywords: oxide semiconductor, IGZO

Oxide semiconductor LSI (OSLSI) uses indium–gallium–zinc oxide (IGZO) or indium oxide (IO) as its core material [Ref. 1].

Power saving is an increasingly urgent issue for humanity to mitigate global warming. Servers and other equipment however consume more and more power with the boom of generative AI and its technological innovations, which is raised as a significant issue.

Unlike widely used Si LSI, OSLSI has not been brought into the mass production phase yet, but we have been transferring our OSLSI techhology to achieve its first mass production, which is currently expected to start from the summar of 2024. The first product will be an LSI for OLED/OS/Si displays for AR/VR applications. Our paper on this system display [Figs. 1-2][Ref. 2] is in the top 10% of the downloaded papers among all JSID pepers published in 2022. This leads us to the belief that this product would be suitable as the first OSLSI product.

As a next step, we are developing a highly integrated vertical FET structure for extremely low power consumption computers, which is our true target[Ref.3]. The DRAM active times are set to 1%, 10%, and 90% [Fig. 3], and we aim to achieve nonvolatility of the most power consuming RAM.

In this presentation, we propose a three-dimensional (vertical) oxide semiconductor memory (3D OS memory) as a game changer enabling both global warming mitigation and further spread of AI.



Fig. 1 Conceptual diagram of the OLED/OS/Si monolithic stack.



Fig. 2 Photograph of the 3 kppi display.



Fig. 3 Power consumption with conventional DRAM replaced by 3D OS DRAM ((A) 1%, (B) 10%, (C) 90%).

- 1. S. Yamazaki *et al.*, C-axis aligned crystalline indium–gallium–zinc oxide ceramics and oxide semiconductor LSI as countermeasures against global warming. Ceramics International 49, 24123– 24141 (2023).
- K. Kato *et al.*, "5291-ppi OLED Display Enabled by Monolithic Integration of C-Axis-Aligned-Crystalline IGZO FET and Si CMOS" https://doi.org/10.1002/jsid.1167 (2022).
- 3. T. Hirose *et al.*, 1-Mbit 3D DRAM using a Monolithically Stacked Structure of a Si CMOS and Heterogeneous IGZO FETs. IEEE Journal of the Electron Devices Society 12, pp. 236–242 (2024).

## **KEYNOTE**

### T1 Ceramics for Energy Conversion, Storage, and Distribution Systems

### **T1.1 HIGH-TEMPERATURE FUEL CELLS AND ELECTROLYSIS**

# Status and challenges on Solid Oxide Fuel Cell development for mobility use

<u>Takeshi Shiomi</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Manabu Sugino<sup>1</sup>, Yohei Miura<sup>1</sup>, Mohammed Hussain Abdul Jabber<sup>2</sup>, Yoshihisa Furuya<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Nissan Motor Co., Ltd., Japan <sup>2</sup>Nissan Technical Center North America, USA \*E-mail: t-shiomi@mail.nissan.co.jp

Keywords: SOFC, vehicle, power density, metal support cell, AFA

SOFC (Solid Oxide Fuel Cell) is generally considered for residential and industrial power supply, but in recent years the research and the development of SOFC powered application has been spreading to various applications such as portable device, datacenter, high temperature steam electrolysis and so on. Under these circumstances, Nissan has been researching SOFC-powered system for mobility use as well as stationary use (Figure 1). The requirement of SOFC-powered system for mobility use is different from that of stationary use because operating environment for automotive application is very unique. Among lots of technical challenges from system level to cell level, the increase in power density and the reduction of rapid start-up time are two main challnges to realize SOFC system (Figure 2). In order to install SOFC-powered system on a vehicle, the development of metal supported cell and stack is desirable to realize smaller volume and lower thermal mass which link to improving both power density and start-up time.

In this presentation, technical challenges of SOFC for mobility use are shown. Then, as one of detailed technical topics, the progress of reducing ohimc resistance with using metal supported stack is described. In particular, the technical challnge to use AFA, alumina forming alloy, in a SOFC stack is described. Finally future challenges to expand SOFC application are summarized.



#### Figures

Figure 1. SOFC Research overview<sup>1)</sup> in Nissan



Figure 2. Challenges of SOFC for mobility use

#### Acknowledgments

Dr. Singh Prabhakar (University of Connecticut) is acknowledged for metal corrosion discussion.

#### References

https://www.nissan-global.com/JP/INNOVATION/TECHNOLOGY/NRC/FIELDS\_EV/

### T1.2 CERAMICS-RELATED MATERIALS, DEVICES, AND PROCESSING FOR HEAT-TO-ELECTRICITY DIRECT CONVERSION AND THERMAL ENERGY HARNESSING

# New directions in half-Heusler and metal phosphide thermoelectric materials

#### Jan-Willem G. Bos

EaStCHEM School of Chemistry, University of St Andrews, North Haugh, KY16 9ST, St Andrews, UK E-mail: j.w.g.bos@st-andrews.ac.uk

Keywords: half-Heusler, metal phosphide, thermoelectric energy

Thermoelectric conversion can be used to generate power, scavenge ambient heat, is applied in thermal management, and is a potential carbon negative renewable technology. The past two decades have seen major advancements in materials design and greatly improved thermoelectric performance. However, large-scale application is held back by the high cost compared to grid-price electricity, and technical issues in translating materials performance to generators.

Scientifically, the challenge is to find materials that have both low thermal conductivity and outstanding electrical properties, whilst not losing sight of translation into a working technology. This is a difficult challenge but fortunately there is no fundamental limit on the thermoelectric performance.

We have focused on intermetallic half-Heusler materials, and more recently on metal phosphide thermoelectrics. Both are based on abundant elements and could provide a route towards sustainable thermoelectric energy conversion [1].

In the half-Heusler materials, we pioneered the use of interstitial Cu in the leading XNiSn n-type compositions [2]. This enables synergistic reductions of lattice thermal conductivity and improvements in the electronic quality of the materials. Competitive figures of merit, zT = 1 at 793 K are found for compositions with high X = Ti content.

Recently, we have used aliovalent alloying as a route to achieve unusually low lattice thermal conductivities, far below expected based on mass and strain disorder [3]. We postulate that this is driven by bond disorder, which unfortunately also reduces the electronic quality of the materials. This limits the maximum achievable performance, requiring a careful trade-off between thermal and electronic parameters.

Metal phosphides are underexplored but offer great structural diversity, often achieving low thermal conductivities, despite low gravimetric densities. The final part of this presentation will give an overview of our recent work on several ternary metal phosphides [4], including high-mobility CaCuP.

- R. J. Quinn and J.-W. G. Bos. *Materials Advances*, 2, 6246-6266 (2021); R. J. Quinn and J.-W. G. Bos, *Journal of Materials Chemistry A* 11 8453 (2023).
- S. A. Barczak et al. ACS Applied Materials and Interfaces 10, 4786 (2018); S. A. Barczak et al. Journal of Materials Chemistry A 7, 27124 (2019).
- 3. B. F. Kennedy et al. Journal of Materials Chemistry A, 11, 23566-23575 (2023).
- R. J. Quinn and J.-W. G Bos, *Chemical Communications* 58, 11811 (2022); R. J. Quinn and J.-W. G Bos, *Applied Physics Letters* 120, 073903 (2022).

# Mixed-anion oxides for eco-friendly high-performance thermoelectric materials

#### Takayoshi Katase

MDX Research Center for Element Strategy, International Research Frontiers Initiative, Tokyo Institute of Technology, Yokohama, Japan E-mail: katase@mces.titech.ac.jp

Keywords: material design, electronic transport, phonon scattering

High energy-conversion efficiency (*ZT*) of thermoelectric materials has been achieved in heavy metal chalcogenides, but the use of toxic Pb or Te is an obstacle for wide applications of thermoelectricity. Development of high-efficiency and eco-friendly thermoelectric materials has been a challenging issue. In this talk, I like to introduce our recent works on the development of eco-friendly high-performance thermoelectric materials using concept of mixed anions. Here, we introduce new design routes for strong phonon scattering and *ZT* enhancement of transition metal oxide, SrTiO<sub>3</sub> by hydride anion (H<sup>-</sup>) substitution [1] and also recent discovery of high *ZT* ~2.1 in inverse perovskite Ba<sub>3</sub>SiO without using toxic elements [2].

Usually, heavy (toxic) elements are widely used to reduce lattice thermal conductivity  $(\kappa_{lat})$ . On the other hand, we found that the light element H<sup>-</sup> substitution largely reduces  $\kappa_{lat}$  from 8 W/(mK) of SrTiO<sub>3</sub> to 3.6 W/(mK) for SrTiO<sub>3-x</sub>H<sub>x</sub> with x = 0.216. The mass difference effect on phonon scattering is small in the SrTiO<sub>3-x</sub>H<sub>x</sub>, while substituting a portion of the O<sup>2-</sup> with H<sup>-</sup> results in a mixture comprising a strong Ti–O bond and a weak Ti–H bond. These randomly distributed Ti–(O,H) bonds strongly enhance phonon scattering, in turn, largely decrease  $\kappa_{lat}$ . As a consequence, SrTiO<sub>3-x</sub>H<sub>x</sub> bulk exhibits maximum ZT = 0.11 at room temperature and the ZT value increases continuously up to 0.22 at T = 657 K. The H<sup>-</sup> substitution idea offers a new approach for ZT enhancement in thermoelectric oxides without utilizing heavy elements.

In addition, we recently discovered high ZT in toxic-element free Ba<sub>3</sub>SiO with inverseperovskite structure. Unlike normal perovskites, such as SrTiO<sub>3</sub>, the positions of cation and anion sites are inverted in inverse-perovskites Ba<sub>3</sub>SiO. So, they contain a large amount of the heavy element, Ba, and their crystal structure is formed by a soft flamework made up of weak O–Ba bonds. These characteristics realize the low  $\kappa_{lat} = 1.0-0.4$  W/mK in Ba<sub>3</sub>SiO bulk polycrystal at T = 300-600 K. In addition, the negatively charged Si anion contributes to hole transport with long carrier life time, and their highly dispersive bands with multiple valley degeneracy realize both high p-type electronic conductivity and high Seebeck coefficient, resulting in high power factor (PF). As a consequence of high PF and low  $\kappa_{lat}$ , Ba<sub>3</sub>SiO bulk exhibits rather high ZT = 0.16-0.84 at T = 300-623 K. Finally, based on first-principles carrier and phonon transport calculations, maximum ZT is predicted to be 2.14 for Ba<sub>3</sub>SiO at T = 600 K by optimizing hole concentration. Present results propose that inverse-perovskites would be a new platform of environmentally-benign high ZT thermoelectric materials.

#### References

- 1. X. He et al., Adv. Funct. Mater. 6, 25819 (2023).
- 2. X. He et al., Adv. Sci. 2307058 (2023).

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

### T1.4 MATERIAL SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGIES FOR ADVANCED NUCLEAR FISSION AND FUSION ENERGY

### Ceramic composite R&D for fusion energy – U.S. Roadmap

Yutai Katoh<sup>1\*</sup>, Takaaki Koyanagi<sup>1</sup>, Lance Snead<sup>2,3</sup>, Sara Ferry<sup>3</sup>, Hanns Gietl<sup>4</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Oak Ridge National Laboratory, Oak Ridge, Tennessee, USA <sup>2</sup>SUNY Stony Brook University, Stony Brook, New York, USA <sup>3</sup>Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Cambridge, Massachusetts, USA <sup>4</sup>Idaho National Laboratory, Idaho Falls, Idaho, USA \*E-mail: katohy@ornl.gov

Keywords: SiC/SiC composites, refractory composites, structural composites, fusion energy

Refractory composites stand as pivotal materials for critical component and advanced subsystem concepts in the exploration of future fusion power. Over recent decades, the use of silicon carbide (SiC) ceramics and composites, most frequently in a form of continuous SiC fiber-reinforced SiC matrix (SiC/SiC) composites, has been assumed in various conceptual design studies. These studies were primarily intended to resolve the design challenges around liquid metal and/or helium cooled blanket, a fusion reactor subsystem that converts kinetic energy of fusion reaction products to heat and facilitates the tritium fuel breeding. Furthermore, there is a recognized imperative for damage- tolerant composites to replace conventional bulk refractory metals or alloys to enable robust plasma-facing components (PFCs) such as the divertor plates and the first wall armor. Moreover, the recent developments of refractory composite technologies have introduced expectations for extra-refractory composites, particularly those featuring ultra-high temperature ceramics, as potential high performance PFC materials. Although promising strides have been made in some material classes, it is crucial to acknowledge that these composite materials necessitate substantial additional research and development (R&D) efforts before robust components can be designed with technical confidence. In 2023, the U.S. fusion materials science and technology community initiated the development of

experts started the development of R&D roadmaps for fusion materials, encompassing the structural and PFC materials. The publication of the initial document is anticipated in 2024. This presentation gives an overview of the preliminary U.S. fusion materials R&D roadmap, with a primary focus on the refractory composite materials.

#### Acknowledgments

This study was supported by the US Department Energy (DOE), Office of Fusion Energy Sciences under contact DEAC05-000R22725 with ORNL, managed by UT Battelle, LLC.

### T1.6 Advanced Batteries and Supercapacitors for Energy Storage Applications

### Digital twins of battery manufacturing processes

#### Alejandro A. Franco

Laboratoire de Réactivité et Chimie des Solides (LRCS), CNRS UMR 7314, Université de Picardie Jules Verne, HUB de l'Energie, Rue Baudelocque, 80039 Amiens, France Réseau sur le Stockage Electrochimique de l'Energie (RS2E), Fédération de Recherche CNRS 3459, HUB de l'Energie, Rue Baudelocque, 80039 Amiens, France ALISTORE-European Research Institute, Fédération de Recherche CNRS 3104, HUB de l'Energie, Rue Baudelocque, 80039 Amiens, France Institut Universitaire de France, 103 Boulevard Saint-Michel, 75005 Paris, France \*E-mail: alejandro.franco@u-picardie.fr

Keywords: rechargeable batteries, manufacturing, optimization, digital twins

In this lecture I discuss the concept of digital twin and how it can be used to optimize battery electrodes design and their wet manufacturing process, from powder to power. Different types of pioneering digital twins developed in my research group, coupling numerical simulations with Artificial Intelligence, are presented, with illustrative application examples arising from my past and ongoing research projects, such as the ERC-funded ARTISTIC (https://www.erc-artistic.eu/). Methodologies to ensure the proper experimental calibration and validation of these digital twins are also discussed. Demonstrations of inverse design of lithium ion, sodium ion and solid state battery electrodes are shared, together with the demonstration of the concept transferability to dry electrode processing methods. I also present our Virtual and Mixed Reality tools designed to support the training of students, researchers and operators in the battery manufacturing field. Finally, I will briefly introduce a startup, originating from our work, which gives the promise to be a game changer for battery manufacturing process optimization.

- 1. Carnevali, R. Palacin, C.P. Grey, A.A. Franco\*, VOLTA: a tool for battery screening bridging the gap between virtual electrode materials and practical applications, *Energy Stor.Mater.*, in press (2024).
- M. Duquesnoy, C. Liu, V. Kumar, E. Ayerbe, A.A. Franco\*, Toward high-performance energy and power battery cells with machine learning-based optimization of electrode manufacturing, *J. Power Sources*, 590 (2024) 233674.
- 3. Paredes-Goyes,..., A.A. Franco\*, Mesoscopic Model of Extrusion during Solvent-Free Li-Ion Battery Electrode Manufacturing, *Batteries & Supercaps* (2023) e202300441.
- L. Denisart, D. Zapata-Dominguez, X. David, A. Leclere, R. Lelong, C. Liu, J. Xu, E. Loup-Escande, A.A. Franco\*, Combining Virtual Reality with Mixed Reality for efficient training in Battery Manufacturing, *Batteries & Supercaps* (2023) e202300268.
- M. Duquesnoy, C. Liu, D. Zapata-Dominguez, V. Kumar, E. Ayerbe, A.A. Franco\*, Machine learning-assisted multi-objective optimization of battery manufacturing from synthetic data generated by physics-based simulations, *Energy Storage Materials*, 56 (2023) 50.

- M. El-Abdali, Franco M. Zanotto, M. Duquesnoy, A.-K. Hatz, D. Ma, J. Auvergniot, V. Viallet, V. Seznec, A.A. Franco\*, Three-dimensional physical modeling of the wet manufacturing process of solid-state battery electrodes, *J. Power Sources*, 580 (2023) 233427.
- T. Lombardo, F. Lambert, R. Russo, F. M. Zanotto, C. Frayret, G. Toussaint, P. Stevens, M. Becuwe, A.A. Franco\*, Experimentally Validated Three-Dimensional Modeling of Organic-Based Sodium-Ion Battery Electrode Manufacturing, *Batteries & Supercaps*, 5(8) (2022) e202200116.
- 8. J. Xu, A.C. Ngandjong, C. Liu, F.M. Zanotto, O. Arcelus, A. Demortière, A.A. Franco\*, Lithium ion battery electrode manufacturing model accounting for 3D realistic shapes of active material particles, *J. Power Sources*, 554 (2023) 232294.
- Liu, T. Lombardo, J. Xu, A.C. Ngandjong, A.A. Franco\*, An experimentally-validated 3D electrochemical model revealing electrode manufacturing parameters' effects on battery performance, *Energy Storage Materials*, 54 (2023) 156.

# Materials development for all-solid-state batteries – LGPS-type lithium superionic conductors

#### Ryoji Kanno

Research Center for All-Solid-State Battery, Institute of Innovative Research, Tokyo Institute of Technology, Yokohama, Japan \*E-mail: kanno.r.ab@m.titech.ac.jp

Keywords: solid-state battery, lithium ion conductor

Solid-state batteries are attracting attention. There are advantages when batteries are solidstate. These include improved reliability and safety, increased energy density and power output, shorter charging times and an increased operating temperature range. However, there are still challenges in the development of solid-state batteries

We have been involved in the development of solid-state batteries. We investigated (1) the solid electrolytes to improve the performance of solid-state batteries, and (2) the battery reactions using model-type solid-state batteries.

(1) We have explored new solid electrolytes and found a material  $Li_{10}GeP_2S_{12}(LGPS)$  with conductivity comparable to or higher than the ionic conductivity of Li-based organic solvent electrolytes. It was also found that the power density of batteries can be dramatically increased by utilizing the advantages of superior ionic conductivity. In the present study, the electrolyte development is reviewed, including recent development of LGPS materials group and future challenges to improve their chemical and electrochemical stabilities and conductivities. Based the LGPS material developments, the intrinsic advantages of the solid-state battery, fast ion diffusion mechanism in the LGPS solids, and the technological development issues necessary for the fabrication of practical batteries will be described.

(2) We have developed model batteries based on the idea that battery reactions can be observed more in detail when batteries are solid-state. Battery reactions proceed at the electrode/electrolyte interface. It is not well understood how the electrochemical reactions at the interface and the changes in the electronic structure of the electrode proceed during charging and discharging. In liquid batteries, the electronic structure is difficult to determine due to restrictions in observation techniques. In solid-state batteries, the electrode-electrolyte interface can be considered as a heterojunction interface in semiconductors. Spectroscopic methods can reveal the electronic structure of the battery. The following topics will be reported: Construction of a thin-film battery to investigate battery reactions, the band structure of the battery, and changes in the band structure during charge-discharge reactions.

As solid-state batteries become practical devices, the battery science and technology will also progress. We expect a new battery science to appear with the new devices.

- 1. N. Kamaya, et al., Nature Materials, 10, 682 (2011).
- 2. Kato, et al., Nature Energy, 1, 201630 (2016).
- 3. Hikima, et al., Communications Chemistry, 5, 52 (2022).

# Enhanced cathode-solid electrolyte interface for cycle-stable all-solid-state Li-ion batteries

#### Nae-Lih Wu<sup>\*</sup>, Hao-Wen Liu

Department of Chemical Engineering, National Taiwan University, Taipei 106, Taiwan \*E-mail: nlw001@ntu.edu.tw

Keywords: all-solid-state Li-ion battery, NCM cathode, halide solid electrolytes, interface debonding

All-solid-state lithium-ion batteries (ASSLIBs) have been considered suitable alternatives to commercial lithium-ion batteries (LIBs) in the aspect of safety issues that come from using inflammable solid electrolytes to replace organic flammable electrolytes. Nevertheless, much room remains for a better understanding of their properties and behaviors to upgrade their performance to reach the practical application level. Ni-rich layered oxides, LiNi<sub>1-x-v</sub>Co<sub>x</sub>Mn-<sub>v</sub>O<sub>2</sub> (NCM), are promising cathodes for high-energy ASSLIBs because of their high capacities and redox potentials, and low material cost when compared with conventional LiCoO<sub>2</sub>. However, certain challenges associated with their use in ASSLIBs must be addressed for their effective use and industrialization. In particular, the structural integrity of the all-solid-state NCM composite electrodes suffers from not only intragranular cracks but also debonding at the cathode-solid electrolyte (SE) interface. The latter constitutes the major cause of fast capacity fade. To overcome this problem, it is a common practice to apply very high stacking pressure, typically higher than several tens MPa, on the ASSLIBs during operation. Lowering the battery operation stacking pressure, for example, to the level of the liquid-electrolyte batteries will certainly facilitate the wider applications of ASSLIBs. Using the composite cathode consisting of a LiNi<sub>0.83</sub>Co<sub>0.12</sub>Mn<sub>0.05</sub>O<sub>2</sub> (NCM811) cathode and brittle Li<sub>3</sub>InCl<sub>6</sub> (LIC) solid electrolyte (SE), this study demonstrates that forming a chemically reinforced cathodesolid electrolyte interface via limited interfacial reactions may serve as an effective means to mitigate interface debonding so as to enable ASSLIBs to maintain long-term operation under reduced stacking pressures.

#### Acknowledgments

This work is financially supported by the National Science and Technology Council (Taiwan) under contract number MOST 110-2221-E-002 -015 -MY3 and NSTC 112-2923-E-011-005.

### Novel 3D thermal energy storage materials based on molten salts fully encapsulated into patterned printed clay supports

Irene Díaz-Herrezuelo, Pilar Miranzo, María Isabel Osendi, Manuel Belmonte\*

Institute of Ceramics and Glass (ICV, CSIC), Madrid, Spain \*E-mail: mbelmonte@icv.csic.es

Keywords: thermal energy storage, molten salt, 3D printing, clays

The thermal energy is one of the most appealing energy sources to reduce the greenhouse gas emissions and the dependence on fossil energy resources. In this way, molten salts stand out as excellent thermal energy storage (TES) materials for medium-high temperature applications, including renewable energies like concentrated solar power (CSP) plants, which are able to dispatch power even during the night time, in contrast to the most well-known photovoltaic technology. However, these molten salts commonly exhibit energy efficiencies below expectations, are highly corrosive to the containers, and can present liquid leakage in their molten state, compromising their storage capabilities. To overcome this problem, a novel approach is presented, which is based on the development of three-dimensional (3D) engineered TES structures (3DTES) able to efficiently storage and release thermal energy to be potentially employed in CSP plants.

Highly macro-porous (~93%) 3D expanded clay supports have been printed by direct ink writing using a strategy that combines optimized patterned architectures with the addition of up to 20 wt.% of pore formers to the printable clay inks. Expanded vermiculite (EV) has been selected as clay material because its low cost, large specific surface area, and high chemical compatibility and thermal stability. 3D printed EV scaffolds have subsequently been infiltrated with molten sodium nitrate due to its high thermal capability and low supercooling, leading to promising 3DTES materials for medium temperature applications (melting temperature ~ 307 °C), such as CSP systems.

A maximum encapsulation capacity of the molten salt into the scaffold of 87% has been attained, which comes from the full infiltration of the salt into the vertical and horizontal macrochannels of the supports, as well as from the penetration of the molten salt into the macroporous clay struts. The channels configuration and partial infiltration of the struts contribute to avoid liquid leakage of the molten salt inside the 3D structure. In addition, a good chemical compatibility between the supporting material and the salt has been observed. 3DTES exhibit an outstanding thermal energy storage efficiency of ~90% that is maintained after thermal cycling. Besides, they present low supercooling degree (2.7 °C), good thermal conductivity (1.0 W·m<sup>-1</sup>·K<sup>-1</sup>), and high corrosion and mechanical resistance (compressive strength of ~46 MPa) despite their lightness (~1.6 g·cm<sup>-3</sup>). These findings encourage the use of 3DTES in medium-high temperature applications, among others, in renewable energies and waste heat recovery.

### **T2** Ceramics for Energy Conservation and Efficiency

### **T2.1 Advanced Fiber Reinforced Composites for Turbine Engines**

# SiC-based Ceramic Matrix Composite behavior enhancement for Gaz Turbines Hot Sections

#### Eric Bouillon

Chief Scintific Officer, Safran Ceramics, Le Haillan, France E-mail: eric.bouillon@safrangroup.com

Keywords: SiC/SiC CMC, EBC, matrix cracking strength, thermomechanical behavior

Silicon carbide fibers reinforced silicon carbide based-matrix composites and Oxide fibers reinforced Oxide based-matrix composites, are probably becoming a major leading alternative for the design and manufacturing of the next gas turbine engines components as airfoils, shrouds, combustion chambers and exhaust. These materials offer higher temperature capability than the current state-of-the-art metallic superalloys. The growing interest in CMC technologies is directly linked to the new short-term engine design constraints for dual military and commercial aircraft, namely an increase of functioning temperature and an increase of mass saving, a drastic decrease of community noise and air polluting emissions and a specific fuel consumption decrease. During the last fifteen years, substantial research efforts have been devoted to evaluating a wide range of CMC and manufacturing routes. Available experiences, in term of sub-element rig tests and engine ground and flight tests, confirmed the expected gains and provided significant lessons in field service. Furthermore, design tools and tests methods have been optimized for fine understanding of behaviour, damage tolerance, design criteria and certification approach  $\{1, 2\}$ . The aim of this paper, after a brief description of the CMC interests for the next aero-engine generation, is to illustrate these different aspects, through different examples of Safran experiences, including different types of CMC associated to different type of component. These results come from several years of studies of Safran Ceramics. A focus will be done on specific tests methodologies development, for a better analyse of damage mechanism and some engine CMCs components tests will be presented.

#### Acknowledgments

The author thanks the French organizations DGA, DGAC, Region Nouvelle Aquitaine, and ANRT for their financial supports. The author also thanks the French academic laboratories LCTS, ONERA, LMPS, ENSMA-P' and CIRIMAT for their basic research contributions.

- Halbig, M.C., Jaskowiak, M.H., Kiser, J.D., Zhu, D. (2013), "Evaluation of Ceramic Matrix Composite Technology for Aircraft Turbine Engine Applications", paper presented at 51st AIAA, January 7–13, Grapevine-Dallas, USA.
- Bouillon, E. (2021)," Ceramic Matrix Composite behavior enhancement for Gas Turbines Hot Sections", Conference of NATO Science & Technology Organization, AVT-356 Research Symposium on Physics of Failure for Military Platform Critical Subsystems, November 15–19, 2021.

# Technology trends and market status of fiber-reinforced ceramic composites materials in Korea

<u>Seyoung Kim</u><sup>\*</sup>, In-sub Han, Hyung Joon Bang, Soo-hyun Kim, Young-Hoon Seong, Seul Hee Lee

Hydrogen Convergence Materials Laboratory, Korea Institute of Energy Research, Daejeon City, South Korea \*E-mail: saykim@kier.re.kr

Keywords: ceramic matrix composites, CMC, gas turbine

Ceramic matrix composites (CMC) are mainly applied in high temperatures and extreme environmental conditions. This can have a positive impact on the global environment by increasing efficiency in the aerospace, power generation, defense, and nuclear industries, contributing to solving the global warming problem in various ways.

In particular, SiC/SiC composite materials are currently a game-changer in the aviation engine field and are gradually expanding their application range. South Korea also has the technology to successfully manufacture and deploy its own supersonic fighter through the KF-21 program, and is considering applying CMC to fighters with improved performance in the future. Additionally, two engine manufacturers are also actively reviewing the application of CMC components and participating in various CMC development programs to maximize efficiency and secure international competitiveness. Accordingly, a value chain of universities and research institutes researching and developing CMC, material companies to commercialize it, and end users to utilize it began to form in Korea.

Starting with the SiC/SiC material component development project that began in 2007, we are currently preparing to mass produce 3rd generation SiC fibers (Tensile strength 2.5GPa, Elastic Modulus 300GPa, Oxygen content 1wt%). In addition, over the past 16 years, we have secured the basic technology for manufacturing material parts using LSI, PIP, and CVI processes. In particular, when applying the LSI-based process, we are currently producing and selling various aviation parts, and recently, we are developing a dipping-type infiltration process for mass production (Korea Institute of Energy Research, DACC Carbon, etc.). In addition, in the case of PIP, we are focusing on developing technology to minimize the number of impregnation-heat treatment processes and expand the application temperature range to 2000oC (Korea Institute of Materials Research). CVI process technology has conducted research on matrix strengthening using assisted whisker growth, and is currently conducting research Institute).

Korea's CMC industry is not limited to gas turbine parts, but is currently expanding its scope of application to the entire industrial range, including small launch vehicles and defense fields, and an explanation of this will be included in the presentation material.

Additionally, the current Korean government has begun strategic investments to become a leading country in the aerospace industry, and is also making efforts to secure a larger market share in the defense industry. Above all, the government has recently placed great importance on research cooperation between countries, and the demand for research is greatly increasing. The CMC field is a very suitable topic for such international joint research, and our Korean research institutes are prepared to conduct co-research at any time, so we have high expectations for it.

# Fiber-matrix interphases for damage tolerant and hot gas stable SiC/SiC composites

#### Judith Moosburger-Will\*, Katrin Bock, Kevin Postler, Shyamal Roy, Dietmar Koch

Institute of Materials Resource Management, University of Augsburg, Augsburg, Germany \*E-mail: judith.moosburger@uni-a.de

Keywords: SiC/SiC composites, fiber coating, damage tolerance, hot gas stability

Non-oxide ceramic matrix composites (CMC) provide a damage tolerant failure behavior, a high proportional limit, a high stability at high temperatures and aggressive atmospheres, and a low weight. A prominent example is SiC fiber reinforced SiC (SiC/SiC), which is used for the application in aeroengines. The properties of a SiC/SiC-CMC crucially depend on the properties of the interface region between fiber and matrix, the so-called interphase. The interphase defines the adhesion between the fibers and the matrix. A low fiber-matrix bonding results in a quasi-ductile failure behavior and a high damage tolerance of the CMC. In addition, the interphase protects the fibers during CMC processing and under the conditions of use, e.g., under hot gas corrosive atmosphere.

To ensure full functionality of the CMC under application conditions, a specifc design of the interphase is crucial. Interphase modification in SiC/SiC can be realized by coating of the SiC fibers using chemical vapor deposition. Coating systems based on layers of BN and SiC can fulfill the requirements. Gentle processing routes are necessary to minimize damage to the coating system during SiC/SiC manufacturing by reactive melt infiltration.

To optimize the properties of the interphase in SiC/SiC-CMC, it is necessary to have a fundamental understanding of the interactions between SiC fibers, coating system, and SiC matrix during CMC processing and under the conditions of use. The reactions and damage mechanisms occuring on the nano- and microscale affect the macroscopic fracture behavior of the CMC. These correlations are investigated by extensive high-resolution material analysis, including transmission electron microscopy and single fiber push-out tests. A comprehensive picture of the failure behavior of the SiC/SiC material under hot gas atmosphere results. Based on the various experimental results material models for simulation of crack propagation in SiC/SiC-CMC are developed. The aim is a digital material development, which can predict the ideal interphase design and processing conditions and supports real SiC/SiC material development.

To summarize, the design of fiber-matrix interphases in SiC/SiC improves the failure behavior and the hot gas stability, supporting an implementation of CMCs in industrial applications such as turbines.

#### Figures



Cross section of SiC/SiC-CMC containing coated SiC fibers.

#### Acknowledgments

We acknowledge the support of the Federal Ministry for Economic Affairs and Climate Action, Germany, through the Federal Aeronautic Research Program (Funding number 20T2108B). Thanks to K. Schönfeld and C. Steinborn (Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft zur Förderung der angewandten Forschung e.V.) for providing coated SiC fibers.

### **T2.2** Advanced Ceramic Coatings for Power Systems

# **PVD-based environmental barrier coatings for SiC-SiC CMC components: Current status, challenges and future directions**

<u>Uwe Schulz</u>\*, Andrea Ebach-Stahl, Ravisankar Naraparaju, Ronja Anton, Cynthia Y. Guijosa-Garcia

German Aerospace Center, Institute of Materials Research, Cologne, Germany \*E-mail: uwe.schulz@dlr.de

Keywords: environmental barrier coating, PVD, CMC

Ceramic matrix composites (CMCs) are promising materials for components in the hot section of gas turbines and are already applied in the latest generation of aero-engines. They can withstand higher service temperatures than the currently used Ni-based superalloys. However, SiC-SiC CMCs possess an insufficient oxidation resistance under the presence of rapidly flowing water vapor as it is present in combustion atmospheres. They suffer from both volatilization of silicon hydroxide, which leads to severe surface recession, and steam enhanced oxidation. Therefore, environmental barrier coatings (EBCs) are mandatory that protect the underlying CMC. In this presentation, multilayer EBCs manufactured by PVD (physical vapor deposition) methods are introduced. Both SiC-based CMCs and model SiC-alloys were coated by magnetron sputtering and by high rate EB-PVD processes. A first layer consisted of a silicon-based bond coat. Oxidation of those Si-based bond coats at high temperatures and the corresponding SiO<sub>2</sub> oxide scale growth rate is a life limiting factor for the EBCs. In this work, two different coating deposition methods were used, namely magnetron sputtering and electron beam physical vapor deposition (EB-PVD) to deposit Si-based bond coats on SiC-SiC substrates. The upper layers consisted of an intermediate rare-earth di-silicate, and a mono-silicate layer for protection against water vapor recession on top. The coating architecture was designed to minimize chemical interactions between different layers and to have a strain tolerant microstructure. Samples were tested up to 1250°C in air in a furnace cycle test and under flowing water vapor at isothermal conditions. The EBC system showed no spallation after up to 1000hrs of cyclic testing and retains stable interfaces between the layers. The oxide scale growth rates for both sputtered and EB-PVD Si-bond coats were measured and its influence on the life time of EBC system will be presented. Special emphasis is put on the phase formation during a mandatory heat treatment of the initially amorphous EBC top layers and the consequences of surface roughness for PVD layers. While the uncoated CMC suffered from severe degradation under flowing water vapor and showed rapid loss of the matrix material after only 1h of testing, the EBC systems considerably lowered the mass loss and provide a good protection of the CMC in this test. Finally, the perfect coverage and good adhesion of PVD-based EBCs on sharp edges and on a real CMC vane structure is addressed. In addition, as CaO-MgO-Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>- SiO<sub>2</sub> (CMAS) is a well-known threat to the EBC functionality, an additional CMAS resistant top layer is necessary which adds more complexity to the multi-layer system. A multi-phase CMAS resistant coating containing Y-Fe-Si oxides has been developed and its applicability on a state-of-the art EBC system will be demonstrated and the CMAS infiltration results at high temperature will be presented.

# Manufacture and characterization of advanced termal/environmental barrier coatings

<u>Robert Vaßen<sup>1,2</sup>, Emine Bakan<sup>1</sup>, Ed Gildersleeve<sup>1</sup>, Daniel Emil Mack<sup>1</sup>, Dmitry Naumenko<sup>3</sup>, Olivier Guillon<sup>1,4</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>Forschungszentrum Jülich GmbH, Institute of Energy and Climate Research: Materials Synthesis and Processing (IEK-1), Jülich, Germany

<sup>2</sup>Institut für Werkstoffe, Ruhr-Universität Bochum, Bochum, Germany

<sup>3</sup>Forschungszentrum Jülich GmbH, Institute of Energy and Climate Research: Materials Structure and Function of Materials (IEK-2), Jülich, Germany

<sup>4</sup>Jülich Aachen Research Alliance, JARA-Energy, Germany E-mail:

Keywords: atmospheric plasma spraying, ytterbium disilicate, water vapor recession

Environmental barrier coatings (EBCs) protect fiber-reinforced ceramics (such as SiC/SiC composites) from water vapor recession, which is a major concern in modern gas turbines. In addition to the EBCs, also thermal barrier coatings (TBCs) are needed on top for the thermal protection of the ceramic matrix composites. Both coatings are often made by thermal spray deposition methods; a standard coating material system for EBCs is an ytterbium disilicate (YbDS) topcoat with a silicon bond coat, standard thermal barrier coatings are produced from yttria partially stabilized zirconia (YSZ).

The paper will describe recent results on the APS deposition and characterization of advanced EBCs and also T/EBCs based on YbDS and YSZ.

Results of thermogravimetric measurements of SiC samples coated with silicon bond coat and dense ytterbium disilicate topcoat will give insight in the protection of the silicon bond coat from oxidation by the top layer. The comparison with samples only coated with a silicon bond coat showed a reduced oxidation rate of the sample revealing the low permeation rate of the top coat. In addition, the effect of the heat treatment of the topcoat on the oxidation rate of the bond coat will be shown.

Furthermore, results on the development and performance of combined environmental and thermal barrier coatings using yttria-stabilized zirconia (YSZ) as thermal barrier coating will be presented. Here recent findings on the influence of the degree of crystallization of the ytterbium disilicate before YSZ deposition on the lifetime of the systems in cyclic oxidations test will be discussed.

Finally, advanced characterization tools for investigating water vapor recession will be shown. In addition to furnace tests performed under slow flowing water vapor, the gas burner test rigs already allow testing with higher gas velocities (above 10m/s). The highest gas velocities are available with our high velocity oxygen fuel (HVOF) torch. The impact of the different test conditions on the recession rates will be discussed.

### T2.3 Engineering Ceramics: Advanced Processing, Properties, and Applications

#### Microstructure and properties of diamond reinforced ceramic materials

#### Mathias Herrmann<sup>\*</sup>, Björn Matthey, Steffen Kunzer

Fraunhofer IKTS, Fraunhofer Institute for Ceramic Technologies and Systems, 01277, Dresden, Germany

\*E-mail: Mathias.Herrmann@ikts.fraunhofer.de

Keywords: diamond, silicon carbide, microstructure, properties

Wear-resistant materials are becoming increasingly important for industry in order to produce sustainable products that conserve resources. One material with excellent tribological and wear properties are diamond reinforced ceramics, especially SiC bonded diamond materials, which can be produced without high-pressure processes. The lecture will present an overview concerning the preparation of such materials, the possibilities of microstructure design and the resulting thermal, mechanical and tribological properties.

Particular attention will be paid to the integration of the hard phase into the ceramic matrix. Diamond is metastable. Under sintering conditions, graphite can form at the interfaces. In the case of SiC-bonded diamond materials, which are produced by silicon infiltration of diamond preforms, the formation of the graphite layer at the interface can be avoided, which leads to a strong bonding of the diamond into the SiC matrix. Results on materials specifically produced with graphitic interface layers show that graphite at the interface does not fundamentally change the interface strength and properties. For example, the wear behavior in the sandblasting test is no worse than that of materials without a graphite interface. The wear rate under these conditions is more than a factor of 10 lower than for SSiC materials. Also, the strength of the interface measured in microcantilever tests is also comparable to the graphite-free interface.

During sliding experiments SiC bonded diamond materials show a low friction coefficient and nearly no wear. The analysis of the worn surface showed that after some initial wear of the SiC network, the wear is determined by the wear of the diamond particles. Similar behavior has been observed with other diamond-reinforced ceramics in which the diamonds are strongly bonded into the matrix.

The materials not only exhibit excellent wear behavior but also very good thermal conductivity of up to 650 W/mK.

The material is therefore interesting for a wide range of applications including nozzles, bearings other wear components and components for thermal management.

#### Acknowledgments

The presentation is based on data obtained in various projects. We would like to thank the sponsoring institutions (Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft Under Grant No. MAVO 831336; PREPARE 840066, US-Army Research Office under Cooperative Agreement Number W911NF-20-2-0115, BMWK Contract number SubseaSlide 03SX508F).

### T2.5 Advanced Polymer Derived Ceramics (PDCs) and Related Materials for Energy Applications

# Preparation of highly efficient electrocatalysts from iron-doped polymeric precursors *via* pyrolysis or electrochemical oxidation

#### Yoshiyuki Sugahara

Department of Applied Chemistry, School of Advanced Science and Engineering, Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan Kagami Memorial Research Institute for Materials Science and Technology, Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan E-mail: ys6546@waseda.jp

Keywords: electrocatalyst, polymer precursor, pyrolysis, oxidation

Developing sustainable and environmentally friendly energy sources is a huge demand to solve the urgent problem of global scarcity of fossil fuels. Electrochemical water splitting, which involves splitting water into  $O_2$  and  $H_2$  without any byproduct formation, has been developed as one of the most efficient technologies for producing renewable energy.[1] To make use of this advanced technology for large-scale energy production, the development of highly efficient electrocatalysts is required. Since electrochemical water splitting is a surfacedependent reaction involving the adsorption of reactants, interfacial charge transfer, and desorption of intermediates/products, the compositions, morphology, and electronic structures of electrocatalysts should be optimized to obtain remarkable electrocatalysts for electrochemical water splitting. We have developed iron-doped Co-Mo sulfide (Fe-CoMoS) heterostructures with highly efficient water-splitting catalytic abilities from polymeric precursors obtained from cobalt (II) nitrate hexahydrate, iron (III) nitrate hexahydrate, phosphomolybdic acid hydrate and dithiooxamide, which can form a polymeric complex with Co<sup>2+</sup> ions. Pyrolysis under nitrogen atmosphere gave the electrocatalysts. When diblock polymer with polystyrene and poly(acrylic acid) chains were added during the precursor synthesis without the use of the iron source, the mesoporous Co-Mo sulfide composite (CoMoS), which exhibited bifunctional activities for both the hydrogen evolution reaction (HER) and oxygen evolution reaction (OER). [2] Intrinsic electronic structure optimization achieved by doping of iron into CoMoS (Fe-CoMoS) improved its catalytic activity and stability. Electrochemical measurements revealed that this structural optimization promoted enhanced electrical conductivity and increased the number of electrochemical active sites on the Fe-CoMoS, leading to its remarkable electrocatalytic performance as a bifunctional catalyst for both HER and OER in alkaline media. When a triblock polymer (polystyrene-b-poly(acrylic acid)-b-poly(ethylene glycol)) was added instead of deblock polymer during the precursor synthesis (without the iron source), a hollow CoMoS electrocatalyst was obtained, and the iron-doping further improved the catalytic activity for both HER and OER.[3] The iron-doped precursor itself, moreover, also exhibited electrocatalytic activity for OER.[4] After electrochemical activation of the iron-doped precursor under OER conditions, evolution of crystalline metal (oxyhydr)oxides with morphological reconstruction proceeded and catalytic activity was further improved.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

#### Acknowledgments

This research was partly supported by the Japan Society for the Promotion of Science (JSPS Kakenhi No. 22F22029) and the JST-ERATO Yamauchi Materials Space-Tectonics Project (JPMJER2003).

- 1. Y. Guo et al., Adv. Mater. 2019, 31, 1807134.
- 2. Y. Guo et al., ACS Nano 2020, 14, 4141.
- Y. Guo *et al.*, *Nano Energy*, **2020**, 75, 104913.
   Y. Guo *et al.*, *Chem. Eng. J.*, **2023**, 457, 140464.

### T2.6 SUSTAINABLE MATERIALS AND SYSTEMS FOR ENERGY EFFICIENT BUILDING AND STRUCTURES

# Frequency and temperature dependent dielectric response of electrochromic tungsten oxide thin films

#### Dilek Evecan<sup>1</sup>, Saffettin Yıldırım<sup>2</sup>, Esra Ö. Zayim<sup>1\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Istanbul Technical University, Faculty of Science and Letters, Physics Engineering Department, 34469 Maslak, Istanbul, Türkiye <sup>2</sup>Istanbul University, Science Faculty, Department of Physics, 34134 Vezneciler, Istanbul, Türkiye

\*E-mail: ozesra@itu.edu.tr

Keywords: tungsten oxide, electrochromism, dielectric properties, smart windows

Electrochromic devices that exhibit reversible color changes under applied low voltage have promising applications for energy efficiency in buildings. In particular, electrochromic windows represent an emerging technology to control indoor lighting and improve building energy usage by modulating sunlight transmission. Among electrochromic materials, tungsten oxide has generated substantial interest due to its superior electrochromic performance as an active layer. This study aims to elucidate the underlying electrochromic mechanisms in tungsten oxide thin films through detailed investigations of dielectric properties. The real and imaginary dielectric behavior of tungsten oxide films were measured using broadband dielectric spectroscopy from 183-373 K temperatures across 10<sup>-1</sup> to 10<sup>7</sup> Hz frequencies. Analysis of the frequency and temperature dependence of the complex dielectric response provides insights into the nature of charge transport. The results indicate that the electrochromic switching process involves hopping of charged particles between localized states, in the tungsten oxide films. By establishing these fundamental conduction mechanisms, this work advances the rational design of efficient electrochromic devices with improved switching speeds for next-generation smart window applications for buildings.

### **T3** Ceramics for Environmental Systems

### **T3.2** CERAMICS FOR CARBON CAPTURE AND STORAGE TECHNOLOGIES

# Designing ionic liquid mixtures for direct air capture membranes with ceramic layers

#### Takashi Makino

Research Institute for Chemical Process Technology, National Institute of Advanced Industrial Science and Technology (AIST), Sendai, Japan E-mail: makino.t@aist.go.jp

Keywords: direct air capture, ionic liquid, CO2 absorption, separation membrane

In the pursuit of the  $1.5^{\circ}$ C scenario outlined in the Paris Agreement, achieving carbon neutrality by 2050 and implementing negative emissions thereafter is crucial. Besides electricity decarbonization, energy conservation, and fuel switching, integrating carbon capture, utilization, and storage (CCUS) from point emission sources into society is essential. Furthermore, to realize negative emission post-2050, the deployment of negative emission technologies (NETs), which directly capture and sequester CO<sub>2</sub> from the atmosphere, is imperative. NETs include afforestation, blue carbon, accelerated weathering, and direct air capture with carbon storage (DACCS), offering significant CO<sub>2</sub> reduction potential. While DACCS is presently expensive, technological advancements may render it cost-competitive with other NETs. Current DAC technologies employ chemical absorption or adsorption, requiring substantial thermal energy for CO<sub>2</sub> recovery. Several research groups, including ours, are investigating membrane-based DAC (m-DAC) technologies. As membrane separation, in principle, does not rely on thermal energy, m-DAC systems may operate solely on renewable energy sources.

The concentration of CO<sub>2</sub> in the atmosphere is 0.04%. To capture CO<sub>2</sub> at such low concentrations, facilitated transport membranes (FTMs) offer significant advantages in separation performance. Ionic liquids (ILs), non-volatile and non-flammable solvents, show promise as materials for FTMs because of their superior CO, permeability compared to conventional amine polymers. Our research group recently achieved a breakthrough in m-DAC by designing IL mixtures. Through molecular structure optimization and mixing ratio adjustment, we demonstrated CO<sub>2</sub> permeability and CO<sub>2</sub>/N<sub>2</sub> selectivity of 25893 Barrer and 10059, respectively. As illustrated in Fig. 1(a), the  $CO_2$  selectivity of the mixed IL membrane (red circle) exceeds conventional polymer membranes by 500 times with comparable  $CO_2$  permeability (solid line). Theoretically, a single-stage mixed IL membrane can concentrate 0.04% CO<sub>2</sub> to 80%. ILs offer the advantage of facile membrane production. Fig. 1 (b) is a photograph of the prepared IL membrane. A layer of ceramic particles is coated on top of a porous hydrocarbon membrane, and the IL supported by the ceramic particles acts as the  $CO_2$  separation layer. We successfully fabricated a prototype IL membrane using Roll to Roll technology with the gravure coating method, as shown in Figure 1(c). In the presentation, we will delve into the detailed characteristics of the mixed IL membrane.



**Fig. 1**  $CO_2$  permeability and  $CO_2/N_2$  selectivity of IL membranes with an upper boundary (Energy Environ. Sci., 12, 2733 (2019)), and photographs of ceramic supported IL membrane (b) and a prototype IL membrane (c).
## T3.5 Advanced Sensors for Energy, Environment and Health Applications

#### Surface modifications for thin films gas sensors applications

#### Qasem Drmosh

Department of Materials Science and Engineering, King Fahd University of Petroliuem and Minerals, Dhrahn, Saudi Arabia E-mail: drmosh@kfupm.edu.sa

Keywords: surface modifications, thin films, gas sensing

Metal oxides have been identified as emerging candidate in sensing of several gases due to their unique properties including feasibility to doping, low cost in fabrication, higher stability, and non-toxicity. Metal oxides can be prepared in many formats such as nanotubes, nanowires, nanorods, and thin films. The later format especially those prepared by physical vapour deposition offers the advantages of easy scalability, excellent reproducibility, producing high purity materials, and high compatibility of the sensing materials with substrates. However, thin films have not been extensively used as compared to other nanostructured materials because of their slow response, low sensitivity, and long recovery time.

In our previous works, three efficient strategies were developed to enhance the gas sensing performance of thin films-based sensors synthesized by physical vapour deposition techniques. The first strategy including develop a facile experimental setup to prepare high surface area metal oxide thin films using thermal oxidation of as-deposited metal oxide at low values of oxygen partial pressure via a buffer gas mixture of  $H_2O$  and  $H_2$  at different temperatures.

In the second approach, the as-prepared thin films such as ZnO and SnO<sub>2</sub> were modified by incorporating highly uniform and controlled size noble metals, such as, Ag, and Au in a series of three consecutive steps. First, metal oxide thin films were prepared by DC sputtering. Then, an ultra-thin layer of the noble metal was deposited on the metal oxide surface [2-4]. Finally, metal/metal oxide films were annealed at different temperatures to obtain nanostructured morphology of M on the metal oxide thin films.

In the latest method, we developed a new method to fabricated metal A/metal oxide/metal B systems with different contents of metal oxide, metal A, and metal B through sequential DC sputtering and subsequent post-heat treatment. This approch open the door for engineering the depletion layer of metal oxide thin films through decoration with a controlled amount of metals weights in addition to the variation of metal oxide layer thickness [5-6].

- Drmosh, Q. A., Yamani, Z. H., & Hossain, M. K. (2017). Hydrogen gas sensing performance of low partial oxygen-mediated nanostructured zinc oxide thin film. Sensors and Actuators B: Chemical, 248, 868–877.
- Mohamedkhair, A. K., Drmosh, Q. A., & Yamani, Z. H. (2019). Silver nanoparticle-decorated tin oxide thin films: synthesis, characterization, and hydrogen gas sensing. Frontiers in materials, 6, 188.
- Drmosh, Q. A., Yamani, Z. H., Mohamedkhair, A. K., Hendi, A. H. Y., Hossain, M. K., & Ibrahim, A. (2018). Gold nanoparticles incorporated SnO2 thin film: highly responsive and selective detection of NO2 at room temperature. Materials Letters, 214, 283–286.
- 4. Drmosh, Q. A., & Yamani, Z. H. (2016). Synthesis, characterization, and hydrogen gas sensing properties of AuNs-catalyzed ZnO sputtered thin films. Applied Surface Science, 375, 57–64.
- Drmosh, Q. A., Al Wajih, Y. A., Alade, I. O., Mohamedkhair, A. K., Qamar, M., Hakeem, A. S., & Yamani, Z. H. (2021). Engineering the depletion layer of Au-modified ZnO/Ag core-shell films for high-performance acetone gas sensing. Sensors and Actuators B: Chemical, 338, 129851.
- Alghamdi, B. M., Alharbi, N. M., Alade, I. O., Sultan, B., Aburuzaizah, M. M., Baroud, T. N., & Drmosh, Q. A. (2023). Regulating the Electron Depletion Layer of Au/V2O5/Ag Thin Film Sensor for Breath Acetone as Potential Volatile Biomarker. Nanomaterials, 13(8), 1372.

## Low level nitrogen oxide detection: Relevance for disease diagnosis, climate change and air pollution

Prabir K Dutta<sup>1,3\*</sup>, Darby Makel<sup>2,3</sup>, Solomon Ssenyange<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Ohio State University, 281 W Lane Ave, Columbus, Ohio, USA <sup>2</sup>Makel Engineering, Inc. 1585 Marauder St Chico, CA 95973, USA <sup>3</sup>RedNOx, Inc. 3467 Pinewood Terrace, Suite 202 Fremont, CA 94536, USA \*E-mail: dutta.1@osu.edu

Keywords: electrochemcial, optical, agriculture, diesel emissions, asthma

 $N_2O$  (nitrous oxide), NO (nitric oxide) and NO<sub>2</sub> (nitrogen dioxide) are the three stable oxides of nitrogen and NO+NO<sub>2</sub> is referred to as NO<sub>x</sub>. These oxides of nitrogen play an important role in some of the most important issues facing humanity today: climate change, atmospheric pollution, agriculture and biomarkers of inflammatory disease. Nitrogen chemicals in soil, including from fertilizers are converted into nitrous oxide (N<sub>2</sub>O) and NO<sub>x</sub> (NO+NO<sub>2</sub>) by soil microorganisms. NO<sub>x</sub> contributes to air pollution via formation of fine particulate matter and ozone, and N2O is a key greenhouse, 300 times more potent than CO2. NO<sub>x</sub> emissions from diesel-based combustion caused 38,000 premature human deaths globally in 2015 and loss of global crop (soy, wheat, maize) production by 3-10%. Asthma-related illness continues to climb worldwide, some 334 million people suffer from asthma and these numbers are expected to increase. Measurement of exhaled NO is recommended by the American Thoracic Society as a quantitative, noninvasive and safe method for asthma diagnosis and subsequent treatment. To make an impact in these diverse areas, a unified challenge is to develop nitrogen oxide sensors that have high sensitivity (ppb-ppm level), and yet can discriminate against hundreds of other potential interfering molecules.

In this talk, we will discuss designing solid state electrochemical NO<sub>x</sub> sensors that can alleviate the emissions from diesel engines, addressing an unmet need for NO<sub>x</sub> sensors in the 1-20 ppm range for diesel emission control, since current commercial sensors do not function well in this range. Fertilizers, based on ammonium compounds and nitrates are essential for growing crops that feed humanity, but their use leads to the formation and release of N<sub>2</sub>O and NO<sub>x</sub>. Inexpensive N<sub>2</sub>O and NO<sub>x</sub> sensors that can be deployed for both soil subsurface and ambient gas measurements will allow farmers to use fertilizers judiciously. Our agriculturefocused sensors for N<sub>2</sub>O utilize near-infrared spectroscopy, and sensors for NO<sub>x</sub> are based on solid-state electrochemical sensors. These technologies have been demonstrated for making ppm and ppb measurements of ambient N<sub>2</sub>O and NO<sub>x</sub>, respectively. We will also present data on analysis of exhaled nitric oxide in breath at ppb levels using solid-state electrochemical sensors as a method for asthma diagnosis.

### Selective sensors for non-invasive diagnostics and wearables

#### Pelagia-Irene (Perena) Gouma

Department of Materials Science and Engineering, The Ohio State University, Columbus, OH, USA E-mail: gouma.2@osu.edu

Keywords: selectivity, sensors, non-invasive diagnostics, wearables

The next generation of semiconductor materials and processes will target personalized medicine and ubiquitous environmental, infrastructure, and health diagnostics while affording rapid computations. How this will be achieved is the big unknown; however, there are several research avenues currently been explored. We present here novel and convergent approaches for the accelerated maturation and manufacturing of the semiconducting materials of the future, with emphasis on scalability, sustainability, and affordability, targeting sensing systems and devices. We have pioneered the crystallo-chemical approach for selective chemo-sensing; and have advanced nanomanufacturing by producing novel, scalable tools for nanofibrous (woven and non-woven) (bio-)sensing materials. We have engineered advanced, one-of-a-kind type materials of diverse functionality, from electrospun single crystal metal oxide nanowires for use in sensing and photocatalysis to chemo-actuating semi-conducting polymer composites for wearable sensors. One example is our "Smart Connected Health" related project currently funded by the National Science Foundation that we lead. There is a team of experts including sensor materials, mechanobiology, wireless communications, nutrition, computer science and machine learning, assembled to produce novel, non-invasive, non-intrusive, widely accessible wearable sensors and health monitoring tools.



Figure 1: Schematic of one of the skin-gas devices developed in our lab for non-invasive and non-intrusive health diagnostics

#### Acknowledgments

The support of the National Science Foundation IIS-2014506.

- O. Abe, F. Mikaeili, P.I. Gouma, (2022). Selective Sensors for Volatile Biomarkers (Book Chapter), Volatile Biomarkers for Human Health; From Nature to Artificial Senses, Royal Society of Chemistry, October, 2022, ISBN: 978-1-83916-430-9.
- B. Dontha, M. Faltas, P.I. Gouma, and A. Kiourti, "Electromagnetic-based Deformation Monitoring for PANI-CA Breath Acetone Monitors", *IEEE J. Electromagnetics, RF and Microwaves in Medicine and Biology*, 6(4), 524–531, 2022.
- 3. Annerino, K. Narvaez, L. Joseph, L.C. Klein, and P.I Gouma, "Evaluating melting gel coatings for wearable metabolic sensors", *Smart Health*, 26, 100337, 2022.
- Annerino, M. Faltas, M. Srinivasan, and P.I. Gouma, "Towards skin-acetone monitors with selective sensitivity: Dynamics of PANI/CA films", *Plos one*, 17(4), e0267312, 2022.

## MEMS and solid state sensors for developing platform gas sensing technologies

#### Ramachandran Vasant Kumar

Distinguished Research Professor, Department of Materials Science, University of Cambridge, UK **E-mail:** rvk10@cam.ac.uk

Keywords: hydrogen, gas sensors, semiconductor

MEMS and solid state sensing methodology offers new opportunities for developing platform gas sensing technologies based upon a number of scientific principles for widespread applications in safety, environmental protection, health and wellness applications, process control and enabling support for green technologies<sup>1-4</sup>. With anticipated growth in hydrogen production, storage, use as an important energy vector in fuel cells and other applications, hydrogen monitoring and control will assume a great importance to minimise losses and increase safe use of hydrogen. This paper will review the current methods available for sensing hydrogen in environment and in gaseous mixtures. MEMS and solid state sensors that have been developed in University of Cambridge are commercialized for hydrogen sensing and extended to many other gases. New research has led to development of miniaturized sensor on a semiconductor chip using the intrinsic property of the gas itself and results will be presented.

- Thermal conductivity sensing device, method of operation and use of the same, S Sarfraz, R V Kumar and F Udrea, GB Application No: 1421102.3, International Patent Application, PCT/ EP2015/077948, filed on 27 Nov 2015; WO2016/083589 A1 published on 2 Jun 2016; National applications in US, EU, China, Hong Kong and India (May/Jun 2017); Granted US1040880282, 2019; CN107209133A, 2020.
- 2. A high temperature and low power SOI CMOS MEMS based thermal conductivity gas sensors, Proc. of the Int. semiconductor conference, S Safraz, RV Kumar and F Udrea, CAS, **1**, 51–54, 2013.
- Accurate measurement of hydrogen in molten aluminium using current reversal method, M.P. Hills, C. Thompson, M.A. Henson, A. Moores, C. Schwandt and R.V. Kumar, *Light Metals 2009* (The Minerals, Metals & Materials Society, Warrendale, PA, pp 707–712, 2009.
- "Ion Conductors and their applications in Chemical Sensors", Chapter in "Chemical Sensors" <u>RV</u> <u>Kumar</u> and C Schwandt, Ed by G Korotcenkov, Momentum Press, 2010.

### **T4 Cross-Cutting Materials Technologies**

### **T4.1 COMPUTATIONAL DESIGN AND MODELING**

## Prediction of thermomechanical properties of model refractory ceramics using an innovative multiscale discrete element modelling approach

Damien André<sup>1\*</sup>, Harikeshava Ranganathan<sup>1,2</sup>, Nicolas Tessier-Doyen<sup>1</sup>, Marc Huger<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Université Limoges, IRCER, UMR CNRS 7315, France <sup>2</sup>Imerys Technology Center, 38090 Vaulx-Milieu, France \*E-mail: damien.andre@unilim.fr

Keywords: discrete element method, refractory, ceramics, thermomechanical, microstructure

A large class of ceramics are, at microscopic scale, non-homogeneous materials. Among these, refractory materials used in very high temperature industrial processes are highly heterogeneous. Such refractories have multi-phase compositions and contain different sizes of aggregates, different bonding systems and additives. This complex design results from their operating conditions. Widely used as structural ceramics, refractories are also exposed to severe environments, often combining mechanical and thermal loads, corrosion and abrasion. In particular, refractories are subject to thermal shock, thermal cycling and severe thermal gradients. A key property for sustaining these conditions is the so-called thermal shock resistance, which depends on many macroscopic thermo-mechanical properties such as stiffness, fracture toughness, Poisson's ratio, thermal expansion coefficient and thermal conduction. These macroscopic properties are strongly influenced by the presence of microcracks, which can be voluntarily introduced into the initial microstructure to promote energy consumption during fracture processes. Mechanical or thermo-mechanical modelling of such complex microstructures, taking into account their micro-cracks, is largely based on continuum mechanical models: finite element method associated with cohesive zone model, extended finite element method, continuum damage mechanics or phase field methods. However, such methods have fundamental difficulties in dealing with multi-fracture problems such as crack initiation, crack extension, crack branching, multi-cracking or crack closure. The Discrete Element Method (DEM) is a promising alternative to continuum based approaches because DEM naturally can deal with discontinuities and has been successfully used to simulate the damaged microstructure of quite similar materials such as rocks and concretes. However, very few studies in the literature consider thermal effects at the microstructure scale that lead to microcracking and internal stresses. A first study was carried out in 2017 [1] for very simplified bi-phase systems (see Figure 1). In this study DEM was able to predict crack networks resulting from thermal effects and the induced changes in macroscopic properties in a very simplified multi-scale approach.





b) DEM model of a bi-phase alumina/glass

Figure 1. Crack generated by thermal expansion mismatch in a model bi-phase material [1]

However, quantitative simulations are very difficult to achieve because DEM uses local force-displacement laws instead of the stress-strain relationships commonly used in mechanical engineering. In 2019, a new numerical approach called iDLSM [2] was proposed, which allows for continuum mechanics formulations within the DEM framework. The proposed study focuses on recent advances using this method applied to refractory materials.

- 1. D. André and al. Computer Methods in Applied Mechanics and Engineering 2017, 318.
- 2. D. André, MA Celigueta, International Journal of Rock Mechanics and Mining Sciences 2023, 170.

## T4.2 Additive Manufacturing & 3D Printing Technologies

### Ceramic processing with light

#### Jens Günster<sup>1,2</sup>, Johanna Sänger<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Advanced Multi-Materials Processing, Federal Institute of Materials Research and Testing (BAM), Unter den Eichen 87, 12205 Berlin, Germany

<sup>2</sup>Institute of Non-Metallic Materials, Clausthal University of Technology, Institute of Non-Metallic Materials, Clausthal-Zellerfeld, Germany

<sup>3</sup>Chair of Structural and Functional Ceramics, Department of Materials Science, Montanuniversität Leoben, Franz Josef Strasse 18, 8700 Leoben, Austria

\*E-mail: jens.guenster@bam.de

Keywords: additive manufacturing, advanced ceramics, transparent, two photon polymerization

In order to be able to manipulate ceramic powder compacts and ceramic suspensions (slurries) in their volume with light, a minimum transparency of the materials is required. Compared to polymers and metals, ceramic materials are characterized by the fact that they have a wide electronic band gap and therefore a wide optical window of transparency. The optical window generally ranges from less than 0.3  $\mu$ m to up to 5  $\mu$ m wavelength. Light scattering properties of the ceramic particles can be tailored by their size. In this study, we present the physical background and material development strategies for the application of two-photon polymerization (2PP) [1,2], Xolography [3] and selective volumetric sintering [4] for the additive manufacturing of structures in the volume of ceramic slips and green compacts.

- Johanna Christiane Sänger, Brian Richard Pauw, Birte Riechers, Andrea Zocca, Julian Rosalie, Robert Maa
  ß, Heinz Sturm, and Jens G
  ünster "Entering a new dimension in powder processing for advanced ceramics shaping." Advanced Materials (2022): 2208653.
- Johanna C. Sänger, Brian R. Pauw, Heinz Sturm, Jens Günster: First time additively manufactured advanced ceramics by using two-photon polymerization for powder processing. Open Ceramics 4 (2020) 100040, 1–5.
- J.C. Müller, N. F. König, A. De Marzi, A. Zocca, G. Franchin, R. Bermejo, P Colombo, J. Günster: Linear Volumetric Additive Manufacturing of Zirconia from a Transparent Photopolymerizable Ceramic Slurry via Xolography. Open Ceramics submitted.
- Thomas Mühler, Jürgen G. Heinrich, Gundula Helsch, Dongxu Yao, Stephan Gräf, Frank A. Müller, Jens Günster: Strategies for the Selective Volume Sintering of Ceramics. J. Mater. Res. 29 [17] (2014) 2095–2099.

# Additive manufacturing of carbon and carbide materials for energy applications

#### Alberto Ortona

Hybrid Materials Laboratory, MEMTi, SUPSI, Via la Santa 1, 6962, Lugano, Switzerland E-mail: alberto.ortona@supsi.ch

**Keywords**: carbide, toplogy optimization, additive manufacturing, stereolithography, binder jetting, selective laser sintering, thermal treatments

Ceramic additive manufacturing (AM) has been successfully employed to produce components with mid-high dimensional ranges. Some applications in electronics, biotech, microreactors demand for complex structures with higher precision. We present the state of the art on the three most promising ceramic AM techniques for carbon and carbide materials:

- binder jetting and
- selective laser sintering (SLS) of polymers.

These AM techniques form an intermediate product which must be further processed through a thermal treatment. It can be sintering for oxides, polymer infiltration and pyrolysis (PIP) or reactive metal infiltration (RMI). The last two for carbon and carbides.

Binder jetting and SLS techniques to date have a lower resolution, but they are better suited to produce carbon and carbide complex structures. These technologies have several advantages, i.e., high maturity, low cost and, thanks to new machines available on the market, a better resolution.



TPMS structures during their manufacturing process

#### References

- 1. Pelanconi, Marco; Colombo, Paolo; Ortona, Alberto; Additive manufacturing of silicon carbide by selective laser sintering of PA12 powders and polymer infiltration and pyrolysis, Journal of the European Ceramic Society,41, 10, 5056–5065, 2021, Elsevier.
- Pelanconi, Marco; Blyweert, Pauline; Bianchi, Giovanni; Nicolas, Vincent; Viganò, Davide; Bottacin, Samuele; Fierro, Vanessa; Celzard, Alain; Ortona, Alberto; "New, 3D binder-jetted carbons with minimal periodic surface structures", Carbon, 213, 118252, 2023, Pergamon.
- Pelanconi, Marco; Bottacin, Samuele; Bianchi, Giovanni; Koch, Dietmar; Colombo, Paolo; Ortona, Alberto; "High-strength Si–SiC lattices prepared by powder bed fusion, infiltration-pyrolysis, and reactive silicon infiltration", Journal of the American Ceramic Society..., 2024.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

## T4.3 Novel, Green, and Strategic Processing and Manufacturing Technologies

### Additive manufacturing of ceramics from preceramic polymers

#### Paolo Colombo

Department of Industrial Engineering, University of Padova, Padova, Italy Department of Materials Science and Engineering, Pennsylvania State University, University Park, USA

\*E-mail: paolo.colombo@unipd.it

Keywords: additive manufacturing, preceramic polymers, porous ceramics

Additive manufacturing of ceramics is somewhat limited by their high melting temperatures and the processing issues related to handling of feedstocks containing a large volume of particles. Processing slurry-based feedstocks, in fact, poses several challenges: a high amount of powder is required to promote densification and results in high viscosity, scattering and sedimentation phenomena in vat photopolymerization processes, as well as clogging problems at the nozzle for extrusion-based processes.

Some of these issues can be solved or mitigated when using all liquid feedstocks. Our research activities have therefore focused on additive manufacturing of ceramics from liquid feedstocks. In particular, we investigated the use of preceramic polymers as well as sol-gel solutions. Despite the many advantages related to their liquid nature, there are also some challenges related to the reactivity of sol-gel systems and to the high amount of solvent usually present.

Here, our strategies for producing high quality ceramic components using a variety of liquid feedstocks and different additive manufacturing techniques, from direct ink writing, digital light processing and two photon polymerization to robotic arm manufacturing and volumetric additive manufacturing will be presented.

### Energy-efficient sintering of ceramics by rapid local heating

<u>Richard I Todd</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Zonghao Guo<sup>1</sup>, Christian Bechteler<sup>1</sup>, Shenghuan Ding<sup>1</sup>, Vladimir Prajzler<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Materials, University of Oxford, Oxford, UK <sup>2</sup>CEITEC BUT, Brno University of Technology, Brno, Czech Republic \*E-mail: richard.todd@materials.ox.ac.uk

Keywords: flash sintering, UHS, YSZ, alumina

Conventional sintering is a slow and energy intensive process, involving the heating of both the components to be sintered and the furnace to high temperatures for many hours or even days. Recently however, very rapid sintering, in only a few seconds, has been demonstrated using processes that apply the final heating locally, mainly to the component itself. There is thus the potential for tremendous energy savings in terms of both the time spent at high temperature and the mass of material heated.

Several methods of heating ceramic green bodies rapidly in this way have been demonstrated, including internal heating by passage of an electric current through the sample (flash sintering, FS) and local external heating by low thermal mass heating elements (Ultra-fast High-temperature Sintering, UHS). The first part of this presentation considers the mechanisms involved and whether there is a real acceleration of sintering or whether the apparently rapid sintering is mainly the elimination of the slow heating stages normally employed. The mechanisms considered include electrochemical reduction, plasma formation and microstructural refinement as well as the diffusion of matter that is ultimately responsible for sintering. It is shown that plasma formation can lead to secondary improvements in the sintering of boron carbide by cleaning the powders in the green body and that microstructural refinement in rapid heating of YSZ leads to a considerable acceleration of sintering in this system. However, experiments on alumina that effectively exclude everything except the sintering itself show, by the analysis of sintering kinetics and the use of tracer diffusion, that there is a further contribution to the genuine acceleration of sintering from grain boundary diffusion. The possible reasons for this are discussed, focusing on the possibility of non-equilibrium grain boundary structures.

The presentation concludes with a brief consideration of the factors that need to be overcome for rapid sintering technologies to be taken up commercially, including the non-uniformity of sintering, the level of energy and cost savings and the complexity of the process. Potential solutions are demonstrated.

### T4.4 Powder Processing Technology for Advanced Ceramics

## Carbon nanotube thin films for energy applications via the floating catalyst chemical vapor deposition (FC-CVD) method

#### Esko I. Kauppinen

Department of Applied Physics, Aalto University School of Science, Espoo, Finland E-mail: esko.kauppinen@aalto.fi

Keywords: carbon nanotube, thin film, transparent conductor, solar cell

FC-CVD is a highly promising technique for the continuous, scalable synthesis of single-walled carbon nanotubes (SWNTs), especially for the direct deposition of highly conducting, transparent, flexible as well as stretchable SWNT thin films for electronics<sup>1</sup> and energy<sup>2</sup> applications. Our single walled carbon nanotubes have been used as core material to develop the new material of one-dimensional van der Waals heterostructures<sup>3</sup>. We have been developing FC-CVD systems with several carbon precursor molecules, including CO, C<sub>2</sub>H<sub>4</sub>, CH<sub>4</sub>, ethanol, methanol, isopropanol, and toluene, using mainly iron catalyst nanoparticles. We have determined the SWNT atomic structure i.e. (n,m) distributions directly via the electron diffraction of individual tubes supported by the optical absorption spectroscopy studies. Using ferrocene as the catalyst precursor, CO as the carbon source and CO, as the growth promoter, we show that the SWNT (n,m) distribution and the related thin film color<sup>4</sup> can be directly tuned by adjusting the CO<sub>2</sub> concentration. Also, the fraction of metallic tubes can be tuned via adding carbon dioxide. We will present results on the synthesis of mainly semiconducting tubes from ethanol via adding methanol, and also from isopropanol as the carbon source when using nitrogen carrier gas with minor fraction of hydrogen as the carrier gas. The chiral angle distributions from both CO and ethanol are biased towards the armchair side, while those from hydrocarbons are rather flat. We will present nanotube thin film applications as capacitive touch sensor and as transparent electrodes in organic as well as perovskite solar cells<sup>5</sup> with flexible form factor.

- Sun, D.-M., M. Y. Timmermans, Y. Tian, A. G. Nasibulin, E. I. Kauppinen, S. Kishimoto, T. Mizutaniand Y. Ohno (2011) Flexible, high-performance carbon nanotube integrated circuits. Nature Nanotechnology. 6, 156–161.
- Yoon, J.; Kim, U.; Yoo, Y.; Byeon, J.; Lee, S.K.; Nam, J.S.; Kim, K.; Zhang, Q.; Kauppinen, E.I.; Maruyama, S.; Lee, P. (2021) Foldable Perovskite Solar Cells Using Carbon Nanotube-Embedded Ultrathin Polyimide Conductor, Advanced Science. 2004092.
- Xiang, R.; Inoue, T.; Zheng, Y.; Kumamoto, A.; Qian, Y.; Sato, Y.; Liu, M.; Tang, D.; Gokhale, D.; Guo, J.; Hisama, K.; Yotsumoto, S.; Ogamoto, T.; Arai, H.; Kobayashi, Y.; Zhang, H.; Hou, B.; Anisimov, A.; Maruyama, M.; Miyata, Y.; Okada, S.; Chiashi, S.; Li, Y.; Kong, J.; Kauppinen, E. I.; Ikuhara, Y.; Suenaga, K.; Maruyama, S. (2020) One-dimensional van der Waals heterostructures, Science. 367(6477), 537–542.
- Wei, N.; Tian, Y.; Liao, Y.; Komatsu, N.; Gao, W.; Lyuleeva-Husemann, A.; Zhang, Q.; Hussain, A.; Ding, E.X.; Yao, F.; Halme, J.; Kauppinen, E.I. (2020) Colors of Single-Wall Carbon Nanotubes, Advanced Materials. 2006395.
- Jeon, I.; Shawky, A.; Seo, S.; Qian, Y.; Anisimov, A.; Kauppinen, E.I.; Matsuo, Y.; Maruyama, S. (2020) Carbon nanotubes to outperform metal electrodes in perovskite solar cells Via dopant engineering and hole-selectivity enhancement, Journal of Materials Chemistry A. 8(22), 11141–11147.

## Formulation of micron-scale, nano-structured hetero-aggregates in opposed jet fluidized beds

Jochen Schmidt<sup>\*</sup>, Jialin Men, Laura Unger, Björn Düsenberg, Andreas Bück

Institute of Particle Technology, Friedrich-Alexander-Universität Erlangen-Nürnberg, Erlangen, Germany

\*E-mail: jochen.schmidt@fau.de

Keywords: nanoparticles. aggregation, fluidization, hetero contact, mixing

Micron-scale hetero-aggregates, i.e. aggregates made up of nanoscale primary particles of different materials, show superior performance compared to homo-aggregates in various applications, e.g. in (photo-)catalysis by formation of hetero-junctions between semiconductor nanoparticles. Thus, the catalytic activity of a hetero-aggregate system will be linked to the structure of the hetero-aggregate, i.e. the mixing of the components and the contact between the primary particles. In the context of photo-catalysis, especially systems based on titania and another semiconductor are widely employed for applications such as water splitting, the degradation of organic contaminants or solar cell applications (cf. particle-based variants of dye sensitized solar cells).

Within this contribution, the feasibility of opposed jet fluidized beds for formulation of titania-zirconia hetero-aggregates will be demonstrated and the effect of process parameters (feed composition, process time, jet velocity) on the intra- and inter-aggregate mixing will be discussed.

Hetero-aggregation in this setup is induced by the two consecutive mechanism: homo-aggregates are broken and de-aggregated in zones of high stressing and subsequently re-agglomeration of primary particles and fragmented aggregates to hetero-aggregates occurs in the top section of the jet fluidized bed.

The obtained hetero-aggregates are investigated by scanning electron microscopy (SEM). For characterization of the mixing of the  $TiO_2$ -ZrO<sub>2</sub> hetero-aggregates, energy-dispersive X-ray spectroscopy (EDX) within the SEM has been employed and the compositional variance within a single hetero-aggregates, respectively, the ensemble compositional variance is employed as a descriptor for intra- and inter-aggregate mixing. Prospects and limitations of SEM-EDX for mixing characterization of (porous) hetero-aggregates consisting of sub-micron primary particles are outlined.

The formation of hetero-aggregates is also addressed numerically by an Euler-Euler approach. The mixing behaviour of the solid phases in combination with the impact of the fluid phase, various solid factions and initial fluid velocities have been taken into consideration. By varying the solids load, the solids distribution during the process is shifting more towards high dense regions at the walls and the top section and dilute regions within the focus region of the Laval jets. Regions of interest for the formation of hetero-aggregates have been identified by considering the granular temperature between the two solid phases. Aggregate breakage is supposed to occur within the focus region of the Laval jets, whereas agglomeration is triggered in the top region of the jet fluidized bed. The regions of breakage and aggregation are more pronounced for higher initial air velocities and solids loads, as the collision probability increases.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

## Fabrication of transparent ceramics by slip casting in magnetic field and SPS

#### Tohru S. Suzuki

Optical Ceramics Group, National Institute for Materials Science, Tsukuba, Japan E-mail: suzuki.tohru@nims.go.jp

Keywords: lanthanum silicate, YVO4, grain size, orientation

Transparent ceramics can maintain their transparency and structural integrity at elevated temperatures, making them valuable for high-temperature environments and applications. Transparent phosphor ceramics can be expected to be high brightness in order to apply for lighting, displays, sensors, and optical communications, etc. Aother application for transparent ceramics is Laser. Extremely low porositeis are indispensable for taransparency in polycrystalline ceramics. Colloidal processing is a very effective technique for controlling the pore size distribution in green compacts before densification by sintering. The green compacts having small residual pores is expected to enhance the densification. Furthermore, spark plasma sintering (SPS) is also effective way for densification in low sintering temperature. In ceramics with anisotropic crystal structure, in-line transmittance deteriorates due to birefringence due to the difference in refractive index at grain boundaries. Crystallographic orientation is effective for improving the in-line transmittance when it is necessary to suppress birefringence at grain boundaries. Orientation can be controlled by a magnetic field even in a diamagnetic and paramagnetic ceramics.

In this study, the processing was applied to fabrication of transparent  $YVO_4$  and lanthanum silicate. Single phase  $La_{9.5}(SiO_4)_6O_{2.25}$  (LSO) powder was synthesized by solid state reaction at 1400 °C for 6 h. The slurry dispersed the milled LSO powder was consolidated by slip casting in a magnetic field (0 – 12 T). The green bodies were sintered at 1200-1550 °C in vacuum at pressure of 100 MPa. The c-axis orientation LSO was aligned parallel to the magnetic field and then transparency was achieved by densification using SPS. In the case of LSO with random orientation, the transmittance increased with the decreasing of grain size (Fig. 1) and with the increasing the degree of orientation.

In the case of  $YVO_4$ , the c-axis was aligned parallel to the magnetic filed. Sintereing additives enhances the density. However, excess amount of additives deteriorated the degree of orientation.  $YVO_4$  was densified by SPS at 1300 °C and 100 MPa.



Fig. 1 In-line transmittance as a function of average grain size in random LSO

#### Acknowledgments

The part of this work was financially supported by Innovative Science and Technology Initiative for Security, Grant Number JPJ004596, ATLA, Japan.

- 1. B. N. Kim, K. Hiraga, K. Morita, and H. Yoshida, "Effects of heating rate on microstructure and transparency of spark-plasma-sintered alumina," J. Eur. Ceram. Soc., 29[2] 323–27 (2009).
- T. Ashikaga, B.-N. Kim, H. Kiyono, and T. S. Suzuki, "Effect of crystallographic orientation on transparency of alumina prepared using magnetic alignment and SPS," J. Eur. Ceram. Soc., 38[7] 2735–41 (2018).

### T4.5 Advanced Materials, Technologies, and Devices for Electrooptical and Biomedical Applications

## High peak power fiber lasers and their applications for ceramic cutting and drilling

#### Shibin Jiang

Hangzhou Silverlake Laser Technology, Hangzhou, China AdValue Photonics Inc, Tucson, Arizona, USA E-mail: sjiang@advaluephotonics.com

Keywords: fiber lasers, rare-earth doped fibers, ceramic cutting, ceramic drilling

Because of the outstanding stability compared to other types of lasers fiber lasers have been widely employed for industrial application. The relatively low peak power is one of the major limiting factors for fiber lasers due to the small core diameter and long length of the fiber. We have developed innovative rare-earth doped gain fibers with an extremely large core diameter single mode fiber. High peak power and high pulse energy fiber lasers have been developed.

Laser processing machines have been developed by using our picosecond and nanosecond high peak power and high repetition rate fiber lasers. A drilling speed of more than 60mm/s was achieved for 0.5mm thickness glass, which is more than 3 times faster than solid state lasers. Ceramic substrates of aluminum oxide, aluminum nitride, silicon nitride were cut and drilled by lasers.

With the rapid development of consumer electronics, there is an increasing demand for precision processing of crystals, glass and ceramic materials. Laser processing has outstanding advantages in the precision manufacturing of inorganic non-metallic materials with high quality, high precision, high efficiency, and environmentally friendly manufacturing. This presentation will describe the interaction of our nanosecond and picosecond fiber lasers with inorganic non-metallic materials.

## T4.6 MULTIFUNCTIONAL COATINGS FOR ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL APPLICATIONS APPLICATIONS

## Novel applications of the powder aerosol deposition method in the field of energy conversion and energy storage

<u>Ralf Moos</u><sup>\*</sup>, Lukas Hennerici, Elisabeth Kita, Nico Leupold, Mario Linz, Daniel Paulus, Jürgen Schneider, Daniela Schönauer-Kamin, Mutlucan Sozak, Robin Werner, Jaroslaw Kita

Department of Functional Materials, University of Bayreuth, Bayreuth, Germany \*E-mail: Functional.Materials@uni-bayreuth.de

**Keywords**: owder Aerosol Deposition Method, room temperature impact consolidation, all-solid-state batteries, perovskite solar cells, oxide and proton conductors, flexible thermoelectric converters

Lithium ion conducting electrolytes<sup>1</sup> and cathode active materials for all-solid-state batteries<sup>2</sup>, sodium ion conducting membranes for post-lithium batteries<sup>3</sup>, solar cells of organohalide perovskites<sup>4</sup>, materials for flexible thermoelectric generators<sup>5</sup> or others – such exciting applications can be manufactured at room temperature with the Powder Aerosol Deposition Method (PAD), besides of simple passivation films of alumina or zirconia. PAD is a novel spray technique to manufacture dense ceramic or ceramic-like coatings from a wide range of materials<sup>6,7</sup>. The deposition occurs fully at room temperature, directly from the dry powder. Film thicknesses range from ca. 1 µm to over 200 µm. A high-temperature step is not required; however, sometimes mild annealing improves the electrical properties.

At the beginning, this contribution introduces the audience into the field of PAD and overviews recent applications in the field of energy conversion and energy storage, as already introduced above. It gives also hints for future industrial commercialization.

In the second part, some scientific problems are discussed, like the influence of aerosol generation, the influence of particle and crystallite sizes as well as the question of plastic deformation of the nanosized crystallites that form during film formation.

Suggestions and opportunities for future research approaches conclude the presentation.

- T. Nazarenus, Y. Sun, J. Exner, J. Kita, R. Moos, Powder Aerosol Deposition as a Method to Produce Garnet-Type Solid Ceramic Electrolytes: A Study on Electrochemical Film Properties and Industrial Application, Energy Technology, 9, 2100211 (2021), doi: 10.1002/ente.202100211
- L. Hennerici, M. Linz, M. Schamel, T. Nazarenus, J. Kita, M.A. Danzer, R. Moos, Powder Aerosol Deposition, a Novel Way for Processing Garnet Solid Electrolytes to fabricate All-Solid-State Batteries, The 4<sup>th</sup> World Conference on Solid Electrolytes for Advanced Applications: Garnets and Competitors, 4.-7.9.2023, Tromsø, Norway
- M. Sozak, T. Nazarenus, J. Exner, J. Kita, R. Moos, Room temperature manufacture of dense Na-SICON solid electrolyte films for all-solid-state-sodium batteries, Journal of Materials Science, 58, 10108-10119 (2023), doi: 10.1007/s10853-023-08642-w

- S. Biberger, N. Leupold, C. Witt, C. Greve, P. Markus, P. Ramming, D. Lukas, K. Schötz, F.-J. Kahle, C. Zhu, G. Papastavrou, A. Köhler, E.M. Herzig, R. Moos, F. Panzer, First of Their Kind: Solar Cells with a Dry-Processed Perovskite Absorber Layer via Powder Aerosol Deposition and Hot-Pressing, Solar RRL, 7, 2300261 (2023), doi: 10.1002/solr.202300261
- R. Werner, J.S. Matejka, D. Schönauer-Kamin, R. Moos, From Thermoelectric Powder Directly to Thermoelectric Generators: Flexible Bi<sub>2</sub>Te<sub>3</sub> Films on Polymer Sheets Prepared by the Powder Aerosol Deposition Method at Room Temperature, Energy Technology, 10, 2101091 (2022), doi: 10.1002/ente.202101091
- J. Akedo, Aerosol Deposition of Ceramic Thick Films at Room Temperature: Densification Mechanism of Ceramic Layers, Journal of the American Ceramic Society, 89, 1834-1839 (2006), doi: 10.1111/j.1551-2916.2006.01030.x
- J. Akedo, Room Temperature Impact Consolidation (RTIC) of Fine Ceramic Powder by Aerosol Deposition Method and Applications to Microdevices, Journal of Thermal Spray Technology, 17, 181–198 (2008), doi: 10.1007/s11666-008-9163-7

## T4.7 MATERIALS FOR EXTREME ENVIRONMENTS: ULTRAHIGH TEMPERATURE CERAMICS (UHTCS) AND NANO-LAMINATED TERNARY CARBIDES AND NITRIDES (MAX PHASES) APPLICATIONS

#### Ti<sub>3</sub>SiC<sub>2</sub> MAX phase based ceramic matrix composites

#### Apurv Dash

Department of Energy Conversion and Storage, Denmark Technical University, Lyngby, Denmark E-mail: adash@dtu.dk

Keywords: MAX phase, CMC, Ti<sub>3</sub>SiC<sub>2</sub>, creep

Alternative materials for high temperature applications might offer a solution to higher efficiency and low fuel consumption for jet engines. A possible candidate for such material is  $Ti_3SiC_2$  which is a ceramic material with unique combination of mechanical properties at high temperature. Ceramics are brittle in nature and have a typically low Weibull modulus as compared to metals.

Ceramic matrix composites (CMCs) with bulk ceramic material as the matrix and a ceramic fiber as the reinforcement offers the possibility to have high strength at high temperature but present some limitations like high costs and very few applications despite the huge economical efforts in the last decade. The complex processing routes followed for the fabrication of CMC have limited the applications. The present work is about the fabrication of a CMC with Ti<sub>3</sub>SiC<sub>2</sub> as the matrix and short SiC fiber as the reinforcement material.

A novel molten salt-based process was developed to synthesize high purity Ti<sub>3</sub>SiC<sub>2</sub> at a large scale (1kg/batch) in air. The method involved mixing of elemental precursor with KBr salt and high temperature treatment at 1250 °C to obtain the desired Ti<sub>3</sub>SiC<sub>2</sub> phase. Al was added to the reaction mixture to enhance the purity of Ti<sub>3</sub>SiC<sub>2</sub>. The effect of different levels of Al addition on the evolution of the Ti3SiC2 phase was studied. Apart from  $Ti_3SiC_2$ , a wide range of non-oxide ceramics like TiC, Ti2AlC, Ti3AlC2, Cr2AlC, Ti2AlN, MoAlB and many more were synthesized for the proof of concept. Metals like titanium were also sintered in dense and porous forms using the same process in air. The method was referred to as Molten Salt Shielded Synthesis/Sintering (MS<sup>3</sup>).<sup>1,2</sup> MS<sup>3</sup> process resulted in a reduction of the synthesis temperature of Ti<sub>3</sub>SiC<sub>2</sub> along with other non-oxide ceramics. MS<sup>3</sup> process can be carried out in air without the need of expensive atmosphere-controlled furnaces. The dissolution of salt after MS<sup>3</sup> process results in micro-metric agglomerated powder which does not need to be milled unlike conventional solid-state reactions. The synthesized  $Ti_3SiC_2$  powder was sintered in spark plasma sintering (SPS) furnace at 1250 °C with a uniaxial pressure of 80 MPa. Similarly, CMCs were also sintered in SPS by following a powder metallurgical process to mix the reinforcement with the synthesized Ti<sub>3</sub>SiC<sub>2</sub> powder. The reinforcement of Ti<sub>3</sub>SiC<sub>2</sub> was done in macroscale and microscale. The macroscale reinforcement was done by adding 10 and 20 vol.% chopped polycrystalline SiC fibers (1 mm) whereas the microscale reinforcement was done by adding 10 and 20 vol.% of single crystalline SiC whiskers. Compressive creep in the temperature and stress range of 1000-1300 °C and 20-120 MPa were performed on the fabricated CMCs.<sup>3,4</sup>

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

- Dash, A., Vaßen, R., Guillon, O. & Gonzalez-Julian, J. Molten salt shielded synthesis of oxidation prone materials in air. *Nat. Mater.* 18, 465–470 (2019).
- Dash, A., Sohn, Y. J., Vaßen, R., Guillon, O. & Gonzalez-Julian, J. Synthesis of Ti3SiC2 MAX phase powder by a molten salt shielded synthesis (MS3) method in air. *Journal of the European Ceramic Society* 39, 3651–3659 (2019).
- 3. Dash, A. *et al.* Compressive creep of SiC whisker/Ti3SiC2 composites at high temperature in air. *Journal of the American Ceramic Society* **103**, 5952–5965 (2020).
- Dash, A., Malzbender, J., Vaßen, R., Guillon, O. & Gonzalez-Julian, J. Short SiC fiber/Ti3SiC2 MAX phase composites: Fabrication and creep evaluation. *Journal of the American Ceramic Society* 103, 7072–7081 (2020).

## What else can UHTCs do? Exploring UHTC microstructural complexity for new heat management strategies and applications

Carolina Tallon

Department of Materials Science and Engineering, Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University, Blacksburg, VA 24061, USA E-mail: tallon@vt.edu

Keywords: UHTC, processing, microstuctural design

Ultra-high temperature ceramics (UHTCs) have become almost a synonym of hypersonic applications and extreme environments. Thermal protective systems for hypersonic vehicles needs to survive large heat fluxes, extreme temperatures, extensive thermal gradients, stagnation pressures and oxidative environments. They also need to show minimal material ablation and overall weight, with complex shapes. Although outstanding development has been achieved over the past 20 years for UHTCs, the state-of-art manufacturing and design still revolves around solid microstructures as heat sinks for leading edges. Recent advances in manufacturing paved the way for exploring different UHTC microstructures that could lead to other heat management strategies and other applications, beyond passive cooling components in hypersonics. In this talk, innovative colloidal processing approaches will be discussed to introduce controlled porosity, textured microstructures and high aspect ratio building blocks for UHTCs, to tailor thermomechanical response in different directions within the same component, and enable innovative active and passive cooling strategies. This also opens the door to different type of applications beyond hypersonics for these materials.

## T4.8 Design, Processing, and Applications of Nanolaminated Ternary Transition Metal Carbides/Nitrides/Borides and MXenes and Mbenes

## Origin and consequence of alumina scale buckling during high temperature oxidation of Cr<sub>2</sub>AlC MAX phase

Axel Zuber<sup>1</sup>, Guillaume Parry<sup>2</sup>, Véronique Brunet<sup>1</sup>, Christophe Coupeau<sup>1</sup>, Pierre-Olivier Renault<sup>1</sup>, <u>Sylvain Dubois</u><sup>1\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institut PPRIME, Bd M. et P. Curie, 86960 Chasseneuil du Poitou, France <sup>2</sup>SIMAP - Grenoble INP Phelma 1130 rue de la Piscine, 38402 Saint Martin d'Hères, France \*E-mail: sylvain.dubois@univ-poitiers.fr

Keywords: Cr<sub>2</sub>AlC, buckling, oxidation

Single-crystal and fine-grained polycrystalline samples of Cr<sub>2</sub>AlC were oxidized under dry air flow at temperature in the 1000-1400°C range during 100 h<sup>1,2</sup>. A continuous alumina layer forms on top of the Cr<sub>2</sub>AlC surface whereas a Cr<sub>2</sub>C<sub>3</sub> sublayer also appears (cf figure). In-lab characterization of oxidized Cr2AlC samples shows strong damaging at the free surface, resulting from the buckling of the alumina scale3. In-situ X-ray diffraction measurements under synchrotron radiations were performed to measure the lattice strain during the first hours of oxidation process and further calculate the internal stress in the Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> layers. Alumina layers undergo tensile stress during isothermal oxidation, showing that the buckling of the alumina scale does not result from the oxide growth. Such a tensile stress likely results from the  $Cr_2AlC$  to  $Cr_2C_3$  phase transformation. During cooling, the tensile stress decreases down to compressive values, due to the thermal expansion coefficient mismatch between the film and the substrate, leading to buckling of the alumina layer. It is demonstrated that the dimensions of the buckles cannot be explained either by gas pressure or by the magnitude of the internal compressive stress in the alumina scale after cooling. The discrepancy between the experimental maximum deflection and the one predicted by the elastic theory results from a significant plastic deformation occurring in the alumina scale.



Figure: SEM surface micrographs, in back-scattered mode, of A) single crystal and B) fine-grained polycrystalline samples oxidized during 100 hours at 1400 °C and 1100 °C respectively.

#### Acknowledgments

Special thanks to the Région Nouvelle-Aquitaine and the Ministère de l'Enseignement Supérieur et de la Recherche for funding this research. This work was supported by the French government program "Investissements d'Avenir" (EUR INTREE, reference ANR-18-EURE-0010 and LABEX INTERAC-TIFS, reference ANR-11-LABEX-0017-01).

- Zuber, V. Gauthier-Brunet, J. Roger, J. Gonzalez-Julian, T. Ouisse and S. Dubois, Towards a better understanding of the high-temperature oxidation of MAX phase Cr2AlC, J. of the Eur. Ceram. Soc., 42, 5 (2022) 2089–2096.
- Zuber, V. Gauthier-Brunet, J. Roger, J. Gonzalez-Julian, T. Ouisse, S. Dubois, Cr<sub>2</sub>AlC high temperature oxidation under dry and wet air: Understanding of the oxidation mechanism, Journal of the European Ceramic Society, volume 43, issue 12, p. 5159–5167, 2023.
- Zuber, G. Parry, C. Coupeau, P. O. Renault, V. Gauthier-Brunet and S. Dubois, *Alumina scale buckling during high temperature oxidation of Cr<sub>2</sub>AlC MAX Phase*, J. of the Eur. Cer. Soc., 43,16, 7334, 2023.

## A review of manufacturing practices for MAB and MAB phases

#### Surojit Gupta

Department of Mechanical Engineering, University of North Dakota, USA E-mail: surojit.gupta@und.edu

MAX and MAB phases have attracted a lot of attention due to their exceptional properties like machinability, triboactive behavior, and high temperature oxidation resistance. In order to commercialize these materials, it is vital to come up with novel practices for manufacturing these materials. In this presentation, I will present some of the recent development in optimizing the manufacturing of these phases. Detailed microstructural and phase analysis will be presented during the presentation.

## T4.10 Environmental Friendly and Energy Efficient Manufacturing Routes for the Production Root Technology Applications

## The effect of the TiC nanoparticle pushing-engulfment phenomenon on the mechanical properties of in-situ Al-based cast composites

<u>Ewa Olejnik<sup>1,3\*</sup>, Paweł Kurtyka<sup>3</sup>, Agnieszka Czajka<sup>1</sup>, Robert Chulist<sup>2</sup>, Karol Janus<sup>1</sup>, Sylwia Terlicka<sup>2</sup>, Natalia Sobczak<sup>2</sup>, Jerzy J. Sobczak<sup>1</sup>, Wojciech Maziarz<sup>2</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>Faculty of Foundry Engineering, AGH University of Krakow, Krakow, Poland <sup>2</sup>Institute of Metallurgy and Materials Science, Polish Academy of Science, Krakow, Poland <sup>3</sup>Innerco Sp. z o.o. \*E-mail: eolejnik@agh.edu.pl

Keywords: AMMC, casting, in situ, TiC, pushing-engulfment phenomenon, tensile strength

In response to escalating environmental concerns, the automotive industry is increasingly focused on reducing vehicle weight to enhance fuel efficiency while maintaining safety and performance standards. Lightweight Aluminum-based Metal Matrix Composites (AMMCs) have emerged as a critical solution in this pursuit, offering significant potential for optimizing vehicle efficiency. Despite extensive research and discussions about their applications, commercial adoption remains limited, primarily due to challenges in the manufacturing process and the complex interactions between composite components.

This keynote address will explore the impact of the chemical composition of Aluminumbased alloys on the behavior and interaction of Titanium Carbide (TiC) particles within the composite matrix. We will discuss findings from research on three specific AMMCs: pure Aluminum (Al 1000), Aluminum with 7 wt.% Silicon (Al-7%Si), and commercial A356 alloy. The synthesis of these composites was carried out using the *in situ* method with a TiC powder mixture. The mixture was pressed and introduced as reactive compacts into a furnace during the metallurgical process.

Key insights from our research include: the distinct distribution patterns of TiC particles in different alloy matrices are influenced by pushing-engulfment phenomena at the solidliquid interface, the formation of additional phases, indicating complex reactions within the Al-Si/TiC system, and variations in particle size and distribution, which affect the mechanical properties of the composites.

We will highlight the significant increase in tensile strength observed in the Al 1000/TiC composite compared to the Al-7Si/TiC and A356/TiC composites. These findings shed light on new factors influencing the performance of Al-based and Al-Si-based AMMCs and underscore the importance of material composition in developing high-performance, lightweight automotive components.

This lecture aims to provide a comprehensive overview of the current state of *in situ* AMMC research, address key challenges in their manufacturing, and discuss the future potential of these advanced materials in the automotive industry.

#### Acknowledgments

Financial support of the National Science Centre, Poland (project no. 2021/43/B/ST8/03271) is greatly acknowledged.

- Maziarz W, Wójcik A, Chulist R, Bigos A, Kurtyka P, Szymański Ł, Jimenez Zabaleta A, García de Cortázar M, Olejnik E. Microstructure and mechanical properties of Al/TiC and Al/(Ti,W)C nanocomposites fabricated via in situ casting method. *Journal of Materials Research and Technology*, 2024, 28: 1852–1863.
- Shangguan D, Ahuja S, Stefanescu D M. An analytical model for the interaction between an insoluble particle and an advancing solid/liquid interface. *Metallurgical Transactions A*, 1992, 23A: 669-680.

#### **T4.12 GRAPHENE AND 2D MATERIALS**

#### Synthesis of a new 2D compounds: AlN

#### Jesus Gonzalez-Julian

Chair of Ceramics, RWTH Aachen University, Aachen, Germany E-mail: gonzalez@ghi.rwth-aachen.de

Keywords: 2D, AlN, synthesis, new materials

2D-AlN is a thermodynamically stable compound that has been predicted by density functional theory (DFT) calculations. It has attracted considerable attention due to its ultrawide band gap (> 2.8 eV) and its strong adsorption of  $CO_2$  (0.91 eV) molecules on its surface. This represents a breakthrough for  $CO_2$  capture technologies because the adsorption of gases directly on the 2D-AlN nanosheets is a simple and sustainable alternative for replacing the current strategy of decorating carbon nanostructure with metal nanoparticles for gas storage and  $CO_2$  capture. In addition, the high adsorption  $CO_2$  selectivity in comparison with other gases such as CO,  $H_2$ ,  $N_2$ ,  $O_2$ , and NO (<0.5 eV) opens other potential applications like gas separation membranes and gas sensors, among others. The DFT calculations have put 2D-AlN in the spotlight, but so far, the synthesis of free-standing 2D-AlN layers have not yet been achieved.

In this work I will present a new strategy to synthesize 2D-AlN nanoflakes for the first time. First, I will introduce the precursor materials including their characterization and properties. Then, I will continue with the different approaches for the synthesis of the 2D nanoflakes and their main characteristics. Afterwards, I will present the preliminary characterization of these new 2D materials as well as their main applications.

#### T5 Technology, Society and Sustainability

### T5.1 GLOBAL INNOVATIONS IN BIOMATERIALS, BIOMANUFACTURING, AND BIOTECHNOLOGIES

## Drug delivery systems to the lungs with enhanced bioavailability, targetability and stimulus triggered release

#### Elżbieta Pamuła

Department of Biomaterials and Composites, Faculty of Materials Science and Ceramics, AGH University of Krakow, Kraków, Poland E-mail: epamula@agh.edu.pl

**Keywords**: drug delivery ststems, inhalable formulations, solid-lipid microparticles, polymer microparticles, lung cancer, chronic obstructive pulmunary disease, paclitaxel, antibiotics, quorum sensing inhibitors

Lung diseases, such as lung cancer, acute infections, chronic obstructive pulmunary disease (COPD), SARS-Cov2, are one of the most frequent causes of death worldwide, as they can significantly compromise gas exchange in the alveoli. Such diseases are usually treated with systemic therapy, although the lungs can be directly targeted through the airways. Thus, by using inhalable formulations, it is possible to obtain a higher concentration of active pharmaceutical ingredient (API) directly at its action site and reduce its amount distributed systemically. The two main benefits of inhalable drug delivery systems are: (1) reduced side effects due to lower doses administered than via typical enteral or other parenteral routes and, (2) in the case of antibiotics, lower chance to build up antibiotic resistance. To achieve the most effective therapy, powders for inhalation must have appropriate size (1-5  $\mu$ m in diameter), uniform size distribution, aerodynamic properties to be deposited in the bronchiole/alveoli region, sufficient drug loading and required release kinetics [1].

In our group, we are working on lipid and polymer microparticles to be used as inhalable dry powder formulations. So far we have developed innovative, inhalable stimuli-sensitive drug carriers that are intended to improve the efficacy of lung cancer therapy through guided accumulation directly at the tumour site and controlled drug release triggered by an alternating magnetic field resulting in a local increase in temperature [2]. Such drug delivery carriers are in the form of solid lipid microparticles composed of fatty acids loaded with superparamagnetic iron oxide nanoparticles (SPIONs) and paclitaxel. The microparticles meet various criteria including: suitable aerodynamic properties, high drug loading efficiency, sufficient mobility in the magnetic field, melting temperature at hyperthermia conditions, and enhanced *in vitro* efficacy as studied in contact with healthy and cancerous lung epithelial cells under hyperthermia conditions [3].

Recently, we have been working on polymer drug delivery systems of antibiotics and quorum sensing inhibitors for the treatment of bacterial infections in patients with exacerbations of COPD [4]. Such systems are based on fast-degrading polyanhydride microparticles loaded with antibiotics (e.g., azithromycin, tobramycin, gentamycin) and quorum-sensing inhibitors (e.g., curcumin, linolenic acid). The microparticles are designed to ensure an appropriate size for inhalation, degrade within a few days, and release drug cargo, which is capable of killing bacteria causing COPD exacerbations and preventing biofilm formation. The system is cytocompatible with lung epithelial cells, as shown by *in vitro* and *ex vivo* tests.

#### Acknowledgments

This study was supported by the National Science Centre Poland (project No 2019/35/B/ST5/01103).

- 1. K. Knap, et al, Regenerative Biomaterials, 2023, 10, rbac099.
- 2. K. Reczyńska, et al, Nanomaterials, 2020, 10(6), art. no. 1076.
- 3. K. Reczyńska et al, Materials Science and Engineering C, 2020, 111, 110801.
- 4. K. Kwiecień, et al, Engineering of Biomaterials, 2021, 162, 7–12.
- 5. K. Knap, et al, Biomaterials Advances, 2023, 153, art. no. 213540.

## Recent advances in nanomedicine: sensors, implants, artificial intelligence, saving the environment, human results, and more

#### Thomas J. Webster

School of Health Sciences and Biomedical Engineering, Hebei University of Technology, Tianjin, China

School of Engineering, Saveetha University, Chennai, India; Division of Pre-College and Undergraduate Studies, Brown University, Providence, RI, USA

Co-founder and CSO of over a dozen companies, Mansfield, MA USA

E-mail: thomas\_webster@brown.edu; websterthomas02@gmail.com

Keywords: nanomedicine, orthopedics, infection, sensors, artificial intelligence, humans

Nanomedicine includes the use of nanomaterials to improve disease prevention, detection, and treatment which has resulted in hundreds of FDA approved medical products. While nanomedicine has been around for several decades, new technological advances are pushing its boundaries. For example, this presentation will present an over 25 year journey of commercializing nano orthopedic implants now in over 30,000 patients to date showing no signs of failure (over the past 5 years). Current orthopedic implants face a failure rate of 5 -10% and sometimes as high as 60% for bone cancer patients. Further, Artificial Intelligence (AI) has revolutionized numerous industries to date. However, its use in nanomedicine has remained few and far between. One area that AI has significantly improved nanomedicine is through implantable sensors. This talk will present research in which implantable sensors, using AI, can learn from patient's response to implants and predict future outcomes. Such implantable sensors not only incorporate AI, but also communicate to a handheld device, and can reverse AI predicted adverse events. Examples will be given in which AI implantable sensors have been used in orthopedics to inhibit implant infection and promote prolonged bone growth. In vitro and in vivo experiments will be provided that demonstrate how AI can be used towards our advantage in nanomedicine, especially implantable sensors. Lastly, this talk will summarize recent advances in nanomedicine to both help human health and save the environment.

### **T5.2 GLOBAL YOUNG INVESTIGATOR FORUM**

#### Advances of cold sintering in ceramic processing

Yuchi Fan<sup>\*</sup>, Jie Gao, Xueping Lu, Wenbin Lu, Xu Wang, Wan Jiang

Institute of Functional Materials, Donghua University, Shanghai, China \*E-mail: yuchifan@dhu.edu.cn

**Keywords**: cold sintering process, transparent ceramics, high-temperature metastable materials, thermoelectric materials

Cold sintering process is a green sintering technology developed in recent years, which can exponentially reduce the densification temperature of ceramics through the transient liquid phase and pressure introduced in the sintering process. Based on low-temperature sintering technology, it can not only greatly reduce the energy consumption required in the ceramic preparation process, but also greatly expand the design of ceramic composites, creating new opportunities for the performance optimization and improvement of ceramic materials. We will illustrate the advances of cold sintering process through the preparation and application of transparent ceramic materials<sup>[1, 2]</sup>, high-temperature metastable materials<sup>[3, 4]</sup>, and thermo-electric materials<sup>[5, 6]</sup>.

- 1. J. Gao, Z. Xia, Q. Ding, Y. Liu, P. Yan, Y. Hu, L. Wang, W. Luo, Y. Fan, W. Jiang, Advanced Functional Materials. 2023, 33.
- J. Gao, K. Wang, W. Luo, X. Cheng, Y. Fan, W. Jiang, Journal of Advanced Ceramics. 2022, 11, 1714.
- J. Gao, Q. Ding, P. Yan, Y. Liu, Y. Hu, Y. Ren, X. Wang, T. Mustafa, Y. Fan, W. Jiang, J Eur Ceram Soc. 2024, 44, 4225.
- 4. X. Wang, H. Zhang, X. Yu, X. Mo, J. Gao, Y. Hu, J. Min, Q. Ding, Y. Fan, W. Jiang, *Journal of the American Ceramic Society.* **2024**.
- 5. X. Lu, W. Lu, J. Gao, Y. Liu, J. Huang, P. Yan, Y. Fan, W. Jiang, *Acs Applied Materials & Interfaces*. **2022**, *14*, 37937.
- 6. W. Lu, S. Wu, Q. Ding, M. Si, W. Luo, Y. Fan, W. Jiang, Acs Applied Materials & Interfaces. 2024, 16, 4671.

## INVITED

## T1 Ceramics for Energy Conversion, Storage, and Distribution Systems

### **T1.1 HIGH-TEMPERATURE FUEL CELLS AND ELECTROLYSIS**

## Structural and thermodynamic analysis of triple conducting electrode materials for protonic ceramic fuel cells

#### Kyle S. Brinkman

Department of Materials Science, Clemson University, Clemson SC USA E-mail: ksbrink@clemson.edu

Keywords: ionic conductivity, cathode, protonic fuel cells, electrolysis

Triple ionic-electronic conductors (TIEC) such BaCo0.4Fe0.4Zr0.1Y0.1O3- $\delta$  (BCFZY) have received much attention as high performance electrode materials for protonic ceramic fuel cells (PCFC)<sup>1</sup>. The conduction of all three species makes TIECs excellent candidates as cathodes in PCFCs due to their high activity, good stability, and facile synthesis routes. The properties of these materials, including their enthalpy of formation from oxides, can be significantly affected by oxygen vacancies and structural changes. Understanding these effects is crucial for the design and optimization of new materials with improved properties. The bulk characteristics of oxygen and proton diffusion along with surface exchange characteristics were recently determined for the triple-conducting BaCo0.4Fe0.4Zr0.2–XYXO3– $\delta$  suite of samples with varying Y composition<sup>2.3</sup>. Y substitution increased the overall size of the lattice due to dopant ionic radius and the concomitant formation of oxygen vacancies. A combination of DC four-point conductivity for electronic carriers and gas permeation (oxygen and proton transport) for ionic carriers has recently been utilized to fully compare transport across varying material compositions and atmospheric conditions.

In this study, we investigate the trends in the enthalpy of formation from oxides as a function of oxygen vacancy and structure affects. We also correlate these results with previously measured proton and oxygen kinetics in these systems. To achieve these goals, we used a combination of high temperature solution calorimetry, X-ray diffraction, neutron powder diffraction, and thermogravimetry.

- G. Chen, A. Feldhoff, A. Weidenkaff, C. Li, S. Liu, X. Zhu, J. Sunarso, K. Huang, X. Wu, A. F. Ghoniem, W. Yang, J. Xue, H. Wang, Z. Shao, J. H. Duffy, <u>K. S. Brinkman</u>, X. Tan, Y. Zhang, H. Jiang, R. Costa, K. A. Friedrich, and R. Kriegel"Roadmap on Sustainable Mixed Ionic-Electronic Conducting Membranes" *Advanced Functional Materials* 2021, 2105702.
- JH Duffy, HW Abernathy, <u>KS Brinkman</u>, "Tuning proton kinetics in BaCo 0.4 Fe 0.4 Zr 0.2–XYXO 3–δ triple ionic-electronic conductors via aliovalent substitution" *Journal of Materials Chemistry* A 2023 11 (16) 8929–8938.
- J. H. Duffy, Y. Meng , H. W. Abernathy and <u>K. S. Brinkman.</u> "Surface and Bulk Oxygen Kinetics of BaCo0.4Fe0.4Zr0.2–XYXO3–δ Triple Conducting Electrode Materials" Membranes 2021, 11100766.

## Exsolution mechanisms, phase stability, and redox-behavior of substituted strontium titanate perovskites

<u>Olivier Guillon<sup>1,2,3\*</sup></u>, Moritz L. Weber<sup>4,1</sup>, Alexander Schwiers<sup>1,2</sup>, Regina Dittmann<sup>4,5</sup>, Rainer Waser<sup>4,5,6</sup>, Felix Gunkel<sup>4</sup>, Christian Lenser<sup>1</sup>, Norbert H. Menzler<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Forschungszentrum Jülich GmbH, Institute of Energy and Climate Research (IEK), Materials Synthesis and Processing (IEK-1), Wilhelm-Johnen-Straße, 52428 Juelich, Germany
<sup>2</sup>RWTH Aachen University, Institute of Mineral Engineering (GHI), Aachen, Germany
<sup>3</sup>Juelich-Aachen Research Alliance JARA-Energy, Juelich, Germany
<sup>4</sup>Forschungszentrum Jülich GmbH, Peter Gruenberg Institute - Electronic Materials (PGI-7), Wilhelm-Johnen-Straße, 52428 Juelich, Germany
<sup>5</sup>Juelich-Aachen Research Alliance JARA-FIT, Juelich, Germany
<sup>6</sup>RWTH Aachen University, Institute for Electronic Materials (IWE2), Aachen, Germany
\*E-mail: o.guillon@fz-juelich.de

Keywords: oxides, exsolution, metal nanoparticles, space charges, stability

Exsolution is defined as the phase separation of a solid solution due to a miscibility gap under specific conditions. In the context of catalysis, exsolution refers to the reduction of metal cations to the metallic state, forming nanosized particles on the surface. This process is initiated by exposing the material to reducing conditions, resulting in the release of oxygen from the host lattice and thus providing the driving force to exsolve certain cations for charge compensation. At surfaces and interfaces, however, strong electrostatic gradients and space charges typically control the properties of oxides. Here we reveal that the nature of the surface-dopant interaction is the main determining factor for the exsolution kinetics of nickel in  $SrTi_{0.9}Nb_{0.05}Ni_{0.05}O_{3-\delta}$ . The electrostatic interaction of dopants with surface space charge regions results in strong surface passivation, which manifests in a retarded exsolution response. We furthermore demonstrate the controllability of the exsolution response via engineering of the perovskite surface chemistry.

Ni-exsolution from perovskites has gained significant attention in the area of electrode materials for fuel and electrolysis cells due to potential high catalytic activity, tolerance to degradation, improved redox-cycling stability, and regeneration of the nanoparticles. In this context, the properties of the oxide host lattice after exsolution are insufficiently investigated. Since the exsolved nanoparticles are not percolated, their function is very different from that of a percolated Ni network and the electrode performance will strongly depend on the properties of the oxide backbone. The phase stability of the oxide during the exsolution process and its influence on mechanical stability of the perovskite backbone is not well investigated. It is therefore important to understand how the loss of a significant amount of B-site cations influences the physical properties of the oxide. We thus investigated the exsolution behavior and phase stability of bulk Sr<sub>1-x</sub>(Ti<sub>0.3</sub>Fe<sub>0.7-y</sub>Ni<sub>y</sub>)O<sub>3-\delta</sub> partially transforms to a Ruddlesden-Popper phase, while reverting back to the perovskite phase during reoxidation. This phase transition resulted in material expansion and the formation of cracks.

#### Acknowledgments

The authors are grateful for the collaborative research funding from Forschungszentrum Jülich and the DFG (Deutsche Forschungsgemeinschaft) project SynSOFC II (275388933).

- 1. M.L. Weber et al. Nature Materials, January 2024, doi:/10.1038/s41563-023-01743-6
- 2. A. Schwiers et al. To be published in Journal of Materials Chemistry A.

### Development of tuned SOEC electrode by spray coating

<u>Marijke Jacobs</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Fatima-Ezzahra El Bassiri<sup>2</sup>, Aurélie Rolle<sup>2</sup>, Rose-Noëlle Vannier<sup>2</sup>, Vesna Middelkoop<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Flemish Institute for Technological Research – VITO, B-2400 Mol, Belgium
 <sup>2</sup>Univ. Lille, CNRS, Centrale Lille, Univ. Artois, UMR 8181 - UCCS - Unité de Catalyse et Chimie du Solide, F-59000 Lille, France
 \*E-mail: marijke.jacobs@vito.be

Keywords: SOEC, spray coating, microstructure, oxygen electrode

Solid Oxide Electrolysis Cell (SOEC) is a key technology for the ongoing energy transition towards a low carbon future. It is the most viable route for the efficient utilization of renewable electricity to produce green hydrogen and fuels [1]. Although SOEC do not make use of expensive Pt, it still consists of rare earth elements (REE). To overcome the environmental and criticality challenges of REE, alternative materials are needed or REE should be recycled. Therefore, the European NOUVEAU project aims to make Solid Oxide Electrolysis Cell (SOEC) technology more sustainable and re-usable by developing novel electrode coatings and interconnect. Besides the material choice, the microstructure of the electrode coatings is important as well to obtain an optimal use of critical materials and to achieve an efficient working SOEC for green hydrogen production. The electrode microstructure will be tuned in (La-free) composition along the thickness of the electrode to have an improved thermal expansion match between the different layers. Such a structure can be achieved by spray coating as it allows to vary the composition along the thickness of the electrode and to create uniform electrode coatings [2].

In this work, a symmetric cell is fabricated by applying the electrode layers on gadolinium doped ceria (GDC) planar substrates, which serve as the electrolyte layer. As electrode material, a La-free oxide is selected by Centrale Lille to have a reduced amount of REE and produced by Marion Technologies. This material is mixed with Gd doped Ce oxide to obtain a tuned composition. This mixture was continuously varied so that the layer consists of 100 % of Gd doped Ce oxide near the interlayer and 25/75 % Gd doped Ce oxide/La-free oxide at the surface (see Fig. 1). The coating parameters such as atomization pressure, coating speed and suspension flow were optimized to obtain uniform coatings and to control the microstructure and thickness. The suspension formulation was adjusted to improve the adhesion and the quality of the coating. Microscopy was used to determine the coating thickness and porosity of the structure. Furthermore, electrochemical impedance spectroscopy was carried out.
#### Figures



Fig. 1. An illustration of tuned porosity of electrodes obtained by spray coating.

#### Acknowledgments

This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon Europe research and innovation programme under grant agreement N°101058784. The present publication reflects only the author's views. The Commission is not responsible for any use that may be made of the information contained therein.

- 1. A. Nechache and S. Hody, Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews 149, 111322 (2021).
- M. Jacobs, L. O. Jøsang, V. Rangasamy and V. Middelkoop, Journal of Coatings Technology and Research 20, 41–50 (2023).

## Identification and analysis of gas conversion losses in impedance spectra of solid oxide cells

Mihails Kusnezoff\*, Nikolai Trofimenko, Sindy Mosch

Fraunhofer IKTS, Dresden, Germany \*E-mail: mihails.kusnezoff@ikts.fraunhofer.de

Keywords: solid oxide cell, gas conversion impedance, MEA, distribution of relaxation times

The electrochemical performance of solid oxide cells strongly depends on its area specific resistance (ASR). Experimentally observed ASR value obtained from I-V characteristics or rated power measurements contains contributions from electrode polarization resistance, ohmic losses resulting from ionic conductivity of electrolyte and gas conversion losses connected with the change of gas composition under current load conditions. The contributions to ASR resulting from electrode and electrolyte resistance are the matter of continuous improvement and should be separated from gas conversion losses to be able to perform in-depth analysis of contributions of different electrochemical processes in electrodes to total cell resistance.

In our previous work [1] it was shown that the contribution of gas conversion losses to ASR of cell and stack can be calculated from cell operating conditions and used as correction of ASR value obtained from I-V characteristics resulting in constant cell area specific resistance, which stays independent for various H<sub>2</sub>-H<sub>2</sub>O-N<sub>2</sub> gas mixtures. Up to date the correlation of calculated gas conversion losses to the responses observed in impedance spectra of single cells and stacks has not been analyzed in detail. Mathematical analysis of electrochemical impedance spectrum (EIS) resulting from of gas diffusion in pores and gas conversion in the gas channel over electrode performed by Jacobsen et al. [2] was simplified and applied to experimentally used flow field for gas supply to the cell electrodes. The results of this analysis have shown that gas diffusion losses for thin electrodes can be neglected and only gas conversion losses provide notable contribution to EIS resulting in semicircle with characteristic relaxation frequency in the range of 1-10 Hz. Moreover, the channel geometry has considerable influence on the relaxation frequency. The relaxation frequency values as well as magnitude of the impedance calculated and observed in EIS showed excellent agreement. The impedance spectra analysis by distribution of relaxation times method has been used to identify the shift of gas conversion impedance frequency in dependence on operation conditions. The dependence of the relaxation frequency on gas flow rate, gas composition and temperature has been investigated and excellent agreement with expected behavior found. It has been shown that the relaxation frequency of gas conversion semicircle strongly depends on gas flow rate only and that the changes in temperature and gas composition have nearly no effect on its position. The performed analysis allows to predict and to identify the position and magnitude of gas conversion impedance in EIS.

#### References

- M. Kusnezoff, W. Beckert, N. Trofimenko, B. Jacobs, C. Dosch, S. Megel, M. Rachau, C. Wieprecht, D. Gipp, Electrochemical MEA Characterization: Area Specific Resistance Corrected to Fuel Utilization as Universal Characteristic for Cell Performance, ECS Trans. 68 (2015) 2555–2563. https://doi.org/10.1149/06801.2555ecst.
- T. Jacobsen, P.V. Hendriksen, S. Koch, Diffusion and conversion impedance in solid oxide fuel cells, Electrochimica Acta 53 (2008) 7500–7508. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.electacta.2008.02.019.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

# Study on steel composition design for metal-supported solid oxide fuel cells and performance evaluation of assembled cells/stacks

#### Cheng-Xin Li<sup>1\*</sup>, Muhammad Bilal Hanif<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>D State Key Laboratory for Mechanical Behavior of Materials, School of Materials Science and Engineering, Xi'an Jiaotong University, Xi'an, Shaanxi 710049, China <sup>2</sup>Microscop Department of Inorganic Chemistry, Faculty of Natural Sciences, Comenius University in Bratislava, Ilkovicova 6, 842 15 Bratislava, Slovakia \*E-mail: licx@mail.xjtu.edu.cn

Keywords: solid oxide fuel cells, Amic-21/23, stainless steel, Crofer 22, pre-oxidation, stability

In this study, we proposed a novel design for ferritic stainless steel materials intended for use in metal-supported solid oxide fuel cells (MS-SOFC), incorporating elements like Fe, Cr, Mn, and Ti. Building upon this design, we developed Amic-21 and Amic-23 stainless steels and conducted comparative analyses against Crofer 22 and ZMG232G10, with a primary focus on their long-term oxidation behavior under cathodic and anodic atmospheres. The findings revealed that the optimized SOFC steel could develop dense oxide films primarily comprised of Cr, Fe, and Mn under reducing atmospheres on the anode side, displaying oxidation kinetics similar to Crofer 22.

To enhance the oxidation resistance of this stainless steel material, we proposed a preoxidation protective process. Following pre-oxidation treatment at 800°C for 20 hours, a dense chromium oxide layer formed on the stainless steel's surface, effectively bolstering its oxidation resistance. Furthermore, we discussed the impact of pre-oxidation processes utilizing (Mn,Co)3O4 spinel (referred to as MCO) coatings on the oxidation behavior and conductivity of the interconnect under cathodic atmospheres. For the Amic series stainless steels designed in this study, pre-oxidation treatment effectively mitigated Cr diffusion, substantially reducing oxidation and facilitating the generation of the cubic MnCo2O4 phase, thereby decreasing surface-specific resistance and enhancing the conductivity of the MCO coating.

Leveraging the Amic series steel developed in this study, we employed a low-pressure plasma spraying method to fabricate MS-SOFCs with a  $10 \text{cm} \times 10 \text{cm}$  area, achieving low heat input to the metal support. At 500°C, the open-circuit voltage (OCV) remained stable within the range of 1.05-1.09 V, and the power density increased with operating temperature, reaching 0.4 W/cm<sup>2</sup> under equilibrium gas pressure conditions at 650°C. Furthermore, we assembled a solid oxide fuel cell stack, which underwent 6 thermal cycles in a 500-hour long-term stability test, demonstrating robust stability in terms of open-circuit voltage and maximum power density.

### Advanced manufacturing of ionic conductors for solid oxide cells

<u>A.G. Sabato<sup>1\*</sup></u>, S. Marquez<sup>1</sup>, A. Martos<sup>1</sup>, N. Kostretsova<sup>1</sup>, M. Lira<sup>1</sup>, I. Babeli<sup>1</sup>, M. Nuñez Eroles<sup>1</sup>, M. Torrell<sup>1</sup>, A. Tarancon<sup>1,2</sup>

 <sup>1</sup>Catalonia Institute for Energy Research, Jardins de les Dones de Negre 1, 08930 Sant Adrià de Besòs, Barcelona, Spain
 <sup>2</sup>ICREA, Passeig Lluís Companys 23, 08010 Barcelona, Spain
 \*E-mail: gsabato@irec.cat

Keywords: 3D printing, additive manufacturing, fuel cells, reversible solid oxide cells

Nowadays conventional Solid Oxide Cells (SOC) are mainly based on multilayered functional ceramic materials produced by expensive and long manufacturing processes. Furthermore, conventional manufacturing techniques limit SOC geometries to typical planar or tubular ones.

Here we present the recent breakthroughs obtained by innovative additive manufacturing technology of functional ceramic for SOC. The use of stereolitography (SLA) of Yttria Stabilized Zirconia (YSZ) electrolytes was explored at IREC in order to produce complex shaped SOC, impossible to obtain with conventional methods. New designs are considered in order to increase the active area of the devices leading to an increase of the performance per projected area. 3D printed electrolytes geometries are also tailored with special geometrical features (with 25µm of resolution) that allows not only an increase on the volumetric power density but also other key advantages such as better mechanical properties or complex shaped sealing features. The implementation of SLA for YSZ manufacturing at the same time can lead to advantages at stack level: i.e. reduction of the overall volume of the stack, use of flat thin interconnects, high pressure resistance without the use of vessels.

In addition, hybridized (SLA + robocasting) multimaterial is presented together with cosintering, characterization and preliminary electrochemical performance of the full printed device.

#### Figures



Figure: 3D printed YSZ electrolytes at IREC (on the left) and a sub-stack (3 cells) built and tested at IREC based on these cells

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

#### Acknowledgments

The presented results are collected as part of HyP3D project, Funded by the European Union (Grant Agreement No. 101101274). Views and opinions expressed are however those of the author(s) only and do not necessarily reflect those of the European Union or Clean Hydrogen Joint Undertaking. Neither the European Union nor the granting authority can be held responsible for them.

Furthermore the authors want to thanks the projects SIMPEL, (TED2021-131267B-C31, funded by MCIN/AEI/10.13039/501100011033 and by "NextGenerationEU"/PRTR) and FASSION (PID2022-137626OB-C32 financiado por MCIN/AEI / 10.13039/501100011033 / FEDER, UE).

# Electrochemical systems for hydrogen and net-zero energy infrastructure

#### Prabhakar Singh\*, Pawan K. Dubey

University of Connecticut, Storrs, Connecticut 0626 USA \*E-mail: prabhakar.singh@uconn.edu

Climate change remains a motivation and driving force for research, development, and implementation of clean, efficient, and cost-effective energy technologies for global deployment. In this presentation, we will examine the status of existing and emerging electricity generation trends with a focus on technology attributes. We will present the potential of various technologies for cost effective and commercial readiness to accelerate the transition to and adoption of net-zero and zero carbon emissions processes. Potential scenarios for utilizing carbon neutral fuels, carbon capture and utilization, and hydrogen generation for the enhancement of energy efficiency will be examined. In-depth review of the electrochemistry and electrochemical processes will be presented and technology gaps along with research needs will be discussed. Long term materials challenges, degradation processes and degradation mitigation approaches will be discussed.

# NiCoP fibers as a novel catalyst for hydrogen production: preparation and efficiency

Magdalena Streckova<sup>1\*</sup>, Cyril Bera<sup>1</sup>, Alexandra Guboova<sup>2</sup>, Renata Orinakova<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Materials Research, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Watsonova 47, 040 01 Kosice, Slovakia

<sup>2</sup>Institute of Chemistry, Faculty of Science, P.J. Safarik University, Moyzesova 11, 040 01 Kosice, Slovakia

\*E-mail: mstreckova@saske.sk

Keywords: NiCoP catalysits, fibres, hydrogen evolution reaction, water splitting

Amidst the current global energy crisis fueled by soaring energy prices, environmental disregard, and relentless use of fossil fuels, extensive research and innovation are underway to explore clean, sustainable, and renewable energy alternatives. It is abundantly evident today that green hydrogen will predominantly serve as a pivotal element in the decarbonization of industrial processes and carbon-intensive sectors. Nevertheless, the production of green hydrogen remains noncompetitive, with around 60% of the overall cost attributed to the expense of renewable energy utilized for its production. Additionally, a significant contributor to the relatively high price of hydrogen is the expense associated with electrolyzer and fuel cell technology. The NiCoP transition metal phosphide has emerged as a highly promising candidate for replacing noble metals in the hydrogen evolution reaction. This study presents, for the first time, the straightforward synthesis of NiCoP electrocatalysts in the form of fibers, exhibiting a predominant one-dimensional structure achieved through needleless electrospinning technology and subsequent precise heat treatment. The research offers a precise methodology for fabricating NiCoP fibers, accompanied by experimental evidence showcasing their exceptional electrocatalytic performance in both alkaline and acidic environments. The fibrous NiCoP electrocatalyst were prepared at different sintering temperature from 700°C (F7) to 1100 °C (F10) in air followed by additional sintering at 700 °C in H<sub>2</sub>, demonstrates a low hydrogen evolution reaction (HER) overpotential ( $\eta_{10}$ ) of 141 mV in alkaline conditions and 146 mV in acidic conditions, alongside low Tafel slopes of 53 and 97.8 mV/dec, respectively (Figure). The electrocatalytic efficiency of the fibrous sample was compared with powder sample (P9) at the same conditions. In addition, the bimetallic phosphide exhibits exceptional activity in the oxygen evolution reaction (OER) within an alkaline medium (1M KOH), coupled with satisfactory durability during long-term stability assessments. The innovative fibrous structure of the material significantly contributes to the modulation of its electronic structure, thereby enhancing the density of electrochemically active sites and consequently improving its electrocatalytic performance in water splitting technology.

### Figures



Figure. SEM image of NiCoP fibres with the LSV for HER and OER in 1M KOH.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was created with financial support of projects: VEGA 2/0027/23 and 1/0095/21, APVV-20-0299.

## T1.2 CERAMICS-RELATED MATERIALS, DEVICES, AND PROCESSING FOR HEAT-TO-ELECTRICITY DIRECT CONVERSION AND THERMAL ENERGY HARNESSING

## Enabling direct synthesis of quaternary thioantimonate Ag<sub>4</sub>MnSb<sub>2</sub>S<sub>6</sub> via novel approaches

#### A. Bertrand, T. Barbier<sup>\*</sup>, M. Leproult, F. Gascoin

Laboratoire CRISMAT, UMR 6508 Normandie Université, CNRS, ENSICAEN, UNICAEN, 6 bd du Marechal Juin, 14050 Caen Cedex 4, France \*E-mail: tristan.barbier@ensicaen.fr

Samsonite (Ag<sub>4</sub>MnSb<sub>2</sub>S<sub>6</sub>), a naturally occurring mineral found in hydrothermal veins, holds promise for thermoelectric applications due to its complex crystal structure – it crystallizes in the monoclinic crystal system (space group: P2<sub>1</sub>/n with a = 10.3861 Å, b = 8.1108 Å, c = 6.6637 Å, and  $\beta = 92.639^{\circ}$ ) – the presence of electron lone pairs on Sb<sup>3+</sup> atoms, and the lack of extensive research on its synthesis under lab conditions.1 Indeed, authors have shown through the tetrahedrite phase (Cu<sub>12</sub>Sb<sub>4</sub>S<sub>13</sub>), that the electron lone pair of Sb<sup>3+</sup> may explain the ultralow thermal conductivity of Cu<sub>12</sub>Sb<sub>4</sub>S<sub>13</sub>.2

The objective is to synthesize  $Ag_4MnSb_2S_6$  through unconventional synthesis ways (hydrothermal synthesis and polyol synthesis process) to mimic the high pressure and temperature found in natural conditions. Then, subsequent structural, magnetic, and thermoelectric property evaluations will be conducted to assess the material's potential for thermoelectric applications.

This presentation delves into the exploration of two innovative synthesis methods, hydrothermal and polyol syntheses, for the synthesis of quaternary thioantimonate  $Ag_4MnSb_2S_6$ . By comparing their respective efficiencies and considering their inherent advantages and drawbacks, we aim to establish a comprehensive understanding of these techniques and their potential for producing high-quality  $Ag_4MnSb_2S_6$ .

Hydrothermal synthesis, while renowned for its ability to yield highly crystalline compounds using simple precursors and solvents, exhibits limitations in scalability due to its inherently slow reaction kinetics. Conversely, polyol synthesis, renowned for its rapid reaction rates and scalability potential, often produces compounds with relatively poor crystallinity, necessitating additional crystal growth processing as a follow-up step.

By critically evaluating these synthesis methods in light of their advantages and drawbacks, we strive to identify strategies for optimizing each technique and leveraging their synergistic strengths to achieve efficient and scalable synthesis of  $Ag_4MnSb_2S_6$ . This comparative analysis holds promise for unlocking the full potential of these methods and paving the way for the development of superior thermoelectric materials.



Figure 1: Schematic Illustration of the Samsonite Crystal Structure

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the Agence National de la Recherche (ANR-20-CE05-0022).

- Bindi L., Evain M., Gram-Charlier development of the atomic displacement factors into mineral structures, The case of samsonite, Ag<sub>4</sub>MnSb<sub>2</sub>S<sub>6</sub>. American Mineralogist, 92 (5–6), 886–891, (2007).
- Barbier T., Rollin-Martinet S., Lemoine P., Gascoin F., Kaltzoglou A., Vaqueiro P., Powell A.V., and Guilmeau E., Thermoelectric Materials: A New Rapid Synthesis Process for Nontoxic and High-Performance Tetrahedrite Compounds. J. Am. Ceram. Soc., 99, 51–56, (2016).

# Nano-engineering of GeTe for high performance thermoelectric applications

<u>Kuei-Hsien Chen<sup>1,2\*</sup></u>, Khasim S. Bayikadi<sup>1</sup>, Suman Abbas<sup>2</sup>, Raman Sankar<sup>3</sup>, Li-Chyong Chen<sup>2,4</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Atomic and Molecular Sciences, Academia Sinica, Taipei, Taiwan <sup>2</sup>Center for Condensed Matter Sciences, National Taiwan University, Taipei, Taiwan <sup>3</sup>Institute of Physics, Academia Sinica, Taipei, Taiwan <sup>4</sup>Department of Physics, National Taiwan University, Taipei, Taiwan \*E-mail: corresponding.author@email.com

Keywords: GeSbTe, thermoelectric, W-doping

We study the structure, doping, and nano-engineering of GeTe for high figure-of-merit (ZT) in thermoelectric properties. DFT has been applied to elucidate the thermoelectric properties in the materials. With better vacancy control of pure GeTe, a ZT of 1.37 has been achieved. Additional Sb doping renders dramatic decrease in thermal conductivity, which is also confirmed by DFT calculation. A high power factor and low thermal conductivity, rendering a ZT of 2.35 has been achieved in GeSbTe. Further co-doping of W into the GST results in a ZT up to 2.93 @ 825 K, which is near 3.0, a milestone for thermoelectric figure-of-merit.



**Fig.** 1 (a) Microdomain structures of undoped GeTe-900, and (b) the herringbone domain structure of Ge0.9Sb0.1Te-900 with thickened domain boundaries. (c) The amplified view of Sb doping-centre introduced local strain within the herringbone domain of  $Ge_{0.9}Sb_{0.1}Te$ , as revealed by the gradual displacement that is used to relieve the local strain. (d) Herringbone domain structures for  $Ge_{0.9}Sb_{0.1}Te$ -900 with alternating tensile/compressive domain boundaries. (e) Schematic representation of the herringbone domain with alternating tensile/compressive strains, replotted following the atomistic model proposed by Lee et al.

- 1. K.S. Bayikadia et al., J. of Mater. Chem. A 7, 15181-15189 (2019).
- K.S. Bayikadia et al., J. of Mater. Chem. A 8, 5332-5341 (2020).
  S. Imam et al., Mater. Today Phys. 22, 100571 (2022).
- 4. H.S. Lee et al., Acta Mater. 91, 83-90 (2015).

## Texture control to achieve high in-plane thermoelectric performance in polycrystalline tin monosulfide co-doped with silver and sodium

Li-Chyong Chen<sup>1,2,3\*</sup>, Muhammad Yusuf Fakhri<sup>1,4</sup>, Kuei-Hsien Chen<sup>1,4</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Centre for Condensed Matter Sciences, National Taiwan University, Taipei, Taiwan <sup>2</sup>Department of Physics, National Taiwan University, Taipei, Taiwan <sup>3</sup>Center of Atomic Initiative for New Materials, Taipei, Taiwan <sup>4</sup>Institute of Atomic and Molecular Sciences, Academia Sinica, Taipei, Taiwan \*E-mail: chenlc@ntu.edu.tw

Keywords: sintering, texture, electrical properties, thermal properties, thermoelectrics

Tin monosulfide (SnS), an affordable IV-VI semiconductor compound, has emerged as a promising material due to its low toxicity, abundance, and potential for future applications in semiconductor devices. The strong lattice anharmonicity of SnS results in exceptionally low thermal conductivity at moderate temperatures, making it suitable for thermoelectric applications<sup>1</sup>. Despite its thermoelectric potential, the performance of polycrystalline SnS is observed to be lower compared to its single-crystal counterpart. Furthermore, the anisotropic performance between directions perpendicular  $(\perp P)$  and parallel (||P) to the sintering pressure, respectively, complicates the preparation of the polycrystal. In this study, we successfully enhanced the in-plane  $(\perp P)$  performance of polycrystalline SnS through hot-pressing consolidation. The enhanced in-plane conductivity is crucial for utilizing the high carrier mobility of the lateral crystal structure, resulting in a higher figure of merit (zT) along this direction. Additionally, the incorporation of a small percentage of silver in sodium-doped SnS improved carrier mobility, leading to enhanced electrical conductivity without affecting thermal conductivity. With these improvements, our co-doped SnS exhibits a relatively high peak zT ( $\perp$ P) of 0.27 at 573 K, making it promising for low-temperature applications involving sulfur-based polycrystalline thermoelectric materials.



Figure 1 Temperature dependence of the dimensionless figure of merit (zT): zT=(S^2  $\sigma$ T)/k, where S is the Seebeck coefficient,  $\sigma$  is the electrical conductivity, T is the absolute temperature and k is the thermal conductivity.

- 1. L. Zhao, et al., Ultralow thermal conductivity and high thermoelectric figure of merit in SnSe crystals, Nature 508, 373-376 (2014).
- 2. Asfandiyar, et al., High thermoelectric figure of merit ZT>1 in SnS polycrystals, Journal of Materiomics 6, 77 85 (2020).

### Texturing ceramics via electrospun nanoribbons: A route to high-performance $Ca_3Co_{4,x}O_{9,\delta}$ thermoelectrics

<u>Armin Feldhoff</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Katharina Kruppa<sup>1</sup>, Itzhak I. Maor<sup>2</sup>, Frank Steinbach<sup>1</sup>, Meirav Mann-Lahav<sup>2</sup>, Gideon S. Grader<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Physical Chemistry and Electrochemistry, Leibniz University Hannover, Hannover, Germany

<sup>2</sup>The Wolfson Department of Chemical Engineering, Technion – Israel Institute of Technology, Haifa, Israel

\*E-mail: armin.feldhoff@pci.uni-hannover.de

Keywords: calcium cobaltite, electrospinning, microstructure, nanofibers, nanoribbons, thermoelectric properties, texturing

Calcium cobaltite  $Ca_3Co_{4x}O_{9+\delta}$  is a promising *p*-type thermoelectric material with good functional properties for high-temperature applications in air. The material exhibits strong anisotropic properties, so texturing and nanostructuring are mostly favored to improve the thermoelectric performance. Electrospinning is a suitable and cost-effective method to meet these requirements. In this work, flat-shaped  $Ca_3Co_{4x}O_{9+\delta}$  nanofibers, called nanoribbons, were electrospun and the resulting nanoribbons mats were further processed into a textured  $Ca_3Co_{4x}O_{9+\delta}$  ceramic. In previous work, we have shown that mats composed of a mixture of nanoribbons and cylindrical nanofibers exhibit good thermoelectric properties [1]. However, it is expected that the thermoelectric properties of the compacted sample can be further improved by using mats composed of flat nanoribbons only. Primarily because nanoribbons are expected to provide more efficient packing due to their flatness compared to cylindrical nanofibers, allowing for higher densification in the green body and ceramic, but also because of their potential contribution to sample texturing since the primary particles in the nanoribbons are expected to be flatly oriented. Therefore, we investigated the influence of electrospinning conditions and precursor composition on the microstructure of the electrospun material to obtain pure nanoribbons mats [2]. We found a strong dependence of nanoribbon formation on the polymer concentration in the electrospinning precursor and discuss the possible formation mechanisms. We also point out an important step in the calcination process of the nanoribbons to achieve texturization of the primary particles. Finally, we have fabricated green bodies and ceramics from nanoribbons mats and investigated their texturing using Xray diffraction with measurement of pole figures of the (0020) lattice planes, with respect to the 4-dimensional space group symmetry, and scanning electron microscopy cross-sectional images. Good grain orientation and high crystallinity were also confirmed using selected area electron diffraction and high-resolution transmission electron microscopy. In addition, we measured the Seebeck coefficient and electrical conductivity of the nanoribbon-based samples to evaluate their thermoelectric abilities.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was financially supported by the Ministry of Science and Culture of Lower Saxony (MWK) in the frame of the Research Cooperation Lower Saxony-Israel.

- K. Kruppa, I.I. Maor, F. Steinbach, V. Beilin, M. Mann-Lahav, M. Wolf, G.S. Grader, A. Feldhoff, Electrospun Ca<sub>3</sub>Co<sub>4-x</sub>O<sub>9+δ</sub> nanofibers and nanoribbons: Microstructure and thermoelectric properties, J. Am. Ceram. Soc. 103 (2023) 1170, https://doi.org/10.1111/jace.18842
- I.I. Maor, K. Kruppa, A. Rozencweig, A. Sterzer, F. Steinbach, V. Beilin, B. Breidenstein, G.E. Shter, M. Mann-Lahav, A. Feldhoff, G.S. Grader, Superior Thermoelectric Performance of Textured Ca-<sub>3</sub>Co<sub>4-x</sub>O<sub>9+8</sub> Ceramic Nanoribbons, Adv. Funct. Mater. 33 (2023) 2304464, https://doi.org/10.1002/ adfm.202304464

## Development of low work function two-dimensional electride materials for advanced thermionic energy generation

#### Jon Goldsby

National Aeronautics and Space Adminstration, Cleveland, Ohio, USA \*E-mail: jon.c.goldsby@nasa.gov

Keywords: thermionic, density functional theory

Thermionic devices produce current by the application of a thermal gradient whereby the temperature at one electrode provides enough thermal energy to eject electrons from the metal surface. A computational -based material approach was used to determine the suitability of various materials as a practical thermionic converter. Comparisons are made between predicted and experimental measurements of Seebeck coefficients, thermionic emissions current and work function. The calculations were carried out using a projector augmented wave (PAW) method using a commercial code (Materials Design Inc.) MedeA incorporating the Vienna Ab-initio Simulation Package (VASP) as the computational engine. The calculation was based on density functional theory using the GGA-PBE-Sol exchange-correlation functional using and optimized mesh. This study makes predictions and comparison between experimental and theoretical data of electrical, structural, and crystallographic properties.

## Lattice vibration and structure dimensionality in thermoelectric sulfides

#### Emmanuel Guilmeau

CRISMAT, CNRS, Normandie Univ, ENSICAEN, UNICAEN, 14000 Caen, France E-mail: emmanuel.guilmeau@ensicaen.fr

Keywords: thermoelectric, sulfide, structure, vibration, dimensionality

Thermoelectricity offers a promising solution to address energy scarcity by enabling the efficient conversion of waste heat into useful electricity. Continued research and development in this field can lead to the development of more efficient and cost-effective thermoelectric materials, which can play a significant role in addressing the global energy challenge. In this context, numerous studies have demonstrated the potential of sulfide materials for thermoelectric applications over the temperature range 300 - 700 K. Although most materials have high thermal conductivities, recent works demonstrated that extremely low thermal conductivities could be achieved in sulfides through order/disorder phenomena, rattling dynamics, and lattice anharmonicity.

During this presentation, recent advances in synthetic minerals and new sulphide compounds will be shown. Some peculiar structural features in connection with chemical bonds, atomic and nanoscale order/disorder phenomena, lattice vibration and structure dimensionality, were carefully examined to establish rules and correlations between the crystal structures, nano-microstructures, electronic structures, vibrational and thermoelectric properties. [1-7]

- K. Maji, B. Raveau, P. Lemoine, P. Boullay, P. Acharyya, X. Shen, A. Renaud, V. Pelletier, R. Gautier, V. Carnevali, M. Fornari, B. Zhang, X. Zhou, B. Lenoir, C. Candolfi, E. Guilmeau, J. Amer. Chem. Soc. (2024).
- Z. Zeng, X. Shen, R. Cheng, O. Perez, N. Ouyang, Z. Fan, P. Lemoine, B. Raveau, E. Guilmeau, Y. Chen, Nature Comm. (2024).
- V. Carnevali, S. Mukherjee, D. Voneshen, K. Maji, E. Guilmeau, A. Powell, P. Vaqueiro, M. Fornari, J. Amer. Chem. Soc. 145 (2023) 9313.
- K. Maji, P. Lemoine, A. Renaud, B. Zhang, X. Zhou, V. Carnevali, C. Candolfi, B. Raveau, R. Al Rahal Al Orabi, M. Fornari, P. Vaqueiro, M. Pasturel, C. Prestipino, E. Guilmeau, *J. Amer. Chem.* Soc. 144 (2022) 1846.
- V. Pavan Kumar, S. Passuti, B. Zhang, S. Fujii, K. Yoshizawa, P. Boullay, S. Le Tonquesse; C. Prestipino, B. Raveau, P. Lemoine, A. Paecklar, N. Barrier, X. Zhou, M. Yoshiya, K. Suekuni, E. Guilmeau, *Angew. Chemie Int. Ed.* 61, 202210600 (2022).
- 6. P. Lemoine, G. Guélou, B. Raveau, E. Guilmeau, Angew. Chemie Int. Ed. 61 (2022) e202108686.
- C. Bourgès, Y. Bouyrie, A. Supka, R. Al Rahal Al Orabi, P. Lemoine, O. I. Lebedev, M. Ohta, K. Suekuni, V. Nassif, V. Hardy, R. Daou, M. Fornari, Y. Miyazaki, and E. Guilmeau, *J. Amer. Chem. Soc.* 140 (2018) 2186.

## Lattice defect engineering for high-performance Mg<sub>2</sub>Sn and Mg<sub>2</sub>Ge thermoelectric single crystals

#### Kei Hayashi<sup>\*</sup>, Zhicheng Huang, Hiroto Takeuchi, Yuzuru Miyazaki

Department of Applied Physics, Graduate School of Engineering, Tohoku University, Sendai, Japan \*E-mail: kei.hayashi.b5@tohoku.ac.jp

Keywords: thermoelectric performance, Mg<sub>2</sub>X, single crystal, vacancy defect, dislocation

 $Mg_2X$  (X = Si, Ge, and Sn), belonging to an antifluorite-type cubic crystal structure, has attracted attention as one of the efficient thermoelectric (TE) materials. Most research has been dedicated to enhancing its dimensionless figure-of-merit zT by preparing  $Mg_2(Si, Ge, Sn)$ polycrystals (PCs) to attain low thermal conductivity.

In this study, we focused on  $Mg_2X$  single crystals (SCs), which generally have higher carrier mobility than PCs. An issue to be addressed is to reduce thermal conductivity. For this purpose, we prepared nondoped and elementary-doped  $Mg_2Sn$  SCs by a melting method under an Ar atmosphere [1–5]. All SCs contained lattice defects such as Mg vacancies ( $V_{Mg}$ ), dislocation cores (DCs), and Sn-rich nanoprecipitates.  $V_{Mg}$  formed nanoparticle-like  $V_{Mg}$  regions. Owing to these lattice defects, the thermal conductivity of the SCs was lower than that of the PCs. In contrast, the electrical conductivity of the SCs was higher than that of the PCs, indicating that the lattice defects less affected electronic transport. The maximum *zT* values reached 0.83 at 650 K for an n-type Sb+B-codoped Mg<sub>2</sub>Sn SC and 0.44 at 700 K for a p-type Li+B-codoped Mg<sub>2</sub>Sn SC.

To further improve p-type TE performance, we prepared nondoped and Li-doped Mg<sub>2</sub>Ge SCs, because a Li-doped Mg<sub>2</sub>Ge PC showed the highest zT = 0.45 at 700 K among p-type Mg<sub>2</sub>X PCs [6]. Similar to the Mg<sub>2</sub>Sn SCs, the melting method was used. The nondoped and Li-doped Mg<sub>2</sub>Ge SCs contained V<sub>Mg</sub> and DCs. V<sub>Mg</sub> regions were also found in both SCs. The Li-doping changed the conduction type of Mg<sub>2</sub>Ge from n-type to p-type. Compared with the Li-doped Mg<sub>2</sub>Ge PC [6], a lower thermal conductivity and a higher electrical conductivity were realized.

These results demonstrate the potential of  $Mg_2Sn$  and  $Mg_2Ge$  SCs with engineered lattice defects for TE applications.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was partly supported by the Grant-in-Aid for Scientific Research (B) from the Ministry of Education, Culture, Sports, Science, and Technology of Japan (Nos. 17H03398, 22H02161) and partly based on collaborative research between Sumitomo Metal Mining Co., Ltd. and Tohoku University, which is part of the Vision Co-creation Partnership.

- 1. W. Saito et al., Control of the Thermoelectric Properties of Mg<sub>2</sub>Sn Single Crystals via Point-Defect Engineering. Sci. Rep. 10, 2020 (2020).
- 2. W. Saito et al., Enhancing the Thermoelectric Performance of Mg<sub>2</sub>Sn Single Crystals via Point Defect Engineering and Sb Doping. ACS Appl. Mater. Interfaces. 12, 57888–57897 (2020).
- Z. Huang et al., Realizing p-type Mg<sub>2</sub>Sn Thermoelectrics via Ga-Doping and Point Defect Engineering. ACS Appl. Energy Mater. 4, 13044–13050 (2021).
- 4. K. Hayashi, Enhancement of thermoelectric performance of Mg<sub>2</sub>Sn single crystals via lattice-defect engineering. JSAP Rev. 2022, 220403 (2022).
- Z. Huang et al., Enhanced thermoelectric performance of p-type Mg<sub>2</sub>Sn single crystals via multiscale defect engineering. J. Mater. Chem A. 11, 2652–2660 (2023).
- 6. H. Kamila et al., Non-Rigid Band Structure in Mg<sub>2</sub>Ge for Improved Thermoelectric Performance. Adv. Sci. 7, 2000070 (2020).

## Revealing key chemical insights in solution-based thermoelectric material synthesis

#### Christine Fiedler, Maria Ibáñez\*

Institute of Science and Technology Austria, Am Campus 1, 3400 Klosterneuburg, Austria \*E-mail: mibanez@ist.ac.at

Thermoelectric materials allow for the reversible conversion between heat and electricity and have many potential applications. However, the current fabrication methods that have demonstrated superior performances to date are prohibitively expensive, rendering them impractical for large-scale applications. An alternative and promising approach, known as solution-processing, has gained significant traction. This method involves a series of steps, including nanoparticle synthesis, purification (leaching and annealing), and densification into a pelletized material.<sup>1</sup> A notable lack of attention has been given to the process, despite the crucial chemical changes occurring in each step, especially beyond particle synthesis. Even more alarming is the fact that many published works, even those that have been breakthroughs in the field, lack detailed reporting of these steps, hindering reproducibility across different laboratories.

Herein, we shed light on the importance of these steps, focusing primarily on the one most overlooked: the purification of the particles. Our investigation centers on a water-based, surfactant-free solution synthesis, as it is potentially one of the cheapest methods to produce thermoelectric powders. The material of choice for this study is SnSe, a highly relevant thermoelectric material. We demonstrate and rationalize the impact of the number of leaching steps, purification solvent, annealing, and annealing atmosphere on the material's thermoelectric performance. Our study reveals the origin of the observed differences, stemming from changes in composition, such as Sn:Se ratio, and impurity content in the powder which is dependent upon the steps prior to the consolidation. Even minor compositional changes, mostly undetectable by conventional analytical techniques, lead to distinct consolidated materials with different compositions but also different types and concentrations of defects. Additionally, the profound effect on charge carrier and phonon transport in the material is demonstrated and explained.

Our primary objective with this work is to emphasize the paramount importance of understanding the chemistry and identifying key chemical species throughout the process to optimize material performance. Furthermore, we advocate for detailed reporting of all steps, including purification, as it is imperative for material reproducibility.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was financially supported by ISTA and the Werner Siemens Foundation.

#### References

Fiedler, C., Kleinhanns, T., Garcia, M., Lee, S., Calcabrini, M., Ibáñez, M. Solution-Processed Inorganic Thermoelectric Materials: Opportunities and Challenges. Chemistry of Materials, 34(19), 8471– 8489, (2022).

### Toward a true continuous healthcare system

#### Woochul Kim

School of Mechanical Engineering Yonsei University, South Korea E-mail: woochul@yonsei.ac.kr

Continuous monitoring of vital signs and timely treatment are the future trends for wearable and implantable healthcare systems, which inevitably require ceaseless power supply. Discharged batteries could be detrimental to the health of people, such as those with type 1 diabetes, whose glucose levels should be monitored and controlled through timely insulin injections. Here, we demonstrate a feasible true continuous healthcare system for type 1 diabetes by combining a low-energy micropump, self-powered glucose sensor, and ceaseless power supply. By converting body heat into electricity to charge a battery for 790.1 s, we acquired 136.8 mJ (100%) of energy, which was used to operate the micropump and sensor for 74.6 mJ (54.5%) and 25.3 mJ (18.5%), respectively; the surplus 36.9 mJ (27.0%) was stored in the battery. In addition, we are going to present our recent efforts to build a compact vital band which contains wearable sensors, unintermittent power supply, and flexible circuits located at a single location (i.e., the forearm). The vital band is specially designed for the continuous monitoring of the core body temperature (CBT) with novel CBT sensors and pulse rate sensor operated by intermittent power. These findings can help realize a true continuous healthcare system in the future.

## Quantum materials for thermoelectrics

#### Qiang Li

Department of Physics and Astronomy, Stony Brook University, USA Condensed Matter Physics and Materials Science Division, Brookhaven National Laboratory, USA E-mail: qiangli@bnl.gov

Keywords: quantum materials, topological insulators, Dirac and Wey semimetals, thermoelectrics

Topological quantum materials, such as topological insulators and Dirac/Weyl semimetals, have a linear energy-momentum dispersion that leads to the electrons near the Fermi energy behaving like ultra-relativistic Dirac fermions.<sup>1</sup> Many of the topological quantum materials of current interests originate from the thermoelectric compounds well known in 1950s and 1960s. In this talk, I will present our studies on topological quantum materials, with an emphasis on topological thermoelectrics research in the past, present and future. Dirac linear dispersion can give rise to large Seebeck effect and Nernst effect in a magnetic field.<sup>2,3</sup> Combined with an ultrahigh carrier mobility, topological thermoelectric materials open a new avenue for the solid-state heat and electricity conversion, and quantum information science and technologies in a wide range of temperature.

- 1. Q. Li, et al Nature Physics 12, 550 (2016).
- 2. Q. Li Nature Materials 18, 1267 (2019).
- 3. P. Li et al, Nature Communications 13, 7612 (2022).

### Utilizing magnetism to enhance thermoelectric materials

#### <u>Takao Mori<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Naohito Tsujii<sup>1</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>Research Center for Materials Nanoarchitectonics (MANA), National Institute for Materials Science (NIMS), Tsukuba, Japan

<sup>2</sup>Graduate School of Pure and Applied Science, University of Tsukuba, Tsukuba, Japan \*E-mail: MORI.Takao@nims.go.jp

Keywords: thermoelectric, Seebeck enhancement, magnetism, magnon drag

Development of thermoelectric (TE) materials is important, for energy saving via waste heat power generation [1], and IoT power sources [2]. For high TE performance, traditional tradeoffs must be overcome, between Seebeck coefficient S and electrical conductivity s, and between electrical and thermal conductivity k [3].

For overcoming the first tradeoff, we have found that magnetism can be utilized to enhance the Seebeck coefficient and overall power factor (PF). Coupling of the electrical carriers with magnetic moments, can lead to magnon drag which was known from long ago in Fe, etc. to lead to increase in *S* at low temperatures. However, the recent advancement is the demonstration that magnon drag can actually lead to high performance, i.e. high power factors at higher temperatures, namely for  $CuFeS_2$  chalcopyrite [4]. Recently, magnon drag was also proposed as the origin [5] of the huge power factor in metastable Fe<sub>2</sub>VAl-based thin films [6].

We have also discovered TE enhancement in paramagnetic systems, namely we show that in cases with strong coupling of the electrical carriers with the magnetic moments, this interaction "drags" the carriers, leading to an increase in the effective mass which enhances the Seebeck coefficient. This will be detrimental to the mobility but overall, enhancements to the power factor have been able to be realised in high performance TE systems, the first example demonstrated being CuGaTe<sub>2</sub> [7]. Later this interaction was named as paramagnon drag. Magnetic ion doping enhancement has also been demonstrated for  $Bi_2Te_3$  [8], skutterudite [9] for example.

Spin fluctuation was found to enhance the Seebeck coefficient in the Heusler alloy  $Fe_2VAI$  [10]. Spin entropy is also known to enhance *S* [11].

I will discuss the recent developments in magnetic enhanced thermoelectrics, including further experimental studies on spin fluctuation enhancement and improved understanding of the first antiferromagnetic magnon drag analysis in its role to enhance power factor.

#### Acknowledgments

Members of JST Mirai Large-scale Project are thanked, especially Prof. M. Ogata, Prof. Y. Matsuura of U. Tokyo.

- 1. L. E. Bell, Science 321, 1457 (2008), JOM, 68, 2673-2679 (2016).
- 2. Sci. Tech. Adv. Mater. 19, 836 (2018), MRS Bulletin, 43, 176 (2018).
- 3. T. Mori, Small 13, 1702013 (2017), Energies, 15, 7307 (2022).
- 4. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 54, 12909 (2015).
- 5. Phys. Rev. B, 104, 214421 (2021).
- 6. Nature 576 (7785) 85-90 (2019).
- 7. J. Mater. Chem. A, 5, 7545 (2017).
- 8. Mater. Today Phys., 9, 100090 (2019).
- 9. ACS Appl. Energy Mater., 6, 18, 9646–9656 (2023).
- 10. Science Advances, 5, eaat5935 (2019).
- 11. Sci. Tech. Adv. Mater., 22, 583-596 (2021).

## MgSb-based materials for tellurium-free thermoelectric devices

<u>Kornelius Nielsch<sup>1,2,3\*</sup></u>, Pingjun Ying<sup>1</sup>, Ran He<sup>1</sup>, Heiko Reith<sup>1</sup>, S. Lehmann<sup>1</sup>, Amin Bahrami<sup>1</sup>, Shiyang He<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Leibniz Institute for Solid State and Materials Research, Dresden, Germany <sup>2</sup>Institute of Material Science, Technical Univ. of Dresden, Germany <sup>3</sup>Institute of Applied Physics, Technical Univ. of Dresden, Germany \*E-mail: k,nielsch@ifw-dresden.de

**Keywords**: thermoelectric generator, atomic layer deposition, magnesium-based thermoelectric materials, tellurium-free, Zintl phase materials

Commercial thermoelectric modules have relied on  $Bi_2Te_3$ -based compounds because of their unparalleled thermoelectric properties at temperatures associated with low-grade heat (<550 K). However, the scarcity of elemental Te greatly limits the applicability of such modules. Here we report the performance of thermoelectric modules assembled from  $Bi_2Te_3$ -substitute compounds, including p-type MgAgSb and n-type Mg<sub>3</sub>(Sb,Bi)<sub>2</sub>,<sup>1</sup> by using a simple, versatile, and thus scalable processing routine. For a temperature difference of ~250 K, whereas a single-stage module displayed a conversion efficiency of ~8.5%,<sup>2,3</sup>, a module using segmented n-type legs displayed a record efficiency of ~8.2% that is comparable to the state-of-the-art  $Bi_2Te_3$ -based thermoelectric modules. Our work demonstrates the feasibility and scalability of high-performance thermoelectric modules based on sustainable elements for recovering low-grade heat and thermoelectric cooling (dT<sub>max</sub>=72 K).



Fig. 1: Multi-segmented thermoelectric module based on Mg<sub>3</sub>(Sb/Bi)<sub>2</sub> and MgAgSb.



Fig. 2: Conversion efficiency of thermoelectric modules

- 1. P. Ying, R. He, R., J. Mao, K. Nielsch, *et al.*, "Towards tellurium-free thermoelectric modules for power generation from low-grade heat", *Nat Commun* **12**, 1121 (2021).
- P. Ying, H. Reith, K. Nielsch, R. He, "Geometrical Optimization and Thermal-Stability Characterization of Te-Free Thermoelectric Modules Based on MgAgSb/Mg<sub>3</sub>(Bi,Sb)<sub>2</sub>", *Small* 18, 2201183 (2022).
- P. Ying, L. Wilkens, H. Reith, N. Perez Rodriguez, X. Hong, Q. Lu, C. Hess, K. Nielsch, R. He, "A robust thermoelectric module based on MgAgSb/Mg<sub>3</sub>(Sb, Bi)<sub>2</sub> with a conversion efficiency of 8.5% and a maximum cooling of 72 K", *Energy & Environmental Science* 15, 2557 (2022).

# Thermoelectrics for the effective utilization of synthetic fuels in automotive

<u>Michihiro Ohta</u><sup>1\*</sup> Kishor Kumar Johari<sup>1</sup>, Yoshinori Tsuchiya<sup>2</sup>, Masaki Naruke<sup>3</sup>, Kazuki Imasato<sup>1</sup>, Takao Ishida<sup>1</sup>, Atsushi Yamamoto<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Global Zero Emission Research Center, National Institute of Advanced Industrial Science and Technology (AIST), Tsukuba, Japan <sup>2</sup>Research Association of Automotive Internal Combustion Engines (AICE), Tsukuba, Japan <sup>3</sup>Japan Automobile Research Institute (JARI), Tsukuba, Japan \*E-mail: ohta.michihiro@aist.go.jp

Keywords: thermoelectrics, synthetic fuel, waste heat recovery, automotive

Synthetic fuels (e–fuels) will definitely have an important role to play in combating climate change. The efficiency for e–fuel utilization needs to imorove for automotive use. The purpose of this project is to improve the thermal efficiency by  $\sim$ 50% through the waste heat recovery including thermoelectrics, thermal insulation coating, heat exchanger, organic Rankine cycle and so on. This talk discusses our efforts to develop advanced thermoelectrics for effective utilization of synthetic fuel in automotive.

In this work, we developed robust and cost–effective  $Mg_3(Sb,Bi)_2$ –based thermoelectrics for automotive. The thermoelectric performance (avereage figure of merit *zT*) of  $Mg_3(Sb,Bi)_2$ was successfully enhanced in the exhaust temperature range by tuning the Sb/Bi ratio. The electrodes were developed to provide good electrical contact for  $Mg_3(Sb,Bi)_2$ –based thermoelectric elements. Maximum conversion efficiency of ~3.5% was demonstrated in the prototype module composed of *n*–type  $Mg_3(Sb,Bi)_2$  and *p*–type  $Bi_2Te_3$  when the hot–side and cold–side temperatures were maintained at 473 K and 298 K, respectively. The improvement of thermal efficiency in the automobile through the developed thermoelectrics was simulated by GT–SUITE software.

#### Acknowledgments

This work is supported by a grant project (JPNP21014) conducted by The Research Association of Automotive Internal Combustion Engines (AICE) with support from the New Energy and Industrial Technology Development Organization (NEDO).

## Synthesis of SrTiO<sub>3</sub>/TiN Core/Shell-type nanoparticles and thermoelectric properties of their nanocomposites consolidated by Spark Plasma Sintering

Michitaka Ohtaki<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Seiha Nagasaki<sup>1</sup>, Koichiro Suekuni<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Interdisciplinary Graduate School of Engineering Sciences, Kyushu University, Kasuga, Fukuoka, Japan

<sup>2</sup>Transdisciplinary Research and Education Center for Green Technologies, Kyushu University,

Kasuga, Fukuoka, Japan

\*E-mail: ohtaki@kyudai.jp

Keywords: strontium titanate, titanium nitride, heterostructure, diffusion barrier

Nanostructure engineering is nowadays the most important and promising pathway to higher *ZT* values. However, in principle, the complex nanostructures are thermodynamically non-equilibrial and hence thermally unstable, tending to transform toward energetically favour-able coarser and simpler structures through thermal diffusion and grain growth. In this paper, we have employed titanium nitride (TiN) as heat-resistant diffusion barriers in oxide matrix.

Strontium titanate SrTiO<sub>3</sub> (STO), known as one of the most promising oxide candidates for TE applications, was used as the oxide matrix with large thermopower due to its heavy electron effective mass as large as  $m^* = 6-7 m_0$ . Titanium nitride TiN was employed as thermally durable conductive layers to be inserted to grain boundaries of the STO matrix. In order to facilitate a good coverage of the grain boundaries with TiN, we first synthesized STO/ TiO<sub>2</sub> core/shell nanoparticles via sol-gel prosess by using hydrolysis of titanium alkoxide. The TiO<sub>2</sub> shell was subsequently converted to TiN by nitrization at 1300 °C under flowing NH<sub>3</sub>.The STO/TiN core/shell nanoparticles thus obtained were consolidated by using spark plasma sintering (SPS) to densify the oxide/nitride composites. The sintered samples were examined by powder XRD and SEM/EDS. The TE properties of the samples, the electrical conductivity  $\sigma$ , the Seebeck coefficient *S*, and the thermal conductivity  $\kappa$ , were measured from room temperature to 800 °C for the sample pieces cut from the sintered bodies.

The  $\sigma$  values of the samples increased with increasing TiN content, reflecting the metallic characters of the nitride. Accordingly, the absolute values of the negative Seebeck coefficient, |S|, decreased with increasing TiN content. The  $\kappa$  values of the samples were always higher for the samples containing TiN than that of neat STO, showing larger electron thermal conductivity for the samples with TiN as expected. However, most interestingly, the lattice thermal conductivity was lowest for the sample containing the largest proportion of TiN; this result can be attributed to enhanced phonon scattering at oxide/nitride heterointerfaces at a large quantity in the sample. As a result, a highest *ZT* value among the samples was obtained for the sample containing 20 wt% (nominal) TiN as *ZT* = 0.14 at 800 °C, being 8 times higher than that of the STO sample without TiN.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by JSPS KAKENHI JP22H01779.

### Thermoelectric applications: from materials optimization to devices

<u>António Pereira Gonçalves</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Rodrigo Coelho<sup>1</sup>, Duarte Moço<sup>1</sup>, Elsa Branco Lopes<sup>1</sup>, Francisco P. Brito<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>C2TN, DECN, Instituto Superior Técnico, Universidade de Lisboa, Estrada Nacional 10, 2695-066, Bobadela, Portugal <sup>2</sup>MEtRICs, DEM, Universidade do Minho, 4800-058 Guimarães, Portugal \*E-mail: apg@ctn.tecnico.ulisboa.pt

Keywords: thermoelectric materials optimization, weighted mobility, thermoelectric devices

Thermoelectric devices display the unique ability to directly convert heat into usable electricity, and vice-versa, without moving parts or the circulation of fluids, typically featuring a modular geometry. This gives them a great versatility and the potential to be employed in a wide range of applications, contributing for the mitigation of the global energy crisis. However, the toxicity of commercially available thermoelectric devices, the scarcity of some constituting elements and the low efficiencies (~5%) are issues that still need to be addressed in order to increase their practical use.

Recent advances in preparation techniques, simulation capabilities and materials science have led to the development of new thermoelectric materials that are not only more efficient, but also more economical and environmentally sustainable. Nevertheless, the thermoelectric properties of such materials depend on a variety of factors, like composition, presence of impurities, porosity or grain size, with their optimization generally being strongly dependent on the type of material and preparation/shaping conditins. Furthermore, despite the recent advances, the inclusion of the new materials into usable bulk thermoelectric devices is dependent on issues such as reactivity at working temperatures, the need for diffusion barriers or the quality of contacts.

This communication presents an example of the path from the optimization of materials to the development of thermoelectric devices. The thermoelectric materials used in this work are p-type semiconductors based on tetrahedrite (Cu12Sb4S13, a naturally abundant sulfosalt mineral), which are cheaper and less toxic than current commercial materials, making them a good alternatives for applications. The strategy for optimizing their thermoelectric properties and the use of weighted mobility are described. The challenges of manufacturing thermoelectric modules for applications close to room temperature using materials based on tetrahedrite (p-type) and magnesium silicide (n-type) are discussed, and several examples are presented on the thermal stability, diffusion barriers, device assembly, and computer simulations applying these emerging materials.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was partially supported by Fundação para a Ciência e a Tecnologia (FCT), grant numbers UID/Multi/04349/2019 (C2TN—Center for Nuclear Sciences and Technologies). R.C. and D.M. were funded by FCT through the contracts number UI/BD/150713/2020 and PD/BD/135926/2018, respectively.

#### Diamond-type copper chalcogenides for thermoelectric applications

#### Anthony V Powell\*, Alaa S.M. Aldowiesh

Department of Chemistry, University of Reading, Reading, UK \*E-mail: a.v.powell@reading.ac.uk

Keywords: chalcogenides, neutron diffraction, magnetism, electrical transport, thermal conductivity

Binary copper chalcogenides,  $Cu_{2,\delta}Q$ , (Q= S, Se), exhibit remarkable thermoelectric performance at elevated temperatures. Key to this high performance is the high mobility of copper cations within the chalcogenide matrix. However, this mobility also leads to degradation of the materials under operating conditions of a thermoelectric devices. At high temperatures,  $Cu_{2,\delta}Q$  phases adopt structures related to that of antifluorite, in which copper cations are predominantly tetrahedrally coordinated by sulphur. This has motivated us to investigate a variety of complex copper chalcogenides, containing the same  $CuQ_4$  structural unit that is present in  $Cu_{2,\delta}Q$  at high-temperatures, as candidate thermoelectric materials.

These investigations have included the preparation and characterization of materials related to kesterite and stannite. Quaternary chalcogenides,  $Cu_2BCQ_4$  (B = Zn, Fe, Mn, Co, C = Ge, Sn) of the kesterite and stannite family adopt tetragonal, diamond-like crystal structures. These may be considered as ordered derivatives of zinc blende, in which all cations are tetrahedrally coordinated. The two structures differ in the distribution of copper cations over the tetrahedral sites. Investigation of materials in the series  $Cu_{2+x}BGe_{1-x}Se_4$  (B = Zn, Fe;  $0.0 \le x \le$ 0.15) demonstrates that at the same level of substitution, *x*, the presence of the magnetic Fe<sup>2+</sup> cation enhances the figure of merit by *ca*. 67 % compared to that of the material containing non-magnetic Zn<sup>2+</sup>. Electron doping through the introduction of selenium vacancies, leads to a further substantial increase in the maximum figure of merit of materials  $Cu_2FeGeSe_{4-\delta}$ , which reaches a value of ZT = 0.47 at d = 0.10.

In an effort to exploit further the beneficial impact of a magnetic cation on thermoelectric performance, investigations have extended to materials  $Cu_2MGeSe_4$  containing the magnetic ions,  $M = Mn^{2+}$ ,  $Co^{2+}$ . Powder neutron diffraction reveals differences in the detailed structure of the quaternary Fe-, Mn- and Co-containing phases, each of which crystallizes in a different space group. Neutron diffraction data also demonstrate that only the Mn-containing material undergoes a transition to a long-range magnetically ordered structure at low temperature. The quaternary selenides serve as parent materials for the investigation of the impact on structural and transport properties of chemical substitution. In particular, isovalent substitution in materials of general formula  $Cu_2Fe_{1-x}M_xGeSe_4$  (M = Mn, Co) increases the average figure of merit over the temperature range  $400 \le T/K \le 875$ , Synchrotron powder X-ray diffraction data suggest this is associated with suppression of a phase transition that occurs in the parent (x = 0) phase. Further improvements in the maximum figure of merit are achieved through partial substitution of iron by cobalt, leading to ZT = 0.53 at 800 K at x = 0.075. This arises from simultaneous improvements in the electrical conductivity and Seebeck coefficient.

# Spin depedenent thermoelectric and magnetocaloric effects in perovskite oxides

#### Mahendiran Ramanathan

Department of Physics, National University of Singapore, Singapore-117551, Republic of Singapore E-mail: phyrm@nus.edu.sg

Keywords: longitudinal and transverse thermopowers, magnetocaloric effect, magnetic refrigeration, perovskits oxides

Following the discovery of spin Seebeck effect in magnetic metals and oxides, there is a growing increasing interest in spin based thermoelectricty in vatious materials from the perspectives of fundamental physics and potential applications. In particular, anomalous Nernst effect- the generation of electrical voltage transverse to the applied magnetic field and the temperature gradient in a sample is gaining much attention besides the spin Seebeck effect. The former effect does not need additional non-magnetic layer unlike the later. However, availabe studies on the anomalous Nernst effect in oxides are very few. In the first part of the talk, we give an overview of longitudial and transverse magnetothemolectricty, namely magnetothermpower and anomalous Nernst effect in Mn, Co and Ru based perovskite oxides and discuss their connecctions to magnetization and magnetic refrigeration which exploits magnetic or spin entropy change. Correlations between the magnetic entropy change and magneothermpower in selected compounds will be discussed.

#### Acknowledgments

R. M. acknowledges the Ministry of Education, Singapore (Grant numbers A-8000924-00-00 and A8000462-00-00).

- 1. M. Manikandan, A. Ghosh, and R. Mahendiran, Anomalous Nernst effect in microwave sytheiszed La0.5Sr0.5CoO3, J. Phys. Chem. C 126, 1152 (2022).
- A. Ghosh, M. Manikandan, and R. Mahendiran, Anomalous Nernst effect in perovskite La0.5Ca0.5CoO3, IEEE Trans. Magn. 58, 1301005(2022).
- 3. A. Ghosh, A. Chanda, M. Manikandan, and R. Mahendiran, Rare earth size dependence of Nernst thermopower in R0.6Sr0.4CoO3 (R = La, Pr, Nd), J. Magn. Magn. Matter. 537, 168240 (2021).

## From Heusler compounds to thermoelectric applications: Challenges and opportunities

<u>Geoffrey Roy<sup>1,2\*</sup></u>, Mathieu Delcroix<sup>1</sup>, Valentin Marchal-Marchant<sup>1</sup>, Camille van der Rest<sup>1</sup>, Pascal J.Jacques<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Mechanics, Materials and Civil Engineering, UCLouvain, Louvain-la-Neuve, Belgium <sup>2</sup>Thermo Power SRL, Limal, Belgium \*E-mail: geoffrey.roy@uclouvain.com

Keywords: thermoelectrics, Heusler, modules

Thermoelectric systems are solid-state devices used to convert heat into electricity or heat pumping using Seebeck and Peltier effect, respectively. While having competitive advantages such as ultra-long lifetime and virtually no maintenance costs, this technology has always been limited to niche applications such as space probe power or special electronic cooling. This limitation can be attributed to (i) the scarcity of the constitutive elements (Te, Ge,...) and the (ii) the performances of usual thermoelectric materials. While recent developments in the field mainly focussed on tackling these challenges, the time-to-market of new generations of thermoelectrics is still too long to have a significant impact in our path to a sustainable world. Indeed, going from new thermoelectric materials to modules involves to overcome many challenges in terms of joining, contact resistances, thermal stability while keeping the lowest processing costs as possible.

 $Fe_2VA1$  Heusler compound is a good candidate because of the large availability of its constitutive elements and its appealing thermoelectric performances at room temperature [1]. In this talk, we will present the main results obtained in our quest to large-scale thermoelectric applications: starting from  $Fe_2VA1$  synthesis and characterization [2,3] to its integration in conventional thermoelectric modules [4] and even further by looking at alternative modules configurations [5] and innovative processes such as additive manufacturing [6].

The developed modules have been integrated in several proof-of-concept set-ups for several applications in several fields such as industrial waste heat recovery and autonomous sensors for the internet of things. Finally, this technology have been recently licensed to a start-up called Thermo Power aiming at significantly reducing waste heat and promote sustainability through the use of thermoelectricity.



Figure1. Designs of thermoelectric materials, modules and applications are interrelated and should be considered as a whole to kickstart widespreading of thermoelectric solutions.

#### Acknowledgments

The authors acknowledge the financial support from ERDF, Walloon Region, Brussels-Capital Region – Innoviris and Fund for Scientific Research-FNRS/FRIA.

- 1. Nishino, Y. (2021). Pseudogap engineering of Fe2VAl-based thermoelectric Heusler compounds. In *Thermoelectric Energy Conversion* (pp. 143–156). Woodhead Publishing.
- van der Rest, C., Dupont, V., Erauw, J. P., & Jacques, P. J. (2020). On the reactive sintering of Heusler Fe2VAl-based thermoelectric compounds. *Intermetallics*, 125, 106890.
- Van der Rest, C., Schmitz, A., & Jacques, P. J. (2018). On the characterisation of antisite defects and ordering in off-stoichiometric Fe2VAl-based Heusler compounds by X-ray anomalous diffraction. *Acta Materialia*, 142, 193–200.
- Roy, G., Van Der Rest, C., Heymans, S., Quintin, E., Dupont, V., Erauw, J. P., ... & Jacques, P. J. (2019). Global Analysis of Influence of Contacts on Heusler-Based Thermoelectric Modules. *Journal of Electronic Materials*, 48, 5390–5402.
- Delcroix, M., Roy, G., Marchal-Marchant, V., van der Rest, C. & Jacques, P. (2023). Investigating Co-Sintering as an Assembly Method for Transverse Thermoelectric Generator. In *European Conference on Thermoelectrics (ECT2023)*.
- 6. Delcroix, M., Roy, G., van der Rest, C., Marchal-Marchant, V. & Jacques, P. (2022). Additive manufacturing of thermoelectric modules based on Fe2VAl Heusler compound, a faisability study. In *European Conference on Thermoelectrics (ECT2022)*.

### **Ductile thermoelectric materials**

#### Xun Shi<sup>1\*</sup>, Pengfei Qiu<sup>1</sup>, Tian-ran Wei<sup>2</sup>, Lidong Chen<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>State Key Laboratory of High Performance Ceramics and Superfine Microstructure, Shanghai Institute of Ceramics, Chinese Academy of Sciences, Shanghai 200050, China <sup>2</sup>State Key Laboratory of Metal Matrix Composites, School of Materials Science and Engineering, Shanghai Jiao Tong University, Shanghai 200240, China \*E-mail: xshi@mail.sic.ac.cn

Keywords: type your, keywords here, separated, by commas

Flexible thermoelectrics is a synergy of flexible electronics and thermoelectric energy conversion. To date, state-of-the-art thermoelectrics is based on inorganic semiconductors that afford high electron mobility but lack in mechanical flexibility. By contrast, organic materials are amply flexible but low in electrical mobility and power output; the inorganic-organic hybrid design is a viable material-level option but has critical device-level issues for practical application. In this talk, we report the recently discovered ductile inorganic thermoelectric materials such as Ag<sub>3</sub>S and its alloys. They are typical semiconductors with tunable thermoelectric performance. At the same time, they are highly flexible and plastic, which are similar with the mechanical properties of metals. Furthermore, Upon compositional optimization, these silver chalcogenides reached a delicate balance between high carrier mobility, power factor, a figure of merit and good mechanical flexibility. The good thermoelectric figures of merit in flexible inorganic materials are achieved, opening a new avenue of flexible thermoelectrics. High electrical mobility yielded a normalized maximum power densitynear room temperature, orders of magnitude higher than organic devices and organic-inorganic hybrid devices. These results promised an emerging paradigm and market of wearable thermoelectrics.

# Low apparent thermal conductivity of a single nanopillar mediated by surface phonon polaritons

#### Sunmi Shin

Department of Mechanical Engineering, National University of Singapore, Singapore E-mail: mpeshin@nus.edu.sg

Keywords: nanoscale heat transfer, nanoribbon, low thermal conductivity, surface phonon polaritons

Independent control of thermoelectric (TE) properties, determined by intrinsic electronic and lattice structures as well as their coupled properties, has been a key to enhance the figure of merit (ZT) of TE materials. Introducing nanostructures has been able to significantly suppress the thermal conductivity while maintaining electrical properties, correspondingly achieving higher ZT. It origins from the distinct length scales of mean free paths of phonons and electrons, and as such, the range to selectively tune the thermoelectric properties is limited. I introduce a new approach to manipulate heat transport leveraging surface modes, unlike traditional methods that often involve intricate adjustments to lattice parameters within solids. The surface modes are mediated by so-called surface phonon polariton (SPhP), which is a new quantum of energy coupled by optical phonons and photons. It contributes to high radiative heat loss from the surfaces, resulting in less heat conduction through the volume. It obviates the need to tailor material properties through doping, defect engineering or nanocomposites, and it mitigates the risk of degrading electrical parameters. We designed nanopillars to fully leverage the surface modes and to reduce the apparent thermal conductivity. In this talk, I will also introduce our novel experimental platform to quantify the contribution of SPhPs as well as to measure the apparent thermal conductivity in an individual nanopillar.
# The impact of incipient ionic conductivity in the low thermal conductivity of tetrahedrite

#### Paz Vaqueiro

Department of Chemistry, University of Reading, Whiteknights, Reading RG6 6DX, UK E-mail: p.vaqueiro@reading.ac.uk

Keywords: lattice thermal conductivity, neutron scattering, sulfides

The thermoelectric performance of tetrahedrites, which are minerals composed predominantly of environmentally-friendly and abundant copper and sulfur, is currently attracting considerable interest. Tetrahedrites, which are *p*-type materials with low lattice thermal conductivities, crystallise in a collapsed sodalite structure in which corner-sharing CuS<sub>4</sub> tetrahedra form cages. Each cage contains an octahedral cluster formed by six trigonal-planar copper cations. The origin of low thermal conductivity in tetrahedrite,  $Cu_{12}Sb_4S_{13}$  has been previously attributed to the rattling vibrations of the trigonal-planar copper ions and has also been linked to a phonon instability arising from a low-temperature phase transition. Analysis of neutron and synchrotron X-ray diffraction data collected on tetrahedrite shows that copper rattling is a direct consequence of a tetragonal-to-cubic phase transition at 90 K, which results in a sharp increase, by approximately 200%, of the atomic displacement parameters of the trigonalplanar copper cations.<sup>1</sup> This phase transition occurs because of the orbital degeneracy of the highest occupied 3d cluster orbitals of the copper clusters found inside the sodalite cages. In the cubic phase, the trigonal-planar copper cations form regular octahedral  $Cu_6^{7+}$  clusters, which are electronically degenerate. Below 90 K, the octahedral Cu<sub>6</sub><sup>7+</sup> clusters undergo a Jahn-Teller distortion, resulting in the formation of square-pyramidal Cu<sub>5</sub><sup>7+</sup> clusters. The Jahn-Teller electronic instability which leads to the formation of the pentameric  $Cu_s^{7+}$  clusters, suppresses copper rattling vibrations due to the strengthening of direct copper-copper interactions.

At temperatures above 200 K, quasielastic neutron scattering (QENS) measurements on tetrahedrite,  $Cu_{12}Sb_4S_{13}$ , and copper-rich tetrahedrite,  $Cu_{14}Sb_4S_{13}$ , combined with molecular dynamics simulations, reveal that copper ion diffusion occurs.<sup>2</sup> However, although the copper ions are mobile between 200 and 400 K, they are largely trapped inside the sodalite cages. Analysis of inelastic neutron scattering (INS) data reveals the presence of a low-energy optical mode at 3-4 meV, which can be attributed to the intra-cage diffusion of the trigonal-planar copper ions, rather than to rattling. This low-energy optical mode, which softens on cooling revealing strong anharmonicity, is capable of strongly scattering the heat-carrying acoustic phonons, and hence lowers the lattice thermal conductivity.

- S. O. Long, A. V. Powell, S. Hull, F. Orlandi, C. C. Tang, A. R. Supka, M. Fornari and <u>P. Vaquei-ro</u>, Jahn-Teller driven electronic instability in thermoelectric tetrahedrite, *Adv. Funct. Mater.*, **30**, 1909409 (2020).
- S. Mukherjee, D. J. Voneshen, A. Duff, P. Goddard, A. V. Powell and P. Vaqueiro, Beyond rattling: tetrahedrites as incipient ionic conductors, *Adv. Mater.*, 35, 2306088 (2023).

## T1.3 Emerging Materials and Technologies for Solar Cells and Solar Fuel Technologies

# Emerging technologies for photocarrier mobility mapping in thin-film solar cells

Giovanni Fanchini\*, Cameron Reeve, Noah B. Stocek

Department of Physics & Astronomy, The University of Western Ontario, London ON, N6A 3K7, Canada \*E-mail: gfanchin@uwo.ca

Keywords: solar cells, photocarrier mobility, inaging

As far as the utilization of semiconducting materials in solar cells is concerned, a parameter that is critically important is the drift mobility of photogenerated charge carriers, on which the solar cell photoconversion efficiency is highly dependent. However, information on the photocarrier drift mobility in solar cells has been so far relying only on single data-point measurements, even if cross-sectional photocarrier mobility mapping would be highly desirable. Here, we present a review of time-domain photocarrier mobility measurement techniques that will include time of flight (TOF) methods and charge extraction by linearly increasing voltage (CELIV).[1,2] We will then focus on the efforts from our team [3] concerning the integration of TOF and CELIV with confocal optical microscopy (COM) and scanning nearfield optical microscopy (SNOM) for direct photocarrier mobility mapping, at the nanoscale in conjunction with atomic force microscopy (AFM) topography scans. Our methodology is based on the use of near-field effects and multimolecular electron-hole recombination to achieve local sensitivity to the photocarrier mobility.[3] As monomolecular recombination of excess carriers is the most frequent radiative pathway for electrons and holes in solar cells at low power density of illumination, while multimolecular recombination dominates at high power, enhanced multimolecular recombination occurs at the confocal plane or in the near field. Thus, the CELIV signal achieved under specific conditions in COMs and SNOMs provides enhanced information on the mobility of all of the cross-sectional layers except for the focal plane or the local point illumination in the near field. For example, by scanning the focal plane along the z axis, the mobility profile can be derived. To demonstrate our technique, we use it to investigate the carrier mobility in several different types of hydrogenated amorphous silicon (a-Si:H) solar cells.[3] The mobility maps obtained by our "confocal CE-LIV" techniques correlate well with well-known depletion layer effects and the hydrogen content profile in a-Si:H when this is measured independently. Our findings are in excellent agreement with models suggesting a critical role of Si-H bonding in lovcally determining the carrier mobility in a-Si:H solar cells.

### References

- 1. G. Juška, et al. J Non-Cryst Solids, 266–269, 331–335 (2000).
- 2. A. Ashraf, et al. Appl Phys Lett, 106, 113504 (2015).
- 3. N. Stocek et al. J Appl Phys, 135, 043104 (2024).

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

## Frontiers in 2D materials for water splitting derived green energy: A focus on current challenges and future horizon

Kassa Belay Ibrahim<sup>\*</sup>, Tofik Ahmed Shifa, Elisa Moretti

Department of Molecular Sciences and Nanosystems, Ca' Foscari University of Venice, Via Torino 155, 30170 Venezia Mestre, Italy \*E-mail: kassabelay.ibrahim@unive.it

Water oxidation using efficient catalyst, which is the anodic half-reaction of water splitting, plays a critical role in generating clean and abundant H2 fuel. 2D materials have emerged as promising candidates for water oxidation due to their unique properties such as their high surface-to-volume ratio, tunable electronic band structures, and large active surface areas.<sup>1,2</sup> Yet, the key challenges of the field are (1) the activity, stability, and scalability of 2D nanostructures materials. Surface reconstruction and heterointerface engineering techniques have been employed to enhance properties such as electrical conductivity, stability, facile charge transfer, as well as to activate intrinsically active edge sites. These properties significantly influence the water oxidation performance of 2D nanostructures materials. (2) Another challenge is related to surface engineering, as the surface properties of 2D nanostructures materials greatly impact their performance in water oxidation. Optimizing the surface chemistry and morphology of 2D nanostructures materials is crucial for achieving high catalytic activity and stability. (3) Electrochemical performance is also a critical factor in the efficiency of water oxidation using 2D nanostructures materials. (4) Integration of catalysts is another challenge in the field. Strategies such as anchoring catalysts onto the surface of 2D nanostructures materials<sup>3, 4</sup> or surface confinement<sup>5</sup> have been investigated to achieve efficient water oxidation performance. Furthermore, the synthesis and characterization of 2D nanostructures materials for water oxidation require careful consideration. We will summarize the latest developments in the field, including results from our lab, highlighting the critical role of 2D composites to boost functionality toward efficient water oxidation.

- 1. K. B. Ibrahim, M.-C. Tsai, S. A. Chala, M. K. Berihun, A. W. Kahsay, T. A. Berhe, W.-N. Su and B.-J. Hwang, Journal of the Chinese Chemical Society, 2019, 66, 829-865.
- 2. K. B. Ibrahim, W.-N. Su, M.-C. Tsai, S. A. Chala, A. W. Kahsay, M.-H. Yeh, H.-M. Chen, A. D. Duma, H. Dai and B.-J. Hwang, Nano Energy, 2018, 47, 309-315.
- 3. K. B. Ibrahim, W. N. Su, M. C. Tsai, A. W. Kahsay, S. A. Chala, M. K. Birhanu, J. F. Lee and B. J. Hwang, Materials Today Chemistry, 2022, 24, 100824.
- 4. K. B. Ibrahim, T. A. Shifa, P. Moras, E. Moretti and A. Vomiero, Small, 2023, 19, 2204765.
- 5. K. B. Ibrahim, T. A. Shifa, M. Bordin, E. Moretti, H.-L. Wu and A. Vomiero, Small Methods, 2023, 7,2300348.

# Strategies for catalyst development and performance enhancement in water splitting catalysis

Tofik Ahmed Shifa<sup>1\*</sup>, Kassa Belay Ibrahim<sup>1</sup>, Alberto Vomiero<sup>1,2</sup>, Elisa Moretti<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Molecular Sciences and Nanosystems, Ca' Foscari University of Venice, Via Torino 155,30172 Venezia Mestre, Italy <sup>2</sup>Division of Materials Science, Department of Engineering Sciences and Mathematics, Luleå University of Technology, 97187 Luleå, Sweden \*E-mail address: tofikahmed.shifa@unive.it

Keywords: 2D materials, interface properties, electro-catalysis, photo-catalysis, water splitting

The generation of clean energy from water electrolysis is a feasible solution to overcome the problems of energy crisis. However, this viable route depends on the utilization of Pt, which is scarce and expensive. Designing catalysts entirely based on Earth abundant materials is, therefore, the way forward. In this regard, 2D materials (layered or non-layered), and transition metal phosphides have got copious attention. <sup>[1,2]</sup> Here, we present strategies to enhance the catalytic (electrocatalysis, photocatalysis) performance of these materials giving a particular emphasis for transition metal chalcogenides (WS2, CuS, etc), transition metal phosphorus trichalcogenides (MPX3; X=S,Se), non-layered Cr2S3 and nickel phosphides. We discuss the advantages of these materials for catalysis and the different routes available to tune their electronic states and active sites. Experimental results show that doping and hybrid material formation play a significant role in optimizing the free energy of hydrogen adsorption and desorption on the vertically oriented nanosheets of WS<sub>2</sub>. Another compelling issue in this research area is about solving the sluggish kinetics of the other half reaction (i.e OER) in water splitting catalysis. It has remained a bottleneck in realizing efficient performance. In this regard, nickel phosphide has an excellent track of performance.<sup>[3,4]</sup> We also discuss the mechanism behind the very good performance of Ni5P4 and CrOx-CuS toward electrocatalysis of OER. The metal phosphides or sulfides are not the true catalysts, rather in-situ generated metal oxides at the vicinity of phosphides/sulfides are. Moreover, We highlight the emerging layered MPX3 (M= Mn, Ni, Fe, Cu/In)<sup>[5]</sup> nanosheets as promising materials in sacrificial agent-free photocatalytic water splitting under simulated Sun light (AM 1.5G) illumination.

- 1. **T.A.Shifa** et al. Adv. Mater., 2019, 31,1804828.
- 2. T.A.Shifa and A.Vomiero: Adv. Energy Mater., 2019, 9, 1902307.
- 3. **T.A.Shifa** et al. ACS Catal. 2021, 11, 4520–4529.
- 4. T.A.Shifa et al. Chem.Eng.J. 2023, 453, 139781.
- 5. T.A.Shifa et al .Adv. Funct. Mater., 2018, 28, 1800548.

# T1.4 MATERIAL SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGIES FOR ADVANCED NUCLEAR FISSION AND FUSION ENERGY

## He ions irradiation effect of zirconium carbide solid solution ceramics

Weichao Bao<sup>1\*</sup>, Xin-Gang Wang<sup>1</sup>, Ji-Xuan Liu<sup>2</sup>, Guo-Jun Zhang<sup>2</sup>, Fangfang Xu<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>State Key Laboratory of High Performance Ceramics and Superfine Microstructure, Shanghai Institute of Ceramics, Shanghai 200050, China

<sup>2</sup>State Key Laboratory for Modification of Chemical Fibers and Polymer Materials, Institute of Functional Materials, Donghua University, Shanghai 201620, China

\*E-mail: baoweichao@mail.sic.ac.cn

Keywords: entropy increase, solid solution, irradiation effect

The high-entropy concept provides an opportunity for the design of irradiation resistance materials from nano and atomic scales. Damage accumulation, swelling, segregation, He bubbles, and void formation are found to be considerably suppressed in Ni-based singlephase concentrated solid solution alloys. Different from the metallic bond-based HEAs, highentropy ceramics (HECs) usually possess a mixture of covalent, ionic, and metallic bonds. Up to the present, there are very few related studies on the irradiation behavior of the HECs, particularly high-entropy carbide ceramics. In this work, the 540 keV He ion irradiation with a dose of  $1 \times 10^{17}$  cm<sup>-2</sup> was performed at room temperature on (TiZrNbTaW)C high-entropy carbide ceramics. Irradiation-induced structural evolution and He retention behaviors after annealing at different temperatures were examined in depth by grazing incident X-ray diffraction (GIXRD) and transmission electron microscopy (TEM). The results show that the high-entropy design can improve the irradiation resistance of carbide ceramics. Compared with ZrC, the high entropy (TiZrNbTaW)C in the meantime brings about smaller lattice expansion and the favorable structural evolution phenomena including smaller He bubbles that are evenly distributed without abnormal coarsening or aggregation, segregation, and shorter and sparser dislocation. The ZrC-based solid solution ceramics in low and medium entropy have been also prepared and irradiatied by He ions. The results show that it is not the case that the larger the entropy is, the better the irradiation resistance will be.



Figure. Reduced He ions radiation damage in a ZrC-based high-entropy ceramic

# **Evolution of structural material selection and design for operation in fusion reactor environments**

David Bowden\*, James Wade-Zhu, Alex Leide, Jack Haley Viacheslav Kuksenko

Materials Division, UK Atomic Energy Authority, Culham, UK \*E-mail: David.bowden@ukaea.uk

Keywords: structural, metallics, steel, composites, creep

Commercial fusion energy continues to advance rapidly, with programmes such as the UK Atomic Energy Authority (UKAEA) Spherical Tokamak for Energy Production (STEP), the European DEMOnstration (DEMO) reactor, United States Fusion Neuron Science Facility (FNSF) and many efforts in the private sector already well underway. One key theme throughout the development of commercial plant concepts is the requirement for greater thermodynamic efficiencies to maximise net energy output, thereby increasing the economic viability of such designs. Therefore, high-temperature coolant concepts are being explored which often exceed outlet temperatures of 550°C.

Increased outlet temperatures therefore add to the list of challenges fusion plant structural materials must endure. These high temperature effects are often synergistic, coupling with high levels of radiation damage, corrosion effects and mechanical loads, to name but a few. Conventional structural materials, such as reduced activation ferritic martensitic (RAFM) steels have well-established limitations above operating temperatures of 550°C, driven by a severely reduced creep lifetime [1]. Advanced (A)RAFM steel variants are being developed to address this, using dispersions of carbides, nitrides and in some cases oxides, to enhance the strength and operating lifetime of structural steel. The UKAEA has established a substantial programme in this area called NEURONE (NEUtron iRradiatiOn of advaNced stEels) to develop a high temperature, radiation resilient, castable steel, capable of being produced at tonnage scale by 2028. These steels are targeting operating temperatures up to 650°C. Oxide dispersion strengthened (ODS) steels offer an alternative route to widen operating temperatures further, up to 700°C. However, efforts to utilise these steels at scale have been hampered by a limited supply chain, constrained manufacturing routes and difficult joining processes.

Beyond the realms of metallics, ceramic matrix composites (CMCs) such as silicon carbide composites (SiC<sub>f</sub>/SiC) offer the capability to enable plant structural operation up to 1000°C. However, many challenges remain, particularly to address manufacture at scale, part quality, joinability and costs. The UKAEA HASTE-F (Hybrid Approach to Silicon carbide Technologies and Engineering in Fusion) project is exploring alternative approaches to SiC<sub>f</sub>/SiC manufacture, using a flexible pre-impregnation system to develop parts of greater complexity with reduced residual porosity levels compared to conventional manufacture approaches.

This talk will explore these ongoing research programmes at UKAEA and outline the common unifying themes driving our research. This includes bridging the gap between metallics and ceramics and how hybrid component design may be able to utilise the strengths of both materials and unlock the potential to exploit novel engineering approaches towards commercial fusion plant design.

### Acknowledgments

The authors would like to acknowledge the contribution of collaborators within the NEURONE programme and the Henry Royce Institute funded TransFusion and HASTE-F projects. This work has been part-funded by the EPSRC Energy Programme, grant number EP/W006839/1. The research used UKAEA's Materials Research Facility, which has been funded by and is part of the UK's National Nuclear User Facility and Henry Royce Institute for Advanced Materials.

### References

Rieth, M. et al., EUROFER 97 Tensile, Charpy, Creep and Structural Tests, Karlsruhe, Germany (2003) 68 pp.

# Investigating mechanical and damage behaviour of ceramic matrix composites with X-ray computed tomography and micromechanical modelling

### Yang Chen

Department of Mechanical Engineering, University of Bath, Bath, UK E-mail: yc2634@bath.ac.uk

Keywords: in-situ observation, microcracking, image-based simulation, FFT method, phase-field fracture model

CMCs have ceramic fibre architectures embedded in a ceramic matrix, which can be customised for different applications via the composite weave and the chemistry or structure of the fibre-matrix interface. Their macroscopic properties are highly controllable depending on material composition and manufacturing process. Reliable lifetime prediction and improved design of CMCs in nuclear applications require coupling of advanced experimental and simulation tools. For this purpose, full-field measurements are usually preferred or even mandatory. Although characterisation methods are becoming more and more powerful at all length scales, it is impossible to assess all the microstructural features of a complex material using one single experimental method. Also, experimental characterisation is usually costly and time-consuming. Numerical modelling can alleviate this issue. However, because of the complexity of their microstructure at multiple length scales, high-fidelity modelling framework is to be developed for predicting the thermomechanical behaviours and damage growth in CMCs. This talk will highlight some developments in experimental and numerical methods for understanding the structure-property relationship, It will give a brief overview of our previous collaborative efforts in this area and illustrate the potential of bridging the experimental and numerical techniques by image-based simulations.

Microcracking and heterogeneous deformation within CMCs are obsreved from in-situ X-ray computed tomography experiments [1]. Digital volume correlation is used to measure the 3D strain field and correlate it with the fibre architecture [2]. Some dedicated image processing alorithms are developed to analyse the XCT images in a quantiative fashion [3]. For the numerical analysis, we employ a solver based on the Fast Fourier Transform (FFT) technique, as an alternative to the classical Finite Element method. We demonstrate the capacility of the FFT solver in large-scale simulations with billions of elements [4]. This capability is important for the use of real microstructures extracted from XCT images, which enhances the fidelity of numerical simulations and allowing direct comparison against the experimental observations. At the microscale, a phase-field damage model is implemented, combining a frictional cohesive zone model, to describe various failure mechanisms, namely matrix cracking, interfacial degradation and fibre failure. The method is applied to investigating the effect of irradiaiton swelling of SiC/SiC composites. Although primarily focused on SiC/SiC materials for nuclear applicaiton, the methodology is applicable to other grades of CMCs, such as C/C-SiC [5].

- 1. Chen, Y. No. FRCEA-TH--9739. Universite de Paris-Est, 2017.
- 2. Chen, Y., et al. Journal of the European Ceramic Society 40.13 (2020): 4403-4418.
- 3. Chen, Y., et al. Computational Mechanics 68.2 (2021): 433-457.
- Chen, Y., et al. Experimental Mechanics 60 (2020): 409–424.
   Chen, Y., et al. International Journal of Solids and Structures 161 (2019): 111–126.
- 6. Chen, Y., et al. Composites Part A: Applied Science and Manufacturing 145 (2021): 106390.

# Andra's R&D program on ceramic materials as alternative and innovative solutions for the geological disposal of high-level radioactive waste

<u>Aurélien Debelle</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Olivier Perrochon<sup>1</sup>, Guillaume Camps<sup>1</sup>, Samuel Couillaud<sup>2</sup>, Clémence Besnard<sup>2</sup>, Emilie Perret<sup>3</sup>, Stéphanie Miot<sup>3</sup>, Bénédicte Reine<sup>3</sup>, Patrick Ganster<sup>4</sup>, Rita De Cassia Costa Dias<sup>4</sup>, Fabrice Rossignol<sup>5</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Andra, Scientific and Technical Division, Materials, Containers and HLW Disposal Cells Department, Châtenay-Malabry, France
<sup>2</sup>Galtenco Solutions, Talence, France
<sup>3</sup>IRT Saint Exupéry, Sites de Bordeaux et Toulouse, France
<sup>4</sup>Ecole des Mines de St-Etienne, LGF, St-Etienne, France
<sup>5</sup>IRCER, Université de Limoges / CNRS, Limoges, France
\*E-mail: aurelien.debelle@andra.fr

Keywords: alumina-based materials, mechnaical load, watertightness, sizing, corrosion

Andra is in charge of the project called Cigeo, an Industrial Centre for Geological Disposal of radioactive waste, where the high-level waste (HLW) will be disposed of underground, at ~500 m, inside horizontal tunnels (cells) dug in a claystone whose properties allow protecting the environment against the radioactivity for a very long timescale. For a shorter period (a few centuries), an additional (artificial) barrier, namely a container holding the waste primary package, will also be used. Currently, in Cigeo, low-carbon steel has been identified as the reference material for the HLW containers; another low-carbon steel is also selected for the cell liner.

These steels will be subjected to severe challenges, the corrosion under anoxic conditions, already considered *via* strict safety criteria, being one issue to consider owing to the associated  $H_{2(g)}$  production. To ensure an even safer disposal, bulk, or coating materials much less prone to corrosion are also investigated. In this framework, R&D activities are conducted by Andra and his partners to select, size, qualify and fabricate ceramic-based components instead of steel ones. Here, we present the work carried out on alumina-based, very thick monolithic or ceramic-coated containers. Ceramic matrix composites for the cell liner are also shown to be promising candidates.



Figure 1: (a) Small-scale prototype of a HLW ceramic container, and (b) prototypes of HLW ceramic cell liners (these liners use CMCs provided by the Pyromeral company).

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

# Development of silicon carbide composite components for nuclear application

Tatsuya Hinoki<sup>1\*</sup>, Jun-Yeab Lee<sup>1</sup>, Fujio Shinoda<sup>1</sup>, Taishi Sugiyama<sup>2</sup>, Satoshi Ogawa<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Kyoto University, Kyoto, Japan <sup>2</sup>Kyoto Fusioneering, Tokyo, Japan \*E-mail: hinoki.tatsuya.3n@kyoto-u.ac.jp

Keywords: silicon carbide composites, tube, liquid phase sintering, joining

Silicon carbide (SiC) composites are promising materials for nuclear fission and fusion reactor systems due to engineered toughness by fiber reinforcement and intrinsic features of SiC, including low activation, chemical and environmental inertness, exceptional irradiation stability, and very high temperature mechanical performance. The key issues are to fabricate large scale production with uniform structure and complicated shaping for the component development. The objective is to develop fabrication technique for SiC composite components.

Flexible prepreg sheets were prepared. The prepreg sheet contains satin weave Hi-Nicalon type-S SiC fibers without coatings and SiC, BN and  $Al_2O_3$  powders as matrix materials. The BN particle dispersion SiC composites were fabricated by liquid phase sintering with the stacked prepreg sheets. Various SiC composite components were fabricated. Braiding technique was also applied for a small diameter tube with 8mm inner diameter. The mechanical properties and microstructure were characterized for reference materials.

The BN particle dispersion SiC composites were fabricated successfully with uniform microstructure through thickness. The porosity was less than 5% even for the composites with curvature. The fiber/matrix interphase like C or BN is the weakest link in conventional SiC composites with fiber coating. The coatings are broken at the curvature if the coated fibers are bent during processing. No significant degradation of strength was observed at 1400C in air for the BN particle dispersion SiC composites. Oxidation of the composites was limited to near surface, because the composites didn't have fiber/matrix interphase. The composites didn't break following over 100 thousand cycles fatigue applying 190 MPa at 1400C in air. The 100 mm long box was fabricated and joined with the SiC composite tubes.

# Mechanical testing of SiC<sub>f</sub>/SiC cladding tubes for gas-cooled fast reactors

<u>Zoltán Hózer</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Tatsuya Hinoki<sup>2</sup>, Emese Slonszki<sup>1</sup>, Anna Pintér-Csordás<sup>1</sup>, Levente Illés<sup>1</sup>, Márton Király<sup>1</sup>, Zoltán Kovács<sup>1</sup>, Márta Horváth<sup>1</sup>, Róbert Farkas<sup>1</sup>, Erzsébet Perez-Feró<sup>1</sup>, Tamás Novotny<sup>1</sup>, Péter Szabó<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>HUN-REN Centre for Energy Research, Budapest, Hungary <sup>2</sup>Fuculty of Engineering, Kyoto University, Kyoto, Japan \*E-mail: hozer.zoltan@ek.hun-ren.hu

Keywords: cladding of nuclear fuel, SiC, mandrel test

Silicon-carbide is considered as perspective structural material in nuclear reactor. It has low neutron capture cross section and excellent material properties at high temperatures. It is planned that SiC components will be used in gas-cooled fast reactors in the so called refractory core operated at very high temperature.

In the framework of the EU SafeG project,  $SiC_{f'}SiC$  composite claddings were fabricated by the liquid phase sintering using  $Al_2O_3$  sintering additive at the Kyoto University. Hi-Nicalon type-S fibers were used without fiber coating. Matrix included BN particles. The tube samples were produced using prepreg sheets. Two series of samples were supplied for testing. In the second series higher tension was applied during wrapping of the prepreg sheets.

The Centre for Energy Research carried out the following experiments and examinations with SiC/SiC cladding tubes.

- high temperature treatment in He atmosphere (1000 °C, 7 h),
- high temperature oxidation in steam (1000 °C for 1 h, 1200 °C for 30 min).
- ring compression tests of as-received and heat treated samples,
- mandrel tests of as-received and heat treated samples,
- pressurization of 30 mm long tubes,
- scanning electron microscopy of as-received and tested samples.

The first results with testing  $SiC_{f}/SiC$  composite tubes are promising and this is the primary candidate cladding material for the refractory fuel of gas-cooled fast reactors. However, the currently used fabrication procedure needs further improvement to overcome the observed weaknesses.



Figure 1. Cross section (left) and fracture surface (right) of the SiC<sub>f</sub>/SiC cladding tubes

## Acknowledgments



This project has received funding from the Euratom research and training programme 2019-2020 under grant agreement No 945041.

## Characterization of nuclear ceramics with spallation neutron probes

## Maik Lang

Department of Nuclear Engineering, University of Tennessee, Knoxville, USA E-mail: mlang2@utk.edu

Keywords: radiation effects, disordering, defects, ion irradiation, neutron total scattering

The development of durable nuclear ceramics has been central to efforts for advanced fission and fusion energy systems. There still exist, however, large gaps in the understanding of fundamental modes of structural degradation under harsh environmnets, including selfirradiation. We have shown that neutron total scattering measurements with pair distribution function (PDF) analysis can be utilized to uniquely characterize defects and disorder in a wide range of nuclear ceramics (e.g., pyrochlore, spinel, and actinide oxides). Key to this approach are swift heavy ions with a penetration depth of  $\sim 100 \,\mu\text{m}$ , which is high enough to produce sufficient quantities of irradiated material for characterization using bulk techniques [1]. Irradiation experiments are performed at the UNILAC accelerator at the GSI Helmholtz Center (Darmstadt, Germany) using typically Au ions of about 2 GeV kinetic energy. Irradiated samples were investigated at the Nanoscale Ordered Materials Diffractometer (NO-MAD) beamline at the Spallation Neutron Source (Oak Ridge National Laboratory, USA). These measurements enable detailed analysis of both cation and anion defect behavior, and short-range order, which is particularly important for the investigation of amorphous materials. Recent results for several ceramics demonstrate that structural changes are more complex than previously thought with distinct processes occurring over different length scales [2]. For example, disordered pyrochlore and spinel oxides [3] are composed of local structural units that maintain atomic order and exist in configurations that are different than the expected average structure determined using traditional techniques (e.g., X-ray diffraction). Here, we will highlight the importance of short- and medium-range analysis for a comprehensive description of nuclear ceramics [4].

- 1. Lang, M., O'Quinn, E.C., Neuefeind, J., Trautmann, C., Characterization of radiation effects and ion tracks with spallation neutron probes, Nuclear Physics News **30** (2020) 16–19.
- E.C. O'Quinn, K.E. Sickafus, R.C. Ewing, G. Baldinozzi, J.C. Neuefeind, M.G. Tucker, A.F. Fuentes, D. Drey, M. Lang, Predicting short-range order and correlated phenomena in disordered crystalline materials, Science Advances 6 (2020)1–8.
- O'Quinn, E.C., Tracy, C.L., Cureton, W.F., Sachan, R., Neuefeind, J., Trautmann, C., Lang, M.K., Multi-scale investigation of heterogeneous swift heavy ion tracks in stannate pyrochlore, Journal of Materials Chemistry A 9 (2021) 16982–16997.
- 4. Sherrod, R., O'Quinn, E.C., Gussev, I.M., Overstreet, C., Neuefeind, J., Lang, M., Comparison of short-range order in irradiated dysprosium titanates, npj Materials Degradation **5** (2021) 19.

# Real time X-ray tomography imaging of cracks initiation and propagation in CMC-based nuclear fuel claddings at 1200°C

Dong (Lilly) Liu<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Guanjie Yuan<sup>1,2</sup>, David Cook<sup>3</sup>, Robert O. Ritchie<sup>3</sup>, Harold Barnard<sup>4</sup>, Edward Lahoda<sup>5</sup>, Peng Xu<sup>6</sup>, Toshiki Nishimura<sup>7</sup>, Masaru Ukai<sup>7</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Engineering Science, University of Oxford, UK
<sup>2</sup>School of Physics, University of Bristol, Bristol, UK
<sup>3</sup>Department of Materials Science and Engineering, University of California, Berkeley, CA, USA
<sup>4</sup>Advanced Light Source, Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory, Berkeley, CA, USA
<sup>5</sup>Westinghouse Electric Company LLC, Churchill, PA, USA
<sup>6</sup>Post Irradiation Examination, Idaho National Laboratory, Idaho, USA
<sup>7</sup>Isogo Nuclear Engineering Centre, Toshiba Energy Systems & Solutions Corporation, Yokohama, Japan
\*E-mail: dong.liu@eng.ox.ac.uk

Keywords: accident tolerant fuel, SiC CMC, X-ray tomography, deformation and fracture

Coated SiCf/SiC-based composites is a potential accident tolerant fuel (ATF) cladding of great interest to nuclear community. It is necessary to study their mechanical behaviour at elevated temperatures similar to accident conditions. In this work, a range of CMC cladding materials have been studied with varied braiding designs and coating thicknesses. The cladding tube was cut into a C-ring geometry and loaded under uniaxial compression combined with sychrotron X-ray micro-tomography for real-time imaging of the deformation, crack initiation and propagation processes. The tests were carried out over a range of temperature up to 1200°C and the impact of temperature on the mechanical behaviour of the different types of cladding designs will be reported. The data were analysed using image segmentation as well as digital volume correlation for 3D strain distribution. It was found that the inherent porosity of the composite part of the cladding tube varies with braiding/weave patterns and this affected the crack propagation from the outer SiC coating. For claddings with very thick outer coating, the strength is dominated by the coating strength and resulted in more brittle failure. A balance has to be reached between the thickness of the outer coating and underlying composites to enable gradual progressive failure. It is emphasized that the toughening mechanisms in the coating/composite systems vary with temperature, materials designs and the applied stress state. The conventional failure process in unidirectional mini-composite under uniaxial tension does not apply to such cladding composite materials under C-ring compression loading.

# Metal-functionalized silica aerogels for capturing and sequestration of iodine

## Josef Matyáš

Materials Development and Testing Team, Radiological Materials Group, Pacific Northwest National Laboratory, Richland, USA E-mail: Josef.Matyas@pnnl.gov

Keywords: iodine, capture, sorbent, functionalization, metal, sequestration

The reprocessing of spent nuclear fuel is being used to recover fission products, such as uranium-235 and plutonium-239, for recycling. During this process, various gaseous fission products from the fuel are released into the off-gas system, with radioiodine ( $^{129}I_2$ ) being of particular concern because of its long half-life ( $1.6 \times 10^7$  years) and the potential for its accumulation in the environment. There are a number of solid sorbents that have been developed and are under investigation for capturing radioactive iodine. They differ in iodine capacity as well as ease and cost of preparation. Owing to strong chemisorption for iodine, the leading

approach to capturing radioactive iodine is silver-containing sorbents. However, silver is expensive and listed by the Enviromental Protection Agency as a hazardous waste due to its level of toxicity.

An intriguing option is to develop sorbents with a hierarchical structure or architecture at multiple length scales. They would consist of multiple levels of porosity and different metal chemistry than silver, e.g., Cu and Bi, and allow for increased surface area, improved mass transfer, and enhanced selectivity. This combination of pore sizes and chemical functionality would enable effective capture of iodine from complex off-gas streams.

The presentation will discuss the design, synthesis, and sorption performance of metal-functionalized silica aerogels and different strategies that have been developed to sequester iodine. This will include results from durability tests, a summary of highlights, and a prognosis for future research.



Figure 1. Hiearchical design of metal-functionalized silica aerogels for capturing iodine.

# Wireless technology applications in advanced surveillance, diagnostics, and prognostics for nuclear facility

Tae-Jin Park\*, Jai-Wan Cho, Jae-Cheol Lee, Doyeob Yeo, You-Rak Choi

Nuclear System Integrity Sensing & Diagnosis Division, Korea Atomic Energy Research Institute (KAERI), Daejeon, South Korea \*E-mail: etjpark@kaeri.re.kr

Keywords: wireless technology, safety, nuclear power plants, surveillance, diagnostics, prognostics

KAERI is developing wireless technology that can be applied to nuclear power plants (NPPs) [1-3]. Currently, there exist limitations in applying wireless technology to NPPs [4]. For the safety considerations, NPPs categorize three different functions: category A - functions play a principal role in NPP safety, category B - a complementary role to the category A, and category C - an auxillary or indirect role, not category A and B. In NPPs, the use of wireless devices to systems supporting category C and B is excluded. Only the use of them to systems supporting category C is permitted. From the regulatory perspective, the wireless technology must meet NRC R.G. 1.180 and IEC TC SC45 standard. On the other hand, from the operation perspective, the power to wireless devices must last longer than, at least, the period scheduled for maintanence (*e.g.*, 18 months). To use wireless devices in NPPs, thus, the electromagnetic compatibility (EMC) and battery replacement issues must be resolved.

We have developed low-power wireless sensing technology to monitor micro-leaks on pipes in NPPs. This satisfies standard test method for leaks using ultrasonics, *i.e.*, ASTM E 1002-05 Class II. Our low-power technology can provide a way to resolve the battery replacement issues. However, to use this in NPPs, wireless communication technology must comply with specific protocols under the NPPs environments. To address this, we are developing WiFi-Halow as well as WirelessHART communication modules to integrate the wireless sensing and communication. Some technical issues in developing WiFi-Halow are discussed. Our work will help building wireless sensor networks (WSN) for NPPs' instruments.

### Acknowledgments

We acknowledge the Korean government, Ministry of Science and ICT, for support (No. RS-2022-00144000 and KAERI tech-commercialization program).

- T.-J. Park, et al., New-generation reactors and wireless technology, KAERI/TR-9686/2023, KAERI Report, Daejeon (2023).
- T.-J. Park, *et al.*, Verification of wireless smart sensor technology for its application in nuclear power plants – Feasibility analysis, KAERI/TR-9980/2023, *KAERI Report*, Daejeon (2023).
- 3. T.-J. Park, *et al.*, Development of low-power wireless technology for its application in advanced reactors Component technology, KAERI/AR-1526/2023, *KAERI Report*, Daejeon (2023).
- 4. IAEA Nuclear Energy Series, Application of wireless technologies in nuclear power plant instrumentation and control systems, No. NR-T-3.29, *IAEA Report*, IAEA, Vienna (2020).

## **R&D** status on Li-ceramics for fusion breeding blanket

<u>Yi-Hyun Park</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Young Ah Park<sup>1, 2</sup>, Mu-Young Ahn<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Korea Institute of Fusion Energy, Daejeon, South Korea
 <sup>2</sup>Department of Materails Science and Engineering, Gachon University, Seongnam, South Korea
 \*E-mail: yhpark@kfe.re.kr

Keywords: tritium breeder, pebbles, Li-ceramics, breeding blanket, fusion energy

Tritium is one of the fuels for the fusion reactor, generated in a breeding blanket by nuclear reaction between neutron from fusion plasma and lithium in breeder material. Therefore, lithium-containing ceramics (Li-ceramics) is used as tritium breeder material in the breeding blanket of fusion reactor. In a solid-type breeding blanket for a fusion reactor, the tritium breeder material is usually used in a pebble bed form because of the efficiency and convenience of tritium extraction. In addition, it is able to increase the packing factor in limited space and to reduce the uncertainty of the interface thermal conductance. Therefore, the development of fabrication method for breeder pebbles and establishment of material property database of the pebbles and pebble bed are actively conducted for the realize of fusion energy.

Lithium metatitanate ( $Li_2TiO_3$ ) is one of a candidate metarial for tritum breeder because of their high mechanical strength in high temperature, low activation property and chemical stability. Li, TiO, pebbles have been fabricated by several methods such as rotating granulation method, extrusion-spheronisation-sintering method, sol-gel method, and direct/indirect wet method. These methods need relatively multiple and complicated fabrication steps. In addition, the dehydration reaction and substitution reaction were used for pebble shaping in the direct/indirect wet method. However, low process temperature was needed and some elements were remained as impurities in spite of high temperature removal process in the specific atmosphere. Therefore, the slurry droplet wetting method for the fabrication of breeder pebbles has been developed. This method has many advantages such as good process control, low cost, room temperature process and high yield for mass production. Recently, alternative methods, such as powder injection molding method and 3D printing method, are developing for the tritium breeder pebbles to secure the stability of microstructure and properties and to more increase the fabrication rate for mass production. In addition, the material properties is one of key design parameters for breeding blanket with high stability and performance. Therefore, physical and mechanical properties of breeder pebbles and pebble bed are being measured by using various techniques. In this presentation, manufacturing methods and material properties of Li<sub>2</sub>TiO<sub>3</sub> pebbles and pebble bed for tritium breeder material in fusion reactor are addressed.

- Yi-Hyun Park, et. al., Fabrication of Li<sub>2</sub>TiO<sub>3</sub> pebbles using PVA-boric acid reaction for solid breeding materials, Journal of Neclear Materials 455 (2014) 106–110.
- 2. Yi-Hyun Park, et. al., Optimization of mass-production conditions for tritium breeder pebbles based on slurry droplet wetting method, Fusion Engineering and Design 109-111 (2016) 443–447.
- 3. Yi-Hyun Park, et. al., Li<sub>2</sub>TiO<sub>3</sub> powder synthesis by solid-state reaction and pebble fabrication for tritum breeding material, Fusion Engineering and Design 124 (2017) 730–734.
- 4. Yi-Hyun Park, et. al., Measurement of thermal conductivity of Li<sub>2</sub>TiO<sub>3</sub> pebble bed by laser flash method, Fusion Engineering and Design 146 (2019) 950–954.
- Yi-Hyun Park, et. al., Sintering and creep behavior of Li<sub>2</sub>TiO<sub>3</sub> pebble bed for breeding blanket of fusion reactor, Fusion Engineering and Design 176 (2022) 113019.
- Yi-Hyun Park, et. al., Effects of atmospheric gases and compression load on effective thermal conductivity of Li<sub>2</sub>TiO<sub>3</sub> pebble bed, Fusion Engineering and Design 194 (2023) 113728.

# Metal organic frameworks for off-gas management

## Praveen K. Thallapally

Materials and Systems Design Team, Reactor Materials Group, Pacific Northwest National Laboratory, Richland, WA USA E-mail: praveen.thallapally@pnnl.gov

Keywords: advanced reactors, nuclear re-processing, advanced functional materials, MOFs, xenon, krypton, iodine

Several volatile radio-nucleides that include tritium, iodine, C-14 and noble gases (Xe and Kr) were released during the nuclear re-processing of the used nuclear fuel, advanced reactor operations and other souces. As per the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and Nuclear Regulatory Commision (NRC), these volatile radio-nucleides need to be captured and sequestered. Particularly, radioactive <sup>85</sup>Kr has a long half-life ( $t_{1/2} = 10.8$  years) and therefore must be captured and removed from the off-gas to prevent its uncontrolled release into the atmosphere<sup>1</sup>. Although Xe is generated as a fission product, by the time the fuel is reprocessed, all the radioactive isotopes have decayed to very low concentrations. In addition, high purity

of Xe is used in many applications, including commercial lighting, propulsion, imaging, anesthesia, and insulation, therefore high purity of Xe recovered from these operations could provide additional revenue to offset operating costs of these nuclear plants and reduce waste (Fig**ure 1**).<sup>2, 3</sup> The current approach to separate Xe and Kr from other gases include the crogenic distillation which is projected to be very expensive, and laborious. Furthermore, accumulation of ozone due to the radiolysis of oxygen at cryogenic temperatures poses an explosion hazard during cryogenic distillation process. To address these issues, Pacific Northwest National Laboratory (PNNL) developing large number of materials and membranes to separate these gases at much higher temperatures than cryogenic distillation process. My presentation will provide detailed background, materials and membranes developed at PNNL to address the uncontrolled release of volatile gases and advantages of these materials in terms of other materials.



Figure 1. PNNL developed and patented adsorption-based technology to recover Xe and Kr from various nuclear processes using temperature swing adsorption at near room temperature.

## References

Radiation-resistant metal-organic framework enables efficient separation of krypton fission gas from spent nuclear fuel. *Nat Commun* **2020.** 

# Microstructure characterization in irradiated SiC ceramic composite matrix materials for light water reactor applications

## Peng Xu<sup>1\*</sup>, Takaaki Koyanagi<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Idaho National Laboratory, USA <sup>2</sup>Oak Ridge National Laboratory, USA \*E-mail: peng.xu@inl.gov

## Keywords: SiC, CMC, LWR

Silicon Carbide (SiC) ceramic matrix composite (CMC) cladding is being pursued as one of the accident-tolerant fuel (ATF) cladding candidate materials for light water reactors (LWRs). It has excellent high-temperature oxidation properties, superior irradiation resistance, inherent low activation, and other superior physical/chemical properties. However, there are several technical challeges which the SiC CMC materials must overcome for use in LWRs. This paper summarizes those technical challeges and advancements made in recent years, and outlines the SiC based cladding material strategy. In specific, the hydrothermal corrosion behavior, the retention of hermeticity in normal operation and accident conditions, and the integrity of the end plug joint are among the key challeges to be discussed in this paper. Morphology of defects, including size and shape of voids, is one of the key factors which impact cladding performance and guarantees reactor safety. Therefore, understanding and quantification of the defects' size, location, distribution, and leak paths are critical to determining weakness in SiC cladding for its in-core performance and failure probabilities. Safety testing performed at the Transient Test Reactor (TREAT) and out of pile high temperature steam testing stage at ORNL provide additional insights on SiC behavior in accident conditions. 3D X-ray imaging generates critical microstructural defect information before and after the tests. Following the X-ray Computed Tomography (XCT) data analysis and visualization, advanced microstructure characterization using electron microscopy techniques such as Focused Ion Beam (FIB)/ Scanning Electron Microscopy (SEM) and Transmission Electron Microscopy (TEM) is conducted, which complements the findings from the XCT data, in particular quantification of nano-porosity and microcracks. The statistics of the defects and characteristics provide information regarding the mechanical responses of SiC cladding under reactor accident conditions and can be later correlated to manufacturing for processing and performance improvement, as well as modeling and simulations. A multi-scale modeling approach is currently under development for SiC CMC cladding to predict its thermal and mechanical properties and probability of failures under various operation and accident conditions.

# Passivation film formation and composition effects in a titanium pyrochlore structure

## Kun Yang\*, Minghao Zhao

Department of Nuclear Science and Technology, Nanjing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics, Nanjing, China \*E-mail: kun.yang@nuaa.edu.cn

Keywords: nuclear wasteform, passivation film, corrosion, irradiation

Chemical durability of multi-component pyrochlore solid solutions (A2B2O7) with uranium incorporation under near-field environments is important for evaluating their application as potential nuclear waste forms/advanced fuel matrices. Here, compositional complex Ti pyrochlore solid solutions with/without uranium incorporation ranges from binary to high entropy were synthesized to investigate the chemical durability and corrosion induced surface alteration and passivation effect. Microstructure analysis reveals that an amorphous passivation film enriched in Ti is covered on the altered matrix which can be attributed to the dissoluton-reprecipitation mechanism with congruent release of A-site and Ti elements. Strong correlation is identified between chemical disorder, especially size disorder and leaching rate, while entropy shows negligible correlation with elemental release rate, suggesting important impacts of structural and sublattice characteristics in controlling chemical durability and elemental release of chemical complex Ti pyrochlore solid solutions.

## Figures



Leaching behavior of controllable grain size  $Gd_2Ti_2O_7$  pyrochlore after 14 days.

## References

Kun Yang, et al. Chemical durability and corrosion-induced microstructure evolution of compositionally complex titanate pyrochlore waste forms with uranium incorporation. *Journal of the european ceramic society*, 2023,11(243).

# Microstructural evolution of neutron shielding materials under radiation

Tamás Zagyva<sup>\*</sup>, Joe Pollard Mashu Harada, Samuel Humphry-Baker

Department of Materials, Imperial College London, London, UK \*E-mail: t.zagyva@imperial.ac.uk

Keywords: ion irradiation, tungsten boride, hafnium hydride, neutron shielding

Spherical tokamaks offer many advantages compared to standard tokamak fusion reactors, such as enhanced plasma stability and higher cost-efficiency [1]. However, the narrow central hole in spherical tokamaks presents severe space constraints and engineering challenges. Advanced shielding materials are needed to efficiently attenuate the neutron and gamma radiation from the plasma and protect the high-temperature superconductors (HTS) from radiation damage [1,2]. Besides the excellent neutron and gamma attenuation properties, shielding materials must have a high resistance to swelling, and their microstructure should remain stable under high heat and radiation levels. The neutron irradiation-induced changes in fusion shielding materials can be reasonably simulated by performing ion irradiation experiments with particle accelerators [3].

This presentation will focus on recent progress in evaluating the microstructural evolution of candidate advanced shielding materials under radiation. Tungsten boride (WB and WB<sub>2</sub>) and hafnium hydride (HfH<sub>2</sub>) samples were irradiated with He and heavy ions at multiple temperatures (25-700 °C) and doses at the Dalton Cumbrian Facility in the UK. The irradiation-induced microstructural changes (defect formation, lattice swelling, phase change and amorphisation) were characterised using grazing incidence X-ray diffraction (GIXRD), electron backscatter diffraction (EBSD) and transmission electron microscopy (TEM). The hardness evolution was also examined using a microhardness mapping system in the unirradiated and irradiated tungsten boride samples. Coupled EBSD-hardness measurements revealed that the crystallographic orientation strongly affects the hardness values in WB<sub>2</sub>. This study provides the first ion irradiation results on these materials and allows the relative stability of different tungsten boride phases to be compared for the first time. The radiation tolerance of WB, WB<sub>2</sub> and HfH<sub>2</sub> compared to other candidate shielding materials will also be discussed.

- 1. L. J. Reinders, "Spherical Tokamaks," in *The Fairy Tale of Nuclear Fusion*, 2021, ch. 11, pp. 279–309.
- S. A. Humphry-Baker and G. D. W. Smith, "Shielding materials in the compact spherical tokamak," *Philosophical Transactions of the Royal Society A*, vol. 377, 2019, Art no. 20170443, doi: http:// dx.doi.org/10.1098/rsta.2017.0443.
- G. S. Was and R. S. Averback, "Radiation Damage Using Ion Beams," in *Comprehensive Nuclear Materials*, vol. 1, 2012, ch. 1.07, pp. 195–221.

## The emerging high-entropy ceramics and their nuclear applications

## Guo-Jun Zhang<sup>\*</sup>, Ji-Xuan Liu

Institute of Functional Materials, Donghua University, Shanghai, 201620, China \*Email: gjzhang@dhu.edu.cn, jxliu@dhu.edu.cn

Keywords: high-entropy ceramics, inert-matrix fuel, immobilization matrix, high-level radioactive wasteform

In recent years, high-entropy ceramics (HECs) have attracted researchers' much attention. In recent years we synthesized a series of high-entropy ceramics including oxides, carbides and borides by different processes and their mechanical and thermal properties were mainly evaluated. The irradiation behavior and damage mechanism in high-entropy carbide ceramics as well as the immobilization ability of radioactive nuclear waste in high-entropy  $A_2B_2O_2$ type oxide ceramics were also investigated. This presentation will report the preparation and characterization of a series of high-entropy  $A_2B_2O_7$ -type oxide ceramics (Eu<sub>1,x</sub>Gd<sub>x</sub>)<sub>2</sub>(Ti<sub>0.2</sub>Zr<sub>0.2</sub>  $Hf_{0.2}Nb_{0.2}Ce_{0.2}$ ,  $O_7$  (x=0, 0.5 and 1.0). The results demonstrate that the obtained high-entropy ceramics is potential candidate as immobilizing hosts for high-level radioactive waste. The static aqueous leaching test indicates that the normalized leaching rates for the simulated radionuclides Ce (LRCe) and Gd (LRGd) in as-prepared high-entropy ceramics are approximately  $10^{-8} \sim 10^{-6}$  g·m<sup>-2</sup>·d<sup>-1</sup> after 42 days testing, much lower than those reported values in doped-RE<sub>2</sub>Zr<sub>2</sub>O<sub>2</sub> ( $10^{-6} \sim 10^{-3}$  g·m<sup>-2</sup>·d<sup>-1</sup>). The excellent chemical durability is mainly due to the synergistic effects of the compositional complexity and severe lattice distortion. Compared to their ternary oxides, the low oxygen vacancy concentration slows down the migration and diffusion of cations. Moreover, the lattice distortion increases the lattice potential energy, also inhibiting the migration of cations. This study provides a strategy for the development and application of high-entropy ceramics as the wasteforms.

- Dewei Ni, Yuan Cheng, Jiaping Zhang, Ji-Xuan Liu, Ji Zou, Bowen Chen, Haoyang Wu, Hejun Li, Shaoming Dong, Jiecai Han, Xinghong Zhang, Qiangang Fu, Guo-Jun Zhang, Advances in ultrahigh temperature ceramics, composites, and coatings, J. Adv. Ceram., 11 [1] 1–56 (2022).
- Huimin Xiang, et al, High-entropy ceramics: Present status, challenges, and a look forward, J Adv. Ceram., 20 [3] 385–441 (2021).
- Lin Zhou, Fei Li, Ji-Xuan Liu, Shi-Kuan Sun, Yongcheng Liang, Guo-Jun Zhang, High-entropy A<sub>2</sub>B<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub>-type oxide ceramics: A potential immobilizing matrix for high-level radioactive waste, J. Hazardous Mater., 415, 125596 (2021).

## T1.5 NANOSTRUCTURED, AND HYBRID FUNCTIONAL MATERIALS FOR ENERGY AND SUSTAINABILITY

# Exploring alternative electrodes beyond platinum for enhanced photovoltaic efficiency and stability

## Mannix P. Balanay

Department of Chemistry, Nazarbayev University, Astana 010000 Kazakhstan E-mail: mannix.balanay@nu.edu.kz

Keywords: Pt-free electrodes, binary metal sulfides, co-polymer, solvothermal synthesis, electrodeposition

The increasing global demand for energy has intensified the search for sustainable and affordable alternatives to conventional energy sources. Dye-sensitized solar cells (DSSCs) offer a promising way to meet this demand due to their low cost, ease of manufacture and environmental compatibility. However, the dependence on platinum (Pt) as a counter electrode poses an economic and stability problem and hinders the widespread adoption of DSSCs. This presentation will address recent advances in Pt-free counter electrodes for DSSCs that aim to overcome these limitations. The focus will be on the synthesis, characterization, and performance evaluation of alternative materials. Various binary metal sulfides and composites such as  $CuCo_2S_4$ ,  $Zn_{0.76}Co_{0.24}S$ , FeCo<sub>2</sub>S<sub>4</sub>, and  $ZnCo_2S_4$  (MWCNT as well as co-polymeric systems will be investigated. Remarkably, these materials show comparable or better performance than their Pt-based counterparts, representing a significant breakthrough in DSSC technology. The results highlight the feasibility of Pt-free counter electrodes for DSSCs that offer a blend of cost efficiency, environmental sustainability and equivalent or better performance compared to conventional alternatives. These advances promise a broad adoption of DSSCs as a sustainable renewable energy solution and pave the way for scalable and environmentally friendly energy solutions. By utilizing these innovations, the energy landscape will benefit from improved access to clean and renewable energy sources, paving the way to a more sustainable future.

### Acknowledgments

This research was funded by the Ministry of Science and Higher Education of the Republic of Kazakhstan (Grant No. AP14870560) and Nazarbayev University under the Faculty-Development Competitive Research Grants Program (Grant No. 20122022FD4122).

- Y. Tashenov, D. Suleimenova, B. Baptayev, S. Adilov, M.P. Balanay. Efficient one-step synthesis of a Pt-Free Zn<sub>0.76</sub>Co<sub>0.24</sub>S counter electrode for dye-sensitized solar cells and its versatile application in photoelectrochromic devices. *Nanomaterials* 13 (2023) 2812.
- B. Baptayev, Y. Tashenov, S. Adilov, M.P. Balanay. Facile fabrication of ZnCo<sub>2</sub>S<sub>4</sub>@MWCNT as Pt-free counter electrode for high performance dye-sensitized solar cells. *Surf. Interfaces* 37 (2023) 102699.
- 3. B. Baptayev, D. Mustazheb, Z. Abilova, M.P. Balanay. Nanostructured flower-shaped  $CuCo_2S_4$  as a Pt-free counter-electrode for dye-sensitized solar cells. *Chem. Commun.* 56 (2020) 12190.
- B. Baptayev, A. Aukenova, D. Mustazheb, M. Kazaliyev, M.P. Balanay. Pt-free counter electrode based on orange fiber-derived carbon embedded cobalt sulfide nanoflakes for dye-sensitized solar cells. J. Photochem. Photobiol. A 383 (2019) 111977.

# Fabrication of advanced materials for energy harvester and energy conversion devices

Anna L. Pellegrino, Francesca Lo Presti, Graziella Malandrino\*

Dipartimento di Scienze Chimiche, Università di Catania, and INSTM UdR Catania, Viale A. Doria 6, I-95125 Catania, Italy E-mail: graziella malandrino@unict.it

E-mail: graziella.malandrino@unict.it

Keywords: energy conversion, hybrid systems, MLD, MOCVD

Recent years have witnessed a pronounced increase of research activities on the synthesis of photoactive thin and ultra-thin layers with energy conversion properties in view of their applications to enhance the efficiency of photovoltaic (PV) devices. Up-conversion (UC), down-conversion (DC) and down-shifting (DS) processes are the main luminescence mechanisms used for EC. Through this promising strategy it is possible to collect the radiation energy outside the absorption range of the material and thus to better exploit the solar spectrum radiation. Two different strategies have been applied: i) fluoride matrices, as  $CaF_2$  and multicomponent  $NaYF_4$  phases, have been applied as efficient hosts of lanthanides for up-conversion processes, and ii) metalorganic-inorganic hybrid systems consisting of an europium monolayer on NiO film as down-conversion layer.

In this presentation, an overview will be given on recent results on the fabrication of Ln-doped fluoride thin films through two different chemical routes: Metal-Organic Chemical Vapor Deposition (MOCVD) and sol-gel/spin-coating approaches. The synthesis and characterization of UC layers, of the type CaF<sub>2</sub>: Yb/Er [1,2], CaF<sub>2</sub>: Yb/Tm [1,2],  $\beta$ -NaYF<sub>4</sub>: Yb / Er [2] and  $\beta$ -NaYF<sub>4</sub>: Yb/Tm [2,3]. Both synthetic approaches use fluorinated metalorganic  $\beta$ -diketonate compounds, which act as single-sources, and have the advantage of being very reliable and reproducible methods for the fast production of films with high uniformity degree over large areas. Pros and cons of the two synthetic strategies will be discussed.

In addition, a full vapor phase approach based on the molecular layer deposition (MLD) to assemble the metalorganic monolayer component, of the type  $Eu(\beta-diket)_3L$ , on the MOCVD grown inorganic component, NiO films, will be presented. This approach is based on the pre-activation of the NiO nanostructured film with water or ozone and the subsequent anchoring of the  $Eu(\beta-diket)_3L$  complex through a ligand-exchange reaction between one or two  $\beta$ -diketonate ligands and the terminal –OH groups of the NiO surface. X-ray photoelectron spectroscopy characterization confirmed the covalent anchoring of the luminescent europium(III) adduct onto nanostructured transparent NiO films. Downshifting properties of the Eu monolayer were evaluated through fluorescence spectroscopy. This system is of potential great interest for applications in tandem PV cells, since the NiO inorganic component is commonly applied as photocathode, while the Eu complex may further implement the use of the high energy side of the solar spectrum due to its downshifter properties.

#### Acknowledgments

This work has been partially funded by the European Union, through the MUR-PNRR project SAMO-THRACE (ECS00000022).

- 1. A. L. Pellegrino, S. La Manna, A. Bartasyte, P. Cortelletti, G. Lucchini, A. Speghini and G. Malandrino, J. Mater. Chem. C., 8, 3865, 2020.
- 2. A. L. Pellegrino, G. Lucchini, A. Speghini, and G. Malandrino, J. Mater. Res., 35, 2950, 2020.
- A. L. Pellegrino, M. R. Catalano, P. Cortelletti, G. Lucchini, A. Speghini and G. Malandrino, *Photochem. Photobiol. Sci.*, 17, 1239, 2018.
- A. L. Pellegrino, C. Tudisco, F. Lo Presti, E. Milan, A. Speghini, G. G. Condorelli, G. Malandrino, Nano Energy, 116, 108804, 2023.

# T1.6 Advanced Batteries and Supercapacitors for Energy Storage Applications

# Exploring electrolyte and electrolyte-electrode interface for long-life cycling sodium-ion batteries

## Chunmei Ban

Paul M. Rady Department of Mechanical Engineering, Materials Science & Engineering Program, University of Colorado Boulder, Boulder, CO, USA E-mail: Chunmei.ban@colorado.edu

Keywords: energy storage, sodium-ion batteries, electrolyte, surface science and engineering

The widespread integration of renewable energy sources necessitates the implementation of affordable, long-duration energy storage technologies. Lithium-ion batteries (LIBs) have been widely used in the electric grid sector due to their large-scale production, high roundtrip efficiency, and industry familiarity. However, they are impractical for long-duration storage of 10+ hours due to their high cost, safety concerns, and supply constraints. In contrast, sodium-based batteries (NaBs) offer a promising alternative, leveraging abundant and inexpensive materials such as sodium, manganese, and iron. However, NaBs must demonstrate exceptionally long cycle life (> 5000 cycles) to be viable for grid-based storage. This presentation discusses the crucial role of the electrolyte-electrode interface in electrochemical properties and cycling life, focusing on our efforts to develop novel electrolytes based on the sodium borate platform and explore fluorine-free alternatives. The findings from our materials discovery and characterization efforts offer valuable insights into the development of highly reversible sodium-ion batteries tailored for grid applications.

## Mn-based oxide cathodes for secondary potassium-ion batteries

### Pawan Kumar Jha, Prabeer Barpanda\*

Faraday Materials Laboratory, Materials Research Centre, Indian Institute of Science, Bangalore, India \*E-mail: prabeer@iisc.ac.in

Keywords: potassium-ion batteries, cathodes, layered oxides, ion exchange, capacity

Li-ion batteries have seen unprecedented success starting from consumer electronics to electric vehicles. The exponential usage of Li-resources has triggered concern and has catapulted the development of various monovalent and multivalent (post) Li-ion batteries particularly for stationary storage. One such battery candidate is potassium-ion batteries (KIBs), which can offer high energy density, reversibility, and operational safety along with materials economy owing to the natural abundance of potassium-based minerals.<sup>1,2</sup> Similar to Li-ion battery, graphite can be implemented as anode against energy dense K<sup>+</sup> insertion cathodes to fabricate full cell. To realize practical K-ion batteries, it is crucial to find economic and energy dense cathode materials. In this quest, the current presentation will focus on three novel Mn-based cathode insertion materials for KIBs.

First, P3-type  $K_x Ni_{1/3} Mn_{2/3} O_2$  layered oxide will be presented as a novel 3.2 V KIB cathode combining Ni redox activity at high voltage and Mn redox activity at low voltage.<sup>3</sup> Prepared by conventional solid-state synthesis, it exhibit highly reversible  $K^+$  (de)insertion at ambient and elevated (40-50 °C) temperatures. The K<sub>x</sub>Ni<sub>1/3</sub>Mn<sub>2/3</sub>O<sub>2</sub> layered oxide exhibits in-plane Mn-Ni ordering in the MO<sub>2</sub> sheets as a function of the K-content in the structure, leading to an interwoven and alternative row Ni–Mn ordering (for K = 0.5) and a  $\sqrt{3a} \times \sqrt{3a}$  superlattice ordering (for K = 2/3). It involves solid solution  $K^+$  (de)insertion mechanism. Ni addition can effectively tune the electronic, and structural properties leading to enhanced electrochemical performance. The second story will showcase the structure-electrochemical property relation in P3-type K<sub>v</sub>Mn<sub>1,v</sub>Co<sub>v</sub>O<sub>2</sub> binary layered oxide cathodes.<sup>4</sup> In this solid-solution family, Co substitution enhances the electronic conductivity and structural stability of P3 phases by minimizing the local lattice distortion. Co substitution leads to systematic shift of the Co<sup>4+/</sup> Co3+ and Mn4+/Mn3+ redox potentials along with improved cycling stability. The final section will elaborate soft chemistry derived layered P2-type  $K_v Co_{1/3} Mn_{2/3} O_2$  cathode for KIBs. Prepared by ion exchange at ambient condition, it works as a stable 2.9 V cathode involving both Co and Mn redox activity. On a whole, these Mn-based cathodes will be demonstrated as low cost cathode candidates for potassium-ion batteries.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was financially supported by the Technology Mission Division (Department of Science and Technology, Govt. of India) under the aegis of Materials for Energy Storage (MES-2018) program (DST/TMD/MES/2K18/207). PB thanks the Alexander von Humboldt Foundation (Bonn, Germany) for a 2022 Humboldt fellowship for experienced researchers.

- 1. T. Hosaka, K. Kubota, A.S. Hameed, S. Komaba, Chem. Rev., 120, 6358 (2020).
- 2. P.K. Jha, V. Pralong, M. Fichtner, P. Barpanda, Curr. Opin. Electrochem., 38, 101216 (2023).
- 3. P.K. Jha et al., P. Barpanda, submitted.
- 4. P.K. Jha et al., P. Barpanda, Indian patent application # 202341033225, # 202341088484 (2023).

# Aqueous metal-ion rechargeable batteries

## Aninda J. Bhattacharyya<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Akshatha Venkatesha<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Interdisciplinary Centre for Energy Research, Indian Institute of Science, Bengaluru, India <sup>2</sup>Solid State and Structural Chemistry Unit, Indian Institute of Science, Bengaluru, India \*E-mail: anindajb@iisc.ac.in

Keywords: aqueous batteries, monovalent-multivalent ions, structure, ion transport, intercalation

This lecture will focus on aqueous metal-ion batteries,<sup>1</sup> an important alternative to the erstwhile non-aqueous Li-ion batteries. As water is the solvent, aqueous rechargeable batteries will not require a sophisticated and capital-intensive cell assembly line like non-aqueous batteries. Despite being economical, the hydrated metal ions pose several fundamental challenges leading to non-trivial energy storage. There is a lack of suitable electrodes and electrolytes, a major hurdle for the widespread production of rechargeable and reversible aqueous-ion batteries. In this lecture, I will discuss a few examples of aqueous batteries,<sup>2-4</sup> focusing on the diverse intricacies related to materials and the electrochemical energy storage characteristics of various monovalent/divalent aqueous battery systems. The energy storage mechanism will be discussed in the context of the findings from both experiment and theory.

### Acknowledgments

AJB acknowledges SERB, DST-MECSP, and J.C. Bose Fellowship of the Government of India for financial support.

- 1. D. Chao et al Sci. Adv. 2020, 6, eaba4098.
- 2. A. Venkatesha et al ACS Sustainable Chem. Eng. 2022, 10, 6205–6216.
- 3. A. Venkatesha et al ChemElectroChem 2023, 10, e202201013.
- 4. A. Venkatesha et al ACS Sustainable Chem. Eng. 2024, submitted.

# Structural and electrochemical properties of epitaxial thin-film electrodes grown by pulsed laser deposition

<u>Robert Dominko</u><sup>1,2,3\*</sup>, Blaž Jaklič<sup>4,5</sup>, Jan Žuntar<sup>4,5</sup>, Elena Tchernychova<sup>1</sup>, Gregor Kapun<sup>1</sup>, Matjaž Spreitzer<sup>4</sup>

<sup>1</sup>National Institute of Chemistry, Hajdrihova ulica 19, SI-1000 Ljubljana, Slovenia
<sup>2</sup>Faculty of Chemistry and Chemical Technology, University of Ljubljana, Večna pot 113, SI-1000 Ljubljana, Slovenia
<sup>3</sup>ALISTORE - European Research Institute, CNRS FR 3104, 15 Rue Baudelocque, Amiens 80039 Cedex, France
<sup>4</sup>Advanced Materials Department, Jožef Stefan Institute, Jamova cesta 39, 1000 Ljubljana, Slovenia
<sup>5</sup>Jožef Stefan International Postgraduate School, Jamova cesta 39, SI-1000 Ljubljana, Slovenia
\*E-mail: Robert.Dominko@ki.si

Keywords: NMC, LTO, thin film electrodes, PLD, characterisation

In this presentation, the compositional, structural, and electrochemical properties of thin film electrodes preparent by pulsed layer deposition (PLD) will be discussed. Thin film electrodes of the  $\text{LiNi}_{0.33}\text{Mn}_{0.33}\text{Co}_{0.33}\text{O}_2$  (NMC 111) were prepared on (001) out-of-plane oriented Sr-RuO<sub>3</sub>/Nb:SrTiO<sub>3</sub> substrates and thin film electrodes LTO thin films were grown by pulsed laser deposition on Nb:STO single crystal substrates with (100), (110) and (111) orientations. Structural properties of pristine NMC 111 and LTO thin films were characterized by high-resolution X-ray diffraction (HRXRD). Thin film electrodes were electrochemically characterized in the half-cell configuration using metallic lithium as a counter electrode and separator wetted with electrolyte as an ion conductive interphase. We will report the structural changes during the oxidation process (lithium removal) and the consequent reduction process (lithium insertion) for NMC111 thin film. Additionally, the electrochemical and compositional properties of LTO thin films with different orientations will be thoroughly discussed.

## Acknowledgments

The authors would like to acknowledge funding from the Slovenian Research Agency (ARIS) under research programs P2-0423, P2-0091, and research project J2-3050.

# *Operando* impedance spectroscopy study of Li metal stripping and plating

<u>Sara Drvaric Talian<sup>1\*</sup></u>, Jože Moškon<sup>1</sup>, Gregor Kapun<sup>1</sup>, Robert Dominko<sup>1,2,3</sup>, Miran Gaberšček<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Materials Chemistry, National Institute of Chemistry, Ljubljana, Slovenia <sup>2</sup>Faculty of Chemistry and Chemical Technology University of Ljubljana, Ljubljana, Slovenia <sup>3</sup>ALISTORE – European Research Institute, Amiens, France \*E-mail: sara.drvarictalian@ki.si

Keywords: impedance spectroscopy, Li metal anode, dendrites

Electrochemical impedance spectroscopy (EIS) is a valuable measurement tool, which is frequently applied to study and develop electrochemical systems. In the field of batteries, it is usually measured at open circuit voltage (OCV), when the cell is stable enough to ensure a reliable measurement. If we want to change the state of charge of the cell, the cell is usually first discharged/charged, the current stopped for a short period to stabilize cell's voltage and only then the EIS spectrum is measured. Although in this case the measurement is stable, it suffers from drawbacks. One is that the impedance of certain battery processes is different if under load or not, such as the charge transfer impedance. In practice, this means that the measured spectra, although smooth, will inevitably be different than those measured under load<sup>1</sup>. Furthermore, although paramount for ensuring a stable measurement, we should not disregard that the rest period can inflict change to the cell impedance.<sup>2-4</sup> An alternative is the so-called dynamic EIS, where a small amplitude excitation signal is superimposed on the direct current used for SOC change. In this case, the impedance is measured simultaneously as the cell's SOC is changed, *i.e. operando*, avoiding the issues previously described for OCV EIS measurements. We will present several applications of operando EIS. We have used it to study the formation of high surface area deposits and to detect the presence of dendrites growing through the separator in Li metal electrode cells.

### Figures



Examples of dynamic impedance spectra measured on Li metal electrode during plating (a) and stripping (b)

### Acknowledgments

The work was financially supported by Slovenian Research Agency ARRS (research project Z2-4465 and core program funding P2-0423).

- 1. E. Barsoukov and J. R. Macdonald, Impedance Spectroscopy Theory, Experiment, and Applications, second edi., p. 97–102, Wiley & Sons, Inc., (2005).
- M. Oldenburger, B. Bedürftig, A. Gruhle, F. Grimsmann, E. Richter, R. Findeisen, and A. Hintennach, Journal of Energy Storage, 21, 272–280 (2019).
- 3. M. Messing, T. Shoa, and S. Habibi, in 2019 IEEE Transportation Electrification Conference and Expo (ITEC), p. 1–6, IEEE (2019).
- 4. F. M. Kindermann, A. Noel, S. V. Erhard, and A. Jossen, Electrochimica Acta, 185, 107–116 (2015).

## Oxygen-redox chemistry in high energy density battery cathodes

<u>Robert A. House</u><sup>\*</sup>, John-Joseph Marie, Miguel Perez-Osorio, Gregory J. Rees, Peter G. Bruce

Department of Materials, University of Oxford, Oxford, UK \*E-mail: robert.house@materials.ox.ac.uk

Keywords: Li-ion batteries, Na-ion batteries, cathode materials, oxygen redox, disordered rocksalts

One of the biggest challenges facing lithium-ion batteries is how to increase their energy density. The cathode, typically a layered lithium transition metal oxide, represents a major limitation. One route to increase the energy density is to store charge at high voltage on the oxide ions in the cathode material. However, removing electrons from lattice oxide ions typically results in structural instability leading to voltage hysteresis and voltage fade over cycling. Understanding the mechanism behind oxygen redox is critical to overcoming these issues.

Our recent investigations into Li-rich cathodes have revealed that oxidized oxygen takes the form of  $O_2$  molecules which are trapped in nanovoids in the structure. We have also shown that these trapped  $O_2$  molecules can be reduced back to  $O^{2-}$  on discharge providing a viable charge storage mechanism to explain oxygen redox. In this talk, I will discuss the evidence<sup>1-3</sup> for the formation and reduction of trapped  $O_2$  and explore the impacts this has on the performance of oxygen redox cathodes.<sup>4</sup> I will show how the formation of  $O_2$  extends to 4d and 5d transition metal oxides<sup>5</sup>, disordered rocksalt cathodes<sup>6</sup> and even to non-Li-rich cathodes<sup>7</sup>. Finally, I will show that it is possible to suppress this structural change and undergo reversible, high voltage O-redox without voltage hysteresis<sup>8</sup>. Altogether, this understanding helps to explain the unusual properties of oxygen redox cathodes and informs how they might be harnessed to boost the energy density of batteries.

- 1. House, R. A. et al. Nature 577, 502-508 (2020).
- 2. House, R. A. et al. Nature Energy 8, 777-785 (2020).
- 3. House, R. A. et al. Energy & Environmental Science 15, 1 376-386 (2022).
- 4. House, R. A. et al. Nature Energy 6, 781-789 (2021).
- 5. House, R. A. et al. Nature Communications 12, 2975 (2021).
- 6. McColl, K. et al. Nature Communications 13, 5275 (2022).
- 7. Juelsholt, M. et al. ChemRxiv (pre-print).
- 8. House, R. A. et al. Nature Energy 8, 351-360 (2023).

# Multiscale modeling of layered oxide cathode materials

## Payam Kaghazchi

Institute of Energy and Climate Research-Materials Synthesis and Processing (IEK-1), Forschungszentrum Jülich GmbH, 52425 Jülich, Germany MESA+ Institute for Nanotechnology, University of Twente, 7500 AE Enschede, Netherlands E-mail: p.kaghazchi@fz-juelich.de

Keywords: multiscale modeling, Li-ion and Na-ion batteries, cathode materials

By combining density functional theory (DFT) calculation, thermodynamics consideration, and finite element simulation, effect of doping and substitution on electro-chemo-mechanical properties of Li- and Na-based Layered Oxide (LO) cathodes is studied. It is shown that calculation of magnetic moment of elements using DFT with appropriate hybrid exchangecorrelation functionals can be used to predict the redox mechanism of active materials during charge/discharge. Application of this approach to Ni- and Mn-rich LO materials for Li-ion and Na-ion batteries, repectively, is presented [1]. Moreover, correlation between transition metal composition, cationic and anionic redox, phase transition, and defect formation is discussed. Finally, a multiscale-modeling approach to model and predict properties of realistic microstructures is presented. Its application to model agglomerate and/or aggregate of LO primary particles and to simulate impact of doping and/or substitution on the initial stage of their cracking over cycling is discussed [2]. It is shown that some dopants tend to stay on the agglomerate surface forming surface oxides that can suppress crack formation as well as protect the cathode surface from electrolyte. This improves the cyclability of cathode materials in energy storages. However, some dopants can affect grain boundaries and thereby stability and rate performance [3].



Fig. 1. Simulation of Cathode Materials for Li- and Na-ion Batteries: from Electronic- to Micro-scale.

- N. Voronina, M-Y Shin, H-J Kim, N. Yaqoob, O. Guillon, S. H. Song, H. Kim, H-D Lim, H-G Jung, Y. Kim, H-K Lee, K-S Lee, K. Yazawa, K. Gotoh, P. Kaghazchi,\* and S-T Myung\* "Hysteresis-Suppressed Reversible Oxygen-Redox Cathodes for Sodium-ion Batteries" Advanced Energy Materials, 12, 2103939, (2022).
- H-H Ryu, N-Y Park, J H Seo, Y-S Yu, M. Sharma, R. Mücke, P. Kaghazchi,\* C-S Yoon, and Y-K Sun,\* "A highly stabilized Ni-rich NCA cathode for high-energy lithium-ion batteries", Materials Today, 36, 73 (2020).
- LY Kuo, C Roitzheim, H Valencia, J Mayer, S Möller, ST Myung, M. Finsterbusch, O. Guillon, D. Fattakhova-Rohlfing, and P. Kaghazchi\* "Doping-Induced Surface and Grain Boundary Effects in Ni-Rich Layered Cathode Materials", Small, 2307678 (2024).

# All oxide-based solid-state sodium battery fabricated by new sintering process

## Takeshi Kobayashi

Energy Transformation Research Laboratory, Central Research Institute of Electric Power Industry, Yokosuka, Japan

\*E-mail: kobatake@criepi.denken.or.jp

Keywords: all solid-state battery, sodium battery, sintering agent, oxide-based solid electrolyte

All Oxide-based Solid-State Battery (AOSSB) is stable in air and keeps a high safety even in the event of a short circuit or other accident. To fabricate AOSSB, it is necessary to enrich the mechanical strength in the batteries and the ionic conduction between oxide based battery materials and prevent forming impurities due to side reactions between battery materials coinstantaneously by sintering them at high temperature due to hardness property of the materials. To avoid impurity formation, the sintering temperature must be lowered as much as possible. Sintering aids can be added or the oxide-based material itself can be softened to lower the sintering temperature [1].

In the former, it is good approach using a adequate sintering aid that can densify the material and keep ion conduction path at the lowest possible temperature. In the latter, the promising way to soften the oxide-based material is to select a carrier ion. Sodium-containing oxide based materials are often softer lithium, which is a typical carrier element for storage batteries [2]. Its characteristics of sodium element means advantageous for the fabrication of AOSSB.

I will talk a new sintering method and a new sintering agent for AOSSB in this session. It is required for sintering AOSSB to select both the electrode active materials and solid electrolyte with same sintering temperatures [3]. As one approach to solve the restriction, The new sintering method have been proposed to combine the multi-sintering-steps using the materials with different sintering temperatures [4]. Furthermore, borax has been found as a new sintering agent to enrich the mechanical and electrochemical properties in the battery. I will explain the charge-discharge performance of the batteries fabricated by the method and using the sintering agent.

### Acknowledgments

I would like to acknowledge the partial support of GteX Program Japan Grant Number JPMJGX23S2 for optimizing the sintering process of the AOSSB. Also, I gratefully acknowledge a national project, Grant JPNP14004, commissioned by the New Energy and Industrial Technology Development Organization (NEDO) for developing the AOSSB with high capacity.

### References

- 1. X. Han, et al., Energy Environ. Sci., 14, 5044 (2021).
- 2. A. Pedone, et al., Chem. Mater., 19, 3144 (2007).
- 3. F. Lalère, et al., J. Power Sources, 247, 975 (2014).
- 4. T. Kobayashi, et al., J. Power Sources, 450 227597 (2020).
- 5. D. Kutsuzawa, et al., ACS Appl. Energy. Mater., 5 4025 (2022).

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary
# Supercritical CO2 assisted synthesis of sulfur/rGO composite cathodes for Li-S batteries

### Róbert Kun\*, Shiva Shankar Lakshmi

Institute of Materials and Environmental Chemistry, Research Centre for Natural Sciences, H-1117 Budapest, Magyar tudósok krt. 2., Budapest, Hungary \*E-mail: kun.robert@ttk.hu

To address the shuttle effect and improve electrical conductivity in Li-S battery cathodes, in the present study the distinctive properties of supercritical CO2 as solvent (SC-CO2) and the unique porous and layered microstructure of reduced graphene oxide (rGO) in crafting a high-performance rGO/sulfur composite cathode have been leveraged. The utilization of SC-CO2 technology enables efficient sulfur transfer and precise control of the microstructure of S/C composite cathodes for Li-S batteries. Notably, this process can be carried out at room temperature, distinguishing it from conventional techniques that necessitate higher processing temperatures. Additionally, the resulting product, i.e., C/S nanocomposite can be easily separated by depressurizing the SC-CO2. It was showed, that as-synthesized rGO/ sulfur composite cathode exhibited outstanding performance (~1000 mAh g-1 at 0.1C) with an exceptionally low capacity decay rate of 0.03% per cycle even after 200 charge-discharge cycles. Moreover, the effect of the carbon surface chemistry on the electrochemical performance of the Li-S batteries has been investigated. As it was demonstrated the presence of the polar functional groups on the graphene sheets positively contributes to the chemical anchoring of the formed lithium-polysulfide species. This work suggests that the combined benefits of SC-CO2 technology and rGO as a sulfur host hold great promise for synthesizing efficient S/C composite cathodes with ultra-high cycling stability.

### Design, construction and electrochemical performance regulation of high specific energy lithium sulfur batteries

<u>Ruiping Liu</u><sup>\*</sup>, Wenhao Tang

Department of Chemical Engineering, China University of Mining & Technology (Beijing), Beijing, China \*E-mail: bjlrp165@126.com

Keywords: lithium sulfur batteries, shuttle effect, host, functional seperator

Lithium sulfur batteries are one of the most promising energy storage devices due to their environmental friendliness, low cost, and high energy density. However, the sluggish electrochemical kinetics and severe shuttle effects of lithium sulfur batteries, as well as the significant volume changes in the sulfur cathode, and dendrite growth in the lithium anode seriously hinder their practical application. This report proposes various effective strategies from two aspects to adress the issues, that is, suppressing shuttle effect of lithium polysulfide on the cathode and accelerating the reaction kinetics of lithium sulfur batteries, and suppressing lithium dendrite growth on the anode. High performance lithium sulfur batteries have been successfully designed and constructed. For the shuttle effect, strategies such as constructing sulfur host (biomass-derived carbon, birds-nest like Co<sub>3</sub>O<sub>4</sub> and CP@NiS/NiCo<sub>3</sub>O<sub>4</sub>) or directly using Li<sub>2</sub>S cathode (free standing  $CC@Li_2S@C$ ) are proposed. By optimizing the host materials, it can effectively anchor lithium polysulfides and alleviate the volume effect during its cycling process simultaneously; By designing and preparing multifunctional seperators (CNTs/Graphene hybrid, CNTs/g-C<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub>, MgNCN-ND-g-C<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub>, LiVPO<sub>4</sub>F/CNT) and intermediate layers (LiMoO,/super carbon/Nickl foam, Bi<sub>2</sub>S<sub>3</sub>/MoS<sub>3</sub>), the physical confinement, chemical adsorption, and electrostatic repulsion can be used to limit the shuttle of polysulfides and enhance the catalytic conversion ability of lithium polysulfides through overpotential driving force, heterogeneous interfaces, and defect engierring, etc., thereby significantly improving the rate performance and cycling performance of lithium sulfur batteries. For the lithium dendrite, designing a lithium array with selective coverage of an artificial SEI composed of Li<sub>2</sub>S<sub>v</sub> using rolling method and low-temperature gas-solid reaction, constructing a lithium friendly three-dimensional current collector, or a current collector with gradient pore structure will effectively solve the problem of uneven deposition of lithium on the upper surface under high current density, thereby achieving a dendrite-free, high-efficiency, and long-life lithium anode. Based on the above strategies, lithium sulfur batteries with high performance have been successfully designed and constructed, which will ultimately provide more research basis for the practicality of lithium sulfur batteries.

- Jie Di, Jin-Lin Yang, Han Tian, Pengfei Ren, Yirui Deng, Wenhao Tang, Wenqi Yan, Ruiping Liu,\* and Jianmin Ma\*. Dendrites-free Lithium Metal Anode Enabled by Synergistic Surface Structural Engineering. Advanced Functional Materials, 2022, 10.1002/adfm.202200474.
- Tengyu Li, Yanan Li, Jinlin Yang, Yirui Deng, Mengwei Wu, Qi Wang, Ruiping Liu\*, Ben Ge\*, Xiaokun Xie, Jianmin Ma\*. In Situ Electrochemical Activation Derived LixMoOy Nanorods as the Multifunctional Interlayer for Fast Kinetics Li-S batteries. Small, 2021, 202104613.
- Hang Liu, Jie Di, Ping Wang, Rui Gao, Han Tian, Pengfei Ren, Qingxi Yuan, Wanxia Huang, Ruiping Liu\*, Qiang Liu, Ming Feng\*. A Novel Design of 3D Carbon Host for Stable Lithium Metal Anode. Carbon Energy, 2022, 4654–4664.
- 4. Yinze Zuo, Yuejin Zhu, Ruchao Wan, Weiming Su, Ye Fan, Ruiping Liu\*, Yuefeng Tang \*, Yanfeng Chen. The Electrocatalyst based on LiVPO4F/CNT to enhance the electrochemical kinetics for high performance Li-S batteries. Chemical Engineering Journal, 2021(415): 129053.

# Mastering the sodium layered oxides and its reactivity with electrolyte for high performance Na-ion battery applications

Sathiya Mariyappan<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Juan Forero-Saboya<sup>1,2</sup>, Elisa Grepin<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Chimie du Solide et de l'Energie, UMR 8260, Collège de France, Paris 75231 CEDEX 05 France <sup>2</sup>Réseau sur le Stockage Electrochimique de l'Energie (RS2E), CNRS FR 3459, Amiens 80039 CEDEX 1, France

\*E-mail: sathiya.mariyappan@college-de-france.fr

Keywords: layered oxides, interface reactions, electrolyte optimisation, Na-ion batteries

Energy storage devices are pivotal for realizing the full potential of renewable energy resources that are intermittent in nature. In this regard, lithium-ion batteries have found great applications, although we need complementary devices given the low availability of Li resources. Towards this purpose, Na-ion batteries (NIBs) find greater interest due to the greater abundance of sodium hence low cost, and similar chemistry and engineering as that of Li-ion batteries. However, there were many difficulties to reach the commercial applications of Na-ion technology, especially regarding electrode materials and electrode-electrolyte interphases. Our team, together with the start-up TIAMAT (France) has achieved commercializing Na-ion cells based on Na<sub>3</sub>V<sub>2</sub>(PO<sub>4</sub>)<sub>2</sub>F<sub>3</sub> (NVPF)- hard carbon (HC) chemistry by tuning the electrolyte composition.<sup>1</sup> As a step forward, we are in the verge of commercializing Na-ion cells with improved energy density by moving to sodium layered oxide cathodes. However, there are several difficulties associated with these materials in comparison to NVPF. First, the sodium layered oxides show poor structural stability upon cycling that in turn lead to particle cracking, transition metal dissolution, oxygen release and associated deteriorating reactivity with electrolyte on ageing.<sup>2</sup> Hence, it is essential to design a suitable layered oxide material with better structural stability, fine-tune the synthesis conditions to get the designed material in bulk quantities and finally to optimize an electrolyte formulation resulting in stable interphases with less resistance at low and high temperatures. Our experiences in designing layered oxide cathode materials will be discussed in detail, together with our attempts on electrolyte engineering. Finally, a comparison will be provided based on NVPF- HC and sodium layered oxide- HC explaining their possible applications in different energy storage sectors.

### Acknowledgments

This work benefited from state aid managed by the National Research Agency under France 2030 bearing the reference ANR-22-PEBA-0003

- 1. Parth Desai, Jiaqiang Huang, Hussein Hijazi, Leiting Zhang, Sathiya Mariyappan, and Jean-Marie Tarascon, "Deciphering Interfacial Reactions via Optical Sensing to Tune the Interphase Chemistry for Optimized Na-Ion Electrolyte Formulation", Adv. Energy Mater. 2021, 2101490.
- Y. Liu, Y-H. Zhang, J. Ma, J. Zhao, X. Li and G. Cui, Challenges and Strategies toward Practical Application of Layered Transition Metal Oxide Cathodes for Sodium-Ion Batteries. Chem Mater. 2023, DOI: 10.1021/acs.chemmater.3c02115.

### 'Layered' transition metal oxides as cathode materials for Na-ion batteries: Composition – structure – environmental stability – electrochemical behaviour/performance

### Amartya Mukhopadhyay

Advanced Batteries and Ceramics Laboratory, Department of Metallurgical Engineering and Materials Science, Indian Institute of Technology Bombay, Mumbai, India \*E-mail: amartya\_mukhopadhyay@iitb.ac.in

**Keywords**: layered transition metal oxide; structural aspects; air/water-stability; electrochemical behavior; Na-ion battery

'Layered' transition metal  $(T_M)$  oxides are a fascinating class of materials, whose properties can be suitably tuned in a variety of ways; such as, by selecting  $T_{M}$ -ions/dopants having preferred electronic configurations, engineering the crystallographic site occupancy by dopants, controlling/modifying the degree of covalence of  $T_M$ -O bonds, modifying lattice spacing(s), tuning phase assemblage etc. Such modifications done from the fundamental perspectives influence the performances of T<sub>M</sub>-oxides for a variety of applications, including their widespread usage as cathode-active materials in alkali metal-ion batteries. In the context of the upcoming Na-ion battery system, O3-type 'layered' Na- $T_{M}$ -oxides are promising as cathodeactive materials due to their inherently high initial Na-content (as compared to the P2 counterparts); but suffer from instabilities caused due to multiple phase transformations during Na-removal/insertion and sensitivity to air/moisture. Against this backdrop, by tuning the overall covalency of the cation-oxygen bonds in the T<sub>M</sub>-layer (which, in turn, influences the Na-O bond) and also with the help of a dopant having  $d^0$  electronic configuration (viz., no OSPE), we have been able to tune the composition and structural features to suppress the phase transitions upon Na-removal/insertion and improve the air/water-stability in significant terms; so much so that long-term cyclic stability has been achieved with health/environmentfriendly 'aqueous processed' electrodes (sans, usage of toxic/expensive chemicals like NMP and PVDF) [J. Mater. Chem. A 8 (2020) 18064, Adv. Energy Mater. 13[19] (2023) 2204407]. The changes in structural features, which have led to such outstanding water-stability, include differential contraction/dilation of the Na-'inter-slab'/T<sub>M</sub>-'slab' spacing and partial occupancy of the dopant at tetrahedral sites of the structure. The former aspect has also been invoked to enhance the Na-transport kinetics and, hence, the rate-capability of the, otherwise, inherently sluggish O3-structured NaT<sub>M</sub>O<sub>2</sub>-based cathode material [ChemComm 59 (2023)] 4332]. Furthermore, in the context of the more 'rate-capable' P2-structured 'layered'  $Na-T_{M}$ oxide based cathode materials, but lacking in terms of having a lower starting Na-content (typically, 0.67-0.7 Na-ions p.f.u.), a universal strategy towards designing and developing high Na-containing P2-structured 'layered' Na- transition metal oxides has been evolved. This is based on increasing the average 'charge:size' ratio of the cation-combination in the  $T_{M}$ -layer and concomitant  $T_{M}$ -O bond covalency, resulting in lower effective negative charge on O-ions; and, in turn, rendering the prismatic coordination of O-ions around Na-ions more favourable even at higher Na-content. Accordingly, by careful selection of the combination of non- $T_M$ - $/T_M$ -ions in the  $T_M$ -layer, a high Na-containing (viz., ~0.84 p.f.u.) P2-type Na- $T_M$ oxide has been developed, which, as a cathode material for Na-ion batteries, exhibits a high desodiation capacity of ~178 mAh/g (@ C/5; within 2-4 V vs. Na/Na<sup>+</sup>), exceptional cyclic stability pertaining to ~98% capacity retention after 500 galvanostatic desodiation/sodiation cycles @ 2.5C and also stability upon exposure to air/water [Chem. Mater: 34 (2022) 10470].

# Migration of Mg in Na-O-Mg configuration for oxygen redox of sodium cathode

Jun Ho Yu, Seung-Taek Myung\*

Hybrid Materials Research Center, Department of Nanotechnology and Advanced Materials Engineering & Sejong Battery Institute, Sejong University, Seoul, South Korea \*E-mail: smyung@sejong.ac.kr

Keywords: oxygen, redox, sodium, cathode, battery

Mn-based P2-Na<sub>x</sub>[Li<sub>y</sub>TM<sub>1-y</sub>]O<sub>2</sub> cathode materials are available to reach high capacity through the combination of cationic and anionic redox in Na cells.<sup>1-11</sup> The Na–O–Li configuration induces the delivery of additional capacity assisted by the oxidation of oxygen when lone-pair electrons are formed in the O 2*p* orbital, provided that at least one of the following conditions is satisfied: 1) lattice oxygen evolution<sup>1</sup> or 2) migration of the Li element to Na layers although the corresponding charge transfer is kinetically sluggish.<sup>2</sup> The reaction is not limited to compounds that have alkali ions in the TM layer but is also available with divalent ions; namely, the presence of Mg in the TM layer, P2-Na<sub>x</sub>[Mg<sub>y</sub>Mn<sub>1-y</sub>]O<sub>2</sub> (x = ~2/3, y = ~0.28).

The effect of the 4*d* Ru element in P2-Na<sub>0.6</sub>[Mg<sub>0.2</sub>Ru<sub>0.2</sub>Mn<sub>0.6</sub>]O<sub>2</sub> is investigated. Ru-free Na<sub>0.6</sub>[Mg<sub>0.2</sub>Mn<sub>0.8</sub>]O<sub>2</sub> is activated with the Mn<sup>3+</sup>/Mn<sup>4+</sup> redox, after which the charge is compensated by the sluggish oxidation of lattice oxygen (O<sup>2-</sup>) to O<sub>2</sub><sup>n-</sup> triggered by O<sub>2</sub> evolution from the oxide lattice. These effects are generally unfavorable and result in poor long-term cycle stability induced by the irreversible migration of Mg<sup>2+</sup> from the transition metal (TM) to Na layers in the P2 structural framework. Benefiting from the covalent Ru bonded with O in the TM layers, the Mg migration reversibly progresses from the TM to sodium slabs without O<sub>2</sub> evolution in the structure. The associated reaction progresses via the active Mn<sup>4+</sup>/Mn<sup>3+</sup> and O<sup>2-</sup>/(O<sub>2</sub>)<sup>n-</sup> reaction in addition to the Ru<sup>5+</sup>/Ru<sup>4+</sup>/Ru<sup>3+</sup> redox pairs, endorsing the capacity increase (~210 mAh g<sup>-1</sup>), with ~72.1% retention for 300 cycles.



Figure 1. The presence of the higher-covalency Ru–O bond minimizes Mg migration from the TM to Na layers.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

Invited

- House, R. A.; Maitra, U.; Pérez-Osorio, M. A.; Lozano, J. G.; Jin, L.; Somerville, J. W.; Duda, L. C.; Nag, A.; Walters, A.; Zhou, K. J.; Roberts, M. R.; Bruce, P. G. *Nature* 2020, *577* (7791), 502–508.
- Voronina, N.; Shin, M. Y.; Kim, H. J.; Yaqoob, N.; Guillon, O.; Song, S. H.; Kim, H.; Lim, H. D.; Jung, H. G.; Kim, Y.; Lee, H. K.; Lee, K. S.; Yazawa, K.; Gotoh, K.; Kaghazchi, P.; Myung, S. T. Adv Energy Mater 2022, 12, 2103.

### Energetics of ionic transport on LiSiPON non-crystalline solid electrolytes

<u>Rafael B. Nuernberg</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Annie-Kim Landry<sup>1,2</sup>, Racha Bayzou<sup>3</sup>, Olivier Lafon<sup>3</sup>, Frédéric Le Cras<sup>2</sup>, Brigitte Pecquenard<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>CNRS, Université de Bordeaux, ICMCB and Bordeaux INP, F-33608 Pessac, France <sup>2</sup>Université Grenoble Alpes, CEA, LITEN, DEHT, 38000 Grenoble, France <sup>3</sup>Univiversité Lille, CNRS, Centrale Lille, Univ. Artois, UCCS, 59000 Lille, France \*E-mail: rafael.bianchini nuernberg@bordeaux-inp.fr

Keywords: ionic conductivity, permittivity, ion transport energetics, local structure

Currently, LiPON with general composition  $\text{Li}_{w}\text{PO}_{y}\text{N}_{z}$  is the most employed thin film electrolytes owing to its very low electronic conductivity (< 10<sup>-12</sup> S.cm<sup>-1</sup>), the lack of grain boundaries and the ability to passivate Li metal. These properties result in outstanding cycling performances. Besides, LiPON thin films can be prepared by radio frequency (RF) magnetron sputtering. Nevertheless, their Li<sup>+</sup> conductivity remains moderate, ~ 10<sup>-6</sup> S.cm<sup>-1</sup> at 298 K. This moderate conductivity is a major limitation to increase the power density of microbatteries, but also for their use in all-solid-state batteries. As an attempt to further increase the ionic conductivity of LiPON thin films, several other derived systems were proposed based on the partial replacement of phosphorus by another network glass former, such as boron, germanium, silicon, and sulfur. This approach stems from the well-known phenomenon so-called mixed network former effect, firstly reported on glassy bulk systems, which can lead to decrease the activation energy and increase the ionic conductivity. Among all the reported systems, the replacement of P by Si seems to show the most important increment of ionic conductivity.

The activation energy ( $E_a$ ) for ionic conductivity is actually constituted of two distinct contributions namely, migration ( $\Delta H_m$ ) and defect formation ( $\Delta H_f$ ) enthalpies, according to the following equation:  $E_a = \Delta H_f / 2 + \Delta H_m$ . These quantities are linked to structural features of the electrolyte that are strongly affected by chemical composition, and synthesis route. The debate regarding the  $Li_w Si_x P_{1-x} O_y N_z$  system is centered on the resulting structure once nitrogen and silicon are incorporated and on its structural role regarding the ionic transport. Another exciting discussion is oriented towards the similarities and fundamental differences in terms of structure and ionic transport of these amorphous thin-film electrolytes and their glassy bulk counterparts. Therefore, the major goal of this talk is to shed some light on the interplay of chemical composition, local structure and ionic transport on  $Li_w Si_x P_{1-x} O_y N_z$  amorphous thin films prepared by RF magnetron sputtering and glassy electrolytes prepared by the classical melt-quenching approach.

Herein, we apply a methodology based on impedance spectroscopy analyses to determine the partial contributions of defect formation and migration enthalpies to the overall activation energy for ionic conduction. The main results evidence that the well-known decrease in activation energy and enhancement of the ionic conductivity caused by the incorporation of nitrogen in amorphous LiPON is due to a drop in the migration enthalpy, while the defect formation enthalpy remains nearly the same. Moreover, when P is replaced by Si on  $\text{Li}_w\text{Si}_x\text{P}_1$ .  $_x\text{O}_v\text{N}_z$  amorphous thin films, a minimum in the dependence of the migration enthalpy on com-

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

position is spotted around a P/Si ratio close to unity. Finally, an astonishing difference arises when comparing the defect formation and migration enthalpies of  $\text{Li}_{w}\text{PO}_{y}\text{N}_{z}$  amorphous thin films and  $\text{Li}_{w}\text{PO}_{y}\text{N}_{z}$  glassy bulk electrolytes. While the activation energy on  $\text{Li}_{w}\text{PO}_{y}\text{N}_{z}$  amorphous thin films is largely controlled by the migration enthalpy, on  $\text{Li}_{w}\text{PO}_{y}\text{N}_{z}$  glassy bulk electrolytes the defect formation enthalpy is larger than the migration enthalpy. The variation of these quantities with the chemical composition and the synthesis route of these electrolytes is correlated with structural aspects unveiled by nuclear magnetic resonance spectroscopy or previously published experimental results and simulations.

### References

A.-K. Landry, R. Bayzou, A. Benayad, J. Trébosc, F. Pourpoint, O. Lafon, F. Le Cras, B. P. Le Cras, and R, B. Nuernberg, Chem. Mater. 2023, 35, 21, 9313–9324.

# New halide-based Na-ion conductors: NaNbCl<sub>6</sub>, NaTaCl<sub>6</sub>, and some more

### Saneyuki Ohno<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Zheng Huang<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Multidiciplenary Research for Advanced Materials, Tohoku University, Sendai, Japan <sup>2</sup>Department of Applied Chemistry, Kyushu Unviersity, Fukuoka, Japan <sup>\*</sup>E-mail: saneyuki.ohno.c8@tohoku.ac.jp

Keywords: solid electrolytes, solid state batteries, Na-ion batteries

All-solid-state sodium-ion (Na-ion) batteries are promising candidates for the post-lithiumion (Li-ion) batteries owing to their improved safety and earth abundance, enabled by lessto non-flammable solid electrolytes (SEs). Ion-conducting halides are an emerging class of materials for solid electrolytes that may satisfy all requirements with their balanced ionic conductivity (> 1 mS cm<sup>-1</sup> at room temperature), oxidation stability (~ 4 V), and room temperature processability. Ion-conducting halides first stepped into the spotlight in 2018 with the report of mechanochemically synthesized Li<sub>3</sub>YX<sub>6</sub> (X = Cl, Br). Up to date, a wide variety of Li-ion conducting halides have been reported, e.g., Li<sub>3</sub>M<sup>3+</sup>X<sub>6</sub> ( $M^{3+} = In$ , Sc, Ti, Y, Ho, Er, Yb and X = Cl, Br, I), Li<sub>2</sub>M<sup>4+</sup>X<sub>6</sub> ( $M^{4+} = Zr$ , Hf and X = Cl, Br, I), LiM<sup>5+</sup>Cl<sub>4</sub>O ( $M^{5+} = Nb$ , Ta) and LaCl<sub>3</sub>-based Li-ion conductor. Many exhibits room-temperature ionic conductivity higher than 1 mS cm<sup>-1</sup> and demonstrated stable cycling with the state-of-the-art cathode active materials operating > 4 V.

Despite the success in Li-ion conducting halides, only a few Na-ion conducting halides have been found to date, e.g.,  $Na_3M^{3+}Cl_6$  ( $M^{3+} = Y$ , Er, In),  $Na_2ZrCl_6$  and  $NaAlCl_4$ , and their reported room-temperature ionic conductivity are mostly less than 0.1 mS cm<sup>-1</sup>. With the less polarizing nature of Na ions, Na-ion conducting SEs tend to possess higher ionic conductivity than their Li-analogues, and indeed, higher ionic conductivity is generally reported in Naion conducting oxides and sulfides than those in Li-ion conducting counterparts. Inspired by the fact that the known Na-ion conducting halide-based SEs exhibit much inferior ionic conductivity to the Li-analogues, here we explore the new Na-ion conducting halides,  $NaM^{5+}Cl_6$ ( $M^{5+} = Nb$ , Ta), achieving 0.1 mS cm<sup>-1</sup> at 30 °C. This high ionic conductivity is attributed to the beneficial inductive effect and improved migration entropy and is one of the highest among the crystalline monoanionic Na-ion conducting halides.



Here the structural framework consists of MCl<sub>6x</sub> is extended from tri- and tetravalent ions to the pentavalent ions, forming alternating Na-layers as with additional stractural freedom on the metal sites.

#### Acknowledgments

The research that led to this work was supported by JSPS KAKENHI grant no JP 23H02069 and Toyota-Riken-scholar program.

### MXenes for all 'strain-free' solid-state batteries

### Masashi Okubo

Department of Electrical Engineering and Bioscience, School of Advanced Science and Engineering, Waseda University, 3-4-1 Okubo, Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo 169-855, Japan \*E-mail: m-okubo@waseda.jp

Keywords: all solid-state battery, zero strain, MXene

All-solid-state batteries with non-flammable inorganic solid electrolytes are a key technology to address the safety issues of lithium-ion batteries with flammable organic liquid electrolytes. However, conventional electrode materials suffer from substantial volume change during lithium-ion (de)intercalation, leading to the failure of the interface between the electrode materials and solid electrolytes and then severe performance degradation. In this work, we report strain-free charge storage via an interface between a transition-metal carbide nanosheet (MXene) and solid electrolytes, where MXene shows negligible structural change during lithium-ion (de)intercalation. Combined assessment including operando STEM-EELS elemental mapping clarified the strain-free nature of the MXene electrolyte interface is visualized, explaining the initial irreversible reactions at the MXene-electrolyte interface is visualized, explaining the initial irreversible capacities and relatively low rate capability of the MXene electrodes. A strain-free all-solid-state battery, which consists of  $Ti_3C_2T_x$  anode and disordered rocksalt  $Li_{8/7}Ti_{2/7}V_{4/7}O_2$  cathode, demonstrates a long-term operation owing to the strain-free nature of both electrode materials.



STEM-EELS mapping of MXene  $Ti_3C_2T_x$  electrode in an all solid-state battery

### References

- 1. K. Kawai, Y. Ando, M. Okubo, Small Methods, 2024, in press.
- 2. K. Kawai, M. Fujita, R. Iizuka, A. Yamada, M. Okubo, 2D Mater. 2023, 10, 014012.
- 3. T. Shimada, N. Takenaka, Y. Ando, M. Otani, M. Okubo, A. Yamada, *Chem. Mater.* 2022, 34, 2069–2075.
- 4. M. Okubo, S. Ko, D. Dwibedi, A. Yamada, J. Mater. Chem. A, 2021, 9, 7407–7421.
- 5. Y. Ando, M. Okubo, A. Yamada, M. Otani, Adv. Funct. Mater. 2020, 30, 2000820.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

## Impact of the anionic substitution and particles morphology on the energy storage performance of $Na_3V_2(PO_4)_2F_{3,v}O_v$

Jacob Olchowka<sup>1,4,5\*</sup>, Runhe Fang<sup>2</sup>, Long Nguyen<sup>1,3,4</sup>, Chloé Pablos<sup>1,3,4</sup>, Gaël Minart<sup>1</sup>, Rafael Bianchini Nuernberg<sup>1</sup>, Sophie Cassaignon<sup>2,4</sup>, Christian Masquelier<sup>3,4,5</sup>, Dany Carlier<sup>1,4,5</sup>, Laurence Croguennec<sup>1,4,5</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institut de Chimie de la Matière Condensée de Bordeaux, UMR CNRS 5026, F-33600 Pessac, France <sup>2</sup>Sorbonne Université, CNRS, Laboratoire Chimie de la Matière Condensée de Paris, 4 Place Jussieu, 75005 Paris, France

<sup>3</sup>Laboratoire de Réactivité et de Chimie des Solides, UMR CNRS 7314, F-80039 Amiens Cedex 1, France

<sup>4</sup>RS2E, Réseau Français sur le Stockage Electrochimique de l'Energie, FR CNRS 3459, France
<sup>5</sup>ALISTORE-ERI European Research Institue, FR CNRS 3104, F-80039 Amiens Cedex 1, France
\*E-mail: jacob.olchowka@icmcb.cnrs.fr

**Keywords**: Na-ion batteries, positive electrode material,  $Na_3V_2(PO_4)_2F_3$ , structure-properties relationship

The polyanionic family of compounds,  $Na_3V_2(PO_4)_2F_{3-y}O_y$  ( $0 \le y \le 2$ ), has attracted significant interest as a positive electrode material for Na-ion batteries thanks to their high working potential combined with a specific capacity of approximately 128 mAh/g (for the reversible extraction of 2 Na<sup>+</sup> per formula unit) and outstanding stability during cycling. Capitalizing on these attributes, the French company Tiamat has successfully developed and recently commercialized the first Na-ion batteries based on carbon-coated  $Na_3V_2(PO_4)_2F_3$  vs. hard carbon technology. [1]

Such impressive achievement is typically enabled by a thorough understanding of the structure-composition-morphology-properties relationship, facilitating further optimization of the active material's performance. For instance, a not optimized/controlled synthesis can lead to unexpected partial substitution of  $O^{2-}$  for F<sup>-</sup> and the formation of vanadyl-type defects. [2] Our research group has demonstrated that the competition between the ionic V<sup>3+</sup>–F bond and the covalent V<sup>4+</sup>=O bond has a major effect on the structure of the pristine materials, and then on the phase diagram and redox mechanisms involved upon their cycling in batteries. [3]

In this presentation, the influence of the anionic substitution will be illustrated for series of phases  $Na_3V_2(PO_4)_2F_{3,y}O_y$ . combining mainly Synchrotron X-ray diffraction, electrochemistry, differential scanning calorimetry and spectroscopic studies. In addition to correlate the composition to the electrochemical behavior, the impact of this substitution on the thermal stability and thermal degradation mechanisms will also be discussed. [4] Besides, the comprehensive study that details the influence of the particle's size and morphology on the electrical conductivity and thus, on the energy storage performance will be presented. [5]

#### Acknowledgments

Thanks to the French National Research Agency (ANR-10-LABX-76-01 and ANR-21-CE50-0006) and to the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation program (No 875629 NAIMA project).

- 1. https://www.tiamat-energy.com/
- Fang, R.; Olchowka, J.; Pablos C.; Sanz Camacho, P.; Carlier D.; Croguennec, L.; Cassaignon, S., Batteries & Supercaps, 2021, 5, e202100179.
- Nguyen L.H.B.; Broux, T.; Sanz Camacho, P.; Denux, D.; Bourgeois, L.; Belin, S.; Iadecola, A.; Fauth, F.; Carlier, D.; Olchowka, J.; Masquelier, C.; Croguennec, L., *Energy Storage Materials*, 2019, 20, 324–334.
- Pablos, C.; Olchowka, J.; Petit, E.; Minart, G.; Duttine, M.; Weill, F.; Masquelier C.; Carlier D.; Croguennec L., *Chemistry of Materials*, 2023, 35, 10, 4078–4088.
- Olchowka, J.; Fang, R.; Bianchini Nuernberg, R.; Pablos, C.; Carlier, D.; Cassaignon, S.; Croguennec, L., Nanoscale, 2022, 14, 8663–8676.

## Ceramic/polymer composite electrolytes for all solid-state sodium-ion batteries

Sushmita Dwivedi, Sudharshan Vasudevan, Palani Balaya\*

Department of Mechanical Engineering, School of Design and Engineering, National University of Singapore, 117575, Singapore \*Email: mpepb@nus.edu.sg

All-solid-state sodium-ion batteries (SSSIBs) are designed to address the safety concerns related to traditional liquid electrolyte batteries. By incorporating non-flammable solid electrolytes and electrodes, these batteries significantly reduce the risks of leakage and fire, making them a safer and more reliable energy storage solution. In this talk, we present a NASICON-type ceramic electrolyte Na<sub>3</sub>Zr<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>PO<sub>12</sub> (NZSP) with co-doping of Mg<sup>2+</sup> and Sc<sup>3+</sup> to achieve high ionic conductivity by means of alteration of crystal structure and microstructure. Mg<sup>2+</sup> doping reduces the grain boundary resistance by forming a conducting NaMgPO<sub>4</sub> phase which may cause Na deficiency in the bulk. . Co-substitution of a trivalent Sc3+ along with  $Mg^{2+}$  at the  $Zr^{4+}$  site helps to increase Na content in the bulk. As a result, the Na ion mobility through grains and grain boundaries increases with this co-doping. The highest grain and grain boundary ionic conductivities ( $\sigma_b \sim 1.78 \times 10^{-3} \text{ Scm}^{-1}$  and  $\sigma_{gb} \sim 0.4 \text{ mScm}^{-1}$ ) and Na transference number ( $t_{Na+} \sim 0.998$ ) have been achieved for the optimized composition of Na<sub>3.3</sub>Zr<sub>1.8</sub>Mg<sub>0.10</sub>Sc<sub>0.10</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>PO<sub>12</sub> (NZSP-0.1MS). This has led to the suppression of sodium dendrite growth and increased electrochemical stability of the ceramic electrolyte. The NZSP-0.1MS ceramic electrolyte is further employed in quasi-solid state cells; a decent discharge capacity of 91 mAh/g at 0.1C rate was obtained for "Zn doped (NVZP) (cathode)|| NZSP-0.1MS ||NVZP(Anode)" ceramic full cell.

NZSP-0.1MS ceramic electrolyte filler is further incorporated into the polymer-salt matrix to develop the PEO-NaTFSI/NZSP-0.1MS composite electrolyte. The all-solid-state cell comprised of composite electrode (NVZP/NZSP-0.1MS/PVDF-NaTFSI/C) and composite electrolyte PEO-NaTFSI/NZSP-0.1MS delivered a maximum discharge capacity of 105 mAh/g at 0.1C, at 60 °C with good rate performance and cyclic stability retaining 85% capacity over 80 cycles. At 1C a specific capacity of 78 mAh.g<sup>-1</sup> is reported for the Catholyte||PEO-NaTFSI/NZSP-0.1MS||Anolyte full cell. Interestingly, the capacity is restored to 97 mAh/g after returning to 0.1C, which suggests reversible electrochemical stability of the cell components. The all-solid-state sodium-ion cell design has achieved electrochemical performance comparable to conventional NVP-based liquid electrolyte cells. This advancement paves the way for the development of safer and next-generation sodium-ion battery technology.

### Sacrificial salt versus presodiation in hard carbon-based Na-ion full cells

### Verónica Palomares<sup>1,3</sup>, Nekane Nieto<sup>1</sup>, Alexander Lopez-Urionabarrenechea<sup>2</sup>, Teófilo Rojo<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Organic and Inorganic Chemistry Department, University of the Basque Country UPV/EHU, P.O. Box 644, 48080, Leioa, Spain
<sup>2</sup>Chemical and Environmental Engineering Department, University of the Basque Country UPV/EHU, 48013 Bilbao, Spain
<sup>3</sup>BCMaterials, Basque Center for Materials, Applications and Nanostructures, UPV/EHU Science Park, 48940 Leioa, Spain

\*E-mail: veronica.palomares@ehu.eus

Among the possible anodes for Na-ion batteries, there is wide consensus about hard carbons as one of the best options in terms of specific capacity, rate capability cost and sustainability, as these materials can be obtained from waste biomass, changing a residue into a material of technological value. In the last years, research about hard carbons applied as anodes in Na-ion batteries has developed high performing materials, but the further step towards a full Na-ion cell based on a hard carbon anode is only starting and there are not much published works regarding this issue. The main setback when balancing anode and cathode electrode mass to plan a full cell system is the great irreversibility of the hard carbons during their first cycle, that usually entails the need of a previous cycling of the hard carbon to precondition the negative electrode and form the SEI on it before matching up cathode and anode.

The use of a sacrificial salt as extra Na source in the cathode composition would avoid anode presodiation and reduce cell assembly time, with the only need of a first formation cycle to decompose the salt and generate the SEI.

In this work, hard carbon produced from sunflower seed shells by hydrothermal carbonization and further pyrolysis is used as anode material to explore different strategies to develop Na-ion full-systems in coin cell configuration: direct use of fresh anode, precycled anode (*vs.* Na<sup>+</sup>/Na) and fresh anode with a sacrificial salt in the cathode formulation. These strategies are used in three different cathode chemistries:  $Na_{2/3}Mn_{0.8}Fe_{0.1}Ti_{0.1}O_2$  layered oxide, and  $Na_3V_2O_2(PO_4)_2F$  and  $Na_3V_2(PO_4)_3$  polyanionic compounds. The material of choice as sacrificial salt is  $Na_2C_3O_5$ , as a not flammable compound that can be easily prepared by drying the commercial  $Na_2C_3O_5$ ·H<sub>2</sub>O low cost reactant.

The effect of the different cycling/precycling protocols on the electrochemical performance is analyzed in terms of rate capability, cycling stability and battery energy density. The chemical species formed on the electrodes surface after the different assembly protocols and configurations during short-term and long-term cycling are studied by pre- and post-mortem characterization by Scanning Electron Microsocopy (SEM), X-ray diffraction (XRD) and X-ray Photoelectron Spectroscopy (XPS). Strong and weak points of the assembly and cycling strategies will be discussed based on experimental data.

## Site-specific doping strategy for high-performance lithium-ion-battery cathode materials

Yameng Fan<sup>1</sup>, Bernt Johannessen<sup>1,2</sup>, Xun Xu1, Khay Wai See<sup>1</sup>, Wei Kong Pang<sup>1\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Faculty of Engineering, Science, and Information, University of Wollongong, NSW Australia <sup>2</sup>Australian Synchrotron, Clayton, VIC Australia \*E-mail: wkpang@uow.edu.au

Keywords: cathode, structure-function relationship, neutron, synchrotron

Cathode is the well-known performance bottleneck of lithium-ion batteries (LIBs). All currently commercialised cathodes are crystalline and have a symmetrical structure forming a matrix of scaffold arrays, facilitating a specific route for the charge carriers to diffuse in and out, and offering the capability of storing and releasing lithium ions. Among promising cathode candidates for next-generation high-energy-density LIBs, disordered spinel  $\text{LiNi}_{0.5}\text{Mn}_{1.5}\text{O}_4$  (LNMO)<sup>1</sup> and lithium-rich layered oxide (LLO)  $\text{Li}_{1+x}\text{TMO}_2$  (TM = Mn, Ni, etc.)<sup>2</sup> have garnered considerable attention due to their unique Fd-3m cubic space group and R-3m+c2/c intergrown structure, respectively, resulting in distinct 3D and 2D lithium-ion diffusion pathways and varied electrochemical performance, whereas their intrinsic issues hold back their wider applications. Our goal is to address the root causes of instability by targeting specific crystallographic sites through a fundamental structure/function relationship approach. The aid of neutron and X-ray scattering techniques enables us to achieve exceptional durability and phenomenal performance for intercalation-type electrodes. A noteworthy success in our research lies in the incorporation of Ru and Cr within the intergrown structure of LLOs through a site-specific doping strategy. By addressing the side effects of the oxygen redox reaction, the Ru-doped LLO demonstrates an extraordinarily stable voltage (decay rate <0.45 mV per cycle)<sup>4</sup>, and a high capacity-retention rate, and the Cr-doped LLO achieves a remarkable battery performance, 99% of its initial discharge capacity after 200 cycles at 1C<sup>5</sup>. researchers. This presentation showcases the effectiveness of crystallographicsite-specific doping and sheds light on novel approaches for enhancing the electrochemical performance of LIBs. This work opens new horizons in the quest for advanced energy storage systems and paves the way for the design and development of even more efficient and long-lasting batteries.



Figure 1. Schematic illustrations of (a) Ru two-phase doping effects on LLO and (b-c) how Cr doping mitigates the metal migration within LLO structure.

### Acknowledgments

This work is supported by the Australian Research Council for FT160100251 and DP230100198.

- 1. Angewandte Chemie 132 (26), 10681-10689; (b) Advanced Materials 33 (44), 2101413; (c) Angewandte Chemie International Edition 61 (27), e202201969
- 2. Angewandte Chemie 135 (5), e202213806; (b) ACS Energy Letters 9, 487–496.

# Interplay of disorder, doping and conductivity in fast charging anode materials

### Srinivasan Ramakrishnan

Department of Chemistry, Indian Institute of Technology Bombay, Mumbai, India E-mail: sriniramk@iitb.ac.in

Keywords: batteries, disorder, fast charging, Na-ion

Despite the ubiquity of Li-ion batteries, there is a need for a significant increase in their energy density and fast charging capability. The currently employed graphitic anodes cannot be fast charged due to internal polarizations that result in Li plating, SEI breakage and further degradation resulting in cycling instability as well as safety related issues. Our group is interested in the a priori design of anode materials that can facilitate fast charging via an optimal combination of microstructure, porosity and electrical conductivity. By controlling the dopant density in titania-based nanomaterials, we were able to tune the degree of disorder in these materials. Intriguingly, the extent of disorder achieved in these materials via synthetic design, in turn, resulted in electrical conductivities spanning five orders of magnitude with a direct correlation to the extent of disorder. The differences in electrical conductivity and extent of disorder in these materials was found to influence Li<sup>+</sup> and Na<sup>+</sup> charge storage behavior at high rates as well as long term cycling stability.



Figure. Tuning of Electrical and Ionic conductivities in disordered titanium oxyhydroxides

### Acknowledgments

IIT Bombay, SERB and DST, Government of India for funding.

### Accelerating the development of new battery materials

### Marine Reynaud

Centre for Cooperative Research on Alternative Energies (CIC energiGUNE), Basque Research and Technology Alliance (BRTA), Vitoria-Gasteiz, Basque Country, Spain<sup>2</sup>Microscopy Inc., City, Country E-mail: mreynaud@cicenergigune.com

Keywords: Li-ion, Na-ion, cathodes, Materials Acceleration Platforms (MAP), self-driving labs

Battery innovation relies on developing new electroactive materials. To timely respond to the increasing demand for energy storage solutions, the European Battery 2030+ Initiative targets accelerating by 5-to-10 fold the current rate of battery materials discovery within the next 5-10 years [1]. Taking up this challenge requires disruptive approaches that allow rethinking the traditional experimentation process (based on researcher's chemical intuition and trial-error scheme), which is inherently slow and economically expensive. Indeed, the crystal-chemical space offered by the periodic table for the search for new battery materials is huge and still far from being exhaustively explored.

To accelerate the exploration of broad chemical spaces, our group is developing an autonomous Materials Development Platform, capable of making effective modelling-based predictions, self-driving inorganic synthesis and performing high-throughput characterization experiments. This requires a mind change in our approach to materials research, but also building new lab infrastructures and analytical tools, which include automated high-throughput synthesis modules, automated data analysis programs able to handle large amounts of data, as well as AI-aided experimental planners.



In this presentation, we will present several strategies explored at CIC energiGUNE to speed up the different stages of the development of new materials for Li-ion and Na-ion batteries. Such approaches include:

(i) the use of automated machine-learningaided screenings of materials databases in search for new families of compounds that can be converted into electroactive materials [2, 3];

(ii) the development of solutions to automatize inorganic syntheses (e.g. co-precipitation, solvothermal, sol-gel; Figure 1) and characterization techniques (e.g. XRD, electrochemistry) [4];

(iii) the development of analysis tools for automated data treatment and analysis, including a Machine-Learning experimental planner, chemometrics approaches for data analysis of large XAS data sets, or the new FullProfAPP that enables automated Rietveld refinements of large series of data, in particular those generated from operando experiments [4, 5].

### Acknowledgments

This work was in particular supported by the Spanish MCIN/AEI/10.13039/501100011033 and ERDF/ EU (project ref. PID2019-106519RB-I00, PID2022-140823OB-I00, PhD grant PRE2020-092978), the Basque Government (PhD grants ref. PRE-2021-2-011) and the European Commission (G.A. No 957189).

- 1. Roadmap Battery 2030+ https://battery2030.eu/research/roadmap/
- Katcho et al. Journal of Applied Crystallography, 52, 2019, pp. 148-157. DOI: 10.1107/ S1600576718018484
- 3. Gallo-Bueno et al. Energy and AI, 2022, 9, pp. 100159 DOI: 10.1016/j.egyai.2022.100159
- 4. https://cicenergigune.com/en/fullprof-app
- 5. Fehse et al. Chemistry of Materials, 2022, 34(14), pp. 6529–6540. 10.1021/acs.chemmater.2c01360

### Development of high-energy sulfur based nano-composite electrode materials in all-solid-state batteries

### Hikari Sakaebe

National Institute of Advanced Industrial Science and Technology (AIST), Osaka, Japan Kyushu University, Fukuoka, Japan E-mail: sakaebe@cm.kyushu-u.ac.jp

Keywords: metal polysulfides, lithium-sulfur battery, all-solid-state-battery, high energy density

High energy battery is required for several applications such as vehicle use, and at the same time, all-solid-state batteries (ASSB) are thought to be favorable in safety issues when the energy density increased. Authors have developed a series of new positive electrode materials, nano-composite for ASSB, such as  $LiVS_2-Li_2S^{-1}$ .  $LiVS_2 - 2Li_2S(Li_5VS_4)$  has high electric conductivity and high capacity. Electrodes of  $Li_5VS_4$  works in ASSB without conductive additive and showed 600 mAh g<sup>-1</sup> when 15 wt% of argyrodite-type solid electrolyte was added. In this study, we successfully increased the  $Li_2S$  content for capacity enhancement.  $LiVS_2$ - $3.5Li_2S(Li_8VS_{5.5})$  also worked without or with slight amount of conductive additive (1 wt% is enough) to show more than 700 mAh g<sup>-1</sup> (Fig. 1). Generally Li-S system is advantageous in gravimetric energy density, however, it has a drawback in volumetric energy density due to the lower density of materials used. We constructed the full cell using Si negative electrode and the volumetric energy density of the proto-type cell was estimated more than 800 Wh l<sup>-1</sup>. This is higher than the volumetric energy density of commercial Li-ion battery of high energy type. The cell we developed showed better thermal stability than that using layered-oxide, NMC. Nano-composite materials seems promising for ASSB.



**Fig.** 1 First charge-discharge curves of In-Li / Li5VS<sub>4</sub> and In-Li / Li<sub>8</sub>VS<sub>5.5</sub>. Electrode is a pressed pellet (active material : solid electrolyte = 85 : 15 by wt.), and total weight of electrode mixture is 10 mg. In-Li alloy was used as negative electrode. Test condition : 0.02 C 1.0-3.0 V vs. In-Li at 25°C

### Acknowledgments

This work is based on the results obtained from a project, SOLiD-EV (JPNP18003), subsidized by the New Energy and Industrial Technology Development Organization (NEDO).

### References

Otoyama M, Takeuchi T, Taguchi N, Kuratani K, Sakaebe H. Mechanochemical Synthesis and Electrochemical Properties of LixVSy Positive Electrodes for All Solid-State Batteries. ECS Adv. 2023; 2; 010501.

### Metal dicarboxylates as anode materials

#### Matthew Teusner, Neeraj Sharma\*

School of Chemistry, The University of New South Wales, Kensington, NSW 2052, Australia \*E-mail: neeraj.sharma@unsw.edu.au

Keywords: metal acids, formulation chemistry, electrode preparation

Graphite is currently the anode of choice for the majority of lithium-ion batteries. Although widely used, it has a number of key limitations, including hazardous and expensive processing, the possibility of lithium plating especially in high-rate applications, and relatively low energy density or capacity. As such, there are significant opportunities to improve on the limitations imposed by graphite. This work explores transition-metal dicarboxylates as an alternative to graphite.

Our work started by exploring reported carboxylic acids, showing that during electrode processing the acids could react with the curent collector, e.g., Cu, producing the copper dicarboxylate.

From this point, we synthesized a range of metal dicarboxylates employing them as anode materials, determining their electrochemical performance and unravelling the lithium storage mechanism. In doing so, we have found that formulation chemistry, i.e., the way the electrode is prepared, has a significant impact on the performance of these materials. For example, water-based or n-methyl-2-pyrrolidone (NMP) formulation can dramatically change the capacity and cycling behaviour of a single species, as shown in Figure 1a. Hence, to fully understand and optimise the performance of these materials the effect of all relevant parameters, e.g., particle size, active material/conductive carbon distribution, formulation solvent, and transition metal oxidation state needs to be deconvoluted, as shown in Figure 1b.

Overall, this talk will provide an overview of the work we are undertaking with these compounds and how we are using processing methodology and mechanistic studies to understand function and optimise materials.



Figure 1. (a) Capacity versus cycle number for iron (ii) tartrate and (b) comparison of capacity at various cycle numbers for iron-based dicarboxylates.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

### Stable lithium metal anode: Regulated plating/stripping in 3D host

### Manjusha Shelke

Physical & Materials Chemistry Division, CSIR-National Chemical Laboratory, Pune, MH, India E-mail: mv.shelke@ncl.res.in

Keywords: lithium metal battery, host materials, dendrite suppression, plating/stripping

The development of high-capacity and stable lithium metal anodes is pivotal for advancing the performance of next-generation lithium-ion batteries. However, several critical challenges, such as dendrite formation, capacity decay, and safety concerns, have hindered its practical application. All the strategies to prevent Li dendrites are based on the space-charge model for Li dendrite nucleation and growth which predicts that cationic and anionic concentrations exhibit unusual behaviour at Sand's time resulting in the development of excess positive charge and uneven electric fields at negative electrode which ultimately leads to dendrite nucleation and subsequent growth. Thus, Sand's time is the period of actual dendrite-free deposition after the onset of electrodeposition. Though the dendrite growth issue could be mitigated to a large extent, huge volume changes and poor coulombic efficiency (CE) persist at higher current density and high Li intake deposition in host less Li metal which can further deteriorate the overall battery performance. In this talk I will deliberate on the critical role of host materials in stabilizing lithium metal anodes by providing a protective environment that mitigates the formation of dendrites, a major cause of short circuits and safety concerns. The discussion will cover various aspects of host engineering, including material selection, design principles, and the influence of host structure on lithium metal deposition and stripping processes.

- 1. Carbon, 179, 256–265 (2021).
- 2. Journal of energy storage, 68, 107547 (2023).
- 3. Chemistry An Asian Journal, 18, e202300068 (2023).
- 4. ChemSusChem, 15, e202200504 (2022).

### Interfacial chemistry design for silicon-based anodes

Yen Hai Thi Tran, Kihun An, Dong Guk Kang, Guntae Lim, Min-Geun Oh, <u>Seung-Wan Song</u>\*

Department of Chemical Engineering & Applied Chemistry, Chungnam National University, Daejeon, South Korea \*E-mail: swsong@cnu.ac.kr

Keywords: silicon-based anode, interfacial chemistry, electrolyte, SEI, lithium-ion batteries

Our society is being electrified with lithium-ion (LIB) batteries whose application range is being expanded from electric vehicles and stationary energy storage systems to various e-mobilities, airplanes and submarines. Then, the demand for higher energy density and safe LIBs is continuously increasing for longer range use of LIBs and the safety of customers, respectively. Although an increase in the content of silicon (Si) of Si-graphite anodes toward Si-dominant anodes is of great interest for high energy density LIBs, swelling issue hinders the use of increased content of Si beyond the current level and brings the risk of safety hazard. One of the critical strategies for improved performance and safety simultaneously is to innovate electrolyte that enables the stabilization of interfacial chemistry, i.e., solid electrolyte interphase (SEI) layer, of Si-based anodes, which will suppress the swelling of Si, prevents Li-dendrites at graphite and stabilizes cathode interface. We will present our research results that electrolyte and interfacial chemistry designs yield performance improvement of Si-based anodes.

### Acknowledgments

This research was supported by the National Research Foundation grant (RS-2023-00260261, RS-2023-00217581) funded by the Ministry of Science and ICT of Korea.

# Development of novel materials for Li-ion and redox flow batteries – applied research, modelling, and testing

<u>Andrea Straková Fedorková</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Natália Podrojková<sup>1</sup>, Veronika Niščáková<sup>1</sup>, Juan Asenjo-Pascual<sup>2</sup>, Tomáš Košický<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Chemistry, Faculty of Science, P. J. Šafárik University, Moyzesova 11, 041 54 Košice, Slovakia <sup>2</sup>INO-HUB Energy, Tomášikova 30, 821 01 Bratislava, Slovakia \*E-mail: andrea.fedorkova@upjs.sk

Keywords: Li-ion batteries, MOF, redox-flow batteries, applied research

Advanced rechargeable batteries are gaining high importance in the transition toward carbon neutrality, affordable, secure energy, sustainable and smart mobility, and circular economy. Their acceptability will highly rely on the improved quality, reliability, lifetime, and safety. The acceptance of these batteries' hinges on enhanced quality, reliability, lifespan, and safety standards. Moreover, a crucial aspect is their durability and the use of ethically sourced materials, minimizing negative environmental impact. The goal is to ensure that these batteries can be efficiently recycled, remanufactured, or repurposed at the end of their lifecycle, contributing to the return of valuable materials to the economy.

Until now, lithium-ion batteries (LIBs) are dominating the secondary battery market, finding widespread use in different areas, such as e-mobility, various portable electronic devices, and energy storage systems due to their high energy density, good stability, and track record. Nevertheless, the innovations of LIBs are highly anticipated from the electrode materials, electrolytes, separators, and cell structures. In addition to LIBs, redox flow batteries (RFB) are emerging as prime candidates for grid-scale stationary energy storage. Their capability to store large amounts of electrical energy for extended periods and release it quickly when needed, coupled with an extended lifespan and reasonable efficiency, make them attractive options. The redox couples and electrolytes play important roles in determining the energy density and cost of redox flow batteries.

In this study we are developing a novel battery component using modelling and real testing of different components with aim to build a hybrid battery energy storage system that simultaneously provides multiple services (mobile and/or stationary).



Figure 1 Redox flow battery testing rig and single cell for testing of battery components.

#### Acknowledgments

This research was sponsored by the IPCEI\_IE\_FLOW\_BESS\_012021 project and by projects APVV-20-0138 and APVV-20-0111.

### Multi-faceted R&D innovations to understand battery chemistries and ceramic materials

#### Wan Si Tang

Electrochemical Safety Research Institute, UL Research Institutes, Houston, TX 77204, USA E-mail: wansi.tang@ul.org

**Keywords**: oxide, phosphate, solid-state electrolyte, solid-state battery, *operando* microscope, additive manufacturing, performance, safety

The uses of ceramic materials in current and future energy storage battery technologies have penetrated or will soon penetrate the commercial space. However, as the complete understanding of their hazards is still lacking, it is necessary to investigate the potential risks of pre-commercialized battery chemistries through the whole design process.<sup>[1]</sup> The materials-level research and development (R&D) at the Electrochemical Safety Research Institute (ESRI) is studying early-technology readiness level (TRL),<sup>[2]</sup> new chemistry and novel engineering methods of energy storage and conversion through a safety lens.

This presentation focuses on several on-going collaborations to leverage combined learnings, including investigating the anatase-LMFP (lithium manganese iron phosphate) system, *operando* imaging of solid-state batteries (SSBs), and new additive manufacturing processes for cell fabrication.

The anatase-LMFP system can potentially be a chemistry pairing suited for fast charge conditions,<sup>[3,4]</sup> and with Dr. Palani Balaya (National University of Singapore), the performance and safety of these materials for next generation lithium-ion batteries in the 18650 cylindrical cell format are investigated.

*Operando* optical microscopy often provides great visualization to identify interfacial reactions and resistances between battery layers during electrochemical cycling.<sup>[5]</sup> With Dr. Xiaonan Shan (University of Houston), this project aims to elucidate safety in SSBs through relating changes in light intensity and electrochemical signatures.

Finally, preliminary information regarding 3D-printing of anode-free all-solid-state batteries will also be shared from the collaboration with Dr. Fan Zheng (University of Houston). The Director of Research (Novel Materials & New Energy Forms), Dr. Wan Si TANG, will be presenting this talk for the Electrochemical Safety Research Institute (ESRI), under UL Research Institutes. At ESRI, we are interested in the energy storage safety from materials to cells and scaling up into commercially viable applications to advance the area of current lithium-ion batteries, future battery chemistries, and other green energy storage and conversion technologies.<sup>[6]</sup>

#### Acknowledgments

Collaborators: Dr. Palani Balaya (National University of Singapore), Dr. Xiaonan Shan (University of Houston), Dr. Fan Zheng (University of Houston)

- Lamb, J. & Jeevarajan, J.A., "New developments in battery safety for large-scale systems.", MRS Bulletin 46, 395 (2021). DOI:10.1557/s43577-021-00098-0
- Frith, J.T., Lacey, M.J. & Ulissi, U., "A non-academic perspective on the future of lithium-based batteries." *Nat. Commun.* 14, 420 (2023). DOI:10.1038/s41467-023-35933-2
- Balaya, P., Krishnamoorthy, A. & Kuppan, S. (2012). Crystalline Mesoporous Titanium Dioxide And The Use Thereof In Electrochemical Devices. (U.S. Patent No. 2012/0225355 A1) U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.
- Balaya, P. & Ramar, V. (2016). Approach For Manufacturing Efficient Mesoporous Nano-Composite Positive Electrode LiMn<sub>1-x</sub>Fe<sub>x</sub>PO<sub>4</sub> Materials. (U.S. Patent No. 2016/0308212 A1) U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.
- Lu, X., Lagnoni, M., Bertei, A., Das, S., Owen, R. E., Li, Q., O'Regan, K., Wade, A., Finegan, D. P., Kendrick, E., Bazant, M. Z., Brett, D. J. L. & Shearing, P. R., "Multiscale dynamics of charging and plating in graphite electrodes coupling operando microscopy and phase-field modelling", *Nat. Commun.* 14, 5127 (2023). DOI:10.1038/s41467-023-40574-6
- 6. ESRI's website: ul.org/esri

### Na<sub>4</sub>Fe<sub>3</sub>(PO<sub>4</sub>)<sub>2</sub>P<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub> empowering: Synthesis guidelines for tailoring electrochemical performance

### Milica Vujković

University of Belgrade – Faculty of Physical Chemistry, Studentski trg 12-16, Belgrade, Serbia Center for Interdisciplinary and Multidisciplinary Studies, University of Montenegro, Podgorica, Montenegro E-mail: milica.vujkovic@ffh.bg.ac.rs

Keywords: Na4Fe3(PO4)2P2O7, Na-ion batteries, sol-gel method, synthesis guidelines

Several developed cathode structures, such as  $Na_aNi_{1-x-y-z}Mn_xMg_yTi_zO_2$ , O3- $NaNi_{1/3}Fe_{1/6}Mn_{1/3}Mg_{1/12}Sn_{1/12}O_2$  layered oxides, polyanionic  $Na_3V_2(PO_4)_2F_3$  and Prussian Blues Analogues (PBAs) have found their application in recently launched Na-ion battery prototypes. The cathode type dictates the potential application, since it is challenging to develop a cathode material that excels in longevity, economic feasibility, storage stability, scale-up viability, and energy density [1]. Usually, when selecting a cathode in terms of the highest energy and power density, there is a trade-off involving durability, economic considerations, and ecological impact.

By prioritizing ecological and economic matters, we focused our efforts on developing a novel, eco-friendly, and cost-effective polyanionic cathode for Na-ion batteries, with the composition of  $Na_4Fe_3(PO_4)_2P_2O_7$  (NFPP). The literature survey of this NFPP polyanionic family [2], opened up unresolved issues: 1. Discrepancies regarding the use of phosphorous source (solely PO<sub>4</sub> or PO<sub>4</sub>/P<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub> mixture) without elucidating the parameters governing NFPP stoichiometry and appearance of secondary phases; 2. Challenges associated with NFPP via a sol-gel synthesis, using both PO<sub>4</sub> and P<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub> units; 3. Problems with XRD and FTIR analyses when it comes to the formation of accompanying  $Na_2FeP_2O_7$  (NFP) phase 4. Clarification regarding NFP presence and whether it boosts or deteriorates NFPP performance; 5. The challenge of attaining the theoretical capacity at elevated current rates.

These issues have been addressed in the course of this study through the synthesis of a series of samples, with different NFPP and NFP ratios, produced by varying amounts of citric acid and controlling pH [3]. Developed samples served as a platform to examine the formation mechanism of the polyanionic NFPP phase and its relationship with the secondary polyanion pyrophosphate phase. Our findings not only shed light on the synthesis process, by addressing the intricate interplay between iron species, citric acid, and oxalates but also suggested appropriate guidelines for the successful production of the NFPP phase. The mixed NFPP phase was found to have higher capacity when liberated from NFP, capable of reaching the theoretical value (129 mAh g<sup>-1</sup> at 1 A g<sup>-1</sup>) and displaying high-rate capability in Na-containing aqueous electrolyte. Lower, but more stable capacity over cycling, was measured with the organic type of electrolyte. The results can be helpful for the broad family of polyanionic compounds in light of their synthesis for tuning their sodium storage properties.

### Acknowledgments

The author acknowledges the Ministry of Science, Technological Development and Innovation of the Republic of Serbia for support through the national program (Contract number: 451-03-66/2024–03/200146) and the Bilateral project Serbia-Germany 2024–025.

- 1. P. Gupta, S. Pushpakanth, M. A. Haider, S. Basu\*, Understanding the Design of Cathode Materials for Na-Ion Batteries ACS Omega 2022, 7, 5605–5614.
- A. Gezović<sup>#</sup>, M. J. Vujković<sup>#,\*</sup>, M. Milović, V. Grudić, R. Dominko, S. Mentus, Recent developments of Na<sub>4</sub>M<sub>3</sub>(PO<sub>4</sub>)<sub>2</sub>(P<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub>) as the cathode material for alkaline-ion rechargeable batteries: challenges and outlook, Energy Storage Materials, 37, 2021, 243–273.
- A. Gezović, M. Milović, D. Bajuk-Bogdanović, V. Grudić, R. Dominko, S. Mentus, M. Vujković<sup>\*</sup>, An effective approach to reaching the theoretical capacity of a low-cost and environmentally friendly Na<sub>4</sub>Fe<sub>3</sub>(PO<sub>4</sub>)<sub>2</sub>(P<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub>) cathode for Na-ion batteries, Electrochimica Acta, 476 (2024) 143718.

### High-energy nanostructured lithium insertion materials for advanced Li-ion batteries

#### Naoaki Yabuuchi

Department of Chemistry and Life Science, Yokohama National University, Yokohama, Japan E-mail: yabuuchi-naoaki-pw@ynu.ac.jp

Keywords: lithium insertion material, phase transition, nanostructured material

The demand for electric vehicles equipped with Li-ion batteries is growing to develop low carbon society. Ni-enriched layered materials are used as electrode materials of Li-ion batteries for electric vehicle applications. Stoichiometric LiNiO<sub>2</sub> with cationic Ni<sup>3+</sup>/Ni<sup>4+</sup> redox is the ideal electrode material, but the gradual loss of capacity at the high voltage region, associated with Ni ion migration, hinders its use for practical applications.<sup>1</sup> Therefore, to improve electrode reversibility of LiNiO<sub>2</sub>, less abundant Co ions and/or other electrochemically inactive ions, *e.g.*, Al<sup>3+</sup> ions, are in part substituted for Ni ions. Nevertheless, the origin of improvement by metal substitution was a long-standing debate. Recently, the importance of non-stoichiometry and anti-site defects is discussed, and highly reversible pure Ni-based layered materials without metal substitution is successfully developed through defects engineering.<sup>1</sup>

Another important target is the development of a practical and high-energy Co-/Ni-free Mn-based positive electrode material, which is necessary for the economical electric vehicles. Now, for this purpose, LiFePO<sub>4</sub> is widely used, but its energy density is limited to ~500 Wh kg<sup>-1</sup>, which is significantly low compared with Ni-rich layered materials (~800 Wh kg<sup>-1</sup>) used for high-end electric vehicles. Moreover, the batteries with LiFePO<sub>4</sub> show lower volumetric energy density because of intrinsic disadvantages of phosphate materials with low packing density and inferior electronic conductivity. Recently, nano-structured Mn-based electrode materials are studied as emerging materials for this purpose.<sup>2</sup> However, these materials are generally synthesized by high-energy mechanical milling, which cannot be adopted for mass production. Recently, nanostructured LiMnO<sub>2</sub> with high-energy density (~800 Wh kg<sup>-1</sup>) is successfully synthesized by using a conventional calcination reaction, which is potentially used for economical electric vehicle applications.<sup>3</sup>

To develop safe and high-energy advanced Li-ion batteries, the use of solid electrolyte is an important strategy. Nevertheless, inevitable volume changes of electrode materials on cycling lead to the difficulty to maintain the stable interface between electrode materials and electrolyte. Recently, non-layered electrode materials, *i.e.*, cation-disordered rocksalt oxides, are studied for high-energy advanced Li-ion batteries.<sup>4</sup> One of the important achievements is the development of high-capacity dimensionally invariable electrode materials, and this unique character originates from the isotropic volume change observed for non-layered materials. Indeed, the excellent reversibility for solid-state batteries is achieved for nanostructured cation-disordered rocksalt oxides with V ions.<sup>5</sup>

From these results, the importance of nano-structured lithium insertion materials for advanced and practical Li-ion battery applications is discussed in detail.

- 1. I. Konuma et al., and N. Yabuuchi, Energy Storage Materials, 66, 103200 (2024).
- 2. A. Kanno et al., and N. Yabuuchi, ACS Energy Letters, 8, 2753 (2023).
- 3. Y. Miyaoka et al., and N. Yabuuchi, submitted
- 4. R. Fukuma et al., and N. Yabuuchi, ACS Central Science, 8, 775 (2022).
- 5. I. Konuma et al., and N. Yabuuchi, Nature Materials, 22, 225 (2023).

### T1.8 High Temperature Superconductors: Materials, Technologies and Systems

## **Crucial role of strange metal transport for high-temperature superconductivity in overdoped cuprates**

<u>Matija Čulo<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Caitlin Duffy<sup>2</sup>, Jake Ayres<sup>2,3</sup>, Maarten Berben<sup>2</sup>, Yu-Te Hsu<sup>2</sup>, Roemer Hinlopen<sup>3</sup>, Bence Bernath<sup>2</sup>, Nigel Hussey<sup>2,3</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>Institut za fiziku, Zagreb, Croatia <sup>2</sup>High Field Magnet Laboratory (HFML-EMFL) and Institute for Molecules and Materials, Radboud University, Nijmegen, Netherlands <sup>3</sup>H. H. Wills Physics Laboratory, University of Bristol, Bristol, UK \*E-mail: mculo@ifs.hr

**Keywords**: high-temperature superconductivity, overdoped cuprates, strange metal phase, high-field magnetoresistance, Hall carrier density, superfluid density, non-quasiparticle-like carriers

High-temperature superconductivity in cuprates represents one of the largest mysteries in condensed matter physics, even after almost forty years of intensive research. Interestingly, it emerges from a normal (non-superconducting) metallic state, that is highly unconventional and therefore no less mysterious. Especially intriguing is the strange metal phase in the overdoped part of the phase diagram, where marked deviations from the standard Fermi liquid theory have been observed, which led to claims that the charge carriers there exhibit non-quasiparticle-like nature. Here we present our recent high-field magnetoresistance study on the two single-layer cuprates: (Pb/La)-doped Bi<sub>2</sub>Sr<sub>2</sub>CuO<sub>6+ð</sub> and Tl<sub>2</sub>Ba<sub>2</sub>CuO<sub>6+ð</sub>, which clearly indicated that, besides these non-quasiparticle-like carriers, the strange metal phase contains also the standard quasiparticle-like carriers [1]. These findings elicit an inevitable question: which of these two types of carriers are responsible for superconductivity? Our detail analysis of the Hall carrier density and superfluid density from literature, for the two single-layer cuprates:  $Tl_2Ba_2CuO_{6+\delta}$  and  $La_{2-x}Sr_xCuO_4$ , enabled us to postulate an empirical relation, which leads to a striking conclusion that, contrary to expectations from the conventional BCS theory, the superconductivity in the selected overdoped cuprates stems from the non-quasiparticlelike carriers [2]. If the proposed empirical relation is found in other members of the cuprate family and related materials, this will potentially shift the paradigm of the high-temperature superconductivity.

- J. Ayres, M. Berben, M. Čulo, Y.-T. Hsu, E. van Heumen, Y. Huang, J. Zaanen, T. Kondo, T. Takeuchi, J. R. Cooper, C. Putzke, S. Friedemann, A. Carrington, N. E. Hussey, Nature 595, 661 (2021).
- M. Čulo, C. Duffy, J. Ayres, M. Berben, Y.-T. Hsu, R. D. H. Hinlopen, B. Bernáth, N. E. Hussey, SciPost. Phys. 11, 012 (2021).

# Nd<sub>1.85</sub>Ce<sub>0.15</sub>CuO<sub>4</sub> and La<sub>1.84</sub>Sr<sub>0.16</sub>CuO<sub>4</sub> polycrystaline samples with improved critical current densities made by means of freeze-drying and spark plasma sintering

### Jean-Claude Grivel\*, Bo Wan, Apurv Dash

Department of Energy Conversion and Storage, Technical University of Denmark, Kongens Lyngby, Denmark

E-mail: jean@dtu.dk

**Keywords**: Nd<sub>1.85</sub>Ce<sub>0.15</sub>CuO<sub>4</sub>, La<sub>1.84</sub>Sr<sub>0.16</sub>CuO<sub>4</sub>, freeze-drying, spark plasma sintering, critical current density

With the aim of improving the critical current density of bulk cuprate superconductors characterised by high anisotropy, which is often limited by grain boundary weak links, we apply alternative synthesis techniques to increase the ceramic density and improve grain boundary quality.

Polycrystalline ceramic samples of the  $Nd_{1.85}Ce_{0.15}CuO_4$  superconductor were made by means of freeze-drying followed by high temperature sintering and post annealing in vacuum. The ceramic density reached 90 % of the theoretical density. The onset critical temperature and the critical current density depends on the duration of the vacuum annealing treatment. For 2.5 h annealing, the critical temperature is 23.5 K, while the self-field critical current at 5 K reaches 4450 A/cm<sup>2</sup>, a value that is significantly higher than previously reported for standard solid state preparation techniques.

On the other hand,  $La_{1.84}Sr_{0.16}CuO_4$  ceramics made by consolidating pre-reacted powders by means of spark plasma sintering, can achieve near 100 % density when the treatment is conducted under vacuum. While as-treated samples show degraded superconducting characteristics, a post-annealing treatment results in significant grain growth and yield critical current densities of the order of 10<sup>5</sup> A/cm<sup>2</sup> at 5 K. For both types of compounds, the achieved values are higher than would be expected for non-textured polycrystalline ceramic pellets.

### Acknowledgments

The authors gratefully acknowledge support from the Technical University of Denmark as well as from the China Scholarship Council (grant nr. 202106890014).
## T1.9 RECYCLING

# **Recycling of Solid-State Batteries – Challenge and opportunity for a circular economy?**

### Oliver Clemens\*, Martine Jacob, Kerstin Wissel

Institute for Materials Science, University of Stuttgart, Stuttgart, Germany \*E-mail: oliver.clemens@imw.uni-stuttgart.de

Keywords: solid state batteries, recycling, circular economy

All Solid State Batteries are currenctly developed at high pace. They have the potential to increase the energy by facilitating the use of metallic lithium as the anode. Among other, strong efforts were made in developing suitable electrolytes, designing cells and increasing the compatibility between the different battery components.

In contrast, recycling of such battery systems is in the early steps, also related to the fact that end of life batteries are not available at large extent. In this contribution, potential recycling studies will be discussed for the different classes of solid electrolytes. Apart from the recovery of elemental ressources, we will explain how suitable recycling approaches could be designed to create energy efficient processes. Further, concepts on how to make batteries more recyclable by design will be elaborated.

### References

- K. Wissel, A. Haben, K. Küster, U. Starke, R. Kautenburger, W. Ensinger, O. Clemens: Direct Recycling of β-Li<sub>3</sub>PS<sub>4</sub>-Based All-Solid-State Li-Ion Batteries: Interactions of Electrode Materials and Electrolyte in a Dissolution-Based Separation Process, *Advanced Energy and Sustainability Research*, 2024, accepted. http://dx.doi.org/10.1002/aesr.202300280
- 2. M. Jacob, K. Wissel, O. Clemens: Recycling of solid-state batteries—challenge and opportunity for a circular economy?, *Materials Futures*, 3, 1, 2024., http://dx.doi.org/10.1088/2752-5724/acfb28
- A. I. Waidha, A. Salihovic, M. Jacob, V. Vanita, B. Aktekin, K. Brix, K. Wissel, R. Kautenburger, J. Janek, W. Ensinger, O. Clemens: Recycling of All-Solid-State Li-ion Batteries: A Case Study of the Separation of Individual Components Within a System Composed of LTO, LLZTO and NMC, *ChemSusChem*, 16, 13, e202202361, 2023. http://dx.doi.org/10.1002/cssc.202202361

## Scalable recycling strategies for end-of-life Solid Oxide Cell materials and their re-manufacturing

<u>Federico Smeacetto</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Sofia Saffirio<sup>1</sup>, Silvia Fiore<sup>2</sup>, Manasa Rath<sup>3</sup>, Sonia Lucia Fiorilli<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Applied Science and Technology, Politecnico di Torino, Torino, Italy <sup>2</sup>Department of Environment, Land And Infrastructure Engineering, Politecnico di Torino, Torino, Italy <sup>3</sup>Elcogen AS, Tallinn, Estonia \*E-mail: federico.smeacetto@polito.it

Keywords: recycling, ceramics, critical raw materials, solid oxide cells

Solid oxide cells (SOCs) provide a mature alternative to conventional power-generation sources to achieve the EU carbon-neutrality goal for 2050. However, the full deployment of SOCs is still hindered by the lack of efficient, scalable and cost-effective end-of-life (EoL) strategies that enable managing and valorizing waste products derived from cell operation and avoiding their disposal.

As the SOCs market is foreseen to remarkably increase shortly, the recovery and re-use of critical and high-cost materials is crucial to enable large-scale production and overall sustainability of SOC-based technologies. In this work, strategies for possible recycling routes of high-temperature SOC cell components (yttria, zirconia, Ni, La and Co materials) and cell re-manufacturing are presented and discussed.

A single-step recycling process optimized for the Ni-YSZ electrode components of EoL SOCs is described and upscaled from the lab scale to a pilot plant, enabling to target of the quantity required for the manufacturing of new SOCs containing 30 wt% of recycled material. The disaggregation of the Ni-YSZ composite and the selective extraction of Ni (recovered in the form of NiO) was achieved by treating the cell components inside a hydrothermal reactor in the presence of low-concentrated (0.6-1.0 M) HNO3 solutions, thus combining hydrothermal treatment and acid leaching. The processing parameters, including temperature, time, acid concentration, and solid/liquid ratio were optimized considering their mutual interactions to maximize the overall efficiency of the process, therefore minimizing waste flows, energy consumption and costs. Re-manufactured cells containing 30 wt% of recovered ceramic powders were electrochemically and mechanically characterized for comparison with standard virgin SOCs.



The overall strategy for recovery and reusing materials from EoL cells, Ni-YSZ composite powder dismantled from EoL cells and recycled YSZ after hydrothermal and leaching treatment

# Recycling and reusing the wastes generated in ceramic sanitaryware production

<u>Ayşe Tunalı</u>\*, Ebru Çırakman, Gamze Saraç, Dilan Masatoğlu, Gülşah Akdemir

Eczacıbaşı Building Division, VitrA, Bilecik, Türkiye \*E-mail: ayse.tunali@eczacibasi.com.tr ; aysetaskiran@gmail.com

Keywords: ceramic sanitaryware, waste, reusing, recycling, circular economy

Ceramic sanitary ware is a branch of the industrial ceramics industry and is the name given to vitrified products such as sinks, toilets, cisterns, bidets and urinals used in bathrooms, toilets and kitchens.

Ceramic sanitary ware production is a labor-intensive process, and therefore process waste is generated at every stage. The sludge is prepared in the production departments and taken into large stocks and delivered via pipelines to small bench stocks in the foundry benches where the shaping process will be carried out. After the shaping process, drilling, removal of excess, and retouching operations are applied. The product is dried by taking it into box type drying cabinets and then it is subjected to the glazing process after final checks. Glaze is prepared in the glaze production unit and delivered to the glazing units mostly with IBC tanks. Unfired process wastes are generated in all processes up to the firing stage. For example, mill and sieve washing water in the sludge production unit, wet pieces formed in the shaping unit, semi-products cracked from the drying cabinet and products broken during glazing are examples of unfired process waste. After glazing, the products are placed on wagons and subjected to the firing process in kiln. At the end of firing, some of the products are classified as poor quality "rejects" due to defects such as cracks, deformations and parts on the product.

The mentioned wastes can be used to produce some of the same types of products in the same campus where the waste was generated, contributing to the circular economy. In the relevant study, studies carried out with the aim of recycling waste into prescriptions are included.

### **T2** Ceramics for Energy Conservation and Efficiency

### **T2.1 Advanced Fiber Reinforced Composites for Turbine Engines**

## SiC<sub>f</sub>/SiC Ceramic Matrix Composites' retained strength dependence on thermomechanical loading/environmental exposure history

Amjad S. Almansour<sup>\*</sup>, James D. Kiser, Craig E. Smith

NASA Glenn Research Center, Cleveland, OH, USA \*E-mail: amjadalmansour@gmail.com

Silicon Carbide-based Ceramic Matrix Composites (CMCs) are attractive materials for use in high-temperature structural applications in the aerospace, power generation, and nuclear industries. Thermomechanical loading and environmental exposure can degrade CMCs' strength and life. The history of testing conditions influences the dominant damage mechanism(s). Consequently, chemical vapor infiltration (CVI) SiC<sub>f</sub>/SiC ceramic matrix composites (CMC) incorporating Sylramic<sup>TM</sup>-iBN or Hi-Nicalon<sup>TM</sup> S SiC fibers coated with boron nitride (BN) interphase and CVI-SiC matrix were exposed to a range of oxidative environments, mechanical loads, and elevated temperatures (2200 - 2700°F). Next, samples were evaluated via room temperature fast fracture tensile tests to determine residual properties, with the use of acoustic emission (AE) to assess stress dependent damage initiation and progression. Microscopy of regions within the gage section of the tested specimens was performed. Observed material degradation mechanisms are discussed.

## SiC/SiC Ceramic Matrix Composite (CMC) development in the United States for commercial aircraft engine applications, with emphasis on events and programs that supported increasing TRL to 5

### James Douglas Kiser

Materials and Structures Division, NASA Glenn Research Center, Cleveland, Ohio, USA E-mail: james.d.kiser@nasa.gov

Keywords: ceramic matrix composites (CMC), SiC/SiC, CMC hot section components

While ceramic matrix composite (CMC) research and development has been in progress in the United States (U.S.) for over 40 years, it was not until 2016 that CMCs began flying in the hot sections of commercial aircraft turbine engines as HPT (high pressure turbine) shrouds in the CFM International LEAP (Leading Edge Aviation Propulsion) engine. This presentation will review the evolutionary process that occurred in the U.S. which led to the emergence of melt infiltrated (MI) SiC/SiC composites as the high temperature, nonmetallic material of choice for replacing metallic hot section components. The significant impact of U.S. Government-led programs that were focused on the development and application of CMCs, such as the NASA (National Aeronautics and Space Administration) Enabling Propulsion Materials (EPM) and Ultra Efficient Engine Technology (UEET) Projects and the DOE (Department of Energy) CFCC (Continuous Fiber Ceramic Composite) and Advanced Turbine Systems (ATS) Programs, and the contributions made by a range of organizations including those from other countries which helped advance SiC/SiC technology are discussed. The content of the presentation was obtained from selected open literature from the past 40+ years and from researchers who have been involved in efforts to develop and apply SiC/SiC CMCs in aircraft engines. In addition, the presentation provides information about the GRC Hybrid SiC/SiC CMC system, as an example of a composite developed to address the need for 2700°F capable CMCs for further increasing turbine engine efficiency.

### Acknowledgments

A. Almansour, S. Arnold, R. T. Bhatt, and J. Haglage NASA Glenn Research Center (GRC); M. Verrilli, S. Viswanathan, and M. Manoharan GE Aerospace (GEA); R. Lowden (retired) Oak Ridge National Laboratory (ONRL); J. Holowczak and D. Jarmon (retired) United Technologies Research Center (UTRC); M. A. Alvin National Energy Technology Laboratory (NETL); M. Cinibulk Air Force Research Laboratory (AFRL, Wright-Patterson AFB); G. Morscher University of Akron; K. Luthra (retired) GE Global Research; R. Hobbs Albany International Corporation

## How to consider sustainability in the development of ceramic matrix composites

<u>Dietmar Koch</u><sup>1</sup>, Anna Schnelle<sup>1</sup>, Denny Schüppel<sup>1</sup>, Lars Wietschel<sup>2</sup>, Florian Halte<sup>2</sup>, Andrea Thorenz<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Materials Resource Management, Chair of Materials Englineering, University of Augsburg, Augsburg, Germany <sup>2</sup>Institute for Business Administration, Chair Production & Supply Chain Management, University of Augsburg, Augsburg, Germany E-mail: dietmar.koch@uni-a.de

Keywords: SiC/SiC composites, sustainability, life cycle assessment

Ceramic matrix composites CMC are mainly developed for high temperature application in severe environments. One enthusiastic application has been identified in the field of aeroengines. By the use of SiC/SiC composites higher temperatures in the gas turbine can be achieved leading to higher efficiency. Additionally SiC/SiC come with a longer lifetime under critical conditions helping to make a gas turbine equipped with CMC even more attractive. With a consumption decrease of 10% with same performance the use of CMC in an aeroengine contributes already quite effectively on the reduction of the carbon footprint of airplanes.

Apart from the use phase it becomes also more and more interesting for the scientific community to evaluate the manufacturing of CMC parts along the whole processing chain considering environmental aspects. In our approach we develop a method to evaluate the environmental footprint of SiC/SiC manufacturing considering the liquid silicon infiltration (LSI) route. For this approach we establish first life cycle assessment (LCA) results on environmental impacts of the CMC production by correlating properties with environmental impacts during processing. The goal is to find a suitable tradeoff between individual properties and according manufacturing environmental impact. With this approach one can define the process of CMC as efficient as possible and correlate the process steps with the mechanical properties. With these so-called Pareto-efficient correlation one can decide which process parameters lead to the best properties when environmental aspects are considered.

This work is leading to the design of – how we call it – "Sustainable Ceramic Matrix Composites" (SCMC) where the issues of LCA and circularity of the CMC are taken into consideration. The presentation will explain the overall approach and will show how data collected during manufacturing are correlated with mechanical properties and can furthermore be crosslinked with life cycle assessment approaches for more sustainable manufacturing.

#### Acknowledgments

We acknowledge the support of the Federal Ministry for Economic Affairs and Climate Action, Germany (Project Ceraheat40, Funding number 01MN23019E) as well as funding of IGF (Project CMC-Enviro, Funding number 22037N).

## Oxidation of composites under an oxyacetylene torch environment inside a X-ray tomography equipment

Laurence Maillé<sup>\*</sup>, Yann Le Petitcorps, André Ebel, Sébastien Couthures, Olivier Caty, James Braun, Thierry Malard, Thomas Bourdeau, Timothé Ménard, Francis Rebillat

LCTS UMR 5801 (Université de Bordeaux, CNRS, CEA, Safran), Pessac 33600, France \*E-mail: maille@lcts.u-bordeaux.fr

Keywords: UHTC, oxyacetylene torch

In space propulsion and atmospheric re-entry applications, the use of ceramic matrix composites requires improved oxidation resistance, such as UHTC matrices. Oxidation tests to simulate atmospheric reentry are mainly carried out with an oxyacetylene torch. However, only characterizations of the sample after oxidation or destruction tests are available in the literature. For the understanding of the aging mechanisms, the kinetic of generation of the oxide layer and the establishment of a degradation front, are difficult to extract. Indeed, these data are for one single aging time, after a quenching, resulting to a sudden cooling with stop of the thermal flux.

Thus, we propose to simulate an atmospheric re-entry by characterizing a composite in situ during an aging test, using X-ray tomography. To do this, an oxyacetylene torch is placed in a synchrotron X-ray beam to observe the change in the morphology and nature of material phases during the tests. The scientific advances will allow the understanding of oxidation mechanisms from a real time monitoring at ultra high temperature of the global behaviour and will constitute a reliable database for future modelling and numerical simulation activities on the behaviour of these materials.

### Figures



### Acknowledgments

The author would like to thank SOLEIL, ESRF synchrotrons and ANR (Association Nationale de la Recherche) for the project COMEFai associated to this work.

# Thermal-mechanical limitations of oxide/oxide ceramic matrix composites and prospects for improvement

<u>Peter Mechnich</u><sup>\*</sup>, Gözde Alkan, Ferdinand Flucht, Jan Roßdeutscher, Michael Welter, Vito Leisner

Institute of Materials Research, German Aerospace Center (DLR), Köln, Germany \*E-mail: peter.mechnich@dlr.de

Keywords: oxide CMC, thermal-mechanical aging

Lightweight, oxide/oxide ceramic matrix composites (OxCMC) are attractive materials for exhaust gas exposed turbine engine components. Despite many favorable physical-chemical properties, their limited high-temperature mechanical strength and creep resistance, but also limited knowledge on their aging behavior are frequently obstacles for their application in demanding environments and high-performance applications. Moreover, reproducible and scalable manufacturing processes are considered mandatory to exploit the full potential of OxCMC. Various studies on OxCMC consisting of different oxide fibers and matrices based on Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> and mullite were performed to identify key degradation effects and possible mitigation strategies. Chemical modification of oxide matrices as well as the application of thick thermally sprayed protective coatings revealed the potential for increased application temperatures. In terms of OxCMC manufacturing technologies, DLR's recently introduced vacuum-assisted textile infusion processes IFOX offer promising time- and cost efficiency manufacturability as well as improved material properties with low scattering.

### Development of SiC composite at KAERI for extreme environments

Ji Yeon Park<sup>\*</sup>, Daejong Kim, Hyeon Geun Lee, Weon-Ju Kim

Korea Atomic Energy Research Institute, Daejeon, South Korea \*E-mail: jypark@kaeri.re.kr / yeon5809@naver.com

 $\label{eq:keywords: SiC_f/SiC composite; fabrication; property evaluation; nuclear application; gas turbine component$ 

SiC ceramics are being considered as a material to be applied in high-temperature and highradiation environments due to their excellent high temperature strength, chemical stability and radiation resistance. SiC/SiC composite reinforced with SiC fiber has the advantage of improving the catastrophic failure of monolithic SiC ceramics, thus expanding its application range to parts of various shapes for extreme environments. Researches on SiC/SiC composites and SiC coatings has been conducted at Korea Atomic Energy Research Institute (KAERI) over the past 20 years, focusing on components for high-radiation environments and high-temperature gas turbines, and is still ongoing. Major nuclear components to which SiC composites will be applied include nuclear fuel cladding tubes for advanced light water reactors, core components for next-generation nuvlear reactors, and TRISO coated nuclear fuel particles. Since high purity characteristics are very important specifications in nuclear applications, chemical vapor deposition (CVD) and chemical vapor infiltration (CVI) processes were mainly developed as manufacturing process. In addition to the nuclear application of SiC composites, KAERI expanded its research area by utilizing the developed CVD and CVI processes and applied them to the development of components for high-temperature gas turbines. In this presentation, the manufacturing characteristics, mechanical properties and performance evaluation results of SiC coated SiC and SiC,/SiC composites manufactured based on CVD and CVI will be briefly introduced.

# Characterisation of single-tow SiC/SiC minicomposites made by silicon Melt Infiltration (MI)

### Jens Schmidt\*, Alexander Konschak, Jan-Marcel Hausher

Fraunhofer-Center for High-Temperature Materials and Design, Fraunhofer Institute for Silicate Research ISC, Bayreuth, Germany \*E-mail: jens.schmidt@isc.fraunhofer.de

Keywords: minicomposites, SiC/SiC, silicon melt infiltration, tensile strength

The consumption of fossil fuels and CO2 emissions must be further reduced to meet the Paris Agreement 2015 and goals of Flightpath 2050. In order to allow a higher temperature in the core part of jet engines, lightweight and high temperature resistant materials such as damage tolerant ceramic matrix composites (CMC) are under development. SiC/SiC based CMC with BN/SiC fiber coating and SiC matrix mostly produced by CVI process meet the material requirements in hot turbine sections. However, the disadvantage of CVI is the very long infiltration cycle and the remaining closed porosity in the matrix. To overcome these problems, MI with silicon in porous fiber preforms offers the possibility to generate a dense matrix and to reduce the high production costs of CVI processing. Since the silicon melt is very corrosive, the challenge is to protect the SiC fiber and its functional fiber coating from reaction with silicon and degradation during infiltration to achieve a high strength of the final CMC. For the study within the HotTurb project [1], we used single fiber tows based on Hi-Nicalon type-S instead of expensive textile preforms to investigate parameters during the MI process. Similar experiments investigating the strength of single SiC fiber tows, but only infiltrated with CVI SiC matrix, were performed in [2, 3]. In our experiments, we prepared ~60 mm long single rovings by matrix slurry infiltration, pyrolysis and final silicon MI. A water based low viscosity slurry containing SiC particles was used as the primary matrix [4]. For the infiltration experiments, several parameters such as coating thickness and furnace temperature were varied. Finally, a specific furnace setup and equipment were designed to perform uniform MI at low temperatures, preferably < 1420 °C. The fiber coating as well as the number of filaments of the tows which survived the process were examined by light microscopy. The tensile tests of the tows were performed using a Hegewald testing machine, and the fracture surface was examined by SEM. It could be shown that a certain coating thickness and other infiltration parameters must be adjusted accurately to avoid fiber and functional coating degradation during the silicon MI process. Moreover, for the in-situ characterization of the minicomposites, a specific high-temperature furnace is being developed enabling in-situ observation of the microstructure and crack formation under mechanical loading.

#### Acknowledgments

The authors gratefully acknowledge the BMWK for funding this work (Grant code 20T2108C).

### References

- LUFO VI-2 project: "Hochtemperaturfeste Niederdruckturbinen f
  ür effiziente Flugantriebe (Hot-Turb) – "Faserbeschichtung und Pr
  üfprozesse f
  ür heißgasstabile Faser-Matrix-Interphases f
  ür SiC/ SiC-CMC", BMWK Grant code 20T2108C, 2020–2023.
- A. Almansour, E. Maillet, S. Ramasamy, G.N. Morscher: "Effect of fiber content on single tow SiC composite mechanical and damage properties using acoustic emission", J. Of The Europ. Cer. Soc. 35 (2015), 3389–3399.
- 3. S. Bertrand, R. Pailler, J. Lamon: "Influence of strong fiber/coating interfaces on the mechanical behavior and lifetime of Hi-Nicalon/(PyC/SiC)<sub>n</sub>/SiC minicomposites", J. Am. Ceram. Soc. 84 [4] 787–94, 2001.
- 4. F. Raether, A. Konschak, J. Schmidt: Patent application DE10 219213 351 A1, patent filed 2019.

## Ablation behavior of C/SiC composites in plasma wind tunnel

### Yiguang Wang

Institute of Advanced Structure Technology, Beijing Institute of Technology, Haidian District, Beijing, 100081, China E-mail: wangyiguang@bit.edu.cn

Keywords: CMC, C/SiC composites, ablation behavior

The ablation behavior is crucial to the application of carbon fiber reinforced silicon carbide (C/SiC) composites in thermal protection systems of spacecraft to enter the atmosphere or to cruise hypersonically in near space. Plasma wind tunnel is a suitable tool to simulate the service conditions of space vehicles. In this study, we systematically studied the ablation behaviors of C/SiC composites in plasma wind tunnel. The oxidation behavior of C/SiC composites in plasma is discussed. The results indicated that the oxidation under atomic oxygen condition dominated at low heat flux and stagnation pressure; however, rapid recession mechanism by sublimation and decomposition of SiC was observed at high heat flux and stagnation pressure. The temperature jump phenomenon during the ablation performed under high heat flux and stagnation pressure was attributed to the exposure of the carbon fibers to the plasma flow after consumption of the SiC coatings.



(a) Typical screenshot for the video recording of sample in plasma flow. (b)Temperature versus time curves obtained from plasma wind tunnel testing of the C/SiC samples, where surface temperature jump is not observed and (c) surface temperature jump is clearly observed, respectively. (d) Normalized erosion rate as a function of oxidation temperature in the logarithm form.

## CMCs at GE Aerospace: Engines and beyond

### Jared Weaver

GE Aerospace, GE Aerospace Research Center, Niskayuna NY, USA E-mail: weaver@ge.com

Keywords: GE CMC, SiC, Ox, industrializtion, manufacturing

For over 3 decades, GE Aerospace and GE Research have been heavily invested in the development and commercialization of CMCs for applications in turbine engines. While the best-known product is the melt infiltrated SiC/SiC in the CFM LEAP and GE9X engines, GE now commercially produces Ox/Ox, C/SiC, and SiC/SiC CMCs for a variety of applications. Challenges experienced in taking CMCs from laboratory development to full-scale industrial manufacturing will be discussed along with potential future opportunities for CMCs.

#### Invited

### T2.2 Advanced Ceramic Coatings for Power Systems

## Material design of environmental barrier coatings to mitigate against CMAS attack

<u>S. Kitaoka</u><sup>1\*</sup>, M.Tanaka<sup>1</sup>, N. Kawashima<sup>1</sup>, S. Hashimoto<sup>1</sup>, T. Ito<sup>1</sup>, N. Yamazaki<sup>2</sup>, K. Doi<sup>2</sup>, T. Nakamura<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Japan Fine Ceramics Center, Nagoya, Aichi, Japan <sup>2</sup>IHI Corporation, Yokohama, Japan \*E-mail: kitaoka@jfcc.or.jp

Keywords:EBC, CMAS, design, thermodynamics

Environmental barrier coatings (EBCs) having excellent resistance to a Ca-Mg-Fe-Al-Si-O melt (CMAS) at temperatures above 1300 °C are required to promote practical applications of SiC fiber-reinforced ceramic matrix composite parts in next-generation engines. However, systematic design guidelines for mitigating against CMAS attack have not yet been proposed.

In this study, for nine kinds of model EBCs that have excellent water volatilization resistance at high temperatures, a thermodynamic descriptor  $\Psi$  that indicates the reactivity between an EBC and CMAS at 1400 °C was proposed. A model EBC disk with a CMAS pellet was placed in a furnace held at 1400 °C and then removed after 20 h to suppress crystallization and/or separation of the CMAS phase during heating, and crystallization from the residual CMAS melt during cooling.<sup>1</sup> The thickness of the corroded layer was then measured from SEM images of the cross section of the CMAS-YbAG disk pair, and the microstructure of the corroded layer was observed using energy-dispersive X-ray spectroscopy, electron backscatter diffraction, and transmission electron microscopy. Fig. 1 shows the relationship between  $\Psi$  and the corroded layer thickness for each EBC. The logarithmic thickness decreased linearly with increasing  $\Psi$ , demonstrating that  $\Psi$  is an extremely effective indicator for predicting the optimal structure of EBCs to achieve excellent CMAS resistance.



Figure 1. Corroded layer thickness for EBCs as function of  $\psi$  at 1400 °C for 20 h.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by NEDO (New Energy and Industrial Technology Development Organization) and Development of New Innovative CompositeMaterials and Forming Technologies.

### References

S. Kitaoka et al., J. Am. Ceram. Soc., 106, 4863-4876 (2023).

# Oxidation kinetics of slurry environmental barrier coatings for SiC/SiC Ceramic Matrix Composites

Kang N. Lee\*, Rebekah I. Webster, Bernadette J. Puleo

NASA Glenn Research Center, Cleveland, OH 44135, USA \*E-mail: ken.k.lee@nasa.gov

Keywords: EBC, oxide bond coat, slurry process, oxidation rates

The upper use temperature of current environmental barrier coatings (EBCs) for ceramic matrix composites (CMCs) is limited by the low melting point of Si bond coat (1414C). The next generation CMCs, with up to 1482C (2700F) temperature capability, require a new EBC with a higher temperature bond coat. Oxide-based bond coats are a logical option to replace the current Si bond coat due to their high melting points. Plasma spraying is the most widely used EBC manufacturing process. A slurry process has been developed as an alternative process, whose benefits include non-line-of-sight process capability and low cost.[1] Another benefit of slurry process is the fast turnaround time that allows a rapid exploration of a vast spectrum of complex oxide chemistries. Oxidation is the most critical life-limiting degradation mode for EBCs. Oxidation-induced EBC failure is due to the stresses caused by the SiO<sub>2</sub> oxide scale. The reversible phase transformation of SiO<sub>2</sub> scale between  $\Box$  and  $\Box$  cristobalite at ~ 230C in thermal cycling and the mismatch in thermal expansion between SiO<sub>2</sub> scale and EBC are the main contributors to the stresses. Longer EBC life, therefore, requires slower oxidation rates. This paper will discuss the oxidation kinetics of slurry EBCs comprising an oxide bond coat and the key variables affecting the oxidation kinetics.

#### References

K. N. Lee, D. L. Waters, B. J. Puleo, A. Garg, W. D. Jennings, G. Costa, D. E. Sacksteder, "Development of oxide-based High temperature environmental barrier coatings for ceramic matrix composites via the slurry process," *J. Euro. Ceram. Soc.* 41, 1639–1653 (2021).

# High entropy zirconates for TBC applications – influence of cationic parameters on phase formation and properties

### Maren Lepple

Institute of Inorganic and Analytical Chemistry, Justus Liebig University Giessen, Giessen, Germany E-mail: maren.lepple@anorg.chemie.uni-giessen.de

Keywords: high entropy oxides, thermal barrier coatings, phase formation, thermophysical properties

High entropy oxides (HEOs) have attracted great interest in recent years because of their unique and tunable properties. They were first mentioned in 2015 by Rost et al. <sup>[1]</sup> proposing the composition (Mg,Ni,Co,Cu,Zn)O with the five cations in equiatomic proportions on the cationic site in the NaCl structure. Like high entropy alloys, HEOs consist of five or more cations in approximately equal amounts distributed (statistically) on one or more sublattice sites, resulting in a configurational entropy  $S_{\text{config}}$  larger than 1.5 R<sup>[1]</sup>. The high configurational entropy affects the materials characteristics due to the cocktail effect, sluggish diffusion, and lattice distortion.

In terms of application as TBC materials, HEOs are promising because the high configurational entropy results in improved phase stability at high temperatures. Due to the different cations, phonons are additionally scattered, which leads to a reduction of thermal conductivity. However, there is a lack of systematic studies regarding phase formation, stability, and properties.

In this work, high entropy zirconates with the general formular  $A_2Zr_2O_7$  and up to nine different cations in equimolar amount on the A site were investigated<sup>[2]</sup>. The composition has been varied systematically to evaluate its influence on crystal structure and material properties. Phase formation, phase stability, thermophysical properties and corrosion resistance were investigated. The results support the idea that HEOs are promising TBC materials.

### Figures



Illustration of the idea of replacing the cation on the A site of A<sub>2</sub>Zr<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub> with five in equimolar composition.

### Acknowledgments

The author acknowledges the experimental work conducted by the PhD students Patrick Hutterer (DECHEMA research institute, Frankfurt, Germany), Jonas J. Pflug, Manuel Schenker and Giulia Bianchi (all Justus Liebig University). The work was supported by the German Federal Ministry of Education and Research (BMBF, grant no. 03XP0301A) and the German Federal Ministry of Economic Affairs and Climate Action (BMWK, grant no. 20E2222A).

### References

- 1. Rost CM, Sachet E, Borman T, Moballegh A, Dickey EC, Hou D, et al. Entropy-stabilized oxides. Nat Commun. 2015; 6:8485.
- 2. Hutterer P, Lepple M. Influence of composition on structural evolution of high-entropy zirconates cationic radius ratio and atomic size difference. J Am Ceram Soc. 2023; 106:1547–1560.

## Fundamental issues in plasma spraying of silicate environmental barrier coatings for ceramic composites

### Sanjay Sampath<sup>\*</sup>, Eugenio Garcia-Granados

Center for Thermal Spray Research, Stony Brook University, Stony Brook, NY 11794-2275, USA \*E-mail: sanjay.sampath@stonybrook.edu

Keywords: silicates, environmental barrier coatings, plasma spray, ceramic composites, gas turbine engines

Rare-earth silicate based Environmental Barrier Coatings are now used to protect SiC fiber reinforced SiC composites from environmental damage during high temperature operation in engines. Due to the large differences in vapor pressures between silica and the rare-earth oxide, the coating formed by plasma spray is invariably affected by stoichiometric changes induced by the plasma spray process. This in turn affects the thermo-structural properties of the system with concomitant implications on coating performance and durability. Furthermore, the as-sprayed materials preferentially form an amorphous phase due to the high glass transition temperature of silicates and sluggish viscosities. As such much of the coating is metastable require careful heat treatment of the substrate coating system to minimize thermal stress and associated cracking.

In this presentation, insights gained through fundamental research on process-stoichiometry-phase-structure-property linkages is critically analyzed for different EBC chemistries along with deliberate variations in process conditions to provide a framework for fundamental description of the deposition process and post-spray thermal treatments. Performance of coatings in controlled moisture testing and in select CMAS exposures will be presented.

## Understanding materials degradation under ammonia atmosphere at elevated temperatures for pure ammonia combustion gas turbine system

<u>Kentaro Shinoda</u><sup>1,2\*</sup>, Tina Ghara<sup>1</sup>, Seiji Kuroda<sup>1</sup>, Takashi Yanagisawa<sup>1</sup>, Mohammed Shahien<sup>1</sup>, Masato Suzuki<sup>2</sup>, Takahiro Inoue<sup>2</sup>, Norihiko Iki<sup>3</sup>, Taku Tsujimura<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Advanced Manufacturing Research Institute, National Institute of Advanced Industrial Science and Technology (AIST), Tsukuba, Japan <sup>2</sup>Global Zero Emission Research Center, National Institute of Advanced Industrial Science and Technology (AIST), Tsukuba, Japan <sup>3</sup>Renewable Energy Research Center, National Institute of Advanced Industrial Science and Technology (AIST), Tsukuba, Japan \*E-mail: kentaro.shinoda@aist.go.jp

Keywords: NH<sub>3</sub>, carbon neutral, bondcoat, alumina

Ammonia  $(NH_3)$  is expected to be an alternative fossil fuel for power generation. Ammonia has several advantages as a carbon free hydrogen carrier such that the weight ratio of hydrogen is 18%, which is higher than a conventional hydrogen absorbing metal and that it can be liquidized at -33 °C or at room temperature under 8.5 bar, which is convenient for transportation. Recently, a two-stage rich-lean combustion has been proven to suppress unburn NH<sub>2</sub> as well as NO<sub>2</sub> below a practical level, which accelerates the combustion research to realize pure ammonia gas turbine for power generation<sup>1-3</sup>). However, ammonia fuel-rich environment at the first stage combustor can create a reduced atmosphere at high temperatures, which may lead a deterioration of metallic and ceramic materials. In this presentation, we will overview our recent development of ammonia gas turbine power system. Then, our recent research to investigate such a degradation under ammonia reduced atmosphere will be mentioned. Several metallic substrates as well as CoNiCrAlY coating deposited by high-velocity oxy-fuel flame spraying were tested under 10-20%-NH<sub>3</sub> diluted by N<sub>2</sub> at elevated temperatures. The nitridation and subsequent degradation occurred, but they did not happen monotonically with temperature and time. The existence and role of alumina layer will be discussed together with the nitridation of metallic components, which will give some implications for thermal barrier coating system for ammonia combustion gas turbines.

### Acknowledgments

This work is based on results obtained from a project (JPNP21020) commissioned by the New Energy and Industrial Technology Development Organization (NEDO).

### References

- H. Kobayashi, A. Hayakawa, K. D. Kunkuma, A. Somarathne, E. C. Okafor, Proc. Combust. Inst. 37 (2019) 109–133.
- E. C. Okafor, O. Kurata, H. Yamashita, T. Inoue, T. Tsujimura, N. Iki, A. Hayakawa, M. Uchida, S. Ito, H. Kobayashi, Proc. 17<sup>th</sup> Int. Conf. on Flow Dynamics (ICFD) 2020, OS2-23 (2020).
- O. Kurata, E. C. Okafor, H. Yamashita, T. Inoue, T. Tsujimura, N. Iki, A. Hayakawa, H. Kobayashi, Proc. Int. Gas Turbine Cong. 2023, IGTC-2023-131 (2023).

# Phase regulation of rare earth silicate environmental barrier coating for SiC $_{\rm f}$ SiC composite

### Jingyang Wang

Advanced Ceramics and Composites Division, Shenyang National Laboratory for Materials Science, Institute of Metal Research, Chinese Academy of Sciences, Shenyang, China Email: jywang@imr.ac.cn

Keywords: environmental barrier coating, rare earth silicate, phase control

SiC<sub>f</sub>/SiC composite engine components critically requested high-performance environmental barrier coating (EBC) that can withstand harsh thermal and chemical attacks against combustion environment. Typical EBCs provide reliable protections to SiC<sub>f</sub>/SiC components up to the surface temperature of 1300°C. However, EBCs failed capability of corrosion resistances to hot steam and molten CaO-MgO-Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>-SiO<sub>2</sub> (CMAS) deposit at higher temperatures, as well as the phase instability and amorphization during atmospheric plasma spray fabrication. To address these critical challenges, we adopted effective multilevel design, including phase regulation and microstructure modification of rare-earth silicate EBC. The developed EBCs showed significantly enhanced reliability and support the advancement of SiC<sub>f</sub>/SiC composite engine components.

## Design principle of multi-entropy ceramics with desired characteristics: a case study of rare earth silicate with optimized thermal expansion behavior for thermal environmental barrier coatings

### <u>Buhao Zhang</u>\*, Tanvir Hussain

Centre of Excellence in Coatings and Surface Engineering, Faculty of Engineering, University of Nottingham, University Park, NG7 2RD, Nottingham, UK \*E-mail: buhao.zhang@nottingham.ac.uk

**Keywords**: multi-entropy ceramics, thermal environmental barrier coatings, phase formation capability, thermal conductivity; thermal expansion

Multi-entropy ceramics, including high-entropy ceramics, present a vast and largely unexplored compositional space for materials innovation. The recent advent of entropy engineering in rare earth (RE) silicates has opened up expansive compositional avenues in the development of advanced thermal environmental barrier coating (TEBC) materials for SiC-based ceramic composite components within the hot sections of gas turbine engines. This approach provides the ability to finely tune thermal conductivity, resistance to CMAS (calcium-magnesium-aluminosilicate), and water vapor resistance at elevated temperatures.

Nevertheless, achieving targeted characteristics through entropy-driven compositional design within specific RE silicate structures, such as monosilicate  $\text{RE}_2\text{SiO}_5$ , apatite silicate  $\text{RE}_{9.33}(\text{SiO}_4)_6\text{O}_2$ , and disilicate  $\text{RE}_2\text{Si}_2\text{O}_7$ , poses a significant challenge due to variations in coefficient of thermal expansion (CTE) arising from different combinations of rare earth elements (monosilicate:  $5.5-10.3 \times 10^{\text{--}6} \text{ K}^{\text{--}1}$ ; apatite silicate:  $8.7-10.8 \times 10^{\text{--}6} \text{ K}^{\text{--}1}$ ; disilicate:  $4.3-5.2 \times 10^{\text{--}6} \text{ K}^{\text{--}1}$ ).

Here, we propose a universal design principle based on the ionic features of RE elements. Employing this principle, a series of novel medium-entropy RE silicates have been synthesized, encompassing monosilicate, apatite silicate, and disilicate structures. Systematic investigation of thermal conductivity and thermal expansion behavior across various lattice structures of these medium-entropy silicates has been conducted. The underlying thermodynamic mechanisms have been elucidated through advanced microscopy techniques including SEM-EDS, FIB, and TEM.

Ultimately, employing this design principle, a five-component equimolar monosilicate has been successfully synthesized, marking a significant advancement in tailoring RE silicates with desired characteristics for applications in thermal environmental barrier coatings.

## Thermochemical equilibrium between rare-earth oxides and silicate melts, and new insight into EBC design

### Jie Zhang<sup>1\*</sup>, Guangheng Zhang<sup>1,2</sup>, Jinyu Shi<sup>1,2</sup>, Jingyang Wang<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Shenyang National Laboratory for Materials Science, Institute of Metal Research, Chinese Academy of Sciences, Shenyang 110016, China <sup>2</sup>School of Materials Science and Engineering, University of Science and Technology of China, Hefei

<sup>2</sup>School of Materials Science and Engineering, University of Science and Technology of China, Hefei 230026, China

\*Email: Jiezhang@imr.ac.cn

Keywords: environmental barrier coating, CMAS, termochemical equilibrium

Environmental barrier coatings (EBCs) are needed to protect SiCf/SiC ceramics from degradation advanced modern gas turbines. The EBCs with thermomechanical robustness against calcium-magnesium-aluminum-silicate deposits are in high demand. The thermochemical equilibrium between rare-earth oxides and calcium-magnesium aluminum-silicate deposit was investigated at 1300oC. The primary goal was to understand the influence of rare earth constituents on crystallization behavior of reaction products. The variation of rare earth constituents results in the transformation of crystalline products from apatite/silicocarnotite to garnet/diopside, which accelerates the consumption of CMAS melt and facilitates corrosion mitigation. A pseudo-ternary phase diagram was established, which had a great potential to describe phase equilibrium in coating-deposit systems and could provide guidance for compositional design of corrosion-resistant coatings.

## **T2.3 ENGINEERING CERAMICS: ADVANCED PROCESSING, PROPERTIES, AND** Applications

# Micro/nano mechanical testing of high - entropy ultra - high temperature ceramics.

### Jan Dusza

Institute of Materials Research, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Watsonova 47, Košice, Slovakia E-mail: jdusza@saske.sk

Keywords: high entropy ceramics, nanoindentation, micropillar/cantilever tests

The deformation and fracture characteristics of different ultra – high temperature high entropy ceramics - carbides, nitrides, carbonitrides, dual - phase systems, etc, were investigated connected with the processing routes and nano/micro mechanical testing of these systems. The microstructure and fracture characteristics were investigated using X-ray diffraction (XRD), scanning electron microscopy (SEM) in combination with electron back scattered diffraction (EBSD) and transmission electron microscopy (TEM). Atomic structure and local chemical disorder was determined by means of scanning transmission electron microscopy (STEM) in conjunction with energy dispersive X-ray spectroscopy (EDS. Depth-sensing nano-indentation of individual grains of bulk systems has been applied to study the nano/micro hardness and deformation characteristics. Micro-compression test of micropillars prepared by focused ion beam from oriented facets of grains were studied. During micro-cantilever tests in bending deformation and fracture characteristics of individual grains and grain boundaries have been investigated. The hardness values of differently orientated grains showed significant angle dependence. A strong influence of the grains orientation on compressive yield stress and rupture stress values was found during the micropillar test, too. The active slip systems for individual systems have been recognized. The bending strength of micro-cantilevers was strongly dependent on the character/size of the present fracture origins which were in all cases in nano-metric range. The fracture toughness of the individual grains and grain boundaries were investigated, too.



Some selected stress–effective strain curves of microcantilevers with the corresponding three main fracture origins as a,d) grain boundary, b,e) volume defects in highentropy carbide grains and c,f) surface defects of beams in high-entropy boride grains.

## Dissimilar brazing of Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> ceramic and copper using AgCu-(Sn, Ti, Zr) interlayer

Sri Harini Rajendran, Chul Hwa Jung, Jun Ho Ku, Jae Pil Jung\*

Department of Materials Science and Engineering, University of Seoul, 163 Seoulsiripdae-ro, Dongdaemun-gu, Seoul 02504, South Korea \*Email: jpjung@uos.ac.kr

Keywords: active brazing, alumina, copper, AgCu

Ceramics find diverse applications in electric vehicles, aerospace industries, nuclear and chemical-powder plants. Despite their potential across various sectors, incorporating ceramics into intricate shapes presents lots of manufacturing and economic challenges. The concept of joining ceramics to metals emerged as a promising strategy to address these existing difficulties in the manufacturing process. The fusion of metals with ceramics imparts complementary properties that neither material possesses individually. However, achieving a robust joint interface between ceramics and metals poses numerous obstacles. The properties of ceramics and metals fundamentally differ in terms of bonding nature, as well as chemical and physical attributes. Metals exhibit a metallic bond with free electrons, while ceramics form covalent or ionic bonds with highly stable outer-shell electrons. Therefore, molten metal does not wet the ceramic surface, thus limiting the prerequisite condition for joining, i.e., establishing intimate contact between ceramic and metal surface. Furthermore, the substantial differences in physical properties, such as elastic modulus, strength, and Coefficient of Thermal Expansion (CTE) mismatch between ceramics and metals, lead to significant residual stress during cooling, impacting joint strength. Various methods for ceramic-to-metal joining exist, including adhesive bonding, active metal brazing (AMB), diffusion bonding, and transient liquid-phase bonding. AMB, owing to its simplicity and favorable joint properties, stands out as the widely adopted ceramic-metal joining technique. This process involves brazing ceramic-metal surfaces using an Active Braze Alloy (ABA) in a vacuum furnace.

In this study, we focused on evaluating the influence of Sn, Ti and Zr in a Ag-Cu filler metal for brazing a Cu/Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> joint. Optimal wettability of alumina was achieved with a 5 wt% Sn content. The microstructure of the brazed joint revealed an Ag-rich matrix, a Cu-rich phase, and observed Cu-Ti intermetallic compounds along the bonded interface. Notably, intermetallic compound (IMC) formation in the filler increased as the Sn content approached 10 wt%. The shear strength of the brazed joint exhibited an increase with Sn content up to 5 wt%, peaking at approximately 15 MPa. However, strength diminished when the Sn content exceeded 5 wt%. The effect of Zr was also briefly examined, and the brazability of the Cu/Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> was improved with the dual addition of Ti and Zr to the AgCuSn interlayer.

# Effect of Y<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>-RE<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>(RE= Nd, Sm, Tb, Dy, Tm)-MgO additives on mechanical and thermal properties of silicon carbide ceramics

Minsu Heo, Hyun-Sik Kim\*, Youg-Wook Kim\*

Department of Materials Science & Engineering, University of Seoul, Seoul, South Korea \*E-mail: hyunsik.kim@uos.ac.kr, ywkim@uos.ac.kr

Keywords: SiC, flexural strength, thermal conductivity, rare-earth oxides

Newly developed SiC ceramics incorporating  $Y_2O_3$ -RE<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> (RE = Nd, Sm, Tb, Dy, Tm)-MgO additives were hot-pressed at 1900 °C under 35 MPa for 3 hours in nitrogen, achieving relative densities  $\geq$  98.7%. Among these, the composition containing 0.747 wt%  $Y_2O_3$ , 1.233 wt% Dy<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, and 0.551 wt% MgO exhibited the highest flexural strength of 943.8 ± 101.5 MPa at room temperature. Thermal conductivities ranged from 87.9 to 125.2 W/m·K, with the highest value observed in the composition containing 0.756 wt%  $Y_2O_3$ , 1.235 wt% Tb<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, and 0.551 wt% MgO.

Figure



Flexural strength of SiC ceramics with Y<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>-RE<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> (RE = Nd, Sm, Tb, Dy, Tm)-MgO additives

### Densification and mechanical properties of boron carbide ceramics reinforced with silicon carbide fibers

#### Branko Matović

Centre of Excellence-CextremeLab Vinca, Inst. of Nuclear Sci., National Inst. of the Republic of Serbia Vinča, Univ. of Belgrade, Serbia E-mail: mato@vinca.rs

**Keywords**: B<sub>4</sub>C-SiCf ceramic composite, SPS densification, microstructure, mechanical properties, ablation resistance

Boron carbide ceramics reinforced with silicon carbide fibers ( $B_4C$ -SiCf) were fabricated through spark plasma sintering, incorporating varying SiCf content ranging from 2.5 to 10 wt.%. The  $B_4C$ -SiCf mixtures underwent heat treatment using the Field Assisted Sintering Technique (FAST) for Spark Plasma Sintering (SPS) at temperatures of 1800°C and 2000 °C for 5 minutes, applying a pressure of 70 MPa in an argon atmosphere. Heating and cooling rates were set at 100°C/min and 50°C/min, respectively. The study investigated the influence of the initial powders ratio on the sintering behavior, relative density, microstructural development, and mechanical properties of the composites.

Results indicated that the sintered ceramic materials contained only the initial compounds, namely B4C and SiC phases. Scanning Electron Microscopy (SEM) micrographs illustrated that the sintered composites consisted of densely compacted  $B_4C$  and SiC grains, exhibiting a uniform distribution of both phases.

The highest relative density (> 99%) was achieved in the sample with 95%  $B_4C$  and 5% SiCf, sintered at 2000 °C. The composites demonstrated microhardness values ranging from 31 to 43 GPa, depending on the constituent content and densification temperature. The maximum microhardness was attained in the composite with 95%  $B_4C$ , sintered at 2000 °C.

To assess the composites' performance under extreme conditions, the ablation resistance was evaluated using a flowing oxyacetylene torch test. The material containing 5 wt.% SiCf exhibited superior ablation resistance compared to other compositions investigated. The study concluded that the SPS technique proves highly effective for densifying additive-free  $B_4C$ -SiCf ceramic composites, showcasing promising properties for applications in extreme radiation environments.

# Effect of electric field/current on high-temperature behavior of 8YSZ polycrystal

<u>Koji Morita<sup>1,2,3\*</sup>, Kohta Nambu<sup>1,2</sup>, Daisuke Terada<sup>3</sup>, Tomoharu Tokunaga<sup>4</sup>, Takahisa Yamamoto<sup>4</sup>, Hidehiro Yoshida<sup>5,6</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>National Institute for Materials Science (NIMS), Tsukuba, Ibaraki, Japan
<sup>2</sup>Kyushu University, Fukuoka, Japan
<sup>3</sup>Chiba Institute of Technology, Chiba, Japan
<sup>4</sup>Nagoya University, Nagoya, Japan
<sup>5</sup>The University of Tokyo, Tokio, Japan
<sup>6</sup>Next Generation Zirconia Social Cooperation Program, Tokio, Japan
\*E-mail: MORITA.Koji@nims.go.jp

Keywords: flash event, crack healing, creep, diffusion, 8YSZ

Flash event<sup>1</sup>), which is a unique behavior occurring when an electric field larger than a critical value is applied to a ceramic green compact, can succeed to lower the sintering temperature of ceramic powder compacts. Currently, it is confirmed that the flash event effectively works also to high temperature behavior of bulk ceramics, such as deformation,<sup>2,3</sup> joining<sup>4</sup>) and crack healing<sup>5</sup>. Irrespective of the many research works, however, the effect of the electric field/current on the high temperature processing is still unclear. The present study, therefore, was carried out to make clear the effects of i) the DC/AC electric currents/fields<sup>6</sup> and ii) grain size<sup>7</sup> on the high temperature behavior under the flash event using polycrystalline zirconia ceramic (8Y-CSZ) as a reference material.

Although the high-temperature behavior was accelerated by the flash event significantly more under the AC field than under the DC field. For example, although the crack healing occurs even under the static annealing without the electric field, the healing rate was 4 times faster than that of the static annealing without electric current/field.<sup>6)</sup> Under the flash event, the high-temperature behavior is apparently accelerated in fine grained 8Y-CSZ than in coarse grained one, suggesting that the grain boundaries play an important role in the flash event.<sup>7)</sup> The enhanced processing cannot be explained only by the thermal effect caused by Joule heating, but non-thermal effects caused additionally by the flash event. Especially, the high-temperature behavior under the flash event would be accelerated through the field/current-enhanced diffusional processes, especially through the grain boundary diffusivity of the cations.

#### Acknowledgments

The authors sincerely appreciate to the financial support by JST CREST (JPMJCR1996), Japan and by JSPS KAKENHI, Grant-in-Aid for Scientific Research (B) (20H02444) from the Ministry of Education, Culture, Sports, Science and Technology (MEXT), Japan.

#### References

- 1. M. Cologna, B. Rashkova, R. Raj, J. Am. Cream. Soc. 93, 3556-3559 (2010).
- 2. H. Yoshida, Y. Sasaki, Scripta Mater. 146, 173–177 (2018).
- 3. Y. Sasaki et al., Scripta Mater. 194, 113659 (2021).
- 4. B. Yang, H. Conrad, Scripta Mater. 141, 41-44 (2017).
- 5. K. Morita, F. Naito, D. Terada, J. Euro. Cream. Soc. 41[16], 282–289 (2021).
- 6. S. Kawabata, S. Takahashi, K. Nambu, K. Morita, J. Am. Cream. Soc., 106[10] 6163-6176 (2023).
- 7. S. Takahashi et al., Adv. Eng. Mater., 25[18] 2201807 (2023).

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

### **Oxidation mechanisms of multicomponent carbide ceramics**

### Ke Ren<sup>\*</sup>, Chenran Li, Yiguang Wang

Institute of Advanced Structure Technology, Beijing Institute of Technology, Haidian District, Beijing, 100081, China \*E-mail: renke@bit.edu.cn

Keywords: UHTCs, multicomponent carbide ceramics, oxidation behavior, active oxidation

In this study, we take the  $(Hf_{0.2}Ti_{0.2}Zr_{0.2}Ta_{0.2}Nb_{0.2})C$  (HTZTNC) and  $(Hf_{0.25}Zr_{0.25}Ta_{0.25}Nb_{0.25})C$ (HZTNC) as typical samples to investigate their oxidation rate-controlling step and the factors to determine the oxide morphologies. The results indicate that the outward diffusion of metal-containing substances is the rate-controlling step for HTZTNC with the generation of high-pressure TiO during prolonged oxidation, while the inward diffusion of oxidant is the controlling-step for HZTNC, in which the vapor-pressure of corresponding metal-containing oxides are too low to diffuse out. The elements in the resultant oxide during oxidation shows gradient distribution, which is consistent to a preferential oxidation order driven by the oxidative free energy of each element. The vapor pressure of elemental oxidation can also have an important effect on the structure of the oxide layer. It is also noted that the rapid growth of oxide scale in HZTNC ceramics accumulates oxidative stress due to the lack of continuous outward diffusion of the element, leading to eventual fracture with prolonged oxidation. Herein, it is concluded that the rate-controlling step for oxidation of multicomponent carbide ceramics is determined by the vapor-pressure of the corresponding metal-containing oxides, and the oxide morphologies are determined by both the chemical potentials for oxidation and the vapor-pressure. This understanding could provide criteria to design the oxidation resistance of multicomponent carbide ceramics.



Mass per unit area of the samples at 1300°C as a function of oxidation time: (a) HTZTNC; (b) HZTNC. (c) The relationship between  $k_p$  and the different oxygen partial pressures. (d) Ellingham diagram for each composition of HTZTNC

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

## T2.5 Advanced Polymer Derived Ceramics (PDCs) and Related Materials for Energy Applications

### Polymer-derived ceramic coatings for stainless steel corrosion resistance

### Kathy Lu<sup>1\*</sup>, Hyeon Joon Choi<sup>2</sup>

 <sup>1</sup>Department of Mechanical and Materials Engineering, University of Alabama at Birmingham, Birmingham, AL 35294, USA
 <sup>2</sup>Department of Materials Science and Engineering, Virginia Tech, Blacksburg, VA, 24061, USA
 \*Email: klu@uab.edu

**Keywords**: polymer-derived ceramics, perhydropolysilazane (PHPS), coating, stainless steel, weld, chloride corrosion, interdiffusion, mechanical properties, failure resistance

Corrosion of spent nuclear fuel storage canisters is a serious concern due to the deposition of corrosive marine salts by inducing chloride-induced pitting corrosion. Ceramic coatings are desirable options thanks to their high resistance to corrosive environments and good mechanical properties. However, the interfacial compatibility with the steel substrate is a challenge.

In our work, SiON coatings were created using perhydropolysilazane (PHPS) on the weld region and the base stainless steel region with different microstructures and compositions. The influences of the weld and base steel compositions and microstructures on coating formation, composition, microstructure, mechanical properties, and corrosion resistance were investigated. The SiON coatings show a higher nitrogen content and a lower oxygen content on the base metal than on the weld metal. Salt spray tests show that the differences in mechanical properties and compositions on the weld and base steel substrates do not significantly affect the function of the corrosion-protective coatings. However, when the coating thickness is high, the corrosion resistance decreases. In addition, a SiOCN coating has been developed based on polysilazane and polysiloxane preceramic polymers. The multilayer coating system consists of a 600 nm thick SiON bond coat, a 66 nm thick SiOC buffer layer, a 604 nm thick SiONC main coat, and a 50 nm thick SiON/SiO<sub>2</sub> top coat. Coating compositions and structural evolution were analyzed. The SiOCN amorphous coating shows improved hardness and reduced modulus than the SiON layer only. The coating can also be repaired after damage. Our coating systems provide a new approach to extending the lifetime of nuclear waste containers in corrosive conditions and important guidance regarding the desirable coatings and thicknesses for best corrosion prevention.

#### Invited



### Figures

### Acknowledgments

This work was financially supported by the US Department of Energy (Grant Number DE-NE0008963).

### T2.6 SUSTAINABLE MATERIALS AND SYSTEMS FOR ENERGY EFFICIENT BUILDING AND STRUCTURES

## **3D** printed lightweight advanced building material from waste glass-based geopolymer

Jozef Kraxner<sup>1\*</sup>, Abel W. Ourgessa<sup>1</sup>, Mokhtar Mahmoud<sup>1</sup>, Enrico Bernardo<sup>2</sup>, Dušan Galusek<sup>1, 3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>FunGlass, Alexander Dubček University of Trenčín, Študentská 2, 911 50 Trenčín, Slovakia <sup>2</sup>Department of Industrial Engineering (DII), University of Padova, Via Marzolo 9, 35131 Padova, Italy

<sup>3</sup>Joint Glass Centre of the IIC SAS, TnUAD, and FCHFT STU, Študentská 2, SK-911 50 Trencín, Slovakia

\*E-mail: jozef.kraxner@gmail.com

Keywords: 3D printing, hollow glass microspheres, waste glass, lightweight geopolymer

The production of Portland cement requires vast amounts of energy and raw materials. Unfortunately, it also generates a significant amount of  $CO_2$ , which contributes to global warming. By 2020, the global cement industry is expected to produce 5.9 billion tons of cement, producing over 4.8 billion tons of  $CO_2$  emissions [1]. This is a concerning situation, and it is urgent that we find ways to reduce  $CO_2$  emissions from cement manufacturing. Notably, the production of Portland cement alone contributes to 5-7% of all  $CO_2$  emissions [2].

The solution to this problem requires the development of efficient building materials and building processes. Lightweight constructions are increasingly used in construction sectors because using low-density materials reduces the structural weight of products. Geopolymers, mainly aluminosilicate materials produced from industrial by-products, are alternative building materials with low CO<sub>2</sub> emission, excellent properties, and high durability compared to ordinary Portland cement. The geopolymer technology prvides a solution by using industrial byproducts (waste) containing aluminosilicate phases with little negative impact on the environment. Combining different source materials containing aluminosilicate and alkali solutions with optimization of curing temperature, alkali concentrations, additives, Na<sub>2</sub>O/SiO<sub>2</sub> ratio, etc., gives geopolymer-like materials/cements good mechanical properties and a high durability. Due to their mechanical properties and environmental benefits, geopolymer-like materials appear as future prospective construction materials with applications in different areas.

3D printing of building materials offers several environmental and economic advantages by reducing construction errors, costs, time, and safety risks compared to conventional construction systems. 3D printing process of lightweight geopolymer-like materials would be a potential game-changer in the building industry. This study presents a method that utilizes waste glass powders with an alkali solution (3-5 M NaOH) to produce a geopolymer-like paste through direct ink writing 3D printing. A mixture of hollow and solid glass microspheres was incorporated as fillers to enhance printability and adjust density. Additionally, alumina-zirconia silica refractory (AZS) was included to investigate its impact on mechanical properties. After printing, the samples underwent curing at 40°C for 48 hours, followed

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

by a 14-day ambient temperature treatment. Subsequently, the printed samples were fired at 800°C to evaluate their thermal behavior. The results demonstrated a favorable trade-off between compressive strength and density in the printed samples. The fired samples transformed into lightweight glass ceramic foams while keeping their printed structure.

#### Acknowledgments

This paper is a part of the dissemination activities of the project FunGlass. This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 739566. The authors also gratefully acknowledge the financial support from the Slovak Grant Agency of the Ministry of Education, Science, Research and Sport, VEGA 1/0456/20.

#### References

- F.N.Okoye: Geopolymer binder: A veritable alternative to Portland cement, Materials Today: Proceedings 4 (2017) 5599–5604.
- N.B. Singh, B. Middendrof: Geopolymers as an alternative to Portland cement: An overview, Construction and Building Materials 237 (2020) 117455.

## T2.7 Energy Efficiency and Green Technologies in Ceramic Manufacturing Industries

### **Development of ceramic components for energy efficient combustion technology for gas burner applications**

### <u>Rekha T.</u><sup>1</sup>, Rao Hari<sup>1</sup>, Sharma L. K<sup>2\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Agnisumukh Energy Solutions Pvt Ltd, Bangalore -560030, India <sup>2</sup>Mahamana Ceramic Development Organization, New Delhi, India \*E-mail: lksharma6@rediffmail.com

Keywords: energy, combuston, porous, radiant, burners

The conventional gas burners for domestic and commercial applications not only have low thermal efficiency but emit harmful emissions into environment due to high presence of carbon monoxide & nitrogen oxide in flame. Investigations were carried on the development of ceramic components for the replacement of metallic burner casing, metallic burner base, and burners by the combination of ceramic materials like Silicon Carbide & Cordierite. A development study on burners and their thermal efficiency was carried out on two types of porous radiant burners (PRB). Thermal efficiency of both burners was found to be around 56-65%.

The carbon monoxide emission from PRB was found to be 54-58 ppm in comparison of 355-545 ppm of conventional burner system. NOx emission was 2.10 - 5.00 ppm for PRB in comparison to 28-56 ppm of conventional burners. This work has been done as a mission of clean energy & sustainable solution for LPG Gas burners & stoves. These burners are not only energy efficient but also produces convection cum radiant heat & emits far infra-red rays, which belong to the positive spectrum of light operating at a frequency bandwidth of 300GHz to 430-THz.

In both the burner systems, ceramic materials with low thermal expansion, high thermal shock resistance and good thermal conductivity were used and assembly was developed. Complete burner component system with the use of ceramics is eco-friendly in manufacturing as well as in use.
### **T3** Ceramics for Environmental Systems

### **T3.1 Photocatalysts for Energy and Environmental Applications**

# Nanostructured iron-based absorber and catalyst materials for solar energy conversion

### Roland Marschall

Physical Chemistry III, Department of Chemistry, University of Bayreuth, Bayreuth, Germany E-mail: roland.marschall@uni-bayreuth.de

Keywords: spinels, photocatalysis, electrocatalysis, water splitting

Efficient conversion and storage of solar energy are crucial steps in the establishment of a renewable and carbon neutral energy supply. Photocatalysis and photoelectrochemistry are considered promising to make use of the large amounts of sunlight that reach the surface of earth. They render the direct conversion of light into chemical energy possible, circumventing the problem of expensive energy storage using batteries that comes with the use of photovoltaics. In recent years, earth-abundant spinel ferrites have emerged as auspicious materials for applications in photo(electrochemistry) and photocatalysis. They have the inherent ability to absorb a large part of the visible light spectrum with band gaps around 2 eV, while being at the same time stable against photocorrosion. To overcome their charge carrier limitations, my group utilizes modern synthesis techniques to prepare nanostructured spinel ferrites.

In the last years, we have developed fast microwave-assisted sol-gel syntheses yielding phase-pure spinel ferrite nanoparticles of e.g.  $MgFe_2O_4$ ,  $CoFe_2O_4$ ,  $NiFe_2O_4$ ,  $MnFe_2O_4$  and  $Zn-Fe_2O_4$  at temperatures as low as 170-200 °C.[1-4] The crystallite size can be tailored by post-synthetic heat treatment, however the materials are already (partly) crystalline as-prepared, with specific surface areas of around 200 m<sup>2</sup>/g and good colloidal stability. Photocatalytic and electrocatalytic experiments will be presented, as well as the conversion of some spinel oxides into sulfides, e.g. pendladites.[5] A new direct microwave synthesis for nickel-iron sulphide nanosheets for electrocatalytic  $CO_2$  reduction will also be presented,[6] as well as a novel microwave synthesis for macroporous  $CaFe_2O_4$  foams for hydrogen generation.[7] Recent results on using nickel-iron sulphide nanosheets as co-catalysts in photocatalytic hydrogen production will also be presented,[8] as well as the synthesis of high-entropy spinel oxide nanoparticles at low temperature.[9]

- 1. K. Kirchberg et al., J. Phys. Chem. C 121 (2017) 27126
- 2. C. Simon et al., Chem. Eur. J. 27 (2021) 16990
- 3. P. Dolcet et al., Inorg. Chem. Front. 6 (2019) 1527
- 4. A. Bloesser et al., ACS Appl. Nano Mater. 3 (2020) 11587
- 5. D. Tetzlaff et al., Faraday Discussions 215 (2019) 216
- 6. C. Simon et al, ACS Appl. Energy Mater. 4 (2021) 8702
- 7. A. Bloesser et al., Solar RRL 4 (2020) 1900570
- 8. J. Zander et al., J. Mater. Chem. A 11 (2023) 17066
- 9. J. Zander et al., Adv. Funct. Mater. (2023), DOI: 10.1002/adfm.202310179

### Photoelectrochemical water splitting using hematite-based photoanodes

*József S. Pap*<sup>1\*</sup>, *Tímea Benkó*<sup>1</sup>, *Anita Horváth*<sup>1</sup>, *Irfan Khan*<sup>1</sup>, *Shaohua Shen*<sup>2</sup>, *Jinzhan Su*<sup>2</sup>, *Yiqing Wang*<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Surface Chemistry and Catalysis Department, HUN-REN Centre for Energy Research, Budapest, Hungary

<sup>2</sup>International Research Center for Renewable Energy (IRCRE), Xi'an Jiaotong University, Xi'an, Shaanxi 710049, China

\*E-mail: pap.jozsef@ek.hun-ren.hu

Keywords: water splitting, hematite, photoanode, co-catalyst, heterojunction

Hematite ( $\alpha$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>) receives great attention as photoanode in water splitting devices due to its abundance in nature, environmental friendliness, high photochemical stability, and a narrow bandgap of 1.9–2.2 eV. Despite these favorable properties,  $\alpha$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> is handicapped by short excited-state lifetime, poor water oxidation kinetics, limited hole diffusion and subpar electrical conductivity, leading to predominant electron–hole recombination in the bulk, interfaces, and surfaces, thereby constraining PEC efficiency.

Several strategies exist to overcome the limitations of  $\alpha$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, including heterojunction construction, doping, morphology advancement, and co-catalyst loading. In my talk, I pay attention to these strategies and show examples on the possible outcomes of their combinations.

First, the nuanced impacts of a thin co-catalyst layer over morphologically controlled, doped or pristine  $\alpha$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> will be introduced, in connection to surface states denoted as S1 (higher energy) and S2 (lower energy). We prepared isomorphous hematite nanoarrays with a thin layer of amorphous copper oxide (CuOx), composed of a blend of Cu(I) and Cu(II) species. Remarkably, we discovered that in pristine  $\alpha$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, the S2 state played a pivotal role in activating the CuOx ad-layer for water oxidation. Notably, CuOx was activated indirectly through the equilibrium with the S2 state, despite available, high-energy holes of S1. As a result, in the case of Ti-doped  $\alpha$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> devoid of the S2 state, the presence of CuOx caused a loss of efficiency.

Second, we layered economically viable pyrolytic carbon nanotubes (p-CNTs) as solidstate mediators to accelerate the charge transfer between the  $\alpha$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> and the boron-doped graphitic carbon nitride (B-C<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub>) component of a type II heterojunction. This synergistic combination resulted in a remarkable enhancement in photocurrent density compared to pristine  $\alpha$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>. The highest donor density could be confirmed for  $\alpha$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>/B-C<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub>/p-CNT, compared to  $\alpha$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> or  $\alpha$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>/B-C<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub>. Superstructuring the B-C<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub> and p-CNT onto pristine  $\alpha$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> enhanced the charge separation and transfer efficiencies, moreover, mitigated recombination losses. DFT calculations suggested the type II charge transfer mechanism switched to enhanced Z-scheme type by simple deposition of p-CNT on  $\alpha$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>/B-C<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub>.

Achieving such cost-effective and efficient hematite-based photoanodes offers an opportunity to fabricate tandem PEC devices for low-cost solar fuel production.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the National Research, Development and Innovation (NRDI) Fund of Hungary (Hungary); grant numbers NKFI-128841 and TKP2021-NKTA-05, and National Natural Science Foundation of China (Grant No. 52225606). This research was supported by the grant no. VEKOP-2.3.3-15-2016-00002 and VEKOP-2.3.2-16-2016-00011 of the European Structural and Investment Funds. We also thank the Renewable Energy National Laboratory (Hungary) for support, financed by the RRF-2.3.1-21-2022-00009 project.

# Magnetic photocatalytic nanocomposites based on carbon nitride and magnetite nanoflowers for the removal of dyes at neutral pH

Marcelo Henrique Sousa<sup>1\*</sup>, Eliane Vieira Rosa<sup>2</sup>, Atailson Oliveira da Silva<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Green Nanotechnology Group, University of Brasilia, CEP 72220-900, Brasilia-DF, Brazil <sup>2</sup>Federal Institute of Education, Science and Technology Goiano - Campus Ceres, 76300-000, Ceresgo, Brazil \*E-mail: mhsousa@unb.br

Keywords: carbon nitride, iron oxide, magnetic nanocomposites, nanoflowers, dye removal

Carbon nitride  $(g-C_3N_4)$  has demonstrated exceptional potential for environmental decontamination. As a metal-free photocatalyst responsive to visible light,  $g-C_3N_4$  has exhibited high performance in various environmental applications. By synergistically combining the inherent properties of g- $C_3N_4$  with those of an integrated phase, this approach offers a greater array of reactive sites and heterojunctions, enhancing its ability to capture and degrade a wider range of compounds. Notably, decorating  $g-C_3N_4$  with magnetic nanoparticles creates magneto-responsive adsorbent platforms that can be remotely controlled by external magnetic fields, facilitating easy recovery and reuse in remediation techniques. This study investigates the development of magnetic nanocomposites through the in-situ incorporation of magnetite ( $Fe_3O_4$ ) nanoparticles (NPs) with spherical and nanoflower-like morphologies into graphitic carbon nitride sheets using two different synthetic methods. The nanomaterials were characterized using TEM, SEM, XRD, FTIR, BET, zeta potential analysis, vibrating sample magnetometry, and UV-vis absorption spectroscopy. The integration of magnetic NPs into the carbon nitride matrix improved the optical and textural properties of the composites. The effect of the NP morphology on the adsorptive and photocatalytic properties of the nanocomposites to remove methylene blue (MB) from aqueous solutions was evaluated under various pH conditions (acidic, neutral, and basic) through batch tests. Under extreme pH conditions, the nanocomposites displayed comparable or lower MB removal capacity compared to pure g- $C_3N_4$ . However, in a neutral medium, the nanocomposite containing  $Fe_3O_4$  nanoflowers demonstrated a significantly higher removal efficiency (>80%), attributed to its high adsorption capacity and excellent photocatalytic activity in this pH range. This nanocomposite presents a promising approach for removing cationic dyes from water through magnetic assistance, as it eliminates the need for pH adjustment of the polluted effluent, thereby reducing costs and environmental impact in the dyeing industry.

### **T3.2** CERAMICS FOR CARBON CAPTURE AND STORAGE TECHNOLOGIES

# Microwave modulation of the redox properties of solid state materials for energy storage and CO<sub>2</sub> conversion

<u>M. Balaguer</u><sup>1</sup>, A. Domínguez-Saldaña<sup>1</sup>, F. Borrás-Morell<sup>2</sup>, B. García-Baños<sup>2</sup>, P. Plaza-González<sup>2</sup>, J. Santos-Blasco<sup>1</sup>, D. Catalán-Martínez<sup>1</sup>, L. Navarrete<sup>1</sup>, J. M. Catalá-Civera<sup>2</sup>, J. M. Serra<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Instituto de Tecnología Química, Universitat Politècnica de València-Consejo Superior de Investigaciones Científicas, Valencia, Spain <sup>2</sup>Instituto ITACA, Universitat Politècnica de València, Valencia, Spain \*E-mail: mabara@itq.upv.es

Keywords: microwaves, redox reactions, CO2 conversion, low-carbon technology, electrification

Adapting industrial processes to low-carbon technologies and renewable electricity requires novel tools to electrify unitary steps as well as efficient energy storage, i.e. through catalytic synthesis of valuable chemical carriers. The recently discovered use of microwaves as a reducing agent for solid materials offers a novel framework in the enhancement of this chemical conversion route, as it promotes the formation of oxygen vacancies and surface oxygen exchange at low temperatures.

By this procedure, ceramic oxides, such as doped  $CeO_2$  and  $ZrO_2$ , can be chemically reduced, leading to an instantaneous outstanding raise in electrical conductivity and resulting in a non-equilibrium high-energy state. The input of a suitable sweep gas on MW switchingoff leads to the material reoxidation via gas deoxygenation and the formation of valuable molecular energy carriers, as H<sub>2</sub> from water or CO from CO<sub>2</sub>, which further enabled CH<sub>4</sub> production when integrated with a Sabatier reactor (Figure 1).<sup>1</sup> Besides, we have demonstrated that the redox process is reproducible, reversible, and cyclable, and the extent of the O<sub>2</sub> yield depends on the material properties and microwave power.<sup>2</sup>

The ability of microwave radiation to evolve  $O_2$  and transmute the redox catalytic behavior in oxides can be used in the electrification of several catalytic processes, such as the selective functionalization of alkanes, green H<sub>2</sub> production and conversion of CO<sub>2</sub>.



Schematic illustration of the microwave-induced redox cycle.1

- 1. JM Serra et al. Nature Energy, 5, 2020, 910–919.
- 2. JM Serra, et al., Materials Horizons, 10, 2023, 5796-5804.

## Enabling the manufacturing of hierarchical and layered ceramics

### Diletta Giuntini

Department of Mechanical Engineering, Eindhoven University of Technology, Eindhoven, Netherlands E-mail: d.giuntini@tue.nl

Keywords: manufacturing, sintering, shape control, laminates, membranes, hierachical ceramics

The production of ceramics for energy components has been a long-standing challenge. Multi-materials, layered structures and hierarchically porous components are required for performance of membranes, fuel cells, batteries, and more. Their processing, and particularly their sintering, is prone to be affected by anisotropy, distortions and even cracking, due to the non-uniform densification kinetics. The raising field of Additive Manufacturing (AM) is introducing previously unthinkable design freedom, but also additional new challenges in terms of shape retention and shrinkage anisotropy in the following sintering steps. By modeling the sintering process in a simple finite-element-based platform, strategies to minimize these issues are defined. The stresses developed at the interfaces turn out to be key, and process optimization guidelines are drawn based both on the interface geometry and on the sintering routine. Strategies to maximize process efficiency and uniformity with field-assisted sintering techniques are also outlined.

# **Concept and application of sustainable materials processing using ultrasound for carbon neutrality**

#### Yamato Hayashi

Department of Applied Chemistry, School of Engineering, Tohoku University, Sendai, Japan E-mail: yamato.hayashi.b6@tohoku.ac.jp

Keywords: sonochemistry, low cost, low emission, room temerature, nanomaterial

Now, a variety of high-value-added technologies as nanotechnology and the high value-added products as nano metal particle related materials using it can be requested various fields. Nanoparticles is one of the most important nanomaterials because nanoparticle manufacturing is an essential component of nanotechnology. Nanoparticles are fabricated by a variety of processes. In general, the traditional metal nanoparticles fabrication processes are basically either physical or chemical methods. Fig.1 shows relationship of cost and environmental impact for nanoparticle fabrication. Conventional processing is often problematic in terms of synthesis conditions, processes, cost, and waste emissions, which is a problem that must be solved when considering the SDGs, including carbon neutrality. In industry, well-balanced fabrication is needed in order to control the cost and protect the environment. However, it is difficult to manage both low cost and low environment impacts in these traditional methods. Therefore, it is required innovative fabrication design in order to break through these problems. Ultrasound processing is one of chemical process. In general, the properties of a specific energy source determine the course of the chemical reaction. The ultrasonic irradiation differs from traditional energy sources in duration, pressure, and energy per molecule. The chemical effects of ultrasound do not come from a direct interaction with molecular species. Instead, they are derived principally from acoustic cavitation, which can produce temperatures as high as those on the surface of the sun and pressures as great as those at the bottom of the ocean.[1] However, ultrasound generation uses a wide range of energy sources that can be used from cleaning to reducing applications. Ultrasonic cavitation generated hot spot in solution and slurry. Because this hot spot generated pulsingly innumerably with high temperature and high pressure in a short time, this has an influence on the chemical reaction locally. In solid-liquid system, supersaturation greatly changes in solid-liquid interface by cavitation.

We developed new low cost and low emission (carbon neutrality) various nanomaterials synthesis method that achieved by sonochemical solid-liquid processing in roome temperature. This new synthesis method is with the ultrasonic as non-equilibrium reactor and the metal oxide or metal and alcohol based solvent are used for the raw material. We have synthesized nano metal related materials by ultrasound in liquid-solid system and controlled morphology of products. The alcohol based solvent and the metal oxide or metal powder are put in the beaker and only irradiated by ultrasound. The metal oxide simply was reduced into metal and morphology of metal nanoparticles was changed by various conditions. In case of silver oxide and gold oxide mixture, silver-gold alloy can be synthesized at room temperature by ultrasound.[2] This fabrication method is extremely clean and safety processing, so it can also be applied for various nanometerial synthesis. In presentasion, various low-emission, carbon-neutral nanomaterial synthesis processes and concepts will be presented. [3, 4]



Fig.1 Relationships of cost and environmental impact for nano material fabrication.

- 1. E. B. Flint, K. S. Suslick, Science, 253, 1397–1399 (1991).
- 2. Y. Hayashi, Y. Ebato, R. Onishi, H. Takizawa, Ultrason. Sonochem., 89, 106115 (2022).
- 3. Y. Hayashi, T. Shihido, K. Seki, H. Takizawa, J. Ashia. Ceram. Soc., 11, 464 (2023).
- 4. T. Yamanaka, Y. Hayashi, H. Takizawa, Ultrason. Sonochem., 89, 106114 (2022).

# Production of methane from carbon dioxide using zirconium-tin oxide based catalysts

Naoyoshi Nunotani, Yuki Ogino, Nobuhito Imanaka\*

Department of Applied Chemistry, Faculty of Engineering, Osaka University, 2-1 Yamadaoka, Suita, Osaka, Japan

\*E-mail: imanaka@chem.eng.osaka-u.ac.jp

Keywords: methanation, catalyst, carbon dioxide, zirconium-tin oxide

Methanation (conversion of  $CO_2$  and  $H_2$  into  $CH_4$  and  $H_2O$  using a catalyst) has been paid attention due to the decrease of the  $CO_2$  emission and the generation of  $CH_4$  as a fuel. To date, various kinds of catalysts for metahanation have been studied, while high pressure and high concentration of hydrogen were generally required. From the viewpoint of the energy cost and the safety, the atmospheric pressure and low concentration of hydrogen are desired; however, such moderate conditions are thermodynamically unfavorable to proceed the methanation; e.g.,  $3wt\%Ni/CeO_2$  showed 36% of the  $CH_4$  yield ( $CO_2$  conversion: 51%) (atmospheric pressure,  $1vol\%CO_2$ - $5vol\%H_2$ -94vol%Ar,  $450^{\circ}C$ ) [1].

In order to convert CO<sub>2</sub> into CH<sub>4</sub> effectively under moderate conditions, ZrSnO<sub>4</sub> [2] was focused as a mother solid. Since ZrSnO<sub>4</sub> with a distorted crystal structure has redox properties owing to the valence change of Sn<sup>2+/4+</sup>, the CO<sub>2</sub> adsorption and the bond cleavage of CO<sub>2</sub> are expected to be facilitated. Furthremore, Ce<sup>3+/4+</sup> was introduced into ZrSnO<sub>4</sub> to improve redox properties with the synergistic effects of Sn<sup>2+/4+</sup> and Ce<sup>3+/4+</sup>. In this study, therefore, we prepared 18wt%Ni/20wt%ZrSn<sub>1-x</sub>Ce<sub>x</sub>O<sub>4-δ</sub>/γ-Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> (Ni/ZrSn<sub>1-x</sub>Ce<sub>x</sub>O<sub>4-δ</sub>/γ-Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>) catalysts, composed of Ni, ZrSn<sub>1-x</sub>Ce<sub>x</sub>O<sub>4-δ</sub>, and γ-Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> having high surface area. The catalytic activity was investigated by using fixed-bed flow reactor, where the reactant gas of 1vol%CO<sub>2</sub>-4vol%H<sub>2</sub>-95vol%Ar was fed under atmospheric pressure (50 mL·min<sup>-1</sup>) over 0.1 g of the catalyst.

Figure 1 shows the temperature dependencies of CO<sub>2</sub> conversion and CH<sub>4</sub> yield of Ni/ ZrSn<sub>0.90</sub>Ce<sub>0.10</sub>O<sub>4-δ</sub>/ $\gamma$ -Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> and Ni/ $\gamma$ -Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, where the Ce loading amount was optimized to be x = 0.10. The use of ZrSn<sub>0.90</sub>Ce<sub>0.10</sub>O<sub>4-δ</sub> enhanced the catalytic activity compared to that of Ni/ $\gamma$ -Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, and the Ni/ZrSn<sub>0.90</sub>Ce<sub>0.10</sub>O<sub>4-δ</sub>/ $\gamma$ -Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> catalyst showed the high CH<sub>4</sub> yield (61.0%) and the high CO<sub>2</sub> conversion (58.4%) even at 350°C.





Figure 1. Temperature dependencies of (a) the  $CO_2$  conversion and (b) the  $CH_4$  yield for  $Ni/ZrSn_{0.90}Ce_{0.10}O_{4-\delta}/\gamma$ -Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> ( $\bullet$ ) and  $Ni/\gamma$ -Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> ( $\Box$ ).

- 1. N.M. Martin, P. Velin, M. Skoglundh, M. Bauer, P. Carlsson, Catal. Sci. Technol., 7, 1086 (2017).
- 2. H. Shirai, N. Akiyama, N. Nunotani, N. Imanaka, Chem. Lett., 47, 723 (2018).

## Ceramic aerogel for carbon-sequestering insulation materials

### Shenqiang Ren

Department of Materials Science and Engineering, University of Maryland, College Park, Maryland, USA E-mail: sren@umd.edu

Keywords: ceramic aerogel, nanoporous, additive manufacturing, insulation, carbon sequestration

To exploit the high temperature superinsulation potential of anisotropic thermal management materials, the incorporation of ceramic aerogel into the aligned structural networks is indispensable. However, the long-standing obstacle to exploring ultralight superinsulation ceramic aerogels is the inaccessibility of its mechanical elasticity, stability and anisotropic thermal insulation. In this study, we report a recoverable, flexible ceramic fiber-aerogel composite with anisotropic lamellar structure, where the interfacial cross-linking between ceramic fiber and aerogel is important in its superinsulation performance. The resulting ultralight aerogel composite exhibits a density of 0.05 g/cm3, large strain recovery (over 50%), and low thermal conductivity (0.0224 W/mK), while its hydrophobicity is achieved by in-situ trichlorosilane coating with the water contact angle of 135. The hygroscopic tests of such aerogel composites demonstrate a reversible thermal insulation. The mechanical elasticity and stability of the anisotropic composites, with its soundproof performance, shed light on the low-cost superelastic aerogel manufacturing with scalability for energy saving and carbon-sequestration building applications.

## Subnanometer cluster and nanoparticle-based catalysts in CO<sub>2</sub> hydrogenation towards C1 and higher C products under low pressure: Control of performance by size, composition & support

### Stefan Vajda

Department of Nanocatalysis, J. Heyrovsky Institute of Physical Chemistry, Czech Academy of Sciences, 18223 Prague, Czech Republic E-mail: stefan.vajda@jh-inst.cas.cz

Keywords: subnanomeyter cluster, bimetallic, nanocluster, CO2 conversion

The presention will focus on the thermocatalytic conversion of carbon dioxide by two families of copper-based catalysts: (1) atomically monodisperse mono- and bimetallic clusters made of handful atoms deposted in vacuum with mass selection from molecular beams, supported on technologically relevant oxide- and model carbon-based supports [1-2] and (2) by wet-chemical ways synthesized nanoclusters on various oxide supports with variable morphology [3-5].



Figure 1. Left: Schematic of  $CO_2$  convestion on subnanometer clustes. Right: Iron-oxide supports with variable morphology – supports for nanopatrticulate catalysts.

- Jašík, J.; Valtera, S.; Vaidulych, M.; Bunian, M.; Lei, Y.; Halder, A.; Tarábková, H.; Jindra, M.; Kavan, L.; Frank, O.; Bartling, S.; Vajda, Š. Oxidative dehydrogenation of cyclohexene on atomically precise subnanometer Cu<sub>4.n</sub>Pd<sub>n</sub> (0≤n≤4) tetramer clusters: The effect of cluster composition and support on performance. *Faraday Discuss.* 2023, 242, 70-93. DOI: 10.1039/D2FD00108J.
- Lee, S.; Halder, A.; Ferguson, G.A.; Seifert, S.; Winans, R.E.; Teschner, D.; Schlögl, R.; Papaefthimiou, V.; Greeley, J.; Curtiss, L.A.; Vajda, S. Subnanometer Cobalt Oxide Clusters as Selective Low Temperature Oxidative Dehydrogenation Catalysts. *Nat. Commun.* 2019, *10*, Article number: 954, p. 1-9, 2019, DOI: 10.1038/s41467-019-08819-5.
- 3. K. Simkovičová et al, under preparation
- K. Simkovičová, M. I. Qadir, N. Žilková, J. E. Olszówka, P. Sialini, L. Kvítek, and Š. Vajda, "Hydrogenation of CO<sub>2</sub> on Nanostructured Cu/FeO<sub>x</sub> Catalysts: The Effect of Morphology and Cu Load on Selectivity", *Catalysts* 12, 516 (2022), DOI: 10.3390/catal12050516.
- A. Halder, M. Kilianová, B. Yang, E. C. Tyo, S. Seifert, R. Prucek, A. Panáček, P. Suchomel, O. Tomanec, D. J. Gosztola, D. Milde, H.-H. Wang, L. Kvítek, R. Zbořil, S. Vajda, "Highly Efficient Cu-Decorated Iron Oxide Nanocatalyst for Low Pressure CO2 Conversion" *Appl. Catal. B*, 225, 128-138 (2018), DOI: 10.1016/j.apcatb.2017.11.047.

# Partially substituted perovskite-type oxide catalyst prepared by thermal decomposition of heteronuclear metal cyano complex

<u>Hidenori Yahiro</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Hiroyuki Yamaura<sup>1</sup>, Syuhei Yamaguchi<sup>1</sup>, Kakeru Ninomiya<sup>2</sup>, Maiko Nishibori<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Graduate School of Science and Engineering, Ehime University, Matsuyama 790-8577, Japan <sup>2</sup>International Center for Synchrotron Radiation Innovation Smart, Tohoku University, Sendai 980-8577, Japan \*E-mail: hyahiro@ehime-u.ac.jp

Keywords: perovskite-type oxide, cyano complex, A-site substitution, themal decomposion

Perovskite-type oxide (ABO<sub>3</sub>) catalyst is attractive much attention in the field of environmental-friendly catalytic reactions: not only complete oxidation of hydrocarbon and CO, but also dry reforming reaction (CH<sub>4</sub>+CO<sub>2</sub>=2CO+2H<sub>2</sub>) utilizing CO<sub>2</sub> captured [1]. We have reported that ABO<sub>3</sub> catalyst can be prepared by thermal decomposition of heteronuclear cyano metal complex precursor (CN method) [2]. This novel method provided high surface area- and high homogeneous-ABO<sub>3</sub> catalyst because of structural similarity between precursor and product (Fig. 1(A)). Such a high surface area is considered to come from the formation of pore during the thermal oxidation process in CN method (Fig. 1(B)). The ABO<sub>3</sub> catalysts prepared by CN method were applied to heterogeneous catalytic reactions of gas-solid, liquid-solid, and gas-solid-solid systems [3]. In the present study, we focused on the preparation of partially substituted ABO<sub>3</sub> catalyst (A<sub>1-x</sub>A'<sub>x</sub>FeO<sub>3</sub>) by CN method for improving catalytic activity.

Heteronuclear metal cyano complex,  $AA'[Fe(CN)_6]nH_2O$  (A and A': lanthanide metal ion and/or alkaline earth metal ion), was prepared as a precursor of  $A_{1,x}A'_xBO_3$  catalyst, followed by calcination at 500-1000 °C. The resulting oxide was characterized by XRD, BET, H<sub>2</sub>-TPR, and XAFS methods.

La<sub>1-x</sub>Ca<sub>x</sub>[Fe(CN)<sub>6</sub>]nH<sub>2</sub>O calcined at 700 °C showed XRD pattern assigned to perovskite-type phase in the wide range of  $0 \le x \le 0.73$ . XRD peaks due to perovskite-type structure were shifted to higher angle with increasing x. This suggests that La ion (0.136 nm) was substituted by Ca ion (0.134 nm) to yield La<sub>1-x</sub>Ca'<sub>x</sub>BO<sub>3</sub>. A similar result was observed for La<sub>1-x</sub>Ce'<sub>x</sub>FeO<sub>3</sub> catalyst which was prepared from La<sub>1-x</sub>Ce<sub>x</sub>[Fe(CN)<sub>6</sub>]nH<sub>2</sub>O precursor.

 $H_2$ -TPR measurements were conducted for  $La_{1-x}Ce'_xFeO_3$  catalyst prepared by CN method. No reduction peak was observed for  $LaFeO_3$  (x = 0). The large reduction peaks of  $La_1$ ,  $xCe'_xFeO_3$  catalyst (x > 0) were observed at 200-500 °C. The intensity in the reduction peak increased with increasing x, indicating that the reduction was accelerated by Ce ion. The reduction peak of  $La_{1-x}Ce'_xFeO_3$  catalyst was very similar to that  $La_{0.67}Sr_{0.33}FeO_{3-\delta}$ . This result supports our idea that  $LaFeO_3$  catalyst partially substituted by cerium ion can be prepared by CN method.



**Figure 1.** (A) Structures of (a) heteronuclear metal cyano complex and (b) perovskite-type oxide, (B) FE-SEM photograph of LaFeO<sub>3</sub> particle prepared by CN method.

- 1. G.C. de Araujo et al., *Catal. Today* **2008**, *133–135*, 129; K. Sutthiumporn et al., *Int. J. Hydrog. Energy* **2012**, *37*, 11195.
- 2. H. Yahiro et al., Catal. Surv. Asia 2009, 13, 221; Catal. Today 2011, 175, 534.
- 3. H. Yahiro et al., Catal. Today 2008, 139, 125; Res. Chem. Intermed 2015, 41, 9551; Catal. Today, 2019, 332, 83.

# Manufacture, performance and stability of Ba(Zr,Ce,Y)O\_{3-\delta} proton-conducting materials

<u>W. Zhou</u><sup>1\*</sup>, J. Malzbender<sup>1</sup>, J. L. Wolter<sup>1</sup>, W. Deibert<sup>1</sup>, O. Guillon<sup>1</sup>, J. M. Serra<sup>2</sup>, C. Segarra<sup>2</sup>, A. Dos Santos<sup>2</sup>, L. Almar<sup>2</sup>, D. Catalán-Martínez<sup>2</sup>, M. Fabuel<sup>2</sup>, S. Escolástico<sup>2</sup>, W. A. Meulenberg<sup>1,3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Forschungszentrum Jülich GmbH, Institute of Energy and Climate Research (IEK), 52425 Jülich, Germany
<sup>2</sup>Instituto de Tecnología Química, Universitat Politècnica de València – Consejo Superior de Investigaciones Científicas, Av. Los Naranjos, s/n, 46022 Valencia, Spain
<sup>3</sup>University of Twente, Faculty of Science and Technology, Inorganic Membranes, P.O. Box 217, 7500 AE, Enschede, the Netherlands
\*E-mail: w.zhou@fz-juelich.de

Keywords: proton-conducting, manufacture, performance, stability

Proton-conducting membranes have great potential for applications in proton conducting membrane reactors for the production of commodity chemicals or synthetic fuels as well as for use in solid oxide fuel cells [1-3]. Ba(Zr,Ce,Y)O<sub>3- $\delta$ </sub> perovskite oxides are of particular interest due to its proven high proton conductivity and good chemical stability [4]. In this work, fabrication of Ba(Zr,Ce,Y)O<sub>3- $\delta$ </sub> samples, including thick pellet, thin tape-cast and multi-layered half-cell, were studied to prevent the typical challenges like warping, cracking and delaminating [5]. Materials with different stoichiometries were investigated, on their conductivity and chemical stability against NH<sub>3</sub> and H<sub>2</sub>O, to select the most promised candidate for future compact membrane reactor. Mechanical behaviors including elastic modulus, hardness, fracture toughness and creep were investigated to warrant long-term structural stability [6-8]. Dual-phase material micro-pillar splitting behavior was for the first time reported and interpreted according to the post-test slice-by-slice FIB milling for in detail microstructure observation (Fig. 1). Thus, a systematic investigation on Ba(Zr,Ce,Y)O<sub>3- $\delta$ </sub> materials was carried out to pave the road towards widespread application of proton-conducting membranes.



**Fig. 1** Slice-by-slice FIB milling of pillar with one kink. (a) Firstly, a window was milled. The solid arrows mark blister-like morphologies. The curtain artifacts, straight down to the pillar bottom, is marked by dashed arrows. Further FIB milling was performed to follow the direction of the 3rd crack, as marked by dashed lines. (b) The solid arrows indicate pores, and the dashed arrows mark Ni exsolution. The dashed and the dotted line mark the individual phases' connections of GDC15 and BCZ20Y15, respectively. The circle marked region in the line demonstrates a path although narrow but indeed connected in spatial. (c) The long arrows mark the FIB curtaining artifact. The short arrows mark that crack propagation stops at GDC15, and then continues to propagate in BCZ20Y15, as marked by the curved arrow. (d) The crack propagates through BCZ20Y15 towards pores and deflects after encountering the pores (marked by the short arrows). (e) Crack deflection due to pores (dashed circle). Fuzzy bands, marked by the solid circles, due to charging and drift. (f) The median and radial cracks are marked by short arrows. The location of the initial crack nucleation was marked by a circle. (g) The plastic zone, marked by the short arrows.

### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by "ALL-IN Zero", Project No. 101069888 (EU project).

- K. Katahira, Y. Kohchi, T. Shimura, H. Iwahara, Protonic conduction in Zr-substituted BaCeO<sub>3</sub>, Solid State Ion. 138(1-2) (2000) 91–98.
- N. Radenahmad, A. Afif, P.I. Petra, S.M. Rahman, S.-G. Eriksson, A.K. Azad, Proton-conducting electrolytes for direct methanol and direct urea fuel cells–A state-of-the-art review, Renew. Sustain. Energy Rev. 57 (2016) 1347–1358.
- 3. K. Kreuer, Proton-conducting oxides, Annu. Rev. Mater. Res. 33(1) (2003) 333-359.
- E. Rebollo, C. Mortalo, S. Escolástico, S. Boldrini, S. Barison, J.M. Serra, M. Fabrizio, Exceptional hydrogen permeation of all-ceramic composite robust membranes based on BaCe<sub>0.65</sub>Zr<sub>0.20</sub>Y<sub>0.15</sub>O<sub>3-δ</sub> and Y- or Gd-doped ceria, Energy Environ. 8(12) (2015) 3675–3686.
- K. Leonard, W. Deibert, M. E. Ivanova, W. A. Meulenberg, T. Ishihara, H. Matsumoto. Processing ceramic proton conductor membranes for use in steam electrolysis. Membranes, 10(11) (2020), 339.
- W. Zhou, J. Malzbender, F. Zeng, W. Deibert, O. Guillon, R. Schwaiger, W.A. Meulenberg, Mechanical properties of BaCe<sub>0.65</sub>Zr<sub>0.2</sub>Y<sub>0.15</sub>O<sub>3.5</sub> proton-conducting material determined using different nanoindentation methods, J. Eur. Ceram. Soc. 40(15) (2020) 5653–5661.
- W. Zhou, J. Malzbender, W. Deibert, O. Guillon, R. Schwaiger, A. Nijmeijer, W.A. Meulenberg, High temperature compressive creep behavior of BaCe<sub>0.65</sub>Zr<sub>0.2</sub>Y<sub>0.15</sub>O<sub>3-δ</sub> in air and 4% H<sub>2</sub>/Ar, J. Am. Ceram. Soc. 104(6) (2021) 2730–2740.
- W. Zhou, J. Malzbender, F. Zeng, W. Deibert, L. Winnubst, A. Nijmeijer, O. Guillon, R. Schwaiger, W.A. Meulenberg, Mechanical properties of BaCe<sub>0.65</sub>Zr<sub>0.2</sub>Y<sub>0.15</sub>O<sub>3.5</sub>-Ce<sub>0.85</sub>Gd<sub>0.15</sub>O<sub>2.5</sub> dual-phase proton-conducting material with emphasis on micro-pillar splitting, J. Eur. Ceram. Soc. 42(9) (2022) 3948–3956.

## T3.3 GEOPOLYMERS, INORGANIC POLYMER CERAMICS AND SUSTAINABLE Composites

## Additive manufacturing of geopolymer and geompolymer composites

### Peigang He

Institute for Advanced Ceramics, School of Materials Science and Engineering, Harbin Institute of Technology, Harbin, China Key Laboratory of Advanced Structural-Functional Integration Materials & Green Manufacturing Technology, Harbin Institute of Technology, Harbin, China E-mail: peiganghe@gmail.com

Keywords: geopolymer, bionic structure, additive manufacturing

Additive manufacturing of geopolymers with desirable patterns, compositions, and properties holds great promise for sustainable construction materials, porous adsorbent, and hightemperature ceramics. Current research mainly focuses on the rheological behavior of geopolymer slurry, 3D printing of geopolymer with high resolution, and hierarchical structures. In this paper, we reported a universal method to realize direct ink writing of geopolymer materials regardless of alkaline cation types. Then geopolymer of bionic structures were prepared and strengthening and toughening mechanisms were investigated. Current results proved that 3D printing together with bionic-structure designing provide a novel method for the composites of lightweight, high strength & toughness, and superior impact resistance, which would lead to a resurgence of interest in new lightweight and reliable structure design strategies.

### Organic-based synthesis of geopolymers and conversion to ceramics

Devon M. Samuel, Deyvid do C. Silva, Waltraud M. Kriven\*

Department of Materials Science and Engineering, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, Urbana, USA \*E-mail: kriven@illinois.edu

**Keywords**: geopolymers, aluminosilicates, alternative forming methods, geopolymer-derived mullite, other geopolymer compositions

Alkali geopolymers are a facile forming route for alkali aluminosilicate ceramics because they are formed as fluids and crystallize upon heating to about 1000 °C. It is also possible to replace the alkali cations by an ion exchange process, expanding the number of ceramic compositions that can be made while taking advantage of the versatility in forming afforded by geopolymers. However, the ion exchange process is very slow for small bodies and entirely impractical for pieces thicker than a few millimeters. This thesis investigated the synthesis of geopolymers with organic bases rather than inorganic alkali hydroxides. This would avoid the use of alkali cations entirely and greatly widen the range of ceramics formable via geopolymers. The successful organic base tested was guanidine, for its ability to form geopolymers with Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>SiO<sub>2</sub> ratios of 1:2 and 1:4 as well as 3:2 to match the composition of mullite, a common ceramic. Guanidine was successful, causing reaction at room temperature and producing bodies with atomic structures and microstructures similar to the equivalent sodium geopolymer compositions.

Crystallization of the organic based geopolymer occured upon heating to 1600 °C. The  $Al_2O_3 \cdot 2 \operatorname{SiO}_2$  and  $Al_2O_3 \cdot 4 \operatorname{SiO}_2$  compositions produced mullite + glass and the  $3Al_2O_3 \cdot 2\operatorname{SiO}_2$  compositions became almost pure mullite. The amount of porosity and crystal morphology varied with the organic base, overall composition, and choice of precursors used to reach the mullite composition. The use of organic base geopolymers for producing non-mullite ceramics was demonstrated by the synthesis of cordierite (2 MgO  $\cdot 2Al_2O_3 \cdot 5SiO_2$ ) from a guanidine, metakaolin-based geopolymer.

A CO<sub>2</sub> laser sintering method is extremely efficient in terms of processing time. While an oven may take hours to reach the desired temperature, a laser can achieve the same temperature in just a few seconds. After laser sintering, a notable contraction of the mullite precursor composition, geopolymer sample was observed, which can indicate a good densification and proved the effectiveness of the method used seen in Fig. 1. The microstructure of the grains was observed to take the form of needles which were evenly dispersed across the entire surface of the sample.



Fig. 1. SEM micrograph of laser-sintered, organic-based geopolymer converted into mullite needles.

# Using one-part geopolymer to development rapid-setting repair materials and its application

### Lee Wei-Hao<sup>1\*</sup>, Tsai Ying-Kuan<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Mineral Resources Engineering, National Taipei University of Technology, Taipei city, Taiwan (R.O.C) <sup>2</sup>Department of Civil Engineering, National Yang Ming Chiao Tung University, Hsinchu City, Taiwan

(R.O.C) \*E-mail: whlee@ntut.edu.tw

Keywords: geopolymer, repair materials, high early strength

Geopolymer materials have been developed for more than 35 years of development. In contrast to Ordinary Portland cement (OPC), geopolymer materials have numerous excellent properties, including high early strength, nice durability, and lower carbon dioxide emissions. Consequently, geopolymer materials hold significant promise as substitutes for OPC. In addition, geopolymers' high early strength characteristics are very suitable as repair materials.

The conventional method for producing geopolymers involves blending alkaline solutions with aluminosilicate materials. However, the handling, transportation, and storage of alkaline solutions pose considerable challenges for factories, thereby restricting the widespread adoption and market acceptance of geopolymer materials.

This study focuses on using solid-state alkaline activator to develop one-part geopolymer. This study will develop [Geopolymer paste - Repair materials], and [Geopolymer mortar - Repair material]. The experiment parameters will discuss the effect of solid-state alkaline activator dosage amount, solid activator fineness, and GGBF slag/Coal fly ash ratio on the mechanical and workability properties of geopolymer materials.

According to the experiment results, the compressive strength of [Geopolymer paste - Repair materials] can be reached over 30 MPa after curing for 4hr. The compressive and flexural strength of [Geopolymer mortar - Repair material] can reach over 30MPa and 4.5MPa, after curing for 4hr. The shrinkage rate of mortar can be controlled at lower than 0.1%.

This study also conducts repair performance test of [Geopolymer mortar - Repair material] [Geopolymer mortar - Repair material]. The repair test included two parts. First part, analysis of the compressive strength repair rate of the OPC specimens after adhesion [Geopolymer mortar - Repair material] with different slant angles. Second part, using [Geopolymer mortar - Repair material] as pavement repair material and test the repair properties on site. According to the experiment results, the repairing rate of [Geopolymer mortar - Repair material] can be higher than that of commercial products no matter what the slant angle(30°, 45°, 90°) is in the repair test. About on-site repair test, it is easy to operate and requires less manpower when using [Geopolymer mortar - Repair material]. Through the falling weight deflection test, it was found that pavement after using [Geopolymer mortar - Repair material] to repair it, can meet the strength requirements after curing for 4 hrs. After curing for 1 day, its strength can be significantly higher than current pavement.

The research has successfully developed a new type of repair material by using one-part geopolymer technology. It is hoped that the practical application can be carried out after more testing in the future.

# Novel applications of geopolymers and alkali-activated materials in water and wastewater treatment

#### Tero Luukkonen

Fibre and Particle Engineering Research Unit, University of Oulu, Oulu, Finland E-mail: tero.luukkonen@oulu.fi

Keywords: alkali-activated materials, geopolymers, wastewater treatment, water treatment

The application of geopolymers and alkali-activated materials (AAMs) in water and wastewater treatment has attracted increasing interested in the last approximately 20 years. It revolves around the flexibility in their preparation; low-energy synthesis conditions; possibility to use several silicate, aluminosilicate, or alkaline wastes as raw materials; and promising technical performance. The properties of geopolymers and AAMs can be tailored by changing their raw materials, preparation method, or by applying post-synthesis physicochemical modifications.

Recent developments in the synthesis and modification methods of geopolymers and AAMs for water and wastewater treatment applications are discussed. Of synthesis methods, a combined granulation–alkali activation–direct foaming process is presented which enables to obtain highly porous alkali-activated granules in a simple set-up utilizing a granulator. This process can be also expanded to prepare porous granules so that the AAM phase acts as a binder to another powdered raw material. Of modification methods, the use of silane coupling agents are discussed.

Finally, novel applications of geopolymers and AAMs addressing timely water pollution issues are discussed. In these applications the porosity and modifiability of geopolymers and AAMs are exploited to obtain the required properties. For instance, in water disinfection, microplastics separation, and abatement of micropollutants, silver nanoparticles, superhydrophobic coating, or catalytically active metals are introduced to the materials. The performance results are highly promising indicating that geopolymers and AAMs have high potential in environmental engineering.



Fig. 1. Preparation, modification, and applications of geopolymers and AAMs in water treatment.

#### Acknowledgments

Funding was received from EU's Horizon Europe (AshCycle, 101058162), NextGenerationEU (KaiPa, ESAELY/521/2022), and Teknologiateollisuuden 100-vuotissäätiö (GeoH2).

## Additive manufacturing of geopolymers

#### Paolo Colombo

Department of Industrial Engineering, University of Padova, Padova, Italy Department of Materials Science and Engineering, Pennsylvania State University, University Park, USA

E-mail: paolo.colombo@unipd.it

Keywords: additive manufacturing, geopolymers, porous ceramics

Geopolymers possess a chemical composition similar to zeolites, intrinsic micro- and mesoporosity and have ion-exchange capabilities; these features make them highly interesting for environmental applications as sorbents and catalysts for multiple reactions. Moreover, the possibility of room to low temperature consolidation, low CO2 emissions and the fact that they can be obtained from waste make geopolymers attractive from the processing point of view.

Our group has been exploring Direct Ink Writing as an additive manufacturing route for hierarchically porous components comprising geopolymers as active material and/or as a matrix for active fillers such as zeolites and activated carbons. Lattices and other structures with designed macroporosity above 50%vol were fabricated and characterized in terms of microstructure, mechanical properties, specific surface area and permeability. Specific compositions and functionalization protocols were developed for selected applications, including biodiesel production catalysis,  $CO_2$  adsorption, water purification from cationic and anionic pollutants as well as pharmaceuticals.

Large scale binder jetting of geopolymer-based components has also been carried out, for fire protection applications in tunnels, adding either metakaolin or a reactive slag to the powder bed and generating parts by selective jetting of an alkaline solution. In addition, temperature-resistant molds for the production of blown art glass parts have been successfully manufactured.

# Geopolymers based adsorbents for the selective separation of $CO_2$ and eutrophication pollutants

<u>Elettra Papa</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Valentina Medri<sup>1</sup>, Francesco Miccio<sup>1</sup>, Dario Frascari<sup>2</sup>, Davide Pinelli<sup>2</sup>, Matteo Minelli<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>National Research Council of Italy, Institute of Science, Technology and Sustainability for Ceramics (CNR-ISSMC), Via Granarolo 64, Faenza, RA 48018, Italy

<sup>2</sup>Department of Civil, Chemical, Environmental and Materials Engineering (DICAM), Alma Mater Studiorum – University of Bologna, via Terracini 28, Bologna 40131, Italy \*E-mail: elettra.papa@issmc.cnr.it

Keywords: geopolymer, adsorbents, separation, pollutants removal

Geopolymers are increasingly studied as alternative, economical and eco-sustainable solid adsorbents for the removal of pollutants from liquid or gaseous systems [1-3].

These materials are very versatile and through the optimization of the stoichiometry, phase composition (also in composites), and structural and textural properties (directly linked to micro-macrostructure) they can be customized for specific adsorption purposes.

In particular several geopolymers and composites have been produced and characterized, for separation and purification applications, exploiting adsorption mechanisms for the capture of  $CO_2$  or nitrogen or phosphorous-based pollutants in wastewater, comparing them to benchmark adsorbents commonly used at large scale.

Particular attention was paid on the correlation between material formulation, properties and performances for the targeted application, in order to identify the most suitable geopolymer-based material.

The use of geopolymers offers several advantages as the possibility to customize ecofriendly materials (low energy production process) and to identify geopolymer matrices able to actively increase, in composites, the performances of other adsorbents such as zeolites, apatites, hydrotalcites.

Furthermore, from a technological point of view, the use of geopolymers allows to easily tailor the shape of the final solid adsorbent exploiting near-net shaping tecniques or through cold sintering processess.

### Acknowledgments

Research activities are carried out in the framework of the MUR PRIN 2022 Project GEA - GEopolymer based Adsorbents for effective adsorption and selective separation of CO2 and eutrophication pollutants, - Prot. 20229THRM2, funded by the European Union – Next Generation EU.

### References

- E. Papa, M. Minelli, M.C. Marchioni, E. Landi, F. Miccio, A. Natali Murri, P. Benito, A. Vaccari, V. Medri, Metakaolin-based geopolymer – Zeolite NaA composites as CO<sub>2</sub> adsorbents, Applied Clay Science 237 (2023) 106900.
- V. Medri, E. Papa, E. Landi, C. Maggetti, D. Pinelli, D. Frascari, Ammonium removal and recovery from municipal wastewater by ion exchange using a metakaolin K-based geopolymer, Water Research 225 (2022) 119203.
- E. Papa, E. Landi, V. Medri, Chapter 12 Adsorption of gaseous pollutants by alkali-activated materials, Editor(s): Tero Luukkonen in Woodhead Publishing Series in Civil and Structural Engineering, Alkali-Activated Materials in Environmental Technology Applications, 2022, Pages 243-275, ISBN 9780323884389.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

## T3.4 POROUS AND CELLULAR CERAMICS: POROSITY DESIGN AND ENGINEERING APPLICATIONS

# Highly porous scaffolds from direct ink writing of engineered silicone-based emulsions

#### Valeria Diamanti<sup>1</sup>, Franco M. Stabile<sup>2</sup>, Hamada Elsayed<sup>1</sup>, Enrico Bernardo<sup>1\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Industrial Engineering, University of Padova, Padova, Italy <sup>2</sup>CETMIC. Centro de Tecnología de recursos Minerales y Cerámica, La Plata, Argentina \*E-mail: enrico.bernardo@unipd.it

Keywords: polymer-derived ceramics, direct ink writing, bioglass, mullite, cordierite

Silicone polymers have been considered as feedstock for various silicate ceramics, when added with reactive fillers, in the form of metal oxide, hydroxide and carbonate powders [1]. A key feature is represented by the easy shaping of components by several polymer-shaping techniques, including modern additive manufacturing technologies, performed directly with polymer/filler blends, before the ceramic conversion in air. Nanosized fillers generally enable the synthesis of silicates at quite low temperature (compared with that required by conventional raw materials), in a high degree of phase purity, according to the quasi molecular mixing of the metal oxides and the silica residue left by the oxidative decomposition of silicones. However, complete homogeneity is hardly achieved and the viscosity of silicone/nanofiller pastes may be excessive. The lack of full homogeneity, in addition, generally prevents the obtainment of silicate glasses.

The present paper aims at overcoming the limitations of nanosized fillers and at offering new strategies for the synthesis of several silicate ceramics, coupled with shaping into highly porous scaffolds, by direct ink writing of silicone-based pastes. All developed scaffolds are actually 'hierarchically porous', according to the definition of reticulated structures (from the overlapping of extruded filaments) with 'spongy' struts (from controlled gas release). Such structure is intended to support applications in bone tissue engineering or in catalysis, depending on the adopted formulation.

In a first case study CaO precursors, such as hydrated calcium nitrate and acetate salts, are used for the sythesis of a glass (at only 700 °C) with composition resembling that of 70S30C (70 mol% SiO<sub>2</sub>, 30 % CaO) bioglass [2]. The homogeneity required for glass synthesis is achieved according to the emulsification of aqueous solutions of the calcium salts in waterunsoluble blends of silicone polymers and organic additives. In a second case study, nearly stoichiometric mullite  $(3Al_2O_3 \cdot 2SiO_2)$  and cordierite  $(2MgO \cdot 2Al_2O_3 \cdot 5SiO_2)$  are achieved by the thermal treatment (at 1300-1400 °C) of silicone resin embedding, in emulsion, droplets of aqueous suspensions of reactive alumina ( $\gamma$ -Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>), possibly added with magnesium nitrate. In all cases emulsions are supported by the use of surfactants and are directly usable as inks; the porosity of ceramics, after thermal treatment, is almost linearly proportional to the water content of starting emulsions

- 1. E. Bernardo et al. Advanced ceramics from preceramic polymers modified at the nano-scale: A review. Materials, 2014, 7(3), 1927-1956 (https://doi.org/10.3390/ma7031927).
- 2. F.M. Stabile et al., Functional bioglass/carbon nanocomposite scaffolds from vat photopolymerization of a novel preceramic polymer-based nanoemulsion, Additive Manufacturing, 2023, 75, 103731 (https://doi.org/10.1016/j.addma.2023.103731).

## Porous ceramics - from processing to novel applications

#### Tobias Fey

Department of Materials Science and Engineering (Institute of Glass and Ceramics), Friedrich-Alexander-Universität Erlangen-Nürnberg, Erlangen, Germany NITech Doctoral Global Academy, Nagoya Institute of Technology, Gokiso-cho, Showa-ku, Nagoya 466-8555, Japan \*E-mail: tobias.fey@fau.de

Keywords: porous ceramics, simulation, characterization, application

Cellular materials offer a wide spectrum of applications such as catalyst support structures, lightweight materials, energy adsorption or energy storage materials. Due to several ways of processing and different materials, a wide range of material properties e.g. thermal conductivity, mechanical strength or damping can be adjusted, measured and verified, with regard to the expected properties. Various techniques for processing porous ceramics and their corresponding composites independent of material are presented. Especially in heterogeneous and homogeneous porous structures and their composites, only global effective material properties can be determined and measured. For example, the knowledge on the predominating influence of the microstructure on the global properties is the key for designing materials with desired properties. To fill this gap and enable a "look-in" a microstructure model derived from  $\mu$ -CT measurements (see highlights in Figure 1) carried out at certain processing steps can be used as model for FEM-calculations. Combining estimated material properties by experiment with microstructure models offers the possibility to carry out different simulations over different hierarchical levels in order to design the structures for future applications of porous ceramics.

## Engineered porous ceramic structures for catalysis

### Ravi Kumar

Laboratory for High Performanc Ceramics, Department of Metallurgical and Materials Engineering, Indian Institute of Technology Madras (IIT Madras), Chennai 600036, India E-mail: nvrk@iitm.ac.in

Keywords: precursor derived ceramics, engineered porosity, photocatalysis, electrocatalysis

Engineering porosities and controlled microstructures is vital in increasing the catalytic activity due to high surface area and surface volume. In this talk, I provide three examples of high engineered porosities significantly affect the catalytic properties. The first example is based on freeze casted ceria meant for catalytic applications. We fabricated porous ceria for high temperature catalytic applications that demand structural integrity accompanied by resistance to sintering and with improved gas permeability. By adopting freeze-casting technique, we demonstrated open porosities as high as 88% and catalytic activity obtained via temperature programmed reduction exemplified interesting potential of these class of engineered materials with hierarchical porosities. The second example is based on precursor derived TiO<sub>2</sub>/SiOC based nanocomposites with highly stable anatase phase providing visible light photocatalytic activity and superior adsorption of organic dyes. The microporous and mesoporous ceramic nanocomposites with highly stable anatase phase, stable till 1200 °C exemplified interesting photocatalytic properties. With an average pore size of 6.8 nm and surface area of 129  $m^2/g$  and pore volume of 0.22 cm<sup>3</sup>/g, these mesoporous ceramic nanocomposites exemplified visible photocatalytic activity which was attributed to Ti-O-C/TiC bonds resulting in the reduction of band gap by 0.2 to 0.9 eV. Concomitantly, it was also found out that the heterojunctions formed amorphous SiOC and crystalline TiO, minimized recombination of electron-hole pairs. The third example is based on vanadium-based nanocomposites which were synthesized as oxygen reduction reaction (ORR) catalysts with the objective of elucidating the effect of microstructure changes on catalytic efficiency. High-temperature treatment of the pyrolyzed samples beyond 1300 °C induced the crystallization of  $\beta$ -SiC as well as VC. Furthermore, Raman spectroscopy confirmed the segregation of sp<sup>2</sup>-hybridized, turbostratic free carbon. The samples exposed to 1300 °C revealed a specific surface area of 239 m<sup>2</sup>/g. The electrocatalytic activity of the sample heat-treated at 1300 °C showed the best performance with respect to the ORR performance with onset potential  $(E_{a})$  and half-wave potential  $(E_{1/2})$  values of 0.81 and 0.72 V, respectively.

### Figure



Figure-1: Electrochemical performance of SiVOC nanocomposites for the oxygen reduction reaction

# Inner and outer strut surface area of reticulated foams – not just an interface to the surroundings

#### Michael Scheffler\*, Ulf Betke

Otto-von-Guericke University Magdeburg, Germany \*E-mail: m.scheffler@ogu.de

Keywords: reticulated foams, hierarchical porosity, functionalization

Reticulated foams - made by impregnation of a polymer foam template - possess a unique hierarchical pore structure. Visible to the naked eye with a diameter of 1 mm to 5 mm, the foam cells constitute the actual foam structure. These cells are enclosed by the respective solid phase forming an irregular framework of struts and vertices. Due to the manufacturing process, the struts and vertices are hollow and contain a second class of porosity - the hollow strut cavities with a dimension of approximately 0.2 mm in diameter. The hollow strut cavities are typically connected to the cell pores by longitudinal cracks in the strut material. A third class of porosity is found inside the strut material itself: submicron pores, adjustable in size by the densification process of the solid phase during heat treatment.

These different pore classes give a unique opportunity for functionalization of reticulated foam structures. Examples are infiltration techniques for hollow-strut cavities filling for improvement of the mechanical strength, capillary force-driven impregnation processes of the submicron strut material porosity for additional functionality generation, e. g. electrical conductivity, or application of active-coating processes on the strut's inner or outer surface. Nevertheless, for a successful functionalization of a porous structure the accessibility of the respective pore or surface area is mandatory. The techniques of functionalization, e. g. by infiltration, or crystallization coating, are established and well understood. However, the adaption and optimization of the porous structure, in order to provide accessibility of the pores and the surface areas, provide significant room for R&D.

Therefore, the talk will give examples of functionality addition to ceramic (and metal) foams, and it will focus on the tailoring of the structure of reticulated foams, for example for the improvement of the accessibility of the hollow strut cavities by generating aligned lamellar strut pores.

# Near-net size fabrication of porous ceramics through controlling shrinkage during drying and sintering

### Chang-An Wang

State Key Lab of New Ceramics and Fine Processing, School of Materials Science and Engineering, Tsinghua University, Beijing 100084, China \*E-mail: wangca@mail.tsinghua.edu.cn

Keywords: porous ceramics, near-net size fabrication, porosity, shrinkage

In the preparation process of porous ceramics, especially in the drying and sintering stages, large volume shrinkage is often accompanied, which affects the high porosity and comprehensive properties of porous ceramics, and increases the subsequent processing costs. Therefore, it is very important to control and reduce the shrinkage in the preparation process and realize near net size preparation for high performance porous ceramics. This report focuses on some specific measures to control and reduce the shrinkage in the preparation process of porous ceramics, so as to realize the near net size preparation of porous ceramics. First, by selecting the solvent with high saturated vapor pressure and low surface tension, the shrinkage of porous ceramic green body in molding and drying is reduced by using gelcasting process. Secondly, by adding shrinkage compensating agent, the shrinkage of porous ceramics can be reduced effectively, and even zero shrinkage can be achieved, so as to realize the near net size preparation of porous ceramics can be reduced effectively, and even zero shrinkage can be achieved, so as to realize the near net size preparation of porous ceramics. Finally, in the process of reactive sintering of porous ceramics, low-density materials are formed to generate volume expansion, which counteracts the sintering shrinkage, thus realizing the preparation of near net size porous ceramics.

## T3.5 Advanced Sensors for Energy, Environment and Health Applications

## Influence of electrode, electrolyte and thickness of electrode on the sensitivity of mixed-potential sensor for NO2 and CO gas

### Girish M Kale<sup>1\*</sup>, Xiaogan Li<sup>2</sup>, Weizhen Xiong<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>School of Chemical and Process Engineering, University of Leeds, Leeds, UK
<sup>2</sup>School of Integrated Circuits, Dalian University of Technology, Dalian, China
<sup>3</sup>RHI Magne AG, Dalian, China
\*E-mail: g.m.kale@leeds.ac.uk

**Keywords**: gas sensor, mixed-potential, solid electrolyte, sensing electrode composition, sensitivity, NO<sub>2</sub>, CO

In this paper, we will highlight the simplicity and versatility of the mixed-potential sensors for sensing environmentally harmful and toxic gases such as nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and carbon monoxide (CO). We have used different oxide ion conducting electrolyte compositions bearing different crystal structures, different compositions and structure of sensing electrode and their thickness for designing the solid-state gas sensors. The influence of various physical, structural and chemical parameters of the solid electrolyte and sensing electrode on the performance of sensing ability of the gas sensor to various target gases and potentially interfering gases prevailing in the combustion process emissions have been investigated. The results of sensor response has been studied over a range of temperature and concentration of target gases in order to demonstrate the efficacy of each of the mixed-potential sensor. The sensors investigated in the series of our investigation primarily carried out by the researchers demonstrated that the sensors exhibited high selectivity, high sensitivity, low response time and a reproducible response to target gases. We will demonstrate that the composition of the electrode and thickness does play an important role in dictating the response characteristics of the mixed-potential gas sensors. A typical figure showing the sensing response of the mixed potential sensor to NO2 gas and potential interfering gases is shown in the adjacent diagram.



**Figure 1:** Response of CO sensor at 615 C (Top) and Response of three different electrolyte compositions to CO and CH4 gases at same temperature (Bottom).

#### Acknowledgments

GK wishes to thank EPSRC and JIF research grant for funding the sensors research without which the it would have been impossible to conduct this research. XL and WX wishes to thank the financial support received from Tetley-Lupton Scholarship UK and Overseas Research Scholarship Award UK for funding the research at the University of Leeds.

## T3.6 Advanced Materials and Membrane Technologies for Sustainable Water Purification and Desalination Systems

# Preparations and characterizations of low-cost porous ceramics for water purification

### Jang-Hoon Ha\*, Hong-Joo Lee, Jongman Lee, In-Hyuck Song

Department of Engineering Ceramics, Korea Institute of Materials Science, Changwon, South Korea \*E-mail: hjhoon@kims.re.kr

Keywords: microfiltration, porous ceramic membranes, low-cost

Recently porous ceramic membranes have become a subject of special interest due to their outstanding thermal and chemical stability. Porous ceramic membranes and reticulated porous ceramics can be applied to wastewater remediation and air cleaning, respectively. To alleviate the manufacturing cost issues of porous ceramics, recent research is focused on the utilization of low-cost raw materials. In this study, the authors introduced porous ceramic membranes and reticulated porous ceramics prepared from low cost raw materials such as diatomite, kaolin, pyrophyllite, and silicon carbide. And the authors report the results of our efforts to determine whether the authors could prepare a low-cost ceramic membrane that could control the average pore size, the largest pore size, the flexural strength and the air/ water permeability effectively. The pore characteristics of the specimens were studied by scanning electron micrography, mercury porosimetry, capillary flow porosimetry, and a dead-end microfiltration system with particle counters.

#### References

- J. H. Ha, S. Z. Abbas Bukhari, J. Lee and I. H. Song, Advances in Applied Ceramics, 117, 1–8 (2018).
- J. H. Ha, S. Lee, J. R. Choi, J. Lee, I. H. Song, S. J. Lee and J. Choi, Ceramics International, 43, 16924–16930 (2017).
- 3. J. H. Ha, S. Lee, S. Z. Abbas Bukhari, J. Lee and I. H. Song, Ceramics International, 43, 1536–1542 (2017).
- J. H. Ha, S. Lee, S. Z. Abbas Bukhari, J. R. Choi, J. Lee, I. H. Song, . . . J. Choi, Ceramics International, 43, 9481-9487 (2017).
- 5. J. H. Ha, S. Z. A. Bukhari, J. Lee and I. H. Song, Advances in Applied Ceramics, 115, 229–235 (2016).
- J. H. Ha, S. Z. Abbas Bukhari, J. Lee, I. H. Song and C. Park, Ceramics International, 42, 13796– 13804 (2016).
- 7. J. H. Ha, Y. H. Park and I. H. Song, Archives of Metallurgy and Materials, 60, 1175–1178 (2015).
- 8. J. H. Ha, J. Lee, I. H. Song and S. H. Lee, Ceramics International, 41, 9542–9548 (2015).
- 9. J. H. Ha, J. Lee and I. H. Song, Journal of the Ceramic Society of Japan, 123, 656–661 (2015).
- J. H. Ha, S. Z. A. Bukhari, J. Lee, I. H. Song and S. H. Lee, Journal of the Ceramic Society of Japan, 123, 1043–1050 (2015).
- 11. J. H. Ha, B. Bae and I. H. Song, Advances in Applied Ceramics, 114, 156-163 (2015).
- 12. J. H. Ha, S. Z. Abbas Bukhari, J. Lee and I. H. Song, Ceramics International, 41 (2015).
- 13. J. H. Ha, Y. H. Park and I. H. Song, Journal of the Ceramic Society of Japan, 122, 714-718 (2014).
- 14. J. H. Ha, E. Oh and I. H. Song, Ceramics International, 40, 2221–2227 (2014).
- 15. J. H. Ha, D. W. Jung and I. H. Song, Ceramics International, 40, 12961-12967 (2014).

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary
- J. H. Ha, D. W. Jung, R. Ahmad and I. H. Song, Journal of the Ceramic Society of Japan, 122, 276–280 (2014).
- 17. J. H. Ha, E. Oh and I. H. Song, Journal of the Ceramic Society of Japan, 121, 940-945 (2013).
- 18. J. H. Ha, E. Oh and I. H. Song, Ceramics International, 39, 7641–7648 (2013).
- 19. J. H. Ha, E. Oh, B. Bae and I. H. Song, Ceramics International, 39, 8955-8962 (2013).
- J. H. Ha, E. Oh, R. Ahmad and I. H. Song, Journal of the Ceramic Society of Japan, 121, 426–429 (2013).
- 21. J. H. Ha, E. Oh, R. Ahmad and I. H. Song, Ceramics International, 39, 3881-3884 (2013).

# Repeated stacking of $Ti_3C_2$ nanosheets on ceramic membranes for improving organic solvent retention in semiconductor wastewater

Yoojin Lee, Jihyeon Lee, Yeon So, Soyoun Kim, Chanhyuk Park\*

Department of Environmental Science and Engineering, Ewha Womans University, Seoul, South Korea \*E-mail: chp@ewha.ac.kr

Keywords: ceramic membrane, MXene, nanomaterial, semiconductor wastewater

Ceramic membranes, known for their exceptional chemical stability, have found practical applications in the treatment of semiconductor wastewater. In this study, we have developed an innovative ceramic nanofiltration membrane featuring a nanochannel network created by two-dimensional (2D) nanomaterials, enabling high-performance separation and permeation. This accomplishment is realized through precise control of the size and thickness of MXene nanomaterials, which can be tailored using various coating conditions. The repeated stacking of MXene nanosheets onto the ceramic membrane substrate resulted in the formation of additional nanochannels and surface chemistry modifications, leading to significant enhancements in pollutant removal. These MXene-coated ceramic nanofiltration (NF) membranes significantly improved the removal efficiency of representative organic contaminants in semiconductor wastewater when compared to the pristine ceramic membrane. It enhanced the removal efficiencies by 4.2 times for dissolved silica, 3.7 times for dimethyl sulfoxide (DMSO), and 2.5 times for isopropyl alcohol (IPA). Furthermore, the MXene ceramic NF membrane exhibited exceptional fluoride removal capability, achieving approximately 99.1% removal, in addition to organic solvents. These findings not only help meet regulatory standards for wastewater discharge but also provide valuable insights into the transport behaviors of contaminants and their separation mechanisms. This innovative approach brings us one step closer to efficient and sustainable solutions for semiconductor wastewater treatment.

### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the National Research Foundation of Korea (NRF) and the Commercialization Promotion Agency for R&D Outcomes (COMPA) grant funded by the Korean government (Ministry of Science and ICT) (No. RS-2023-00233235).

- 1. Lee, Y., Cha, M., So, Y., Song, I.-H., Park, C. (2022) Fuctionalized boron nitride ceramic nanofiltration membranes for semiconductor wastewater treatment, Sep. Purif. Technol., 300: 121945.
- 2. So, Y., Lee, Y., Kim, S., Lee, J., Park, C. (2023) Role of co-existing ions in the removal of dissolved silica by ceramic nanofiltration membrane, J. Water Procee Eng., 53: 103873.
- Lee, Y., Lee, J., So, Yeon, Kim, S., Park, C. (2024) MXene-based ceramic nanofiltration membranes for selective separation of primary contaminants in semiconductor wastewater, Sep. Purif. Technol., 331: 125653.

## Integration of electrospinning and additive processing for energy harvesting and atmospheric water using nature-inspired shapes

Ashok Vaseashta

International Clean Water Institute, Manassas, VA USA Institute of Electronic Engineering and Nanotechnologies "D. Ghitu", Academy of Sciences, Chisinau, Moldova E-mail: prof.vaseashta@ieee.org

**Keywords**: harvesting, energy, water, future, transdisciplinarity, exponential technologies, biomimicry, 3D printing, electrospinning, sustainability

Strategic integration of synthesis methods has been used to develop new and unique devices and is reported in this presentation. One of the strategies is employing digitally controlled fabrication by combinatorial synthesis viz. electrospinning and 3D printing/additive processing. Using the integration of configurations, elaborate shapes, and patterns are printed with mesostructured stimuli-responsive electrospun membranes, allowing for in-plane modulations, and compensations due to internal interlayer stresses induced by swelling/shrinkage or mismatch, thus guiding shape morphing behaviors of electrospun membranes to adapt to environmental changes. Recent progress in combinatorial processing includes materials and scaffold constructs that are used for tactile and wearable sensors, filtration structures, sensors for structural health monitoring, biomedical scaffolds, tissue engineering, and optical patterning, among many other applications to support the vision of synthetically prepared smart material designs that mimic the structural aspects with digital precision. A recent method called 3D jet writing was recently reported that propels electrospinning to adaptive technologies for manufacturing scaffolds according to user-defined specifications of the shape and size of both the pores and the overall geometric footprint. This presentation focuses on two specific applications: energy and atmospheric water harvesting. Recent advances in next-generation triboelectric nanogenerators (TENG), the integration of finite-state machines (FSM), and built-in edge computing in onboard IoT devices have reduced the energy requirement, thus shifting the energy storage requirements to built-in power generation and ambient sources. The first part of the presentation describes the synergetic integration of exponential technologies in several examples that minimize energy storage and reduce energy consumption. Some other applications that include IoTs, IoB, and onboard energy harvesting devices are tactile sensing for biomedical applications, smart agriculture, and transportation logistics. A brief discussion of the concerns elaborating on privacy with IoT and IoB will be presented. The second part of the presentation articulates the future of water from a holistic and futuristic standpoint including the use of exponential technologies and transdisciplinary research by using the nature-inspired solution while mitigating the micro/nano plastics footprint in the environment. By mimicking nature and using a strategic combination of electrospinning and 3D printing, unique shapes and configurations to capture atmospheric water are presented.

- Bölgen, N., Demir, D., Aşık, M., Sakım, B., Vaseashta, A. (2022). Introduction and Fundamentals of Electrospinning. In: Vaseashta, A., Bölgen, N. (eds) Electrospun Nanofibers. Springer, Cham. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-99958-2 1
- Ashammakhi, N. et al. (2022). Electrospinning and Three-Dimensional (3D) Printing for Biofabrication. In: Vaseashta, A., Bölgen, N. (eds) Electrospun Nanofibers. Springer, Cham. https://doi. org/10.1007/978-3-030-99958-2 20
- Vaseashta, A., Demir, D., Sakım, B., Aşık, M., Bölgen, N. (2022). Hierarchical Integration of 3D Printing and Electrospinning of Nanofibers for Rapid Prototyping. In: Vaseashta, A., Bölgen, N. (eds) Electrospun Nanofibers. Springer, Cham. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-99958-2 22

## **T4 Cross-Cutting Materials Technologies**

### **T4.1 COMPUTATIONAL DESIGN AND MODELING**

### Transition from computation to data-driven materials design

### Kwang-Ryeol Lee

Computational Research Center, Korea Institute of Science and Technology, Seoul, South Korea E-mail: krlee@kist.re.kr

Keywords: Gd doped Ceria, oxygen ion transport, multiscale calculation, standard vocabulary and schema for materials research data

For a long time, materials science has relied on experimental and computational studies for materials processing, structural characterization, and property analysis. However, as research data accumulates and the digital working environment, including machine learning technology, becomes more accessible, a significant shift is occurring in materials research: from causality-based to correlation-based knowledge creation. My research interest extended recently from computational study of materials phenomena to the structure of materials research data.

In the first part of this presentation, I will discuss recent computational research on oxygen ion transport in doped ceria. Trivalent dopants within the  $CeO_2$  lattice generate oxygen vacancies crucial for oxygen diffusion. However, these dopants also have two adverse effects on oxygen vacancy migration: they trap oxygen vacancies to the dopant and block vacancy migration by increasing the energy barrier for vacancy transport. We conducted a study on the oxygen diffusion in Gd-doped  $CeO_2$  with La or Y co-dopants using molecular dynamics (MD) simulations. This allowed us to compare the behavior of vacancy trapping and blocking caused by the dopants. The trapping was characterized through statistical analysis of the coordination number (CN) of cations on a large scale. To investigate the blocking effects caused by the dopants, we utilized first-principle nudged elastic band analysis. Our findings indicate that the oxygen diffusion, as measured by the mean square displacement of oxygen in doped  $CeO_2$ , is enhanced when the trapping of oxygen vacancies is reduced through codoping. However, the changes in the energy barrier against oxygen migration in the co-doped lattice do not consistently align with the diffusion behavior. This result clearly demonstrates that oxygen ion transport is primarily governed by the trapping of oxygen vacancies<sup>1</sup>.

In the second part of this presentation, I will discuss recent efforts in Korea towards standardizing materials research data. Standardizing data keywords, types, and numerical units poses a significant challenge for efficient data retrieval from various sources. Additionally, connecting data on material composition, structure, process peculiarities, and performance across different application fields is crucial for materials design using machine learning methods. Machine learning models will be developed by studying the relationships among these characteristics, necessitating their implementation in the database's data structure. The Committee for Materials Research Data in Korea has proposed a materials data structure capable of consistently managing various materials research data. They have introduced the concept of a "materials system" as a standard scheme for materials research data that can handle data from a wide range of applications. Based on this data schema, the Committee has published a dictionary of standard materials vocabulary, available on the GitHub platform<sup>2</sup>.

### Acknowledgments

Committee for Materials Research Data is supported by the National Research Foundation through the National Center for Materials Research Data in Korea.

- 1. Mehmet Emin Kilic, Jong-ho Lee, Kwang-Ryeol Lee, Oxygen Ion Transport in Doped Ceria: Effect Vacancy Trapping, *J. Mater. Chem. A*, **9**, 13883 (2021).
- 2. https://github.com/krlee227/MatResData-Standard-Committee

## Hierarchical thermal transport in complex-structure ceramics

### <u>Yixiu Luo</u><sup>\*</sup>, Jingyang Wang

Institute of Metal Research, Chinese Academy of Sciences (CAS), China \*E-mail: yxluo13s@imr.ac.cn

Keywords: thermal transport, phonon, density functional theory

The mechanism of thermal transport for complex-structure ceramics is a long-standing challenge in the community of thermal management. Many complex-structure materials show glass-like temperature (T) dependence of lattice thermal conductivity ( $\kappa_{\rm I}$ ), particularly at high-temperature ranges, which contradicts the  $\kappa_{I} \sim T$  dependency of crystallines predicted from the traditional Peierls-Boltzmann transport theory (PBE). This intriguing puzzle calls for theoretical and computational advances beyond the PBE framework. In this study, the mechanisms of thermal transport for some prototype complex-structure ceramics, such as rare-earth silicates, pyrochlores, etc., are comprehensively studied. It is found that there coexist well-defined phonon modes, which transport heat in the propagative way; together with large amounts of strongly perturbated modes whose mean free path is smaller than or comparable to the interatomic spacing, which could be defined as "diffuson-like phonons" and transfer heat in the diffusive way. Then, a dual-phonon thermal-transport theory is proposed to account for combined contributions from both propagation and diffusion thermal-transport channels, and a computational workflow for the calculation of  $\kappa_1$  is established. The results are expected to advance the theoretical understanding and computational paradigm for the  $\kappa_{\rm r}$ of complex-structure ceramics, and cast light on the thermal management in many fields such as thermoelectrics, high-temperature protective coatings, etc.

Figures



Hierarchical thermal transport from different channels in Yb2Si2O7.

## Additive kernel based methods for stable machine learning from sparse data: From materials informatics to orbital-free DFT

### Sergei Manzhos\*, Manabu Ihara

School of Materials and Chemical Technology, Tokyo Institute of Technology, Tokyo, Japan \*E-mail: manzhos.s.aa@m.titech.ac.jp

Keywords: machine learning, Gaussian process regression, materials informatics, large-scale ab initio modeling

Machine learning (ML) has become increasigly popular as a means to predict materials properties from descriptors of chemical composition and structure ('features'). ML is also actively used to improve modeling methods, in particular for the construction of force fields and recently also for DFT functionals including kinetic energy functionals (KEF) that hold the promise of routine large-scale ab initio modeling with orbital-free DFT.

In all these applications, the ML problems are typically of regression type (or can be cast as such), and kernel regressions and neural networks (NN) are most widely used types of methods for them. These methods have high expressive power but, being general, require more data than physically motivated approaches and suffer from lack of insight. In many practically important settings, data are sparse; in particular, as the dimensionality of the feature space D increases, sampling is bound to be sparse, and this cannot be solved by adding more data (the 'curse of dimensionality'). Specifically NNs also suffer from a large and growing with D number of nonlinear paramaters, which causes high CPU cost and overfitting. Kernel methods, being effectively linear regressions with nonlinear basis functions, appear then particularly appealing as combining high expressive power and stability.<sup>1</sup>

We will demonstrate how in high *D* and with sparse data, kernel regressions lose their superior expressive power and become equivalent to low-order polynimial fits,<sup>2</sup> and the property of locality of commonly used Matern type kernels (which are used for this property) is lost.<sup>3</sup> Finding optimal hyperparameters in this regime also becomes difficult.<sup>4</sup>

We will show that these problems can be effectively addressed by using orders of coupling expansions achieved by using additive kernels.<sup>5–8</sup> This approach also help generate insight while preserving the generality of the methods. Additive kernels also allow obtaining an NN type representation without nonlinear optimization and with optimal neuron activation functions.<sup>9,10</sup>

We wills show examples from materials informatics (machine learning bandgpaps of double perovskites with a better accuracy than heretofore)<sup>11</sup> and from machine learning of KEFs.<sup>7,12</sup>

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by JST Mirai Program.

- 1. S. Manzhos, S. Tsuda and M. Ihara, Phys. Chem. Chem. Phys., 2023, 25, 1546-1555.
- 2. S. Manzhos and M. Ihara, J. Chem. Phys., 2024, 160, 021101.
- 3. S. Manzhos and M. Ihara, J. Chem. Phys., 2023, 158, 044111.
- 4. S. Manzhos and M. Ihara, J. Math. Chem., 2023, 61, 7–20.
- 5. S. Manzhos, T. Carrington and M. Ihara, Artificial Intelligence Chemistry, 2023, 1, 100008.
- 6. S. Manzhos, E. Sasaki and M. Ihara, Mach. Learn.: Sci. Technol., 2022, 3, 01LT02.
- 7. O. Ren et al., Comput. Phys. Commun., 2022, 271, 108220.
- M. A. Boussaidi, O. Ren, D. Voytsekhovsky and S. Manzhos, J. Phys. Chem. A, 2020, 124, 7598– 7607.
- 9. S. Manzhos and M. Ihara, J. Phys. Chem. A, 2023, 127, 7823-7835.
- 10. S. Manzhos and M. Ihara, Artificial Intelligence Chemistry, 2023, 1, 100013.
- 11. M. Nukunudompanich et al., MRS Adv., 2024, DOI:10.1557/s43580-023-00749-1.
- 12. S. Manzhos, J. Lüder and M. Ihara, J. Chem. Phys., 2023, 159, 234115.

Gerard L. Vignoles1\*, Bruno Dubroca2, Gaëtan Mangeon3

<sup>1</sup>Lab. for ThermoStructural Composites, University of Bordeaux, Pessac, France <sup>2</sup>Lab. for ThermoStructural Composites, CEA, Pessac, France <sup>1</sup>Lab. for ThermoStructural Composites, CNRS, Pessac, France <sup>\*</sup>E-mail: vinhola@lcts.u-bordeaux.fr

Keywords: heat transfer modeling, image-based modeling, porous ceramics, ceramic composites

The research on porous and composite ceramics developed to withstand high thermal fluxes at high temperatures involves important questions on thermal transfer modeling. Indeed, it is of crucial importance to obtain a correct assessment of the thermal gradients and heat fluxes in these materials, not only during their use as thermal protection systems or heat converters but also during their manufacturing by methods involving thermal gradients.

This talk will address some of the underlying challenges of heat transfer modeling related to this context:

- (i) how to obtain an effective, homogenized thermal conductivity from a composite material's structural description by micrographs *without using the classical periodic homogenization techniques*? We will describe a novel and efficient technique to address this question in the frame of Finite Element computations.
- (ii) how to efficiently simulate mixed conductive/convective heat transfer in large, complex, 3D images? A solution based on a hybrid Monte-Carlo/Random Walk method [1] will be described and discussed.

### Acknowledgments

Part of the material of this talk results from work conducted within the Horizon 2020 "CEM-WAVE" project, for which the authors acknowledge funding from the European Commission under grant  $n^{\circ}958170$ .

### References

G. L. Vignoles, Int. J. of Heat & Mass Transfer (2016), vol. 93, pp. 707-719.

## Modeling defect-enhanced ion track formation in perovskites

### William J. Weber<sup>1\*</sup>, Gihan Velisa<sup>2</sup>, Eva Zarkadoula<sup>3</sup>, Yanwen Zhang<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Materials Science & Engineering, University of Tennessee, Knoxville, TN, USA <sup>2</sup>Horia Hulubei National Institute for Physics and Nuclear Engineering, Mägurele, Romania <sup>3</sup>Center for Nanophase Materials Sciences, Oak Ridge National Laboratory, Oak Ridge, TN, USA \*E-mail: wjweber@utk.edu

Keywords: perovskite, ion track, thermal spike, ion irradiation, modeling

Oxide perovskites exhibit fascinating properties that identify them as key materials for the next generation of multifunctional devices, and ion-beam modification can be used to tune functionality. While it is well-established that atomic-level defects are created by elastic energy transfer from ions to atomic nuclei,  $S_n$ , the effects of inelastic energy loss to electrons,  $S_{e}$ , is more complicated. Pre-existing defects stimulate amorphous track formation at 300 K in SrTiO<sub>3</sub> and KTaO<sub>3</sub> irradiated with high-energy ions with S<sub>e</sub> values above a threshold [1-5]. The nanotrack cross-sections increase with S<sub>e</sub> and level of pre-existing disorder, and the threshold in inelastic energy loss, S<sub>et</sub>, decreases with increasing disorder. In the case of pristine KTaO<sub>3</sub>, temperatures greatly exceeding the melt temperature (i.e., larger melt radii) are required to form observable amorphous tracks in order to offset the significant rate of radial recrystallization during quenching [6]. Insights from the application of the analytical thermal spike model [6] to ions in the low velocity regime suggests that increasing the concentration of pre-existing defects causes a decrease in effective melt temperature (decrease in energy for melting) and an increase in efficiency of track formation. Molecular dynamics simulations combined with the inelastic thermal spike model confirm that the formation of these amorphous tracks is due to melt-quenching along the ion trajectory [8-10]. Furthermore, the increase in stored energy with increasing level of pre-existing disorder effectively decreases the energy required to melt along the ion trajectory.

### Acknowledgments

W. J. Weber was supported by the National Science Foundation under Grant No. DMR-2104228. G. Velisa was supported by a grant of the Romanian Ministry of Education and Research, CNCS – UEFISC-DI, project number PN-III-P4-ID-PCE2020-1379, within PNCDI III. E. Zarkadoula was supported by the Center for Nanophase Materials Sciences, (CNMS), which is a US Department of Energy, Office of Science User Facility at Oak Ridge National Laboratory.

- 1. W. J. Weber et al., Scientific Reports 5 (2015) 7726.
- 2. H. Xue et al., Acta Materialia 127 (2017) 400–406.
- 3. H. Xue et al., Acta Materialia 150 (2018) 351–359.
- 4. K. Jin, Y. Zhang, and W. J. Weber, Materials Research Letters 6 [9] (2018) 531-536.
- 5. G. Velisa et al., J. Physics D: Applied Physics 54 (2021) 375302.
- 6. X. Han et al., Materials & Design 223 (2022) 111248.
- 7. G. Szenes, Physics Status Solidi B 258 [12] (2021) 2100255.
- 8. E. Zarkadoula, H. Xue, Y. Zhang, and W. J. Weber, Scripta Materialia 110 (2016) 2-5.
- 9. E. Zarkadoula, K. Jin, Y. Zhang, and W. J. Weber, AIP Advances 7 (2017) 015016.
- 10. E. Zarkadoula, Y. Zhang, and W. J. Weber, AIP Advances 10 (2020) 015019.

## Physical properties and irradiation-energy transport in metal diborides for extreme environments

<u>Yanwen Zhang</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Amey R. Khanolkar<sup>1</sup>, Krzysztof Gofryk<sup>1</sup>, Kaustubh K. Bawane<sup>1</sup>, Boopathy Kombaiah<sup>1</sup>, William J. Weber<sup>2</sup>, Hua-Tay Lin<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Idaho National Laboratory, Idaho Falls, ID 83401, USA

<sup>2</sup>Department of Materials Science & Engineering, University of Tennessee, Knoxville, TN 37996, USA

<sup>3</sup>School of Electromechanical Engineering, Guangdong University of Technology, Guangzhou, 510006 China

\*E-mail: Yanwen@utk.edu

Keywords: radiation effects, transition-metal diborides, high-entropy materials, irradiation-energy transport

Today's technologies rely on an increasingly complex palette of materials, with individual materials made from increasingly complex mixtures of chemical elements. Extreme conditions, such as high temperature, high current, high pressure, and high radiation environments, can push materials from thermal equilibrium to far-from-equilibrium and pose unique challenges to predict their performance. Knowledge on how chemical disorder resulting from multi-principal elements, such as in high-entropy materials (HEMs), can be utilized to tailor physical properties, to enhance or control energy transport, and to improve irradiation tolerance. Such modifications or element substitution can lead to the design of complex materials with specific functionality and improved performance, thus offering opportunities for materials discovery.

In this presentation, physical properties and irradiation response in a high-entropy transition-metal (TM) diboride  $Hf_{0.2}Nb_{0.2}Ta_{0.2}Ti_{0.2}Zr_{0.2}B_2$  and its subsets have been investigated and are discussed in terms of valence electrons and lattice distortion. Surprisingly, instead of generally expected ceramic behavior, the predominant mechanism for energy conduction in these TM-diborides is through electrons, with transport properties similar to some high-entropy alloys. The irradiation response of these TM-diborides is characterized using grazing incidence X-ray diffraction and electron energy loss spectroscopy coupled with scanning transmission electron microscopy. Black dot dislocation loops are visible at low doses, whereas dislocation networks are observed with increasing fluence. While up to ~4% volume expansion is determined in these diborides, the crystalline structure remains stable under room temperature irradiation, preserving the hexagonal AlB<sub>2</sub> phase.

Composition complexity in HEMs gives rise to local chemical disorder and a diverse range of tunable bonding environments that are not typically possible in conventional materials. Substitution disorder is expected to modify defect dynamics and energy dissipation processes. Despite the potential of these materials, there is a lack of systematic studies on the relationship of composition-structure-property. Chemical disorder in HEMs and the associated physical properties (e.g., electrical resistivity, thermal conductivity and thermal expansion) have yet to be understood. To reveal the atomic or electronic structure responsible for differences in material properties, a detailed characterization of elemental distribution, the accompanying electronic structures and lattice distortion, as well as the corresponding scattering mechanisms and energy transfer, are crucial in determining the impact of various species. The evolving comprehension of complex materials at the atomic and electronic levels provides a compelling pathway to investigate their chemical and physical properties. This, in turn, opens numerous exciting research opportunities in materials science.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

## T4.2 Additive Manufacturing & 3D Printing Technologies

# **Tailoring microstructure and architecture of 3D-printed advanced ceramics: challenges and opportunities**

### R. Bermejo

Department of Materials Science, Chair of Structural and Functional Ceramics, Monatnuniversitaet Leoben, Austria

Department of Materials Science and Engineering, The Pennsylvania State University, USA E-mail: raul.bermejo@unileoben.ac.at

Keywords: 3D-printing, alumina, texture, damage tolerance

The combination of ceramics with other materials has enabled the fabrication of hybrid systems with exceptional structural and functional properties. However, a critical issue affecting the functionality and reliability of these systems is the initiation and uncontrolled propagation of cracks in the brittle ceramic parts. Bio-inspired design concepts in current ceramics engineering have proved successful in obtaining highly reliable ceramic materials with enhanced fracture resistance. For instance, tuning the location of "protective" layers within a ceramic multilayer architecture can significantly increase its fracture resistance, while retaining high strength. The use of tailored residual stresses in embedded layers can act as an effective barrier to the propagation of cracks from surface flaws, providing "damage tolerance". Moreover, by orienting (texturing) the grain structure, similar to the organized microstructure found in natural systems such as nacre, crack propagation can be controlled within the textured ceramic layers. In this contribution, the potential of employing lithographybased ceramic manufacturing (LCM) process to design multi-phase layered architectures is presented, which can contribute to the fabrication of future 3D ceramic components with enhanced damage tolerance. Several examples are presented: (i) A multi-material approach to combine alumina-zirconia layers sandwiched between pure alumina layers, yielding a characteristic strength higher than 1 GPa on the multi-material system, compared to ~650 MPa in monolithic alumina. (ii) 3D-printed highly textured alumina fabricated combining the LCM technology and Templated Grain Growth (TGG) during sintering to provide higher toughness while retaining strength, and (iii) 3D-printed components with outstanding thermal shock resistance owed to the embedded compressive layers. These studies open new possibilities in the fabrication of complex 3D ceramic-based multi-material geometries with tailored microstructures, which could be a new pathway for designing complex parts with outstanding mechanical strength and reliability.



Figure 1: Examples of 3D printed multi-material architectures with tailored microstructures.

### Acknowledgments

Funding for this research was also provided by the European Research Council (ERC) excellent science grant "CERATEXT" through Horizon 2020 program under contract 817615.

- R. Bermejo: "Toward seashells under stress": Bioinspired concepts to design tough layered ceramic composites", Journal of the European Ceramic Society, 2017. 37: p. 3823–3839. DOI http://dx.doi. org/10.1016/j.jeurceramsoc.2017.04.041
- T. Lube, M. Staudacher, A.-K. Hofer, J. Schlacher, R. Bermejo: "Stereolithographic 3D printing of ceramics: challenges and opportunities for structural integrity", Advanced Engineering Materials, 2022. 25: p. 2200520 DOI https://doi.org/10.1002/adem.202200520

### Ceramic AM: Is there still room for academic research?

#### Johannes Homa, Martin Schwentenwein

Lithoz GmbH, Vienna, Austria E-mail: jhoma@lithoz.com

### Keywords: additive manufacturing, ceramics, multi-material

With their ability to produce functional parts directly from CAD data, additive manufacturing (AM) technologies have an enormous potential for industry. The ultimate advantage of AM over traditional manufacturing methods is the freedom of design which makes it possible to introduce new features in the design of parts without the limitations of conventional forming techniques.

Vat photopolymerization (VPP)-based processes are the most widespread AM technologies for high-performance ceramics, due to the high precision and good materials properties, which are achieved through the high green density because of the use of highly filled slurries but this technology cannot be used for all applications. Lithography-based Ceramic Manufacturing, a process from the family of VPP techniques, has already been established for fabricating ceramic materials and is already pushing strongly into the ceramic industry. This presentation will give an overview of the status quo and describe some innovative industrial applications, which already use ceramic AM. Industry reports are already forecasting that the market for ceramic 3D printing will grow multiple times over the next few years and the implementation of ceramic AM will move forward in new applications and domains.

This contribution will present exemplary use cases where AM was able to combine these material properties with the profit-oriented requirements of scaled-up industrial mass production. These use cases, including a successful manufacturer whose annual output now reaches 4 million parts, will show how companies have already integrated 3D printing into their workflow and have entered into serial production. An assessment of the potential of ceramic 3D printing will demonstrate how far serial production in ceramic additive manufacturing has already come, while also highlighting current limitations and giving an outlook into the future.

It seems that ceramic additive manufacturing has already reached its peak and no further academic research is necessary to push the frontiers of this technology. However, there are still new applications to be developed, and academic research will be crucial to successful; The list is long and ranges from simulations, modeling and design to material and process development, advanced post-processing methods and in-depth characterization to perform root cause analysis. The recently rapidly growing field of 3D multi-material printing with ceramics also requires a high level of support from science and research if it is to develop successfully and find its way into industrial applications.

# Tuning the rheological properties of feedstocks for droplet deposition with thermoplastic 3D printing

Andraž Kocjan<sup>1\*</sup>, Ipeknaz Özden Moser<sup>1,2</sup>, Milan Vukšić<sup>1</sup>, Aljaž Iveković<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department for Nanostructured Materials, Jožef Stefan Institute, Ljubljana, Slovenia <sup>2</sup>Jožef Stefan International Postgraduate School, Ljubljana, Slovenia \*E-mail: a.kocjan@ijs.si

Keywords: additive manufacturing, material jetting, colloidal processing, zirconia, rheology

Droplet deposition with material jetting based additive manufacturing methods, such as thermoplastic 3D printing (T3DP), depends greatly on the rheological properties of the feedstocks. Feedstocks should exhibit shear thinning behavior in the suitable dynamic shear stress-rate range. However, there are other important parameters, such as yield stress and storage/loss moduli defining rheological properties of thermoplastic-based feedstocks and are crucial during deposition.

This study investigated the effect of particle interactions and the degree of weak flocculation on the shear thinning behaviour, yield stress and storage/loss moduli of paraffin wax-based feedstocks containing 40 vol.% of zirconia (3Y-TZP) micron-sized powder. Steric stabilization of the feedstocks was provided by varying ratios of surfactants with different chain lengths; stearic acid (2.4 nm) and Solsperse 3000® (10 nm). The surfactant chain length and composition mixture dictated the magnitude of continuous, weakly flocculated attractive particle network in feedstocks, affecting their viscosity, (non)monotonous shear thinning behaviour, yield stress magnitude and loss/storage moduli, which were all crucial in the droplet formation dynamics and the quality of the printed layers during the T3DP forming process. The results of the present study extend the guidelines for the processing of printable, non-Newtonian, thermoplastic ceramic feedstocks for the T3DP additive manufacturing technology.

# Transparent feedstocks for photon-based additive manufacturing technologies for powder processing of ceramics

Johanna C. Sänger<sup>1\*</sup>, Birte Riechers<sup>1</sup>, Brian R. Pauw<sup>1</sup>, Jens Günster<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Federal Institute for Materials Research and Testing (BAM), Unter den Eichen 87, 12205 Berlin, Germany

<sup>2</sup>Clausthal University of Technology, Institute of Non-Metallic Materials, Zehntnerstraße 2A, 38678 Clausthal-Zellerfeld, Germany

\*E-mail: johanna.saenger@bam.de

Keywords: transparent, photon-based, vat photopolymerization, zirconia

Photon-based additive manufacturing technologies such as SLA, DLP, LCM, moreover volumetric two-photon-polymerization, Xolography and holographic technologies promise the highest accuracy and dimensional freedom. But to transfer the light through the feedstock it needs sufficient transparency at the used light wavelength. Ceramic particles used for powder processing routes act as scattering sites and therefore hinder the light transmission, unless...

The particle size and particle size distribution are chosen small and narrow enough. Particles which are smaller than roughly 1/10th of the light wavelength, mostly nanoparticles around 5nm size, decrease scattering vastly. This turns resins even with homogeneously distributed ceramic weight fraction of up to 80% transparent again. Feedstocks could be prepared for the highly accurate two-photon-polymerization gaining the smallest yttria stabilized zirconia structures with a resolution of 500nm and unique mechanical properties. The same feedstocks could be applied to DLP and LCM as layer-by-layer AM-technologies for bigger parts. Hybridizing both technologies lead to ceramic parts with microscopic accuracy at macroscopic dimensions. The feedstock was even applied to the volumetric Xolography with the highest transparency requirement so far and to versatile and flexible holographic AM.

Highly filled nano-particle containing transparent ceramic feedstocks open the way for technical ceramics in high precision manufacturing where the performance and durability and accessibility are increased and created by the unique ceramic properties such as mechanical strength, chemical and thermal resistance and biocompatibility

- Müller J.C., König N. F., De Marzi A., Zocca A., Franchin G., Bermejo R., Colombo P., Günster J., Linear Volumetric Additive Manufacturing of Zirconia from a Transparent Photopolymerizable Ceramic Slurry via Xolography - eingereicht
- 2. Sänger, J. C., Riechers, B., Pauw, B. R., Maaß, R., Günster, J. Microplastic Responses in 2PPprinted ceramics under mechanical compression. – eingereicht
- Sänger, J. C., Schwentenwein, M., Bermejo, R., & Günster, J. (2023). Hybridizing Lithography-Based Ceramic Additive Manufacturing with Two-Photon-Polymerization. Applied Sciences, 13(6), 3974.
- Sänger, J. C., Pauw, B. R., Riechers, B., Zocca, A., Rosalie, J., Maaß, R., ... & Günster, J. (2023). Entering a new dimension in powder processing for advanced ceramics shaping. Advanced Materials, 35(8), 2208653. (2022).
- Sänger, J. C., Pauw, B. R., Sturm, H., & Günster, J. (2020). First time additively manufactured advanced ceramics by using two-photon polymerization for powder processing. Open Ceramics, 4, 100040..

# Additive manufacturing of ceramic components – why not yet established in industrial series production?

### Uwe Scheithauer

Additive and Hybride Manufacturing, Fraunhofer Institute for Ceramic Technologies and Systems IKTS, Dresden, Germany

E-mail: uwe.scheithauer@ikts.fraunhofer.de

Keywords: additive manufacturing, ceramics, series production, challenges

Ceramics are used where other materials fail. Their main advantages are their excellent thermal, chemical and mechanical properties. However, ceramics are not yet widely used because, in addition to their low ductility, complex mechanical processing using conventional methods (e.g. milling and turning) poses a major challenge. In addition, the integration of various functions into one component is only possible to a limited extent.

Additive manufacturing (AM) technologies act as a "game changer" here. Geometrically highly complex ceramic components with previously unattainable functionality can now be produced.

So far so good. But why don't we see additively manufactured ceramic components everywhere?

In this presentation, I will discuss the technical, economic and regulatory challenges that still exist along the entire process chain for ceramic AM components.

What still needs to be done and where, and what approaches are there?

# **Innovative horizons: 3D printing unleashes the potential of technical ceramics for prototyping and industrial scale production**

<u>Siddharth Tiwari</u><sup>\*</sup>, Alejandro Lejtman Rotberg, Max Greiner Christophe Chaput, Richard Gaignon

3D Ceram Sinto Tiwari GmbH, Sinto Group, Berlin, Germany \*E-mail: siddharth.tiwari@3dceram.com

Keywords: ceramic 3D-printing, material extrusion, stereolithography, prototyping, industrialization

In today's rapidly evolving manufacturing landscape, 3D printing or additive manufacturing (AM) has emerged as a game-changer, offering unparalleled flexibility and efficiency not only for the prototyping world but also in various industries. One particularly exciting realm where 3D printing is making significant strides is in the domain of technical ceramics, where innovative technologies are enabling both prototyping and industrial-scale production with unprecedented precision and reliability. Over the years, many AM companies have emerged with cutting-edge processing technologies capable of producing ceramic parts with highly intricate geometries for nearly every imaginable application. One such pioneer is 3D Ceram Sinto Tiwari GmbH, which stands at the forefront of this revolution, offering two state-of-the-art 3D printing technologies: Material Extrusion with its Multi-additive Technology (MAT) system and Stereolithography (SLA).

The revolutionary MAT process empowers users to 3D print complex ceramic parts with remarkable speed and accuracy. By precisely extruding ceramics from a feedstock in the form of pellets, filaments, and water-based suspensions through a nozzle, and then directly milling the deposited layers, MAT enables the creation of intricate prototypes with exceptional surface finish, tight tolerances, and desirable mechanical properties post-sintering. Furthermore, MAT's versatility extends to a wide range of ceramic materials, opening up endless possibilities for many industries. Designers and engineers can rapidly iterate their designs, test new concepts and feedstock options, and refine products with ease, making MAT ideal for prototyping and manufacturing a small number of parts.

For scale-up applications and the mass production of parts with the highest and consistent precision, SLA stands as another groundbreaking technology provided by 3DCeram with over 15 years of experience. By harnessing the power of photopolymerization, SLA facilitates the precise layer-by-layer curing of liquid resin with a UV-laser to create intricate and dense ceramic parts with unparalleled accuracy and detail. With SLA, manufacturers can achieve high volumes of ceramic components with minimal waste, revolutionizing traditional production methods and enhancing product performance in challenging environments. 3DCeram offers a wide machine portfolio suitable for every scale-up production line, capable of producing ceramic parts in a building volume ranging from 100x100x150 mm to 600x600x300 mm. This enables our customers to establish an industrial workflow with highly repeatable and flawless processing across a wide range of scales. Additionally, the efficiency of 3DCeram's SLA process translates to faster production cycles and shorter time-to-market for new products, providing manufacturers with a competitive edge in meeting customer demands and staying ahead of the competition. Moreover, the streamlined workflow and reduced material waste, facilitated by our innovative CERIA artificial intelligence platform and Photo-resin reusing system, further contribute to cost savings and sustainability goals.

## Additive manufacturing of advanced ceramics for demanding applications

<u>Bala Vaidhyanathan</u><sup>\*</sup>, Ketharam Annapoorani, Parvathi Vasudevan, Thanos Goulas, Sina Saremi

Department of Materials, Loughborough University, Loughborough, LE11 3TU, UK \*E-mail: B.Vaidhyanathan@lboro.ac.uk

Keywords: 3D printing, advanced ceramics, filters, batteries, armour, bioceramics

The processing of advanced ceramic powders and suspensions into useful engineering components has been investigated via a series of research projects each focusing on a different stage of the manufacturing route viz., (i) the ability to control the agglomerates present in the ceramic powder resulting in the production of a free-flowing and crushable powders, (ii) the formation of low viscosity but high solids content ceramic suspensions suitable for 3D additive layer manufacturing (3D printing) and (iii) the use of novel field assisted sintering techniques (FAST). This holistic approach helped to transfer the developments achieved in each stage of the manufacturing process to the next and resulted in the ability to form fully dense, complex advanced ceramic components whilst restricting the grain growth to a minimum.

The methodology has been employed to develop various advanced functional ceramic components such as 3D printed BaTiO<sub>3</sub> based light-weight PTCR heaters for automotive and aerospace applications that surpasses existing commercial counterparts, ultra-low loss microwave dielectrics for beyond 5G communication devices, high temperature filters, 3D battery structures, conformal antennas, additively manufactured (AM) zirconia based biomedical components exhibiting vastly superior hydrothermal ageing resistance and mechanical performance suitable for use in biomedical implants (eg., hip/knee prosthesis, finger joints, dental and jaw repairs), as well as ceramic armours for ballistic applications. Significant sustainability advantages were noted with AM+FAST combination compared to conventional manufacturing methods in terms of reduction in material wastage and process energy efficiency. 3D printing of hydrothermally immune nanostructured dental implants was regarded as one of the six best modern technological developments in materials science by a recent BBC documentary (Materials of the Modern Age: The Secret Story of Stuff). These novel advancements are covered by a series of patents and papers and this talk will provide an overview of some of these developments.

#### Acknowledgments

The authors acknowledge the funding support from United Kingdom Research and Innovation Strength in Places Fund (SIPF).

## Additive manufacturing of optical ceramics

<u>Yiquan Wu</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Guangran Zhang<sup>2</sup>, David Carloni<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Kazuo Inamori School of Engineering, New York State College of Ceramics, Alfred University, New York, 14802, USA
<sup>2</sup>Current with Corning Incorporated, New York, USA
<sup>3</sup>Current with Morgan Technical Ceramics, California, USA
\*E-mail: wuy@alfred.edu

Transparent ceramics have been fabricated by using nozzle extrusion 3D printing methods and lithography-based digital projection. The ceramic green bodies were printed into complex geometries by using different viscous aqueous slurries. Transparent alumina ceramics were fabricated using an extrusion-based 3D printer and post-processing steps including debinding, vacuum sintering, and polishing. Scalable, massive fabrication of complex three-dimensional (3D) structured highly transparent Nd: YAG (Y3A15O12) ceramics was achieved by a lithography-based (photopolymerization) digital light processing or digital light projection (DLP) 3D printing method. The work demonstrated transparent ceramics can be prepared using a simplified process without the traditional mold and cold isostatic pressing procedure. It can serve as a potential method of making customized transparent ceramic components and it is also useful for fabricating ceramics structures with relatively full densification.

## T4.3 Novel, Green, and Strategic Processing and Manufacturing Technologies

## Organic-free direct ink writing and consolidation of glass and ceramic slurries

### Hamada Elsayed<sup>1</sup>, Mokhtar Mahmoud<sup>2</sup>, Abel Ourgessa<sup>2</sup>, Jozef Kraxner<sup>2</sup>, Dusan Galusek<sup>2</sup>, <u>Enrico Bernardo<sup>1\*</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Industrial Engineering, University of Padova, Padova, Italy <sup>2</sup>Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalized Glass, Trencin, Slovakia \*E-mail: enrico.bernardo@unipd.it

Keywords: alkali activation, gelation, direct ink writing, waste glass, mullite, cordierite

A key requirement in additive manufacturing, by direct ink writing (also known as robocasting), is the pseudoplastic behaviour of pastes (also kwown as 'inks'). The transition from a low viscosity state (at high shear rates) to a high viscosity (at low shear rates), favours the ejection from nozzles and the preservation of shapes, respectively. This is generally achieved by mixing ceramic powders with organic additives, to be carefully removed upon thermal treatment, but there are important opportunities for the develoment of fully inorganic inks. A fundamental example is provided by geopolymer-yielding slurries, resulting from the suspension of metakaolin powders in concentrated aqueous solutions of alkali hydroxides and silicates. The pseodoplastic behaviour is determined by the progression of polymerization reactions, involving oligomers released in solution according to the alkaline attack of the same metakaolin [1].

The present paper aims at offering new strategies for fully organic-free processing, exploited in the upcycling of waste glass [2] as well as in the development of cordierite- and mullite-based components [3]. The novelties rely, compared to geopolymer-yielding pastes, on changes in the material undergoing alkaline attack and/or in the attacking compound. In the first case, we will show that fine glass powders (<70 µm, recovered from dismantled pharmaceutical containers or from fibre manufacturing) undergo a quite particular interaction with NaOH or KOH solutions: slurries show progressive hardening by condensation reactions involving hydrated layers, on the surface of glass powders, formed upon disruption of glass network operated by OH<sup>-</sup> ions. These reactions imply the regeneration of Si-O-Si and Si-O-Al bonds, as strong and durable bridges between adjacent particles. Slurries in the early stages of reaction may be used as pseudoplastic pastes, for the manufacturing of reticulated constructs. These products are directly usable, as catalytic supports, just after drying. In the second case, we will show that the disruptive action of OH<sup>-</sup> ions can be supported by ammonium hydroxides instead of alkali hydroxides. Polymerization reactions of activated metakaolin, added with talc and/or reactive alumina ( $\gamma$ -Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>), yield alkali-free composite gels, to be transformed into phase-pure cordierite or mullite ceramics. Again, activated suspensions may be printed in the form of reticulated constructs. Applied to bioglasses, this alkali-free 'basic' activation allows for the printing of 'green' scaffolds, later converted into glass scaffolds by viscous flow sintering, with no alteration of the chemical composition.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

- H. Jin et al., 3D printed geopolymer adsorption sieve for removal of methylene blue and adsorption mechanism. Colloids and Surfaces A: Physicochemical and Engineering Aspects, 2022. 648: p. 129235.
- 2. M. Mahmoud et al., Alkali activation-induced cold consolidation of waste glass: Application in organic-free direct ink writing of photocatalytic dye destructors, Journal of the European Ceramic Society, 2023 (https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jeurceramsoc.2023.12.023).
- 3. A. Rincon Romero et al., Highly porous cordierite ceramics from engineered basic activation of metakaolin/talc aqueous suspensions, Journal of the European Ceramic Society, 2020, 40: p.6254.

## New advances in high-precision ceramics technology

### Dong Hao<sup>1\*</sup>, Akatsu Takashi<sup>2</sup>, Nobuaki Kamochi<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>State Key Laboratory of High Performance Ceramics and Superfine Microstructure, Shanghai Institute of Ceramics, Chinese Academy of Sciences, Shanghai, China <sup>2</sup>Katayanagi Advanced Research Institute, Tokyo University of Technology, Tokyo, Japan <sup>3</sup>Saga Ceramics Research Laboratory, Saga, Japan \*E-mail: dhao@mail.sic.ac.cn

**Keywords**: high-precision ceramics, alumina strengthened porcelain, pyroplastic deformation, nearzero liquid sintering shrinkage

Attaining precise control over the geometry of pottery ceramics presents a challenge due to undesirable pyroplastic deformation and sintering shrinkage, leading to significant production losses within the ceramic industry. Therefore, the development of high-precision ceramics technology becomes necessary, particularly in additive manufacture. In this presentation, we will show the latest advances in high precision ceramics production.

Firstly, achieving a balance between densification and pyroplastic deformation in porcelain, especially across a wide range of firing temperatures, is intricate due to inherent trade-off. We will outline our strategies for attaining this balance by precisely modulating high-temperature viscosity using IA and IIA oxides and high-temperature crystal precursors, respectively. Secondly, unpredictable shrinkage arising from liquid sintering, especially in pottery ceramics employing natural minerals as raw materials, remains a pressing issue. We will introduce a novel approach for effectively managing both shrinkage and pyroplastic deformation by promoting anorthite crystallization through the incorporation of wollastonite.

By addressing the issues of pyroplastic deformation and sintering shrinkage, high-precision ceramics can be developed. Our methodologies not only facilitate the production of high-precision ceramics but also contribute to resource and energy conservation, promoting sustainable development.

- 1. Hao et al., J. Eur. Ceram. Soc., 2023, 43(2), 700-707.
- 2. Hao et al., Int. J. Appl. Ceram., 2020, 17, 2307–2314.

# Nanoimprint of Au-based thin film metallic glasses for plasmonic applications

### Chen Wang, Chun-Hway Hsueh\*

Department of Materials Science and Engineering, National Taiwan University, Taipei, Taiwan \*E-mail: hsuehc@ntu.edu.tw

Keywords: thin film metallic glasses, sputtering, thermal imprint, plasmonics

Metallic glasses (MGs) could be obtained by quenching from the melt at a cooling rate high enough to suppress nucleation/growth of crystalline phases, and they have a glass-like amorphous structure. Because of the amorphous structure, MGs have no grain boundaries/ dislocations and hence possess very high strength (~2 GPa). Also, like glasses, MGs have polymer-like viscous flow behavior at temperatures above the glass transition temperature,  $T_g$ . MGs provide a challenge of engineering applications for their unique structure and properties. However, plasmonic applications have been rarely explored for MGs. In this work, we unveiled that certain compositions of Au-based MGs possessed negative dielectric constants and could be used as plasmonic materials. Furthermore, with a low glass transition temperature of Au-based thin film MGs (TFMGs), we were able to fabricate large dimensions of nanostructures using an inexpensive thermal imprint method in air instead of other costly lithography methods.

We fabricated fully amorphous AuCuSi TFMGs using magnetron sputtering, and performed nanoindentation creep tests in the temperature range of 50 °C to 170 °C to characterize the viscous flow behavior and to determine the  $T_g$  of the film. We fabricated nanostructures by thermal imprinting on the film at a temperature slightly above the  $T_g$ , and conducted both measurements and simulations to demonstrate that our fabricated nanostructures were suitable for surface-enhanced Raman scattering (SERS) applications. It is worth noting that in the absence of grain boundaries in amorphous TFMGs, damping due to increased scattering at grain boundaries does not occur and SERS could be improved. Also, compared to regular SERS substrates of textured Si with deposited Au films, imprinted Au-based TFMGs provided complete coverage of Si underneath and the vibrational signal of Si lattice would not show in Raman spectra to possibly overlap signals of analyte and decrease the accuracy of sensing. Our results suggested new avenues for applying a low-cost and high-throughput method on AuCuSi TFMGs to fabricate large dimensions of substrates for plasmonic applications.



Fig. 1. (a) Schematics showing thermal imprint on Au-based TFMG to fabricate SERS substrate. (b)SEM image.

### Acknowledgments

The work was supported by the National Science and Technology Council, Taiwan under Contract no. NSTC 112-2221-E-002-083.

- C. Wang, L.W. Nien, H.C. Ho, Y.C. Lai, C.H. Hsueh, Surface plasmon excited on imprintable thin film metallic glasses for surface-enhanced raman scattering applications, ACS Appl. Nano Mater., 1 (2018) 908–914.
- C. Wang, P.J. Chen, C.H. Hsueh, Au-based thin film metallic glasses for propagating surface plasmon resonance-based sensor application," ACS Omega, 7 (2022) 18780–18785.

# Densification, microstructure and properties of advanced ceramics sintered under high/ultrahigh pressure

### Wei Ji

State Key Lab of Advanced Technology for Materials Synthesis and Processing, Wuhan University of Technology, China E-mail: jiwei@whut.edu.cn

Keywords: densification, microstructure and properties of advanced ceramics sintered under high/ ultrahigh pressure

High/Ultrahigh pressure sintering technology is one of the most important research scopes for advanced ceramic materials. It could not only resolve the contradiction between high density and fine grain structure during ceramic sintering, but also lead to unique microstructure and fantastic properties. In traditional sintering method, atomic diffusion is considered as the dominate densification mechanism in pressure sintering. But in our study, it has been found that the plastic deformation and creep etc. caused by high pressure could dramatically improve the densification. The related unique microstructure could contribute to the high properties such as hardness and strength. Based on the new phenomenon, we investigated the densification behavior, microstructure evolution and properties of typical ceramics under different pressure scales. Combined with the modeling results, the dominate densification mechanism of ultrahigh pressure and high temperature sintering technology, and the relationship between dominate sintering mechanism and properties were studied.

## Fast laser processing of silicon carbide ceramic materials

### Jie Yin<sup>\*</sup>, Xuejian Liu, Zhongming Chen, Zhengren Huang

Shanghai Institute of Ceramics, Chinese Academy of Sciences, Shanghai, China \*E-mail: jieyin@mail.sic.ac.cn

Keywords: SiC, selective laser printing, densification, comprehensive properties

SiC-based Ceramic composites are promising for usages as various large-scale and complexshaped components. However, the intrinsic brittle nature of SiC ceramics inhibited their wide application. Incorporation of chopped carbon fiber as a reinforcing phase could enhance its reliability. During recent years, efforts have been devoted to fast forming techniques to reduce excess carbon reduction. Additive manufacturing of SiC-based ceramics by adopting various techniques, including digital light processing, direct ink writing, selective laser printing, and et al were emerged.

In previous study, our group conducted investigation on direct ink writing of C/SiC ceramic composites. The critical point was the preparation of homogenous C/SiC green bodies. In recent study, we combined selective sintering and liquid silicon infiltration for a higherefficiency and higher-performance-component fabrication. We prepared complex-structured composites therefrom. The relationship between microstructure tailoring and mechanical performance was investigated.

### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the National Natural Science Foundation of China (Nos. 52073299, 52172077, U22A20129, and 51902329), the National Key R&D Program of China (No. 2022YFB3706303), and the Youth Innovation Promotion Association CAS (No. 2018289).

## Spray freeze granulation drying of aluminum nitride and silicon nitride powders

Junichi Tatami<sup>1\*</sup>, Riko Yamazaki<sup>1</sup>, Motoyuki Iijima<sup>1</sup>, Shinya Kawaguchi<sup>2</sup>, Naoki Kondo<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Graduate School of Environment and Information Sciences, Yokohama National University, Yokohama, Japan <sup>2</sup>PRECI Co., Ltd., Kawasaki, Japan <sup>3</sup>National Institute of Advanced Industrial Science and Technology, Nagoya, Japan \*E-mail: tatami-junichi-xv@ynu.ac.jp

Keywords: spray freeze granulation drying, silicon nitride, aluminum nitride

Dry pressing is one of the techniques to make a green body with simple shape and good productivity. However, it has been reported that the defects resulting from granules prepared by spray drying degrade the strength of ceramics. Spray freeze granulation drying (SFGD), which is one of the techniques to prepare granules from the ceramic slurry, provides softer granules to result in homogeneous green body and sintered body with high strength. In general, the slurry for SFGD is prepared using water as a dispersion media, which is not suitable for nonoxide ceramics, such as AlN and  $Si_3N_4$ , because of reaction with water during mixing to form oxides or hydrates to degrade the properties of ceramics. The ideas to be slove the problem is to improve the water proofness and to use nonaqueous solvent. In this study, SFGD of AlN and  $Si_3N_4$  powders was carried out.

For AlN powder, graphene coating by mechanical treatment, which was carried out under a compression and shear field, was investigated in order to give water resistance to the particles for preparation of ceramics using aqueous slurry. The graphene-coated aluminum nitride particles showed excellent water resistance, since the pH value of the aqueous slurry did not change and aluminum hydroxide was not detected even after stirring for long time. The relative density of the AlN ceramics obtained with the composite particles was high, and their secondary phase was also found to be yttrium aluminate having less oxygen than those prepared without graphene coating, due to suppressed hydrolysis. Thermal conductivity of AlN ceramics prepared from graphen coated particles was 133 W/mK, which was higher than that from phosphate coating reported in the previous study.

For  $Si_3N_4$  powder, SFGD was carried out using slurries prepared in a mixture of tertiary butyl alcohol and cyclohexane. The eutectic composition of the mixture resulted in the granules having a homogeneous internal structure, though the granules prepared from an excess amount of tertiary butyl alcohol and cyclohexane included larger pores.  $Si_3N_4$  ceramics were fabricated using the freeze-dried granules prepared from the eutectic composition of tertiary butyl alcohol and cyclohexane. As a result, it was found that highly dense and homogeneous  $\beta$ -Si<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub> ceramics were obtained using granules prepared by SFGD, which showed higher strength than those from granules by conventional seiving technique.

# Recovery and reuse of magnetic silica-coated iron oxide particles for green chemical mechanical planarization

<u>Kangchun Lee</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Ganggyu Lee<sup>2</sup>, Seungwoo Lee<sup>2</sup>, Seunggun Choi<sup>2</sup>, Chanjin Park<sup>2</sup>, Gunwoo Cha<sup>2</sup>, Bobae Lee<sup>2,3</sup>, Taeseup Song<sup>2</sup>, Ungyu Paik<sup>2</sup>. Kwangho Kim<sup>4</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Electronic Engineering, Kyonggi University, Suwon, South Korea <sup>2</sup>Department of Energy Engineering, Hanyang University, Seoul, South Korea <sup>3</sup>CMP Technology Team, Memory Division, Samsung Electronics, Hwaseong, South Korea <sup>4</sup>School of Materials Science & Engineering, Pusan National University, Pusan, South Korea \*E-mail: kc.lee@kyonggi.ac.kr

Keywords: chemical mechanical planarization, core-shell nanoparticles, magnetic separation, recycling

Chemical mechanical planarization (CMP) emerges as a crucial process in nano-scale semiconductor patterning. However, it raises environmental concerns due to increased waste generation, prompting questions about its long-term sustainability. We explore an innovative waste management and recycling approach that employs magnetic separation, utilizing magnetite (Fe<sub>3</sub>O<sub>4</sub>)@silica (SiO<sub>2</sub>) core-shell nanoparticles as CMP abrasives. Due to the high magnetic properties of the magnetite core, the nanoparticles can be effectively separated and recovered from spent CMP slurry under the external magnetic field. Additionally, by regulating the thickness of the SiO<sub>2</sub> shell, we can control the surface charge and mechanical properties of the abrasive. Compared to conventional SiO<sub>2</sub> nanoparticles, Fe<sub>3</sub>O<sub>4</sub>@SiO<sub>2</sub> core-shell nanoparticles with optimized shell thickness demonstrate higher removal rates and improved surface smoothness in tungsten CMP. The recycling efficacy of these particles is confirmed through multiple CMP cycles, maintaining consistent removal rates and surface quality, thus highlighting the potential of magnetic separation for sustainable CMP.

## Progress of silicon nitride ceramics

### Manabu Fukushima, <u>Tatsuki Ohji</u>\*, Kiyoshi Hirao

National Institute of Advanced Industrial Science and Technology (AIST), Sakurazaka 4-205, Moriyama-ku, Nagoya 463-8560, Japan \*E-mail: t-ohji@aist.go.jp

Keywords: silicon nitride, microstructure, mechanical properties

Silicon nitride is one of the most widely used engineering ceramics for a variety of structural applications because of their excellent mechanical properties. During the last four decades, a great deal of research effort has been devoted for tailoring the microstructures through innovative sintering process and enhancing the properties, leading to tremendous progress of silicon nitride. Particularly, in recent years, a lot of attention has been collected to studies on small or thin parts of silicon nitride ceramics because of their expanding application field. This paper gives an overview on such recent progress of silicon nitride ceramics, focusing on the processing (or sintering)-structure-properties relationship, with some examples of how a unique processing route generates a novel microstructure, which brings enhanced properties in turn. Particular emphasis is placed on microstructural elements, including grains, pores, particles, and interfaces at different scale levels, as well as their effects on the mechanical and thermal properties.

## Y(Ta<sub>1-x</sub>Nb<sub>x</sub>)O<sub>4</sub> single crystals for scintillator applications

<u>Kiyoshi Shimamura<sup>1,2</sup>,</u> Yueshen Zhou<sup>1,2</sup>, Dongsheng Yuan<sup>1</sup>, Encarnación G. Víllora<sup>1</sup>, Daisuke Nakauchi<sup>3</sup>, Takumi Kato<sup>3</sup>, Noriaki Kawaguchi<sup>3</sup>, Takayuki Yanagida<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>National Institute for Materials Science, Tsukuba, Japan <sup>2</sup>Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan <sup>3</sup>Nara Institute of Science and Technology, Nara, Japan \*E-mail: SHIMAMURA.Kiyoshi@nims.go.jp

Keywords: single crystal, scintillator, X-ray imaging

Importance of X-ray imaging applications are now growing rapidly in many fields including security inspection, medical diagnostics, and non-destructive testing. Typical apparatus are X-ray baggage & Cargo scanners, X-ray CT, and X-ray inspection machines. One of the most widely used scintillator for these applications is  $CdWO_4$  (CWO) single crystal. However, the alternative of CWO has been demanded since long time due to the existence of the toxic element, Cd. We have been looking for the environmentally friendly potential candidate, i.e. Cd-free, which can alternate CWO single crystal.

In this work, single crystals of  $Y(Ta_{1-x}Nb_x)O_4$ , where x ranges from 0 to 1, are introduced, as a potential Cd-free alternative of CWO. These single crystals were grown by the floating-zone method. The grown crystals have shown high light yield and low aftergrow comparable to CWO. The detail will be shown in the presentation.

## Effects of TiC content on the microstructure and properties of B4C– TiB2–graphite composites by reactive hot pressing Sintering Processing

Weimin Wang\*, Qianglong He, Aiyang Wang, Ji Wei, Hao Wang, Zhengyi Fu

School of Materials Science and Engineering, Wuhan University of Technology, Wuhan 430070, China

\*E-mail: shswmwang@wuht.edu.cn

Keywords: B4C-TiB2-graphite, agglomerates, mechanical properties, crack deflection

 $B_4C$ -TiB<sub>2</sub>-graphite ceramic composites were fabricated via reactive hot pressing sintering using  $B_4C$  and TiC as the raw materials. With an increase in the TiC content, the grain size of  $B_4C$  decreased continuously because  $B_4C$  grain growth was inhibited by the TiB<sub>2</sub> and C reaction products. However, excessive TiC content caused an increase in TiB<sub>2</sub> and graphite grain size and the formation of TiB<sub>2</sub>-graphite agglomerates. When the composition of the ceramic composite was 95.1 wt%B<sub>4</sub>C-3.9 wt%TiB<sub>2</sub>-1.0 wt%graphite, the Vickers hardness and bending strength was optimized at 34.9 GPa and 688 MPa, respectively. The results showed that crack deflection is the main toughening mechanism of  $B_4C$ -TiB<sub>2</sub>-graphite ceramic composites, and the effect of TiB<sub>2</sub>-graphite on crack propagation is particularly significant. When the composition of the ceramic composite was 75.6 wt%B<sub>4</sub>C-19.4 wt%TiB<sub>2</sub>-5.0 wt% graphite, the fracture toughness was optimized at 6.77 MPa·m<sup>1/2</sup>. These results provide guidelines on how to effectively control the combined properties of  $B_4C$ -TiB<sub>2</sub>-graphite ceramic composites in future investigations.

### **T4.4 Powder Processing Technology for Advanced Ceramics**

# Field-assisted sintering processes as innovative sustainable routes for high-temperature ceramics

### Vincenzo M. Sglavo

Department of Industrial Engineering, University of Trento, Trento, Italy E-mail: vincenzo.sglavo@unitn.it

**Keywords**: flash sintering, ultrarapid high temperature sintering, high-temperature ceramics, tungsten carbide, zirconium diboride

The increasingly current environmental awareness linked to climate changes and the scarcity of energy resources is permeating also the industrial sector of the production of ceramic materials. Nowadays, the carbon footprint associated with the production of ceramics depends fundamentally on the use of energy to process them, where firing alone accounts for 55%–80%. For all this, numerous research activities are trying to identify processes with lower environmental impact and, above all, with limited energy consumption. Initiatives aimed at activating, inducing or sustaining sintering processes through the use of electric fields or currents can be placed in this framework, preferably without resorting to particularly expensive machinery. Among these, the very recently proposed techniques identified as flash sintering (FS) and ultrafast high-temperature sintering (UHS) appear extremely promising although their application at an industrial level still requires numerous investigative and validation activities.

An area where the above-mentioned issue is even more problematic is that of refractory or high-temperature ceramics, which typically can only be consolidated at very high temperatures under the action of significant pressures or through the addition of compounds that facilitate the diffusion mechanisms / sintering, typically in inert atmosphere.

In this presentation, the application of FS and UHS on tungsten carbide, zirconium diboride and their composites is reviewed. Such materials behave notoriously like metals from an electrical point of view and therefore do not show the well know thermal runaway phenomenon when subjected to the contemporaneous effect of temperature and electric field as observed in the flash sintering of most ceramics. In addition, their chemical nature makes them prone to oxidize at high temperature in non-protecting environment. The conditions are discussed here to achieve high density and no oxidation when FS and UHS techniques are used with the aim to identify possible evolution of the process to real applications and actual issues which need further investigations. The correlation between the processing condition and material structure and composition is also analysed in detail.

### Acknowledgments

This work is supported by the Italian Ministry of Economic Development (Ministero dello Sviluppo Economico, MISE) within the project "Processo Innovativo per la Ceramica Tecnica - PRINCE", F/310085/01/X56.

# Grain boundary engineering in high-entropy perovskite oxides to improve thermoelectric performance

Rishabh Shukla<sup>1</sup>, Nikhil Bhootpur<sup>2</sup>, Adraž Kocjan<sup>2</sup>, Michael Stuer<sup>1\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>High Performance Ceramics Laboratory, Swiss Federal Laboratories for Materials Science and Technology (Empa), Dübendorf, Switzerland

<sup>2</sup>Department for Nanostructured Materials, Jožef Stefan Institute, Jamova 39, 1000, Ljubljana, Slovenia

\*E-mail: michael.stuer@empa.ch

Keywords: high-entropy, thermoelectric, material engineering, figure of merit, grain size

Thermoelectric (TE) materials enable direct conversion between heat and electricity and offer a pathway for more sustainable and environment-friendly energy generation. The TE potential of a material is evaluated based on a dimensionless figure of merit  $ZT = S^2 \sigma T/(\kappa_e + \kappa_i)$ . Accordingly, TE materials are effective when they combine a high power factor ( $S^2\sigma$ ) with low electronic ( $\kappa_e$ ) and lattice ( $\kappa_i$ ) thermal conductivities [1]. According to Weideman-Franz law, however, there is a direct correlation between thermal and electric conductivities, restricting their decoupling or independent optimization. Hereon high entropy materials have shown promising potential in reducing the coupling between thermal and electrical conductivities due to strong lattice distortion in a highly symmetric crystalline structure [2, 3]. High entropy oxides (HEOs) are a subclass of high entropy materials [4], where the random and homogeneous mixing of nearly equimolar five or more cations (depending on the lattice/ sub-lattice structure [5]) allows formation of stable crystalline single phase oxide structures.

Among several perovskite compounds, n-type perovskite titanates have revealed promising TE performance in recent years. However, these perovskites suffer from high thermal conductivity (>10 W/mK), resulting in poor ZT values compared to conventional TE materials (thermal conductivity ~1 W/mK) [3]. In order to overcome this limitation and increase the ZT, high entropy perovskite oxides have been developed with A and B-sites in a ABO<sub>3</sub> structure homogeneously populated with  $\geq$ 5 cations to maximize the configurational entropy and form a stable single phase structure [6]. They can be sintered preserving a refined microstructure due to their lower grain boundary energies compared to their low entropy counterparts [7]. This in return increases the phonon scattering centers at grain boundaries, and the large differences between cationic mass and interatomic forces [8] furthermore reduce the lattice thermal conductivity.

In this study, A and B-site substituted  $[(5M)_1(5N)_1O_3]$  single phase HEO powders using A = La, Bi, Sr, Ba, Na, and B = Zr, Hf, Ti, Nb, Ta, W, Fe/Mn have been synthesized via a solid-state reaction method. In order to further decrease the lattice thermal conductivity and increase the carrier concentration in single-phase HEOs, the powders were afterwards donor doped before spark plasma sintering (SPS). Furthermore, the addition of cellulose nanofibres prior to SPS sintering was evaluated for an in-situ formation of a graphene-like networks at the grain boundaries to enhance the electric transport (charge collection) and scatter mid-wavelength phonons (dominant carriers of thermal energy [9]). The resulting effect on thermal conductivity and overall ZT is reported.

- 1. M. Mukherjee, A. Srivastava, and A. K. Singh, J. Mater. Chem. C 10, 12524 (2022).
- 2. R. Liu, H. Chen, K. Zhao, Y. Qin et al., Adv. Mater. 29, 1702712 (2017).
- 3. R. Banerjee, S. Chatterjee, M. Ranjan, et al., ACS Sustainable Chem. Eng. 8, 17022 (2020).
- 4. M. Brahlek, M. Gazda, V. Keppens, A. R. Mazza et al., APL Mater. 10, 110902 (2022).
- 5. O. F. Dippo, and K. S. Vecchio, Scrip. Mater. 201, 113974 (2021).
- 6. S. Jiang, T. Hu, J. Gild, N. Zhou, J. Nie, M. Qin, et al., Scr. Mater. 142, 116 (2018).
- 7. J. Luo, and N. Zhou, Commun. Mater. 4, 7 (2023).
- 8. J. L. Braun, C. M. Rost, M. Lim, A. Giri, et al., Adv. Mater. 30, 1805004 (2018).
- 9. W. Kim, J. Mater. Chem. C **3**, 10336 (2015).
# Investigation of easily degradable adhesive structures and adhesives assuming the electric pulse separation

# Chiharu Tokoro

Faculty of Science and Engineering, Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan Faculty of Engineering, The University of Tokyo, Tokyo, Japan E-mail: tokoro@waseda.jp

Keywords: multi-material, electrical pulsed discharge, separation, recycling, circular economy

Advanced dismantling technology is required to realize the Circular Economy. In recent years, multi-materials are often bonded and joined to reduce weight, but it is difficult to dismantle them precisely only by conventional mechanical grinding, while heating and solvent addition methods have a large environmental impact and cost for separation. Therefore, there is a need for a precise dismantling method with a small environmental impact and cost for the adhesion and bonding of multi-materials.

The authors have focused on the electrical pulsed discharge as such a dismantling method. This method uses Joule heat generation by electrical pulsed discharge and shock wave generation and expansion due to plasma generation to precisely separate on the discharge paths. So far, we have succeeded in separating lithium-ion battery current-collecting foil and adhesive particles [1], and in separating resin from silver and copper wires in solar panel cell sheets. However, common adhesive structures often do not provide a convenient electrical pulse discharge path. Therefore, we have attempted to separate the adhesive by introducing notches, metal spheres, and thin metal wires into the adhesive structure to dismantle them using the electric pulse method. However, these methods tend to reduce the bond strength. Recently, the authors have investigated a method of dismantling adhesion by dispersing conductive nanoparticles in the adhesive and discharging electric pulses into them to induce plasma. By controlling the dispersion structure of the nanoparticles in the adhesive layer, the authors hope to create an easy-to-disassemble design by assuming the electric pulse method during disassembly, without reducing the adhesive strength [2].

# Figures



Concept of Nanoparticle Aggregation and Dispersion Control for Easily Degradable Adhesion

### Acknowledgments

A part of research results presented here were supported by JST-Mirai Project JPMJMI19C7 and JST-CREST project JPMJCR23L3.

- 1. C. Tokoro, et al., Waste Management. 2021, Vol.125, pp. 58-66.
- 2. M. Inutsuka, et al., The Journal of Adhesion. 2023, available online.

# Development of $Si_3N_4$ substrate from tape casting and gas pressure sintering

# Jingxian Zhang\*, Yusen Duan, Dongliang Jiang

State Key Laboratory of High Performance Ceramics and Superfine Microstructures, Shanghai Institute of Ceramics, 1295 Dingxi Road, Shanghai 200050, China \*E-mail: jxzhang@mail.sic.ac.cn

Keywords: silicon nitride, tape casting, thermal conductivity

 $Si_3N_4$  ceramics exhibited excellent mechanical properties and high theoretical thermal conductivity, is a prospective substrate candidate for power electronic devices. However, the development of high thermal conductivity  $Si_3N_4$  is a challenge, because it is difficult to balance the high thermal conductivity and high strength. Usually, high temperature with long time holding are required for development of high thermal conductivity, while excessive grain growth and low bending strength will be resulted. Up to now, how to develop silicon nitride substrate with both high strength and high thermal conductivity is still a challenge.

In this paper, a strategy was proposed to avoid the long time holding through the introduction of  $Y_2O_3$ -MgO-C as the sintering additives and silicon powder as the starting material. High thermal conductivity  $Si_3N_4$  ceramic was prepared through tape casting, nitridation and gas pressure sintering at 1900°C, 0.9MPa with 2-6h holding. The influence of carbon addition on the sintering behavior, phase, microstructure, mechanical properties, and thermal conductivity of  $Si_3N_4$  was studied. The grain boundary and the second phase character is studied.  $Si_3N_4$  ceramics with relative density and thermal conductivity as 99% and 98 W/m·K respectively can be obtained. The mechanism for the microstructure development and the resulting thermal and mechanical properties were discussed.

# T4.5 Advanced Materials, Technologies, and Devices for Electrooptical and Biomedical Applications

# Nanoparticles in optical fibers, new opportunity for biomedical sensors

<u>Wilfried Blanc</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Carlos Marques<sup>2</sup>, Arnaldo Leal-Junior<sup>3</sup>, Carlo Molardi<sup>4</sup>, Daniele Tosi<sup>4,5,</sup> Maurizio Ferrari<sup>6</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Université Côte d'Azur, INPHYNI, CNRS, Nice, France

<sup>2</sup>CICECO – Aveiro Institute of Materials, Physics Department, University of Aveiro, Aveiro, Portugal <sup>3</sup>Federal University of Espirito Santo, Mechanical Engineering Department, Vitoria, Brazil <sup>4</sup>Nazarbayev University, Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering, 010000 Astana, Kazakhstan

<sup>5</sup>National Laboratory Astana, Laboratory of Biosensors and Bioinstruments, 010000 Astana, Kazakhstan

<sup>6</sup>IFN-CNR, CSMFO Lab. and FBK Photonics Unit, Via alla Cascata 56/C, 38123, Povo, Trento, Italy \*E-mail: wilfried.blanc@inphyni.cnrs.fr

Keywords: optical fiber, nanoparticles, sensors, OBR, TRA, biosensors

Nanoparticles in optical fibers were first studied in 1998 to modify the local environment of luminescent ions [1]. The aim was to develop new lasers and amplifiers. In this context, light scattering induced by the presence of nanoparticles was considered harmful. However, in 2018, it was demonstrated that this light scattering could, on the contrary, be exploited to make sensors, particularly for the biomedical field [2]. Sensors are interrogated using two different methods. The first is based on the analysis of backscattered light using an OBR (Optical Backscatter Reflectometer), derived from OFDR (Optical Frequency Domain Reflectrometry) [3]. This approach enables the fiber to be probed along its entire length, with a spatial resolution of the order of 10  $\mu$ m. The other approach is based on Transmission-Reflection Analysis, *i.e.* determining the ratio between transmitted and reflected intensity. This technique is well known for determining the location and intensity of a single event occurring on the fiber. However, the use of machine-learning has recently made it possible to extend this analysis to the detection of two or three events simultaneously [4].

In this presentation, we will review the various applications of these nanoparticle-containing optical fibers for the detection of temperature, stress, strain, biochemical environment, cancer cell detection, and more generally their use in e-health.

### Acknowledgments

Fundação para a Ciência e a Tecnologia/Ministério da Educação e Ciência (PTDC/EEI-EEE/0415/2021, CICECO (LA/P/0006/2020, UIDB/50011/2020, UIDP/50011/2020).

- 1. W. Blanc et al., Optical Materials Express 12 (2022) 2635–2652.
- 2. M. Sypabekova *et al.*, Optics letters 43 (1998) 5945–5948.
- 3. D. Tosi et al., IEEE Sensors Journal 21 (2020) 12667–12678.
- 4. A Leal-Junior et al., IEEE Internet of Things Journal (2024).

# Nonlinear crystals: a unique platform for optical frequency synthesis and new quantum states ol light generation

Benoît Boulanger<sup>\*</sup>, Patricia Segonds, Alexandra Penã, Véronique Boutou

Neel Institute, University Grenoble Alpes CNRS, Grenoble, France \*E-mail: benoit.boulanger@neel.cnrs.fr

Keywords: crystals, nonlinear optics, frequency conversion, quantum optics

Nonlinear optics relies on the coupling between photons and electrons, the last ones allowing the first ones to merge or split. The efficiency of this "photonic alchemy" is high when the intensity of light is large and when electrons of matter are relatively weakly linked. All the matter states, *i.e.* plasmas, gas, liquids and solids, can exhibit nonlinear optical properties. But among all these media, the organized solids, *i.e.* the crystals, lead to the biggest diversity of nonlinear optical interactions and applications due to their rich symmetries and chemistry, and to their purity and hardness. Associated with lasers, the crystals with nonlinear optical properties allow intense beams to be generated over a huge spectral range of the electromagnetic waves, from ultra-violet to far infra-red, leading to numerous devices and applications. Parametric light has also a strong interest in quantum physics since it enables the generation and manipulation of new quantum states of light. Among the various nonlinear processes, twin-photon and triple photons generations, which corresponds respectively to the birth of two and three correlated photons from the splitting of a single photon, allow to manipulate the quantum properties of light. These generations are driven by an optical pump field: it can occur spontaneously, which is called spontaneous parametric down conversion, or it can be forced by a seed field oscillating at one or both of the generated photons frequencies; this is the optical parametric amplification, or optical parametric oscillation if the process is enhanced by a resonant cavity.

This invited talk gives a quick overview of the 3-photons and 4-photons coupling showing the ability of both of these nonlinear interactions to convert laser frequency or generate new quantum states of light using bulk crystals and crystal waveguides based on birefringence phase-matching or quasi-phase-matching.



Second Harmonic Generation birefringence phase-matching tuning curve of a CTAS bulk crystal (a) [1]; KTP crystal ridge optical waveguide for phase-matched Third Harmonic Generation and Triple Photons Generation (b) [2]; scheme of a PPRKTP sphere used for the study of the angular distribution of quasiphase-matched Second Harmonic Generation (c) [3].

- 1. T. Remark, P. Segonds, J. Debray, D. Jegouso, E.G. Víllora, K. Shimamura, and B. Boulanger, Optical Materials Express, **13**(7), 2053 (2023).
- 2. A. Vernay, V. Boutou, C. Félix, D. Jegouso, F. Bassignot, M. Chauvet, and B. Boulanger, Optics Express, **29**(14), 22266 (2021).
- Y. Petit, A. Peña, P. Segonds, J. Debray, S. Joly, A. Zukauskas, F. Laurell, V. Pasiskevicius, C. Canalias, and B. Boulanger, Optics Letters, 45(21), 6026 (2020).

# **RF-sputtering deposition technique for fabrication of glass based flexible 1D photonic crystals and active planar waveguides**

G. Zanetti<sup>1,2</sup>, A. Carlotto<sup>1,3</sup>, L.T. N. Tran<sup>1,4,5</sup>, A. Szczurek<sup>1</sup>, B. Babiarczuk<sup>6</sup>, O. Sayginer<sup>7</sup>, S. Varas<sup>1</sup>, A. Vinante<sup>1</sup>, J. Krzak<sup>6</sup>, O. S. Bursi<sup>8,1</sup>, D. Zonta<sup>8,1</sup>, A. Lukowiak<sup>9</sup>, G. C. Righini<sup>10</sup>, M. Ferrari<sup>1</sup>, V. M. Sglavo<sup>2</sup>, M. Bonomo<sup>11</sup>, S. Galliano<sup>11</sup>, C. Barolo<sup>11</sup>, S. M. Pietralunga<sup>3</sup>, <u>A. Chiasera<sup>1\*</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>IFN-CNR, CSMFO Lab and FBK Photonics Unit, Trento, Italy
<sup>2</sup>Department of Industrial Engineering, University of Trento, Italy
<sup>3</sup>IFN-CNR, Milano, Italy
<sup>4</sup>Dept. of Physics, Politecnico di Milano, Italy
<sup>5</sup>Dept. of Materials Technology, Faculty of Applied Sciences, HCMC University of Technology and Education, Vietnam
<sup>6</sup>Dept. of Mechanics, Materials and Biomedical Engineering, Wroclaw University of Science and Technology, Poland
<sup>7</sup>Department of Mechanical Engineering, Temple University, USA
<sup>8</sup>DICAM, University of Trento, Italy
<sup>9</sup>ILTSR PAS, Wroclaw, Poland
<sup>10</sup>IFAC-CNR, MiPLab, Firenze, Italy
<sup>11</sup>Department of Chemistry, NIS Interdepartmental Centre and INSTM Reference Centre, University of Turin, Italy
\*E-mail: alessandro.chiasera@cnr.it

Keywords: flexible glasses, RF-sputtering, 1D photonic crystals, active planar waveguides.

We present the RF-sputtering fabrication of flexible 1D photonic crystals and active Er<sup>3+</sup>doped planar waveguides. These structures were deposited on ultrathin flexible glass and exhibited remarkable results in terms of both optical and mechanical properties. The use of RF-sputtering demonstrates promise as a scalable technique for creating flexible photonic devices<sup>1,2</sup>.

Moreover, we delve into the design, fabrication and performance of flexible 1D photonic crystals produced through multi-layered deposition via RF-sputtering on a flexible thermosetting polymer. Notably, these results are comparable to those obtained from the film deposited on glass. We further conduct experimental spectroscopic analysis under various bending configurations, which aligns well with numerical simulations. This comprehensive study establishes the reliable operating conditions for photonic devices.

### Acknowledgments

This research is supported by the projects: FESR-PON 2014-2020 BEST4U ARS01\_00519; NAWA PPN/IWA/2018/1/00104; MIUR-'Departments of Excellence' L 232/2016; ERC-H2020 PAIDEIA GA 816313; "nuovi Concetti, mAteriali e tecnologie per l'iNtegrazione del fotoVoltAico negli edifici in uno scenario di generazione diffuSa" CANVAS, LEMAQUME-QuantERA, and NAWA-MAECI Canaletto (2022-2023). DemaK Polymers is acknowledged for providing the precursors for the polymer substrate.

### References

1. G. Zanetti, et.al., Optical Materials X (2023); doi: 10.1016/j.omx.2023.100241.

2. A.Carlotto, et.al., Ceramics International, (2023); doi:10.1016/j.ceramint.2023.03.012

# Fabrication of RE-doped transparent hexagonal fluorapatite ceramics

### Hiroaki Furuse

National Institute for Materials Science, 1-2-1 Sengen, Tsukuba, Ibaraki, Japan E-mail: FURUSE.Hiroaki@nims.go.jp

Keywords: transparent ceramics, laser, phosphor, fluorapatite, spark plasma sintering

Transparent ceramics have been widely studied for various applications, especially in high power solid-state lasers. However, the host materials are limited to cubic crystal structure due to grain boundary scattering by birefringence. The realization of non-cubic transparent ceramics is attractive in a wide range of photonics fields. It is known that the grain boundary scattering is porportional to the average grain size and the refractive index difference at the grain boundaries [1]. One way to reduce the scattering in non-cubic ceramics is to densify the ceramics with significantly small grains comparative to wavelength of light as shown in Fig. 1 [2].

In this study, high optical quality non-cubic fluorapatite  $(Ca_{10}(PO_4)_6F_2: FAP \text{ or } Sr_{10}(PO_4)_6F_2:$ S-FAP) ceramics were fabricated through liquid phase nano-powder synthesis and densification by spark plasma sintering (SPS) technique. By using the low temperature SPS to suppress grain growth during the sintering process, full densification with fine microstructure could be achieved. The average grain size of the ceramics were evaluated to be approximately 100 nm, and the in-line transmittance were comparable to the theoretical values. Laser oscillation were demonstrated for Nd:FAP, Yb:FAP, and Nd:S-FAP ceramics though composing crystal grains are almost randomly oriented [2-4]. In the presentation, the details of fabrication process, sintering behavior, microstructure, optical and fluorescence properties for some RE-doped fluorapatite ceramics will be discussed.



Fig. 1 Schematic of optical scattering in fine-grained non-cubic ceramics [2].

| Er:FAP | Nd:FAP | Yb:FAP |
|--------|--------|--------|
| Er:FAP | Nd:FAP | Yb:FAP |
| Er:FAP | Nd:FAP | Yb:FAP |

Fig .2 Sample photos of Er, Nd, and Yb-doped FAP ceramics.

### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by JST FOREST program (JPMJFR203S) and JSPS KAKENHI (21H01611).

- R. Apetz, M.P.B. Van Bruggen, Transparent alumina: a light-scattering model, J. Am. Ceram. Soc. 86 (2003) 480–486.
- H. Furuse, N. Horiuchi, B.N. Kim, Transparent non-cubic laser ceramics with fine microstructure, Sci. Rep. 9 (2019) 10300.
- H. Furuse, T. Okabe, H. Shirato, D. Kato, N. Horiuchi, K. Morita, B.-N. Kim, High optical-quality non-cubic Yb3+-doped Ca10(PO4)6F2 (Yb:FAP) laser ceramics, Opt. Mater. Exp. 11 (2021) 1756–1762.
- 4. H. Furuse, Y. Mochizuki, D. Kato, K. Morita, B.N. Kim, T. Suzuki, Strontium fluorapatite (S-FAP) nano-grained laser ceramics, Scripta Materialia 241 (2024) 115881.

# Phase diagram and single crystal growth of Li(Nb,Ta)O<sub>3</sub> solid solutions

<u>Steffen Ganschow</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Detlef Klimm<sup>1</sup>, Umar Bashir<sup>1</sup>, Markus Stypa<sup>1</sup>, Klaus Böttcher<sup>1</sup>, Matthias Bickermann<sup>1</sup>, Felix Bernhardt<sup>2</sup>, Simone Sanna<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Leibniz-Institut für Kristallzüchtung, Berlin, Germany

<sup>2</sup>Institut für Theoretische Physik, Justus-Liebig-Universität Gießen, Germany

\*E-mail: steffen.ganschow@ikz-berlin.de

Keywords: crystal growth, solid solutions, segregation, curie temperature

Lithium niobate (LiNbO<sub>3</sub>) and lithium tantalate (LiTaO<sub>3</sub>) belong to the most widely used ferroelectric materials, with applications that range from novel electronic and micro-mechanical devices to nonlinear optics. Lithium niobate-tantalate (LiTa<sub>x</sub>Nb<sub>1-x</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, LNT) solid solution single crystals are expected to allow for implementation of unique material's properties such as tailored birefringence combined with large temperature stability.

Well-characterized single crystals of sufficient size and quality are an essential prerequisite for an in-depth analysis of the material's properties and the development of new functional components with superior properties. Elaboration of a reproducible crystal growth process, in turn, calls for profound knowledge of the phase diagram of the underlying material system. For the growth of LNT crystals the relevant system is the  $Li_2O$ —Nb<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub>—Ta<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub> ternary system. However, there are good reasons to treat the junction of congruently melting LiNbO<sub>3</sub> and LiTaO<sub>3</sub> as a pseudo-binary system. This system was investigated in greater detail. Thermophysical data of the end-members and of grown solid solution samples were obtained from thermoanalytical measurements and first-principal studies, and were used to draw an improved version of the phase diagram that is now in good agreement with our crystal growth experiments.

LNT solid solution crystals were grown using the Czochralski technique. The crystals show distinct chemical inhomogeneities arising from cellular growth under constitutional supercooling conditions caused by strong component segregation during growth. Numerical model experiments were carried out to study transport of heat and mass in the involved phases. Due to large Prandtl and Schmidt numbers of the melt (for LiNbO<sub>3</sub>  $Pr \approx 37$ ,  $Sc \approx 104$ , no data known for LiTaO<sub>3</sub>) convective flow is the dominant transport mechanism in the liquid. The key to increasing interface stability is therefore the efficient removal of excess solute at the interface by the help of convection. As a result, solid solution crystals are obtained with larger regions that are nearly homogeneous in composition

### Acknowledgments

Financial support of the Deutsche Forschungsgemeinschaft under project number 426703838 in the frame of the FOR5044 research unit is greatly acknowledged.

# Fabrication of IR transparent ceramic composites using Spark-Plasma-Sintering (SPS) Processing

# Koji Morita

National Institute for Materials Science (NIMS), 1-1 Namiki, Tsukuba, Ibaraki 305-0044, Japan E-mail: MORITA.Koji@nims.go.jp

Keywords: IR, transparent, composite, SPS

Infrared (IR) light is an important wavelength band for sensing technologies because it can provide us thermal and chemical information. For realizing the sensing technologies that enable to utilize the IR wavelength, it is essential to create window materials that possess high mechanical properties enough to protect infrared sensors in addition to IR transparency. However, since the mechanical properties of the well-known IR transparent ceramics are lower, high strength IR transparent ceramics are required. In order to achieve both optical and mechanical properties simultaneously, structural design such as fine and composite microstructures is essential. Among several sintering techniques, SPS processing is known as a useful technique that enables to attain fine-grained and dense materials. In this work, therefore, the SPS technique has been employed to achieve fine grained and dense composites having excellent mechanical and optical properties. In my talk, we will report several IR transparent composite materials<sup>1,2)</sup> fabricated by the SPS technique.

# Acknowledgments

This work was supported by Innovative Science and Technology Initiative for Security Grant Number JPJ004596, ATLA, Japan.

- 1. L. Liu, K. Morita, T. S. Suzuki, B. N.Kim, J. Euro. Ceram. Soc., 41 (2021) 2096.
- 2. L. Liu, K. Morita, Scripta Mater., 205 (2021) 114205.

# Development of scintillators having nanostructure

### Masanori Koshimizu

Reserach Institute of Electronics, Shizuoka University, Hamamatsu, Japan E-mail: koshimizu.masanori@shizuoka.ac.jp

Keywords: scintillator, nanoparticle, in-vivo application

Scintillators are phposphors that emit optical photons (scintillation) upon irradiation of ionizing radiation. They are widely used for radiation detection in scintillation detectors. In addition to the application in radiation detection, scintillator particles are used in some in-vivo applications. Among them, Ce-doped GAGG ( $Gd_3Al_{5-y}Ga_yO_{12}$ ) microparticles were used as the light source in a mouse to control the behavior of the mouse via external X-ray irradiation [1], where GAGG was used as because of its high scintillation yield and high stopping power of X-rays owing to its high density. To use in a less invasive manner, nanoparticles are desirable. In addition, to be combined with various photoreceptor molecules, it is desirable that the scintillation wavelength of the nanoparticles can be changed. We have developed GAGG nanoparticle scintillators to satisfy these demands.

We synthesized GAGG nanoparticles via sol-gel method using tartaric acid according to a procedure in a previous paper [2]. Aqueous solutions containing tartaric acid and metal nitrates in a stoichiometric ratio were stirred at room temperature for 24 h and subsequently at 80°C for 2 h. After drying the solution for longer than a night, dry gel was obtained. The dry gel was calcined at different temperatures for 6 h to obtain nanoparticles.

In the case of Ce<sup>3+</sup>-doped nanoparticles, the photoluminescence (PL) excitation and emission spectra revealed that the emission at around 550 nm is derived from 5d–4f transition of Ce<sup>3+</sup> ions. The highest PL quantum yield (QY) of 91% was obtained with Ce<sup>3+</sup> concentration of 0.1 mol% relative to Ce + Gd, (Gd+Ce):Al:Ga=3:3:2, and calcination temperature of 1300°C. Based on the pulse height spectra, the scintillation light yield of as high as 13,800 photons/MeV was estimated. To achieve emission at longer wavelength, we synthesized Eu, Sm, or Pr-doped GAGG nanoparticles. Among them, in Eu-doped GAGG, luminescence bands owing to 4f–4f transition were observed, and the PL QY of 98% was achieved with Eu concentration of 5 mol% relative to Eu + Gd.

- 1. Matsubara et al., Nat. Commun. 12, 4478 (2021).
- 2. Sengar et al., J. Appl. Phys. 126, 083107 (2019).

# Temperature stability of field-induced strain in PLZST antiferroelectric ceramics

# Qiang Li\*, Yongjie Ji, Fangping Zhuo, Qingfeng Yan

Department of Chemistry, Tsinghua University, Beijing 10086, China \*E-mail: qiangli@mail.tsinghua.edu.cn

Keywords: temperature stability, antiferroelectric ceramic, field-induced phase transition, PLZST

(Pb,La)(Zr,Sn,Ti)O3 (abbreviated as PLZST) antiferroelectrics, with complex perovskite structure, could undergo various phase transitions once applied an external field, including electric field, temperature, stress, etc. The phase transitions usually involve generation/release of polarization, huge field-induced strain, as well as changes in dielectric, piezoelectric, electrocaloric and pyroelectric properties, which enable it to be promising candidates applied in high-tech energy storage capacitors, actuators, transducers and pyroelectric detectors designs. In order to understand the relationship among its composition, structure and property, effects of field-induced phase transition behaviors of PLZST AFE ceramics were systematic studied in this work.

Temperature stability of field-induced strain in AFE ceramics, with tetragonal structure, was belived as one of bottlenecks restricting its further applications. To investigate field-induced strain in PLZST, virgin and poled (Pb0.97La0.02)(Zr0.85Sn0.08Ti0.07)O3 AFE ceramics, were prepared and investigated systematically. A strain response of ~0.4 % within a temperature range (20 °C-190 °C) was achieved in as-poled (Pb0.97La0.02) (Zr0.85Sn0.08Ti0.07)O3 AFE ceramics, accompany by a fluctuation of field-induced strain within  $\pm$  5.5 %. Theoretical analysis indicated that huge strain response, as well as a higher temperature stability, was related to the preference-oriented antiferroelectric domains in asprepared PLZST AFE ceramics.

# Radio-photoluminescence characteristics of Eu-doped $KMPO_4$ (M = Mg, Ca, Sr, Ba) ceramics

Daiki Shiratori<sup>1\*</sup>, Akihiro Nishikawa<sup>2</sup>, Yutaka Fukuchi<sup>1</sup>, Takayuki Yanagida<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Electrical Engineering, Tokyo University of Science, Tokyo, Japan <sup>2</sup>Division of Materials Science, Nara Institute of Science and Technology, Nara, Japan \*E-mail: shiratori@rs.tus.ac.jp

Keywords: phosphor, dosimeter, radio-photoluminescence, radiation-induced luminescence

Currently, phosphors are used for a variety of purposes, and one of the applications is radiation dosimetry. Scintillation, thermally-stimulated luminescence (TSL), optically-stimulated luminescence (OSL), and radio-photoluminescence (RPL) are well known luminescence phenomena induced by ionizing radiation in such applications. Among them, materials exhibiting RPL are not only used for radiation dosimetry, but are also being considered for optical storage devices and high-resolution radiation imaging. RPL dosimeters have some advantages over conventional TSL and OSL dosimeters: RPL dosimeters show almost no fading and can be read repeatedly. Although RPL materials have advantages over other dosimeter materials as described, the number of materials that exhibit RPL is still limited, and there is much room for material research. Eu:K $MPO_4$  (M = Mg, Ca, Sr, Ba) can contain doped Eu luminescent centers in both the divalent and trivalent states depending on the preparation conditions. The fact suggests that Eu:K $MPO_4$  can be an RPL material potentially. In this study, we report on our investigation and evaluation of changes in RPL properties upon varying the Eu concentration of Eu:K $MPO_4$  ceramics.

Figure 1 shows the appearance of the Eu:K $MPO_4$  ceramics under UV irradiation before and after X-ray irradiation. While the unirradiated samples showed red emission, the samples after X-ray irradiation show a change in luminescence color. This result indicates that the RPL phenomenon was detected in all samples. Figure 2 shows the PL spectra of the Eu:K $MPO_4$  ceramics before and after 10 Gy of X-ray irradiation. In the M = Mg and Ca samples, the Eu<sup>2+</sup> and Eu<sup>3+</sup> emissions overlap, but in the M = Sr and Ba samples they are completely separable. The complete separation of the emission spectra before and after X-ray irradiation is an important feature for applications. In my presentation, we will report on the other RPL properties of Eu:K $MPO_4$  ceramics in detail.

# Figures



Figure 1 (Left) Photograph when irradiated with 253 nm ultraviolet light and (Right) PL spectra before and after 10 Gy of X-rays irradiation of  $Eu:KMPO_4$  ceramics.

# Innovative fibers for new light sources and original assemblies of materials

# Frédéric Smektala<sup>\*</sup>, Frédéric Désévédavy, Clément Strutynski

Laboratoire Interdisciplinaire Carnot de Bourgogne, UMR 6303 CNRS-Université de Bourgogne, Dijon, France

\*E-mail: rederic.smektala@u-bourgogne.fr

**Keywords**: infrared glasses, tellurites, chalcogenides, non linear optical fibers, supercontinuum, hybrid fibers

Light sources in the mid-infrared (IR) between 2 and 20 µm, and even toward the far-infrared above 20µm, are of great interest for molecular sensing, medical, security and defense applications [1]. The availability of broadband, coherent and high-brightness fibered sources has many advantages compared to thermal IR sources or quantum cascade lasers, and the generation of supercontinuum (SC) in engineered optical fibers pumped by femtosecond lasers is one way to reach this goal [2,3]. In these waveguides indeed, an initial high peak power laser pulse, spectrally narrow, interacts with the nonlinear medium in such ways that its spectral width expands drastically during its propagation. Over the last decade, considerable efforts have been made to push forward the results obtained with SC fibered sources in the NIR to the mid-IR [4-7]. This implies to combine a material science trajectory related with glasses compositions, their infrared transparency and optical quality with the engineering of light matter interaction in dedicated waveguides, especially to enhance the optical nonlinear interaction between an initial propagating pulse and the optical fiber in which it is propagating. We propose to describe the field through tellurite glasses and chalcogenide glasses and through the engineering of optical fibers from standard step index to tapered profiles trough microstructured ones. Since the infrared glasses of interest for nonlinear optical applications are generally low Tg glasses, new paradigms have emerged in terms of materials combinations and design of new multimaterial optical fibers. Indeed, these glasses can be combined with each other and together with different materials such as polymers or metals to give rise to new optical fibers combining different functionalities, optical, electrical, mechanical for example. We propose to give here some new insights in the field.

# Acknowledgments

This work benefited from the facilities of the SMARTLIGHT platform funded by the Agence Nationale de la Recherche (EQUIPEX+ contract "ANR-21-ESRE-0040") and Région Bourgogne Franche-Comté.

- 1. M. Ebrahim-Zadeh, I.T. Sorokina, "Mid-infrared coherent sources and applications", Springer: Dordrecht, The Netherlands, (2007).
- 2. J.M. Dudley, J.R. Taylor, "Supercontinuum generation in optical fibers", Cambridge University Press: Cambridge, UK, (2010).
- 3. J. Swiderski, "High-power mid-infrared supercontinuum sources: Current status and future perspectives", Prog. Quantum Electron. 38, 189–235 (2014).
- 4. Y. Yu et al., "Mid-infrared supercontinuum generation in chalcogenides", Opt. Mater. Express 3, 1075–1086 (2013).
- 5. C.R. Petersen et al., "Mid-infrared supercontinuum covering the 1.4–13.3 μm molecular fingerprint region using ultra-high NA chalcogenide step-index fibre", Nat. Photonics 8, 830–834 (2014).
- T. Sylvestre et al., "Recent Advances in Supercontinuum Generation in Specialty Optical Fibers", JOSA B 38, F90-F103 (2021).
- 7. A. Lemière et al., "1.7–18 μm mid-infrared supercontinuum generation in a dispersion engineered step-index chalcogenide fiber", Results in Physics 26, 104397 (2021).

# Smart growth, from combined crystal growth methods to artificial intelligence management: chemical composition control and enhancement of single crystal quality

<u>Philippe Veber</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Gabriel Buse<sup>1</sup>, Maria Poienar<sup>1</sup>, Marius Stef<sup>1</sup>, Daniel Vizman<sup>1</sup>, Natasha Dropka<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Faculty of Physics, Crystal growth laboratory, West University of Timisoara, Timisoara, Romania <sup>2</sup>Leibniz Institute for Crystal Growth, IKZ, Berlin, Germany \*E-mail: philippe.veber@e-uvt.ro

Keywords: single crystal growth, artificial intelligence, functional materials

At present time, standard and versatile techniques for growing single crystals from a high temperature liquid phase and using, for instance, the Czochralski, Bridgman or flux processes, are commonly available in worldwide laboratories and dedicated companies for obtaining a wide range of inorganic bulk crystals: oxides, halogenides and semi-conductors [1-3]. Two categories of materials are usually regarded: congruent-melting compounds, which are grown from a melt, and non-congruent-melting compounds, which are grown from a high temperature solution. However, due to intrinsic peculiarities of each technique: thermal distribution, heating medium, possible range of growth kinetics, as well as specific thermomechanical and chemical features of gaseous, liquid and solid phases, as-grown boules with the required quality can display a limited useful volume. Indeed, boules can exhibit local defects such as colour centres, dislocations, chemical vacancies, cracks, impurities or cluster inclusions, which decrease drastically the crystal performance.

On one hand, in order to improve the crystal size and quality with a low rate of defects, we present the combination of different conventional growth methods as a way to achieve the growth of targeted compounds and solid solutions with enhanced compositions, properties and quality [4-7].

On the other hand, we present a study that integrates machine learning with numerical modeling. The objective is to unravel the nonlinear relationship between crystal growth process parameters and furnace geometry on one side, and solid/liquid interface shape and v/G (growth rate over temperature gradients) on the other side. We exemplify this approach by focusing on defect-free YAG and Ge crystals [8].

Various examples of applications in the fields of optics, piezoelectricity, multiferroics and alkali-ion battery are presented [4-9].

### Acknowledgments

The authors would like to thank the European Innovation and SME Council Executive Agency (EISMA) for funding "Smart Growth" project (n°: 101115130) under the Interregional Innovation Investment (I3) Instrument.

- 1. Jackson, K. A., WILEY-VCH Verlag GmbH & Co. KGaA, Weinheim (2004).
- 2. Elwell, D., Scheel, H. J., Academic Press, London New York San Francisco (1975).
- 3. Brice, J. C., Rudolph, P., Wiley-VCH Verlag GmbH & Co. (2007).
- 4. Broux, T., Fleutot, B., David, R., Brüll, A., Veber, *et al.*, Chemistry of Materials, **30**(2), 358–365 (2018).
- 5. Veber et al., CrystEngComm, 21, 3844–3853, (2019).
- 6. Albino, M., Veber, P. et al., Eur. J. Inorg. Chem., 15, 2817–2825 (2013).
- 7. Buse, G., et al., Crystal Growth & Design, 18(10), 5874–5884 (2018).
- 8. N. Dropka et al., Crystals, 12, 1764 (2022).
- 9. [9] Bantignies, C., Rouffaud, R., Buse, G., Veber, P., *et al.*, IEEE Transactions on Ultrasonics, Ferroelectrics, and Frequency Control, **71** (1), 27–37 (2024).

# Latest advances in Li<sub>2</sub>MoO<sub>4</sub> bulk crystal growth for heat-scintillation cryogenic bolometers

### Matias Velazquez

Université Grenoble Alpes, CNRS, Grenoble INP, SIMAP, 38000 Grenoble, France \*E-mail: Matias.Velazquez@simap.grenoble-inp.fr

Keywords: crystal growth, bulk crystal, oxide, heat-scintillation cryogenic bolometer

Because of their high resolution and low detection energy thresholds, crucial experiments aimed at understanding the origin of the neutrino mass and at detecting directly dark matter require the detection of extremely rare events, such as neutrinoless double beta decay  $(2\beta 0v)$ , by double readout heat-scintillation cryogenic bolometers. In the latter case, these bolometers simultaneously generate a nuclear event and record it in the same crystal that constitutes their core. The most promising crystal to achieve this goal is lithium molybdate  $Li_2MoO_4$ . The central part of a Czochralski puller has been designed through numerical simulation in order to optimize the temperature field around the crystal [1]. Initial Li<sub>2</sub>CO<sub>3</sub> and MoO<sub>3</sub> powders have been purified by hydrogenocarbonation and by ammoniac route in aqueous solution, respectively. We are now capable of producing routinely kg-mass  $Li_2MoO_4$ single crystals with 50 to 62 mm in diameter, in different growth direction orientations, at a faster pulling rate than by the low temperature gradient Czochralski method. The crystallization mass yield reaches 81% and can still be improved. The crystals do not exhibit any twins, their dislocation densities are in the range  $0.8-1.4 \times 10^4$  cm<sup>-2</sup> for the crystals 50 mm in diameter and their radiopurities match with the expected bolometer operation specifications [2]. The dislocations in  $Li_2MoO_4$  are oriented along the [11-20]-direction and contained in the (0001) plane, corresponding to the basal glide system. In this talk, we will show how crystals with varied diameters grown in different Czochralski configurations exhibit different bolometer operations. The role of fractures will be detailed, together with scintillation properties which result in one of the highest light yield (0.97 keV/MeV, ~1300 photons/ MeV) amongst Li<sub>2</sub>MoO<sub>4</sub> scintillating bolometers, on the  $\gamma$ -rays and muons detection bands. Mechanical properties measurements reveal that Li<sub>2</sub>MoO<sub>4</sub> crystals have a low mechanical hardness which decreases when temperature increases. With new inputs from compressive tests at high temperatures, anisotropic stresses occurring during growth have been recalculated by finite element numerical simulation of heat transfer and thermo-elasticity, by means of the same modelling procedure as previously published but applied to the specific set-up configuration used for growing the crystals. The temperature, velocity and stress fields were calculated at three different solidification distances during the growth, and the calculated and measured interface deflection compared. The temperature gradient in the crystal reaches a maximum of 30 K.cm<sup>-1</sup>, which is always located close to the triple phase line. In addition to interface deflection assessments by rapid extraction experiments of the growing crystal at several solidification distances, we measured temperature versus time profiles in selected points of our set-up during the growth of the crystals and also found a good agreement between measured and calculated temperatures. The velocity field in the liquid phase displays only one counterclockwise vortex, the center of which remains in the upper part of the liquid and moves towards the triple point line as solidification proceeds. The velocity decreases

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

as solidification proceeds too, from typically  $u_{max}$ =0.015 to 0.011 m/s. All stresses in the xz section of the crystals are now below the minimum crack formation threshold ( $\sigma_{min}$ >3 MPa,  $\sigma_{max}$ <7.5 MPa at 650°C), as determined from uniaxial compressive tests, and they are the strongest at the periphery of the crystal when the shoulder is formed, and in the middle of the solidification interface at further growth stages. The fact that Li<sub>2</sub>MoO<sub>4</sub> exhibits a fragile cracking behaviour without plastic response (either by dislocation multiplication or by twin formation) is a rather uncommon feature for an ionic crystal.

- 1. C. Stelian et al., J. Cryst. Growth, 531, 125385/1-5 (2020).
- 2. A. Ahmine et al., Eur. Phys. J. C, 83(5), 373-381 (2023).

# Development of heavy single crystalline scintillators

Takayuki Yanagida<sup>\*</sup>, Daisuke Nakauchi, Takumi Kato, Noriaki Kawaguchi

Nara Institute of Science and Technology, Ikoma, Japan \*E-mail: t-yanagida@ms.naist.jp

Keywords: scintillator, single crystal, radiation detector, luminescence

Scintillators are one of the luminescent materials, and have a function to convert a quantum of ionizing radiation to thousands of low energy photons immediately via interactions between the material and ionizing radiation [1,2]. When the target of detection is high energy photons such as X- and  $\Box$ -rays, heavy materials are preferable for scintillators since the detection efficiency against high energy photons depends on density and effective atomic number. Up to now, many types of materials have been examined for scintillators, such as single crystal, glass, and opaque and transparent ceramic [2]. Among them, bulk single crystal scintillators have been used owing to a superior optical quality including high transmittance and luminescence efficiency.

In the conference, some recent results of development of heavy scintillators mainly containing Lu, Hf, Ta and Tl are introduced. These materials were synthesized by some single crystal growth techniques such as the floating zone and bridgeman method. After the synthesis, they were examined on optical (photoluminescence excitation and emission spectra and decay curve) and scintillation (radioluminescence spectrum, decay curve, afterglow and pulse height) properties. In Lu-based crystals, rare earth doped Lu<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> crystals are introduced, and especially, Tb-doped one shows a high scintillation light yield. In Hf-based ones, some results of rare earth doped AEHfO<sub>3</sub> (AE = alkali earth) crystals are presented, and Ce-doped (Mg,Ca)HfO<sub>3</sub> shows a high scintillation light yield [3]. Among Ta-based crystals, Mg<sub>4</sub>(Nb,Ta)<sub>2</sub>O<sub>9</sub> crystals have a high light yield due to charge transfer luminescence of Ta/Nb and O [4]. In Tl-based crystalline compounds, TlMgCl<sub>3</sub> shows a high light yield and energy resolution [5]. In the conference, these results will be introduced.

# Acknowledgments

This work was supported by MEXT Grant-in-Aid for Scientific Research A (22H00309), Scientific Research B (21H03733, 21H03736, and 22H03872), and Exploratory Research (22K18997), and Cooperative Research Project of Research Center for Biomedical Engineering.

- 1. T. Yanagida, Proc. Jpn. Acad., Ser. B, Phys. Biol. Sci., 94(2) 75 (2018).
- 2. T. Yanagida, T. Kato, D. Nakauchi, N. Kawaguchi, Jpn. J. Appl. Phys., 62 010508 (2023).
- H. Fukushima, D. Nakauchi, T. Kato, N. Kawaguchi, T. Yanagida, Jpn. J. Appl. Phys., 62 010506 (2023).
- T. Hayashi, K. Ichiba, D. Nakauchi, K. Watanabe, T. Kato, N. Kawaguchi, T. Yanagida, J. Lumin., 255 119614 (2023).
- Y. Fujimoto, M. Koshimizu, T. Yanagida, G. Okada, K. Saeki, K. Asai, Jpn. J. Appl. Phys., 55 090301 (2016).

# Tb-doped fluoride visible laser with kW peak power operation

# Ryo Yasuhara

National Institute for Fusion Science, Toki, Japan E-mail: yasuhara@nifs.ac.jp

Keywords: visible laesr, blue laser diode, high peak power laser, laser procesing

Utilizing Terbium (Tb)-doped materials as a laser amplification medium in the visible spectrum for high pulse energy achievements shows great promise. Nevertheless the initial demonstration of Tb lasers in 1967, there has been a notable scarcity of research in this area[1,2]. There has been reactivated by two key developments: Yamashita et al.'s 2007 demonstration of continuous-wave oscillation in a Tb-doped ZBLAN fiber laser[3], and, a decade later, the demonstration of a Tb-doped fluoride single-crystal by Kränkel's group[4]. Building on these findings, our team has now achieved the first Q-switched oscillation of a Tb laser[5]. Achieving this feat required nearly five decades, a testament to the progress made in Tb-doped laser gain media and the innovation of excitation light sources around 488 nm, like optically pumped semiconductor lasers or blue laser diodes[6].

Tb-doped YLF has a very long fluorescence lifetime of 4.9 ms and a high energy storage capacity. A semiconductor laser with a pumping wavelength of 488 nm can be used, and by using Tb-doped YLF, a green laser beam (544 nm) with high peak power can be generated without using nonlinear optical effects. This is very promising as a laser light source for metal processing such as copper. In this presentation, the historical background, the latest research status, and the direction of material development will be reported.

- S. Bjorklund, G. Kellermeyer, C. R. Hurt, N. McAvoy, and N. Filipescu, "Laser action from terbium trifluoroacetylacetonate in p-dioxane and acetonitrile at room temperature," Appl. Phys. Lett. 10(5), 160–162 (1967).
- H. Jenssen, D. Castleberry, D. Gabbe, and A. Linz, "Stimulated emission at 5445 Å in Tb3+:YLF," IEEE J. Quantum Elec. 9, 665 (1973).
- 3. T. Yamashita and Y. Ohishi, "Amplification and lasing characteristics of Tb3+-doped fluoride fiber in the 0.54 ??m band," Japanese J. Appl. Physics, Part 2 Lett. 46(41–44), 991–993 (2007).
- P. W. Metz, D. Marzahl, A. Majid, C. Kränkel, and G. Huber, "High power continuous wave visible Tb 3 + : LiLuF 4 laser," 8–10 (2015).
- H. Chen, W. Yao, H. Uehara, and R. Yasuhara, "Graphene Q-switched Tb:LiYF 4 green laser," Opt. Lett. 45(9), 2596 (2020).
- I. E. Castellano-Hernández, S. Kalusniak, P. W. Metz, and C. Kränkel, "Diode-Pumped Laser Operation of Tb3+:LiLuF4 in the Green and Yellow Spectral Range," Laser Photonics Rev. 14(2), 1–7 (2020).

# Octahedral molybdenum cluster complex-graphene oxide nanosheet nanocomposite material for enhanced photoinactivation of bacteria

Yoshiyuki Sugahara<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Régis Guégan<sup>3</sup>, Kaplan Kirakci<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>School of Science and Engineering, Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan

<sup>2</sup>Kagami Memorial Research Institute for Materials Science and Technology, Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan

<sup>3</sup>ICMN-UMR 7374, CNRS-Université d'Orléans, Orléans, France

<sup>4</sup>Institute of Inorganic Chemistry of the Czech Academy of Sciences, Husinec-Rez, Czech Republic \*E-mail: ys6546@waseda.jp

Keywords: octahedral molybdenum cluster complex, graphene oxide, hybrid, photoinactivation

The effective photoinactivation of bacteria, *Staphylococcus aureus*, was achieved by using octahedral molybdenum cluster complex, [Mo<sub>6</sub>I<sub>8</sub>(OCOC<sub>4</sub>H<sub>8</sub>PPh<sub>3</sub>)<sub>6</sub>]Br<sub>4</sub> (Mo<sub>6</sub>), synthesized from molybdenum, iodine, sodium methanolate, and (4-carboxybutyl)triphenylphosphonium bromide, [1] and graphene oxide (GO), which was prepared by the treatment of graphite with a mixture of sulfuric acid and sodium nitrate, and subsequently with a potassium permanganate solution. [2] The preparation of the  $GO/Mo_6$  nanocomposite was achieved by simply mixing a dimethyl sulfoxide (DMSO) dispersion of  $Mo_6$  and a DMSO solution of GO, subsequent stirring, and addition of aliquot of the mixture to deionized water.[3] High-angle annular dark field (HAADF) imaging of scanning transmission electron microscopy of the product showed that the GO nanosheets were decorated with Mo<sub>6</sub> nanoaggregates. Since the zeta potentials of the aqueous dispersion of GO and that of Mo<sub>6</sub> were  $-34 \pm 13$  and  $8 \pm 6$  mV, respectively, it is reasonable to assume that electrostatic interaction between GO and  $Mo_6$ was present in aqueous medium, leading to the decoration of GO nanosheet surface with  $Mo_6$  nanoaggregates. The photoluminescent behavior of the aqueous solution of the  $GO/Mo_6$ nanocomposite was different from that of pure Mo<sub>6</sub>. The luminescence intensity of Mo<sub>6</sub> was decreased drastically after nanocomposite formation, indicating that the interaction between GO nanosheet surface and Mo<sub>6</sub> nanoaggregates led to the quenching of the luminescence. The quenching of the triplet state of Mo<sub>6</sub> by oxygen was suppressed after composite formation, suggesting that the electron transfer from Mo<sub>6</sub> to GO was likely to occur. The photoinactivation of Staphylococcus aureus was evaluated by irradiating the 460 nm light to the cultures of *Staphylococcus aureus* incubated as planktonic cells. While the culture with  $Mo_6$ showed mild photoinactivation behavior, the addition of the GO/Mo<sub>6</sub> nanocomposite resulted in drastic photoinactivation behavior.

# Acknowledgments

This research work was supported by the Czech Science Foundation (21-16084J) and the Japan Society for Promotion of Science Kakenhi (20K03887).

# References

- 1. K. Kirakci et al., Biomater. Sci. 2019, 7, 1386.
- 2. W. S Hummers, et al., J. Am. Chem. Soc., 1958, 80, 1339.
- 3. R. Guégan et al., Inorg. Chem., 2023, 62, 14243.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

# T4.6 MULTIFUNCTIONAL COATINGS FOR ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL APPLICATIONS

# Room-temperature ceramic coating: Current status of understanding RTIC phenomenon in AD method and future prospects for application development

### Jun Akedo\*, Yasuhito Matsubayashi, Taku Goto

National Institute of Advanced Industrial Science & Technology (AIST), Tsukuba science city, Japan \*E-mail: akedo-j@aist.go.jp

Keywords: aerosol deposition, ceramic coating, RTIC phenomenon, thick film, room temperature

Dense and highly adhesive lamination of functional ceramic materials is the key to the realization of electronic devices, energy, and environment-related devices. Aerosol Deposition (AD) method[1]-[4] is a unique approach for metal and ceramic coating, where solid state submicron metal and ceramics particles are accelerated by gas flow up to 100 - 500 m/s and then impacted onto a substrate. AIST found interesting consolidation phenomenon of ceramic particles in this method over 20 years ago. During collision of fine particles and interaction with substrate, these ceramic particles, not only for oxide materials but also for non-oxide materials, formed thick, dense and hard ceramic layers at room temperature. No additional heating for solidification of ceramic powder was required. The room-temperature impact consolidation phenomenon (RTIC) of ceramic particles (a phenomenon in which ceramic particles solidify at room temperature without sintering), which was clarified by research on the aerosol deposition method, is characterized not only by the fact that it is a roomtemperature process, but also by the fact that it is denser than the conventional thermal spraying method. It has a very important meaning as a principle for obtaining a ceramic coating with high adhesion. Until now, the densification mechanism of ceramic coatings by the AD method has been explained by the fragmentation and the plastic deformation of colliding fine particles. However, there are many unclear points about the mechanism of plastic deformation and interparticle bonding of ceramic fine particles at room temperature.

In this lecture, we will discuss the current state of understanding of the principles of the AD method and the future prospects for its application, based on reports on the elucidation of the mechanism of the AD method which has recently begun to be studied in various fields.

- 1. J. Akedo and M. Lebedev, Jpn. J. Appl. Phys., vol.38-9B [] pp.5297-5401 (1999).
- 2. J. Akedo, J. Am. Ceram. Soc., 89, 1834-1839 (2006).
- 3. J. Akedo, J-H. Park1, and Y. Kawakami, Jpn. J. Appl. Phys., vol.57, 07LA02 (2018).
- 4. J. Akedo, J. Ceram. Soc. Jpn., 128 (3), 101-116 (2020).
- 5. D. Hanft, J. Exner, M. Schubert, T. Stöcker, P. Fuierer, R. Moos, J. Ceram. Sci. Technol. (2015), 10.4416/JCST2015-00018.

# Thin-film ceramics for energy applications

# Per Eklund

Department of Chemistry – Ångström, Uppsala University, SE-751 21 Uppsala, Sweden E-mail per.eklund@kemi.uu.se

Keywords: thermoelectrics, nitrides, physical vapor deposition, thermal conductivity

Thermoelectric devices have the potential to contribute to energy harvesting in society by directly converting heat into electricity or vice versa. However, the conversion efficiency of thermoelectric devices of today is limited. In this lecture, I present an overview of our work on multicomponent CrN-, ScN-, and Ca<sub>3</sub>Co<sub>4</sub>O<sub>9</sub>-based thin films. We have developed methodology for highly textured as well as nanoporous virtually phase-pure Ca<sub>3</sub>Co<sub>4</sub>O<sub>9</sub> thin films. These can further be deposited on flexible mica substrates, enabling flexible inorganic thermoelectric thin films that withstand repeated bending. They can also be made as free-standing films and as nanoporous materials for reduced thermal conductivity. ScN thin films exhibit an anomalously high power factor ( $S_2/\rho$ ) for transition metal nitrides, but has high thermal conductivity, thus its *ZT* is low (~0.2). To reduce lattice thermal conductivity, potential strategies are nanostructuring, alloying or nanoinclusion formation. Pure CrN exhibits n-type conduction with a high power-factor enabled by a high electron concentration thermally activated from N vacancies, and alloys can be made of rocksalt-Cr<sub>1-x</sub>Sc<sub>x</sub>N. Multicomponent alloying of ScN and CrN in alloys such as CrMoVWN or combinations thereof offer further possibilities for tailoring the thermoelectric properties and growth conditions.

# Cr-rich spinel phase formation in alumina dispersed 316L stainless steel processed by spark plasma sintering

Zsolt Czigány<sup>1\*</sup>, Haroune Rachid Ben Zine<sup>1,2</sup>, Katalin Balázsi<sup>1</sup>, Csaba Balázsi<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Technical Physics and Materials Science, HUN-REN Center for Energy Research, Budapest, Hungary

<sup>2</sup>Faculty of Sciences and Technology, Mohamed Khider University, Biskra, Algeria \*E-mail: czigany.zsolt@ek.hun-ren.hu

**Keywords**: Cr-rich spinel, spark plasma sintering, oxide dispersion strengthened steel, ceramics, alumina

Oxide dispersion strengthened (ODS) 316L stainless steel alloys with two different compositions of 0.33 wt% Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> and 1wt% Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> were prepared by attrition milling and spark plasma sintering (SPS) process [1]. SPS is an effective and ecomomic alternative of hot isostatic pressing providing benefits, like rapid heating, limitation of grain growth, and efficient densification kinetics. The mechanical properties of 0.33 wt% Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> composite were better (e.g. higher bending strength) due to more uniform distribution of alumina at the grain boundaries. Formation of the spinel phase was observed by TEM. The spinel phase had dominantly  $Cr_2AlO_4$  composition and was surrounded by an amorphous silica phase. The presence of silica implies the analogy with geological formation of spinels in mafic or ultramafic rocks with low oxygen fugacity and presence of silica phase [2]. The conditions that may occur during SPS can be similar to those of geological spinel formation, especially taking into account the possible formation of "melt pockets" between the steel grains, where the local temperature and pressure can be temporally higher than the nominal process temperature. Cr and Si, necessary for the phase transformation, may segregate from the stainless steel alloy at SPS conditions. The lattice parameter of the spinel phase is 8.36Å independent of the local composition variation. The lattice parameter of the spinel phase is close to the high end among chromite related spinels [3] which implies that octahedral sites of spinel structure are mainly occupied by  $Cr^{3+}$  or possibly  $Fe^{3+}$  cations.

### Acknowledgement

This research was supported by the grant no. VEKOP-2.3.3-15-2016-00002 of the European Structural and Investment Funds. BEN ZINE Haroune Rachid would like to thank the young researchers (FIKU) funding for support. Thanks to Dr. Filiz Cinar Sahin for sintering experiments.

- Cs. Balázsi, F. Gillemot, M. Horváth, F. Wéber, K. Balázsi, F. Cinar Sahin, Y. Onüralp, and Á. Horváth, Preparation and structural investigation of nanostructured oxide dispersed strengthened steels. J Mater Sci 46 (2011) 4598–4605.
- S.J. Barnes, P.L. Roeder, The range of Spinel Compositions in terrestrial Mafic and Ultramafic Rocks Journal of Petrology 42 (2001) 2279-2302.
- Davide Lenaz and Henrik Skogby, Structural changes in the FeAl<sub>2</sub>O<sub>4</sub>–FeCr<sub>2</sub>O<sub>4</sub> solid solution series and their consequences on natural Cr-bearing spinels, Phys Chem Minerals 40 (2013) 587–595.

# T4.7 MATERIALS FOR EXTREME ENVIRONMENTS: ULTRAHIGH TEMPERATURE CERAMICS (UHTCS) AND NANO-LAMINATED TERNARY CARBIDES AND NITRIDES (MAX PHASES) APPLICATIONS

# Effect of multiple cations on the microstructure, properties and ablation behavior of ultra-high-temperature ceramics

Laura Silvestroni<sup>1\*</sup>, Jeremy Watts<sup>2</sup>, William Fahrenholtz<sup>2</sup>, Stefano Mungiguerra<sup>3</sup>, Anselmo Cecere<sup>3</sup>, Raffaele Savino<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>CNR-ISSMC, Via Granarolo 64, 48018 Faenza, Italy

<sup>2</sup>Missouri University of Science and Technology, 222 McNutt Hall, Rolla, MO 65409, USA <sup>3</sup>University of Naples Federico II, Dep. of Industrial Engineering, Piazzale Tecchio 80, 80125 Naples, Italy

\*E-mail: laura.silvestroni@cnr.it

Keywords: type your, keywords here, separated, by commas

Multi-phase ceramics based on  $ZrB_2$ -SiC and doped with  $TiB_2$  and either Cr, Nb or V are prepared by powder metallurgy and hot pressing to obtain a multi-scale microstructure comprising a boride matrix displaying the core-shell feature where nano-inclusions could precipitate from the super-saturated solid solution.

 $TiB_2$  completely dissolved in  $ZrB_2$  in presence of Nb forming a homogeneous multi-phase (Zr,Ti,Nb)B<sub>2</sub> solid solution, whereas it remained a discrete phase when combined to Cr or V resulting into a dual microstructure with core-shell morphology.

Microstructure details are then correlated to the mechanical properties at elevated temperatures up to 1600°C and to the ablation behavior upon exposure to subsequent supersonichypersonic flows that reached Mach number in the 3-5 range, achieving surface temperatures over 2300°C.



Microstructure of multi-phase solid solution based on  $(Zr,Ti,Cr)B_2$ , bending strength at various temperatures and aspect change of a model based  $(Zr,Ti,V)B_2$  on upon ablation in Hypersonic and Supersonic regimes.

### Acknowledgments

This research was partially sponsored by the NATO Science for Peace and Security Programme under grant MYP-G5767 (SUSPENCE) and by the US AFOSR through the grant no. FA9550-21-1-0399 (NACREOUS).

- L. Silvestroni, N. Gilli, A. Sangiorgi, A. Corozzi, S. Filipovic, N. Obradović, L. Ortiz-Membrado, E. Jiménez-Piqué, W.G. Fahrenholtz, "Multi-phase (Zr,Ti,Cr)B2 solid solutions: preparation, multiscale microstructure and local properties", Journal of Advanced Ceramics 12 [2] (2023) 414-431.
- L. Silvestroni, L.M. Rueschhoff, K.A. Acord, R. Castro, C. Powell, "Synthesis of far-from-equilibrium materials for extreme environments", MRS Bulletin, 47 Nov (2022) 1143-1153.
- 3. N. Gilli, J. Watts, W.G. Fahrenholtz, D. Sciti, L. Silvestroni\*, "Design of ultra-high temperature ceramic nano-composites from multi-scale length microstructure approach", Composites B 226 (2021) 109344.

# T4.8 Design, Processing, and Applications of Nanolaminated Ternary Transition Metal Carbides/Nitrides/Borides and MXenes and Mbenes

# Replenishing the limited Al-reservoir of Cr<sub>2</sub>AlC MAX phase coatings in oxidizing environments

### Clio Azina

Chair of Materials Chemistry, RWTH Aachen University, Aachen, Germany E-mail: azina@mch.rwth-aachen.de

### Keywords: MAX phases, oxidation, diffusion

 $Cr_2AlC$  MAX phases has often been at the center of several investigations because of it exhibits a very good oxidation resistance at high temperatures. However, long oxidation durations often lead to the failure of the MAX phase. The oxidation of  $Cr_2AlC$  is first characterized by the outward diffusion of Al species which react with the oxidizing environment and form an oxide scale at the surface of the MAX phase. As Al species continue to diffuse the MAX phase becomes depleted in Al, which results its decomposition into Cr-carbides. The presence of these carbides is then typically accompanied by pore formation and ultimately the failure of the MAX phase part. To avoid the failure of the component, suppressing, or at least, delaying the formation of Cr-carbides by forming a highly protective oxide scale is very important. However, the formation of the oxide scale will depend on many parameters including the roughness and texture of the MAX phase, but also the temperature and humidity levels of the oxidizing environments. Therefore, to avoid MAX phase decomposition, the concept of an Al-reservoir able to continuously supply a MAX phase coating with Al upon oxidation is suggested.

Fine and coarse-grained  $Cr_2AIC$  MAX phase reservoirs were designed and produced using spark plasma sintering (SPS). Coarse grained MAX phases were obtained by sintering pre-made  $Cr_2AIC$  powders, while fine microstructures were obtained by reactive sintering of elemental Cr, Al and submicron carbon black powders. The reservoirs were then used as substrates for  $Cr_2AIC$  coatings processed by high-power pulsed magnetron sputtering (HPPMS). The MAX/MAX assemblies were then oxidized in air at 1100 °C, in an open furnace. The oxide scale thickness of each assembly was measured along with the Al content left in the MAX phase coatings. Al replenishment was observed in the case of the fine-grained reservoir as the Al content present in the coating, after oxidation, was larger than that measured in the coating deposited on the coarse-grained substrate and on an Al-free substrate (MgO), for which no Al replenishment is expected. The mechanisms that come into play were related to the original microstructure of the reservoirs but also to the changes that they go through during oxidation. Finally, to showcase the element supply that occurs from the substrate to the coating, a different MAX phase substrate was used,  $Cr_2GeC$ , to track the possible replenishement with more ease.

# Improving the ab-initio prediction accuracy for the elastic and mechnaical properties of MAB and MAX borides

<u>Yuelei Bai</u><sup>\*</sup>, Xinxin Qi, Kebin Qin, Zhiyao Lu, Yucheng Zhang, Guangping Song, Yongting Zheng, Xiaodong He

National Key Laboratory of Science and Technology on Advanced Composites in Special Environments and Center for Composite Materials and Structure, Harbin Institute of Technology, Harbin 150080, China \*E-mail: baiyl@hit.edu.cn

Keywords: MAB phases, elastic moduli, damage tolerance, thernal expansion, first principles

The MAB phases [1] and recently-discovered S-group elements containing MAX borides [2] have attracted much attention becasue of the unque combnation of ceramic- and metal-like proerties, and promissing structural and functional applications. After examining the intrinsic and thermodynamic stability, some practical approches are proposed in the present work to more accurately predict their elastic and mechanical properties.

By calculating the lattice constants and elastic moduli of MoAlB,  $Fe_2AlB_2$  and  $Mn_2AlB_2$ using typical exchange-correlation functionals, the observed positive correlation between the calculation errors of elastic moduli and those of cell volumes suggests a method to significantly improve the calculation accuracy for elastic moduli using the experimental cell volume to correct the input model (volume correction method), resulting in satisfactory results. Furthermore, a two-step strategy is proposed for the precise high-temperature elastic moduli with the help of quasi-harmonic approximation for the most accurate high-temperature cell volume using an exchange-correlation functional in the first step, and another one used in the volume correction method in the second step.

Using the "bond stiffness" model as well as the associated criterion for damage tolerance and fracture toughness, the strongest covalent bonding is formed between B and M/B atoms while the weakest bonding is formed between M/B and A atoms. For most Al-containing MAB phases except 512-type, the ratio of bond stiffness of weakest M-Al or Al-Al bonds to the strongest M-B bonds ( $k_{\min}/k_{\max}$ ) falls into the range of 1/3-1/2, indicating their high damage tolerance. But this is not true for the Si-containing ones, with the  $k_{\min}/k_{\max}$  greater than 1/2 and strong M-Si bonds. Moreover, the ratio of bond stiffness of weakest M-S to the strongest M-X bonds (kmin/kmax) over 1/2 indicates the intrinsic brittleness of all S-containing MAX phases except Nb<sub>4</sub>SC<sub>3</sub>. Of much interest, the experimental fracture toughness of the MAX and MAB phases decreases with increasing the  $k_{\min}/k_{\max}$ .



Figure 1 Experimentally measured fracture toughness by single edge notched beam (SENB) as a function of theoretically calculated  $k_{min}/k_{max}$  of some selected ternary layered compounds [1]

- X.X. Qi, X.D. He, W.L. Yin, G.P. Song, Y.T. Zheng, Y.L. Bai, Stability trend, weak bonding, and magnetic properties of the Al- and Si-containing ternary-layered borides MAB phases, J. Am. Ceram. Soc. 106(2) (2023) 1513–1530.
- Z.Y. Lu, X.D. He, H. Yin, J.Z. Zhang, G.P. Song, Y.T. Zheng, Y.L. Bai, Theoretical screening, intrinsic brittleness and thermal properties of the S-containing MAX carbides and borides, Journal Of Materiomics 9(6) (2023) 1056–1066.

# Synthesis science of MAX phases: A chemist's journey to new functional ceramics

<u>Christina S. Birkel</u><sup>1,2\*</sup>, Niels Kubitza<sup>2</sup>, Jordan Sinclair<sup>1</sup>, Rose Snyder<sup>1</sup>, Arya Loloee<sup>1</sup>, Suneet Kale<sup>1</sup>, Isabel Huck<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>School of Molecular Sciences, Arizona State University, Tempe, AZ, USA <sup>2</sup>Department of Chemistry and Biochemistry, Technische Universität Darmstadt, Darmstadt, Germany \*E-mail: christina.birkel@asu.edu

**Keywords**: synthesis science, layered solids, carbides, nitrides, carbonitrides, 2D materials, Mxenes, structure, morphology, solid-solutions

MAX phases are a chemically versatile family of materials that exhibit very interesting properties combining characteristics of metals and ceramics. They are ternary transition metalbased carbides, nitrides and carbonitrides, that typically crystallize in a hexagonal structure with alternating layers of  $M_6X$  octahedra (M = early-to-mid transition metals, X = C and/or N) and the A-element (A = main group element or late transition metal). According to the general chemical formula  $M_{n+1}AX_n$  (n = 1, 2, 3), "211", "312" and "413" MAX phases possess n (1, 2, 3)  $M_6X$  layers (2, 3 and 4 M-layers) between the A-layers, respectively. Historically the interest in MAX phases has been related to their intriguing mechanical properties including high-temperature and corrosion resistance and metal-like conductivity, and they are therefore not typically discussed as functional materials. In a different setting, they serve as bulk precursors for a relatively young class of 2D materials, the MXenes that can be synthesized from MAX phases by means of chemical etching.

In this talk, I will discuss our group's efforts to synthesize new versions of MAX phases and MXenes in terms of their chemical composition and morphology. The structure of the compounds is analyzed in detail by different diffraction techniques and electron microscopy. Additional spectroscopy techniques allow insights into the chemistry of intermediate species and the final products. The functional properties of the new types of materials include magnetic and electronic properties as well as electrocatalytic performance.

# Acknowledgments

This material is based upon work supported by the National Science Foundation under Grant No. 2143982. This work has been supported by the Deutsche Forschungsgemeinschaft (DFG, German Research Foundation) within CRC/TRR 270 (Project-ID 405553726).

# Predicting the optimal synthesis conditions and modelling the structual and electrochemical properties of MXenes

# Nuala M. Caffrey

School of Physics, University College Dublin, Ireland E-mail: nuala.caffrey@ucd.ie

Keywords: computational modelling, MXenes, stability, energy storage, electron-phonon coupling

MXenes have shown great promise for use in a multitude of applications, and in particular in emerging electrochemical energy storage devices, including batteries and supercapacitors. It is well known that MXene surfaces are terminated by mixed –O, –F and –OH functional groups as a result of the chemical etching production process and these functional groups are randomly distributed over the surfaces, with limited experimental control over their composition. However, theoretical simulations typically assume uniformly terminated surfaces in order to minimize computational cost. As a result, there is limited understanding of the influence of realistic surface terminations on many structural, electronic and electrochemical properties. In this talk, I will discuss how first principles calculations can eludidate the effect of the termination groups on the structural, electronic and electrochemical properties of several common MXenes, focussing in particular on how it affects their storage capacity for future post-Li ion batteries.

I will also discuss how we can calculate the optimal conditions necessary for the chemical etching of o-MXenes – a family of layered double-transition-metal carbides and nitrides with a unique out-of-plane ordering of the two metal atoms. Their chemical versatility means they have novel applications in energy storage, catalysis, and sensing devices. I will show how Pourbaix diagrams produced from first-principles calculations can be used to determine the conditions necessary to enhance the yields of o-MXenes and will discuss how the stability of the o-MXene depends on the nature of the terminating groups.

# Figures



Predicting the optimal synthesis conditions for the formation of o-MXenes.

# References

- 1. N. M. Caffrey, J. Phys. Chem. C 2020, 124, 34, 18797.
- 2. N. M. Caffrey Nanoscale, 2018, 10, 13520.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

# Radiation-induced swelling in MAX phase-based ceramics for select applications in advanced nuclear systems

Konstantina Lambrinou<sup>1\*</sup>, T. Lapauw<sup>2</sup>, B. Tunca<sup>2</sup>, N. Goossens<sup>2</sup>, K. Van Loo<sup>2</sup>, S. Huang<sup>2</sup>, J. Vleugels<sup>2</sup>, J.A. Hinks<sup>1</sup>, P.O.Å. Persson<sup>3</sup>

 <sup>1</sup>School of Computing and Engineering, University of Huddersfield, Huddersfield HD1 3DH, UK
 <sup>2</sup>Department of Materials Engineering, KU Leuven, 3001 Heverlee, Belgium
 <sup>3</sup>Thin Film Physics, Department of Physics, Chemistry and Biology, Linköping University, SE-581 83 Linköping, Sweden

\*E-mail: k.lambrinou@hud.ac.uk

Keywords: MAX phase solid solutions, radiation-induced swelling, in-situ ion irradiation in the TEM

The nanolaminated solids referred to as the MAX phases are described by the  $M_{n+1}AX_n$  general stoichiometry, where M is an early transition metal, A is an A-group element (mainly, from groups 13-15 in the periodic table of elements), X is C or N, and n = 1, 2 or 3. Their hexagonal crystal structure (P6,/mmc, space group 194) leads to anisotropic swelling under irradiation, whereupon the unit cell expands along the *c*-axis and contracts along the *a*-axis. Moreover, phase-impure MAX phase ceramics are susceptible to failure by radiation-induced differential swelling (Fig. 1). This work addresses the swelling behavior of MAX phase-based ceramics for specific nuclear applications, e.g., pump impellers for Gen-IV lead-cooled fast reactors (LFRs) or accident-tolerant fuel (ATF) claddings for Gen-II/III light water reactors (LWRs). The evolution of radiation swelling in ternary (Zr,AlC, Ti,AlC, Cr,AlC, etc.) MAX phases and higher-order solid solutions was monitored in-situ in the transmission electron microscope (TEM) by means of helium ion implantation (6 keV He<sup>+</sup>, flux: 10<sup>14</sup> ions/cm<sup>2</sup>·s) in the 350-800°C range to a maximum damage dose of 10 dpa [1]. The two main approaches used to control radiation swelling in MAX phase ceramics strive for high phase purity and/ or strong textures. The former can be achieved in compositionally tailored solid solutions synthesized with early transition metal hydride starting powders. As opposed to pure metals, the milling of metal hydrides into fine particles is easier as they fracture in a brittle manner; moreover, milling metal hydride powders is not accompanied by excessive powder oxidation similar to that observed for elemental powders, since the hydrides decompose into their respective metals, producing (in situ) powders with highly reactive metal surfaces, while simultaneously releasing hydrogen  $(H_2)$  that limits powder oxidation. The use of early transition metal hydride powders has so far enabled the synthesis of previously "impossible" to produce MAX phase compounds in the (Zr,Hf)-Al-C system.



**Fig. 1.** Evidence of differential swelling in a  $Cr_2AlC$ -based ceramic irradiated to 7.5 dpa at 600°C with 6 keV He<sup>+</sup>: small equiaxed He bubbles in the  $Cr_2AlC$  MAX phase, large equiaxed He bubbles in the Cr-Al binary intermetallic (IMC), and very small equiaxed He bubbles (followed by microcracking) in the  $Cr_7C_3$  binary carbide.

### Acknowledgments

This research has been partly funded by the Euratom research and training programme 2014–2018 under Grant Agreement No. 740415 (H2020 IL TROVATORE).

# References

B. Tunca, G. Greaves, J.A. Hinks, P.O.Å. Persson, J. Vleugels, K. Lambrinou, In situ He<sup>+</sup> irradiation of the double solid solution ( $Ti_{0.5}$ , $Zr_{0.5}$ )<sub>2</sub>( $Al_{0.5}$ , $Sn_{0.5}$ )C MAX phase: Defect evolution in the 350-800°C temperature range, Acta Materialia **206** (2021) 116606
## Formation and properties of MAB phase thin films

Peter J. Pöllmann<sup>1</sup>, S. Salman<sup>1</sup>, D. Bogdanovski<sup>1</sup>, S. Lellig<sup>1,2</sup>, P. Schweizer<sup>2</sup>, M. Hans<sup>1</sup>, C. Azina<sup>1</sup>, S. Karimi Aghda<sup>1</sup>, P. Zöll<sup>1</sup>, D. M. Holzapfel<sup>1</sup>, D. Primetzhofer<sup>3</sup>, S. Kolozsvári<sup>4</sup>, P. Polcik<sup>4</sup>, J. Michler<sup>2</sup>, R. Sahu<sup>1,5</sup>, C. Scheu<sup>5</sup>, and <u>Jochen M. Schneider<sup>1,5\*</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>Materials Chemistry, RWTH Aachen University, Aachen, Germany
 <sup>2</sup>Empa, Swiss Federal Laboratories for Materials Science and Technology, Laboratory for Mechanics of Materials and Nanostructures, Thun, Switzerland
 <sup>3</sup>Department of Physics and Astronomy, Uppsala University, Uppsala, Sweden
 <sup>4</sup>Plansee Composite Materials GmbH, Lechbruck am See, Germany
 <sup>5</sup>Max-Planck-Institut für Eisenforschung GmbH, Department Structure and Nano-/Micromechanics of Materials, Düsseldorf, Germany
 \*E-mail: schneider@mch.rwth-aachen.de

Keywords: MAB phase, density functional theory, magnetron sputtering, phase formation, thin film

A  $(Mo_{0.24}Cr_{0.76})_{0.40}Al_{0.32}B_{0.28}$  thin film was deposited by direct current magnetron sputtering at 600 °C substrate temperature. Analysis by X-ray diffraction, energy-dispersive X-ray spectroscopy, elastic recoil detection analysis, and high-resolution scanning transmission electron microscopy revealed the formation of the previously unreported  $(Mo,Cr)_2AlB_2$  MAB phase, along with Cr<sub>3</sub>AlB<sub>4</sub>, CrB<sub>4</sub>, and Mo, in good agreement with density functional theory (DFT) calculations. Hence, the MAB phase family in the Mo-Cr-Al-B system is extended by a novel, quaternary member. Furthermore, using spatially resolved composition and structure analysis the thermal stability of Mo-Al-B and Cr-Al-B based thin films is investigated.

## **Radiation effects in MAX phases**

### Hao Xiao\*, Chenxu Wang, Shuang Zhao

State Key Laboratory of Nuclear Physics and Technology, Center for Applied Physics and Technology, Peking University, Beijing 100871, China \*E-mail: xiaohao@stu.pku.edu.cn

Keywords: MAX phases, irradiation effects, phase transformations, resistance to amorphization, high entropy

MAX phase materials exhibit both metal and ceramic properties due to their unique laminated atomic structures, making them promising candidates in advanced nuclear energy systems. It is very important to understand the response of MAX relative to irradiation. In our work, an order-to-disorder phase transformation and the formation of metastable solid solution phases were observed using high-resolution STEM HADDF, ABF imaging, and X-ray diffraction under ion irradiation [1]. Combining *ab initio* molecular dynamics simulations and first-principles calculation, it is found that the phase stability of different MAX phases under irradiation is influenced by the degree of lattice distortion of the solid solution metastable phases. More recently, high entropy MAX (HE-MAX) phases have been developed and attracted much attention due to their unique properties. The mechanism of the irradiationinduced structural evolution and the point defect properties of two series of HE-MAX phases, M,SnC (M = Ti, V, Nb, Zr, Hf) and (Ti, M),AlC (M=Nb, Ta, V, Zr) are investigated [2,3]. It is found that the elemental species, instead of the number plays a more crucial role in the irradiation tolerance of MAX phases. This work provides a comprehensive understanding of structural evolution in MAX phases and proposes a new strategy for designing novel MAX phases with better performance under an irradiation environment.

### References

- C. Wang, T. Yang, C.L. Tracy, C. Lu, H. Zhang, Y.-J. Hu, L. Wang, L. Qi, L. Gu, Q. Huang, J. Zhang, J. Wang, J. Xue, R.C. Ewing, Y. Wang, Nat. Commun. 10 (2019) 622.
- S. Zhao, L. Chen, H. Xiao, J. Huang, Y. Li, Y. Qian, T. Zheng, Y. Li, L. Cao, H. Zhang, H. Liu, Y. Wang, Q. Huang, C. Wang, Acta Mater. 238 (2022) 118222.
- H. Xiao, S. Zhao, Q. Liu, Y. Li, S. Zhao, F. Luo, Y. Wang, Q. Huang, C. Wang, Acta Mater. 248 (2023) 118783.

## T4.9 CERAMIC INTEGRATION TECHNOLOGIES FOR ENERGY AND Environmental Applications

# High temperature joining and mechanical testing of joints in silicon carbide-based materials: Technical challenges and opportunities

Michael C. Halbig<sup>1\*</sup>, Mrityunjay Singh<sup>2</sup>, Amjad Almansour<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>NASA Glenn Researc Center, Cleveland, OH, USA <sup>2</sup>Ohio Aerospace Institute, Cleveland, OH, USA \*E-mail: michael.c.halbiog@nasa.gov

Keywords: ceramic, ceramic matrix composite, joining, brazing, integration

Silicon carbide (SiC)-based ceramics and composites are well suited for high temperature aerospace applications. However, challenges in the fabrication of complex shapes and the need for integration with metal-based systems requires joining and integration solutions. Each joining and integration application requires a tailored solution based on material selections, properties, and incompatibilities, as well as joining or brazing conditions, component geometries, operating conditions, and service life. Once processing conditions for a joining or brazing solution are developed, thermomechanical testing is conducted to further characterize and advance the joining technologies toward targeted aerospace applications. In this presentation, joining using refractory eutectic phase bonding (from the Si-8.5Hf phase) and brazing with active braze alloys were utilized as model systems to develop mechanical test methods for characterizing and screening joints and brazes. International standard testing (ISO 13124) of bonded crossbars was used to measure interfacial bond strengths of ceramic materials under shear or tensile stresses depending on the crossbar orientation in the test fixture. Also, single lap offset testing with the use of digital image correlation (DIC) was conducted on brazes to screen shear strengths and strain evolution. Results, challenges, and advancement of bond testing will be discussed. Also, processing-microstructure-properties correlations will be emphasized. Various technical challenges and opportunities will be discussed.

## A novel cost-efficient metal-ceramic-hybrid brake disc for EV's – joining challenges & friction performance

### Nico Langhof<sup>\*</sup>, Thorsten Opel, Walter Krenkel, Stefan Schafföner

Chair of Ceramic Materials Engineering, University of Bayreuth, Bayreuth, Germany E-mail: nico.langhof@uni-bayreuth.de

**Keywords**: hybrid brake disc, ceramic friction materials, joining, C/C-SiC, electric driven vehicles (EV's)

Ceramic brake discs, made of C/C-SiC (C-fiber reinforced SiC) are thermal shock and wear resistant materials with low densities (< 2.5 g/cm<sup>3</sup>) and a high damage tolerance. Therefore, they found their application already in passenger cars as a service brake (> 300,000 parts/ year) with extraordinary lifetimes and as emergency brakes for industrial applications in cranes or conveying systems. The low wear rates and fine dust emissions make ceramic discs superior compared to conventional brakes made of grey cast iron or steel. One drawback of ceramic brake is, that they are very expensive, due to the applied materials, the long processing times and the high machining costs.

To overcome these challenges a metal-ceramic hybrid brake disc is a promising approach. A cost efficient, light metallic carrier body (e.g. Al) can be applied to carry the mechanical and thermal loads. Within the Al-metal ring wear resistant C/C-SiC segments are fixed and the frictional contact was made only between these segments and their counterpart, e.g. the brake pads. Therefore, the amount of the required C/C-SiC can be decreased dramatically (about 80 %) and the costs of the whole disc as well significantly.

The joining of the ceramic segments with the metallic disc is challenging and was studied in detail. Thermal loads and corrosion must be considered. Aluminum was studied in combination with C/C-SiC segments. Joining methods like screwing and adherence were evaluated at room temperature up to 250 °C. The corrosion was studied in a salt containing solution under different conditions. One suitable glue (JBWeld) was identified. Screwing was possible as well and with special designed screws. Afterwards, an Al-ceramic-hybrid disc was manufactured and tested on a tribological test rig under realistic conditions, with a fly wheel, that simulates the mass of a car. The results show, that the coefficient of friction (COF) is mostly in a promising range of > 0.25, but the wear rate is significantly higher compared to the full ceramic disc, which is most probably due to the gaps between the segments. Nevertheless, the hybrid-disc is a promising concept for an emergency brake disc for electric driven vehicles (EV's, city cars & motorcycles), even if the design of segments needs to be improved.

### Figure



Final design of the Al-metal-ceramic hybrid brake disc (outer diameter = 410 mm): (A) rendering of CAD-Design, (B) photo of the built prototype, (C) carrier body with friction segments and correspondent screws

#### References

Opel, T., N. Langhof und W. Krenkel. Development and tribological studies of a novel metal-ceramic hybrid brake disc. Int. J. Appl. Ceram. Tech., 2022, 19(1), 62-74. doi:10.1111/ijac.13826

### Material and process development for Copper-Si<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub> AMB-substrates

Jochen Schilm<sup>1\*</sup>, Mathias Herrmann<sup>1</sup>, Axel Rost<sup>1</sup>, Sindy Mosch<sup>1</sup>, Eveline Zschippang<sup>1</sup>, Maciej Kuczynski<sup>2</sup>, Stefanie dos Santos<sup>3</sup>, Jan Pfeiffer<sup>4</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Fraunhofer Institute for Ceramic Technologies and Systems, Winterbergstr. 28, 01277 Dresden, Germany

<sup>2</sup>Alzchem Trostberg GmbH, Dr.-Albert-Frank-Str. 32, 83308 Trostberg, Germany

<sup>3</sup>Aurubis Stolberg GmbH & Co. KG, Zweifaller Str. 150, D-52224 Stolberg, Germany

<sup>4</sup>PVA Löt- und Werkstofftechnik GmbH, Im Westpark 17, 35435 Wettenberg, Germany

\*E-mail: jochen.schilm@ikts.fraunhofer.de

Keywords: Si<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub> substrate, copper, active metal brazing, brazing paste, circuit board, power electronics

Power electronic components made of copper-ceramic composites as circuit carriers and SiC semiconductor components are at the heart of the control and regulation of high currents and voltages and are therefore key components in devices and systems for the storage and conversion of electrical energy. A focus is on the use of highly thermally conductive and temperature cycling resistant copper-ceramic composites based on  $Si_3N_4$  ceramics in combination with SiC semiconductors for battery-powered electric vehicles and increasingly in photovoltaics. These copper-Si<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub> composites produced by active metal brazing (AMB) exhibit significantly increased thermal shock resistance compared to DCB substrates. At the electrical level, the composite must ensure good conductivity within the metal layer and excellent insulation through the ceramic. Mechanically, the ceramic must be stable against external loads. Thermally, the heat generated during the switching of the semiconductor chips must be dissipated and the thermal expansions in the composite.

In the German CuSiN project, material and process improvements to Cu-Si<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub> AMB substrates were developed along the complete production chain. An overview of the topics addressed in the project and the results achieved is presented in this contribution. Based on  $Si_3N_4$  powders with low O and Al impurities,  $Si_3N_4$  ceramics that possesses high thermal conductivity (> 85 W/(mK) along with high strength (> 800 MPa) have been developed that can be sintered into large blocks from which substrates with a thickness of 320 µm and also lower thickness can be efficiently cut using the multi-wire saw technology well known from photovoltaics. For the active metal brazing of Cu-Si<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub> composites, screen-printable silvercontaining and silver-free active metal brazing pastes have been developed, which allow joint zones with thicknesses  $< 25 \,\mu$ m. To improve the process suitability of the pastes, particularly fine-grained powder qualities were evaluated. Particular attention was paid to minimizing and homogenizing the particle content of the active phases  $(TiH_2)$  to avoid the formation of titanium silicides at the interface with  $Si_3N_4$  during the brazing process. The bond strengths of the silver-free filler metal are approximately 80 % of those of the silver-containing qualities. For copper, grades with improved microstructural stability have been evaluated against thermal stress in the AMB process up to 1050 °C. Microstructures with medium grain sizes in the range of 300 to 600 µm have proven to be more favourable in terms of achievable bond strengths than finer-grained qualities ( $< 100 \ \mu m$ ) or those exhibiting an inhomogeneous microstructure with individual large grains up to 3000 µm. Based on these material- and process-specific individual results, joining processes have been developed to achieve peel strengths exceeding the strain strength of the bonded medium-grained copper and homogeneous, pore-free joint zones. The composites were characterised in terms of microstructure, bond strength (macroscopic and microscopic scale) and cycle stability. Finally, the joining process was demonstrated in scaled furnace units using graphite-based charging racks.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

## Joining of monolithic SiC and ceramic matrix composites with refractory transition metal-based interlayer

<u>Peter Tatarko</u>1\*, Naser Hosseini<sup>1</sup>, Zdeněk Chlup<sup>2</sup>, Alexandra Kovalčíková<sup>3</sup>, Valentina Casalegno<sup>4</sup>, Fabrizio Valenza<sup>5</sup>, Carla Malinverni<sup>4</sup>, Xiaobing Zhou<sup>6</sup>, Ivo Dlouhý<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Inorganic Chemistry, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Bratislava, Slovakia <sup>2</sup>Institute of Physics of Materials, Czech Academy of Sciences, Brno, Czech Republic <sup>3</sup>Institute of Materials Research, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Košice, Slovakia <sup>4</sup>Applied Science and Technology Department, Politecnico di Torino, Torino, Italy <sup>5</sup>Institute of Condensed Matter Chemistry and Energy Technologies – ICMATE, CNR, Genoa, Italy <sup>6</sup>Ningbo Institute of Materials Technology and Engineering, Chinese Academy of Sciences, Ningbo, China

\*E-mail: peter.tatarko@savba.sk

Keywords: joining, silicon carbide, ceramic matrix composites, spark plasma sintering, zirconium carbide

Field Assisted Sintering Technology (FAST) was successfully applied to join monolithic CVD  $\beta$ -SiC and C<sub>f</sub>/SiC ceramic matrix composites (CMC) with ZrSi<sub>2</sub>-based interlayer. First, the wetting and phase interaction of molten transition metal disilicide (ZrSi<sub>2</sub>) on the surface of CVD  $\beta$ -SiC and C<sub>f</sub>/SiC was investigated in different atmospheres (vacuum and Argon). A significant evaporation of Si from the liquid affected the wetting behaviour of the alloy when tested under a vacuum. On the other hand, wetting behaviour and spreading of the alloy were significantly improved in argon atmosphere. The formation of ZrC phase with a high melting point partially hindered the spreading of the melt over the surface of C<sub>f</sub>/SiC or CVD  $\beta$ -SiC.

The ZrSi<sub>2</sub> powder was then used as an interlayer for joining of both CVD  $\beta$ -SiC and C<sub>f</sub>/SiC using FAST at different temperatures (1400 – 1650°C). A non-homologous interlayer was formed, consisting of both ZrC and remaining ZrSi<sub>2</sub>. In addition, a significant reaction with SiC and C<sub>f</sub>/SiC substrates was observed, leading to the dissolution of SiC and infiltration of the filler into the base materials. Therefore, the ZrSi<sub>2</sub>-C (10 wt.%) powders mixture was used to form a uniform SiC-ZrC composite interlayer by in-situ reactions between ZrSi<sub>2</sub>, C, and SiC-based ceramics. The strength of the joints significantly improved with the increasing joining temperature, and reached the initial strength of the reference, un-joined CVD  $\beta$ -SiC and/or C<sub>f</sub>/SiC materials. The mechanical performance of the joints was then compared to the joints of the same base materials with a Ti foil and a Ti<sub>3</sub>SiC<sub>2</sub> MAX phase as the interlayers. Unlike the joints with the Ti and Ti<sub>3</sub>SiC<sub>2</sub> interlayers, no degradation of the strength of the joints up to 1400°C was observed, due to the in-situ formed refractory ZrC-SiC interlayer.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the Slovak Research and Development Agency under the contract no. APVV SK-CZ-RD-21-0089 and APVV-22-0493. The support of LUASK22219, and JRP SAV-TUBI-TAK 720464 projects is also acknowledged.

# T4.10 Environmental Friendly and Energy Efficient Manufacturing Routes for the Production Root Technology Applications

# Joining as enabling technology for energy- and resource-efficient manufacturing

### Jolanta Janczak-Rusch\*, Bastian Rheingans, Lars Jeurgens

Empa, Swiss Federal Laboratories for Materials Science and Technology, Laboratory for Joining Technologies and Corrosion, Überlandstrasse 129, 8600 Dübendorf, Switzerland \*E-mail: jolanta.janczak-rusch@empa.ch

Keywords: brazing, soldering, reactive joining, nanojoining

The combination of materials with different properties in one product is crucial for energyand resource-efficient manufacturing of high-performance products, as it enables the best match between the product requirements and local component properties. Joining, in this respect, is a key enabling technology for the manufacturing of multi-material product, in particular for the full integration of high-performance ceramics across various length scales. However, several challenges need to be overcome when manufacturing reliable dissimilar material joints. In particular, in the case of large-scale ceramic-metal joints, as for example for space or medical applcations the thermal residual stresses must be controlled [1], [2]. For miniaturized devices with heterogeneous materials combinations, such as those used in highpower electronics, the thermal management is a priority issue.

This contribution will discuss some examples of recent developments in joining techniques, from brazing and soldering to micro/nano-joining techniques [3], and their applications [4]. The emphasis will be on the materials that enable this technological progress, such as composite brazing fillers, nanoparticle-based sintering pastes, nanomultilayers, and reactive nanofoils [5]. The role of ceramics within these approaches, for example, as a functional barrier in nanomultilayers, will be stressed. The opportunities of energy-saving approaches by techniques without use of external heating sources such as reactive joining will be discussed. All the examples demonstrate that the growing energy and environmental challenges can only be addressed by a holistic approach based on integrated materials and process development.

### Acknowledgments

The authors acknowledge the Swiss National Science Foundation (SNSF) under grant number: 200021E\_209588.

#### References

- Janczak-Rusch, J. (2011). Ceramic component integration by advanced brazing technologies. In M. Singh, T. Ohji, R. Asthana, & S. Mathur (Eds.), Ceramic integration and joining technologies. From macro to nanoscale (pp. 17–37). https://doi.org/10.1002/9781118056776.
- Ong F. S. et al. (2021). Residual stress induced failure of Ti-6Al-4V/Si<sub>3</sub>N4 joints brazed with Ag-Cu-Ti filler: The effects of brazing zone's elasto-plasticity and ceramics' intrinsic properties, Journal of the European Ceramic Society, 41[31]6319–6329.
- 3. Hu, A. et al. (2019). Joining technology innovations at the macro, micro, and nano levels. Applied Sciences, 9(17), 3568 (9 pp.). https://doi.org/10.3390/app9173568.
- Bouaziz J. et al. (2023). Advanced epitaxial lift-off and transfer procedure for the fabrication of high-quality functional oxide membranes. Advanced Materials Interfaces, https://doi.org/10.1002/ admi.202201458.
- 5. Rheingans, B. et al. (2019). Joining with reactive nano-multilayers: influence of thermal properties of components on joint microstructure and mechanical performance. Applied Sciences, 9(2), 262 (11 pp.). https://doi.org/10.3390/app9020262.

# Low-temperature preparation and high-temperature oxidation performance of SiBCN ceramics with MA@PDC-SiBCN structure

Dechang Jia<sup>1,2,3\*</sup>, Zibo Niu<sup>1,2</sup>, Daxin Li<sup>1,2,3</sup>, Yu Zhou<sup>1,2,3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute for Advanced Ceramics, School of Materials Science and Engineering, Harbin Institute of Technology, Harbin, 15000, China

<sup>2</sup>Key Laboratory of Advanced Structural-Functional Integration Materials & Green Manufacturing Technology, Harbin Institute of Technology, Harbin150001, China

<sup>3</sup>State Key Laboratory of Precision Welding & Joining of Materials and Structures, Harbin, 150001, China

\*E-mail: dcjia@hit.edu.cn

Keywords: SiBCN ceramics, oxidation behavior

In this study, the densification of SiBCN ceramics with an MA@PDC-SiBCN structure at low temperatures (<1600 °C) without any sintering aids was achieved by preparing a partially cured polyborazylene coating layer on the surface of MA-SiBCN nanoparticles, followed by warm pressing of coated powder and pyrolysis/sintering of powder compact. Due to the significant viscoelastic deformation behavior, the partially cured precursor layer surrounding the MA-SiBCN particles in the coated powder could merge together to form a three-dimensional precursor network that encapsulates and connects MA-SiBCN particles in a dense powder compact. Serving as a template, the structure in the powder compact transforms to dense SiBCN ceramics with MA@PDC-SiBCN structure during subsequent pyrolysis and sintering and the resulting ceramics exhibit enhanced mechanical performance and oxidation resistance. Under the same sintering condition, MA@PDCs-SiBCN ceramics demonstrate a substantial increase in density (2.62 g/cm<sup>3</sup>>2.16 g/cm<sup>3</sup>), compared to traditional MA-SiBCN ceramics, with flexural strength from 91.2 MPa to 285.9 MPa, and fracture toughness from 0.73 MPa·m<sup>1/2</sup> to 4.63 MPa·m<sup>1/2</sup>. The presence of numerous relatively weaker interface binding in the MA@PDCs-SiBCN structure significantly facilitates stress relaxation at crack tips and deflection within the ceramic matrix, thereby markedly enhancing the mechanical properties of SiBCN ceramics.

The heterogeneous oxidation behavior and kinetics of each phase in MA@PDCs-SiBCN ceramics at different temperature range and their effects on structural evolution and oxide layer composition were analyzed by comparison with the MA-SiBCN ceramics. The significantly improved oxidation resistance of MA@PDCs-SiBCN ceramics should be attributed to the inhibition of MA@PDCs-SiBCN structure to heterogeneous oxidation, especially the consumption of *t*-C, and different oxide layer composition generated from microcrystalline structure rather than nano capsule-like crystalline structure. The kinetic calculation shows that each phase in MA@PDCs-SiBCN ceramic has a higher activation energy than that in MA-SiBCN ceramic because the oxide layer of MA@PDCs-SiBCN is a uniform borosilicate solution with more residual nitrogen and carbon elements, providing better oxygen-isolating and self-healing capacity.

# Sustainable URTRIP technology: Up-cycling, recycling, and trans-cycling of industrial by-products

### Joonho Lee<sup>1\*</sup>, Se-Ho Kim<sup>1</sup>, Youngjo Kang<sup>2</sup>, Youngjae Kim<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Materials Science and Engineering, Korea University, Seoul, South Korea <sup>2</sup>Department of Materials Science and Engineering, Dong-A University, Busan, South Korea <sup>2</sup>Department of Materials Science and Engineering, Inha University, Incheon, South Korea \*E-mail: joonholee@korea.ac.kr

Keywords: recycling, upcycling, transcycling, industrial by-product

Recycling is gaining more attention these days. Resource depletion has resulted in more energy consumption in the production of the same element from the geological minerals and more  $CO_2$  emission. For example, iron ore contains higher  $Al_2O_3$  and P contents than ever, so more energy is required for iron- and steel-making processes. Accordingly, the conventional blast furnace is switched to the electric arc furnace to utilize the steel scrap more efficiently. Additionally, hydrogen-based DRI production has been developed in many countries. Likely, many technological breakthroughs have been developed to recycle human-made resources: so-called urban mines. The complexity of the minerals tackles the recycling of the urban mine. Geological minerals generally contain 15 elements, whereas urban mine minerals have more than 40 elements to meet the requirements of the market for functional materials of high complexity. Therefore, engineers must overcome technological difficulties to find a solution to increase the recycling rate and save natural resources.

In order to increase the overall resource efficiency, recycling, up-cycling, and trans-cycling technologies should be considered simultaneously. When we focus on the industrial by-products, recycling in the roop of the manufacturing process should be examined first. With the addition of chemicals, the product's value can be increased. We call it up-cycling. Finally, the industrial by-products can be utilized in other business sectors as a resource, which is cited as trans-cycling. This presentation suggests strategies for URTRIP technology, and several practical use cases are introduced. Environmental friendly and energy efficient manufacturing routes could be considered as potential breakthrough for the production root technology applications.

# Efficient electrocatalsyts prepared by pulsed laser ablation for water splitting

### Sungwook Mhin<sup>1\*</sup>, Minju Kim<sup>1</sup>, Kang Min Kim<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Advanced Materials Engineering, Kyonggi University, Suwon, South Korea <sup>2</sup>Korea Institute of Industrial Technology, Gangneung, South Korea \*E-mail: swmhin@kgu.ac.kr

Keywords: nanocrystal, pulsed laser ablation, oxygen evolution reaction, water splitting

Alkaline water electrolysis is a vital technology for sustainable and efficient hydrogen production. However, the sluggish kinetics of the 4 electron pathway in oxygen evolution reaction (OER) requires overpotential. Noble-metal-based electrocatalysts are commonly used but face limitations in cost and availability. Carbon nanostructures, such as carbon nanotubes (CNTs), offer promising alternatives due to their abundant active sites and efficient charge transfer properties. In this study, we investigate the effect of surface-modified carbon (SMC) via pulsed laser ablation in liquid media (PLAL) on electrocatalytic performance for the OER. We focus on different types of heterostructures prepared by PLAL. Experimental results combined with computational simulation reveal that formation mechanism of the electrocatalysts on SMC. Also, mechanism underlying the improved OER properties is suggested. This work contributes to the understanding of CNT-based heterostructures and their potential for enhancing electrocatalytic performance in alkaline water electrolysis. This study contributes to the understanding of SMC-based heterostructures and their potential for enhancing electrocatalytic performance in alkaline water electrolysis.

# Design of dissimilar materials joint based on influencing factors of strength

<u>Yukio Miyashita</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Shao Xuanyi<sup>2</sup>, Do Minh Duc<sup>3</sup>, Towa Maeda<sup>3</sup>, Moriaki Ogido<sup>3</sup>, Hisashi Hori<sup>4</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Mechanical Engineering, Nagaoka University of Technology, Nagaoka, Japan
<sup>2</sup>Graduate student, Department of Science of Technology Innovation, Nagaoka University of Technology, Nagaoka, Japan
<sup>3</sup>Graduate student, Department of Mechanical Engineering, Nagaoka University of Technology, Nagaoka, Japan
<sup>4</sup>Nippon Light Metal Co. Ltd., Tokyo, Japan
\*E-mail: miyayuki@mech.nagaokaut.ac.jp

Keywords: dissimilar materials joint, strength reliability, design, self-piecing rivet, friction stir welding, rolling

Dissimilar materials joining is a key technology to realize innovative structures and generate new functions. For example, weight reduction of a vehicle can be achieved by rational design with concept of multi materials structure and it is effective for energy saving. Strength reliability of dissimilar materials joint is important in practical applications and strongly depending on joint process. It is important to study design method based on influencing factors on the joint strength with understanding of its joining process characteristics. In this presentation, design method of dissimilar materials joint is discussed and proposed in two different joint technologies such as self-piercing rivet joining and friction stir welding.

Self-piercing rivet, SPR joining is a mechanical joining method and applied to joining of thin plates in lap joint configuration. Lower energy is necessary for joining and dissimilar materials joining is applicable in SPR. In the process of SPR joining, a rivet penetrates an upper sheet and deforms following die shape inside a lower sheet but without penetration. Fatigue strength of dissimilar materials SPR joints were evaluated under tensile shear loading. According to results of the fatigue strength tests, fatigue strength of the dissimilar materials SPR joint depends on materials combination between an upper and lower sheet. Bending moment acted on the SPR joint under tensile shear loading and induced fatigue crack initiation around the joint part. Fatigue strengths of dissimilar materials SPR joints are well arranged by stiffness ratio between an upper sheet and a lower sheet. It is important to take effect of stiffness decided by elastic modulus and thickness of sheets into account fatigue design of dissimilar materials SPR joint.

Friction stir welding (FSW) is a solid-state welding technology and applied to dissimilar materials joining. In the process of FSW, a tool with high rotation speed penetrates to joint materials and induces plastic flow without melting. Formation of brittle reaction layers at the interface usually observed in dissimilar materials joint welded with conventional fusion welding can be solved in FSW. However, it is difficult to make a joint in thin plates because large deformation can be occurred during the joining process due to inserting of a rotating tool. In the present study, a dissimilar materials joint thin plate was produced by FSW followed by rolling. Mechanical properties and interfacial angle changed by applying rolling

affected the joint strength. Lower interfacial angle can decrease normal stress acting on the interface resulted in apparently higher joint strengths, however higher stress concentration also occurs at the edge of interface between different materials. In design of the dissimilar materials joint thin plate, effect of change in mechanical properties and interfacial angle should be considered.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was carried out as a part of research project of "Innovative Structural Materials Research and Development" supported by New Energy and Technology Development Organization (NEDO). SPR joining experiment was supported by Atlas Copco Co.

## A revolution in scientific research: An innovative blend of simulation, machine learning and cloud-based technology

Minkyu Park<sup>1\*</sup>, Sehoon Kim<sup>2</sup>, Youngkil Jung<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Virtual Lab, Inc., Technical Research Center, Seoul, 04773, South Korea <sup>2</sup>Korea Automotive Technology Institute, Cheonan, 31214, South Korea \*E-mail: minkyu.park@matsq.com

Keywords: AI, Simulation, platform, SaaS

Scientific research is witnessing a profound transformation underpinned by the confluence of advanced simulation, machine learning, and Software as a Service (SaaS) technologies. This integration is powerfully exemplified in the advent of platforms such as Materials Square, a virtual laboratory enabling comprehensive materials research.

Modern simulations, realized through the capabilities of high-performance computing, enable us to model intricate real-world systems, providing invaluable context and applications for machine learning algorithms. These algorithms, by utilizing the extensive data derived from simulations, can discern complex patterns and formulate remarkably accurate predictive models. The incorporation of SaaS propels this integration further by allowing users to access these specialized software tools over the internet. This ensures a more cost-effective and accessible utilization of these technologies, inducing a democratized, dynamic, and interconnected shift in the scientific research paradigm. Materials Square epitomizes this integration, thus symbolizing the vanguard of this profound scientific transformation.

In this presentation, we would like to discuss into the specifics of how the interplay between simulation, machine learning, and SaaS technologies is molding the future of scientific research. Particularly, focusing on Materials Square, exploring its capabilities as a virtual lab, and its role in fostering a more accessible and democratized research landscape.

# A highly deficient medium-entropy perovskite ceramic for electromagnetic interference shielding under extreme environment

### Yuchi Fan\*, Yongping Liu, Wan Jiang

Institute of Functional Materials, Donghua University, Shanghai, China \*E-mail: yuchifan@dhu.edu.cn

Keywords: medium-entropy ceramic, aliovalent substitution, vacancies, electromagnetic interference shielding, extreme environment

Materials that can provide reliable electromagnetic interference (EMI) shielding in highly oxidative atmosphere at elevated temperature are indispensable in the fast-developing aero-space field. However, most of conductor-type EMI shielding materials such as metals can hardly withstand the high-temperature oxidation, while the conventional dielectric-type materials cannot offer sufficient shielding efficiency in gigahertz (GHz) frequencies. Here, we demonstrate a highly deficient medium-entropy (ME) perovskite ceramic as an efficient EMI shielding material in extreme environment. The synergistic effect of entropy stabilization and aliovalent substitution on A-site generate abnormally high concentration of Ti and O vacancies that is stable under high-temperature oxidation. Due to the clustering of vacancies, the highly deficient perovskite ceramic exhibits giant complex permittivity and polarization loss in GHz, leading to the specific EMI shielding effectiveness above 30 dB/mm in X-band even after 100 hours of oxidation at 1000°C. Along with the ultralow thermal conductivity, the aliovalent ME perovskite can serve as a bifunctional shielding material for applications in aircraft engines and reusable rockets.

## T4.12 GRAPHENE AND 2D MATERIALS

# Graphene doped carbide based composites prepared by SPS and flash sintering

### <u>Pavol Hvizdoš</u>\*, Richard Sedlák, Alexandra Kovalčíková, Ján Dusza

Institute of Materials Research, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Watsonova 47, 04001 Košice, Slovakia \*E-mail: phvizdos@saske.sk

Keywords: boron carbide, field assisted sintering, graphene platelets, ceramic composites

Ceramic materials containing various amounts of graphene platelets within boron carbide matrix were prepared by the field assisted sintering methods, namely by spark plasma sintering (SPS) and by flash sintering methods (FSPS). Carefully prepared powder mixtures were sintered by SPS at 2200 °C, at heating and cooling rate of 100°C/min, with simultaneous application of 15 MPa pressure and with no holding time. For FSPS, the samples were discharged just for 24 seconds under a peak power of about 25 kW which is the 65% of machine power.

In B<sub>4</sub>C/GPLs system prepared by SPS technology almost full compaction was reached for all specimens up to 5 wt.% of GPLs addition. The highest density 99.9% of  $\rho$ TD was measured for the reference material. These well compacted experimental materials are the result of precise preparation of starting powders and using of the technological benefits which bring SPS processing. In FSPS technique the effect of carbon-based sintering activators was observed, when specimen with the addition of 5 wt.% of GPLs achieved 95.7% of  $\rho$ TD in comparison with the carbon-free reference material which reached only 90.6% of  $\rho$ TD and a higher portion of pores caused by the process.

Microstructural analysis of polished  $B_4C$  samples, cross-sections and fracture surfaces were carried using scanning electron microscopes (FIB – SEM Auriga Compact and EVO 40HV, Carl Zeiss). Fracture surfaces of reference materials show the difference of the used processing method on material densification. On the fracture surfaces of composites at relatively low magnification, the distribution of the GPLs in the  $B_4C$  matrix and the preferential perpendicular orientation of GPLs to the pressing direction during sintering process is visible. The GPLs were relatively well dispersed and arranged in boron carbide matrix. The addition of GPLs has no significant influence on the grain size of the boron carbide, but the addition of GPLs has an important role in densification of experimental materials prepared by FSPS technique.

The hardness of the composites prepared by SPS was in the range of 26.6–17.7 GPa. In the case of FSPS samples the strong effect of residual porosity on hardness values in the range of 16.9–14.0 GPa is evident.

The addition of GPLs and new processing ways had a positive effect on fracture toughness. The  $K_{IC}$  values of SPS specimens were in the range of 2.52–4.17 MPa.m<sup>1/2</sup> which is the improvement of 61%. In the case of FSPS specimens, fracture toughness values were in the range of 4.63–5.14 MPa.m<sup>1/2</sup> and the decrease could be caused by porosity.

The elastic modulus of the SPS specimens was in the range of 542–433 GPa and for the FSPS ones in the range of 519–441 GPa. All elastic moduli were slightly affected by the presence of pores.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was suported by Slovak Research and Development Agency under the contract no. APVV-21-0402, and APVV-22-0493. The support of M-ERA.NET3/2021/82 (DuplexCER) and IMPULZ IM-2022-67 (MOSAIC) is also greatly appreciated.

### References

Sedlák, Richard - Kovalčíková, Alexandra - Girman, Vladimír - Grasso, Salvatore - Reece, Michael J. - Dusza, Ján. Development of boron carbide/graphene platelets ceramics prepared by differnet processing technologies. In: Keramik/Ceramics 2022, 97. DKG Annual Meeting, virtual conference, 07.-09.03.2022: Abstracts. - Köln, Germany: Deutsche Keramische Gesellschaft e.V., 2022, p. 130. (Keramik/Ceramics 2022. DKG Annual Meeting).

## 3D-printed graphene/porous a-Al2O3 composites and hybrid scaffolds

<u>Cristina Ramírez</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Ali Saffar Shamshirgar<sup>2</sup>, Domingo Perez-Coll<sup>1</sup>, Maribel Osendi<sup>1</sup>, Pilar Miranzo<sup>1</sup>, Girish C. Tewari<sup>3</sup>, Maarit Karppinen<sup>3</sup>, Irina Hussainova<sup>4</sup>, Manuel Belmonte<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Ceramics and Glass ICV-CSIC, Kelsen 5, Cantoblanco, 28049 Madrid, Spain <sup>2</sup>Materials Design Division, Department of Physics, Chemistry and Biology (IFM), Linköping University, 581 83, Linköping, Sweden

<sup>3</sup>Department of Chemistry and Materials Science, Aalto University, P.O. Box 16100, Fl-00076 Aalto, Finland

<sup>4</sup>Department of Mechanical and Industrial Engineering, Tallin University of Technology, 19086 Tallinn, Estonia

\*E-mail: cristina.ramirez@icv.csic.es

Cellular ceramic materials exhibit unique properties related to their porosity, lightweight, and high specific surface area, which make them appropriate for their use as absorbers, membranes for catalysis and filtration, thermal management, and tissue engineering. The traditional fabrication methods as replica or sacrificial template are now combined with novel additive manufacturing technologies for the fabrication of complex structures, broadening the application fields. Graphene, on the other hand, has been successfully used for the development of ceramic composites and hybrids with improved properties in bulk and porous structures, and more recently in 3D printed composites by its addition mainly in the form of thin sheets.

The present contribution gathers the main results on the incorporation of graphene into 3D alumina structures through two different routes: *i*) the processing of graphene ribbons/ boehmite composite inks for subsequent structure 3D printing and sintering, and *ii*) the use catalyst-free CVD with different sets of parameters for obtaining graphene networks of variable thickness (FLG-20nm) and crystallinity supported on light and robust 3D-printed porous  $\alpha$ -Al2O3 structures.

The first approach showed the reinforcing capability of graphene as a second phase in 3D printed composite materials, achieving an increment of 14-50% in the compressive strength, concerning scaffolds based on pure alumina. As for the second route, it was the first time CVD graphene was used for coating 3D-printed ceramic scaffolds. Multi-scale porosity of 80% was obtained by the use of a grid pattern combined with partial sintering that served to create a fully contacted graphene network. Raman spectroscopy and transmission electron microscopy were used to characterize the homogeneity and quality of the film across the supports. Functional properties as electrical and thermal conductivity were also determined, achieving 10<sup>3</sup> Sm<sup>-1</sup> and an increment of 45%, respectively, for the structure with the thicker film.

# High temperature interaction of ceramic aerogels and their bulk counterparts with liquid metals and alloys

<u>Natalia Sobczak</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Małgorzata Pomorska<sup>1</sup>, Jerzy Morgiel<sup>1</sup>, Jerzy J. Sobczak<sup>2</sup>, Aadithya Jeyaranjan<sup>3</sup>, Giulliana Rasua<sup>3</sup>, Sudipta Seal<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Metallurgy and Materials Science, Polish Academy of Sciences, Krakow, Poland <sup>2</sup>Faculty of Foundry Engineering, AGH University of Science and Technology, Krakow, Poland <sup>3</sup>University of Central Florida, Orlando, Florida 32816, USA \*E-mail: n.sobczak@imim.pl

Keywords: ceramic aerogels, Mg, wetting, adhetion, interface, bonding

Aerogels belong to a group of ultra-light porous materials having unique combination of structural, physical and utility properties. In many possible applications, aerogels are required to be joined to other materials, especially metals. For liquid-assisted joining dissimilar materials, wetting behavior and adhesion between them are the key factors responsible for integrity and properties of final products. Therefore, information on high-temperature interaction between ceramic aerogels and different liquid metals and alloys is of a great scientific and practical importance.

This work summarizes the results of comparative studies of high-temperature behavior of different types of ceramic aerogels and their bulk counterparts in contact with liquid magnesium, which is the lightest of all metals used as the basis for constructional, biocompatible and biodegradable alloys due to its lightweight, high strength and corrosion resistance.

For real-time observation of wetting behavior and adhesion of liquid Mg with porous or bulk ceramic substrates, the sessile drop method was adopted and combined with in situ removal of a native oxide film from Mg sample directly in high-temperature chamber using capillary purification procedure. Solidified Mg/substrate couples were subjected to detailed structural characterization by scanning electron microscopy, transmission electron microscopy and energy dispersive X-ray spectrometry.

The results obtained are analyzed in terms of the effects of testing conditions as well as porosity, residual oxygen, structure and chemical composition of the aerogel on its wetting, adhesion and bonding with liquid Mg.

#### Acknowledgments

Financial support from the National Science Centre of Poland within OPUS 21 Project no. 2021/41/B/ ST5/02787 is acknowledged. The part of the research was performed in the frame of the EU COST-Action "Advanced Engineering of aeroGels for Environment and Life Sciences" (AERoGELS, ref. CA18125) with financial supports from the Institute of Metallurgy and Materials Science of the Polish Academy of Sciences (Project no. Z-13) and University of Central Florida.

### **T5** Technology, Society and Sustainability

## T5.1 GLOBAL INNOVATIONS IN BIOMATERIALS, BIOMANUFACTURING, AND BIOTECHNOLOGIES

# Glass/ceramic composite coatings embedding silver nanoparticles with antipathogen properties

Cristina Balagna<sup>\*</sup>, Angelica Luceri, Francesca Gattucci, Sergio Perero, Monica Ferraris

Department of Applied Science and Technology, Politecnico di Torino, Turin, Italy \*E-mail: cristina.balagna@polito.it

Keywords: antipathogen, composite coatings, silver

Innovative solutions and approaches address the pressing issue of emerging diseases caused by bacteria and viruses emphasing their significant threats to human well-being. In response, this study aims to the design and develop smart, sustainable nanostructured materials to mitigate the effects of microbiological contaminants on indoor air quality. For this purpose, antipathogen composite coatings embedding silver nanoclusters/nanoparticles into a glass/ ceramic matrix were developed using two techniques, the co-sputtering and the use of preceramic polymeric precursors.

The co-sputtered coatings are composed of silver nanoparticles well dispersed and anchorated within a silica or zirconia matrix<sup>1</sup>. The controlled release of metallic ions from the silver nanoparticles proves highly effective in preventing the adhesion, proliferation and spread of various bacterial strains, fungi and airborne viruses, including SARS-CoV-2. The co-sputtering technique provides versatility for various surfaces including filters and membranes, scalability for industrial applications and environmental friendliness.

Pre-ceramic polymeric precursors have been explored to obtain coatings with advanced properties. The precursors transformation into ceramic materials at low temperatures generates minimal waste material. The incorporation of silver nanoparticles into the precursors marks a significant achievement for further antimicrobial applications.

#### Acknowledgments

This study was carried out within the MICS (Made in Italy – Circular and Sustainable) Extended Partnership and received funding from the European Union Next-GenerationEU (PIANO NAZIONALE DI RIPRESA E RESILIENZA (PNRR) – MISSIONE 4 COMPONENTE 2, INVESTIMENTO 1.3 – D.D. 1551.11-10-2022, PE00000004). This manuscript reflects only the authors' views and opinions, neither the European Union nor the European Commission can be considered responsible for them.

#### References

M. Ferraris, C. Balagna, S. Perero, Method for the application of an antiviral coating to a substrate and relative coating, 2019, WO2019/082001

## **Bioceramics for healthcare: Where the future lies?**

Bikramjit Basu<sup>\*</sup>, Subhadip Basu, Remya Valoor

Indian Institute of Science, Bangalore, India E-mail: bikram@isc.ac.in

The next generation of bioceramics in healthcare is spearheaded by two core aspects, a) better (more holistic) understanding of the quantitative interactions with the components of the biological system at multiple length and time scales; b) probing the biocompatibility of lesser-explored ceramics for biomedical applications. The biocompatibility of materials is determined by their application-specific desired responses with proteins, cells, tissues, and blood. First, the Molecular Dynamics (MD) simulation results will be described to demonstrate the temporal kinetics of the fibronectin protein adsorption on doped hydroxyapatite (HA). In substantiating the second aspect, the cell and tissue compatibility of perovskites either in particulate format or in bulk composite with HA, will be discussed. Some recent developments on blood compatible SiBCNO coatings for cardiovascular applications will be presented, in the context of the new results on blood-capillary like tube structure formation during co-culture of endothelial and connective tissue cells under electric field stimulation conditions. Towards the end of the presentation, the Data Science (e.g. Artificial Intelligence/ Machine Learning algorithms) driven 'Biomaterialomics' approach will be presented to demonstrate its capability to integrate the computational tools, databases, experimental methods, machine learning, and advanced manufacturing (e.g., 3D printing) on a single platform. The speaker will close this talk by providing a set of key recommendations, which may be highly transformative to the field, while benefitting people's well-being and advancing economic development in many nations, in their energy and momentum.

# Synthesis of antibacterial nanostructured glass-ceramics from glass waste: A cost-effective approach

### Jorlandio F. Felix<sup>1\*</sup>, Ricardo Schneider<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Universidade de Brasília-UnB, Instituto de Física, Núcleo de Física Aplicada, Brasília, 70910-900, DF, Brazil

<sup>2</sup>Universidade Tecnológica Federal do Paraná - UTFPR, Group of Polymers and Nanostructures, Toledo, 85902-490, PR, Brazil

\*E-mail: Jorlandio@unb.br

Developing solutions and applications for vitreous waste is fundamental nowadays. In theory, glass is a material 100% recyclable, but the logistics and handling are the notable drawbacks of recycling. Developing materials with new properties using solid waste glass is highly desirable from a sustainability point of view [1, 2]. Flint and amber-colored glasses, often found in high quantities in municipal waste, can serve as valuable sources of raw materials. Thus, we propose an affordable pro duction process that requires just a thermal treatment of glass waste to obtain glass-based antimicrobial materials. The thermal treatment induces crystal-lized nanoregions, which is the primary factor responsible for the bactericidal effect of waste glass. As a result, coarse particles of in waste glass with thermal treatment. show superior antimicrobial activity than amber waste glass. Glass-ceramic materials from int waste glass, obtained by thermal treatment show antimicrobial activity against Escherichia coli just after 30 minutes of contact time. Laser induced breakdown spectroscopy (LIBS)was employed to monitor the elemental composition of the glass waste. The obtained glass-ceramic material was structurally characterized by transmission electron microscopy, enabling the confirmation of the presence of nanocrystals embedded within the glass matrix.

### References

- Bendixen, M., Best, J., Hackney, C. & Iversen, L. L. Time is running out for sand. 265 Nature 571, 29–31 (2019). URL https://doi.org/10.1038/d41586-019-02042-4.
- Cabal, B. et al. The development of bioactive glass-ceramic substrates with biocide activity. Advanced Engineering Materials 13, B462–B466 (2011). URL https://doi.org/10.1002/ adem.201180026.

# Promising bioactive apatite-biopolymer composites in bone tissue engineering

### Monika Furko

Institute for Technical Physics and Materials Science, Centre for Energy Research, Budapest, Hungary

E-mail: furko.monika@corresponding.author@email.com

Keywords: amorphous calcium phosphates, biopolymers, biocomposites, bioactive coatings

Nowadays, it is still a key issue to provide long-term success of implanted biomaterials in both tissue engineering and other biomedical applications. To obtain this goal, a high level of biocompatibility and bioactivity are required from the applied materials, either in scaffold or in coating form. Bioactive ceramic composites (BCCs) are especially useful materials in soft and bone tissue engineering and even in dentistry. They can be the solution to many medical problems, and they have a huge role in the healing processes of bone fractures. Interestingly, they can also promote skin regeneration and wound healing. The bioactive ceramics are able to attach to the bone tissues and form an apatite layer which further promotes the biomineralization process. The formed intermediate apatite layer makes a connection between the hard tissue and the bioactive glass material which results in faster healing without any complications or side effects. The properties and biological performance of these unique composites can be adjusted to meet the standard requirements of biomedical applications. The main approach is that the bioceramic bone cements or grafts or even coatings can act as an initiative intermediate surface for the increase in bone cell attachment, growth, and proliferation as well as new bone formation. Calcium phosphate (CaP)-based ceramic-biopolymer composites can be regarded as innovative bioresorbable scaffolds or coatings on load-bearing implants that can promote the osseointegration process. The bioactive ion modified amorphous carbonated apatite (cAp) phase is the most suitable CaP form, since it has sufficient similarity to the mineral phase in human bones, and the highest biodegradability rate as well. The crystallinity or amorphous characteristic and particle size of CaP particles are strongly dependent on the preparation and post-treatment methods, such as heat or alkaline treatment of as-precipitated powders. The carbonated, ion-modified cAp particles can be embedded into different biopolymers, such as polycaprolactone (PCL) and cellulose acetate (CA). The CaP particles are to be homogeneously dispersed into the polymer solutions, and then the dispersion can be deposited onto the surface of implants.

#### Acknowledgments

This research was funded by the National Research, Development and Innovation Office - NKFIH OTKA-FK 146141.

#### References

- Monika Furko, Katalin Balázsi, Csaba Balázsi, Calcium Phosphate Loaded Biopolymer Composites—A Comprehensive Review on the Most Recent Progress and Promising Trends, Coatings, 2023, 13(2), 360.
- Monika Furko, Rainer Detsch, István Tolnai, Katalin Balázsi, Aldo R. Boccaccini, Csaba Balázsi, Biomimetic mineralized amorphous carbonated calcium phosphate-polycaprolactone bioadhesive composites as potential coatings on implant materials, Ceramics International, 2023, 49(11), pp. 18565–18576.
- Monika Furko, Rainer Detsch, Zsolt E. Horváth, Katalin Balázsi, Aldo R. Boccaccini, and Csaba Balázsi, Amorphous, Carbonated Calcium Phosphate and Biopolymer-Composite-Coated Si<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub>/ MWCNTs as Potential Novel Implant Materials. Nanomaterials, 2024 14, no. 3: 279.

## Therapeutic ions-doped glass with antimicrobial properties

Aldo R. Boccaccini<sup>1,</sup> <u>Dušan Galusek<sup>2\*</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Biomaterials, Department of Material Science and Engineering, University of Erlangen-Nuremberg, 91058, Erlangen, Germany

<sup>2</sup>Centre for Functional and Surface-Functionalized Glass (FunGlass), Alexander Dubček University of Trenčín, 91150 Trenčín, Slovakia

\*E-mail: dusan.galusek@tnuni.sk

Keywords: MRSA, therapeutic ions, glass, mesoporous bioactive glass nanoparticles

The continually increasing number of strains of antibiotic-resistant pathogenic microorganisms (e.g., MRSA – Methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus) poses a real threat to human health. This problem is further exacerbated by factors such as horizontal gene transfer between different bacterial strains, allowing bacteria to acquire antibiotic resistance even if they are not direct descendants of already resistant strains [1]. Additionally, pharmaceutical companies are reluctant to invest in the development of new antibiotics due to high costs. The situation is further complicated by the fact that the effectiveness of new antibiotics is relatively limited, and bacteria develop resistance faster than we can introduce new antibiotics to the market. It is, therefore, crucial to design new strategies to combat pathogenic microorganisms. An interesting alternative in this field is represented by inorganic ions, such as Ag<sup>+</sup>, Zn<sup>2+</sup>, Ga<sup>3+</sup>, Ce<sup>3+</sup>, etc., whose antibacterial properties are well-documented. These ions can be incorporated into the structure of various bioactive glasses, which gradually dissolve in the body environment, leading to controlled release of ions with antibacterial effects. This contribution provides an overview of joint research activities of the Institute of Biomaterials, University of Erlangen-Nuremberg, and the the FunGlass Centre, focusing on the development and testing of bioactive glasses, as well as biocomposites with a biopolymeric matrix doped with bioactive glasses containing ions with therapeutic and antibacterial effects. The antibacterial and antimicrobial activity of Zn-doped glasses prepared by conventional melt quenching, as well as Ce and Ga-doped mesoporous bioactive glass nanoparticles prepared by micremulsion method against selected Gram-positive (S. Aureus) and Gram-negative (E. Coli) bacteria and microscopic fungi is documented.

### Figures



Mesoporous bioactive glass nanoparticles doped with Ga

### Acknowledgments

This paper is a part of dissemination activities of the project FunGlass. This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 739566. The financial support of this work by the grant SAS-MOST-JRP-2022-04 is gratefully acknowledged.

### References

Arnold B.J.: Nature Reviews Microbiology. 20, 206 (2022).

# Size controlled hydroxyapatite particle nucleation in natural rubber latex membranes

<u>Piazza, R.D.<sup>1\*</sup></u>, Pinto, G.C.<sup>2</sup>, Visoná, V.M.<sup>1</sup>, Herculano, R.D.<sup>3</sup>, Marques, R.F.C.<sup>1</sup>, Guastaldi, A.C.<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Analytical, Physico-Chemistry and Inorganic Chemistry, Institute of Chemistry, São Paulo State University (UNESP), Araraquara, Brazil <sup>2</sup>CICECO – Aveiro, Institute of Materials, University of Aveiro, Aveiro, Portugal <sup>3</sup>School of Pharmaceutical Sciences, São Paulo State University (UNESP), Araraquara, Brazil \*E-mail: rodolfo.piazza@unesp.br

The generation of new bone tissue is a highly effective treatment for fractures and other bone injuries. However, the severity of the injury, the age of the patient, and other factors can sometimes result in a delayed healing process, preventing complete calcification of the affected area. In such scenarios, implant or bone transplant procedures are necessary to aid tissue repair. Synthetic hydroxyapatite (HA), a stable calcium phosphate, is commonly used in medical applications due to its structural similarity to biological apatite in bones and hard tissues. Natural rubber latex has a wide range of applications in tissue engineering and drug delivery due to its porosity, elasticity, and biocompatibility. Latex membranes combined with HA can be used in a variety of hard tissue regions, enabling effective remineralization. Incorporating HA particles into latex membranes has the potential to revolutionize the therapeutic efficacy of materials. However, some traditional techniques have constraints due to the high-temperature synthesis required. This can lead to protein decomposition and reduce the overall effectiveness of the material. Additionally, other approaches may result in the agglomeration of particles and an uneven distribution on the polymeric matrix. It is important to consider these adversities and explore alternative strategies to unlock the full potential of HA particle incorporation. To address this issue, the biomimetic method was employed to nucleate HA particles into latex membranes, resulting in nano and microstructured materials. This composite was then characterized using X-ray diffractometry and Fourier-transform infrared spectroscopy, which confirmed the heterogeneous nucleation of HA over the latex membrane. Further scanning electron microscopy analysis revealed a homogeneous deposition of HA, with an increase in particle density, roughness and size as the biomimetic incubation period progressed. The charged surface and protein adsorption were also evaluated These membranes will be applied to rabbits' broken bones to investigate the impact of HA nanostructure size on tissue regeneration.

# Enhancing functional properties of bone tissue replacement materials with polyol-citrate polyesters

<u>Tibor Sopcak</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Lubomir Medvecky<sup>1</sup>, Tamás Csanádi<sup>1</sup>, Maria Giretova<sup>1</sup>, Radoslava Stulajterova<sup>1</sup>, Jiri Brus<sup>2</sup>, Martina Urbanova<sup>2</sup>, Katalin Balázsi<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Materials Research of SAS, Watsonova 47, 04001 Kosice, Slovakia

<sup>2</sup>Institute of Macromolecular Chemistry of the Czech Academy of Sciences, Heyrovskeho nam. 2, 162 06, Prague 6, Czech Republic

<sup>3</sup>Centre for Energy Research, Institute of Technical Physics and Materials Science, Konkoly-Thege M. Str. 29-33, 1121 Budapest, Hungary

\*E-mail: tsopcak@saske.sk

Keywords: calcium phosphate cement, polyol-citrate, mechanical strength, biodegradation, in-vitro cytotoxicity

Bone tissue-related illnesses resulting from degenerative diseases, infections, trauma, or oncology, impact millions of people worldwide. While bone tissue possesses a certain ability for self-repair and regeneration, larger defects and major injuries necessitate the use of advanced solutions in the form of bone replacement materials, to treat and restore the functionality of damaged tissue.

Biomaterials based on hydroxyapatite (Hap), the main mineral component of bone tissue, find widespread clinical application due to high biocompatibility, bioactivity, osteoconductive, and osteoinductive properties. Hydroxyapatite bone cements represent a special case of moldable material. They are prepared by mixing calcium phosphate precursors with a liquid phase to form a paste that can be easily applied to defects of various shapes and can set to a hard mass with tight bond with the surrounding tissue. Despite many advantages, the main drawback of calcium phosphate cements (CPCs) lies in their lower mechanical strength due to high brittleness and lower degradation and resorption rate. To address these shortcomings, recent studies have focused on incorporating polymeric fillers into the structure of CPCs, predominantly in the form of thermoplastic polylactides. However, although polylactides are biocompatible and biodegradable, their hydrophobicity shows a limitation. Additionally, while certain polylactides exhibit relatively high strength and elastic modulus, their incorporation into the cement matrix has, in some instances, shown negligible impact or resulted in a decrease in mechanical strength due to poor bonding and mixing with the cement mixture.

Therefore, in recent years, attention has increasingly turned towards biodegradable thermosets, such as polyol-citrates, synthesized by esterification of citric acid with polyhydric alcohols. Polyol citrates offer advantages over polylactides in terms of superior elastic properties, cost-effective and simple synthesis procedures, and a hydrophilic nature, which provides a more beneficial effect on tissue response compared to traditional hydrophobic polymers. Considering the important role of citrates in the bone tissue formation and metabolism, there is a good assumption of using polyol citrates in bone tissue engineering.

A comprehensive overview of the history, recent advancements in the design, application, and ongoing development of polyol-citrate polyesters and their composites in relation to bone tissue engineering will be presented and thoroughly discussed.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the Slovak Grant Agency of the Ministry of Education of the Slovak Republic and the Slovak Academy of Sciences, Project No. 2/0039/24, by the Slovak Research and Development Agency under contract No. APVV-20-0184, APVV-20-0299 and APVV-20-0278 and by the Slovak - Hungarian bilateral cooperation HAS-SAS-2022-1.

# Novel additive manufacturing technologies for bio-ceramics in bone tissue engineering

### Hui-suk Yun

Department of Advanced Biomaterial Research, Korea Institute of Materials Science, South Korea E-mail: yuni@kims.rekr

Keywords: bioceramics, additive manufacturing, multi-material

Additive manufacturing (AM) in the medical industry can be organized into several broad categories, including tissue and organ fabrication, customized prosthetics, implants, anatomical models, and pharmaceuticals. Moreover, multi-material AM technologies are fascinating in the field of tissue engineering because tissues or organs have multiple functions and are composed of multiple components. Our group recently developed an original material extrusion-based AM process for the simultaneous manufacturing of hydrogel-based cells and bioceramics for bone tissue regeneration. This novel process is performed in gel bath condition, where we could fabricate the self-standing 3D ceramic structure without any supporting structure. Our group also developed a novel stereolithography-based AM process for multi-ceramic materials. We were able to mimic both the structure and function of bone. Furthermore, we simultaneously imitated both the shape and color of teeth by manufacturing a functionally graded material structure using two types of feldspathic porcelain for applying aesthetic and restorative dentistry. We believe these new technologies may expand application market of ceramic AM technologies.

## **Rapid firing of 3YSZ: impact of the heating rate on sintering, properties and microstructure**

<u>Mattia Biesuz</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Emanuele De Bona<sup>1</sup>, Charles Manière<sup>2</sup>, Claude Estournès<sup>3</sup>, Thomas Herrison De Beauvoir<sup>3</sup>, Levent Karacasulu<sup>4</sup>, Cekdar Vakifahmetoglu<sup>4</sup>, Subhadip Bhandari<sup>5</sup>, Giorgia Franchin<sup>5</sup>, Vincenzo. M Sglavo<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>University of Trento, Department of Industrial Engineering, Trento, Italy <sup>2</sup>Laboratoire de cristallographie et sciences des matériaux (CRISMAT), Caen, France <sup>3</sup>CIRIMAT, CNRS-INP-UPS, Université Toulouse 3 – Paul Sabatier, Toulouse, France <sup>4</sup>Department of Materials Science and Engineering, Izmir Institute of Technology, Urla, Türkiye <sup>5</sup>Department of Industrial Engineering, University of Padova, Padova, Italy \*E-mail: mattia.biesuz@unitn.it

Keywords: ultrafast high-temperature sintering, fast firing, YSZ, additive manufacturing

Ultrafast high-temperature sintering (UHS) is currently emerging as a powerful tool to consolidate ceramics in the seconds/few minutes timescale. It employs graphite felts as resistive heating elements that, due to the low thermal capacity, can be heated to ultrahigh temperatures in a matter of seconds.

Herein, we report the ultrafast high-temperature sintering of yttria-stabilized zirconia (YSZ). The results show that effective densification can be attained in a very short time scale and at temperatures significantly lower than that required for conventional sintering. Such an effect is attributed to the microstructural refinement induced by rapid heating when treating nanograined YSZ powders (particle size about 20 nm). On the other hand, the heating rate impact on densification is reduced when considering green bodies obtained with coarser powders. In this case, analytical models extrapolated during conventional heating can be used to predict the densification also under extreme heating rates.

UHS can also be integrated with additive manufacturing techniques to produce small components with complex shapes. In particular, we show that fused filament fabricated YSZ gyroids can be debinded and sintered by UHS within one minute obtaining bodies with properties analogous to those obtained by conventional firing.

Finally, we show that "reactive UHS" of YSZ with an N2-containing atmosphere is possible, allowing a fine tailoring of the material composition, structure, and properties with a specific focus on the ionic conductivity of the sintered components.

# A novel two-stage flash sintering of fine-grain 3 vol.% yttria stabilized zirconia

## Yejie Cao<sup>1\*</sup>, Ke Ren<sup>2</sup>, Yiguang Wang<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Science and Technology on Thermostructural Composite Materials Laboratory, Northwestern Polytechnical University, Xi'an, China

<sup>2</sup>Institute of Advanced Structure Technology, Beijing Institute of Technology, Beijing, China \*E-mail: caoyejie@nwpu.edu.cn

Keywords: 3YSZ, flash sintering, two-stage sintering, fine grain size

The coupling effect of rapid densification and fast grain growth caused by the electromigration and Joule heating generated during flash sintering means that it is difficult to fabricate a dense ceramic with a very fine grain size. In this paper, a fine-grain 3 mol% yttria-stabilized zirconia (3YSZ) ceramic was successfully prepared by a novel two-stage flash sintering method. This method used the current-surge stage (II stage, < 2 s) of flash sintering to obtain a relatively high-density ceramic with limited grain growth, followed by further densification in a current-control stage (III stage) with low-current-density stimulation. The dense 3YSZ ceramics were obtained with an average particle size of  $170\pm16$  nm, a relative density of 95.7%, and a hardness of 1270 Hv.

### Figures



The microstructures of 3YSZ samples sintered by different methods. a) first-stage flash sintering, b) twostage flash sintering with holding time of 20 min, c) two-stage flash sintering with holding time of 60 min, d) conventional pressureless sintering at 1400 °C for 2 h, e) one-step flash sintering without holding period (T=800 °C, E=160V/cm, J=300 mA/mm<sup>2</sup>).

# A multiscale approach for robust sintering simulation of lattice structures in 3D-printed ceramics

Charles Manière<sup>1\*</sup>, Joseph Sambasene Diatta<sup>2</sup>, Sylvain Marinel<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Normandie Univ, ENSICAEN, UNICAEN, CNRS, CRISMAT, CAEN, France <sup>2</sup>Assane Seck University, Ziguinchor, Sénégal \*E-mail: charles.maniere@ensicaen.fr

Keywords: lattice, additive manufacturing, anisotropy, modeling, sintering

Most parts manufactured through 3D printing utilize a bioinspired infill strategy, incorporating a dense shell with internal lattice structures. This approach optimizes the strength-toweight ratio of the part through topological optimization and significantly improves both printing time and quality. However, simulating such complex porous internal structures can lead to computational instabilities and a colossal increase in simulation time due to the large number of degrees of freedom involved. As a result, there is currently no robust solution for simulating the sintering of 3D-printed parts with internal lattices, despite these constituting the majority of printed objects. This study addresses this challenge through a continuumbased approach capable of simulating real parts and the intricate behavior of lattices with a computational time representing a small fraction of the sintering time. The lattice geometry is initially simulated by a sub-model that identifies their effective moduli for different porosities. These effective moduli are then used to simulate sintering in the lattice regions of the printed parts, significantly reducing the internal part's thermal conductivity. An additional sub-model is employed to extract the lattice's effective thermal conductivity through a simulation accounting for thermal conduction in the skeleton, thermal radiation, and convection in the cavities. A robust thermomechanical simulation is subsequently utilized to rapidly and efficiently predict the baking of the parts, considering developed thermal gradients, resulting deformations, and the inherent anisotropy that significantly influences the final part's dimensional characteristics. This simulation tool is illustrated through 3D/regular honeycomb lattices.

## Tribological characteristics of dual-phase high-entropy ceramics: Influence of the testing methods

<u>Annamária Naughton-Duszová</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Dávid Medved<sup>7</sup>, Lenka Ďaková<sup>1</sup>, Alexandra Kovalčíková<sup>1</sup>, Peter Švec<sup>2,4</sup>, Peter Tatarko<sup>3,4</sup>, Hakan Ünsal<sup>3</sup>, Pavol Hvizdoš<sup>1</sup>, Pavol Šajgalík<sup>3</sup>, Ján Dusza<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Materials Research, Slovak, Academy of Sciences, Košice, Slovakia <sup>2</sup>Institute of Physics, Slovak Academy of, Sciences, Bratislava, Slovakia <sup>3</sup>Institute of Inorganic Chemistry, Slovak, Academy of Sciences, Bratislava, Slovakia <sup>4</sup>CEMEA – Center of Excellence for Advanced Materials Applications, Slovak, Academy of Sciences, Bratislava, Slovakia \*E-mail: aduszova@saske.sk

Keywords: dual-phase high-entropy ceramics, wear, wear mechanisms

Wear behavior of a fine-grained dual-phase high-entropy carbide/boride ceramics was investigated using ball-on-flat dry sliding methods in air, applying rotational and linear reciprocation motion with SiC counterpart. The investigated system showed very high nanohardness of the carbide and boride grains with mean values of  $37.4 \pm 2.3$  and  $43.0 \pm 2.9$  GPa, respectively, with the microhardness of dual system HV1 29.4  $\pm 2.0$  GPa. The stabilized friction coefficient values during the circular tests changing from 0.62 to 0.77. During the reciprocal test, the frictional coefficient values are very similar with an average value of .53. The specific wear rates during the circular motion were similar in the range from  $4.65 \times 10^{-7}$  to  $1.68 \times 10^{-7}$  mm<sup>3</sup>/N m. During the reciprocal test, the wear rates at 5 and 25 N were similar as in the case of circular motion, but at 50 N load, the wear rate increased significantly to the value of  $9.11 \times 10^{-6}$  mm<sup>3</sup>/N m. The dominant wear mechanisms in all cases were oxidation driven tribochemical reaction and tribolayer formation in boride grains and mechanical wear in carbide grains. During the linear reciprocation test, the loading mode created conditions resulted in relatively low coefficient of friction and very high specific wear rate.



Fig.1. Evolution of the typical coefficient of friction values during the rotation (A) and reciprocation (B) wear tests, based on.

#### Acknowledgments

"Funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation Programme was used for this Project on the basis of a Grant agreement under the Marie Skłodowska-Curie funding scheme No. 945478."

### References

Naughton-Duszova A, Medved' D, Ďakova L, Kovalčikova A, Švec P, Tatarko P, et al. Wear characteristics of dual-phase high-entropy ceramics: Influence of the testing method. Int J Appl Ceram Technol. 2024;1–12. https://doi.org/10.1111/ijac.14651
#### Invited

# Recycling of batteries with lithium thiophosphate solid electrolytes

#### Kerstin Wissel\*, Oliver Clemens

Institute of Materials Science, University of Stuttgart, Stuttgart, Germany \*E-mail: kerstin.wissel@imw.uni-stuttgart.de

Keywords: recycling, solid-state batteries, thiophosphates

Since the first commercialization of rechargeable Li-ion batteries, this technology has become omnipresent in our everyday lives. In recent years, the exponential growth of consumer electronics and stationary battery markets, coupled with the significant advancement in electronic vehicle technology, has led to a surge in the demand for LIBs - a trend expected to persist in the coming years. However, inherent safety concerns related to the use of combustible liquid electrolytes and limited energy density have also prompted the development of various next-generation battery technologies. Among these, all-solid-state batteries (ASSBs) utilizing solid electrolytes (SEs) are considered highly promising, and different material classes including oxides, polymers, halides and sulfides are intensively studied with respect to their potential use as SEs. Owing to their high ionic conductivities in the range of  $10^{-4}$  to  $10^{-2}$  S·cm<sup>-1</sup>, sulfide-based electrolytes including thiophosphates such as Li-P-S (LPS)-based glasses or glass ceramics (e.g.  $xLi_2$ S•(100 x)P<sub>2</sub>S<sub>5</sub>,  $Li_7P_3S_{11}$ ,  $\beta$ - $Li_3PS_4$ ), argyrodites  $Li_6PS_5X$  (X = Cl, Br, I), thio-LISICONs and  $Li_{11-x}M_{2-x}P_{1+x}S_{12}$  (M = Ge, Sn, Si) have gained significant interest.<sup>1</sup>

With the increasing significance of such next-generation batteries, the development of sustainable recovery and recycling strategies has become a matter of growing urgency. However, so far only a limited number of studies have been conducted on ASSBs.<sup>2</sup> For conventional lithium-ion batteries, there is a broad variety of established approaches including pyrometallurgical, hydrometallurgical, and direct recycling methods. While these methods can be partly adapted to derive recycling strategies for ASSBs, the unique properties of ASS-Bs, which can be primarily attributed to the chemical nature of the SEs employed in these batteries, do not allow to apply these methods directly. For thiophosphate-electrolyte-based ASSBs, pyrometallurgical and hydrometallurgical recycling processes are not feasible since reactions with water or O<sub>2</sub> lead to chemical degradation of the electrolyte. Related to the potential for solution-processing of thiophosphate electrolytes, direct recycling strategies involving the dissolution and subsequent precipitation and recrystallization of the electrolyte are more promising. Such strategies may result in an efficient separation of the electrode materials from the electrolyte under retention of the thiophosphate building units. In this contribution, the feasability of a dissolution-based separation process and related challenges are discussed.3-4

- 1. Q. Zhang et al., Adv. Mater. 31 (44), e1901131 (2019).
- 2. M. Jacob et al., Materials Futures 3 (1), 012101 (2024).
- 3. K. Wissel et al., Acs Applied Energy Materials 6 (15), 7790 (2023).
- 4. K. Wissel et al., Advanced Energy and Sustainability Research, 2300280 (2024).

# Design and construction of highly hard yet toughened TMB<sub>2</sub> based nanocomposite thin films

#### Kan Zhang<sup>\*</sup>, Weitao Zheng

Department of Materials Science, and State Key Laboratory of Superhard Materials, Jilin University, Changchun, China \*E-mail: kanzhang@jlu.edu.cn

Keywords: ceramic thin films, hardness, toughness, TMB<sub>2</sub>

An enduring quest in materials research is to reconcile two of the most prominent yet often conflicting mechanical properties, hardness and toughness. Strong covalent solids like diamond exhibit superior hardness but are brittle, while ductile metals possess excellent toughness but are soft. Transition-metal (TM) borides offer a viable solution, where metal atoms provide the valence electrons to raise toughness and light elements form a covalent bonding network to build hardness. This talk will discuss the construction of highly hard yet tough films based on the transition-metal diborides, following three recent advances: (1) discovered the new robust descriptor for sorting wide-ranging TM compounds on their mechanical properties, opening a new path for rational design and optimization of hardness-toughness balance in wide-ranging materials [1,2]; (2) demonstrated a chemically tuned solid solution approach that simultaneously enhances hardness and toughness of superhard transition-metal diboride Ta<sub>1-v</sub>Zr<sub>v</sub>B<sub>2</sub>[3]; (3) constructed a dual-phase nanocomposite film that comprises a wear-resistant phase (TiB<sub>2</sub>) and an internal lubricant source ( $MoS_{1,7}B_{0,3}$ ) exhibits superdurable superlubricity characterized by a vanishingly small friction coefficient (0.007) and ultralow wear rate (10<sup>-9</sup> mm<sup>3</sup>N<sup>-1</sup>m<sup>-1</sup>) maintained in lubricants over an unprecedentedly long sliding distance without performance deterioration [4,5].

- 1. Acta Mater. 207, 116685 (2021).
- 2. Adv. Mater., 2304729 (2023).
- 3. Research 6, 0035 (2023).
- 4. ACS Appl. Mater. Interfaces. 13, 49, 59352 (2021).
- 5. Cell Reports Physical Science 3, 101130 (2022).

## T5.6 FUNGLASS

### Cold consolidation of glass aqueous slurries: the cooperation between the chemistry of glass and basic activators

*Giulia Tameni<sup>1</sup>, Muhammed Jamshaid Zafar<sup>1</sup>, Francesco Carollo<sup>1</sup>, Diana Lago<sup>2</sup>, Jozef Kraxner<sup>2</sup>, Dusan Galusek<sup>2</sup>. <u>Enrico Bernardo<sup>1\*</sup></u>* 

<sup>1</sup>Department of Industrial Engineering, University of Padova, Padova, Italy <sup>2</sup>Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalized Glass, Trencin, Slovakia \*E-mail: enrico.bernardo@unipd.it

Keywords: alkali activation, gelation, waste glass, cold consolidation

Alkali activation is often referred to as a process yielding sustainable construction materials, especially starting from reactive waste-derived alumino-silicate feedstock. Strong and chemically durable components derive from extensive dissolution of starting materials, followed by condensation reactions, realizing highly interconnected, 'zeolite-like' gels. A challenge, however, concerns the use of synthetic activators, in the form of concentrated aqueous solutions of alkali hydroxides, silicates and aluminates, and their amounts. This contribution aims at summarizing experiences concerning alkali activation of glasses of different chemical composition. Special attention is given to fine powders ( $<100 \mu m$ ), which can still be collected as industrial waste, in very high amounts. A fundamental example is that provided by boro-alumino-silicate glass from discarded pharmaceutical containers. Suspended in alkaline solution of limited molarity (e.g. ≤3M NaOH), glass undergoes partial dissolution, followed by gelation, upon drying at 40-80 °C. This gelation is attributable to condensation reactions occurring at surface hydrated layers, leading to strong bonds (Si-O-Si, Al-O-Si etc.) as bridges between adjacent particles. Silicates, borates and aluminates, from glass dissolution, may combine with alkaline ions, in new phases. These extra phases may be leached out, upon immersion in boiling water or acidic attack; the latter attacks, however, do not compromise the integrity of the bonds between particles. The process may yield dense blocks as well as highly porous bodies, simply from slurries including additives capable of gas release (e.g. oxygen, from perborates) during drying.

The process does not depend on specific chemistries, of both glass and activators. In fact, siloxanic bridges are formed in the presence of nearly  $B_2O_3$ - and  $Al_2O_3$ -free glasses, including common soda-lime container and flat glasses; gelation can be experienced even from the limited residual glass phase of LAS glass-ceramics. Changes in the activators are an opportunity for changes in the nature of secondary phases, which may consist of gels and crystal phases of enhanced chemical stability: as an example, while NaOH generally leads to soluble Na-silicate gel and soluble sodium hydrated carbonates, by interaction with boro-alumino-silicate glass, CsOH leads to a substantial formation of stable boro-pollucite phase. The mixed attack of alkali hydroxides and  $NH_4OH$  further enhances the flexibility of the approach, by favouring the inclusion of alkali in gels instead of in carbonates.

# Rare-earth-doped nanostructured and transparent glass-ceramics for enhanced photoluminiscence

#### Alicia Durán

Instituto de Cerámica y Vidrio (CSIC), Madrid, Spain \*E-mail: aduran@icv.csic.es

Keywords: glass-ceramics, sol-gel, SPS, photonics, RE

Transparent oxyfluoride glass-ceramics (OxFGCs) have attracted great interest in the field of photonics during the last decades. The classical processing route to obtain transparent OxGCs starts with a controlled crystallization of the precursor glass obtained by melt-quenching (MQ). The incorporation of RE ions in the crystalline phases enhances the optical emission intensity, a major property of these materials [1]. Although it is suitable for fibers and bulk glass, it is not a suitable way to make films.

On the other hand, Sol-gel (SG) method is a promising alternative process to prepare oxyfluoride glass-ceramics films avoiding the drawbacks of MQ such as loss of fluoride content associated with the high process temperatures. This talk will present the processing routes to prepare oxyfluoride glass-ceramic films through a precipitated route based on stable aqueous suspensions of doped fluoride nanoparticles and the further incorporation to silica sols. In particular, doped-LaF<sub>3</sub> or Na/KGdF<sub>4</sub> aqueous suspensions were prepared and characterized by different techniques, before their incorporation to a silica sol, deposition by dip-coating on glass-slide and sintering[2]. Morphological and structural characterizations of the RE doped glass-ceramics films were performed by HR-TEM, FTIR, and Ellipsometry.

On the other hand, transparent GC materials have been also obtained by spark plasma sintering (SPS) [3]. This approach combines thermal action with simultaneous compression of the material to reach full densification and high homogeneity in a short time [4]. The structural, mechanical, and optical properties were characterized and compared with GCs of the same composition prepared by melt-quenching followed by conventional heat treatment. The results confirm the suitability of the SPS processing for the preparation of highly dense and transparent oxyfluoride glass-ceramics containing nanocrystals.

Finally, optical characterization was performed by the emission spectra and the lifetimes of the excited states in all the materials obtained by both processing routes. Promising results were achieved confirming the incorporation of Re<sup>3+</sup> ions into the fluoride phases and suitable luminescence lifetimes in the films as well as in SPS materials.

#### Acknowledgments

This research was developed under project MICINN PID2020-115419GB-C21- C22/AEI / 10.13039/ 501100011033 and European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation program FUNGLASS under grant agreement no. 739566

- Pablos-Martín, A. De; Durán, A.: Pascual, M.J. Nanocrystallisation in oxyfluoride systems: Mechanisms of crystallisation and photonic properties, Int. Mater. Rev. 57 (2012) 165–186.
- M. E. Cruz, T. N. L. Tran, A. Chiasera, A. Durán, J. Fernández, R. Balda, Y. Castro. Novel sol-gel route to prepare Eu3+-doped 80SiO2-20NaGdF4 oxyfluoride glass-ceramic for photonic device applications, Nanomaterials. 13(5). (2023) 1-16. doi.org/10.3390/nano13050940
- Babu, S.; Galusek, D.; Durán, A., Pascual, M.J. Glass-ceramics processed by spark plasma sintering (SPS) foroptical applications, Appl. Sci. 10 (2020) 1–21. https://doi.org/10.3390/APP10082791.
- Babu, S.; Balda, R.; Fernández, J.; Sedano, M.; Gorni, G.; Cabral, A.A.; Galusek, D.; Durán, A.; Pascual, M.J. KLaF4: Nd3+ doped transparent glass-ceramics processed by spark plasma sintering. Journal of Non-Crystalline Solids 578, 121289 (2022). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jnoncrysol.2021.121289

# FunGlass: Where we are, and where we are heading at the end of the project?

#### Dušan Galusek

Centre for Functional and Surface-Functionalized Glass, TnUAD, Trenčín, Slovakia E-mail: dusan.galusek@tnuni.sk

FunGlass, or the Centre for functional and surface functionalized glass was established in 2017, as a research Centre established with financial support of the European Commission (European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 739566), and the Slovak government (ERDF project CEGLASS, operational programme Research & Innovation). In its research activities focused on bioactive materials, glass processing, advanced functional coatings, functional glass and ceramics, upcycling of inorganic waste and additive manufacturing technologies. It cooperates closely with four international partners of the Centre, namely Friedrich Alexander Universität Erlangen Nuremberg, Germany (prof. A. Boccaccini), Friedrich Schiller Universität Jena, Germany (prof. L. Wondraczek), Institute of Glass and Ceramics, CSIS Madrid, Spain (prof. A. Durán), and University of Padova, Italy (Prof. E. Bernardo). The FunGlass symposium is aimed at presenting the latest, and the most important research activities of the Centre achieved in collaboration with, but also without our partners. This introductory lecture of the FG symposium gives a brief overview of the Centre, its structure, achievements, international collaborations, and activities.

#### Ackowledgement

This item is a part of dissemination activities of project FunGlass. This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 739566.

# Progress and challenges in melt-electrowriting of polymer-inorganic phase composites

#### I. Unalan, A.R.Boccaccini\*

Institute of Biomaterials, Department of Materials Science and Engineering, Friedrich-Alexander-University Erlangen-Nuremberg, Cauerstraße 6, 91058 Erlangen, Germany \*E-mail: aldo.boccaccini@fau.de

Keywords: melt electrowriting, polycaprolactone, superparamagnetic iron oxide nanoparticles, mesoporous bioactive glass

The melt electrowriting technique is a solvent-free additive manufacturing method that uses electrohydrodynamics to produce micron-scale fiber struts [1]. The structural properties of MEW scaffolds are similar to those of extracellular matrix and interconnected porous structure, which has attracted researchers to use them in biomedical applications [1,2]. For more than a decade, these highly ordered MEW scaffolds have been widely made with polycaprolactone (PCL) owing to its outstanding processability, biocompatibility, mechanical capabilities, low melting temperature, and quick solidification qualities (relative to other polyesters) [1,3]. On the other hand, nanoparticles are interesting nanomaterials that can be used in biomedical applications, including cancer treatment, targeted drug delivery, magnetic particle imaging, and targeted drug delivery [4]. Notably, in the field of biomedical have garnered used of the distinctive physical, chemical, and biocompatibility characteristics of superparamagnetic iron oxide nanoparticles (SPIONs) [5,6] and mesoporous bioactive glass nanoparticles (MBGNs) [7]. In this research, our objective is to devise inventive strategies for manufacturing SPIONs or MBGNs-coated PCL-MEW scaffolds that can be utilized in various biomedical applications. In this sense, PCL scaffolds were first fabricated using the MEW method and further treated with alkaline surface modification to enhance their hydrophilicity and cell affinity and enable coating with MBGNs and SPIONs. Scanning electron microscopy images revealed that PCL-MEW scaffolds were unaffected by alkaline surface modification, and SPIONs and MBGNs exhibited uniformity and less aggregation within MEW scaffolds. Furthermore, ATR-FTIR spectra confirmed MBGNs and SPIONs coating. Moreover, when exposed to an alternating magnetic field, SPIONs-coated samples generated heat, which might be used to treat hyperthermia. On the other hand, in vitro cell viability assay results showed that coating MBGNs and SPIONs has no adverse effect on MC3T3-E1 pre-osteoblastic and normal human dermal fibroblast (NHDF) cells. Moreover, SEM imaging, and staining techniques using Calcein/DAPI and rhodamine-phalloidin/DAPI showed that the samples did not result in any cytotoxic effects and did not cause any abnormal cell behavior. In summary, the early findings showed the potential of coating MEW scaffolds with SPIONs or MBGNs for use in various biomedical applications.

- J.C. Kade, P.D. Dalton, Polymers for Melt Electrowriting, Adv. Healthc. Mater. (2021). https://doi. org/10.1002/adhm.202001232
- N. Ristovski, N. Bock, S. Liao, S.K. Powell, J. Ren, G.T.S. Kirby, K.A. Blackwood, M.A. Woodruff, Improved fabrication of melt electrospun tissue engineering scaffolds using direct writing and advanced electric field control, Biointerphases. (2015). https://doi.org/10.1116/1.4914380
- K. Cao, F. Zhang, A. Zaeri, Y. Zhang, R. Zgeib, M. Calzolaio, R.C. Chang, Advances in design and quality of melt electrowritten scaffolds, Mater. Des. (2023). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.matdes.2023.111618
- K. McNamara, S.A.M. Tofail, Nanoparticles in biomedical applications, Adv. Phys. X. (2017). https://doi.org/10.1080/23746149.2016.1254570
- E. Borroni, M. Miola, S. Ferraris, G. Ricci, K. Žužek Rožman, N. Kostevšek, A. Catizone, L. Rimondini, M. Prat, E. Verné, A. Follenzi, Tumor targeting by lentiviral vectors combined with magnetic nanoparticles in mice, Acta Biomater. (2017). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.actbio.2017.07.007
- Unalan, I., Occhipinti, I., Miola, M., Vernè, E., & Boccaccini, A. R. (2023). Development of Super-Paramagnetic Iron Oxide Nanoparticle-Coated Melt Electrowritten Scaffolds for Biomedical Applications. Macromolecular Bioscience, 2300397
- K. Zheng, A.R. Boccaccini, Sol-gel processing of bioactive glass nanoparticles: A review, Adv. Colloid Interface Sci. (2017). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cis.2017.03.00

# ORAL

# T1 Ceramics for Energy Conversion, Storage, and Distribution Systems

### **T1.1 HIGH-TEMPERATURE FUEL CELLS AND ELECTROLYSIS**

# Manufacturing strategy of lightweight solid oxide fuel cell for aviation applications

<u>Vignesh Ahilan</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Pedro Nehter<sup>1</sup>, Helge Geisler<sup>1</sup>, Stephan Friedl<sup>2</sup>, Oliver Rohr<sup>3</sup>, Aurelie Walter<sup>4</sup>, Christian Metzner<sup>5</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Electrification Technologies (1XRE), Airbus Operations GmbH, Hamburgy, Germany
<sup>2</sup>Electrification Technologies (1XRE), Airbus Defence and Space, Ottobrunn, Germany
<sup>3</sup>Materials (1XRM1), Airbus Defence and Space, Ottobrunn, Germany
<sup>4</sup>Materials (1XRM1), Airbus SAS, Nantes, France
<sup>5</sup>Materials (1XRM2), Airbus Defence and Space, Ottobrunn, Germany
\*E-mail: vignesh.ahilan@airbus.com

Keywords: solid oxide fuel cells (SOFCs), additive manufacturing, ceramics, lightweight design, aviation

The world's first hydrogen based commercial airplane is aiming to reach the market by 2035. The idea is to focus on the ZEROe concept aircrafts, which shows Airbus' commitment to lead the decarbonization in the aviation industry, which rely on hydrogen as a main fuel. Hydrogen boarded aircraft in a hybrid configuration power system that combines fuel cells for electrical power with modified gas turbine engines to achieve the targeted performance. Although one of the most established fuel cell types is the proton exchange membrane (PEM) technology, Airbus Central Research and Technology (CRT) is also looking at unique SOFC concepts for prospective hybrid-hydrogen configurations.

A solid oxide fuel cell (SOFC) system is an attractive candidate for aircraft application due to its capability of high efficiency when combined with gas turbine engines and fuel versatility. The tubular SOFC design principally provides fast start-up time, high gravimetric and volumetric power density compared to traditional planar stacks. However, the ohmic losses in the long tubular cell is a challenging factor due to the single end correct collection method. We have manufactured lightweight cells with an improved current collection pathway. The most promising designs are the tubular and monolithic SOFCs, so far achieved experimental tested performance at Airbus recently is about 2 kW/kg (tubular anode supported cell) in high fuel utilization testing condition. Moreover, the novel networking serially connected cell design gives a theoretical estimated power density > 3KW/kg. These cell designs' manufacturing feasibility are explored by advanced production techniques such as additive manufacturing techniques with the feature of highly porous, lightweight substrates and followed by thin film electrolyte coating for metallic and ceramic based SOFCs. Additionally, conceptual stacking design of SOFCs are explored for aviation applications.

### Impact of NaCl containing air on the cathode of a solid oxide fuel cell

<u>Stefan Henfling</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Annie Le Gal La Salle<sup>2</sup>, Olivier Joubert<sup>2</sup>, Marie Lamard<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>CEA, CEA Tech Pays de la Loire, 44340 Bouguenais, France

<sup>2</sup>Nantes-Université, CNRS UMR 6502 – IMN – Institut des Matériaux de Nantes Jean Rouxel, 44300 Nantes, France

\*E-mail: stefan.henfling@cea.fr

Keywords: solid oxide fuel cell, cathode, electrochemical impedance spectroscopy

The marine industry must reduce emissions to comply with existing and forthcoming regulations. In this context, solid oxide fuel cells (SOFCs) could play a significant role in ship propulsion due to their high flexibility in fuel compatibility. However, concerns regarding their durability hinder their widespread adoption in shipbuilding.

The aim of this study is to investigate the effects of the marine environment on SOFC cathodes. To this end, a mist generator has been constructed that allows the generation of different salt concentrations and humidity levels. The impact of this simulated sea air is studied on single cells with a LSCF ( $La_{0,6}Sr_{0,4}Co_{0,2}Fe_{0,8}O_{3-\delta}$ ) cathode. The performance of the cell is monitored via chronoamperometry and electrochemical impedance spectroscopy. Postmortem SEM and EDX analyses reveal the microstructural changes, caused by the simulated maritime conditions.

In order to get deeper insight into the structural and electrochemical changes of the cathode material LSCF, the material is exposed to different sea salts at different temperatures and different levels of humidity. Powder XRD and Rietveld refinement elucidate the structural changes in the material and elemental analyses evidence the changes in the materials composition.



Representation of the crystal structure of LSCF (left) and schematic comparison of the ionic radii of ions present in LSCF and those in sea-salts.

# Reverisble solid oxide fuel cells based on semiconductor-ionic composites: material development, structure design and performance optimization

#### Jianbing Huang<sup>1\*</sup>, Xianyuan Ye<sup>1</sup>, Youjun Lv<sup>1</sup>, Liejin Guo<sup>1</sup>, Bin Zhu<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>State Key Laboratory of Multiphase Flow in Power Engineering/International Research Center for Renewable Energy, School of Energy and Power Engnineering, Xi'an Jiaotong University, Xi'an, China

<sup>2</sup>Jiangsu Provincial Key Laboratory of Solar Energy Science and Technology/Energy Storage Joint Research Center, School of Energy and Environment, Southeast University, Nanjing, China \*E-mail: huangjb@mail.xjtu.edu.cn

**Keywords**: reverisble solid oxide fuel cells, semiconductor-ionic composites, triple-conducting oxides, water electrolysis

Reversible solid oxide fuel cells (RSOFCs) are electrochemical devices based on oxide electrolyte that alternate sequentially between power-generating fuel cell and fuel-producing electrolysis cell modes for renewable energy storage and conversion. RSOFCs generally operates at high temperatures (800-1000 °C) to activate oxide-ion conduction, which not only accelerate the electrode kinetics but also affect the stability and cost of cell, thus restrict the commerical application. Lowering the temperature of RSOFC to below 700 °C has been realized by reducing the electrolyte thickness and using protonic oxide electrolytes. However, the insufficient ionic conductivity of electrolyte and catalytic activity of electrodes as well as the traditional three-layer cell structure pose a challenge to material selection and cell fabrication. To overcome the drawback of electrolyte material development through the structural design and ion-doping, oxide semiconductor-ionic materials have become promising candidates to replace traditional ionic electrolyte materials. A wide range of semiconductor-ionic materials based on mixed ionic-electronic conducting oxides and composites have been exploed to act as only electrolyte or function as both electrolyte and electrodes, thus derived single-component and symmetric three-component cell structures. However, most efforts are focused on fuel cell operation but seldom on fuel cell/electrolysis cell reversible operation due to the unsintered electrolyte layer or functional layer which can not ensure the safety of hydrogen separation.

In this study, we attempted to develop low temperature RSOFCs based on semiconductorionic composites. Several kinds of semiconductor-ionic composites such as  $BaZr_{0.8}Y_{0.2}O_3$ (BZY)-CeO<sub>2</sub>,  $Ba_{0.875}Fe_{0.875}Zr_{0.125}O_{3.\delta}$  (BFZ)-CeO<sub>2</sub>, BFZ-Gd<sub>0.1</sub>Ce<sub>0.9</sub>O<sub>2. $\delta$ </sub> (GDC)-(Li/Na)<sub>2</sub>CO<sub>3</sub> (BFZ-GDC-LN), Ni<sub>0.8</sub>Co<sub>0.15</sub>Al<sub>0.05</sub>LiO<sub>2. $\delta$ </sub> (NCAL)-GDC-LN were successfuly developed as electrolytes for low temperature RSOFC application. The ionic conductivities of these functional materials exceeded 0.1 Scm<sup>-1</sup> below 600°C and the ionic conduction mechanisms were also discussed. Symmetric three-component RSOFCs and single-component RSOFCs were constructed and demonstrated excellent fuel cell and electrolytic cell performances. The introduction of molten carbonate phase into oxide semiconductor ionic composites will improve the operating stability of such RSOFCs. This work demonstrates that protonic conductors for RSOFCs can be designed by semiconductor heterojuction formed during fuel cell operation.



Schematic of the proposed design ideas for surface proton conduction enhancement, where (a) BZY without sintering was used as the electrolyte layer; (b) BZY was sintered after high-temperature treatment; (c) synthesis process of CeO<sub>2.6</sub>/BZY; (d) fuel cell assembly using Ni-NCAL/(CeO<sub>2.6</sub>/BZY)/NCAL-Ni as the anode/electrolyte/cathode; (e) corresponding fuel cell I-V and I-P curves; (f) Performance of the water electrolysis cell (reversed PCFC, current density as a function of the applied voltage) employing the CeO<sub>2.6</sub>/BZY electrolyte at 520 °C; (g) I-V and I-P curves for NiNCAL/(7BFZ-3CeO<sub>2.6</sub>)/NCAL-Ni fuel cell at different temperatures; (h) I-V and I-P curves for NiNCAL/(7BFZ-3CeO<sub>2.6</sub>)/NCAL-Ni in two modes; (i) I-V and I-P curve for NCAL-GDC-LN single component fuel cell and (j) short-term interval reversibility.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the Basic Science Center Program for Ordered Energy Conversion [No. 52488201] and the key project [No. 52336009] of NSFC, the Fundamental Research Funds for the Central Universities and the National Key Research and Development Program of China [No. 2021YFB4001405].

#### References

- 1. Juan Carlos Ruiz-Morales, David Marrero-López, Jesús Canales-Vázquezc, et al. Symmetric and reversible solid oxidefuel cells. RSC Adv., 2011,1, 1403–414.
- Shaorong Wang, Xing Hao, Weiting Zhan. Research on a low temperature reversible solid oxide cell. Int. J. Hydrogen Energy, 2017, 42(50), 29881–29887.
- Liangzhu Zhu, Chris Cadigan, Chuancheng Duan, et al. Ammonia-fed reversible protonic ceramic fuel cells with Ru-based catalyst. Commun. Chem., 2021, 4, 121.
- 4. Bin Zhu, Rizwan Raza, Ghazanfar Abbas, et al. An Electrolyte-Free Fuel Cell Constructed from One Homogenous Layer with Mixed Conductivity. Adv. Funct. Mater.2011, 21, 2465–2469.
- Yueming Xing, Bin Zhu, Liang Hong, et al. Designing High Interfacial Conduction beyond Bulk via Engineering the Semiconductor–Ionic Heterostructure CeO<sub>2.8</sub>/BaZr<sub>0.8</sub>Y<sub>0.2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> for Superior Proton Conductive Fuel Cell and Water Electrolysis Applications. ACS Appl. Energy Mater., 2022, 5, 15373–15384.
- Ping Li, Fei Liu, Wei Wei, et al. Enhancing Bifunctional Electrocatalytic Activities of La<sub>0.5</sub>Sr<sub>0.5</sub>Co<sub>0.2</sub>Fe<sub>0.8</sub>O<sub>3</sub> in Reversible Single-Component Cells. Ind. Eng. Chem. Res., 2022, 61, 13795–13804.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

# Effect of thickness on the microstructure, ionic conductivity and strength of tape casted zirconia-based electrolytes for solid oxide fuel cells

#### <u>Arijit Jana</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Irina Kraleva<sup>1</sup>, Josef Schlacher<sup>1</sup>, Johanna Sänger<sup>1</sup>, Andreas Egger<sup>2</sup>, Edith Bucher<sup>2</sup>, Raul Bermejo<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Chair of Structural and Functional Ceramics, Montanuniversitaet Leoben, Franz-Josef-Straße 18, 8700 Leoben, Austria <sup>2</sup>Chair of Physical Chemistry, Montanuniversitaet Leoben, Franz-Josef-Straße 18, 8700 Leoben, Austria

\*E-mail: arijit.jana@unileoben.ac.at

Keywords: tape-casted electrolyte, microstructure, Ball-on-3-Balls test (B3B), fractography, impedance analysis

Electrolyte supported solid oxide fuel cells (ESCs) have gained attention as electrochemical energy conversion devices due to their easy scale-up capacity and low cost mass production. Tape-casted 8 mol% yttria stabilized zirconia (8YSZ) is widely used as electrolyte component due to its high ionic conductivity and good mechanical stability. A major drawback of ESCs is their higher ohmic resistance as compared to electrode (anode, cathode) supported fuel cells. These ohmic losses are associated with the large thickness of the electrolyte layer (~>150  $\mu$ m). Minimizing the ohmic losses is challenging due to the limitations in mechanical load-bearing capacity of electrolytes for ESCs. These drawbacks can be mitigated by using alternative higher ion conducting electrolyte materials or reducing the thickness of electrolytes while maintaining sufficient mechanical integrity. Hence, the fabrication of thin electrolytes with good mechanical integrity and high ionic conductivity is one of the key research directions for SOFCs.

In this study, the microstructure, ionic conductivity and mechanical strength of tape-casted 8YSZ as a function of electrolyte thickness are investigated. In this regard, 8YSZ electrolyte sheets with a thickness ranging from  $\sim 70\pm5$  to  $\sim 350\pm5$  µm are fabricated through tape casting followed by debinding at 600 °C for 2 h and sintering at 1400 °C for 2 h. Scanning electron microscopy (SEM) is used to evaluate porosity and grain size distribution in sintered electrolytes. The mechanical strength distribution of sintered electrolytes with different thicknesses is investigated using the Ball-on-3-Ball biaxial bending tests, supported by fractographic analysis to reveal the fracture origin and type of critical defects. Strength results are analyzed in the framework of Weibull statistics. In addition to the mechanical testing, impedance measurements are carried out to study the effect of different thicknesses on the ionic conductivity of tape casted 8YSZ electrolytes.

### Isothermal degradation of porous Ni-3YSZ in solid oxide cells: Occurrence, challenges, and solution

<u>Peyman Khajavi</u>\*, Peter Vang Hendriksen, Henrik Lund Frandsen

Department of Energy Conversion and Storage, Technical University of Denmark, 2800 Kgs. Lyngby, Denmark

\*E-mail: pkha@dtu.dk

Keywords: tetragonal zirconia, solid oxide cells, degradation, durability

Hydrothermal degradation in transformable tetragonal zirconia ceramics is a well-known issue. The phenomenon occurs at temperatures below  $\approx 400$  °C and embrittles the ceramics. Nevertheless, it is widely believed that the degradation does not occur at higher temperatures.

Solid oxide fuel and electrolysis cells (SOCs) demonstrate great potential in the green transition due to their high efficiency. Fuel electrode-supported cell based on a Ni(O)-3YSZ (3 mol% yttria doped zirconia) support is one of the most common SOC designs. The excellent fracture toughness and strength of the support in this design, resulting from the transformation toughening in 3YSZ, enables scaling up the cell size. Although 3YSZ has a transformable (metastable) tetragonal phase, since SOCs typically operate at temperatures well above 600 °C, the 3YSZ-containing cells have been considered resistant to hydrothermal degradation in operation.

In this work, we present our studies on the isothermal degradation of Ni-3YSZ at various temperatures, from room temperature to 820 °C. The high-temperature degradation observed in several long-term tested cells – tested for more than 8,500 to 10,000 h and under various conditions (including temperature, atmosphere, and testing mode) – are discussed. We further report a comprehensive study of the degradation of Ni-3YSZ at room temperature, 134 °C, and from 350 to 550 °C. Moreover, the effect of the grain size of 3YSZ on the degradation behavior of supports and the impact of the degradation on the fracture strength are presented.

The findings of this work indicate that the isothermal degradation of metastable tetragonal zirconia poses a significant challenge to the long-term durability of SOCs containing this class of zirconia materials. Ni-3YSZ supports are highly vulnerable to degradation at low and high temperatures. The degradation studies provide a clearer understanding of the degradation behavior of Ni-3YSZ ceramic and the effect of porosity on its degradation kinetics. The results further show that degradation drastically embrittles the supports. In addition, it is concluded that supports with fine-grained 3YSZ (with grain size smaller than 200 nm) have excellent resistance to degradation at different temperatures.

### Upscaling of proton conducting ceramic cells

#### Ragnar Kiebach<sup>\*</sup>, Federico Palmerini, Hendrik Marc Vincent Bohn

Technical University of Denmark DTU, Department of Energy Conversion and Storage, Anker Engelunds Vej, 2800 Kgs. Lyngby, Denmark \*E-mail: woki@dtu.dk

Keywords: proton conduction ceramics, electrolysis, hydrogen production, processing, upscaling

Ceramics based on proton-conducting oxides are promising for a variety of applications, including fuel cells, electrolysis, hydrogen pumping, or chemical synthesis, but up-scaling of cells and stack remains a challenge.

In this presentation, we will give an overview of ongoing activities at the Technical University of Denmark (DTU Energy) to address this challenge.

The latest results on upscaling planar proton-conducting ceramic cells (PCCs) based on  $Ba(Ce, Zr)O_3$  will be presented. Symmetrical and asymmetrical cells with an area of <140 cm<sup>2</sup> can be produced (Figure 1), and the geometry and composition of the electrolyte and electrodes can varied/optimized for different applications.

Also, the development of auxiliary components like interconnects and glass ceramic sealants needed to build stacks will be discussed. Furthermore, potential stacks design, which can circumvent challenges arising from the thermal expansion mismatches of the different materials used in PCC stacks, will be highlighted.

#### Figures



Proton Conducting Cermauic Cell produced at DTU.

### **Operation-specific electronic leakage in protonic ceramic electrolytes for solid oxide cells**

Bo Guan<sup>1,2</sup>, Hanchen Tian<sup>3</sup>, Yoosuf N. Picard<sup>4,3</sup>, Jian Liu<sup>1</sup>, Thomas Kalapos<sup>4,5</sup>, Harry W. Abernathy<sup>1</sup>, Lingfeng Zhou<sup>6</sup>, Xuemei Li<sup>6</sup>, Wenyuan Li<sup>6</sup>, <u>Xingbo Liu<sup>3\*</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>National Energy Technology Laboratory, Morgantown, WV, USA
<sup>2</sup>NETL Support Contractor, Morgantown, WV, USA
<sup>3</sup>Mechanical & Aerospace Engineering Department, Benjamin M. Statler College of Engineering & Mineral Resources, West Virginia University, Morgantown, WV 26506, USA
<sup>4</sup>National Energy Technology Laboratory, Pittsburgh, PA, USA
<sup>5</sup>NETL Support Contractor, Pittsburgh, PA, USA
<sup>6</sup>Chemical and Biomedical Engineering Department, Benjamin M. Statler College of Engineering & Mineral Resources, West Virginia University, Morgantown, WV 26506, USA
<sup>6</sup>Ermical and Biomedical Engineering Department, Benjamin M. Statler College of Engineering & Mineral Resources, West Virginia University, Morgantown, WV 26506, USA
<sup>\*</sup>E-mail: xingbo.liu@mail.wvu.edu

Electronic conduction through proton-conducting electrolytes significantly impairs the efficiency of protonic ceramic cells (PCCs). In this study, we explore the electron and ion mixed transport properties of four common protonic ceramics, BaZr<sub>0.8</sub>Y<sub>0.2</sub>O<sub>3-6</sub> (BZY82),  $BaZr_{0.7}Ce_{0.2}Y_{0.1}O_{3-\delta}$  (BZCY721),  $BaZr_{0.4}Ce_{0.4}Y_{0.1}Yb_{0.1}O_{3-\delta}$  (BZCYYb4411) and  $BaZr_{0.1}Ce_{0.7}Y_{0.1}Yb_{0.1}O_{3.8}$  (BZCYYb1711). It marks the first instance of investigating these properties under operation-specific scenarios: fuel side of electrolysis cell, air side of electrolysis cell, fuel side of fuel cell, and air side of the fuel cell. BZCYYb1711 exhibits the highest ionic conductivity, but 2-3 times higher electronic leakage when exposed to oxygencontaining environments than the others. BZY82 exhibits ~2 times higher electronic leakage in hydrogen-containing environment. BZCY721 demonstrates excellent ion transport numbers (~0.95) across these four operating conditions. BZCYYb4411 behaves quite similarly to BZCY721. The most challenging operating environment for all candidates is the air side of fuel cell mode. This mode leads to a high initial electronic leakage, followed by a significant increase with polarization. The probable cause for this behavior is a H<sub>2</sub>-free, polarization-induced reduction that leads to the formation of  $V_{0}$ . The electron small polaron associated with  $V_0$  is released by the electrical field due to the Poole-Frenkel effect. ZnO and NiO sintering aids are found to be detrimental to the ionic conductivity of the electrolytes. In particular, NiO substantially lowers the ion transport number. The correlation of these operation-specific electronic leakage to full cells is discussed. It is suggested that a rational PCCs design should synergistically couple BZCYYb1711 at fuel side with BZCY4411 at air side to deliver a well-balanced performance and faradaic efficiency simultaneously, and the high temperature sintering process with a NiO fuel electrode should be shortened or replaced by ultra-fast sintering techniques or using a fuel electrode scaffold-infiltration fabrication strategy.

# Development and performance evaluation of honeycomb based and planar based anode supported intermediate temperature solid oxide fuel cell for power generation

#### M Buchi Suresh\*, Bhaskar Prasad Saha, Roy Johnson

International Advanced Research Centre for Powder Metallurgy and New Materials, Balapur, Hyderabad, India-500005 \*E-mail: suresh@arci.res.in

Solid oxide fuel cells (SOFC's) are the interesting energy production systems because of their high efficiency, versatility in fuel usage and environmental friendliness. Currently the reduction of the operating temperature is very important issue for commercialization. Though extensive efforts are in progress to address this issue, reducing the operating temperatures to the intermediate temperature range of 500-800°C with traditional SOFC materials is still exists as a challenge. Lowering the operation temperature of SOFC will resolve a series of problems such as sintering of electrodes, high reactivity between cell components and strict requirements on interconnected materials, which will often happen in conventional SOFCs. The decrease in operating temperature however increases the cell over potential, and the main contributor to this increase is the ceramic components such as ceramic cathode, ceramic anode and ceramic electrolyte materials. Hence the development of solid oxide fuel cell with low polarization resistance is of great importance to achieve high power densities at reduced temperatures.

ARCI has started working on SOFC on a typical design of honeycomb structures for specific application. NiO-8YSZ ceramic anode powders are mixed with binder and made into dough, which is passed through specially designed and fabricated dies to achieve anode ceramic honeycombs with more than 16 no. of channels. Alternate channel are given an electrolyte coating using dip coating process and heat treated anode honeycombs along with coated electrolyte material. The dense electrolyte coated channels were coated with LSM cathode using dip coating process. Further, dual chamber interconnect is used to seal the channels with high temperature glass sealant. Thus, anode supported ceramic honeycomb SOFC has fabricated and tested the performance of the Honeycomb SOFC and proved the concept. The cross sectional image of the honeycomb SOFC single cell shows clearly the dense and thin 8YSZ electrolyte sandwiched between LSM cathode and Ni-8YSZ anode. ARCI indigenous produced nano-powders of LSM cathode used for SOFC by spray pyrolysis process. Cross sectional image of the honeycomb sofc cell developed is shown here with dense and thin electrolyte.



Further, to the above design, ARCI jointly with CGCRI and HPCL in a consortium project is establishing a pilot scale facility for the development of SOFC systems and fabricating indigenous solid oxide fuel cell single cells with 8YSZ electrolyte, LSM-8YSZ cathode functional layer, LSM cathode and Ni-8YSZ anode as support as well as anode support layer using tape casting process. The results will be presented and discussed during the presentation.

# Sinterability of NiO added BaZr<sub>0.8</sub>Yb<sub>0.2</sub>O<sub>3-6</sub> perovskite as an electrolyte of Protonic Ceramic Fuel Cell

<u>Ryuma Malik Matsuda</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Shun Kobayashi<sup>1</sup>, Masashi Mori<sup>1</sup>, Yuji Okuyama<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Central Research Institute of Electric Power Industry (CRIEPI), Yokosuka, Japan <sup>2</sup>Miyazaki University, Miyazaki, Japan \*E-mail: matsuda3835@criepi.denken.or.jp

Keywords: proton ceramic fuel cell, BaZr<sub>0.8</sub>Yb<sub>0.2</sub>O<sub>3-8</sub> perovskite, sinterability

Protonic Ceramic Fuel Cell (PCFC) can exhibit a power generation efficiency more than 70 % by high  $H_2$  fuel utilization<sup>1</sup>). BaZr<sub>0.8</sub>Yb<sub>0.2</sub>O<sub>3.6</sub> (BZYb) perovskite is considered as one of the most promising material for an electrolyte of PCFC. Since BZYb perovskite is well known to be quite poorly sinterable, BZYb perovskite is fired with NiO which is a fuel electrode component during PCFC fabrication process to obtain dense electrolyte. Further understandings of the sintering mechanism of NiO added BZYb during the fabrication process of PCFC are essential in controlling the material properties.

Fig. 1 shows relative densities of 1 wt. % NiO added BZYb perovskite as a function of firing temperature and holding time. The relative density of the sample significantly increased at firing temperature at 1300 °C and was 95 % at firing temperature at 1500 °C. Fig. 2 shows TG-DTA results of  $BaCO_3$ -NiO with equimolar ratio after heating at 1100 °C for 15 min. The endothermic peak at 1243 °C is corresponded to the melting point of the  $BaNi_xO_y$  eutectic product It is considered that this product is formed and promotes the sinterability of NiO added BZYb perovskite during the firing process. Further effects of NiO addition on sintering characteristics of BZYb perovskite will be discussed in the conference.

#### Figures



Fig. 1 Relative densities of 1 wt. % NiO added BZYb perovskite as a function of firing temperature and holding time.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary



Fig. 2 TG-DTA results of BaCO<sub>3</sub>-NiO with equimolar ratio after heating at 1100 °C for 15 min.

#### Acknowledgments

This work has been supported by the New Energy and Industrial Technology Development Organization (NEDO) Japan via the project "Development of Ultra-High Efficiency Protonic Ceramic Fuel Cell Devices (JPNP20003)".

#### References

K. P. Li et al., Energy Convers. Manag., 296 (2023) 117678.

# Creep behavior of glass-ceramic sealant in amorphous and crystalline phases for SOEC stack sealing

Pouya Shahriary<sup>1\*</sup>, Luca Di Stasio<sup>2</sup>, Peyman Khajavi<sup>1</sup>, Henrik Lund Frandsen<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Energy Conversion and Storage, Technical University of Denmark, Kongens Lyngby, Denmark

<sup>2</sup>Power-To-X, Topsoe A/S, Kongens Lyngby, Denmark \*E-mail: shahri@dtu.dk

Keywords: creep deformation, glass-ceramic sealant, crystallization, SOEC stack

The Solid-Oxide Electrolysis Cell (SOEC) is recognized as the most efficient electrolysis technology for Power-to-X solutions, despite its relative immaturity at the industrial level. A key factor in enhancing the competitiveness of this technology is extending the SOEC stack's lifespan, as the benefits of conversion efficiency can only offset installation costs over extended periods. To this end, SOEC stacks are designed to operate at high temperatures (>700°C) for several years, positioning creep as a crucial determinant of stack structural durability.

The long-term behavior of the glass-ceramic sealant is particularly critical, as it meets two fundamental design requirements: bonding stack components and preventing gas leakage. Given that glass ceramics are multi-phase materials, often featuring an amorphous phase coexisting with multiple distinct crystalline phases, it is valuable to characterize the creep behavior of each phase individually.

In this study, we have experimentally investigated the creep properties of glass-ceramic sealant material under varying temperatures and loads, within the stack's operational conditions. We have also examined the impact of crystallization on creep deformation. Furthermore, a creep constitutive material model has been utilized to predict glass sealant deformation at elevated temperatures, with these predictions subsequently compared to experimental results. The obtained results indicate that crystallization significantly reduces the creep deformation of the glass-ceramic material.

The findings of this work provide detailed information about the creep deformation of the Glass-Ceramic sealant material under stack working temperatures and are highly beneficial for the development of durable and high-performance SOEC stacks.

#### Acknowledgments

This project has received funding from Innovation Fund Denmark – 1150-00001B. Further information is available at missiongreenfuels.dk.

# Innovative architectures and nanostructures of composite oxygen electrodes for SOC application

Michael Spann<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Marlu César Steil<sup>1</sup>, Jérôme Laurencin<sup>2</sup>, Elisabeth Djurado<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Univ. Grenoble Alpes, Univ. Savoie Mont Blanc, CNRS, Grenoble INP, LEPMI, F-38000 Grenoble, France

<sup>2</sup>Univ. Grenoble Alpes, CEA/LITEN, 17 avenue des Martyrs, F-38054, Grenoble, France \*E-mail: michael.spann@grenoble-inp.fr

Keywords: solid oxide cells, oxygen electrode, electrostatic spray deposition, lanthanum nickelate composites

One strategy to limit the chemical reactivity between SOC (solid oxide cell) materials consists in lowering the operation temperature (~ 800 °C). This however also reduces reaction kinetics of oxygen species and the charge transport properties, especially at the oxygen electrode. An improvement of the charge transfer of oxygen species has been reported by optimizing the microstructure, composition of the oxygen electrode, and the quality of interfaces between ionic and electronic conducting layers using Electrostatic Spray Deposition (ESD).

In this work, we offer an innovative solution to create new nanostructures and architectures of LNO ( $La_2NiO_{4+\delta}$ ) and CGO ( $Ce_{0.9}Gd_{0.1}O_{2-\delta}$ ) composites by ESD and screen-printing. The electrochemical properties (measured by impedance spectroscopy) of these advanced electrodes are shown to be strongly dependent on (i) the unique coral-type microstructure (high porosity and specific surface area), and (ii) the architecture (chemical composition either homogeneously distributed through the electrode volume, or distributed in form of a gradient, or in a triple layer configuration). Temperature-dependent acquisition of impedance spectra in synthetic air allow to correlate the improvement of the polarization resistance with the microstructure and the oxygen electrode architecture [1].

#### Figures



Figure 1: Impedance spectra of CGO-LNO electrodes related to their structural and microstructural properties.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

#### Acknowledgments

This work benefited from state support managed by the Agence Nationale de la Recherche under the France 2030 program, referenced ANR-22-PEHY-0008.

#### References

Spann M. et al., Innovative SOC oxygen electrode architectures: Nanostructured La<sub>2</sub>NiO<sub>4+ $\delta$ </sub> and La<sub>2</sub>NiO<sub>4+ $\delta$ </sub> – Ce<sub>0.9</sub>Gd<sub>0.1</sub>O<sub>2- $\delta$ </sub> composite materials, J. Power Sources, To be published (this work).

# Mechanical properties of thin zirconia substrates, mechanisms of degradation and reduced performance

C. Steinborn<sup>1\*</sup>, W. Beckert<sup>1</sup>, M. Kusnezoff<sup>1</sup>, F.-M. Fuchs<sup>2</sup>, C. Geipel<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Fraunhofer IKTS, Winterbergstraße 28, 01277 Dresden, Germany <sup>2</sup>Kerafol GmbH, Koppe-Platz 1, 92676 Eschenbach, Germany <sup>3</sup>Sunfire GmbH, Gasanstaltstraße 2, 01237 Dresden, Germany \*E-mail: clemens.steinborn@ikts.fraunhofer.de

Keywords: zirconia substrates for SO(F)C, mechanical properties, reliability, degradation

One of the most critical issues in solid oxide cell and stack manufacturing is the mechanical failure in ceramic electrolyte. In operation, drastic performance losses and a reduced stack lifetime can be observed, if cells are mechanically destroyed.

In this study strength, fracture toughness and the influence of subcritical crack growth (SCCG) has been investigated for different zirconia electrolytes with thickness <200  $\mu$ m. Strength has been determined by tensile tests at room temperature and B3B tests up to a maximum stack temperature of 850 °C. The determination of fracture toughness via notched samples (ISO21113) is not suitable for substrates <200  $\mu$ m and materials of lower strength, due to specimen failure during notch polishing. Alternatively, evolution of crack length from Vickers hardness indentations up to 850 °C has been evaluated. The results show for T>400 °C a decreasing crack propagation resistance i.e., lower transformation toughening, for partially stabilized zirconia (3YSZ and 6ScSZ).

The mechanical measurements have been repeated after aging zirconia substrates by annealing. Pure 3YSZ and cathode-coated 3YSZ were annealed both in air and in a dual atmosphere (air and  $N_2 + 40 \% H_2$ ) for 100 h at 835 °C. Based on investigations of these samples, mechanisms, which lead to mechanical degradation of the electrolytes, will be discussed.

### Development of ceramic-supported Solid Oxide Cells with LSFNT-based fuel lectrode

<u>Mona Yarahmadi</u><sup>\*</sup>, Julian Taubmann, Albert Lopez de Moragas, Henrik Lund Frandsen, Bhaskar Reddy Sudireddy, Peyman Khajavi

Department of Energy Conversion and Storage, Technical University of Denmark, Fysikvej, Lyngby, 2800, Denmark

\*E-mail: myarah@dtu.dk

Keywords: solid oxide cell, fuel electrode, ceramic-supported cells, LSFNT

The Solid Oxide Cell (SOC) technology holds significant promise for efficient energy conversion and the production of green chemicals and fuels. However, it faces challenges related to durability and cost, particularly concerning the fuel electrode. Ni/8YSZ (Nickel/8 mol.% yttria-stabilized zirconia) is widely used as the fuel electrode in SOCs due to its high electrocatalytic activity and conductivity. However, challenges such as nickel migration reduce its performance and can hinder long-term operation.

To develop cells with improved fuel electrodes, low-Ni content fuel electrodes made of perovskites such as  $La_{0.49}Sr_{0.31}Ti_{0.94}Fe_{0.03}Ni_{0.03}O_3$  (LSFNT) have received significant attention. LSFNT is a material of interest, being an A-site deficient lanthanum-substituted SrTiO<sub>3</sub>, which has garnered attention in recent years. LSFNT fuel electrodes have shown promising performance and durability when integrated into metal-supported solid oxide cells. Still, their integration into 3YSZ-based supported cells and their performance at typical operating temperatures of such cells (>650°C) is not well investigated. Ceramic-supported LSFNT cells with infiltrated electrocatalysts could offer the potential for operation at higher temperatures and current densities with improved electrochemical performance.

In this work, we have developed ceramic-based fuel electrode-supported cells and investigated the performance of this cell configuration for SOEC operation. The cells have a multilayered structure, comprising a mechanical support layer of 3 mol.% yttria-stabilized zirconia (3YSZ), an LSFNT fuel electrode, a 10 mol.% scandia, and 1 mol.% yttria-stabilized zirconia (10Sc1YSZ) electrolyte, a gadolinia-doped ceria (CGO) barrier layer, an LSC (LaSr<sub>1-y</sub>CoO<sub>3-x</sub>)/CGO air electrode, and an LSC contact layer. These layers were fabricated using conventional ceramic processing techniques, such as tape casting and screen printing.

The microstructure evolution of the LSFNT fuel electrode as a function of sintering temperature (1200°C, 1225°C, and 1250°C) is studied. Additionally, phase stability at the interfaces between the support and electrode was assessed using Raman spectroscopy. Following the co-sintering process, intact cells were manufactured, and the cells exhibited appropriate microstructure, particularly regarding sinterability and adhesion of the fuel electrode with the 10Sc1YSZ electrolyte and Ni-3YSZ support layers. Electrochemical impedance spectroscopy (EIS) measurements were conducted on 4×4 cm<sup>2</sup> single cells, comparing pure LSFNT cells with those infiltrated with CGO and Ni-CGO catalysts. Cell reduction was carried out over 5 hours at 850°C in a diluted hydrogen atmosphere (5% H<sub>2</sub>/95% N<sub>2</sub>). EIS measurements were performed at three temperatures (700°C, 750°C, and 800°C) and with three different gas compositions (90/10, 50/50, and 20/80) of H<sub>2</sub>O/H<sub>2</sub>, while air was consistently introduced into the oxygen electrode. Durability tests were carried out at 750°C with 90/10% H<sub>2</sub>O/H<sub>2</sub>, air in the oxygen electrode, and a current density of -0.5 A/cm<sup>2</sup>. EIS measurements and durability results are discussed, and the effects of catalyst infiltration are evaluated.

# Effect on structure and performance of potassium-substituted barium-strontium-cobalt-ferrite materials as air electrode for protonconducting fuel cells

<u>Gudaysew T. Yenesew</u><sup>\*</sup>, Eric Quarez, Clement Nicollet, Annie Le Gal La Salle, Olivier Joubert

Nantes Université, CNRS, Institut des Matériaux de Nantes Jean Rouxel, IMN, F-44000 Nantes, France

\*E-mail: Gudaysew.Yenesew@cnrs-imn.fr

Keywords: protonic ceramic fuel cell, electrochemical performance, XRD, air electrode

Among the solutions for accelerating SOFC development, lowering the operating temperature to an intermediate range (IT) (600°C-800°C) with proton-conducting ceramic fuel cells is widely recognized. Potassium-substituted barium-strontium-cobalt-ferrite ( $K_xBa_{0.5-}_xSr_{0.5}Co_{0.8}Fe_{0.2}O_{3-8}$ , x = 0.00 - 0.20, BKSCF) was studied as air electrode materials for IT-SOFCs. BKSCF was synthesized by auto-combustion reaction using glycine as fuel. In this study, the effects of K doping on phase formation (XRD), microstructure and composition (SEM and EDX), surface area, lattice oxygen content, hygroscopicity and electrochemical performance are investigated.

K-doping during synthesis improves crystallization and stabilization of the perovskite phase. The XRD pattern shows that BKSCF has an ABO<sub>3</sub> cubic perovskite structure (Pm-3m)<sup>[1]</sup>. The refined lattice parameters were found to decrease non-linearly with K<sup>+</sup> doping concentration, which can occur<sup>[2]</sup>. This non-linear behavior could be related to the formation of anion vacancies<sup>[3]</sup> due to the aliovalent substitution of A<sup>2+</sup> by K<sup>+</sup>. Potassium doping also improves hydration properties and we observe that the sample with the highest K<sup>+</sup> doping exhibits high hygroscopic property.

The electrochemical performance of BKSCF was characterized by EIS using a symmetric cell configuration (BKSCF/BZCY/BKSCF). The area specific resistance at different temperatures, a valuable parameter for characterizing the catalytic oxygen reduction activity of the air electrode material, decreased with increasing K content.

- X. Xu, H. Wang, M. Fronzi, X. Wang, L. Bi, and E. Traversa, 'Tailoring cations in a perovskite cathode for proton-conducting solid oxide fuel cells with high performance', J. Mater. Chem. A, vol. 7, no. 36, pp. 20624–20632, 2019.
- T. Baidya et al., 'Understanding the anomalous behavior of Vegard's law in Ce<sub>1-x</sub>M<sub>x</sub>O<sub>2</sub> (M = Sn and Ti; 0 < x ≤ 0.5) solid solutions', Phys. Chem. Chem. Phys., vol. 18, no. 20, pp. 13974–13983, 2016.</li>
- H. Tarique, R. Shahid, P. Singh, A. K. Singh, R. Pandey, and P. Singh, 'Influence of K+ substitution on germanium doped strontium silicate (Sr<sub>3-3x</sub>K<sub>3x</sub>Si<sub>3-3y</sub>Ge<sub>3y</sub>O<sub>9-6</sub>; 0 ≤ x ≤ 0.20, y=0.1) for application as solid electrolyte', Physica B: Condensed Matter, vol. 672, p. 415456, Jan. 2024.

# Vacancies and electron holes triggers hydration reaction in Mn-based perovskite for Proton Ceramic Electrochemical Cells

#### Yuhao Zhao<sup>1</sup>, Yihang Li<sup>2</sup>, Youjun Lu<sup>1\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>State Key Laboratory of Multiphase Flow in Power Engineering, Xi'an Jiaotong University, Xi'an, Shaanxi, 710049, China <sup>2</sup>Interdisciplinary Research Center of Smart Sensors, Academy of Advanced Interdisciplinary Research, Xidian University, Shaanxi, 710126, China \*E-mail: yjlu@mail.xjtu.edu.cn (Youjun Lu)

Keywords: proton ceramic cells, Mn-based perovskite, hydration mechanisms, water tolerance

Proton ceramic electrochemical cells (PCECs) are an efficient energy conversion device, which can operate in fuel cell (PCFC) and electrolysis modes (PCEC) at medium temperatures  $(450-650 \text{ °C})^{[1,2]}$ . To improve the oxygen reduction reaction (ORR) and oxygen evolution reaction (OER) kinetics, many perovskite-based triple-conductor ( $H^+/e^-/O^{2-}$ ) oxides have been developed. Here, we design a PrMnO<sub>3</sub>-based perovskite by Ca incorporation into the Pr-site, leading to a change of intrinsic propetrties due to the introduction of oxygen vacancies and electron holes. Electrical conductivity relaxation (ECR) tests reveal that PrMnO<sub>2</sub> primarily undergoes a hydrogeneration mechanism during water absorption, characterized by a slow kinetic process. Conversely, Ca-doped Pr<sub>1-r</sub>Ca<sub>r</sub>MnO<sub>3-6</sub> (PCM) demonstrates a higher concentration of electron holes and oxygen vacancies, thereby contributed to a more rapid water uptake by encompassing both hydrogeneration and hydration mechanisms. Electrochemical test results show that PCM5 has the best electrochemical performance. In fuel cell mode, the single cell with PCM5 electrode delivers a peak power density of 1.28 Wcm<sup>-2</sup> at 650 °C; in electrolysis mode, a current density of 1.95 A cm<sup>-2</sup> at 1.3 V is achieved under 10 %H<sub>2</sub>O-air. Moreover, the single cell demonstrates excellent fuel cell stability at 600 °C and water tolerance under high water pressure of 75 %. These studies reveal that the incorporation of low-valence metals into the A-site of Mn-based perovskite can significantly enhance the electrochemical properties of air electrodes.



a) Schematic representation of the migration of four carriers during water uptake. b) ECR curves for PMO and PCM5. c) I-V-P curves of PCFC with PCM5 at 500-650 °C. d) Typical I-V curves of PCEC at 500-650 °C.

#### Acknowledgments

This work is supported by the National Natural Science Foundation of China (Grant No. 52336009).

- 1. Bi, L., Boulfrad, S., Enrico, Traversa, S. electrolysis by solid oxide electrolysis cells (SOECs) with proton-conducting oxides. Chem. Soc. Rev. 43, 8255–8270 (2014).
- Duan, C., Kee, R., Zhu, H. et al. Highly efficient reversible protonic ceramic electrochemical cells for power generation and fuel production. Nat. Energy. 4, 230–240 (2019).

# T1.2 CERAMICS-RELATED MATERIALS, DEVICES, AND PROCESSING FOR HEAT-TO-ELECTRICITY DIRECT CONVERSION AND THERMAL ENERGY HARNESSING

# Low-angle grain boundaries-advanced high thermoelectric performance in Bi<sub>2</sub>Te<sub>3</sub>-based alloys

#### Yuzheng Li, Qi Zhang, Chenguang Fu\*, Tiejun Zhu\*

School of Materials Science and Engineering, Zhejiang University, Hangzhou, China \*E-mail: chenguang\_fu@zju.edu.cn; zhutj@zju.edu.cn

Keywords: Bi2Te3, thermoelectric materials, low-angle grain boundaries, thermoelectric performance

 $Bi_2Te_3$ -based thermoelectric materials are widely used in near-room temperature refrigeration fields. Tuning the microstructure, such as introducing dislocations, grain boundaries, and so on, can suppress the thermal conductivity, and thus optimize the figure of merit (*zT*). Lowangle grain boundaries(LAGBs) which consist of dislocation arrays, can effectively scatter the medium-frequency phonons and thus suppress the lattice thermal conductivity while maintaining a weak effect on the carrier transport.[1,2] Developing more strategies to reliably introduce LAGBs into  $Bi_2Te_3$ -based materials and systematic investigations into how LAGBs affect the electrical and thermal transport properties are still elusive. Here, we explore a new method that can introduce a high fraction of LAGBs in  $Bi_2Te_3$ -based alloys and reveal its formation mechanism. Finally, a high room temperature *zT* with good mechanical properties is obtained. This work puts forward a paradigm of enhancing the thermoelectric properties via microstructure modulations and is significant to the industrialization of manufacturing  $Bi_2Te_3$ -based alloys and thermoelectric devices.

#### Referenses

- 1. A.S. Karolik, A.A. Luhvich, Calculation of electrical resistivity produced by dislocations and grain boundaries in metals, *J. Phys. Condens. Matter* 6 (1994), 873–886.
- 2. Q. Zhang et al., Enhancing the room temperature thermoelectric performance of n-type Bismuthtelluride-based polycrystalline materials by low-angle grain boundaries, *Mater. Today Phys.* 22 (2022), 100573.

# Synthesis and thermoelectric properties of polycrystalline YbMnSb<sub>2</sub>

Shuo Liu<sup>1</sup>, Qingyong Ren<sup>2</sup>, Tiejun Zhu<sup>1\*</sup>, Chenguang Fu<sup>1\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>School of Materials Science and Engineering, Zhejiang University, Hangzhou, China <sup>2</sup>Spallation Neutron Source Science Center, Dongguan, China \*E-mail: zhutj@zju.edu.cn; chenguang\_fu@zju.edu.cn

Keywords: semimetals, anisotropic, impurities, high mobility

Topological semimetals with exotic electronic structures have been discovered in recent years, which provide a new platform to further explore new thermoelectric candidates. Topological semimetal YbMnSb<sub>2</sub> possesses a 2D Dirac band and its single crystal has been reported to have a large power factor[1-3], attracting research attention as thermoelectric candidates. To further engineer the electronic structure using chemical doping or alloying, the easily fabricated high-quality polycrystals are a good platform. Here, we find YbMn<sub>2</sub>Sb<sub>2</sub>, as a secondary phase, could be found in the synthesized single-crystalline and polycrystalline YbMnSb<sub>2</sub>, the latter prepared by the conventional melting method. By further employing mechanical milling and Spark Plasma Sintering, high-purity polycrystalline YbMnSb<sub>2</sub> is sensitive to oxygen during the heating experiment, with a reaction equation as 4YbMnSb<sub>2</sub>+O<sub>2</sub>=2Yb<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>+4MnSb+4Sb. Finally, the Seebeck coefficient of the YbMnSb<sub>2</sub> sample reaches a maximum of 154  $\mu$ V/K at around 250 K, comparable to the single crystal. This study highlights the synthesis method of high-purity polycrystalline YbMnSb<sub>2</sub>, paving the way to further optimize its thermoelectric performance.

- 1. Y. Pan, et al. Thermoelectric properties of novel semimetals: a case study of YbMnSb<sub>2</sub>. *Adv. Mater*. 33, 2003168, (2021).
- 2. J. R. Soh, et al. Magnetic structure of the topological semimetal YbMnSb<sub>2</sub>. *Phys. Rev. B* 104, L161103, (2021).
- 3. S. Baranets et al. Transport properties and thermal behavior of YbMnSb<sub>2</sub> semimetal above room temperature. *J. Solid State Chem.* 303, 122467, (2021).

# Reversible room temperature brittle-plastic transition in $Ag_2Te_{1-x}S_x$ inorganic thermoelectric semiconductors

Yuechu Wang, Airan Li, Huiping Hu, Chenguang Fu<sup>\*</sup>, Tiejun Zhu<sup>\*</sup>

School of Materials Science and Engineering, Zhejiang University, Hangzhou, China \*E-mail: chenguang\_fu@zju.edu.cn; zhutj@zju.edu.cn

Keywords: plastic semiconductors, silver chalcogenides, phase structures, thermoelectric performance

Inorganic semiconductors with superior plasticity are highly desired in current flexible electronics, which however were rarely discovered owing to their intrinsic covalent and ionic bonds. The Ag<sub>2</sub>Te<sub>1-x</sub>S<sub>x</sub> semiconductors have recently been reported to exhibit plastic deformability [1-3]. Here, we report the reversible brittle-plastic transition in this inorganic semiconductor and we find that the plasticity of the Ag<sub>2</sub>Te<sub>1-x</sub>S<sub>x</sub> compounds is highly related to the phase structures [4]. The Ag<sub>2</sub>Te<sub>1-x</sub>S<sub>x</sub> with a monoclinic phase exhibits a brittle behavior, while the one with a cubic-crystalline/amorphous structure shows exceptional plasticity with a compressive strain of over 80%. Significantly, the reversible plastic-brittle transition in Ag<sub>2</sub>Te<sub>1-x</sub>S<sub>x</sub> inorganic semiconductors can be achieved by simple heat treatment. Besides the plasticity, the cubic-crystalline/amorphous Ag<sub>2</sub>Te<sub>0.6</sub>S<sub>0.4</sub> composites also possess good TE performance. This study uncovers the influence of phase structure on the mechanical properties of Ag<sub>2</sub>Te<sub>0.6</sub>S<sub>0.4</sub>, which will facilitate its prospective application in flexible/wearable electronics.

- 1. X. Shi, H. Chen. Room-temperature ductile inorganic semiconductor. Nat. Mater. 17, 421, (2018).
- 2. S. He, Y. Li. Semiconductor glass with superior flexibility and high room temperature thermoelectric performance. *Sci. Adv.* 6, eaaz8423, (2020).
- 3. H. Hu, Y. Wang. Achieving metal-like malleability and ductility in  $Ag_2Te_{1,x}S_x$  inorganic thermoelectric semiconductors with high mobility. *The Innovation* 3, 100341, (2022).
- Y. Wang, A. Li. Reversible Room Temperature Brittle-Plastic Transition in Ag2Te0.6S0.4 Inorganic Thermoelectric Semiconductor. *Adv. Funct. Mater.* 33, 2300189, (2023).

#### Low-grade thermal energy harvesting using organic materials

#### Qingshuo Wei\*, Masakazu Mukaida

National Institute of Advanced Industrial Science and Technology (AIST), Tsukuba, Japan \*E-mail: qingshuo.wei@aist.go.jp

Keywords: conducting polymers, lamination, contact resistance, natural cooling

In our daily lives, a substantial amount of valuable heat energy goes to waste, primarily in the temperature range from room temperature to approximately 200 °C. Harnessing this lowgrade thermal energy presents several challenges, including issues related to efficiency and energy payback during fabrication. Additionally, environmental considerations are crucial when devising solutions for broad applications. We aim to introduce thermoelectric devices based on organic materials to capture and utilize this untapped low-grade thermal energy resource.

The organic thermoelectric device introduced in this presentation, capable of operating within the temperature range of up to 200 °C. These devices are fabrciated by laminating ultrathin films of poly(3,4-ethylenedioxythiophene)/poly(styrenesulfonate) (PEDOT/PSS) with Ni foils. Careful consideration is given to the shape and size of the Ni foil to optimize thermal and electrical resistance matching while minimizing contact resistance between PEDOT/PSS and Ni.[1] Thanks to the inherently low thermal conductivity of organic materials, these devices exhibit impressive power density, achieving 72  $\mu$ W/cm<sup>2</sup> at 100 °C under natural cooling conditions without the need for a heat sink. Remarkably, a mere 5-gram device can fully charge a commercial Li-ion battery within just two days.[2] Furthermore, these organic thermoelectric devices can seamlessly replace CR2032 coin cells to power a wide range of commercial sensors, including those for acceleration, geomagnetism, and il-luminance.[3]

Figures



(a) Power density and weight power density of the device as a function of the hot-side temperature. The mass density of the device is ca.1.6 g/cm<sup>3</sup>. The inset is a photograph of the module. (b) Charging curve of a Nichicon SLB03070LR35 commercial Li-ion battery obtained for a process whereby the herein-manufactured organic thermoelectric module was used at 100 °C. In the inset is the block diagram.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

- 1. M. Mukaida, K. Kirihara, and Q. Wei ACS. Applied. Energy. Mater. 2, 6973 (2019).
- 2. M. Mukaida, K. Kirihara, T. Ebihara and Q. Wei Mater. Today. Energy. 32, 101238 (2023).
- 3. M. Mukaida, K. Kirihara, S. Horike and Q. Wei J. Mater. Chem. A 43, 22544 (2020).

## T1.3 Emerging Materials and Technologies for Solar Cells and Solar Fuel Technologies

### Multiscale modelling of the thermal radiative properties of a CeO<sub>2</sub> ceramic pellet for solar H<sub>2</sub> production at high temperature

Léo Gaillard<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Pierre-Marie Geffroy<sup>2</sup>, Abderezak Aouali<sup>1</sup>, Benoît Rousseau<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>LTEN, École Polytechnique de Nantes Université, Nantes, France <sup>2</sup>IRCER, Université de Limoges, Limoges, France \*E-mail: leo.gaillard@univ-nantes.fr

Keywords: H<sub>2</sub>, ceria, dielectric model, 2-flux approximation, emissivity

Solar thermochemistry is a green way to produce hydrogen ( $H_2$ ) at high temperature. This technology is based on a two-step redox thermochemical cycle, heated by a concentrated solar power device. The most commonly used material is cerium oxide, or ceria (CeO<sub>2</sub>). The reduction step is done at 1500°C, and the oxidation step at 900°C with the introduction of water in the reactor. The oxide reduces the water vapor, forming dihydrogen. Experimentations approaching the industrial production scale use heliostat field (50 kW) concentrating solar radiation to a reactor in a solar tower, but this process has a limited yield of 4% [1].

To enhance the  $H_2$  production, one of the main challenges is to reduce the temperature gradient in the reactor. This latter is due to the front face exposure of the CeO<sub>2</sub> 3D structure to the concentrated solar radiation. To cope with this issue, one way consists in the numerical optimization of the 3D architecture in order to obtain the most homogeneous volume distribution of the solar flux in the porous reactor, which can be designed furthermore by additive manufacturing [2]. The validity of these modelling depends on the exact knowledge of the thermal radiative properties of CeO<sub>2</sub> in the conditions of the H<sub>2</sub> production process, i.e. 900 to 1500°C, pO<sub>2</sub>=10<sup>-5</sup> atm. Currently, the radiative properties are known only at room temperature [3]. However, the electronic transport properties in the ceria induced by the redox cycle can generate absorption mechanisms of infrared radiation when the temperature grows up, and its impact on the radiative properties is little known.

To establish a firm link between these two physical features, spectral reflectance and transmittance measurements has been firstly performed on a dense CeO<sub>2</sub> pellet by infrared and visible spectroscopy at room temperature, from 600 to 20000 cm<sup>-1</sup> (i.e 0.5 to 16.7  $\mu$ m). Electrical conductivity characterizations on the CeO<sub>2</sub> sample has been secondly done from 900 to 1500°C on a large pO<sub>2</sub> range (from 1 to 10<sup>-23</sup> atm.). Thirdly, a multiscale modelling of the normal spectral emissivity of a CeO<sub>2</sub> ceramic bulk is proposed. The parameters injected in the model are extracted from the latter experiments. It combines a modified 2-flux approximation to describe the effective radiative behavior of the grains constituting the pellets, and a Drude-Lorentz model to take into account the electronic contributions. The computed spectra are compared to spectral emissivity measurements carried out at high temperature by infrared spectroscopy. The calculated emissivity is high (0.85) in the temperature range of interest (900-1500°C). The multiscale modelling also shows that the role of the ceramic

microstructure on the spectral emissivity becomes negligible at 900°C and beyond. This suggests that the high temperature radiative behaviors of single crystals and dense ceramics of CeO<sub>2</sub> would be rather closed.

- 1. S. Zoller *et al.*, « A solar tower fuel plant for the thermochemical production of kerosene from H2O and CO2 », *Joule*, 6-7, 1606–1616, 2022.
- S. Sas Brunser *et al.*, « Design and Optimization of Hierarchically Ordered Porous Structures for Solar Thermochemical Fuel Production Using a Voxel-Based Monte Carlo Ray-Tracing Algorithm », ACS Eng. Au, 3–5, 326–334, 2023.
- K. Ganesan *et al.*, « Visible and near-infrared optical properties of ceria ceramics », *Infrared Phys. Technol.*, 57, 101–109, 2013.

# Lead free photoactive BiFeO<sub>3</sub>-BaTiO<sub>3</sub> solid solutions as solar water splitting photoelectrodes

Sina Saremi-Yarahmadi<sup>\*</sup>, Thomas Clarkson, Hongtao Zhang

Department of Materials, Loughborough University, Loughborough, UK \*E-mail: s.saremi@lboro.ac.uk

Keywords: photoelectrode, ferroelectrics, thin films, water splitting

As the world transitions to a carbon neutral future, it is generally accepted that hydrogen plays an essential part as a fuel source. The use of solar energy as means of water splitting is among the most attractive prospects for generating green hydrogen. However up until now, large market deployment of photocatalytic and photoelectrochemical systems has not materialised owing to relatively low energy conversion efficiencies. The use of ferroelectric polarisation as a means of enhancing charge separation and thus improving energy conversion efficiency of these systems has been well reported. BiFeO<sub>3</sub>-BaTiO<sub>3</sub> solid solutions have attracted widespread interest in recent years as a lead-free alternative to lead zirconate titanate (PZT), with both displaying enhanced ferroelectric polarisation within morphotropic phase boundary regions. With few ferroelectric materials attracting as much interest as BiFeO<sub>3</sub> for photocatalytic systems it is surprising BiFeO<sub>3</sub>-BaTiO<sub>3</sub> has remained almost completely unexplored.

This work presents photoelectrochemical performance of BiFeO<sub>3</sub>-BaTiO<sub>3</sub> solid solution thin films and powders as a photocatalyst for hydrogen generation under visible light irradiation. The charge transfer behaviour is explored by considering photoelectrochemical data as well as electrochemical impedance spectroscopy. Ferroelectric properties and photoperformance of this material system are thoroughly examined to elucidate the link between ferroelectric polarisation and photocatalytic performance.

#### Acknowledgments

The authors acknowledge use of the facilities and characterisation equipment in the Loughborough Materials Characterisation Centre (LMCC) at Loughborough University. This work was supported by The Engineering and Physical Sciences Research Council (Grant number EP/R513088/1).
### T1.4 MATERIAL SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGIES FOR ADVANCED NUCLEAR Fission and Fusion Energy

### Investigation studies of WNbMoVTa and WNbMoVTaCr<sub>0.5</sub>Al refractory high entropy alloys as plasma-facing materials

#### <u>Burçak Boztemu</u>r<sup>1\*</sup>, Yue Xu², Laima Luo², M. Lütfi Öveçoğlu<sup>1</sup>, Duygu Ağaoğulları<sup>1\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Istanbul Technical University, Faculty of Chemical and Metallurgical Engineering, Department of Metallurgical and Materials Engineering, Particulate Materials Laboratories (PML), Graphene & 2D Materials Laboratory, 34469 Maslak, Istanbul, Türkiye

<sup>2</sup>School of Materials Science and Engineering, Hefei University of Technology, Hefei 230009 China E-mail: boztemur15@itu.edu.tr; bozkurtdu@itu.edu.tr

Keywords: refractory high entropy alloy, wear resistance, microhardness, He+ irradiation

Tungsten (W) is used chiefly as plasma-facing material. However, it has some problems, such as brittleness after plasma exposure. High-entropy alloys (RHEAs) are a new opportunity for this deficiency. So, the neutron shielding behavior of WNbMoVTa and WNbMoVTaCr<sub>0.5</sub>Al compositions were examined against He<sup>+</sup> irradiation in this study. The mechanical and irradiation properties of the WNbMoVTa base composition were investigated by adding the Al and Cr elements. The mechanical alloying (MA) for 6 hours was applied to obtain RHEA powders. According to the X-ray diffraction (XRD) method, the body-centered cubic (BCC) phase and NbTa phase with a small amount of WC impurity that comes from vials and balls were determined after 6 h MA. Also, RHEA powders were consolidated with the spark plasma sintering (SPS) method (1500 °C, 30 MPa, and 10 min). After the SPS method, (Nb,Ta) C and  $W_2C_{0.85}$  phases were obtained with the decomposition of WC and stearic acid that is added during MA based on XRD results. Also, the BCC phase was obtained for both samples. While the Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> phase with a small intensity was seen for the WNbMoVTaCr<sub>0.5</sub>Al sample, the  $Ta_2VO_6$  phase was determined for the base sample. These phases were observed as three different regions according to scanning electron microscopy (SEM). All elements were distributed homogeneously on the white region by measuring of electron probe micro-analyzer (EPMA) coupled with a wavelength dispersive spectroscope (WDS). Also, the grey region of the WNbMoVTa sample was rich for Ta, V, and O elements. However, the amount of Al and O elements was higher for the grey region of the WNbMoVTaCr<sub>0.5</sub>Al sample. The high amount of Nb, Ta, and C elements were determined for both samples. Archimedes' densities that were measured with alcohol media were closer to the theoretical densities of RHEAs. These values were important for the microhardness and irradiation resistance of compositions. While the Vickers microhardness value of the WNbMoVTa sample was measured as  $\sim$ 11 GPa, this value increased to nearly 13 GPa with the WNbMoVTaCr<sub>0.5</sub>Al sample. These values were compatible with the wear behavior. The wear volume loss was decreased to  $0.16 \times 10^{-4}$  from  $1.25 \times 10^{-4}$  mm<sup>3</sup> by the addition of Al and Cr elements to the WNbMoVTa. The He<sup>+</sup> irradiation was conducted on the samples to observe surface damage. After irradiation, the XRD patterns were shifted to the left because of defects and dislocations. He<sup>+</sup> ions

Oral

were infused under the surface, so they created the lattice expansion. The peak shifting of the WNbMoVTaCr<sub>0.5</sub>Al sample was less than the WNbMoVTa base sample, thanks to less impact. A small amount of fuzz was observed for the base sample. This structure was removed and transformed to a wavy structure with the addition of Cr and Al elements. Also, the deformation hardening was actualized after irradiation. A lower amount of hardening was obtained with the WNbMoVTaCr<sub>0.5</sub>Al sample based on the changing microhardness values. The surface deformation was decreased in the WNbMoVTaCr<sub>0.5</sub>Al sample.

# Thermochemical simulation of the behavior of a nuclear fuel in space reactors

#### Gustavo Costa<sup>1\*</sup>, Juliano S Pinto<sup>2</sup>, Theodore Besmann<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>NASA Glenn Research Center, Environmental Effects and Coatings Branch, Cleveland, Ohio, 44135, USA

<sup>2</sup>University of South Carolina, General Atomics SmartState Center for Transformational Nuclear Technologies, Columbia, South Carolina, 29208, USA

\*E-mail: gustavo.costa@nasa.gov

Oral

Keywords: nuclear fuels, themochemistry, propulsion, CALPHAD

Simulation of the thermochemical behavior of materials play a crucial role in understanding their durability in nuclear thermal propulsion (NTP)<sup>1</sup> and power related applications. Currently, NASA's Space Nuclear Propulsion (SNP) and Fission Surface Power (FSP) projects are focusing on the development of nuclear thermal propulsion and power technologies to meet future space exploration missions. Knowledge gained in computing properties have important implications for development of reliable fuel forms required for these technologies. Ceramic-ceramic (cercer) UN-based fuels have been considered for NTP and power related applications.<sup>2-4</sup>. In the cercer fuel system, ceramic UN fuel kernels are dispersed in a ceramic matrix, such as ZrC. For NTP, U-235 fission reactions in the reactor core generate the thermal energy required to heat the propellant to high exhaust temperatures for rocket thrust.<sup>2</sup> For FSP, U-235 fission reactions generate the thermal energy necessary for a power conversion system such as a Stirling or Brayton engine, to convert that heat into electricity.

We summarize and discuss in this presentation our current calculations of the thermochemical behavior of graphite-coated UN fuel kernels during nuclear reactor operation. For the calculations, we used the Thermo-Calc software together with the Thermodynamic of Advanced Fuels-International Database (TAF-ID version 9) providing thermodynamic functions for the fuel. The fcc UC<sub>1-x</sub>N<sub>x</sub>,  $\beta - U_2N_3$ , and graphite phases in equilibrium were found to be relatively stable up to ~2810 K where  $\alpha - U_2N_3$  begins to form. A liquid phase forms above 2891 K where extensive reactions take place. The  $\beta - U_2N_3$  and  $\alpha - U_2N_3$  phases are stabilized by the high N<sub>2</sub> pressure built up in the enclosed kernel porosity, delaying their decomposition to higher temperatures. The fcc UC<sub>1-x</sub>N<sub>x</sub> phase was found to be the major product of the reaction between UN and graphite coating with the vapor phase dominated by carbon-nitrogen gas species. The implications of these results for predicting the operation of NTP and FSP reactor systems are discussed.



Figure 1. Calculated total amount of phases in the UN-C kernel

- Borowski S, McCurdy D, Packard T. Nuclear Thermal Propulsion (NTP): A Proven Growth Technology for Human NEO/Mars Exploration Missions,"Proc. IEEE Aerospace Conf., Big Sky, Montana, March 3–10, 2012, IEEE (2012).
- Clark JS, McDaniel P, Howe S. Nuclear Thermal Propulsion Technology. NASA Technical Memorandum. 1991; 105711.
- Besmann TM, Shin D, Lindemer TB. Uranium nitride as LWR TRISO fuel: Thermodynamic Modeling of U-C-N. Journal of Nuclear Materials, 2012; 427: 16–168.
- Terrani KA, Jolly BC, Harp JM. Uranium Nitride Tristructural-isotopic Fuel Particle. Journal of Nuclear Materials, 2020; 531:152034.

# Outstanding performance of PLD-grown amorphous alumina coatings dedicated for advanced nuclear applications

<u>A. Zaborowska</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Ł. Kurpaska<sup>1</sup>, M. Zieliński<sup>1</sup>, E. Wyszkowska<sup>1</sup>, F. di Fonzo<sup>2,3</sup>, M. Frelek-Kozak<sup>1</sup>, J. Jagielski<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>National Center for Nuclear Research, NOMATEN CoE MAB+ Division, Otwock, Poland <sup>2</sup>Center for Nano Science and Technology @PoliMi, Istituto Italiano di Tecnologia, Milano, Italy <sup>3</sup>X-nano S.r.l, Milano, Italy \*E-mail: agata.zaborowska@ncbj.gov.pl

**Keywords**: nuclear materials, amorphous materials, alumina coatings, high temperature applications, nanoindentation, X-ray diffraction, radiation damage

Lead-cooled fast reactor (LFR) is one of Generation IV concepts, allowing to close the fuel cycle and thus to reduce the uranium consumption and to limit the volume of high-level wastes for disposal. The main drawback of the advanced lead or lead–bismuth eutectic (LBE) cooled energy systems is the issue related to corrosion degradation of structural materials exposed to the heavy liquid metal. It is widely recognized that all available corrosion resistant metallic materials are not suitable for use in liquid lead and LBE environment, at temperatures above 500 °C. One of the considered strategies to mitigate the issue consists in deposition of an external coating on the steel substrate. The leading candidate for the coating material is alumina. Pulsed laser deposition (PLD) is one of the physical vapor deposition techniques which can be used to grow thin alumina films and permits the deposition at low substrate temperatures. In the past decade, a growing interest of the nuclear community in PLD-grown amorphous alumina coatings have been observed. Available literature data prove that PLD-grown Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> coatings show excellent corrosion resistance in HLM and exhibit a number of features desirable for nuclear applications. One of the biggest reasons for that lies in metal-like mechanical properties and strong interfacial bonding of the system.

Presented work is a part of the ongoing research on this topic. Performed studies focus on the influence of high temperature and radiation damage on the coating properties. To determine the effect of the anticipated service conditions (up to 550 °C and 200 dpa) on materials performance a series of room and high temperature tests were performed. 1 µm PLD-grown amorphous Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> coatings deposited at room temperature were ion irradiated. Comprehensive post-irradiation characterization comprising microstructural and mechanical analysis was performed using X-ray diffraction, transmission electron microscopy and nanoindentation. Additionally, to study the evolution of the coating under high temperature, in situ nanoindentation (up to 650 °C) and X-ray diffraction (up to 1100 °C) measurements were carried out. It has been demonstrated that as the temperature increases (up to 650 °C), the amorphous alumina experiences a constant gradual decrease in hardness and an increase in plasticity. The phenomenon that has been reported is crucial since it indicates that the alumina coating-steel substrate system is mechanically well-suited for use at high temperatures. The XRD work shows the importance of phase transformation control in amorphous alumina, as it is critical to the performance of the system and a crucial point for understanding the damage behavior of such coatings. Overall, the results obtained so far are very promising and show that the system retains its integrity under the conditions investigated.

### Acknowledgments

The research leading to these results was carried out in the frame of the EERA Joint Programme on Nuclear Materials and is partly funded by the European Commission Horizon 2020 Framework Programme under grant agreement No. 755269 (GEMMA project) and grant agreement No. 101061241 (INNUMAT). We acknowledge support from the European Union Horizon 2020 research and innovation program under grant agreement no. 857470 and from the European Regional Development Fund via the Foundation for Polish Science International Research Agenda PLUS program grant No. MAB PLUS/2018/8. Lastly, financial support from the Ministry of Science and Higher Education was granted under agreement no. 3906/H2020-EURATOM/2018/2 is gratefully acknowledged.

# Investigation on failure mechanism of multilayer SiC accident tolerant fuel claddings by *in situ* high-temperature X-ray computed micro-tomography

<u>Qiance Zhang<sup>1,2</sup></u>, Ming Jiang<sup>1,2</sup>, Daniel Cogbill<sup>2</sup>, Alex Comyn<sup>2</sup>, Guanjie Yuan<sup>1,2</sup>, Farhad Mohammadi<sup>3</sup>, George Beam<sup>3</sup>, David H. Cook<sup>4</sup>, Robert O. Ritchie<sup>4</sup>, Dong Liu<sup>1,2\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Engineering Science, University of Oxford, Oxford, UK <sup>2</sup>School of Physics, University of Bristol, Bristol, UK <sup>3</sup>Ceramic Tubular Products, LLC, Rustburg, USA <sup>4</sup>Department of Materials Science and Engineering, University of California, Berkeley, USA \*E-mail: dong.liu@trinity.ox.ac.uk

Keywords: silicon carbide, nuclear fuel cladding, X-ray computed micro-tomography, C-ring compression

Silicon carbide (SiC) ceramics are promising candidates for accident tolerant fuel claddings in light water reactors due to their outstanding high-temperature strength and excellent corrosion resistance under severe accident conditions. SiC fibre reinforced SiC matrix (SiC/SiC) composites can effectively mitigate the inherent brittleness of monolithic SiC with the fibre acting as the reinforcement phase to prevent catastrophic failure. In this work, SiC claddings with a novel multilayer design were investigated. This cladding consists of a sintered inner SiC monolith, a SiC,/SiC composite intermediate layer fabricated by Polymer Infiltration and Pyrolysis (PIP) method, and a thin SiC outer layer coated by Chemical Vapour Deposition (CVD) process. An in situ synchrotron X-ray computed tomography (XCT) imaging study of C-ring compression test specimens at room temperature, 800°C, and 1050°C was conducted to determine the deformation and fracture mechanism of the SiC multilayer tubes. Specifically, the crack initiation and propagation processes in the multilayer cladding material have been captured. The failure load and ultimate hoop strength at 1050°C have been found to be higher than those of room temperature indicating an improved load bearing capability at higher temperatures under C-ring compression configuration. In addition, the results also revealed crack toughening mechanisms within themultilayer SiC cladding, where the SiC/ SiC composite functioned effectively enabling non-brittle fracture behaviour at room and elevated temperatures.

### Acknowledgments

Acknowledgment: This material is based upon work supported by the U.S. Department of Energy, Office of Science, Office of Basic Energy Sciences Energy Frontier Research Centers program under Award Number DE-EE0009030.

### T1.5 NANOSTRUCTURED, AND HYBRID FUNCTIONAL MATERIALS FOR Energy and Sustainability

# **3D OS FeRAM constructed by stacking Vertical OSFET and ferroelectric trench capacitor**

<u>Sota Abe</u><sup>\*</sup>, Shiyuu Numata, Yuji Egi, Fumito Isaka, Sachiaki Tezuka, Hiromi Sawai, Motomu Kurata, Tsutomu Murakawa, Kazuaki Ohshima, Masami Endo, Shunpei Yamazaki

Secmiconductor Energy Laboratory Co., Ltd, Kanagawa, Japan \*E-mail: sa1426@sel.co.jp

Keywords: low-power device, ferroelectric device, oxide semiconductor

Data centers demand more power with the development of Information and Communications Technology (ICT), which presumably causes an explosive increase in power consumption [1]. The increased power consumption might accelerate global warming. Considering the above situation, measures need to be taken in hardware. Widely-used DRAMs and flash memories have problems in power consumption and cycle characteristics. In view of this, non-volatile memories (NVMs) are promising as a low-power device. Among NVMs, HfO<sub>2</sub>-based FeRAM has been attracting attention.

The  $HfO_2$ -based FeRAM has features such as high endurance (> 1E+11 cycles), long data retention time, and non-volatility [2]. Meanwhile, FeRAM has a problem of high driving voltage. To obtain ferroelectricity, a  $HfO_2$  film needs to be thick in many cases, leading to high driving voltage. An oxide semiconductor (OS) FET is a minute device with high breakdown voltage and can be formed over a Si FET [2]. Thus, in fabrication of a memory, a peripheral circuit can be placed under memory cells, so that the area efficiency of a non-volatile memory is increased. In addition, like conventional DRAM, FeRAM requires a high-density capacitor array, and thus a ferroelectric trench capacitor [3] has been also considered.

In fabrication of a memory cell, we combined a trench capacitor with a vertical channel FET (VFET) including an OS; the VFET is suitable for reducing the cell size [4]. Since the VFET has a vertical channel, a lower electrode of the VFET can be used also as an electrode of the trench capacitor, which facilitates connection.

For the purpose of reducing the total device area, we formed a ferroelectric trench capacitor under a vertical OSFET utilizing the above features (Figs. 1(A) and 1(B)). Both FET characteristics (Fig. 1(C)) and ferroelectric characteristics (Fig. 1(D)) are favorable, from which operation of the 3D OS FeRAM has been demonstrated. Figures



Fig. 1 3D VFET/trench capacitor structure

Schematic view of 3D VFET/trench capacitor structure. (B) Cross-sectional STEM image of VFET/trench capacitor structure. (C) VFET's Id-Vg curve. (D) ferroelectric trench capacitor's P-V curve.

### References

S. Yamazaki et al., Jpn. J. Appl. Phys., 53, 2014. [2] M. Endo et al., IEDM Tech. Dig., p.135, 2022.
[3] N. Haratipour et al., IEDM Tech. Dig., p.138, 2022. [4] Y. Okamoto et al., Symposium on VLSI Technology and Circuits, 2023.

Oral

### Insight into energy conversion properties of MOCVD-deposited eu-doped barium fluoride thin films: A comprehensive analysis

<u>Francesca Lo Presti</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Anna Lucia Pellegrino<sup>1</sup>, Emil Milan<sup>2</sup>, Eros Radicchi<sup>2</sup>, Adolfo Speghini<sup>2</sup>, Graziella Malandrino<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Dipartimento di Scienze Chimiche, Università di Catania and INSTM UdR Catania V.le A. Doria 6, 95125 Catania Italy <sup>2</sup>Nanomaterials Research Group, Dipartimento di Biotecnologie, Università di Verona and INSTM UdR Verona, Strada le Grazie 15, 37134 Verona, Italy \*E-mail: francesca.lopresti@unict.it

Keywords: MOCVD, energy conversion, photovoltaic

In recent years, a significant push towards the development of novel functional materials has been observed, driven by the quest to enhance the efficiency of photovoltaic (PV) devices while maximizing the utilization of solar radiation. One advanced approach to enhance the efficiency of PV systems involves the conversion of photons with energies that lie beyond the absorption capabilities of the photoactive material, typically silicon, into a more suitable optical region. Within this landscape, lanthanide (Ln)-doped fluoride materials have emerged as highly promising contenders for energy conversion (EC) applications, owing to their unique luminescent properties upon exposure to light irradiation. Previous research indicates that fluorides serve as more efficient inorganic hosts for EC processes compared to other inorganic matrices.  $BaF_2$  stands out as a promising host for incorporating luminescent  $Ln^{3+}$  ions, thanks to its low phonon energy (similar to or even lower than commonly used hosts like  $NaYF_4$ ), high chemical stability, wide transparency, and versatile synthesis methods. Trivalent lanthanide ions can be easily integrated into the  $BaF_2$  crystal structure due to their comparable coordination sphere, but a charge compensation mechanism is essential to offset the additional charge.

This study delves into the fabrication of Eu-doped  $BaF_2$  thin films using the metalorganic chemical vapor deposition technique (MOCVD), focusing on the production process and down-shifting (DS) luminescent properties (see the scheme of figure 1). The production of  $BaF_2$  thin films doped with  $Eu^{3+}$  employs a multicomponent mixture of metalorganic adducts in an appropriate molar ratio to finely tune the chemical compositions of the films.

Structural, morphological, and compositional characterization of the films was conducted using X-ray diffraction (XRD), field-emission scanning electron microscopy (FE-SEM), and energy-dispersive X-ray analysis (EDX). Finally, luminescence spectroscopy was employed to assess the functional properties of the films.

These MOCVD-grown luminescent thin films hold great promise as downshifting layers in photovoltaic cells, allowing harnessing of the UV component of the solar spectrum.



Figure 1. MOCVD approach adopted to produce Eu-doped barium fluoride thin films.

### Acknowledgments

This work has been partially funded by the European Union, through the MUR-PNRR project SAMO-THRACE (ECS00000022).

# Synthesis of the lead-free piezoceramic potassium sodium niobate (KNN) via an aqueous route

### Mark A. Rambaran\*, Kimberly A. Dick

Centre for Analysis and Synthesis, Lund University, 22100 Lund, Sweden NanoLund, Lund University, 22100 Lund, Sweden \*E-mail: mark.rambaran@chem.lu.se

Keywords: lead-free, piezoceramic, KNN, hexaniobate

The use of PZT has continued despite the restriction of hazardous substances (RoHS) directives being passed by the European union (EU) to limit the use of hazardous materials – such as lead (PZT) – in electronic equipment. This is influenced by a lack of available substitutes that can be implemented and scaled in a reasonable time to eliminate the use of PZT (RoHS Annex III). The lead-free alkali-niobate, potassium sodium niobate (K<sub>x</sub>Na<sub>1,x</sub>NbO<sub>3</sub>, KNN), is a potential replacement for PZT, since it can exhibit equivalent, if not better, piezoelectric properties without compromise at temperatures >120 °C. The challenges in the synthesis of KNN, however, have hindered its use as an alternative. A notable challenge includes difficulty in achieving the 50% K<sup>+</sup> and Na<sup>+</sup> occupancy required to make stochiometric KNN (i.e.,  $K_{0.5}Na_{0.5}NbO_3$ ) and a lack of control in the formation of phase boundaries. Therefore, developing a reproducible method for synthesising stoichiometric KNN, bodes well for the implementing KNN as a commercial piezoceramic. Most syntheses of KNN continue to be based on procedures which encompass either solid-state, hydrothermal, spray pyrolysis or sol-gel techniques. The solid-state syntheses may include reacting Na<sub>2</sub>CO<sub>3</sub>, K<sub>2</sub>CO<sub>3</sub> and  $Nb_2O_5$  in a molten salt reaction to yield a precursor oxide that can be sintered to obtain KNN. Notably, the use of a molten salt is to overcome the inertness of  $Nb_2O_5$ . The hydrothermal route circumvents the use of molten salt via the use of alkali hydroxides and Nb<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub>, to similarly yield precursors to KNN. However, the solid-state and hydrothermal routes still require prolonged heating to yield KNN. Likewise, a molten salt reaction is challenging to control. Herein a simple and robust method for synthesis of the lead-free piezoceramic material KNN has been developed via an aqueous route. Stochiometric KNN (K0.5Na05NbO3) was prepared by combining alkali-nitrate solutions (NaNO<sub>3</sub> and KNO<sub>3</sub>) with the nano-sized, water-soluble, niobium precursor hexaniobate ( $[H_xNb_6O_{19}]^{8x}$ , Nb<sub>6</sub>), followed by sintering at elevated temperatures for at least one hour. Limitations associated with stochiometric control and selectivity, that are inherent to conventional methods of solid-state, sol-gel and hydrothermal based KNN synthesis, can be obviated with the use of this water-soluble niobium precursor.



### **Graphical abstract**

Schematic representation of the synthesis KNN from the water-soluble hexaniobate species (Nb<sub>6</sub>)

#### Acknowledgments

The Knut & Alice Wallenberg Foundation and Magnus Bergvalls Stiftelse (PANLA:2023-453) are acknowledged for financial support. Companhia Brasileira de Metalurgia e Mineração (CBMM) is acknowledged for a generous gift of niobic acid.

### T1.6 Advanced Batteries and Supercapacitors for Energy Storage Applications

### Comparative study on the electrochemical and physical properties of water-based electrodes via manufacturing process: Screenprinting vs. conventional coating

### Nora Chelfouh<sup>1\*</sup>, Ngoc Duc Trinh<sup>2</sup>, Chloé Bois<sup>2</sup>, Audrey Laventure<sup>1</sup>, Mickaël Dollé<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Chemistry, Université de Montréal, Montréal, Canada <sup>2</sup>Printability and Graphic Communications Institute, Montréal, Canada \*E-mail: nora.chelfouh@umontreal.ca

Keywords: Li-ion battery, biobased polymers, electrode process

Energy storage has been vividly studied over the past few years as one of the solutions to climate change. This domain covers a vast variety of systems, from mechanical storage devices that involve complex systems with numerous tools, to lighter electrical energy storage systems such as batteries. The lithium-ion battery remains essential in electrical energy storage and is globally used for various applications, including laptop computers and, most prominently, portable devices. Many components of batteries are currently under investigation to achieve better performance for an efficient and cost-effective processing method. Electrodes (more specifically composite electrodes) are one of the key components in batteries. They are the primary components responsible for the electrochemical reactions that occur during the charging and discharging cycles. Many strategies to enhance the electrochemical performance of batteries seek to discover new redox active materials. Electrodes manufacturing processes are another strategy to improve practical properties such as energy density, recharge time, lifetime and safety. These properties are correlated to the electrode mesostructured, which depends on the fabrication parameters.<sup>1</sup>

The conventional processing method for electrodes involves a coating technique using a doctor blade or slot-die instrument for the slurry, a mixture of materials containing the active material, polymeric binder, and some carbon additives, with a solvent. New methods of manufacturing such electrodes are now being explored to efficiently process them. One of these processes is the printing process. The growing interest in printing methods lies in the use of architectural freedom, in addition to achieving higher filling degrees with a reduced amount of solvent. Moreover, this field facilitates the sustainability of this technique, being well-suited for both prototype construction and scaling process.<sup>2</sup>

The focus of this study is to highlight the impact of manufacturing battery composite electrodes on their actual physical and electrochemical properties. Here, we will emphasize the differences between ink formulations in both techniques according to the ink's rheological characteristics. After processing the composite electrodes, comparative study will focus on electrode morphology and topology and the impact of such microstructure on the electrochemical properties. This research focuses on the actual porosity obtained with these manufacture processes and the intrinsic dispersion of the active material (LiFePO<sub>4</sub>) in the

composite electrode system (carboxymethyl cellulose (CMC) and carbon black).<sup>3</sup> This work is a preliminary approach towards understanding the impact of the manufacturing process on the final properties of our system.

- Liu, C.; Lombardo, T.; Xu, J.; Ngandjong, A. C.; Franco, A. A. An experimentally-validated 3D electrochemical model revealing electrode manufacturing parameters' effects on battery performance. *Energy Storage Materials* 2023, 54, 156–163.
- 2. Zhu, P.; Slater, P. R.; Kendrick, E. Insights into architecture, design and manufacture of electrodes for lithium-ion batteries. *Materials & Design* **2022**, *223*, 111208.
- Zhang, X.; Ge, X.; Shen, Z.; Ma, H.; Wang, J.; Wang, S.; Liu, L.; Liu, B.; Liu, L.; Zhao, Y. Green water-based binders for LiFePO4/C cathodes in Li-ion batteries: a comparative study. *New Journal* of Chemistry 2021, 45 (22), 9846–9855.

# Enhancing supercapacitor performance: A novel approach to high-purity activated carbon using a solvothermal process with urea

### Jung-Min Choi, Kwang Chul Roh\*

Korea Institute of Ceramic Engineering & Technology, Jinju-si, South Korea \*E-mail: rkc@kicet.re.kr

Keywords: supercapacitor, activated carbon, high-purity, oxygen content

This study addresses the challenge of oxygen group-induced conductivity reduction in activated carbon, a material known for its extensive surface area and chemical stability, and commonly used as an electrode in supercapacitors. These oxygen groups, introduced during manufacturing, not only reduce conductivity but also lead to gas generation and oxidation of the electrolyte solution. To overcome these issues, we developed a novel solvothermal process using urea to reform activated carbon, aiming to achieve high purity with minimal functional groups. X-ray Photoelectron Spectroscopy (XPS) analysis revealed a significant decrease in oxygen content to 0.15 atomic percent in the modified carbon, with little to no change in the specific surface area compared to the raw material. Electrochemical assessments, including coin cell tests, showed a consistent specific capacitance of 15.6F/cc. In a 1300F-class cylindrical cell format, the modified carbon exhibited a low Direct Current-Equivalent Series Resistance (DC-ESR) of under 0.7 milliohms, maintaining stable performance across a wide temperature range (-40 to 75 °C). Notably, a 500-hour high-temperature durability test at 65 °C demonstrated marked improvements in capacity and resistance characteristics. This research indicates that high-purity activated carbon, produced through our method, has the potential to significantly expand the applications of supercapacitors by enhancing performance and reliability.

### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the Technology Innovation Program (RS-2022-00156080, Development of electrical double layer capacitors for power supplement of hydrogen forklift) funded by Ministry of Trade, Industry and Energy.

### Hybrid polymer-ceramic electrolytes: opportunities and challenges

<u>Mickael Dollé</u><sup>\*</sup>, Gabrielle Foran, Marc Bertrand, Adrien Méry, Steeve Rousselot, Julien Mimeault, Cédric Barcha, Arnaud Prébé

Université de Montréal/Institut Courtois, Département de Chimie, Montréal, Québec, Canada \*E-mail: mickael.dolle@umontreal.ca

Keywords: type your, keywords here, separated, by commas

Hybrid solid composite electrolytes, comprised of polymeric and ceramic fractions, have been proposed as a means of circumventing common pitfalls that are associated with either polymer (lower ionic conductivity, low mechanical strength) or ceramic (large interfacial resistance with electrodes, brittle) electrolytes. Despite this premiss, previous studies have revealed uncertainty as to whether both phases participate in ion conduction and whether interactions between phases cause electrolyte degradation via surface reactions, interfacial resistance, or corrosion. In this presentation, we will address important parameters to consider when investigating hybrid composite electrolytes. Using different examples, we will demonstrate how to get a better understanding of the polymer-ceramic interaction and its impact on the ionic conductivity of these complex systems.

405

### Iron and sulfate based positive electrode materials for Na-ion batteries

<u>Anastasia Grebenshchikova</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Jacob Olchowka<sup>1</sup>, Laurence Croguennec<sup>1</sup>, Christian Masquelier<sup>2</sup>, Loic Simonin<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institut de Chimie de la Matière Condensée de Bordeaux, Bordeaux INP, Pessac, France <sup>2</sup>Laboratoire de Réactivité et Chimie des Solides, Université de Picardie Jules Verne, Amiens, France <sup>3</sup>Laboratoire d'Innovation pour les Technologies des Energies Nouvelles et les Nanomatériaux, Grenoble, France <sup>4</sup>E-maile energies enbenchebileum@iemab.energies.

\*E-mail: anastasia.grebenshchikova@icmcb.cnrs.fr

Keywords: batteries, electrode materials, abundant elements, na-ion batteries, inorganic synthesis

Concept of Na-ion batteries is among the most emerging battery technologies to deal with the issue of critical and scarce elements used in Li-ion batteries. Portable applications demand high energy density, favoring use of V- and Mn-based Na-ion positive electrode materials. In contrast, for stationary applications where battery weight is less important, the price of the components plays main role. In 2023 Mn has been classified as a critical raw material by EU committee, which promotes search and development of new materials based on abundant Fe. Stable polyanionic frameworks ensure longer cycling life as well as greater safety in comparison to layered oxides. Among different polyanionic electrode materials, phosphates are extensively explored, leaving room for search of new pure sulfate and mixed phosphate-sulfate based phases.

From this point of view, we revisited already presented NaFe<sub>2</sub>PO<sub>4</sub>(SO<sub>4</sub>)<sub>2</sub> (NFPS), which crystallizes in NaSICON structural type [1-4]. High-purity samples of NFPS were synthesized and studied by means of X-ray, neutron and electron diffractions, scanning electron microscopy and electrochemical methods. Thorough investigation allowed us to propose a new structure description and to discuss the relationship between synthesis conditions, stoichiometry and electrochemical performance. Theoretical capacity was obtained at C/30 cycling rate due to optimization of morphology and electrode formulation. Step-by-step up-scaling allowed to synthesize 8 g of NFPS per batch.

As NFPS contains Fe in the oxidation state  $3^+$ , it is worth trying to obtain by direct synthesis the sodiated compound. New series of phases of the same element composition with Fe<sup>2+</sup>, adopting different structural type than NFPS, were synthesized via newly established easy up-scalable solid-state procedure. Exploration of other synthesis methods, also enabling to obtain this series of materials, would be discussed. Challenges of different synthesis strategies linked to control of stoichiometry and promising electrochemical performance will be presented.

A new phase based on only abundant elements, such as Na, Fe and S, obtained via simple ball-milling procedure, could be suggested as a cheap and efficient positive electrode material for stationary storage. Advantages of this synthesis method are necessity to use only two easily-available precursors, while neither solvent, nor heating is not required. One of the main advantages of this material is excellent stability of cycling. Structure and electrochemical experiments would also be presented.

Oral

### Acknowledgments

As a part of the DESTINY PhD programme, this absract is acknowledged by funding from the European Union's Horizon2020 research and innovation programme under the Marie Skłodowska-Curie Actions COFUND (Grant Agreement #945357).

- 1. K. Shiva, P. Singh, W. Zhou and J. B. Goodenough, Energy Environ Sci, 2016, 9, 3103-3106.
- H. Ben Yahia, R. Essehli, R. Amin, K. Boulahya, T. Okumura and I. Belharouak, J Power Sources, 2018, 382, 144–151.
- S. F. Li, X. K. Hou, Z. Y. Gu, Y. F. Meng, C. De Zhao, H. X. Zhang and X. L. Wu, New Journal of Chemistry, 2021, 45, 4854–4859.
- 4. P. Salame, K. Kotalgi, M. Devakar and P. More, *Mater Lett*, 2022, 313, 131763.

# Exploring aluminum (Al<sup>3+</sup>) ion insertion in vanadium bronze $(NH_4V_4O_{10})$ for aqueous rechargeable aluminum-ion batteries

### Vishnu Priya Haveri Radhakantha<sup>1</sup>, Aninda J Bhattacharyya<sup>1,2\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Solid State and Structural Chemistry Unit, Indian Institute of Science, Bangalore-5600122, India <sup>2</sup>Interdisciplinary Centre for Energy Research, Indian Institute of Science, Bangalore-560012, India \*E-mail: vishnuh@iisc.ac.in; anindajb@iisc.ac.in

Keywords: aqueous, multivalent-ion, solvation, interlayer expansion, electrolyte additives

Aqueous rechargeable batteries have garnered significant attention for their safety, cost-effectiveness, and the simplicity of utilizing water as a solvent. Multivalent-ion batteries featuring  $Zn^{2+}$ ,  $Ca^{2+}$ , and  $Al^{3+}$  ions present a compelling alternative to conventional monovalent-ion systems (Li<sup>+</sup> and Na<sup>+</sup>), offering higher energy density due to their higher valency and abundant mineral reserves in the earth's crust. Despite their potential, the high charge-to-size ratio of multivalent ions poses challenges, such as susceptibility to larger hydration shells hindering rapid diffusion into the active charge storage material. This presentation delves into a systematic exploration of the insertion/de-insertion dynamics of  $Al^{3+}$  ions within ammonium-ion (NH<sup>4+</sup>) pillared vanadium oxide, utilizing aqueous aluminum chloride (AlCl<sub>3</sub>) electrolyte in a three-electrode setup. The NH<sup>4+</sup> ion serves a dual purpose by expanding interlayer spacing to accommodate hydrated ions and stabilizing the oxide framework. The NH<sub>4</sub>V<sub>4</sub>O<sub>10</sub> cathode exhibited an initial discharge capacity of ~300 mAh/g, with a gradual capacity fade during cycling. Post-cycling XRD analysis revealed an expanded interlayer spacing, indicating the successful intercalation of hydrated  $Al^{3+}$  ions by displacing NH<sup>4+</sup> ions within the interlayer.

Modified aqueous electrolytes with targeted additives were employed to address capacity fade and enhance coulombic efficiency. Incorporating ammonium salts, along with aqueous AlCl<sub>3</sub> and organic solvents, significantly improved the reversible shuttling of Al<sup>3+</sup> ions within the cathode. The presentation will comprehensively discuss the electrochemical performance and mechanism of Al<sup>3+</sup> ion incorporation into  $NH_4V_4O_{10}$ , drawing insights from experimental observations.

#### References

Vishnu Priya Haveri Radhakantha, Aninda J. Bhattacharyya, Exploring Aluminum (Al<sup>3+</sup>) ion Insertion in Vanadium Bronze (NH<sub>4</sub>V<sub>4</sub>O<sub>10</sub>) for Aqueous Rechargeable Aluminum-ion Batteries, *under preparation*, 2024.

# $\label{eq:construction} Ruddlesden-Popper \ structured \ Li_2La_2Ti_3O_{10} \ for \ lithium \ ion \ battery \ anode$

### Mi Jang, Kwang Chul Roh\*

Korea Institute of Ceramic Engineering & Technology, Jinju, South Korea \*E-mail: rkc@kicet.re.kr

Keywords: lithium ion battery anode, Ruddlesden Popper structurre, perovskite

In the current landscape of energy storage technology, research into innovative anode materials for enhancing the energy density and lifespan of lithium-ion batteries (LIBs) is gaining increasing momentum. In this study, Ruddlesden-Popper structured Li<sub>2</sub>La<sub>2</sub>Ti<sub>3</sub>O<sub>10</sub> (RPLLTO) is presented as a new anode material for LIBs. The material was synthesized through an ion exchange reaction method, and as a result of powder XRD Rietveld refinement, it was confirmed to have a layered perovskite structure including a Li ion path layer. As a result of electrochemical property evaluation, it showed a unique charge/discharge reform with a capacity of 170 mAh·g<sup>-1</sup> and two plateau voltages. XANES was analyzed to identify the Li ion storage reaction corresponding to the two plateau voltages, and the reduction reactions of Ti<sup>4+</sup>/Ti<sup>3+</sup> and Ti<sup>3+</sup>/Ti<sup>2+</sup> were confirmed, respectively. Analysis of crystal structure changes during lithiation using In-situ XRD and EXAFS revealed that RPLLTO undergoes complementary expansions along the a/b axes and contractions along the c axis, leading to about a 1.8% volume change. This structural stability is evidenced by an 88% capacity retention after 1000 cycles. This study is a report on the Li ion storage ability of RPLLTO and contributes to the development and scalability of perovskite anode materials of various compositions and structures.

### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the Technology Innovation Program (20010960) funded by the Ministry of Trade, Industry & Energy (MOTIE, Korea)

# Synergetic impact of dual substitution on anionic-cationic activity of P2-type sodium manganese oxide

### Hye-Jin Kim, Seung-Taek Myung\*

Hybrid Materials Research Center, Department of Nanotechnology and Advanced Materials Engineering & Sejong Battery Institute, Sejong University, Seoul, South Korea \*E-mail: smyung@sejong.ac.kr

Keywords: oxygen, redox, sodium, cathode, battery

P2-type sodium-deficient cathodes with the local Na–O–A configuration (A=Li, Mg, Zn, and vacancy) have attracted great interest due to their high capacity, stemming from the additional contribution of the oxygen-redox chemistry. However, such materials suffer from irreversible oxygen redox, oxygen release, structural distortion, and capacity fading. Herein, we introduce a dual-doping Li/Cu strategy to improve the properties of P2-Na,MnO<sub>2</sub> cathode material. The unique sodium-storage mechanism in P2-Na<sub>0.75</sub>[Li<sub>0.15</sub>Cu<sub>0.15</sub>Mn<sub>0.7</sub>]O<sub>2</sub> is verified using operando-XRD (o-XRD), X-ray absorption, X-ray photoelectron spectroscopy, and magnetic susceptibility methods. o-XRD and <sup>7</sup>Li NMR analysis reveal that mainly the P2 phase is maintained within charge and discharge; however, at high voltage, a small portion of O-type stacking faults are present due to the migration of Li to octahedral Na sites. Furthermore, various spectroscopy and magnetometry techniques combined with density functional theory calculation demonstrate the stable activity of cationic Cu2+/Cu3+ and Mn3+/Mn4+ and anionic  $O^{2-}/(O_2)^{n-}$  redox processes. This work highlights the efficacy of Li and Cu doping in P2-type layered materials and the contribution of oxygen redox to additional capacity at high voltages, suggesting the potential for future development of cathode materials for Na-ion batteries with oxygen redox.



Figure 1. Schematic illustration of influence of Li/Cu doping in P2-Na<sub>0.75</sub>[Li<sub>0.15</sub>Cu<sub>0.15</sub>Mn<sub>0.7</sub>]O<sub>2</sub> material.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

#### References

- House, R. A.; Maitra, U.; Pérez-Osorio, M. A.; Lozano, J. G.; Jin, L.; Somerville, J. W.; Duda, L. C.; Nag, A.; Walters, A.; Zhou, K. J.; Roberts, M. R.; Bruce, P. G. *Nature* 2020, *577* (7791), 502–508.
- Voronina, N.; Shin, M. Y.; Kim, H. J.; Yaqoob, N.; Guillon, O.; Song, S. H.; Kim, H.; Lim, H. D.; Jung, H. G.; Kim, Y.; Lee, H. K.; Lee, K. S.; Yazawa, K.; Gotoh, K.; Kaghazchi, P.; Myung, S. T. Adv Energy Mater 2022, 12, 2103939.

Oral

### Tailoring mesoporous and macroporous structures in activated carbon from NaOH-pretreated oak for superior supercapacitors

### Mu-Seong Lim<sup>\*</sup>, Kwang Chul Roh

Energy Storage Materials Center, Korea Institute of Ceramic Engineering and Technology, Jinju-Si, Gyeongsangnam-do 52851, South Korea \*E-mail: dlaantjd98@kicet.re.kr

Keywords: lignocellulose, NaOH pretreatment, physical property, carbonization, chemical activation, pore structure

The growing need for sustainable and efficient energy storage solutions has intensified research efforts into eco-friendly materials such as activated carbon (AC) derived from lignocellulosic biomass. Herein, we present a method to enhance the physical characteristics of AC from oak via NaOH pretreatment. The NaOH-pretreated oak was converted into AC through carbonization and chemical activation using KOH as the activating agent. The AC tended to develop mesopores (2–50 nm) and macropores (> 50 nm) as the pretreatment ratio increased (0%, 1%, 2%, and 8%), achieving a specific surface area of up to 2706 m<sup>2</sup> g<sup>-1</sup> and a pore volume of up to  $1.97 \text{ cm}^3 \text{ g}^{-1}$ . This result is due to the transformation of the structure of lignocellulosic biomass into a more advantageous structure for pore development through the reactions of delignification and deacetylation that occur during NaOH pretreatment. The mesoporous and macroporous structures offer efficient ion diffusion pathways and reduce resistance, which leads to superior rate capability, capacity retention, and a gravimetric specific capacitance of 44.5 F g<sup>-1</sup> at a current density of 1 mA cm<sup>-2</sup> in supercapacitors. These results underscore the potential of NaOH-pretreated oak as a sustainable and effective precursor for high-performance AC in energy storage applications, offering new insights into the optimization of material properties for supercapacitors.

### Acknowledgments

We acknowledge the support of the Technology Innovation Program (20012763, Development of petroleum residue-based porous adsorbent for industrial wastewater treatment) funded by the Ministry of Trade, Industry & Energy (MOTIE, Korea).

# Composition optimisation for dry-processed solid-state LiFePO<sub>4</sub> electrodes

*Julien Mimeault, Claire Deilhes, Gabrielle Foran, Cédric Barcha, Arnaud Prébé, Mickaël Dollé*\*

Département de chimie, Université de Montréal, Montréal, Canada \*E-mail: mickael.dolle@umontreal.ca

Keywords: solid-state batteries, formulation, electrochemistry, polymer extrusion

Lithium batteries are one of the pillars of the green energy transition as their large scope of applications makes them an attractive alternative to fossil fuels, particularly in the transportation sector. While the operation of a lithium battery may not be considered harmful to the environment, the large-scale production of batteries involves the use of toxic organic solvents and an energy consuming drying process. Polymer extrusion represents an effective alternative that allows for the homogenous mixing of active battery materials, conducting carbon additives and polymer electrolytes. The extrusion of polymers with a twin-screw extruder, also called melt-processing, eliminates the need for organic solvents as the melted polymers act as the solvent, allowing a homogenous dispersion of active material<sup>1,2</sup>. The process eliminates the need for solvents and therefore the subsequent drying step, decreasing overall energy consumption. Despite these advantages, there are challenges and limitations associated with melt-processing. The maximum amount of active material that can be incorporated into a formulation tends to be lower than what is possible with solution casting. It is therefore essential to tune the proportion of active material, conductive carbon and polymer binder to obtain the best possible combination of electronic conductivity, ionic conductivity and capacity while being processable through extrusion<sup>3</sup>.

This work focuses on optimizing the composition of dry-processed electrodes to obtain the best performances in solid-state batteries. Every electrode composition must be balanced between powder content and polymer matrix as mixing the active materials and carbon additives with the molten polymer requires high torque. This represents the biggest limitation of melt-processing. Coupling scanning electron microscopy to investigate electrode microstructure (see Figure) and galvanostatic cycling to investigate battery performances, the main objective is to increase active material content. This is required to obtain high mass loading, while maintaining a sufficient electronic conductivity without affecting the diffusion of lithium ions through the composite electrodes.

### Figure



Cross-section SEM image of a melt-processed LiFePO<sub>4</sub> electrode

- 1. Caradant, L.; Verdier, N.; Foran, G.; Lepage, D.; Prébé, A.; Aymé-Perrot, D.; Dollé, M., ACS Applied Polymer Materials 2021, 3 (12), 6694–6704.
- Verdier, N.; El Khakani, S.; Lepage, D.; Prébé, A.; Aymé-Perrot, D.; Dollé, M.; Rochefort, D., Journal of Power Sources 2019, 440.
- 3. Erabhoina, H.; Thelakkat, M., Sci Rep 2022, 12 (1), 5454.

# New halide-based Na-ion conductors: NaNbCl<sub>6</sub>, NaTaCl<sub>6</sub>, and some more

### Saneyuki Ohno<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Zheng Huang<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Multidiciplenary Research for Advanced Materials, Tohoku University, Sendai, Japan <sup>2</sup>Department of Applied Chemistry, Kyushu Unviersity, Fukuoka, Japan <sup>\*</sup>E-mail: saneyuki.ohno.c8@tohoku.ac.jp

Keywords: solid electrolytes, solid state batteries, Na-ion batteries

All-solid-state sodium-ion (Na-ion) batteries are promising candidates for the post-lithiumion (Li-ion) batteries owing to their improved safety and earth abundance, enabled by lessto non-flammable solid electrolytes (SEs). Ion-conducting halides are an emerging class of materials for solid electrolytes that may satisfy all requirements with their balanced ionic conductivity (> 1 mS cm<sup>-1</sup> at room temperature), oxidation stability (~ 4 V), and room temperature processability. Ion-conducting halides first stepped into the spotlight in 2018 with the report of mechanochemically synthesized Li<sub>3</sub>YX<sub>6</sub> (X = Cl, Br). Up to date, a wide variety of Li-ion conducting halides have been reported, e.g., Li<sub>3</sub> $M^{3+}X_6$  ( $M^{3+} = In$ , Sc, Ti, Y, Ho, Er, Yb and X = Cl, Br, I), Li<sub>2</sub> $M^{4+}X_6$  ( $M^{4+} = Zr$ , Hf and X = Cl, Br, I), Li $M^{5+}Cl_4O$  ( $M^{5+} = Nb$ , Ta) and LaCl<sub>3</sub>-based Li-ion conductor. Many exhibits room-temperature ionic conductivity higher than 1 mS cm<sup>-1</sup> and demonstrated stable cycling with the state-of-the-art cathode active materials operating > 4 V.

Despite the success in Li-ion conducting halides, only a few Na-ion conducting halides have been found to date, e.g.,  $Na_3M^{3+}Cl_6$  ( $M^{3+} = Y$ , Er, In),  $Na_2ZrCl_6$  and  $NaAlCl_4$ , and their reported room-temperature ionic conductivity are mostly less than 0.1 mS cm<sup>-1</sup>. With the less polarizing nature of Na ions, Na-ion conducting SEs tend to possess higher ionic conductivity than their Li-analogues, and indeed, higher ionic conductivity is generally reported in Naion conducting oxides and sulfides than those in Li-ion conducting counterparts. Inspired by the fact that the known Na-ion conducting halide-based SEs exhibit much inferior ionic conductivity to the Li-analogues, here we explore the new Na-ion conducting halides,  $NaM^{5+}Cl_6$ ( $M^{5+} = Nb$ , Ta), achieving 0.1 mS cm<sup>-1</sup> at 30 °C. This high ionic conductivity is attributed to the beneficial inductive effect and improved migration entropy and is one of the highest among the crystalline monoanionic Na-ion conducting halides.



Here the structural framework consists of  $MCl_{6x}$  is extended from tri- and tetravalent ions to the pentavalent ions, forming alternating Na-layers as with additional structural freedom on the metal sites.

#### Acknowledgments

The research that led to this work was supported by JSPS KAKENHI grant no JP 23H02069 and Toyota-Riken-scholar program.

## Figures

### Looking for new electrode material for K-ion batteries: the case of K<sub>3</sub>MnO<sub>4</sub>

Armance Sagot<sup>1,3</sup>, Lorenzo Stievano<sup>2,3</sup>, Vadim Kovrugin<sup>1,3</sup>, <u>Valerie Pralong<sup>1,3\*</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>Normandie University, Ensicaen, Unicaen, CNRS, Crismat, 14000 Caen, France <sup>2</sup>ICGM, University Montpellier, CNRS, ENSCM, Montpellier, France <sup>3</sup>Réseau sur le Stockage Electrochimique de l'Énergie (RS2E), Amiens, France \*E-mail: valerie.pralong@ensicane.fr

Keywords: K-ion batteries, manganese oxides, K<sub>3</sub>MnO<sub>4</sub>

Potassium batteries, with improved lifespan and capacity, will become advantageous compared to lithium due two major advantages: the low cost of potassium, the 7<sup>th</sup> most widespread element in the earth's crust, and it's low redox potential, similar to that of lithium<sup>1-3</sup>. To successfully develop commercially relevant potassium-ion batteries (KIBs), it is necessary to find new cathode materials with a reasonable potassium diffusion to improve the capacity<sup>4</sup>. For these reasons we decide to explore the inexpensive and non-toxic K-Mn-O system.

Hereby, we report for the first time the electrochemical behaviour of  $K_3MnO_4$  phase<sup>5</sup>. This material, first reported by Hagenmuller<sup>6</sup>, could be described as an non-dimensional structure built of isolated [MnO4]<sup>2-</sup> tetrahedra surrounded by complex potassium ion polyhedra. Till now, only two polymorph's type were reported. The first one, obtained at high temperature (1100°C), called  $\gamma$ -K<sub>3</sub>MnO<sub>4</sub> with disordered [MnO<sub>4</sub>]<sup>2-</sup> arrangement and the second one,  $\beta$ -K<sub>3</sub>MnO<sub>4</sub> with ordered [MnO<sub>4</sub>]<sup>2-</sup> synthetized at low temperature (300°C). We use commercial precursors KO, and MnO with a ratio 3.1:1 placed in a vacuum furnace at 450°C for 12h. Thus, pure  $K_3Mn^{+V}O_4$  is obtained with a characteristic duck-blue colour common for the Mn<sup>+V</sup>. The structure was refined using it's iron analogue:  $K_3$ FeO<sub>4</sub> due to the zigzag [MnO4]<sup>2-</sup> arrangement. This tetrahedral configuration was never reported, so we proposed to label it  $\alpha$ -K<sub>3</sub>MnO<sub>4</sub>. The phase crystalizes in the orthorhombic space group *Pnma* with the following cell parameters: a = 7.75(4), b = 8.96(1), c = 7.91(8) Å and volume of V = 550.99Å<sup>3</sup>. The charge-discharge profiles of  $\alpha$ -K<sub>3</sub>MnO<sub>4</sub> were measured by incremental galvanostatic cycling at C/20 (corresponding to the (de)insertion 1  $K^+$  per unit formula in 20 h) in the potential window 1.6–3.5 V versus K<sup>+</sup>/K. Two phenomena can be clearly distinguishing. On the potential window 3.1 - 1.6 V, a reversible phenomena is observed with the exchange 0.6K<sup>+</sup> i.e. a capacity of 70 mAh/g at 2.37 V vs. K<sup>+</sup>/K with a Coulombic effiency of 97.3%. Once the charge is extended above 3.1V, the process is no longer reversible. The potentiostatic intermittent titration (PITT) curve shown in Fig. 2b. reveals a dominant bell shape-type response at 2.7 V, which characterizes a biphasic process, a second similar but shorter process located at 2.9 V and then a third one at 3.47 V vs.  $K^+/K$ .

In our presentation, we will discuss the structure/properties relationships of this family of materials.

- 1. Zhang, X.; Yang, D.; Rui, X.; Yu, Y.; Huang, S. Advanced Cathodes for Potassium-Ion Battery. *Curr. Opin. Electrochem.* **2019**, *18*, 24–30. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.coelec.2019.09.002.
- 2. Kubota, K.; Dahbi, M.; Hosaka, T.; Kumakura, S.; Komaba, S. Towards K-Ion and Na-Ion Batteries as "Beyond Li-Ion." *Chem Rec* **2018**, *18* (1), 22. https://doi.org/10.1002/tcr.201700057.
- Kim, H.; Kim, J. C.; Bianchini, M.; Seo, D.; Rodriguez-Garcia, J.; Ceder, G. Recent Progress and Perspective in Electrode Materials for K-Ion Batteries. *Adv. Energy Mater.* 2018, 8 (9), 1702384. https://doi.org/10.1002/aenm.201702384.
- Zhang, W.; Liu, Y.; Guo, Z. Approaching High-Performance Potassium-Ion Batteries via Advanced Design Strategies and Engineering. *Sci. Adv.* 2019, 5 (5), eaav7412. https://doi.org/10.1126/sciadv. av7412.
- Sagot, A.; Stievano, L.; Pralong, V. K3MnO4: A New Cathode Material for K-Ion Batteries. ACS Appl. Energy Mater. 2023, 6 (15), 7785–7789. https://doi.org/10.1021/acsaem.3c01315.

### LFP 3D printed mesh electrodes for lithium-ion batteries

<u>José Miguel Ramos-Fajardo</u><sup>\*</sup>, José Fernando Valera-Jiménez, Juan Ramón Marín-Rueda, Isabel María Pélaez-Tirado, Sabrina Tair, Miguel Castro-García, Juan Carlos Pérez-Flores, Jesús Canales-Vázquez

Energy Materials & 3D Printing Laboratory (3D-ENERMAT), Renewable Energy Research Institute, University of Castilla-La Mancha (UCLM), C/Investigación 1, Building 3, 02071 Albacete, Spain \*E-mail: josemiguel.ramos@uclm.es

Keywords: mesh electrodes, FFF printing of ceramics, LiB LFP electrodes, performance enhancement

Lithium-ion batteries (LiBs), as a key energy storage technology in industrial applications such as electric vehicles (EVs) and portable electronics, must face several challenges to consolidate their position. Apart from the effort on the searching for novel compositions, alternative manufacturing routes may significantly maximise volumetric and gravimetric energy density. Conventional LiBs electrodes consist of a mixture of active material, conductive agents, and polymeric binders (e.g. PVDF). This approach results in reliable batteries with basic geometries. However, the use of non-electrochemically active additives (up to 50 vol%) causes a dramatic decrease in the volumetric energy density.

Recently, several alternative strategies have emerged to overcome such limitations. Among them, additive manufacturing (AM) technologies are at the forefront to reach the benefits related to the freeform fabrication. Indeed, a wide variety of geometries has already been explored via direct ink writing (DIW) or stereolithography (SLA). These techniques perform high resolution electrodes, but they showed several drawbacks related with the handling and preservation of the inks and resins used.

Fused Filament Fabrication (FFF) uses solid thermoplastic-based filaments that do not demand special preservation requirements in the long-term. This combined with the ease of use and the low cost of equipment, justify the research efforts towards the development of LiBs using this technology. To date, the number of applications via FFF is rather limited, with filaments containing high loadings of inactive polymeric binders (e.g. PLA) that cannot be removed from the printed parts. We have recently produced  $\text{LiCoO}_2$ ,  $\text{Li}_4\text{Ti}_5\text{O}_{12}$  and  $\text{LiFePO}_4$  full ceramic printed electrodes based on a specifically designed and optimised composite polymer-ceramic filaments [1]. These electrodes showed an electrochemical performance fairly close to the state-of-the-art electrodes [2,3].

Currently, we are exploring non-conventional geometries to maximise energy density via higher surface to volume ratio printed structures [3]. Furthermore, several thick mesh geometries (up to  $300 \ \mu$ m) have been produced to explore the impact upon performance in thick electrodes, which exhibited longer cycle life and higher capacities, especially at high current densities, compared to solid thick counterparts.

- 1. Method for obtaining ceramic filaments for 3D-FDM printing, 2017, WO2017191340.
- App. Mat. Today 25, 2021, 101243; [3] J. Phys. Energy 5, 2023, 035010; [4] J. Phys. Energy 6, 2024, 025008.

#### Oral

### Investigations on the Ca-ion intercalation characteristics in molybdenum trioxide electrode of an aqueous Ca-ion rechargeable battery

### Manisha Sanawa<sup>1</sup>, Akshatha Venkatesha<sup>1</sup>, Aninda J. Bhattacharyya<sup>1,2\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Solid State and Structural Chemistry Unit, Indian Institute of Science, Bengaluru, Karnataka, 560012, India

<sup>2</sup>Interdisciplinary Centre for Energy Research, Indian Institute of Science, Bengaluru, Karnataka, 560012, India

\*E-mail: manisha1@iisc.ac.in; anindajb@iisc.ac.in

Keywords: aqueous batteries, calcium-ion, intercalation, MoO<sub>3</sub>, electrolyte, ion-solvation

Rechargeable batteries are being increasingly explored for deployment in large and mass scale applications such as the electric mobility and grid integration. State-of-the-art advanced lithium-ion batteries (LiBs) offer good energy and power density however, these are unlikely to meet the performance consistency, cost and safety expected in electric transportation and grid power management. Additionally, ever-increasing emphasis on sustainability have led to shift in focus towards the development of alternative battery systems, so-called the "be-yond Li-ion" technologies. Utilization of earth-abundant and low-cost materials (based on Na, Zn, Ca, Al) coupled with aqueous electrolytes in an electrochemical cell is a novel and effective strategy, which has great potential to replace the more than half a century old LiBs based on non-aqueous liquid electrolytes. Despite the advantages, the aqueous rechargeable batteries too come with several fundamental challenges which impedes it's widespread commercialization.

Our research group has explored organic and inorganic electrode materials in monovalent (mixed Na<sup>+</sup>-ion and Li<sup>+</sup>-ion) and multivalent (Zn<sup>2+</sup>-ion) aqueous batteries. The electrode function has been extensively investigated using the combination of diverse experimental techniques and first principles density functional calculations.<sup>1,2</sup> In this presentation, we focus on the performance and intercalation mechanism of Ca<sup>2+</sup>-ions into a model layered compound, such as molybdenum trioxide and simualtaneously discuss the fundamental challenges associated with aqueous Ca<sup>2+</sup>-ion chemistry. Detailed mechanistic studies of the Ca<sup>2+</sup>-ion intercalation coupled with electrolyte solvation studies and DFT calculations will be discused.

- Akshatha Venkatesha; Gomes, R.; Nair, A. S.; Mukherjee, S.; Bagchi, B.; Bhattacharyya, A. J. A Redox-Active 2-D Covalent Organic Framework as a Cathode in an Aqueous Mixed-Ion Electrolyte Zn-Ion Battery: Experimental and Theoretical Investigations. ACS Sustainable Chemistry & Engineering 2022, 10 (19), 6205–6216.
- Venkatesha, A.; Seth, D.; Varma, R. M.; Das, S.; Agarwal, M.; Haider, M. A.; Bhattacharyya, A. J. Probing the Na <sup>+</sup> /Li <sup>+</sup> -Ions Insertion Mechanism in an Aqueous Mixed-Ion Rechargeable Batteries with NASICON-NaTi<sub>2</sub>(PO<sub>4</sub>)<sub>3</sub> Anode and Olivine LiFePO<sub>4</sub> Cathode *ChemElectro-Chem* 2023, *10* (2), e202201013.
- Akshatha Venkatesha, Gowra Raghupathy Dillip, Tanmay Mohan Bhagwat, Sayak Mandal, Rekha Kumari, Martin Etter, Gopalakrishnan Sai Gautam, Aninda J. Bhattacharyya, Exploring Cation-Deficient Magnetite as a Cathode for Zinc-ion Aqueous Batteries, *under preparation*, 2024.

# Enhancing lithium-ion battery cycling performance and recycling efficiency through laser texturing of metallic current collectors

<u>Paolo Tallone</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Daniele Versaci<sup>1</sup>, Alice Tori<sup>2</sup>, Sara Ferraris<sup>1</sup>, Silvia Spriano<sup>1</sup>, Silvia Bodoardo<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Applied Science and Technology, Politecnico di Torino, Turin, Italy <sup>2</sup>Osai Automation Systems SpA, Parella, Italy \*E-mail: paolo.tallone@polito.it

Keywords: laser texturing, current collector, cathodes, NMC, recycling, Li-ion battery

Lithium-ion batteries (LIBs) have emerged as the primary energy storage solution for numerous portable electronic devices, electric vehicles, and renewable energy systems. The potential benefits of recycling spent lithium-ion batteries are immense, promising economic and environmental advantages while recovering critical raw materials. Various processes have been explored for battery recycling, yet a crucial challenge remains the separation of the metallic current collector from the electrode composite film [1]. In this framework, the present study focuses on laser texturing of aluminum current collectors (CCs) to introduce a microscale surface architecture. The asymmetric surface pattern facilitated a controlled and directional adhesion, enhancing attachment to manage the significant volume variation of the active material (NMC811) during charging and discharging cycles [2]. Additionally, it enabled an easy separation of the electrode composite layer from the current collector, during recycling, by applying a force in a specific direction. As a result, the laser-treated cathodes displayed low electrode polarization and increased cycling performances, with a capacity retention of 67.6 % after 300 cycles at 1C, thanks to the increased interfacial adhesion that reduced the active material delamination from the current collector upon cycling.

Figures



**Figure 1.** (a) Optical profilometry image of the laser textured surface. (b) Critical load values measured by micro-scratch. (c) Galvanostatic cycling showing the different capacity retention between the pristine and the laser textured electrode.

- 1. He, Y.; Yuan, X.; Zhang, G.; Wang, H.; Zhang, T.; Xie, W.; Li, L. Sci. Total Environ. 2021, 766, 142382.
- 2. Jin, C.; Yang, Z.; Li, J.; Zheng, Y.; Pfleging, W.; Tang, T. Extreme Mech. Lett. 2020, 34, 100594.

# Reactive flash sintering of High entropy oxides $(Mg_{0.2}Ti_{0.2}Zn_{0.2}Cu_{0.2}Fe_{0.2})_3O_4$

Parmanand Kumar Tyagi, Shikhar Krishn Jha\*

Department of Material Science and Engineering, Indian Institute of Technology Kanpur – 208016, India

E-mail: shikhar.jha@unt.edu

Keywords: hardness, reactive flash sintering, grain size, solid state reaction

High Entropy Oxides (HEOs) are a relatively new material class that has attracted significant attention in recent years. They are a type of ceramic material consisting of five or more metal cations with equal molar ratios. The idea behind HEOs is to create a material with a high degree of structural disorder, which can result in enhanced mechanical, electrical, and optical properties. There are several synthesis techniques for HEOs, such as solid-state, Sol-gel, Co-precipitation, and Mechanical alloying, among which the solid-state synthesis technique is most used. Reactive flash sintering could be the alternative synthesis technique for HEOs, which can lead to further property enhancement. Reactive Flash Sintering (RFS) is a novel sintering technique that has emerged in recent years, which combines electrical current and a reactive atmosphere to produce rapid and efficient sintering of ceramic powders. It has several potential advantages over traditional sintering methods, including reduced energy consumption, improved densification, and enhanced microstructural control. In our work, we will be synthesizing and densifying (reaction sintering) High entropy oxides, such as (Mg<sub>0.2</sub>Ti<sub>0.2</sub>Zn<sub>0.2</sub>Cu<sub>0.2</sub>Fe<sub>0.2</sub>)<sub>3</sub>O<sub>4</sub> via flash sintering in one minute at a 950 °C furnace temperature. On the other hand, solid-state synthesis requires about 1000 °C temperature and about 24 hours. The resultant high entropy has superior mechanical properties in hardness compared to one synthesized via solid-state reaction.

# T1.7 MATERIALS FOR SOLAR THERMAL ENERGY CONVERSION AND STORAGE

### Porous advanced ceramics utilized to produce "green hydrogen" via concentrated solar thermal power: the Hydrosol experience

### Alberto Ortona

Hybrid Materials Laboratory, MEMTi, SUPSI, Via la Santa 1, 6962, Lugano, Switzerland E-mail: alberto.ortona@supsi.ch

Keywords: SiC, toplogy optimization, additive manufacturing, concentrated solar energy

There are many ways to produce hydrogen gas, many of which are not emission free. Generating hydrogen gas from renewable energy sources results in so-called 'green hydrogen', and it is the focus of the EU-funded HYDROSOL-beyond project. HYDROSOL, an Horizon 2020 project, is here presented. It aims to optimise an hydrogen production plant that produces hydrogen via concentrated solar thermal power. This presentation delves into the use of porous advanced ceramics utilized to reach the final goal.

Figures



Schematic approach of the Hydrsol heat exchanger development

- Zavattoni, S. A., Cornolti, L., Puragliesi, R., Arrivabeni, E., Ortona, A., & Barbato, M. C. (2022). Conceptual design of an innovative gas–gas ceramic compact heat exchanger suitable for hightemperature applications. Heat and Mass Transfer, 1–12.
- Pelanconi, M., Zavattoni, S., Cornolti, L., Puragliesi, R., Arrivabeni, E., Ferrari, L., ... & Ortona, A. (2021). Application of ceramic lattice structures to design compact, high temperature heat exchangers: material and architecture selection. Materials, 14(12), 3225.

### Silica-based rocks and refractories for thermal energy storage – Characterization of phase composition, microstructure and thermal conductivity

### Lucie Kotrbová<sup>\*</sup>, Tereza Uhlířová, Petra Šimonová, Willi Pabst

Department of Glass and Ceramics, University of Chemistry and Technology, Prague (UCT Prague), Prague, Czech Republic \*E-mail: lucie.kotrbova@vscht.cz

**Keywords**: silica (quartz, cristobalite, tridymite), thermal conductivity (thermal diffusivity), quartz sandstone, refractory materials, optical microscopy (polarizing microscope), laser flash technique, transient plane source technique

Silica-based materials can be useful for thermal energy storage (TES). Some of them, like quartz sand, are popular materials for intermediate-temperature TES at temperatures below 1000 °C, especially around 600 °C, while silica refractories, consisting mainly of cristobalite and tridymite, are promising candidates for high-temperature TES up to approximately 1600 °C. On the other hand, quartz sandstone has not been considered for TES applications so far, although also this material might be a viable low-cost alternative in specific cases. This work investigates and compares the phase composition, microstructure and thermal conductivity of quartz sandstone and silica refractories. Thin sections of both materials are studied with a polarizing microscope in transmitted light (with and without crossed Nichols). Results from stereology-based image analysis concerning the phase composition and porosity are compared with results of helium pycnometry, the Archimedes method and X-ray diffraction (XRD). Based on XRD results (phase composition), SEM micrographs and microstructural descriptors (porosity, grain size, pore size and shape), digital random microstructures are created via the GeoDict® software package, and the effective thermal conductivity of these computer-generated microstructures are calculated numerically via GeoDict® software and compared with analytical predictions and experimental data. For obtaining the latter, two different transient measurement techniques are applied, the laser flash technique (a non-contact technique) and the transient plane source technique (a contact technique), including the so-called modified transient plane-source technique. Using the bulk density experimentally determined (via the mass-to-volume ratio and the Archimedes method) and the specific heat from the literature (calculated on the basis of the phase composition experimentally determined via XRD), thermal conductivities are calculated from the thermal diffusivities experimentally measured via the laser flash technique. The temperature dependence of the thermal conductivity is compared up to 300 °C.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported from the grant of Specific university research – grant No. A2\_FCHT\_2024\_018 and A1\_FCHT\_2024\_008.
### T1.8 High Temperature Superconductors: Materials, Technologies and Systems

# High temperature annealing effects on La<sub>1.84</sub>Sr<sub>0.16</sub>CuO<sub>4</sub> superconductor made by Spark Plasma Sintering

<u>Bo Wan</u><sup>\*</sup>, Andrea Roberto Insinga, Apurv Dash, Jean-Claude Grivel

Department of Energy Conversion and Storage, Technincal University of Denmark, Kongens Lyngby, Denmark \*E-mail: bowan@dtu.dk

Keywords: LSCO, superconductor, annealing effect, SPS, J<sub>c</sub>

La<sub>2-x</sub>Sr<sub>x</sub>CuO<sub>4</sub> (LSCO) is a typical type II high-temperature cuprate superconductor. Since its discovery in 1986 [1], it has been studied in details. It includes CuO<sub>2</sub> planes forming single layers in which the superconducting charge carriers are located and is characterised by an orthorhombic to tetragonal stuctural phase transition in the superconductive temperature range. While the critical current density measured in optimally doped LSCO single crystals can reach about  $7 \times 10^5$  A/cm<sup>2</sup> [2, 3], this parameter is significantly suppresed in polycrystalline samples due to limitations originating from grain broundaries, low ceramic density, etc. The aim of this work is to improve the critical current density of polycrystalline LSCO samples by means of a heat treatment combining high pressure and high temperature.

During several decades of development, the spark plasma sintering (SPS) process has demonstrated its high value for the synthesis of ceramics with very high density. SPS offers rapid and uniform densification, revolutionizing the fabrication of intricate structures. In this research, the SPS method has been used to synthesize high-density and high quality LSCO superconductive polycrystalline ceramic pellets. By tuning the processing parameters, we achieved densities up to 6.5 g/cm<sup>2</sup>, corresponding to 92 % of the crystallographic density of LSCO. As a result, the percentage of porosity is significantly reduced in comparison with samples produced via standard solid state techniques. A further step consisted in applying post-SPS high-temperature annealing to modify the grain size of the LSCO ceramics and suerpconductive properties.

Previous studies related to cuprate superconductors post-annealing mostly focused on the lower temperature range from 300 to 500 °C. In the present research, we conducted annealing in oxygen with a higher temperature range up to 1300 °C. Due to this post-treatment, the grain size of SPS-treated samples was increased from the sub-micrometers range to over 100  $\mu$ m and the critical current density has been improved by about two orders of magnitude and can be as high as 6×10<sup>5</sup> A/cm<sup>2</sup>, which is in a range comparable to values reported for single crystals.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by Technical University of Denmark and the China Scholarship Council (Grant No. 202106890014).

#### Oral

- 1. Bednorz, J.G. and K.A. Müller, *Possible highT c superconductivity in the Ba-La-Cu-O system*. Zeitschrift für Physik B Condensed Matter 1986. **64**(2): p. 189–193.
- 2. Naito, M., et al., *Temperature dependence of anisotropic lower critical fields in (La<sub>1-x</sub>Sr<sub>x</sub>)<sub>2</sub>CuO<sub>4</sub>*. Physical Review B, 1990. 41(7): p. 4823–4826.
- 3. 3. Kishio, K., et al., Anisotropy in Magnetization and Critical Current Density of La-Sr-Cu-O Single Crystal, in Advances in Superconductivity III. 1991, Springer Japan: Tokyo. p. 563–566.

### T1.9 RECYCLING

### Selective separation of ultrafine active material particles applying particle-fluid interactions for the recycling of high temperature water electrolyzer cells

#### Sohyun Ahn\*, Martin Rudolph

Helmholtz Institute Freiberg for Resource Technology (HIF), Helmholtz-Zentrum Dresden-Rossendorf (HZDR), Freiberg, Germany \*E-mail: s.ahn@hzdr.de

Keywords: particle separation, recycling, critical raw materials, sustainability

Green hydrogen, which is considered one of the keys to realizing carbon neutrality, can be obtained through water electrolysis technology. Consequently, Germany aims for 10 gigawatts of electrolysis capacity by 2030 to reach the high demand for green hydrogen. For the high performance of the system, critical raw materials such as rare earth elements and nickel composites are used as active materials in the High-Temperature ELectrolyzer (HTEL) cell. For a sustainable supply and application of these valuable materials, the development of recycling processes after the large utilization phase is necessary, especially the efficient mechanical separation on the fine particle scale. Different ceramic materials used in a HTEL cell have similar surface properties such as wettability. For this reason, the application of surfactants on the fine particle surface plays an important role in selective separation processes of fine particles based on heterocoagulation spearation.

In this study, the particles from before and after the use of HTEL cells are investigated. Since the characterization of representative particles and several separation experiments have been successfully studied in our previous investigations, the methodology is able to be further developed and applied. Physical properties of the particles from before and after the operation have been characterized. Different reagents have been applied to selectively render the particle surface hydrophobic. By the method of liquid-liquid micro-particle separation, which also addresses the wettability of the particles, has been applied to separate valuable materials from the particle mixture. Comparing the results, how the operation of the electrolysis cell affects the separation of the particle mixture could be explained and it will provide a guide for future separation process design in large-scale processes.

#### Acknowledgments

The authors would like to thank the German Federal Ministry for Education and Research (BMBF) for funding of the project ReNaRe – Recycling – Nachhaltige Ressourcennutzung (code: 03HY111D, FeinElSep) as part of the technology platform H2Giga. The authors thank Institut für Energie- und Klimaforschung (IEK), Forschungszentrum Jülich GmbH for supplying HTEL particle samples and Subrina Islam for her experimental work and data that she made.

## Selective separation method for re-use of solid oxide electrolyser & fuel cell materials

#### Valentin Brard<sup>\*</sup>, Olivier Joubert, Annie Le Gal La Salle

Nantes Université, CNRS, Institut des Matériaux de Nantes Jean Rouxel IMN, F-44000 Nantes, France

\*E-mail: Valentin.BRARD@cnrs-imn.fr

Keywords: solid oxide cell, critical materials, recycling, hydrometallurgy

In the hope of a low-carbon future, innovation is our best asset for reducing today's economic footprint. Growing interest in hydrogen as an alternative fuel for mobility and the decarbonisation of industries, leads to the development of ever more efficient and sustainable solutions for producing green hydrogen. Among known, high-temperature solid oxide electrolysers achieve hydrogen production yields from 60 % for the system-total efficiency, to 90 % for stack efficiency<sup>1</sup>. However, Solid Oxide Electrolysis Cell (SOEC) is made of critical or strategic resource and mining industries<sup>2</sup>. To contribute to overcome this dependence, the European project "NOUVEAU" aims to develop a more sustainable electrolysis cell with less critical elements. To achieve this objective, several academic and industrial partners, including the group of Nantes (IMN), have been brought together to find new materials and eco-responsible processes to recycle them.

The term "recycling" in solid oxide cells (SOCs) is still quite new in the research community, and publications on the subject propose separation and extraction strategies inspired by the Li-ion battery (LIB) and waste printed circuit board (WPCB) recycling industry<sup>3,4</sup>. The processes used are mainly based on the hydrometallurgical route, which involves dissolving the target elements in solid matrices using caustic or acid attacks. This step is typically followed by separation via precipitation, solvent extraction, distillation, ion exchange, cementation or filtration<sup>5</sup>. The latest works use the leaching process to dissolve materials contained in the electrodes in aqueous form (Ni, La, Sr, Co cations) and thus separate them from the electrolyte, which is fortunately stable in nitric acid and remains in a solid state<sup>6</sup>.

Using this method, the process can be extended by varying the leaching conditions, using nitric acid as a leaching solvent at different concentrations, or mixing with an oxidising agent (Figure 1). After a case-by-case study, it was found that the  $Ca_2(Fe,Co)_2O_{5+\delta}$  air electrode (CFCO), is completely dissolved at RT in slightly concentrated nitric acid (0.5M). This is not the case for Ni and NiO from the hydrogen electrode, which needs to be dissolved in concentrated nitric acid (14M) and at a higher temperature (60°C). The rest of the solids,  $Ce_{0.9}Gd_{0.1}O_{1.95}$  (GDC) and  $Zr_{0.84}Y_{0.16}O_{1.92}$  (YSZ), are separated using a mixture of 10M nitric acid and 1M hydrogen peroxide. This solution allows us to completely dissolve GDC, without altering YSZ, which remains in solid form. The use of the different solutions containing ions of various elements, and allowing the recovering of starting products, will be then discussed.

#### Figures



Figure 1. Step-by-step dissolution of the different materials that make up a SOC.

#### Acknowledgments

CNRS, Ministère de l'Enseignement Supérieur et de la Recherche and European Union's Horizon Europe research and innovation program under grant agreement N°101058784 are acknowledged for funding.

The present publication reflects only the author's views. The Commission is not responsible for any use that may be made of the information contained therein.

- Min, G., Choi, S. & Hong, J. A review of solid oxide steam-electrolysis cell systems: Thermodynamics and thermal integration. *Appl. Energy* 328, 120145 (2022).
- Férriz, A. M., Bernad, A., Mori, M. & Fiorot, S. End-of-life of fuel cell and hydrogen products: A state of the art. *Int. J. Hydrog. Energy* 44, 12872–12879 (2019).
- Sarner, S., Schreiber, A., Menzler, N. H. & Guillon, O. Recycling Strategies for Solid Oxide Cells. Adv. Energy Mater. 12, 2201805 (2022).
- Valente, A., Iribarren, D. & Dufour, J. End of life of fuel cells and hydrogen products: From technologies to strategies. *Int. J. Hydrog. Energy* 44, 20965–20977 (2019).
- Espinosa, D. C. R., de Oliveira, R. P. & Martins, T. A. G. Recycling Technologies Hydrometallurgy. in *Electronic Waste* 165–187 (John Wiley & Sons, Ltd, 2022). doi:10.1002/9783527816392. ch8.
- 6. Yenesew, G. T. Recycling of high temperature solid oxide electrolyzers or fuel cells and recovery of waste materials. (Nantes Université, 2024).

# Innovative transformations of coal combustion by-products from challenges to industrial applications

#### Jurij Delihowski<sup>1\*</sup>, Marcin Jarosz<sup>2\*</sup>

 <sup>1</sup>Faculty of Materials Science and Ceramics, AGH University of Science and Technology, Cracow, Poland
 <sup>2</sup>COMEX Polska sp.zoo, Oświęcim, Poland
 \*E-mail: ydeli@agh.edu.pl; osw.poland@comex-group.com

Keywords: coal ash by-products, bituminous Fly Ash, processing, recycling, ash mineralogy and properties

This work explores the diversity of coal combustion by-products, emphasizing their transformation from challenges into opportunities for innovative industrial applications. It provides a short overview of various by-product types and their complexities in direct utilization. In the example of High Si bituminous Fly Ash it is demonstrated how average by-products can be strategically processed and modified to yield diverse sub-products with qualified properties. These tailored materials can find their usage in various applications across industries, showing the potential for ecological sustainability and resource optimization. A modification of the presented technology can enable the transformation and enhancement of various combustion by-products bringing benefits to the numerous branches.

# Ultrasonic decoating of solid oxide electrolyzer cells for raw material recycling

#### Carlo Kaiser\*, Urs A. Peuker

Institute for Mechanical Process Engineering and Mineral Processing, TU Bergakademie Freiberg, Freiberg, Germany

\*E-mail: Carlo.Kaiser@mvtat.tu-freiberg.de

Keywords: solid oxide cell, electrolyzer, recycling, decoating

In the current context of energy transition, hydrogen is considered to play a key role as an energy carrier. Therefore, worldwide hydrogen production capacity, electrolyzer capacity respectively, is being greatly expanded. Based on the announced projects, global electrolyzer capacity could increase from the current 0.6-3 GW to 170-365 GW by 2030 [1].

Solid oxide electrolyzers (SOELs) are the subject of intense research due to their high efficiency. However, their degradation and short lifetime remain key issues [2]. Given the critical raw materials involved in SOELs, the development of a viable recycling process is of crucial importance.

The solid oxide cell (SOC), which consists mainly of oxide ceramics and has a micrometer-scale layered structure, is the central part of SOELs. These layers are rich in nickel and various rare earths, which is why SOCs are attracting increasing attention in recycling research.

Given the layered structure, selective decoating has been shown to be an effective recycling method. This technique involves the selective removal of layers under defined stress. Ultrasonic decoating, where the stress is applied through a sonotrode, has been shown to be effective in removing perovskite material from some types of SOC [3]. With this approach, very pure product streams of up to 99% purity or higher can be achieved without the need for complex separation processes or the use of additional hazardous materials.

This study presents methods for integrating ultrasonic decoating into SOC recycling. Two approaches are discussed: surface decoating and particle decoating. During surface decoating, the full planar SOC is scanned with the sonotrode. The perovskite layers detach, leaving the remaining cell undamaged. This approach is simple in theory, but automation can be challenging because of the high risk of breakage due to the brittleness combined with the very thin cell thickness.

Particle decoating stresses cell particles rather than the entire cell. For this purpose, the SOC is first coarsely comminuted with the aim of obtaining processable particles with as intact a layer structure as possible. The decoating of the particles is achieved through the ultrasonic treatment of these coarse particles and the additional particle-particle friction. Although particle decoating provides greater flexibility in terms of cell size and cell condition, i.e. broken or not, the selectivity of the process is reduced. This adds the need for a subsequent separation process for high purity products that can be reused for new cells.

#### Acknowledgments

The authors acknowledge the funding provided by the H2Giga-project ReNaRe, which was funded by the German Federal Ministry of Education and Research (BMBF) (Grant No.: 03HY111A).

- IEA (2023). Global Hydrogen Review 2023. IEA, Paris https://www.iea.org/reports/global-hydrogen-review-2023, Licence: CC BY 4.0
- Xu, Y., Cai, S., Chi, B., Tu, Z. (2024). Technological limitations and recent developments in a solid oxide electrolyzer cell: A review. International Journal of Hydrogen Energy, 50, 548–591. doi:10.1016/j.ijhydene.2023.08.314
- Kaiser, C., Buchwald, T., Peuker, U. A. (2024). Ultrasonic decoating as a new recycling path to separate oxygen side layers of solid oxide cells. Green Chemistry, 26(2), 960–967. doi:10.1039/ d3gc03189f

# Direct recycling of Li-ion battery production scraps by pressurized fluids

Jacob Olchowka<sup>1,4,5\*</sup>, Neil Hayagan<sup>1,2,4,5</sup>, Cyril Aymonier<sup>1,4</sup>, Mathieu Morcrette<sup>2,4,5</sup>, Rémi Dedryvère<sup>3,4,5</sup>, Laurence Croguennec<sup>1,4,5</sup>, Gilles Philippot<sup>1,4,5</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Univ. Bordeaux, CNRS, Bordeaux INP, ICMCB, UMR 5026, F-33600 Pessac, France
<sup>2</sup>Laboratoire de Réactivité et Chimie des Solides, Université de Picardie Jules Verne, Hub de l'énergie, Amiens, France
<sup>3</sup>IPREM, CNRS, Univ. Pau & Pays Adour, E2S UPPA, 64000, Pau, France
<sup>4</sup>Réseau sur le Stockage Electrochimique de l'Energie (RS2E) Hub de l'Energie, Amiens, France
<sup>5</sup>ALISTORE-ERI European Research Institute, CNRS FR 3104, 80039 Amiens Cedex 1, France
\*E-mail: jacob.olchowka@icmcb.cnrs.fr

Keywords: Li-ion battery recycling, direct recycling, positive electrode material, pressurized fluids

Due to the lack of adapted competitive recycling methods for lithium-ion batteries (LIB), production scraps are currently treated as end-of-life (EOL) batteries, despite their significant difference in characteristics. However, with the drastic increase in LIB production and consequently, the generation of scraps, various innovative recycling techniques have emerged and gained significant attention, aiming to offer greener and more direct recycling routes. Production scraps can constitute a significant proportion (5 to 30 wt.%) of electrode production [1,2], making their recovery crucial. Moreover, the limited availability and high cost of key materials like cobalt and nickel underscore the need for effective recycling. Current methods such as pyro- and hydrometallurgy have drawbacks including low yield and environmental concerns. A more promising alternative is the direct recycling strategy, which mitigates purity issues and aligns with sustainability goals by reducing energy consumption and acid usage. Positioned as a credible pathway to sustainable battery recycling, the direct recycling strategy represents a significant advancement in resource efficiency and environmental responsibility for energy storage technologies, especially applicable to the pristine state production scraps.

This communication focuses on employing pressurized fluids for the direct recycling of positive electrode production scraps of LIB [3]. Illustrated in Figure 1, our objective is to separate all electrode components while preserving their properties and integrity using a carbon dioxide (CO<sub>2</sub>)-based technology. The study investigates the influence of various optimized parameters, such as temperature, time, co-solvent ratio, and consumption, to achieve the successful delamination of 100% of the active material. Multiple characterization techniques are employed to assess the structure, chemical composition, and physical properties of the recycled active material, specifically  $\text{LiNi}_{0.6}\text{Mn}_{0.2}\text{Co}_{0.2}\text{O}_2$  (NMC622). Finally, the electrochemical performance of the recycled NMC622 electrode material in new batteries will be highlighted. This research aims to contribute valuable insights in the feasibility and efficacy of the CO<sub>2</sub> process in the direct recycling of LIBs positive electrodes production scraps.

#### Acknowledgments

This project receives funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation program through the MSCA Program called DESTINY (Grant No. 945357) co-funded by Region Nouvelle Aquitaine (Project Region AAPR2021A-2020-11998810) and from ANR through the STORE-EX Labex project ANR-10-LABX-76-01.

- 1. Schmuch, R., Wagner, R., Hörpel, G., Placke, T., & Winter, M. (2018). Performance and cost of materials for lithium-based rechargeable automotive batteries. Nature Energy, 3(4), 267–278.
- , C., Loellhoeffel, T., Diekmann, J., Markley, K. J., Haselrieder, W., & Kwade, A. (2015). Recycling of lithium-ion batteries: a novel method to separate coating and foil of electrodes. Journal of cleaner production, 108, 301–311
- 3. Aymonier, C., Philippot, G., Erriguible, A., & Marre, S. (2018). Materials Processing and Recycling with Near-and Supercritical CO2-based Solvents. In Supercritical and Other High-pressure Solvent Systems (pp. 304–339).

# Closing the loop: Advancing solid oxide cell ceramics in the circular economy

#### Stephan Sarner<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Norbert H. Menzler<sup>1,2</sup>, Olivier Guillon<sup>1,2,3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Forschungszentrum Jülich GmbH, Institute of Energy and Climate Research, Jülich, Germany <sup>2</sup>RWTH Aachen University, Institute of Mineral Engineering, Aachen, Germany <sup>3</sup>JARA: Jülich-Aachen-Research-Alliance, Germany \*E-mail: s.sarner@fz-juelich.de

Keywords: high-temperature electrolysis, solid oxide cells, ceramic recycling, circular economy

The adoption of fuel cell and hydrogen technologies will play a crucial role in facilitating the shift towards decarbonization and meeting the EU's goal of achieving zero net greenhouse gas emissions by 2050. In the coming years, particular emphasis will be placed on expanding the deployment of suitable hydrogen electrolyzers, such as solid oxide electrolysis cells (SOECs), which currently have a moderate technology readiness level (TRL 5-7). To support market entry and promote resource recovery, early-stage development and implementation of recycling strategies are imperative. Efforts are underway to address the reuse and recovery of components from high-temperature electrolyzers, focusing on the reprocessing of ceramic components from End-of-Life solid oxide cells (SOCs).

Establishing closed-loop recycling processes is highly desirable, with a focus on scalability. In line with this objective, a recovery route has been devised for the well-established fuel electrode-supported cell design (**Figure 1**). The primary goal is to reprocess more than 80% of the cell material into new substrate, directly applicable in the SOC device. Therefore, a prerequisite step involves the separation of the oxygen electrode and any potential contact layer, which can be achieved through mechanical and/or hydrometallurgical approaches. Subsequently, the sintered bodies undergo reprocessing into ceramic powder, substrate slurry, and ultimately the pre-sintered substrate. Components of the separated oxygen electrode are recovered as precursors, suitable for SOC applications (e.g., manufacturing oxygen electrodes or contact layers) or alternative uses.

In addition to presenting the properties of the recycled substrate, full cells were manufactured based on substrates containing 0%, 25%, and 50% recyclate by weight. Electrochemical tests were conducted to determine whether these substrates meet the functional requirements, including gas distribution, electrical conductivity, and mechanical stability.

Oral



Figure 1. Recycling concept for fuel electrode-supported cell ceramis.

# Refractory recycling: A contribution for raw materials, energy and climate efficiency in high-temperature processes (GRK 2802)

Dániel Veres\*, Patrick Gehre, Jana Hubálková, Christos G. Aneziris

TU Bergakademie Freiberg, Institute of Ceramics, Refractories and Composite Materials, Freiberg, Germany

\*E-mail: daniel.veres@ikfvw.tu-freiberg.de

Keywords: MgO, recycling, metal ceramic composite, high-temperature application

Every year, approximately 28 million tons of used refractories are generated worldwide. The majority of the consumed refractories are primarily used for foreign applications, such as aggregates for road construction (downcycling) or deposited in landfills. The recycling of such materials played a rather subordinate role until now. For ecological reasons and due to the risen landfill costs, an increased research potential to deal with the application of refractory recyclates was identified in the last few years. The objective of the Research Training Group GRK 2802 is to research and develop new sophisticated recycling options for used refractories. Within the scope of the Research Training Group, fundamental knowledge should be developed, allowing both the recycling (re-utilisation in similar high-temperature materials) and the upcycling (material upgrading) of refractories in metallurgical processes. The main objectives of the GRK 2802 are an interdisciplinary and structured training of PhD students in the fields of recycling and upcycling of refractories as well as the research and development of a new generation of coarse-grained high-temperature materials based on refractory recyclates with particular functional properties for high-temperature processes in the metallurgy (figure 1).

This will be applied to 2 core ideas:

- 1. Core idea I: Recycling Novel refractories based on refractory recyclates and environmentally friendly binders (resin-free, pitch-free) with an application as lining material for steel ladles
- 2. Core idea II: Upcycling Novel metal ceramic composites based on refractory recyclates with an application as electrode material for aluminium fused-salt electrolysis

The interdisciplinary team of the Research Training Group GRK 2802 comprises 12 PhD students, 1 Mercator Fellow, 12 Principal Investigators and several Associated Members. The training and qualification programme of the Research Training Group GRK 2802 is being developed and organised by a scientific coordinator. The administrative coordinator is responsible for the fund management and accounting.

The presentation will provide insights into the technical motivation of this long-term project and will give an overview of the results of each subproject of the past one and a half years.

#### Acknowledgments

The GRK 2802 was funded by the Deutsche Forschungsgemeinschaft (DFG, German Research Foundation) – Project-ID 461482547.

### T2 Ceramics for Energy Conservation and Efficiency

### **T2.1 Advanced Fiber Reinforced Composites for Turbine Engines**

# **Basic science questions on SiC/SiC composites with applications in aircraft propulsion**

<u>Gerard L. Vignoles</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Sylvain Jacques<sup>2</sup>, Hervé Plaisantin<sup>3</sup>, Julien Danet<sup>2</sup>, Georges Chollon<sup>2</sup>, Yann Lepetitcorps<sup>1</sup>, Olivier Caty<sup>1</sup>, Francis Rebillat<sup>1</sup>, Guillaume Couégnat<sup>2</sup>, Jérôme Roger<sup>1</sup>, André Ebel<sup>2</sup>, Sébastien Denneulin<sup>2</sup>, Gérald Camus<sup>2</sup>, Stéphane Jouannigot<sup>2</sup>, Pierre Fénétaud<sup>1,3</sup>, Charlotte Chanson<sup>1,3</sup>, Héloïse Delpouve<sup>1,3</sup>, Paul Carminati<sup>1,3</sup>, Hugo Carpentier<sup>1,3</sup>, Simon Arnal<sup>1,3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Lab. for ThermoStructural Composites (LCTS), University of Bordeaux, Pessac, France <sup>2</sup>Lab. for ThermoStructural Composites (LCTS), CNRS, Pessac, France <sup>3</sup>Lab. for ThermoStructural Composites (LCTS), Safran Ceramics, Pessac, France \*E-mail: vinhola@lcts.u-bordeaux.fr

#### Keywords: SiC/SiC composites

SiC/SiC composites are now increasingly recognized as game-changing materials for hot parts of next-generation aircraft turbines. In conjunction with increasing efforts in TRL scale climbing, basic questions arise concerning their processing and their behavior in the envisaged environments.

This talk will give an overview of recent results obtained by LCTS on SiC/BN/SiC composites foreseen for use in aircraft turbines. Fundamental questions on gas-route (CVI) and liquid-route (MI) processing, on the influence of the BN interphases, ont he design of Environmental Barrier Coatings (EBC) and on the mechanical behavior and testing will be addressed.

#### Acknowledgments

Parts of this work were funded by Safran Ceramics , in particular through PhD grants to P. F., C. C., H. D., P. C., H. C. and S. A.

# Machinability and surface integrity in grinding of C/C-SiC composites with different fibre volume content

Patricia León-Pérez<sup>1\*</sup>, Thorsten Opel<sup>2</sup>, Georg Puchas<sup>2</sup>, Ralf Goller<sup>1</sup>, Stefan Schafföner<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of mechanical and process engineering, Technical University of Applied Sciences Augsburg, Augsburg 86161, Germany

<sup>2</sup>Chair of Ceramic Materials Engineering, University of Bayreuth, Bayreuth 95447, Germany \*E-mail: patricia.leonperez1@tha.de

Keywords: C/C-SiC, fibre volume content, grinding force, surface roughness, flexural strength

Carbon fibre reinforced silicon carbides (C/SiC, C/C-SiC) represent a group of Ceramic Matrix Composites (CMCs) already well-established in several high-performance applications. Although they were originally developed for aerospace and defence industries, the advances made in the manufacturing of CMCs over the past few decades have further expanded their spectrum of applications, e.g. as advanced friction systems, furnace charging devices or thermal energy storage systems. As their use in industrial applications increases, the need for a more effective processing arises.

In this respect, the final machining stage plays a crucial role. Machining of C/C-SiC is a challenging task owing to their hardness, anisotropy, and brittle behaviour. Significant effort has been made in optimizing the process by improving factors such as the machining method, the tool material/geometry, or the cutting parameters. The material microstructure and composition play an important role as well. The majority of studies in this regard focused on the effect of the fibre orientation, yet the influence of material composition variations on the machining performance has not been reported so far.

The presented work investigated the effect of different fibre volume content of woven reinforced C/C-SiC on the machinability and the surface integrity using different grinding conditions. The C/C-SiC composites were fabricated by the liquid silicon infiltration method. The physical and mechanical properties, as well as the microstructure and the phase composition of the different materials were assessed and compared. The machining experiments were conducted in a CNC machining centre with different diamond grain size tools at varying feed rates. The effect on the cutting force and the dimensional accuracy was examined.

Results revealed that the surface integrity is more influenced by the microstructure than by the grinding process. In contrast, the process stability is mainly driven by the machining conditions. Little influence on the three-point-flexural strength was observed after machining. Samples with lower fibre content exhibited decreased flexural properties, and higher cutting forces and surface roughness due to the presence of significantly higher porosity and free silicon content. On the other hand, both the cutting forces and the surface roughness gradually increased with the increase of the feed rate. Grinding with finer diamond grain size tools led to smoother surfaces.

# Rare earth silicates as oxidation resistant interphase for SiC<sub>f</sub>/SiC CMC: Inspiration from model composites investigation

#### Xirui Lv, Jie Zhang\*, Jingyang Wang

Advanced Ceramics and Composites Division, Shenyang National Laboratory of Materials Science SYNL), Institute of Metal Research (IMR), Chinese Academy of Sciences (CAS), China \*E-mail: jiezhang@imr.ac.cn

Keywords: SiC<sub>f</sub>/SiC CMC, rare earth silicates, interphase, interfacial parameters

Rare earth (RE) silicates have attracted considerable attention as advanced interphase materials for SiC/SiC CMC due to their better resistance to high temperature oxidation and hot steam corrosion than traditional interphase materials. In the present work, model composites consisting of SiC fiber embedded in Yb<sub>2</sub>SiO<sub>5</sub> or Yb<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub> matrix are processed by Spark Plasma Sintering and the feasibility of these silicates as interphase in SiC-based CMCs are estimated. Fiber push out experiment clearly shows the different debonding mechanisms in model composites. The weak SiC<sub>4</sub>/Yb<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub> interface exhibits low sliding stress and debonding energy, which are comparable to those of PyC or BN interfaces and ensure the wellrecognized crack deflection criteria of energy release rate.  $SiC_{\ell}/Yb_2Si_2O_7$  interface also possesses semi-coherent structure, proving excellent chemical stability between Yb,Si,O, and silicon carbide. While, SiC, Yb<sub>2</sub>SiO<sub>5</sub> interface exhibits high interfacial strength and debonding energy, which do not satisfy the crack deflection criteria. Raman spectrum analyzation indicates that the thermal expansion mismatch between Yb<sub>2</sub>SiO<sub>5</sub> and SiC contributes to high compressive thermal stress at interface, and leads to high interfacial parameters. The results indicate that Yb<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub> is qualified for advanced interphase and the interfacial parameters could be adjusted to reach optimal mechanical fuse mechanism in SiC<sub>r</sub>/SiC CMC.

# Validaton of progressive damage models of ceramic matrix composites for turbine engine applications

#### Craig P. Przybyla\*, George Jefferson

Materials and Manufacturing Directorate, Air Force Research Laboratory, Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio, USA \*E-mail: craig.przybyla@us.af.mil

Keywords: progressive damage modeling, ceramic matrix composites, damage tolerance design

Ceramic matrix composites (CMCs) are enabling for future highly efficienct gas turbine engine concepts that require materials with use temperatures beyond currently available Ni-based superalloys. However, the progressive damage modeling approaches needed for system design, certification and sustainment are lacking. Here we consider a variety of progressive damage modeling approaches to enable damage tolerance based design [1-9]. Specifically, a set of thermo-mechanical validation experiments were performed to support an independent evaluation of the a sampling of current state-of-the-art damage and life prediction modeling tools for assessing time-dependent behavior of SiC/SiC ceramic matrix composites in relevant environments for aerospace turbine engine applications. The models were exercised through a specifically designed set of seven challenge problems designed to test capability to accurately describe damage development, retained mechanical properties, as well as behavior and life. Included were tensile, creep rupture, fatigue, and flexure fatigue loading regimes at elevated temperatures, with a unique material architecture and/or stress concentrating geometrical features. Here we will describe the materials studied, the procedures used, and results recorded from the thermo-mechanical validation experiments performed in the laboratory.

- G. Jefferson, C. Przybyla, & L. Zawada, "Assessment of Damage Progression Models for SiC/SiC Ceramic Matrix Composites," International Journal for Multiscale Computational Engineering, v. 19, i. 5, 2021.
- J. Jung & S.L. dos Santos Lucato, "A CDM-Based Binary Model for the Progressive Damage Prediction of SiC/SiC Ceramic Matrix Composites under Tension Loading," International Journal for Multiscale Computational Engineering, v. 19, i. 5, pp. 1–, 2021.
- D. Rapking, M. Braginsky, E. Iarve, K. Hoos, & G. Tandon, "Static Strength Prediction of SiC/ SiC Ceramic Matrix Composites Using Continuum Damage Modeling," International Journal for Multiscale Computational Engineering, v. 19, i. 5, pp. 17–, 2021.
- L. Borkowski & R.S. Kumar, "Assessment of a Micromechanics-Based Progressive Damage and Creep Model Applied to Ceramic Matrix Composites with Holes," International Journal for Multiscale Computational Engineering, v. 19, i. 5, pp. 35–, 2021.
- T. Artz & J. Fish, "A Unified Approach to Computational Modeling of Ceramic Matrix Composites under High-Temperature Creep, Fatigue, and Initial Quasi-Static Loading," International Journal for Multiscale Computational Engineering, v. 19, i. 5, pp. 61–, 2021.
- U. Santhosh & J. Ahmad, "Blind Predictions of Ceramic Matrix Composite Test Specimen Response Using a Combined Progressive Damage and Oxidation Kinetics Model," International Journal for Multiscale Computational Engineering, v. 19, i. 6, pp. 1–, 2021.

- K. Vijaykumar & G. Henson, "Synergistic Multiscale Simulation of Fast Fracture of a Ceramic Matrix Composite Tension Bar," International Journal for Multiscale Computational Engineering, v. 19, i. 5, pp. 27–, 2021.
- Gokce, R. Menefee, & L. Brown, "Simulation of CMC Mechanical Response under Monotonic, Creep, and Fatigue Loading," International Journal for Multiscale Computational Engineering, v. 19, i. 6, pp. 41–, 2021.
- H. Baid, F. Abdi, & D. Huang, "Integrated Computational Material Science Engineering Lifing Model of CMC Coupons Using Nano-Micromechanics Based Multiscale Progressive Failure Analysis," International Journal for Multiscale Computational Engineering, v. 19, i. 6, pp. 67–, 2021.

### CVD-fiber coating (BN + SiC) for hot gas stable SiC/SiC

Katrin Schönfeld\*, Mario Krug, Clemens Steinborn

Fraunhofer IKTS, Dresden Germany \*E-mail: katrin.schoenfeld@ikts.fraunhofer.de

Keywords: SiC/SiC, fiber coating, CVD

Hot gas stable SiC/SiC composite materials require a dense matrix to prevent degeneration effects caused by hot gas contact. Toughness-enhancing mechanisms for the composite material, like crack deflection and fiber pull-out, require an interphase between the fiber material and the matrix acting as a predetermined breaking point.

State of the art interphase materials are coatings of the fiber materials applied by wetchemical processes or gas phase processes as chemical vapor deposition (CVD), like PyC or BN. The layered crystal structure of the materials favors a deformation due to slip processes. However, the limited stability of the interphase material in oxygen containing atmospheres at elevated temperatures (> 900 °C) is critical. At these conditions oxygen migration through microcracks in the matrix or by diffusion leads to oxidation of the interphase material (borate glass formation) resulting in a decrease of the material strength and an enhancement of brittleness. Therefore, it is crucial for applications in hot gas atmosphere to develop an interphase material which is more advantageous compared to currently available BN fiber coating.

Within the present contribution, initial results for modified BN fiber coatings in combination with a SiC top coating by thermal CVD processes are presented. Changes in the structure and their effects on oxidation resistance are discussed. Finally, first results of these interphase materials within the siliconization process are presented.

#### Figures



BN/ SiC coating on Hi Nicalon S fiber.

#### Acknowledgments

project is funded by BMWi 20T2108C.

# Design and manufacture of liquid silicon infiltration based SiC/SiC nozzle guide vanes for high-pressure turbines

<u>Fabia Süß</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Lion Friedrich<sup>1</sup>, Felix Vogel<sup>1</sup>, Martin Frieß<sup>1</sup>, Anna Petersen<sup>2</sup>, Robin Schöffler<sup>2</sup>, Andrea Ebach-Stahl<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>German Aerospace Centre (DLR), Institute of Structures and Design, Pfaffenwaldring 38-40, 70569 Stuttgart, Germany
<sup>2</sup>German Aerospace Centre (DLR), Institute of Propulsion Technology, Bunsenstraße 10, 37073 Göttingen, Germany
<sup>3</sup>German Aerospace Centre (DLR), Institute of Materials Research, Linder Höhe, 51147 Köln, Germany
\*E-mail: fabia.suess@dlr.de

Keywords: ceramic matrix composites, CMC, SiC/SiC, nozzle guide vane, liquid silicon infiltration

Increasing the efficiency of jet engines is essential for more environmentally friendly air transport. Higher temperature resistance and lower weight of the combustor and turbine components are key requirements for new materials. Along with adapted environmental coating systems and cooling features, ceramic matrix composites (CMC) are strong candidates for aircraft applications. They can withstand high temperatures in an aggressive environment, while their density is two-thirds lower than that of conventional nickel-based alloys, leading to savings in cooling air and potential improvements in engine efficiency.

As part of the DLR project "3DCeraTurb", turbine vanes made of silicon carbide fiber-reinforced silicon carbide composites (SiC/SiC CMC) are developed. One aim of 3DCeraTurb is to design and manufacture ceramic nozzle guide vanes (NGV) for a high-pressure turbine (1st stage), experimentally investigate the vane behavior in a wind tunnel, and evaluate performance, damage and lifetime for later application in an aircraft engine.

The focus was the enhancement of the manufacturing process from plate dimensions to more complex three-dimensional components. A ceramic-based design served as a basis for the development and manufacture of a new NGV geometry, considering material- and manufacturing-specific constraints. The liquid silicon infiltration (LSI) process was used to manufacture the SiC/SiC vanes. The process began with the draping and CVI fiber coating of woven fabric layers. During this stage, shaping occurred, and the final component contour was defined. The fiber preform was then infiltrated with a phenolic resin, which acted as a carbon source, using resin transfer molding, followed by high-temperature pyrolysis. The resulting porous carbon matrix was infiltrated with a silicon-boron melt, leading to the conversion of carbon into a SiSiC matrix. The surface was ground, to meet the high requirements for surface roughness and geometric and positional tolerances. Cylindrical, laser-drilled cooling holes were introduced for cooling the trailing edge. In the final step, an environmental barrier coating system (EBC) consisting of yttrium disilicate and yttrium monosilicate layers was applied using PVD processing.

Thermal simulations were performed at the highest loads (Take-off End of field). Therefore, computational fluid dynamics (CFD) simulations were coupled with a finite element analysis (FEA). For the determination of thermal and mechanical properties, SiC/SiC plates were manufactured. Safety factors were calculated using the Tsai-Wu criterion. Wind tunnel testing under TRL 4 will be performed and vane performance will be evaluated.

### **T2.2** Advanced Ceramic Coatings for Power Systems

# Comparison of thermal-sprayed YbDS coatings for better durability in 1400°C steam

<u>Kohei Doi</u><sup>1</sup>, Naoki Yamazaki<sup>1</sup>, Takeshi Nakamura<sup>1</sup>, Hideki Kakisawa<sup>2</sup>, Kazuya Shimoda<sup>2</sup>, Makoto Watanabe<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>IHI Corporation, Tokyo, Japan <sup>2</sup>NIMS, Tsukuba, Japan \*E-mail: doi7150@ihi-g.com

Keywords: EBC, steam-exposure testing, thermal-spraying

 $SiC_{f}/SiC_{m}$  Composites is one of the candidate materials for high-pressure turbine components for its light weight and high heat-resistance. However, it is known that SiC is easily oxidized or vaporized as  $Si(OH)_{4}$ , and Environmental Barrier Coating (EBC) must be coated for longterm durability. Ytterbium disilicate (YbDS) has the similiar CTE with SiC and is expected as the barrier against water vapor. In this presentation, we prepared the thermal-sprayed YbDS coupon with different process conditions, conventional spray methods for APS/SPS, and a novel spray medhod, and steam-exposure testings were also conducted at 1400°C with each coupon.Detail characterization results of the each coupon are showing, and the relationship between the microstructure and the property against water vapor is discussed. From these insights, we have developed the bilayer EBC system, and further severe testing results and future tasks are also introduced in short.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by NEDO (New Energy and Industrial Technology Development Organization.

# Mechanical, microstructural, and fretting wear behaviour of Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>-ZrO<sub>2</sub>-CNT based composite coatings

#### Shalini Kushwaha, Kantesh Balani\*

Department of Materials Science and Engineering, Indian Institute of Technology Kanpur, Kanpur-208016, Uttar Pradesh, India \*Email: kbalani@iitk.ac.in

In the current work, bimodal thermal barrier coatings (TBC) were deposited via atmospheric plasma spraying (APS) using Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> as a matrix, reinforced with 20 wt% of ZrO<sub>2</sub> and 4 wt% of carbon nanotubes (CNT) over Inconel 718 substrate. The objective is to study the effect of bimodality and reinforcements on the mechanical and tribological behavior of Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>-based TBC. Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>–ZrO<sub>2</sub>, Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>–ZrO<sub>2</sub>-CNT, and micro-Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> coatings are named as AZ, AZC, and Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, respectively. The presence of partially melted and solid-state sintered nanostructured region (NR) with fully melted and re-solidified microstructured regions (MR) showed bimodal microstructure. Reinforcements lead to enhanced nano-hardness from (12.8 GPa) for Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> to (14.7 GPa) for MR of AZ and (14.1 GPa) for AZC, which is attributed to a higher amount of  $\alpha$ -Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> and t-ZrO<sub>2</sub> present in the coatings. NR reduces shear stress generation during fretting wear in AZ (293.8 MPa) and AZC (298.7 MPa), resulting in a more uniform surface and reduced wear rate. Additionally, the higher aspect ratio and lubrication effect of CNTs in AZC generates the least energy dissipation (92.9 J) and wear rate  $(0.9 \times 10^{-6} \text{ mm}^3 \text{N}^ ^{1}m^{-1}$ ). SEM and EDS analysis of worn surfaces in coatings revealed abrasive, adhesive wear is dominant in Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> coatings due to the higher amount of material transfer from coating to  $Si_{1}N_{4}$  body than AZ and AZC. Overall, the synergistic effect of bimodality and reinforcements leads to improved mechanical properties and reduced shear stress generation during wear making APS-AZC coating a potential material for wear and high temperature applications.

# Neutron diffraction based investigation on the origin of low thermal expansion coefficient for multicomponent RE<sub>2</sub>SiO<sub>5</sub> and its correlation with coating thermal cycling lifetime

Haoyu Wang<sup>1</sup>, Xirui Lv<sup>2</sup>, Jie Zhang<sup>2\*</sup>, Jingyang Wang<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Coating Technology for Hydrogen Gas Turbines, Liaoning Academy of Materials, Shenyang, China <sup>2</sup>Shenyang National Laboratory for Materials Science, Institute of Metal Research, Chinese Academy of Sciences, Shenyang, China \*E-mail: jiezhang@imr.ac.cn

**Keywords**: neutron diffraction, pair distribution function, rare-earth silicates, environmental barrier coating, burner rig tests

Owing to the large thermal expansion coefficient (CTE) of rare earth monosilicate (RE<sub>2</sub>SiO<sub>5</sub>) topcoat, limited thermal cycling lifetime has become the main challenge of multi-layered environmental barrier coating. Using neutron powder diffraction and total scattering, current work explored the physical mechanisms of thermal expansion in RE<sub>2</sub>SiO<sub>5</sub> and contributed to understanding the correlations between CTE and thermal cycling lifetime. It is revealed that it's effective to reduce the distortion degree of [ORE4] tetrahedrons by introducing Y3+, Ho3+ and Er<sup>3+</sup> into Yb<sup>3+</sup> sites of Yb<sub>2</sub>SiO<sub>5</sub>, and the lower the distortion degree of [ORE<sub>4</sub>], the lower the CTE. The [ORE<sub>4</sub>], with less deviation from the regular tetrahedrons, exhibits improved high-temperature resistance to thermal deformation, resulting in a lower CTE. The more CTE-matched  $(Y_{1/4}Ho_{1/4}Er_{1/4}Yb_{1/4})$ ,SiO<sub>5</sub> topcoat presents reduced residual tensile stress by 17%, compared to Yb<sub>2</sub>SiO<sub>5</sub> topcoat, which substantially reduces the tendency for mud crack initiation and the energy release rate for crack extension, and make significant contributions to the improved durability in service. The present study would give new insights into the physical mechanisms of thermal expansion of RE,SiO<sub>5</sub> and further provide some practical information towards selection of RE-doping strategy in RE<sub>2</sub>SiO<sub>5</sub> to get matched-CTEs to Si-based ceramic.

### T2.3 Engineering Ceramics: Advanced Processing, Properties, and Applications

# **Cold sintering of ZSM-5 zeolite ceramics with superior physical properties**

Xiang Ming Chen<sup>\*</sup>, Fu Wei Zhou, Jun Zuo Shi, Xiao Li Zhu, Lei Li

School of Materials Science and Engineering, Zhejiang University, Hangzhou 310027, China \*E-mail: xmchen59@zju.edu.cn

**Keywords:** zeolite ceramics, ordered microporous structure, thermal properties, compressive strength, cold sintering process

The cold sintering process, thermal insulating performance and compressive strength of ZSM-5 zeolite ceramics were investigated. Densification of ZSM-5 zeolite ceramics could be achieved by cold sintering process at 393 K under a pressure of 450 MPa for 0~60 min by adding 3 mol/L NaOH solution. X-ray diffraction (XRD), high resolution transmission electron microscopy (HRTEM) image, N<sub>2</sub> adsorption/ desorption measurements and fourier transform infrared (FT-IR) spectra demonstrated that zeolite framework was preserved without collapse of ordered microporous structure in the present ceramics. The thermal conductivity as low as 0.88 W/m·K was achieved together with a high compressive strength up to 315 MPa, which was attributed to ordered microporous structure, amorphous phase and porosity in zeolite ceramics. The ZSM-5 zeolite ceramics prepared by cold sintering process could be expected as promising thermal insulating materials, since the low thermal conductivity was comparable with typical porous ceramics while the compressive strength was much higher than that of them.

# Process and characterization informatics of silicon nitride ceramics with engineered microstructural characteristics

Yuki Nakashima, <u>Manabu Fukushima</u>\*, Ryoichi Furushima, You Zhou, Tatsuki Ohji, Kiyoshi Hirao

National Institute of Advanced Industrial Science and Technology (AIST), Nagoya, Japan \*E-mail: manabu-fukushima@aist.go.jp

Keywords: artificial intelligence determinations, process informatics, Si<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub> and microstructures

This presentation reviews process and characterization informatics to produce silicon nitride  $(Si_3N_4)$  ceramics with engineered performances.  $Si_3N_4$  ceramics are generally composed of complicated microstructures including elongated grains dispersed in a matrix of fine grains and grain boundary as well as pores with various sizes, leading to tailored mechanical, thermal and electrical properties. Due to modulated sintering technologies with various conditions selected carefully,  $Si_3N_4$  ceramics with engineered microstructural characteristics have been expected for a practical industrial use in insulated heat-dissipating substrates for power modules which can control mortor driven units in such as electric vehicles, leading to an enormous amount of carbon dioxide emissions reduction by further popularizing electronic vehicles. In this presentation, the engineered properties of the  $Si_3N_4$  substrates required for this application will be comprehensively summarized, in terms of four important engineering aspects: thermal conductivity, mechanical strength, fracture toughness, and dielectric breakdown strength. Second, the sintered reaction-bonded  $Si_3N_4$  technologies strategically selected and the resultant engineered microstructures with various grain boundary characteristics will be mentioned, in comparison with those produced by the other conventional methods. Third, the detail of dielectric breakdown for  $Si_3N_4$  will be introduced, although that has been hardly reported, in which large elongated grains work as severe defects. Finally, their artificial intelligence (AI) determination technologies including process and characterization informatics will be proposed through the process conditions such as types of raw materials, sintering additives and sintering conditions by using a conventional machine learning and microstructural images with various grain and grain boundary configurations as well as porosity via deep learning respectively, demonstrating relatively high AI-determination accuracy of the processes and engineered performances.

- 1. R. Furushima, Y. Nakashima, M. Fukushima et al., J. Am. Ceram. Soc., 106, 817-821 (2023).
- 2. R. Furushima, Y. Nakashima, M. Fukushima et al., J. Am. Ceram. Soc., 106,4944-4954 (2023).
- 3. Y. Nakashima, R. Furushima, Y. Zhou, M. Fukushima et al., J. Eur. Ceram. Soc., (in press).
- 4. R. Furushima, Y. Nakashima, Y. Zhou, M. Fukushima et al., Ceram. Int., (in press).
- 5. Y. Nakashima, R. Furushima, Y. Zhou, M. Fukushima et al., Ceram. Int., (in press).

# Preparation and characterization of CMAS corrosion resistance of nanostructured lutetium silicate coating

#### Donghui Guo\*, Baosheng Xu, Shun Wang

Institute of Advanced Structure Technology, Beijing Institute of Technology, Beijing, PR China \*E-mail: guodonghui2020@163.com

Keywords: Lu<sub>2</sub>SiO<sub>5</sub> Lu<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub> CMAS corrosion, environmental barrier coating

In order to improve the CMAS (CaO-MgO-Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>-SiO<sub>2</sub>) corrosion resistance of environmental barrier coatings (EBCs) of SiC<sub>1</sub>/SiC composite materials, nanostructured lutetium silicate feedstocks were first prepared in this work. Subsequently, nanostructured Lu<sub>2</sub>SiO<sub>5</sub>/Lu<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub>/ Si environmental barrier coatings were fabricated via atmospheric plasma spraying (APS). Finally, the CMAS corrosion performance of EBCs in the Lu<sub>2</sub>SiO<sub>5</sub>/Lu<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub>/Si system was studied. The microstructure and phase structure of CMAS coatings before and after corrosion were characterized and analyzed using SEM, TEM, and XRD. The results showed that the tendency of Lu to react with CMAS in the nanostructured Lu<sub>2</sub>SiO<sub>5</sub>/Lu<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub>/Si environmental barrier coating increased, and a dense layer of apatite was rapidly formed, which slowed down the penetration rate of CMAS and enhanced its corrosion resistance to CMAS.

### Functional properties of additive-free silicon carbide ceramics

### Ondrej Hanzel<sup>\*</sup>, Monika Tatarková, Pavol Šajgalík

Institute of Inorganic Chemistry, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Dúbravska cesta 9, 845 36 Bratislava, Slovakia \*E-mail: ondrej.hanzel@savba.sk

Keywords: silicon carbide, additive-free, electrical conductivity, thermal conductivity

Fully dense (t. d. > 99 %) silicon carbide ceramics without any sintering additives were succesfully prepared by combination of freeze granulation of silicon carbide powder, annealing of granulated powder and subsequent rapid hot pressing at 1900°C with dwell time from 5 to 80 minutes (Fig. 1). Thermal and electrical conductivity of prepared materials considering the ratio of SiC polytypes was investigated. Different ratio of alpha and beta silicon carbide has been achieved by adjusting dwell time during sintering. Thermal diffusivity, specific heat capacity, thermal conductivity, electrical conductivity, density, microstructure of additive-free SiC with various  $\alpha/\beta$  content has been investigated. The electrical conductivity of SiC decreased from 104 S/m to 8 S/m as a content of  $\alpha$ -SiC increased from 63 to 94 %. Opposite trend, when thermal diffusivity increased from 47.3 to 68.4 mm<sup>2</sup>/s as a content of  $\alpha$ -SiC increases from 63 to 94 %, was observed.

### Figures



Fig. 1. Plasma etched surfaces of samples with shortest and longest holding time.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the Slovak grant VEGA 2/0007/21.

### Enhanced thermal stability of dielectric and energy storage properties in 0.4BCZT-0.6BTSn lead-free ceramics elaborated by sol-gel method

<u>S. Khardazi</u><sup>1\*</sup>, H. Zaitouni<sup>1</sup>, S. Lyubchyk<sup>2</sup>, D. Mezzane<sup>1,3</sup>, M. Amjoud<sup>1</sup>, E. Choukri<sup>1</sup>, S. Lyubchyk<sup>2</sup>, Z. Kutnjak<sup>4</sup>

<sup>1</sup>IMED-Lab, Cadi-Ayyad University, Faculty of Sciences and Technology, Department of Applied Physics, Marrakech, 40000, Morocco
<sup>2</sup>DeepTechLab, Faculty of Engineering, Lus' ofona University, 376 Campo Grande, 1749-024, Lisbon, Portugal
<sup>3</sup>Laboratory of Physics of Condensed Matter (LPMC), University of Picardie Jules Verne, Scientific Pole, 33 Rue Saint-Leu, Amiens Cedex 1, 80039, France
<sup>4</sup>Jožef Stefan Institute, Ljubljana, 1000, Slovenia
\*E-mail: khardazzisaid@gmail.com

Keyword: sol-gel, ferroelectrics, lead-free, perovskites, energy storage

Polycrystalline lead-free Ba0.85Ca0.15Zr0.10Ti0.90O3 (BCZT), BaTi0.89Sn0.11O3 (BTSn) and 0.4Ba0.85Ca0.15Zr0.10Ti0.90O3–0.6BaTi0.89Sn0.11O3 (0.4BCZT–0.6BTSn) ferroelectric ceramics were prepared via sol-gel process and their structural, dielectric and energy storage properties were studied. Pure perovskite structure was confirmed by X-ray diffraction analysis. The evolution of energy storage performances with temperature was studied. A Significant recoverable energy-storage density of 137.86 mJ/cm3 and high energy-storage efficiency of 86.19% under a moderate electric field of 30 kV/cm were achieved in the composite 0.4BCZT–0.6BTSn ceramic at 353 K. Moreover, excellent temperature stability (70–130  $^{\circ}$ C) of the energy storage efficiency (less than 3%) was achieved.

#### References

Z. Sun, Z. Wang, Y. Tian, G. Wang, W. Wang, M. Yang, X. Wang, F. Zhang, et al. Y. Pu, Progress, outlook, and challenges in lead-free energy-storage ferroelectrics, Adv. Electron. Mater. 6 (1) (janv. 2020), 1900698.

# Solid oxide cells: From 3D microstructure to comprehensive quantification

Bartlomiej Winiarski<sup>1</sup>, Patrick Barthelemy<sup>2</sup>, Chengge Jiao<sup>3</sup>, <u>Dirk Laeveren</u><sup>3\*</sup>, Dalton Cox<sup>4</sup>, Scott A. Barnett<sup>4</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Thermo Fisher Scientific, Brno, South Moravia, Czech Republic
<sup>2</sup>Thermo Fisher Scientific, Waltham, MA, USA
<sup>3</sup>Thermo Fisher Scientific, Eindhoven, Netherlands
<sup>4</sup>Northwestern University, Dept. Material Science & Eng., Evanston, IL, USA
\*E-mail: dirk.laeveren@thermofisher.com

Performance and durability of solid oxide cell (SOC) electrodes are closely linked to their porous microstructure properties and the microstructure evolution during the cell's lifetime. Thus, comprehensive characterization of three-dimensional (3D) microstructures is essential for SOC electrode optimization. Using Plasma FIB-SEM (PFIB-SEM) microscopes, which offer accessed material volumes thousandfold larger than those of traditional Ga<sup>+</sup> FIB-SEMs, along with the latest implementations of automated serial sectioning, multidetector SEM imaging techniques, and SEM auto-functions, make PFIB-SEM an ideal platform for investigating SOC microstructures and other porous materials.

This contribution addresses the major areas of SOC characterization, for the first time, and proposes a complete characterization workflow from 3D microstructure to comprehensive quantification: triple-phase boundary, (non-) percolating Ni and pores. As a practical example in this study, we characterize a fresh solid oxide fuel cell (NYDC-55-3-0) manufactured and prepared for investigation by Northwestern University. We utilize the Plasma FIB-SEM platform (Helios 5 PFIB) and automated serial sectioning software (Auto Slice and View 5 - ASV5) to collect a large 3D volume of  $180 \times 150 \times 30 \ \mu\text{m}^3$  with a voxel size of  $32 \times 32 \times 50 \ \text{nm}^3$ .

We developed automated Avizo recipes that take control of the data processing and analyses and allow consistent and reliable data quantification and 3D visualization. The recipes calculate spatial parameters of tortuosity, triple-phase boundaries (total length, length/volume), phases volume fractions, percentage of non-percolating for each phase, and surface area/volume for Void|YSZ, Void|Ni and YSZ|Ni.

This study presents a new and comprehensive characterization workflow leveraging deeplearning predictions, covering the entire spectrum from 3D microstructure analysis using PFIB-SEM to thorough quantification, as demonstrated through the examination of a freshly prepared solid oxide fuel cell. Our advancements resulted in a thousandfold increase in the volume of image data acquisition compared to prior studies, all while maintaining a consistent voxel size (or resolution). To ensure robust identification of material constituents, we implemented the simultaneous acquisition of back scattered electron and secondary electron images, guaranteeing 99.99% confidence.

- 1. JR Wilson et al., Nature Materials 5 (2006), p. 541. https://doi.org/10.1038/nmat1668
- 2. TLBurnett et al., *Ultramicroscopy* **161** (2016), p. 119. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ultramic.2015.11.001
- 3. SJ Cooper et al., *J. Electroch. Soc.* **169** (2022), p. 070512. https://doi.org/10.1149/1945-7111/ ac7a68
- 1. L Holzer et al., in "Tortuosity and Microstructure Effects in Porous Media", ed. R Hull, (Springer, Cham, 2023), p.114.
- 2. O Ronneberger et al., MICCAI Conf. Proc. (2015).

### SiC-based ceramics for high-temperature applications on oxidizing environment: prepared with mere amount of carbide additives and liquid phase routes

#### Min-sung Park, Sea-Hoon Lee\*

Extreme Materials Institute, Korea Institute of Materials Science, Changwon, South Korea \*E-mail: seahoon1@kims.re.kr

**Keywords**: SiC, B<sub>4</sub>C, rare-earh (RE) carbides, precursor infiltration and pyrolysis (PIP), Spark plasma sintering/field assisted sintering technology (SPS/FAST), aqueous slurry

Silicon carbide (SiC) and SiC-based materials are representative engineering ceramic for high-temperature environment applications. Due to SiC's excellent thermal stability and mechanical properties at high-temperature environments, SiC-based materials are actively applied to industries under extreme thermal environment like aerospace and turbine materials.

However, one of the major tasks for SiC specialist is to materialize SiC's suitable hightemperature properties, which could be possible with fabrication processes to control defects, and undesirable components like oxides or residues in the material. Applying high solid loading SiC slurry could minimize the above problems. High concentration slurry (over 60 vol%) reduces shrinkage of green body and precursor infiltration and pyrolysis (PIP) method operates further densification without residues. For most high-temperature applications, operating environment contains oxygen gas that oxidation behaviour should be considered. SiC is basically stable and excellent on oxidation resistance, however, it could turn into active oxidation mode at above certain level of oxygen gas. Environmental barrier coatings (EBCs) are applied to prevent this critical phenomenon.

We add carbide additives (including rare-earth (RE) carbides) on preparation of SiC-based materials. Despite the final portions are less than 1 vol%, additives show promisiong or noticeable effects on high-temperature properties of SiC-based ceramics. For instance, SiC-B<sub>4</sub>C showed 514 MPa at 1500 °C, and SiC-YC<sub>2</sub> also showed interesting results. With the advantage of flexible shaping and fast densification, this approach could efficiently contribute to SiC-based materials' high-temperature application in various operating environments, both with or without EBCs.



### Figures



In-situ flexural strength of SiC-B4C fabricated using high concentration slurry and PIP method.

### Role of boron nitride nanosheets on the crack growth resistance of zirconia composites obtained by environmentally friendly processes

C. Muñoz-Ferreiro<sup>1,23</sup>, A. Morales-Rodríguez<sup>2</sup>, H. Reveron<sup>3</sup>, J. Chevalier<sup>3</sup>, Á. Gallardo-López<sup>2</sup>, <u>R. Poyato<sup>1\*</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>Instituto de Ciencia de Materiales de Sevilla, ICMS, CSIC-Universidad de Sevilla, Avda. Américo Vespucio 49, 41092 Sevilla, Spain

<sup>2</sup>Dpto. de Física de la Materia Condensada, ICMS, CSIC-Universidad de Sevilla, Apdo. 1065, 41080 Sevilla, Spain

<sup>3</sup>CNRS, INSA Lyon, Université Claude Bernard Lyon 1, MATEIS, UMR5510, 69621 Villeurbanne, France

\*E-mail: rosalia.poyato@icmse.csic.es

Keywords: boron nitride nanosheets, zirconia, composite materials, microstructure, R-curve, bridging

In the last years, a great interest in new composite materials with 2D nanomaterials as fillers has been developed as they could meet the multifunctional properties required for application on the environment, medicine, space, or energy industries. Among the inorganic graphene analogues, 2D hexagonal boron nitride (2D-hBN) has gained relevance as filler in ceramic composites since it possesses comparable mechanical properties to those of graphene, but showing some advantages over it, such as its chemical stability up to 800-1000 °C or its white color. In fact, with the incorporation of this nanomaterial to advanced ceramics, the composites are expected to attain greater structural stability. However, despite the interest of these materials, the studies approaching the mechanical performance of ceramic composites with 2D-hBN as filler are still scarce.

In this work, the role of the incorporation of boron nitride nanosheets (BNNS) on the microstructural and mechanical features of 3 mol.% yttria-stabilized tetragonal zirconia polycrystal (3Y-TZP) ceramics has been analyzed. To that end, BNNS were exfoliated by two different simple and environmentally friendly processes: hydroxide-assisted planetary ball milling and shear exfoliation in a kitchen blender. The composite powders were spark plasma sintered at 1250 °C for 5 min with an applied pressure of 75 MPa. The microstructural features have been assessed through scanning and transmission electron microscopy, X-ray diffraction and Raman spectroscopy. Besides other classical mechanical properties- hardness, Young's modulus and single edge V notched beam (SEVNB) fracture toughness-, the resistance to stable crack growth (R-curve) of the composites containing either type of exfoliated BNNS have also been evaluated on SEVNB by three-point bending tests. Inspection of the crack paths revealed the mechanisms responsible for toughening in the composites.

#### Acknowledgments

This research was supported by projects PGC2018–101377-B-100 and PID2022-140191NB-I00\_funded by MCIN/AEI/ 10.13039/501100011033 (Ministerio de Ciencia e Innovación, Spanish Government, Agencia Estatal de Investigación) and by ERDF (European Regional Development Funding) "A way of making Europe", and by project P20\_01024 (Junta de Andalucía/FEDER, UE 2014-2020). C. Muñoz-Ferreiro acknowledges the financial support of a VI PPIT-US fellowship through the contract USE-18740-H and to the JECS Trust for the mobility bourse through the contract no. 2019203.

#### Hardness anisotropy of HfC and TaC ceramic grains

#### Yogesh Kumar Ravikumar<sup>\*</sup>, Marek Vojtko, Ján Dusza, Tamás Csanádi

Institute of Materials Research, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Watsonova 47, 040 01 Košice, Slovakia \*E-mail: kravikumar@saske.sk

Keywords: hardness anisotropy, slip systems, transition metal carbides, nanoindentation

The anisotropy of hardness and indentation modulus of grains of low-index crystallographic orientations ({001}, {101} and {111}), mapped by electron backscatter diffraction, were investigated by nanoindentation in polycrystalline HfC and TaC ceramics. It was revealed that the hardness anisotropy exhibited different trends for the HfC and TaC ceramics while the indentation modulus did not show detectable anisotropy. The {101} and {111} facets of HfC is found to be harder (~32 GPa) than the {001} orientation (~30 GPa) while, in the case of TaC, higher hardness corresponds to the {111} facet (~23 GPa) in comparison with the {001} and {101} orientations (~22 GPa) as shown in Figure 1. The different hardness anisotropies are attributed to the different dominant slip activation reported in the literature, providing a quick and efficient tool for the distinction between the <1-10>{110} and <1-10>{111} type active slip systems in rock salt structure transition metal carbides.



Figure 1: Typical a) hardness - and b) indentation modulus - depth curves of HfC and TaC grains measured on low index crystal facets.

#### Acknowledgments

This research was supported by the Slovak Grant Agency for Science via the projects APVV-19-0497 and APVV-22-0493 and by the Slovak Academy of Sciences via the projects: Seal of Excellence – Strengthecs and IMPULZ IM-2022-67.

### Vat photopolymerization of ceramic multi-material systems

Martin Schwentenwein<sup>1\*</sup>, Serkan Nohut<sup>1</sup>, Sebastian Geier<sup>1</sup>, Josef Schlacher<sup>2</sup>, Raul Bermejo<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Lithoz GmbH, Vienna, Austria <sup>2</sup>Department of Materials Science, Monatnuniversitaet Leoben, Austria \*E-mail: mschwentenwein@lithoz.com

Keywords: vat photopolymerzation, multi-material, mechanical properties

Combining different materials in additive manufacturing (AM) is garnering widespread attention due to the wide range of possibilities that it provides to realize parts with increased functionality. This talk presents the status quo of multi-material AM on the basis of lithography-based ceramic manufacturing (LCM), a technology belonging to the family of vat photopolymerization (VPP) techniques, which is capable of realizing high resolution 3D printing for ceramics. Beside the technological principles the focus of this presentation will also be on the results and current challenges in terms of co-printing and co-sintering of different ceramic materials as well as ceramic and metals. Different material combinations have been investigated including hydroxyapatite (HA)/tricalcium phosphate (TCP), porous/dense alumina, porous/dense HA, alumina (A)/zirconia-toughened-alumina (ZTA), and copper (Cu)/ glass ceramic. In more detail, this contribution will showcase the use of this multi-material AM approach to combine ZTA sandwiched between pure alumina, yielding a characteristic strength higher than 1 GPa on the laminate multi-material system, compared to 650 MPa in the monolithic alumina. It will also present the outstanding thermal shock resistance of such AM produced multi-material components owing to the embedded compressive layers, which leads to a significant performance enhancement compared to the monolithic reference. This article also discusses the main issues and future possibilities of ceramic-ceramic and metalglass ceramic multilayer fabrication by LCM technology. The initial results show that this technologicy holds great potential to path the way from classical single material structures to multi-material and functionally-graded ceramics.

#### Figures



Figure 1: Schematic image showing the improved thermal shock resistance of a ceramic turbine blade fabricated by multi-material VPP compared to the monolithoc counterpart due to crack arrest within the embedded layers

#### Acknowledgments

This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under the grant agreements No. 953134 and No. 101020104.

- Schlacher, J., Geier, S., Schwentenwein, M., & Bermejo, R. (2024). Towards 3D-printed aluminabased multi-material components with enhanced thermal shock resistance. Journal of the European Ceramic Society, 44(4), 2294-2303.
- Schlacher, J., Hofer, A. K., Geier, S., Kraleva, I., Papšík, R., Schwentenwein, M., & Bermejo, R. (2021). Additive manufacturing of high-strength alumina through a multi-material approach. Open ceramics, 5, 100082.
## Treatment of oil sands process-affected water using a induced gas flotation with submerged ceramic membrane filtration system

### Jiha Shim, Sanghyun Jeong\*

School of Civil and Environmental Engineering, Pusan National University, Busan, South Korea \*E-mail: sh.jeong@pusan.ac.kr

Keywords: oil sands process-affected water, induced gas flotation, submerged ceramic membrane, oil removal

In a previous study, we conducted research on the removal of oil from oil sands processaffected water using a coalescing filter (CF). The CF efficiently removed oil wastewater from 100 to 200 mg  $L^{-1}$  down to 10 to 20 mg  $L^{-1}$  within a short period. However, beyond this range, the removal of low concentrations of oil took significantly more time, leading to a sharp decrease in efficiency. Therefore, the application of alternative oil separation technology suitable for efficiently removing oil in the range of 10 to 20 mg L<sup>-1</sup> is necessary. In this study, we aimed to effectively remove extremely low concentration oil from oily wastewater using a induced gas flotation with submerged ceramic membrane (scmIGF). The scmIGF injects gases such as N<sub>2</sub> and CO<sub>2</sub> to float oil droplets and skims them through the skimmer module. Simultaneously, it employs submerged ceramic membrane technology to remove ultrafine oil droplets. This enables the effective removal of free oil, unlike the CF, and proves to be effective in removing oil in wastewater with low concentrations of 20 mg L<sup>-1</sup> or less. We tried to achieve process optimization of the scmIGF by evaluating oil removal efficiency based on various operating conditions, such as the type of gas, bubble size, and pore size of the ceramic membrane. From an operational perspective, it was observed that the oil removal efficiency of scmIGF varied significantly depending on the type of gas (N<sub>2</sub>, CO<sub>2</sub>, etc.) and the pore size of the submerged ceramic membrane. The results showed that the ceramic membrane enabled complete oil removal before going to next treatment step and the injected bubbles effectively removed the oil-contaminated fouling layer formed on the surface of the membrnae.

Oral



Figure 1. A schemaic diagram of scmIGF.

#### Acknowledgments

This work is supported by the Korea Agency for Infrastructure Technology Advancement(KAIA) grant funded by the Ministry of Land, Infrastructure, and Transport (RS-2022-00144137).

# Step-by-step designing of A and B-site doped high-entropy perovskite oxides for thermoelectric applications

#### <u>Rishabh Shukla</u>, S. Huangfu, Michael Stuer\*

High Performance Ceramics Laboratory, Swiss Federal Laboratories for Materials Science and Technology (Empa), Dübendorf, Switzerland \*E-mail: michael.stuer@empa.ch

Keywords: high-entropy, thermoelectrics, figure of merit, material design, etc.

Ceramic oxides were subjected to immense scientific scrutiny for thermoelectric (TE) applications because of their high thermal and chemical resistance at high temperatures. However, their mediocre electrical conductivity and/or high thermal conductivity limit the material design for practical commercial applications [1]. Interestingly, the high entropy oxides (HEOs), a subset in the family of high entropy materials, are considered potential candidates for practical TE applications because they can offer a pathway to partially decouple the electronic and thermal conductivities to significantly enhance the TE properties [2,3]. HEOs are formed by a random and homogeneous distribution of nearly equimolar cations at a crystallographic site in a single phase due to the dominance of configurational entropy over enthalpy at high temperatures [4-6]. A strong lattice distortion in a highly symmetric structure may allow for an overall enhancement in the figure of merit ( $zT = \alpha^2 T/\rho\kappa$ ) via a reduction in phonon thermal conductivity ( $\kappa_{vh}$ ) and optimization of the power factor ( $\alpha^2/\rho$ ) [2]. Microstructural engineering through advanced sintering and/or processing methods will then allow exploring a widely expanded chemistry-structure-property space for HEO-based thermoelectric material optimization. HEOs may thus form the foundation of a technology roadmap for highly efficient and versatile thermoelectric devices. In the present work, we focus on a step-by-step feedbackbased designing of A- and B-site doped perovskite (ABO<sub>3</sub>) HEOs to study their structural, magnetic, electronic, and thermoelectric behavior.

Fe and Mn-based (having free electrons in *d*-shells) B-site modified  $[A_1(5N)_1O_3]$  HEOs were first prepared to systematically understand the effects on the material properties such as carrier concentration, density of states, valence state, matrix effect, and structural distortion. This understanding was then escalated to the design of A and B-site doped  $[(5M)_1(5N)_1O_3]$  HEOs. Accordingly, first single-phase BaBO<sub>3</sub> (B= Y, Fe/Mn, Ti, Zr, Hf, Nb, Zn, W, and Ta) with variable Fe/Mn content (0, 0.2, 0.3, and 0.4) was prepared via solid-state synthesis method. The low-temperature magnetic behavior of 0.4Fe was analyzed with dc/ac-magnetic, neutron, and  $\mu$ SR measurements to confirm the short-range order owing to the competitive ferromagnetic-antiferromagnetic correlations [7]. Further, spark plasma sintering (SPS) at 1000-1200°C with a pressure of 100 MPa was used to prepare engineered 0.4Fe samples for thermoelectric applications. We observed enhancement in the electrical conductivity and the Seebeck coefficient increased significantly to a relatively large value of ~10<sup>5</sup>  $\mu$ V/K at 75°C in correlation with the structural phase transition observed in the temperature-dependent x-ray diffraction and electrochemical impedance spectroscopy measurements.

- 1. A. Salian and S. Mandal, Crit. Rev. Solid State Mater. Sci. 47, 142 (2022).
- 2. B. Jiang, Y. Yu, H. Chen, J. Cui, X. Liu, L. Xie, and J. He, Nat. Commun. 12(1), 1 (2021).
- 3. A. Kumar, D. Dragoe, D. Berardan, and N. Dragoe, J. Mater. 9, 191 (2023).
- 4. A. J. Knorpp, J. G. Bell, S. Huangfu, and M. Stuer, Chimia 76, 212 (2022).
- 5. C. M. Rost, E. Sachet, T. Borman, A. Moballegh, E. C. Dickey, D. Hou, J. L. Jones, S. Curtarolo, and J.-P. Maria, Nat. Commun. 6, 8485 (2015).
- 6. O. F. Dippo, and K. S. Vecchio, Scrip. Mater. 201, 113974 (2021).
- S. Huangfu, A. C. Austin, Z. Guguchia, Ø. S. Fjellvåg, A. J. Knorpp, H. Luetkens, A. Schilling, and M. Stuer, Inorg. Chem. 63, 247 (2024).

# Synthesis and 3D printing of carbon coated lithium iron phosphate (C/LFP) cathodes

<u>Sabrina Tair</u>\*, Isabel María Peláez Tirado, José Miguel Ramos Fajardo, Juan Carlos Pérez Flores, Jesús Canales Vázquez

Energy Materials & 3D Printing Laboratory (3D-ENERMAT), Renewable Energy Research Institute, University of Castilla-La Mancha (UCLM), C/ de la Investigación 1, Building 3, 02071 Albacete, Spain

\*E-mail: Sabrina.Tair@uclm.es

**Keywords**: LFP/C synthesis, solid-state reaction, 3D printing, cathodes, lithium-ion batteries, fused filament fabrication (FFF)

Synthesis of carbon coated lithium iron phosphate (LFP/C) cathodes for lithium-ion batteries (LiBs) has been optimised to produce novel configurations by advanced fabrication methods such as 3D printing[1]. Synthesized LFP/C exhibits a pure phase with an orthorhombic structure with lattice constant equal to: a=10,3676Å, b=5,9987Å, c=4,71312Å in the Pnma space group [2]. According to morphological analyses, as synthesised LFP appears as agglomerates that were sonicated to obtain nanometric grain sizes, around  $\approx 30$  nm, improving the morphology observed for commercial LFP/C powder, with a larger grain size (approximately 1 µm). Solid state synthesis under reducing conditions leads to the production of a 49 nm coating to improve the electronic conductivity of the cathodes.

Such nanometric powder was used to fabricate polymer-ceramic filaments with up to 65% of ceramic loading, which were subsequently fed to a desktop FFF-3D printer. After debinding and final sintering at 500 °C, these electrodes have been electrochemically tested and compared with commercial LFP/C. Thus, cycling of new 3D printed LFP/C electrodes yields up to 128 mA/g at C/10 which is almost a 85% of the theoretical capacity. Such variation may be attributed mostly to the the synthesis process followed, particularly the carbon coating.

Therefore, further investigation, such as the impact of carbon coating, particle size and electrode fabrication procedure on the electrochemical performance of LFP/C cathodes would provide a novel perspective for the development of improved cathodes for lithium-ion batteries.

- J. M. Ramos-Fajardo, I. M. Peláez-Tirado, J. R. Marín-Rueda, M. Castro-García, J. Canales-Vázquez, and J. C. Pérez-Flores, "LFP-based binder-free electrodes produced via fused filament fabrication," *Journal of Physics: Energy*, vol. 5, no. 3, p. 035010, Jul. 2023, doi: 10.1088/2515-7655/ACE850
- J. Hu, W. Huang, L. Yang, and F. Pan, "Structure and performance of the LiFePO<sub>4</sub> cathode material: from the bulk to the surface," vol. 12, p. 15036, 2020, doi: 10.1039/d0nr03776a

### Microstructure and physical properties of plasma-sprayed nanostructured Yb<sub>4</sub>Hf<sub>3</sub>O<sub>12</sub> thermal and environmental barrier coatings

### Shun Wang<sup>\*</sup>, Tao Zheng, Baosheng Xu

Institute of Advanced Structure Technology, Beijing Institute of Technology, Beijing, China \*E-mail: wangshun@bit.edu.com

Keywords: rare earth hafnate, physical properties, plasma spraying, nanostructure, thermal/environmental barrier coating

Ceramic matrix composite (CMCs) is expected to replace superalloy as the ideal high temperature structural material for the new generation of high thrust-weight ratio aero engine. However, CMCs faces severe challenges such as water oxygen and CMAS in the service process. Thermal and environmental barrier coatings (TEBCs) technology should be used for thermal protection and corrosion protection of ceramic matrix composites. Nanomaterials are widely used in coating because of their excellent thermodynamic properties and the introduction of nanostructures into coating has become one of the research hotspots. In this work, we compared the microstructure and nanomechanical properties of nanostructured and conventional Yb4Hf3O12 coatings prepared by atmospheric plasma. The nanostructured Yb- $_4$ Hf<sub>3</sub>O<sub>12</sub> coatings exhibited a bi-modal distribution in microstructure. Due to the existence of phase transition, the mechanical properties of the two annealed coatings after annealing were investigated. Both types of coatings demonstrated increased nanomechanical properties after heat treatment, but the nanostructured Yb4Hf3O12 coatings showed a more significant increase in elastic modulus and nanohardness than the conventional  $Yb_4Hf_3O_{12}$  coatings. The thermal properties of nanostructured and conventional Yb4Hf3O12 coatings were also investigated, and the nanostructured coatings showed lower thermal conductivity. Furthermore, the thermal expansion behavior of two types of coatings was investigated. Although there is a phase transition in the spraying process, the thermal expansion coefficient of phase  $\delta$  and phase F is not very different, which does not affect the use of the coating.

# Preparation of non-ablative elastic insulation materials with maintainable shape properties

### Baosheng Xu<sup>\*</sup>, Ning Zhou, Zhiliang Zhou

Institute of Advanced Structure Technology, Beijing Institute of Technology, Beijing, China \*E-mail: xubsh@bit.edu.cn

Keywords: ceramic, insulation materials, thermal conductivity, elasticity

Non-ablative ceramic insulation materials play an important role in aerospace field. However, the traditional rigid insulating ceramic tile material has inherent brittleness, while the flexible insulating felt material has weak dimensional ability, which limits their application in some fields. This report puts forward a new idea from the construction of elastic micro-junction units to the realization of macroscopic elastic properties, and innovatively develops a new type of thermal insulation material with both maintainable shape and strong elasticity. The advanced elastic insulation materials exhibited low density (~0.15 g cm<sup>-3</sup>), high compressive stress (~0.36 MPa), and low thermal conductivity (~0.04 W m<sup>-1</sup> K<sup>-1</sup>). The fascinating material may provide new insights for candidate materials in thermal insulation and other fields.

#### Acknowledgments

This work is supported by the National Natural Science Foundation of China (Nos.12090031).

## The enhanced thermal conductivity of $Si_3N_4$ ceramics prepared by using metal hydride

#### <u>Yu-Ping Zeng</u>\*, Weide Wang, Dongxu Yao, Yongfeng Xia

Shanghai Institute of Ceramics, Chinese Academy of Sciences, Shanghai 200050, China \*E-mail: yuping-zeng@mail.sic.ac.cn

Keywords: silicon nitride, thermal conductivity, sintering, metal hydride

In this work, two kind of metal hydride, namely YH<sub>2</sub> and ZrH<sub>2</sub> were used to prepare the high thermal conductivity of Si<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub> ceramics. The metal hydride additives involved two step sintering. For YH<sub>2</sub>, the native SiO<sub>2</sub> was eliminated, and Y<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> was in situ formed by a metal hydride reduction reaction. The Y<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>/SiO<sub>2</sub> ratio increased with the increase of YH<sub>2</sub> content. Full densification of YH<sub>2</sub>-doped samples could be achieved after sintering at 1900°C for 4h. The Y<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>/SiO<sub>2</sub> ratio had a significant influence on the composition of crystalline secondary phases. Besides, the increased Y<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>/SiO<sub>2</sub> ratio is conducive not only to the grain growth but also to the reduction of activity of SiO2 in the liquid phase, resulting in enlarged purified grains, reduced volume fraction of intergranular phases and increased Si<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub>-Si<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub> contiguity, the thermal conductivity increased by 29% from 95.3 to 123.0 W·m<sup>-1</sup>·K<sup>-1</sup> after sintering at 1900 °C for 12h by the substitution of Y<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> with YH<sub>2</sub>.

For  $ZrH_2$ , the metal hydride reduction reaction in the first step sintering allows the in situ generation of  $ZrO_2$  and the elimination of native  $SiO_2$ . A smaller amount of liquid phase with reduced oxygen content was produced during the second step sintering as a result of the replacement of  $ZrO_2$  by  $ZrH_2$ . The inherent oxygen in those  $ZrH_2$ -doped samples was removed via a route of  $SiO_2 \rightarrow ZrO_2 \rightarrow SiO(g)$ . Consequently, the densified  $Si_3N_4$  ceramics with larger volume percent of elongated purified  $\beta$ -Si<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub> grains and less glassy phase were obtained. Ultimately, the optimal thermal conductivity of 116.4 W·m<sup>-1</sup>·K<sup>-1</sup> was achieved after sintered at 1900°C for 12h by using 3wt% ZrH<sub>2</sub> and 1.5wt% MgO as additives.

468

### **T2.4 MATERIALS FOR SOLID STATE LIGHTING**

## Development of transparent and fluorescent α-SiAlON ceramics by adding various rare-earth additives

Kohei Aminaka<sup>1</sup>, Junichi Tatami<sup>2\*</sup>, Motoyuki Iijima<sup>2</sup>, Takuma Takahashi<sup>3</sup>, Tsukaho Yahagi<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Graduate School of Engineering Science, Yokohama National University, Yokohama, Japan <sup>2</sup>Graduate School of Environment and Information Sciences, Yokohama National University, Yokohama, Japan

<sup>3</sup>Kanagawa Institute of Industrial Science and Technology, Ebina, Japan

\*E-mail: tatami-junichi-xv@ynu.ac.jp

Keywords: transparent ceramics, a-SiAlON, controlling microstrucuture

 $\alpha$ -SiAlON ceramics are expected as novel optical materials because of their excellent thermal, mechanical properties and intrinsic transparency due to high band gap energy. However, most of fabricated  $\alpha$ -SiAlON ceramics has been opaque because of scattering and absorption sources (pores, secondary phases, coarse particles, and SiAlON glassy phase) developed through the liquid phase sintering process, which is derived from the rare-earth additives. In the present study, the influence of rare-earth additives on transparency of  $\alpha$ -SiAlON ceramics was investigated.

At first, the samples using 15 different rare-earth oxide powders were prepared by firing at 1600°C for 4 h in 0.9 MPa N<sub>2</sub>. As shown in Fig. 1, the  $\alpha$ -SiAlON ceramics fabricated by adding rare-earth oxides whose rare-earth ions have small ionic radii: Y<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, Ho<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, Er<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, Tm<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, Yb<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, and Lu<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, showed high  $\alpha$ -SiAlON fraction and high relative density related to wider composition for formation of  $\alpha$ -SiAlON single phase<sup>[1]</sup>. In addition, these samples were consisted with fine microstructure associtated with low temperture sintering. These microstructure, which have fewer scattraing sources, resulted in high transparency showed in Fig. 2(a).

Based on these insights, Ce-doped  $\alpha$ -SiAlON ceramics fabricated by co-doping with Lu<sup>3+</sup>, which is the smallest rare-earth ion, is resulted high transparency and fluorecence corresponding to Ce<sup>3+</sup>. Furthermore, the in-line transmittance of Lu- $\alpha$ -SiAlON:Ce<sup>3+</sup> ceramics using fine raw powders of rare-earth oxides was 50% at 600 nm (Fig. 2(b)).



Fig. 1 Relative densities and fractions of fabricated α-SiAlON ceramics.



Fig.2 Transparency of  $\alpha$ -SiAlON ceramics (thickness:100µm). (a) single doped (b)codoped with Lu and Ce

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by JSPS KAKENHI Grant Numbers JP22H00257 and 23KJ0982.

#### References

H. Mandal, J. Eur. Ceram. 19, 13 (1999) 2349-2357.

# Utilizing rare earth element-modified smectites for the synthesis of photoactive ceramics with up-conversion properties

<u>Marián Janek<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Michal Čičkan<sup>1</sup>, Robert Klement<sup>3</sup>, Marián Matejdes<sup>4</sup>, Daniel Furka<sup>1</sup>, Samuel Furka<sup>1</sup>, Ľuboš Bača<sup>2,5</sup>, Mira Naftaly<sup>6</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>Comenius University, Faculty of Natural Sciences, Department of Physical and Theoretical Chemistry, Mlynská dolina CH1, SK-84215 Bratislava, Slovakia
<sup>2</sup>Slovak University of Technology, Faculty of Chemical and Food Technology, Department of Inorganic Materials, Radlinského 9, SK-81237 Bratislava, Slovakia
<sup>3</sup>FunGlass - Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalized Glass, TnUAD, Študentská 2, SK-911 50 Trenčín, Slovakia
<sup>4</sup>Slovak Academy of Sciences, Institute of Inorganic Chemistry, Dúbravská cesta 9, SK-84536 Bratislava, Slovakia
<sup>5</sup>Aerospace & Advanced Composites GmbH, Wiener Neustadt, Austria
<sup>6</sup>National Physical Laboratory, Hampton Rd, Teddington, Middlesex TW11 0LW, UK
\*E-mail: marian.janek@uniba.sk, marian.janek@stuba.sk

**Keywords**: smectites, cation exchange, rare earth elements, high temperature transformation, solid state phosphors, up-conversion, terahertz time-domain spectroscopy, additive manufacturing

Synthetic layered clay minerals with smectite structure and different chemical composition were used for synthesis of ceramic materials after their modification by stochiometric mixture of  $Er^{3+}/Yb^{3+}$  (REE) cations. The behavior of selected smectites was systematically investigated before and after modification using REE and heating up to temperatures ensuring the sample dehydration (400 °C), dehydroxylation (800 °C) and formation of new high temperature phases (1200  $^{\circ}$ C). The effect of temperature on the samples was investigated by thermogravimetry (TG), powder X-ray diffraction (PXRD), terahertz-time domain spectroscopy (THz-TDS) and UV-VIS-NIR fluorescence spectroscopy. The samples undergo phase transformation immediately after dehydroxylation and new phases are starting to be formed already at 800 °C. At this stage only main diffractions of forsterite Mg<sub>2</sub>SiO<sub>4</sub> and/or enstatite Mg<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>O<sub>6</sub> ceramics can be observed. The heating at 1200 °C enabled detection of erbium silicate Er<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>O<sub>2</sub> and/or ytterbium silicate Yb<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>O<sub>2</sub> by PXRD as important phases used in upconversion of electromagnetic radiation or photonic components such as optical waveguide amplifiers [1]. Interestingly, the forming of new products was detected also by THz-TDS spectroscopy in the far-infrared region [2], by the detection of the increase of frequency dependent index of refraction and decrease of absorption coefficient compared to the pristine clays. Prepared ceramic materials revealed typical emission bands after irradiation by 980 nm laser located within green (540 nm) and red (670 nm) emission. The averaged integrated intensity ratios between green and red emissions were 0.43 and 0.51, dependent on the smectite material used for modification. The results achieved indicate that the functionalized ceramic structures prepared from modified smectites can be processed also using additive manufacturing technologies based on composites photopolymerization.

#### Acknowledgments

The financial support of Slovak Grant Agency No. VEGA 1/0070/22 and 1/0342/21, Slovak Research and Development Agency under the Contracts No. APVV-21-0173, and the support by the project Advancing University Capacity and Competence in Research, Development and Innovation ("ACCORD") ITMS2014+: 313021X329, co-financed by ERDF are greatly acknowledged.

- 1. X.J. Wang, P.Q. Zhou, Y.D. He, Z.P. Zhou (2018) Erbium silicate compound optical waveguide amplifier and laser. Opt. Mater. Exp. 8(10), 2970.
- M. Janek, R. Klement, M. Naftaly, E. Trusova, A. Gatial, P. Veteška, Ľ. Bača (2022) Terahertz response of Er<sup>3+</sup>/Yb<sup>3+</sup> co-doped La<sub>2</sub>Zr<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub> synthesised using the sol-gel precipitation method. Colloids Surf. A: Physicochem. Eng. 644, 128836.

## T2.5 Advanced Polymer Derived Ceramics (PDCs) and Related Materials for Energy Applications

# Downshift of the Ni d band center over Ni nanoparticles in situ confined within an amorphous silicon nitride matrix

<u>Norifumi Asakuma</u><sup>1</sup>, Shotaro Tada<sup>1,2</sup>, Tomoyuki Tamura<sup>3</sup>, Erika Kawaguchi<sup>1</sup>, Sawao Honda<sup>1</sup>, Toru Asaka<sup>1</sup>, Assil Bouzid<sup>4</sup>, Samuel Bernard<sup>4</sup>, Yuji Iwamoto<sup>1\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Life Science and Applied Chemistry, Nagoya Institute of Technology, Nagoya, Japan <sup>2</sup>Department of Metallurgy and Materials Engineering, Indian Institute of Technology Madras, Chennai, India

<sup>3</sup>Department of Physical Science and Engineering, Nagoya Institute of Technology, Nagoya, Japan <sup>4</sup>CNRS, IRCER, University of Limoges, Limoges, France

\*E-mail: iwamoto.yuji@nitech.ac.jp

**Keywords**: d band center, electronic metal-support interaction, amorphous silicon nitride, nickel nanoparticle, nanocomposite

Hydrogen (H<sub>2</sub>) has been widely used in chemical processes. Most of these reactions generally can be facilitated by the transition metal (TM) catalyst because its d-electrons play a central role in the adsorption and dissociation of H<sub>2</sub>. In general, binding strength between hydrogen and TM highly influences the subsequent catalytic performance. Based on the d band theory, the d band center ( $\varepsilon_d$ ) is found to show a correlation with the binding strength between TM and adsorbates<sup>1</sup>. The down (up) shift of the ( $\varepsilon_d$ ) means that the less (higher) availability of empty antibonding states between the TM and adsorbate results in weaker (stronger) interactions between them<sup>1</sup>. The weak (strong) binding strength between them makes the chemisorption (desorption) difficult, thus there is an appropriate binding strength to maximize the catalytic activity. As a general trend, the d band center of TM shifts down from left to right, and from 3d to 5d TMs in the periodic table. Thus, downshifting the d band center of 3d TMs such as nickel is one of the reasonable strategies to approach the catalytic performance of noble metals.

The construction of electronic metal–support interaction (EMSI) is a promising strategy for modifying the electronic structure of TM<sup>2</sup>. Therefore, the choice of catalytic support is crucial for developing novel active catalysts. Silicon nitride  $(Si_3N_4)$  is an attractive catalytic support because its nitrogen atoms can electrically interact with the loaded TMs. In our previous study, the successful formation was achieved under anhydrous conditions for the Ni nanocrystallites embedded within the amorphous  $Si_3N_4$  (Ni/a- $Si_3N_4$ ) through the polymerderived ceramics (PDCs) route<sup>3</sup>. Moreover, the embedment structure of TMs within catalytic support generally facilitates the EMSI because the structure has a larger contact area between TMs and support matrices.

Herein, to investigate the influence of  $Si_3N_4$  catalytic support on the EMSI, we synthesized polymer-derived Ni nanoparticles embedded within an amorphous silicon nitride matrix (Ni/a-Si\_3N\_4) and an amorphous silicon dioxide matrix (Ni/a-SiO\_2) samples<sup>4</sup>. In both compounds, the Ni/Si atomic ratio (0.06–0.07), average Ni nanocrystallite size (7.0–7.6 nm),

and micro/mesoporosity of the matrix were rigorously fixed. Hydrogen (H<sub>2</sub>)-temperatureprogrammed desorption (TPD) profile analysis revealed that the activation energy for H<sub>2</sub> desorption at about 100–130 °C evaluated for the Ni/a-Si<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub> sample (47.4 kJ mol<sup>-1</sup>) was lower than that for the Ni/a-SiO<sub>2</sub> sample (68.0 kJ mol<sup>-1</sup>)<sup>4</sup>. Mechanistic study with XPS analysis and DFT calculations revealed that, at Ni nanoparticle/matrix heterointerfaces, Ni becomes more covalently bonded to N atoms in the a-Si<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub> matrix compared to O atoms in the a-SiO<sub>2</sub> matrix. Based on experimental and theoretical studies, we elucidated that Ni–N interactions at the heterointerface lead to remarkable Ni d band broadening and downshifting of the d band center relative to those generated by Ni–O interactions at the heterointerface. This facilitates H<sub>2</sub> desorption, as experimentally observed in the Ni/a-Si<sub>3</sub>N<sub>4</sub> sample<sup>4</sup>.

- 1. B. A. Baraiya, et al., J. Phys. Chem. A, 125, 5256-5272 (2021).
- 2. Tom W. van Deelen *et al.*, *Nat. Catal.*, **2**, 955-970 (2019).
- 3. N. Asakuma, et al., Nanomaterials, 12, 1644 (2022).
- 4. N. Asakuma et al., Dalton Trans., 53, 5686-5694 (2024).

# Merging self-assembly and additive manufacturing for hierarchically structured ceramics

<u>Matthew Dickerson<sup>1\*</sup></u>, Joe Bowen<sup>1,2</sup>, Caitlyn M. Clarkson<sup>1,3</sup>, Benito Roman-Manso<sup>4</sup>, Hilmar Koerner, Jennifer A. Lewis<sup>4,5</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Materials and Manufacturing Directorate, Air Force Research Laboratory, Wright-Patterson AFB, Ohio, 45433, USA
<sup>2</sup>UES, Inc., Dayton, OH 45432, USA
<sup>3</sup>NRC Research Associateship Programs, The National Academies, Washington, DC 20001, USA
<sup>4</sup>Harvard John A. Paulson School of Engineering and Applied Sciences, Harvard University, Cambridge, MA, 02215, USA
<sup>5</sup>Wyss Institute for Biologically Inspired Engineering, Harvard University, Cambridge, MA, 02215, USA
\*E-mail: matthew.dickerson.6@afrl.af.mil

Amongst macromolecules, preceramic polymers (PCPs) are unique in their ability to be converted from a workable polymeric material to ceramics via heat treatment. The flowable nature of many PCPs lends these materials to additive manufacturing, including direct ink writing (DIW). Several research groups have explored the DIW of both neat and filled PCPs to create relatively complex ceramic components (post pyrolysis). In this presentation, we will discuss our efforts to merge the PCPs with self-assembling molecules and DIW printing, to produce hierarchically-structured materials. Block copolymers (PNBA-PMMA-PNBA) were utilized in this work to direct the structure of the PCPs as well as serving as sacrificial porogens that are lost from the structure during pyrolysis. Ink formulations and printing parameters can be tailored to provide a variety of nanostructures within the confines of the printed components and mechanisms of structure development will be discussed. Structural, chemical, and mechanical characterization of the final ceramics will also be presented. The final nanoporous and nanostructured ceramics may have potential for a variety of energyrelated applications, including catalyst supports.

### Hierarchically porous ceramic materials via vat photopolymerizationinduced phase-separation as catalysts for CO<sub>2</sub> methanation

<u>Thomas Konegger</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Johannes Essmeister<sup>1</sup>, Anna-Maria Fuchsberger<sup>1</sup>, Deborah Steiner<sup>2</sup>, Sabine Schwarz<sup>3</sup>, Thomas Schachinger<sup>3</sup>, Abhijeet Lale<sup>4</sup>, Martin Schwentenwein<sup>4</sup>, Karin Föttinger<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Chemical Technologies and Analytics, TU Wien, Vienna, Austria <sup>2</sup>Institute of Materials Chemistry, TU Wien, Vienna, Austria <sup>3</sup>University Service Centre for Transmission Electron Microscopy, TU Wien, Vienna, Austria <sup>4</sup>Lithoz GmbH, Vienna, Austria \*E-mail: thomas.konegger@tuwien.ac.at

Keywords: polymer-derived ceramics, vat photopolmyerization, phase separation, catalysis

Hierarchically porous ceramic materials combine excellent thermal and mechanical properties with suitable media flow characteristics and high active surface areas, thus rendering them materials of interest for a large variety of applications in the fields of energy and environment, as well as in catalysis. However, the formation of complex-shaped parts exhibiting these characteristics is highly challenging, often requiring multiple steps.

In this contribution, we present a novel approach for the preparation of hierarchically porous ceramic and metal-ceramic hybrid materials by combining the concepts of polymer-derived ceramics, vat photopolymerization, and polymerization-induced phase separation. By a systematic development of phase-separating polysiloxane-based preceramic resin systems, a spinodal decomposition between the preceramic polymer and a sacrificial acrylate phase can be achieved via the photopolymerization step taking place during DLP-based 3D printing. Upon selective removal of the sacrificial phase during pyrolytic conversion, complexshaped SiOC ceramic parts exhibiting sub-micron sized, continuous porosity are obtained.

Furthermore, we showcase the potential of precursor-based ceramic processing by modifying the preceramic starting resins with organometallic compounds, thus facilitating an insitu generation of metal nanoparticles (e.g., Ni or Co) within the resulting SiOC matrices.

Finally, we demonstrate the proof-of-concept of our materials design approach for applications in the field of catalysis, focusing on  $CO_2$  methanation. Hierachically porous SiOC materials decorated with up to 20 wt.% Ni nanoparticles are employed as catalyst reactors, evaluating their respective catalytic activity. While untreated pyrolyzed materials exhibited rather limited performance due to limited accessibility of active metal nanoparticles, an oxidative post-treatment facilitated excellent conversion rates and selectivities in the  $CO_2$  methanation model reaction.

We consider our processing approach as a straightforward and highly versatile tool toward the structural and chemical design of novel ceramic materials, not only limited to catalytic applications, but also providing a high applicability in the fields of energy storage, energy conversion, or environmental remediation.

#### Acknowledgments

Funding of this work by the Austrian Research Promotion Agency (FFG) in the framework of the Poly-CAT3D project (Grant. No. 877405) is gratefully acknowledged.

### References

J. Essmeister, A.-M. Fuchsberger, D. Steiner, S. Schwarz, T. Schachinger, A. Lale, M. Schwentenwein, K. Föttinger, T. Konegger: *Hierarchically porous ceramic and metal-ceramic hybrid materials structured by vat photopolymerization-induced phase separation*; Advanced Materials Technologies 9 (2024); 2301400. DOI: 10.1002/admt.202301400

### Atmosphere effect on the organic-to-inorganic transformation of PDC

### Mattia Biesuz<sup>\*</sup>, Gian Domenico Sorarù

University of Trento, Department of Industrial Engineering, Trento, Italy \*E-mail: mattia.biesuz@unitn.it

Keywords: SiOC, polymer-derived ceramics, microporosity, mechanical properties

Si-based polymer-derived ceramics (PDCs) are a family of advanced inorganic compounds obtained through pyrolysis in a controlled atmosphere of organosilicon polymers. They are of interest for a variety of structural and electrochemical devices due to their unique mechanical and functional properties. Moreover, they offer a great flexibility in terms of shaping processes and possible morphology as they can be integrated with any polymer-manufacturing technology.

Most of the research has been focused on the organic-to-inorganic conversion into an inert (usually Ar) atmosphere. Herein, we investigate the ceramization process in different atmospheres including Ar and reactive  $CO_2$ , some samples were also pyrolyzed in Ar/H<sub>2</sub> and air for comparison.

The obtained amorphous SiOC ceramics were extensively studied from a mechanical and chemical point of view showing that the pyrolysis atmosphere impacts their structure and composition and, interestingly, also the evolution of the transient microporosity developed during the pyrolysis process. Furthermore, the resistance to de-vitrification and the mechanical properties (elastic modulus and Vickers hardness) were investigated. The results indicate that pyrolysis in  $CO_2$  leads to a glass more similar to  $SiO_2$ , characterized by lower hardness, elastic modulus, and lower stability of the microporosity compared to the SiOC obtained in an inert environment. As such, the pyrolysis atmosphere can be used as a tool to provide a fine-tuning of PDCs properties and structure.

## Engineering high-entropy carbide nanocomposites for oxygen reduction electrocatalysis in alkaline media

Kousik Papakollu<sup>1</sup>, Emanuel Ionescu<sup>3,4</sup>, Ravi Kumar<sup>1,2\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Laboratory for High Performance Ceramics, Department of Metallurgical and Materials Engineering, Indian Institute of Technology Madras (IIT Madras), Chennai 600036, India

<sup>2</sup>Research Centre on Ceramic Technologies for Futuristic Mobility, Indian Institute of Technology Madras (IIT Madras), Chennai 600036, India

<sup>3</sup>Dispersive Solids, Department of Materials and Earth Sciences, Technical University of Darmstadt, Otto-Berndt-Straße 3, 64287 Darmstadt, Germany

<sup>4</sup>Fraunhofer IWKS, Department Digitalization of Resources, Brentanostr. 2a, 63755 Alzenau, Germany

\*E-mail: nvrk@iitm.ac.in

Keywords: high entropy carbides, oxygen reduction reaction, nanocomposites, single source precursor

High entropy carbides (HECs) are the new class of materials that have generated considerable interest in the recent times due to the remakable improvement in properties compared to their binary couterparts. The materials have generated interest for potential applications as ultra high temperature ceramics and high hardness materials [1]. However, their usage in the applications such as catalysis has been restricted because of low surface area and agglomeration [2]. Moreover, the synthesis of HEC ceramics with controlled size, phase composition, morphology and shape remains a significant challenge.

To address this challenge single source precursor (SSP) derived ceramic route has been employed to synthesize HEC containing high surface area nanocomposites through in situ crystallization of the (VTaNbMoW)C nanoparticles in SiOC matrix. Extensive characterization of these materials revealed that the nanostrucutral features have been significantly affected by varying heat-treatment conditions indicating the possibility to tailor the properties of these ceramics. By changing the heat-treatment ramp rate from 100 °C/h to 1200 °C/h to reach a temperature of 1400 °C, the crystallize size of the high-entropy carbide increased from  $\sim 10$  nm to  $\sim 25$  nm accompanied by an increase in graphitization of the free carbon present in the matrix. Furthermore, these ceramics were evaluated for their electrocatalytic performance for oxygen reduction reaction (ORR). These studies exemplify the ability of compositionally complex ceramic systems to enhance electrocatalytic activity and stability by careful selection of appropriate elements. By adding Fe to the HEC lattice, the onset potential for ORR increased from 0.82 V to 0.87 V with a concomitant high stability of >97 % after 10000 s of operation. Thus the present study emphasizes that the cocktail effect in highentropy carbides and the feasibility to get tailorable microstructures by using SSP derived PDC route can be leveraged to attain favorable electrocatalytic properties.

### Acknowledgments

KP would like to thank DAAD for providing scholarship under "DAAD-Binationally supervised doctoral degrees" (57507869) which helped him in carrying out part of this work. The funding received from the Institute of Eminence Research Initiative Project on Ceramic Technologies for Futuristic Mobility, India (Project No:SB20210850MMMHRD008275) is gratefully acknowledged. EI furthermore acknowledges support from the German Science Foundation (DFG), Germany, within the Heisenberg Program (IO 64/14–1).

- Sarker, P., Harrington, T., Toher, C. et al. High-entropy high-hardness metal carbides discovered by entropy descriptors. Nat Commun 9, 4980 (2018). https://doi.org/10.1038/s41467-018-07160-7
- Wang, Z., Li, ZT., Zhao, SJ. et al. High-entropy carbide ceramics: a perspective review. Tungsten 3, 131–142 (2021). https://doi.org/10.1007/s42864-021-00085-7

# Polymer-derived silicon oxycarbide as support material for ionic liquid phases for heterogeneous catalysis

<u>Katharina Rauchenwald</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Philipp Miksovsky<sup>2</sup>, Shaghayegh Naghdi<sup>3</sup>, Hannah Rabl<sup>3</sup>, Dominik Eder<sup>3</sup>, Katharina Bica-Schröder<sup>2</sup>, Thomas Konegger<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Chemical Technologies and Analytics, TU Wien, Vienna, Austria <sup>2</sup>Institute of Applied Synthetic Chemistry TU Wien, TU Wien, Vienna, Austria <sup>3</sup>Institute of Materials Chemistry, , TU Wien, Vienna, Austria \*E-mail: katharina.rauchenwald@tuwien.ac.at

Keywords: polymer-derived ceramics, ionic liquids, freeze-casting, CO2 utilization, catalysis

Supported ionic liquid phases (SILPS) are highly promising catalysts for a wide variety of organic synthesis reactions, but require suitable carrier structures for high performance. In this work, polysiloxane-derived silicon oxycarbides (SiOCs) were investigated as novel, alternative carrier materials and compared to conventional SILPs using mesoporous silica (SiO<sub>2</sub>). The heterogeneous SILP catalysts were tested for the production of limonene carbonate by cycloaddition of CO<sub>2</sub> to limonene oxide, stating an interesting high value product. In a first step, a screening of SiOCs derived from precursors after pyrolysis at various temperatures (300-900 °C) was conducted. The particulate support materials were impregnated with tetrabutyl ammonium halides (TBAX, X = Cl-, Br-, I-) and were investigated in batch mode for the model reaction, yielding excellent selectivities of 97-100 % and yields of 53-62 % for SiOC-SILPs. Differences in the surface characteristics and the affinity to water between SiO<sub>2</sub> and SiOC were correlated with the effect that SiO<sub>2</sub>-SILPs triggered the formation of diol as a by-product, leading to a lower selectivity of 87 % and a lower yield of 48 %, respectively. Subsequently, macroporous monolithic SiOC-SILPs with suitable permeability characteristics ( $k_1 = 10^{-11} \text{ m}^2$ ) were produced via freeze-casting and successfully used as base for monolithic reactors for the selective and continuous production of limonene carbonate in supercritical CO<sub>2</sub>. Constant product output over 48 h without concurrent catalyst leaching was achieved, rendering these polymer-derived support materials highly promising for future SILP-related applications owing both to their catalytic performance as well as their immense flexibility in shaping and structural tailorability.

### Acknowledgments

This study was carried out within the doctoral college CO<sub>2</sub>Refinery at TU Wien.

# Development of a lamellar Zn-Mg-Al base coating for corrosion protection of steel in salt water

Jan-Felix Wendel<sup>1</sup>, Günter Motz<sup>1\*</sup>, Nicole Matthée<sup>2</sup>, Stefan Schafföner<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Chair of Ceramic Materials Engineering, University of Bayreuth, Bayreuth, Germany <sup>2</sup>Dörken Coatings GmbH & Co. KG, Herdecke, Germany \*E-mail: guenter.motz@uni-bayreuth.de

Keywords: corrosion protection, lamellar Zn-Mg-Al coating, saltwater corrosion, preceramic polymer derived coating

Lamellar zinc coatings are widely used in automotive industry to protect steel parts from corrosion. They often consist of flake like or spherical shaped zinc fillers in combination with aluminum and/or magnesium in an epoxy resin matrix. The advantage of such lamellar coatings is the high corrosion protection of steel in salt water environments while the coating thicknesses can be kept low. The matrix materials of such coatings are often epoxy resins. They show a limited application temperature and chemical resistance which entails a restricted field of applications. Polymer derived ceramic (PDC) precursors like polysilazanes are an interesting class of material which stand out due to their chemical inertness and good adhesion to metals. At a few hundred degrees of Celsius, polysilazanes convert gradually into ceramic materials with a high temperature stability. Furthermore, they can be easily applied by spray coating methods with adjustable coating thickness. These properties make them an interesting candidate for an alternative matrix material for corrosion protection coatings.

Therefore, this study focuses on the development of a lamellar zinc coating using the polymer derived ceramic route. First, the amounts of the zinc, magnesium and aluminum fillers were varied in order to achieve the best corrosion protection performance showing the strong influence of the magnesium content on the corrosion protection performance in salt water. The highest protection was achieved at a magnesium content of 30 vol.%. Subsequently, the emphasis was placed on the investigation of the influence of a thermal curing on the microstructure and the corrosion protection properties of the lamellar coating system. SEM images showed a densification of the porous base coat with increasing treatment temperature. Only from 400 °C onwards, an oxidation of zinc and a dissolution of the zinc magnesium phase were observed by XRD measurements. This demonstrates the coatings can be used up to a temperature of 400 °C. Additionally, artificially scratched samples were tested in the salt spray corrosion test according to DIN EN ISO 9227. After a duration of 240 h red rust was formed in the scratch while Simonkolleite and a zinc aluminum carbonate hydroxide hydrate were the main corrosion products on the coating surface.

### **T3** Ceramics for Environmental Systems

### **T3.1 Photocatalysts for Energy and Environmental Applications**

## Synthesis and application of high entropy oxides nanoparticles for photocatalytic hydrogen production

<u>Aadil Bathla<sup>1</sup></u>, Adrien Moll<sup>1\*</sup>, Nita Dragoe<sup>1</sup>, David Bérardan<sup>1</sup>, Wahid Ullah<sup>2</sup>, Mohamed Nawfal Ghazzal<sup>2\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institut de Chimie Moléculaire et des Matériaux d'Orsay (ICMMO) - Université Paris-Saclay, France <sup>2</sup>Institut de Chimie Physique - Université Paris-Saclay, France

 $\label{eq:constraint} \ensuremath{^*\!E}\xspace{-mail:mohamed-nawfal.ghazzal@universite-paris-saclay.fr}, adrien.moll@universite-paris-saclay.fr$ 

Keywords: HEOx, hydrogen production, photocatalysis, nanoparticles, water spliting, visible light

Hydrogen has been widely recognized as a potential source of clean energy for the next generation due to its ultra-high energy density and zero emission. However, the conventional methods utilized for hydrogen production (e.g., methane reforming and biogas stream reforming) are accompanied by the releases of greenhouse gases (e.g.,  $CO_2$ ) into the environment. Therefore, the photocatalysis of water to produce green hydrogen has been considered as an ideal option from economic and environmental viewpoints. In recent years, the high entropy oxides (HEOx) with five or more cations randomly distributed in the cationic site of the structure have gained growing attention in the area of catalysis/photocatalysis mostly attributed to highly tuneable optical properties [1, 2]. Moreover, the synergy between multielement in HEOx provides a diverse range of adsorption and defects sites (e.g., oxygen defects) to facilitate the catalytic process [3, 4].

In this respect, the present work describes the photocatalytic potential of rock-salt HEOx nanoparticles for photocatalytic hydrogen production with visible light. The materials were synthesized via a new and easy-to-implement process combining solid-state high temperature reaction and mechanical ball-milling. A series of HEOx nanoparticles were formed by varying the process conditions and their impact on optical properties and hydrogen production will be discussed. Overall, It was observed that the HEOx NPs exhibited 8-fold higher photocatalytic activity relative to bulk HEOx.



- 1. Edalati, P., et al., *Photocatalytic hydrogen evolution on a high-entropy oxide*. Journal of Materials Chemistry A, 2020. **8**(7): p. 3814–3821.
- 2. Yu, H., et al., *Self-Floating Nanoporous High-Entropy Oxides with Tunable Bandgap for Efficient Solar Seawater Desalination*. Nano Letters, 2023. **23**(22): p. 10554–10562.
- 3. Akrami, S., et al., *Defective high-entropy oxide photocatalyst with high activity for CO*<sub>2</sub> conversion. Applied Catalysis B: Environmental, 2022. **303**: p. 120896.
- 4. Gu, K., et al., *Defect-rich high-entropy oxide nanosheets for efficient 5-hydroxymethylfurfural electrooxidation*. Angewandte Chemie, 2021. **133**(37): p. 20415–20420.

# Photocatalyst materials for green hydrogen production and $\mathrm{CO}_2$ utilization

#### Akihiko Kudo

Tokyo University of Science, Faculty of Science & Carbon Value Research Center, 1-3, Kagurazaka, Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo, 162-8601, Japan E-mail: a-kudo@rs.kagu.tus.ac.jp

Keywords: photocatalyst, artificial photosynthesis, green hydrogen, carbon dioxide

Photocatalytic water splitting is a challenging reaction because it is an ultimate chemical reaction to create a carbon neutral society and to solve resources, energy and environment issues [1]. Photocatalytic  $CO_2$  fixation has also attracted attention from a viewpoint of carbon capture and utilization (CCU) to contribute to the carbon neutral. These reactions can be regarded as artificial photosynthesis, because light energy is converted to storable chemical energy. In the present paper, photocatalyst materials for water splitting and carbon dioxide reduction have been introduced.

Rh, Ir, Ru-doped  $SrTiO_3$  functions as a single particulate photocatalyst for water splitting to produce green hydrogen under visible light irradiation and simulated sunlight irradiations. Rh-doped  $SrTiO_3$  photocatalyst responded to 500 nm [2]. Moreover, Ir and Ru dopants made  $SrTiO_3$  visible light responsive to 600-700 nm.

 $SrTiO_3$ :Rh of a H<sub>2</sub>-evolving photocatalyst and BiVO<sub>4</sub> of an O<sub>2</sub>-evolving photocatalyst constructed various type of Z-schematic photocatalyst systems with  $[Co(bpy)_3]^{3+/2+}$  and a conductive reduced graphene oxide (RGO) as an electron mediator and even without an electron mediator [3]. Metal sulfide photocatalysts that are normally unstable for water splitting into H<sub>2</sub> and O<sub>2</sub> in the absence of an electron donor were able to be employed for a Z-schematic photocatalyst system and a photocathode for water splitting [4].

Ag/NaTaO<sub>3</sub>:Ba photocatalyst gave ca. 90% of the selectivity for the CO<sub>2</sub> reduction to form CO using water as an electron donor without any sacrificial electron donors [5]. It was also found by further surveying of cocatalyst that Rh-Ru/NaTaO<sub>3</sub>:Sr continuously produced CH<sub>4</sub>, H<sub>2</sub>, and O<sub>2</sub> under UV irradiation [6]. The selectivity for CH<sub>4</sub> formation based on the number of reacted electrons was about 10%. An e<sup>-</sup>/h<sup>+</sup> ratio estimated from obtained products was almost unity and TON based on the CH<sub>4</sub> formation to Rh and Ru cocatalysts was 2.0. These results have proven that CH<sub>4</sub> was obtained by photocatalytic CO<sub>2</sub> reduction using water as an electron donor over the Rh-Ru/NaTaO<sub>3</sub>:Sr. Thus, an uphill reaction of CO<sub>2</sub> reduction accompanied with water oxidation was achieved using the Ag-loaded metal oxide photocatalysts with wide bandgaps.

A Z-scheme system employing the bare  $(CuGa)_{0.5}ZnS_2$  photocatalyst and RGO- $(CoO_x/BiVO_4)$  as an O<sub>2</sub>-evolving photocatalyst produced CO of a CO<sub>2</sub> reduction product accompanied with H<sub>2</sub> and O<sub>2</sub> in a simple aqueous suspension system without any additives under visible light irradiation and 1 atm of CO<sub>2</sub> [7]. The selectivity for the CO formation of the Z-schematic CO<sub>2</sub> reduction reached 10 – 20% even in an aqueous solution and without loading any cocatalysts on the (CuGa)<sub>0.5</sub>ZnS<sub>2</sub> metal sulfide photocatalyst. It is notable that CO was obtained accompanied with reasonable O<sub>2</sub> evolution indicating that water was an electron donor for the CO<sub>2</sub> reduction.

- 1. Kudo, Y. Miseki, Chem. Soc. Rev., 2009, 38, 253.
- 2. R. Asai, H. Nemoto, Q. Jia, K. Saito, A. Iwase, A. Kudo, Chem. Commun., 2014, 50, 2543.
- 3. Y. Sasaki, H. Kato, A. Kudo, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 2013, 135, 5441.
- 4. S. Yoshino, A. Iwase, Y. H. Ng, R. Amal, and A. Kudo, ACS Appl. Energy Mater., 2020, 3, 5684.
- 5. H. Nakanishi, K. Iizuka, T. Takayama, A. Iwase, A. Kudo, ChemSusChem, 2017, 10, 112.
- 6. W. Soontornchaiyakul, S. Yoshino, T. Kanazawa, R. Haruki, D. Fan, S. Nozawa, Y. Yamaguchi, A. Kudo, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 2023, 145, 20485.
- 7. S. Yoshino, A. Iwase, Y. Yamaguchi, T. M. Suzuki, T. Morikawa, A. Kudo, *J. Am. Chem. Soc.*, **2022**, *144*, 2323.

# Ultrahigh piezocatalytic performance of perovskite ferroelectric powder via oxygen vacancy engineering

### <u>Xuechen Liu</u>\*, Fei Li

Electronic Materials Research Laboratory, Key Laboratory of the Ministry of Education and State Key Laboratory for Mechanical Behavior of Materials, School of Electronic and Information Engineering, Xi'an Jiaotong University, Xi'an, China \*E-mail: xuechen1215@stu.xjtu.edu.cn

Keywords: piezocatalysis, oxygen vacancy, perovskite ferroelectrics, degradation

Piezocatalysis, utilizing the piezopotential and piezoelectric activity of catalysts, has emerged as a promising strategy for green catalysis, with applications ranging from hydrogen production to wastewater treatment. Despite its potential, the practical application of piezo-catalysis is hindered by the low activity of existing materials. In this study, we propose a novel approach to significantly enhance the piezocatalytic activity of a high-piezoelectricity perovskite ferroelectric, Sm-doped 0.68Pb(Mg<sub>1/3</sub>Nb<sub>2/3</sub>)-0.32PbTiO<sub>3</sub> (Sm-PMN-PT), through the introduction of oxygen vacancies (OVs).

The results show that the presence of OVs promotes the production of reactive oxygen species while enhancing the adsorption and activation of organic pollutants to improve piezocatalytic performance. The OV-Sm-PMN-PT is found to possess a superior piezocatalytic degradation rate constant of 0.073 min<sup>-1</sup> under ultrasonic vibration, which is approximately 4.9 times higher than that of pristine Sm-PMN-PT. Furthermore, the OV-Sm-PMN-PT can efficiently remove RhB under 400 rpm stirring, making it a promising candidate for water purification using low-frequency mechanical energy from nature. This research sheds light on the design of piezocatalytic materials through defect engineering, opening avenues for the development of high-performance catalysts with applications in sustainable energy and environmental remediation. The synergistic combination of high piezoelectricity and oxygen vacancy engineering showcases the potential of perovskite ferroelectrics for advancing the field of piezocatalysis.



**Figure** 1. (a) Schematic illustration of the synthetic method of Sm-PMN-PT with oxygen vacancies; (b) Piezocatalytic mechanism diagram of RhB degradation; (c) Plots of  $\ln(C_{q}/C)$  versus ultrasonic time and corresponding first-order rate k constants of the degradation reaction when Sm-PMN-PT and OV-Sm-PMN-PT are used as piezocatalysts.

# Gas-phase CO<sub>2</sub> photoreduction over capped vapor–liquid–solid-grown bilayer molybdenum vanadium disulfide continuous films

<u>Mohammad Qorbani</u><sup>1,2\*</sup>, Pin-Pin Huang<sup>3</sup>, Ying-Ti Hung<sup>1</sup>, Ying-Ren Lai<sup>1,2</sup>, Amr Sabbah<sup>1,2</sup>, Mao-Feng Tseng<sup>4</sup>, Chih-Yang Huang<sup>1,2</sup>, Septia Kholimatussadiah<sup>1,5</sup>, Mahmoud Kamal Hussien<sup>1,2</sup>, Tzu-Hsuan Feng<sup>1</sup>, Yo-Hsun Liu<sup>1</sup>, Hsin Wang<sup>3</sup>, Jia-Wei Lin<sup>1,2</sup>, Michitoshi Hayashi<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Kuei-Hsien Chen<sup>1,3\*</sup>, Li-Chyong Chen<sup>1,2,5\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Center for Condensed Matter Sciences, National Taiwan University, Taipei, Taiwan
<sup>2</sup>Center of Atomic Initiative for New Materials, National Taiwan University, Taipei, Taiwan
<sup>3</sup>Institute of Atomic and Molecular Sciences, Academia Sinica, Taipei, Taiwan
<sup>4</sup>School of Electrical, Computer and Energy Engineering, Arizona State University, Tempe, USA
<sup>5</sup>Department of Physics, National Taiwan University, Taipei, Taiwan
\*E-mail: mqorbani@ntu.edu.tw (M. Q.); atmyh@ntu.edu.tw (M. H.); chenkh@pub.iams.sinica.edu.tw (K.-H. C.); and chenlc@ntu.edu.tw (L.-C. C.)

Keywords: VLS, TMDC, photocatalysis, CO2 reduction

Towards the net zero carbon goal and to keep global warming to no more than 1.5 °C, engineering the interaction of CO<sub>2</sub> molecules with the surface of catalysts is the very first important step toward efficient artificial photosynthesis [1,2]. Here, we grow wafer-scale bilayer  $S_{vac}$ -Mo<sub>1,x</sub> $V_xS_2$  (where  $S_{vac}$  stands for sulfur vacancy) film using an capped vapor-liquid-solid (VLS) method. The growth parameters, i.e., the thickness of the silicon dioxide capping layer, growth temperature, and layer thickness of sandwiched solid precursors in nanometersize space, are systematically optimized (Figure 1). We show that the SiO<sub>2</sub> capping layer plays a triple role: (i) preventing the escape of vanadium, (ii) supplying S/H<sub>2</sub> into the eutectic liquid, and (iii) assisting symmetric 2D growth of grains. Cs-corrected ADF-STEM images unveil the film consists of micron-size grains. High-resolution AFM images display that the films, consisting of interconnected grains in agreement with the ADF-STEM images, have a coverage of > 97% and a Gaussian probability distribution for the height profile with an average thickness of 2.3L. Experimental observations and theoretical calculations revealed a strong correlation between V–  $S_{vac}$ , i.e., the density of  $S_{vac}$  is proportional to the amount of V, resulting in the charge density transfer from vanadium to the S and Mo atoms and significant photoluminescence quenching. 2L S<sub>vac</sub>-Mo<sub>1-x</sub>V<sub>x</sub>S<sub>2</sub> demonstrates an enhanced CO<sub>2</sub> to CO reduction yield of ~5 times larger than the pristine MoS<sub>2</sub> under sunlight. We further measured the internal quantum efficiency of the photocatalytic process at 0.017% under the solar light intensity of 0.5 sun and stability of 20 h. Theoretical calculations attributed the observed photocatalytic performance mainly to the presence of a catalytic V-S<sub>vac</sub> active site.



Figure 1. Geometry of the solid precursors and the growth steps.

#### Acknowledgments

Authors acknowledge support from the NSTC Taiwan, AI-MAT at NTU, MOST Taiwan, Computer and Information Networking Center at NTU, Nano-Core at AS.

- 1. Nitopi, S. et al. Chem. Rev. 119, 7610–7672 (2019).
- 2. Qorbani, M., et al. Nat Commun 13, 1256 (2022).

## Enhanced photocatalytic activity of Flash-Sintered Co-doped materials

Anupam Raj, Adit Thampi, Shikhar Krishn Jha\*

Department of Materials Science and Engineering, Indian Institute of Technology, Kanpur, 208016, India \*E-mail: skjha@iitk.ac.in

Keywords: Flash Sintering, Co-doping, photocatalysis, Fe and Cu-doped-TiO<sub>2</sub>, sustainable energy

Flash Sintering, a rapid and effective technique in materials synthesis, has exhibited promising avenues for enhancing the photocatalytic activity of materials by co-doping. For the very first-time flash sintering has been used for co-doping in any material. This method, employs intense electric field-induced heating, presents an expedited approach to fabricate co-doped materials with improved photocatalytic properties. Through the precise introduction of dopants, such as transition elements, Flash-Sintered materials demonstrate enhanced light absorption, reduced recombination of photo-generated charges, and increased surface area, thereby amplifying their photocatalytic efficiency for environmental remediation, water splitting, pollutant degradation, and other solar-driven applications. This abstract elucidates the mechanisms behind the augmented photocatalytic activity of Flash-Sintered doped materials, discusses the influential factors governing their performance, and delineates potential pathways for leveraging these materials in advancing sustainable energy and environmental technologies.

### **T3.2** CERAMICS FOR CARBON CAPTURE AND STORAGE TECHNOLOGIES

# A-site substitution of $Sr_{1-x}A_xTi_{0.8}Fe_{0.2}O_{3-}\delta$ perovskite in single and dual phase in combination with CGO for OTM applications

Veronica Nigroni<sup>1\*</sup>, Paolo Fedeli<sup>2</sup>, Stefan Baumann<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Chemistry, University of Parma, Parma, Italy

<sup>2</sup>Materials and Generation Technologies Department Ricerca sul Sistema Energetico – RSE SpA, Piacenza, Italy <sup>3</sup>Institute of Energy and Climate Research, IEK-1 Materials Synthesis and Processing,

Forschungszentrum Jülich GmbH, Jülich, Germany

\*E-mail: veronica.nigroni@unipr.it

Keywords: ceramic materials, perovskite, dual-phase materials, OTMs

Oxygen Transport Membranes (OTMs) have gained a lot of attention in recent years thanks to their wide range of applications from industrial processes to reactors for chemical production. Another promising feature is their potential to create less pollutant systems for the production of energy. OTMs are ceramic materials which should be thermo-chemically and -mechanically stable in harsh conditions such as high temperatures and reducing environments. Moreover, their stability should be guaranteed for a long time. For such reason when designing the composition of such membranes, there are a lot of conditions to take into account. <sup>1</sup> Dual-phase composites have gained a lot of attention since they allow highly efficient membranes by combining good and stable ionic and electronic conductors. <sup>2</sup> One of the most studied materials for OTMs is the well-known perovskite LSCF, which exhibits high permeability towards oxygen. However, degradation occurs when the material is exposed to high temperatures for a long time. <sup>3</sup>

We chose substituted SrTiO<sub>3</sub> (STO) perovskite to be the focus of our research. STO exhibits oxygen permeability when titanium is partially substituted by iron. However, high dopant levels reduce the stability of the material. In literature, a lot of works discuss further substitution of the B-site whereas A-site substitution is investigated less. Therefore, in this study 20 mol% Fe at the B-site and A-site substitution with calcium was selected, aiming in higher stability compared to full Sr-occupancy at the A-site. Sr<sub>1-x</sub>Ca<sub>x</sub>Ti<sub>0.8</sub>Fe<sub>0.2</sub>O<sub>3.</sub> $\delta$  with x = 0, 0.1, and 0.4 were synthesized and their stability and performances are studied. In addition, dual-phase membranes by adding 60 wt% of Ce<sub>0.8</sub>Gd<sub>0.2</sub>O<sub>1.9</sub> (CGO), a well-known and good ionic conductor, with the perovskites prepared. <sup>4</sup>

Preliminary results reveal that  $Sr_{0.9}Ca_{0.1}Ti_{0.8}Fe_{0.2}O_{3.}\delta$  shows the best compromise between permeability and stability and, thus, will further be studied in more detail.

#### Acknowledgements

Special thanks for support to Y. Tang (IEK-1) for sample preparation and support, Dr. D. Sebold (IEK-1) for SEM-analysis, S. Heinz (IEK-1) for permeation tests. E. Malgrati (RSE) for SEM-Analysis and F,Drago (RSE) for support.

- 1. Bai, W., Feng, J., Luo, C., Zhang, P., Wang, H., Yang, Y., Zhao, Y., and Fan, H. A comprehensive review on oxygen transport membranes: Development history, current status, and future directions. International Journal of Hydrogen Energy 2021, 46, 36257–36290.
- Kiebach, R., Pirou, S., Martinez Aguilera, L., Haugen, A. B., Kaiser, A., Hendriksen, P. V., Balaguer, M., García-Fayos, J., Serra, J. M., Schulze-Küppers, F., Christie, M., Fischer, L., Meulenberg, W. A., and Baumann, S. A review on dual-phase oxygen transport membranes: from fundamentals to commercial deployment. Journal of Materials Chemistry A 2022, 10, 2152–2195.
- Schlehuber, D., Wessel, E., Singheiser, L., and Markus, T. Long-term operation of a La0.58Sr0.4Co0.2Fe0.8O3-δ-membrane for oxygen separation. Journal of Membrane Science 2010, 351, 16–20.
- 4. Chen, G., Feldhoff, A., Weidenkaff, A., Li, C., Liu, S., Zhu, X., Sunarso, J., Huang, K., Wu, X., Ghoniem, A. F., Yang, W., Xue, J., Wang, H., Shao, Z., Duffy, J. H., Brinkman, K. S., Tan, X., Zhang, Y., Jiang, H., Costa, R., Friedrich, K. A., and Kriegel, R. Roadmap for Sustainable Mixed Ionic-Electronic Conducting Membranes. Advanced Functional Materials 2022, 32, 2105702.
- Miruszewski, T., Dzierzgowski, K., Winiarz, P., Jaworski, D., Wiciak-Pawłowska, K., Skubida, W., Wachowski, S., Mielewczyk-Gryń, A., and Gazda, M. Structure and transport properties of tripleconducting Ba x Sr 1–x Ti 1–y Fe y O 3–δ oxides. RSC Advances 2021, 11, 19570–19578.

## Ni-doping influence on functional properties of $SrTi_{0.65}Fe_{0.35}O_{3-\delta}$ for use as oxygen transport membranes

<u>Yuning Tang</u><sup>1,2,3\*</sup>, Stefan Baumann<sup>1,3</sup>, Michael Müller<sup>1</sup>, Doris Sebold<sup>1,3</sup>, Arian Nijmeijer<sup>2</sup>, Olivier Guillon<sup>1,3</sup>, Wilhelm A. Meulenberg<sup>1,2,3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Forschungszentrum Jülich GmbH, Institute of Energy and Climate Research (IEK), 52425 Jülich, Germany

<sup>2</sup>Inorganic Membranes, Faculty of Science and Technology, University of Twente, P.O. Box 217, 7500 AE Enschede, Netherlands

<sup>3</sup>Jülich Aachen Research Alliance: JARA-Energy, 52425 Jülich, Germany \*E-mail: y.tang@fz-juelich.de

**Keywords**: oxygen transport membrane, mixed ionic-electronic conductivity, strontium titanate, STFN

Mixed ionic-electronic conducting (MIEC) materials are promising candidates of oxygen transport membranes (OTMs). They have attracted great interests in scientific research field over the last two decades due to the high purity and energy efficiency of oxygen separation from air for different applications in catalytic membrane reactors such as partial oxidation of methane (POM). For application, the structural stability of MIEC membranes under operating conditions is a very important factor.

Pure strontium titanate, SrTiO<sub>3</sub>, exhibits excellent thermodynamic stability but negligible electronic and ionic conductivity in a wide range of temperatures and oxygen partial pressures. In order to improve the conductivity, B-site doping strategy is used in this work. The  $SrTi_{0.65x}Fe_{0.35}NixO_{3.\delta}$  (x=0, 0.05, 0.075, 0.1) (STFNx) powders were synthesized by a solidstate reaction method at 1200 °C and then sintered into membranes at 1350/1400 °C for 5 h. Functionality, i.e. mixed ionic and electronic conductivity, is introduced by substitution of Ti by Fe and Ni. In addition, Ni is proven to improve the catalytic performance by exsolution phenomenon. The XRD patterns show that the materials are single phase after sintering in air. The oxygen permeance and the ionic conductivity of STFNx increase with an increasing Ni content and are close to benchmark  $La_{0.6}Sr_{0.4}Co_{0.5}Fe_{0.8}O_{3.8}$  at around 850 °C, which increases with an increasing Ni content. Thermochemical stability tests were performed by annealing samples in syngas with/without H<sub>2</sub>S and clean H<sub>2</sub>. XRD analysis and thermogravimetry analysis (TGA) reveal that STFN005 exhibits good thermochemical stability in reducing atmospheres and the stability of STFNx decreases with increasing Ni content. Well distributed Fe/Ni exsolution can be found even with the lowest Ni amount doped material SrTi<sub>0.6</sub>Fe<sub>0.35</sub>Ni<sub>0.05</sub>O<sub>3.6</sub> after annealing in reducing atmosphere, which will be beneficial to catalytic performance in a membrane reactor. Therefore, 5% Ni doped STFN005 can be a promising material in catalytic membrane reactors, e.g. for partial oxidation of methane (POM), due to its high oxygen permeation rate, Ni exsolution and good stability in reducing atmosphere.

## T3.4 POROUS AND CELLULAR CERAMICS: POROSITY DESIGN AND Engineering Applications

### Ceramic aerogel's porosity manipulation

### Haiquan Guo<sup>1\*</sup>, Jamesa L. Stokes<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>University Space Research Association, Cleveland, Ohio, USA <sup>2</sup>NASA Glenn Research Center, Cleveland, Ohio, USA \*E-mail: haiquan.n.guo@nasa.gov

Keywords: ceramic aerogels, porosity, mesoporous structure

Ceramic aerogels are high porosity materials with nanometer-range pore sizes, resulting in low density, high surface area, low dielectric constant and low thermal conductivity. Attributable to the described properties, ceramic aerogels and their composites have many potential applications. Aerogels are prepared through sol-gel process followed by  $CO_2$  supercritical drying to remove the solvent within the gels. As dried ceramic aerogels can have porosity as high as 97%. This research aims to manipulate the chemistries of ceramic aerogels to retain the mesoporous structure at high temperatures, for example, ratio of water/ceramic precursor, ratio of different ceramic precursors, and types of ceramic precursors. We developed aerogels that retain mesoporous structure at 1000°C, or even as high as 1200°C. N<sub>2</sub> adsorption/desorption and Scanning electron microscope (SEM) were used as the tools to characterize the pore structures of the as dried aerogels and those at high temperatures.

# Novel method for characterising the porous microstructure of nuclear grade graphite materials at multiple length scales

<u>Ming (Eric) Jiang<sup>1,2</sup></u>, Kavin Ammigan<sup>3</sup>, Frederique Pellemoine<sup>3</sup>, Patrick Hurh<sup>3</sup>, George Lolov<sup>3</sup>, Dong Liu<sup>1,2\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Engineering Science, University of Oxford, Oxford, UK <sup>2</sup>School of Physics, University of Bristol, Bristol, UK <sup>3</sup>Target Systems Department, Fermi National Accelerator Laboratory, Batavia, USA \*E-mail: dong.liu@eng.ox.ac.uk and dong.liu@bristol.ac.uk

Keywords: fine-grained nuclear graphite,  $\mu$ XCT and FIB-SEM tomography, porosity, deep learning segmentation

Advanced ceramics, under various circumstances, have multiple phases and a complex porosity network across many length scales that can affect the thermo-mechanical properties of these materials. The morphological features, population, spatial distribution, and sizes of these porous microstructures can be intricate and very challenging to characterize and quantify in three-dimensional space at high spatial resolution. One of the typical examples of these porous ceramics is the high purity nuclear-grade graphite material that plays a vital role in advanced fission reactor systems and multi-megawatt (MW) class proton accelerators around the world. This work, by using industrially mass-produced nuclear-grade graphite ceramic composite material as an example, demonstrates the development and application of advanced experimental characterization techniques to study the complex porous microstructure and multiple phases over several length scales in porous quasi-brittle ceramic/composite nuclear graphite materials.

The sub-micrometer to micrometer-scale porosity in many grades of fine-grained nuclear graphite has been faithfully characterized by using a multi-length scale approach, including state-of-the-art X-ray computed micro-tomography (µXCT) and focused ion beam-scanning electron microscopy tomography (FIB-SEM tomography), providing notable findings. The developed experimental methodology has also been successfully implemented in characterizing the porosity evolution in proton-irradiated fine-grained graphite material that has experienced truly complicated irradiation conditions at Fermi National Accelerator Laboratory (Fermilab), including irradiation damage, steep thermal gradients, thermal cycling, helium/hydrogen gas production damage, and irradiation creep. A novel deep learning-based porosity segmentation method has been established to directly segment and reconstruct the sub-micrometer scale porosity, revealing porosity volumetric reduction after proton irradiation. Transmission electron microscopy has been applied to study proton irradiation damage mechanisms at the crystal lattice scale to investigate the amorphization processes at crystal lattice scale. The established experimental and computational methods are applicable to characterizing other porous ceramic materials that play crucial parts in safety-critical and advanced applications in aerospace, nuclear, electrodes, and automobile industries, just to name a few.

Oral

### Tailoring microstructure via freeze-casting and gelcasting

### Isabella Klösel<sup>1\*</sup>, Tobias Fey<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Materials Science and Engineering (Institute of Glass and Ceramics), Friedrich-Alexander-Universität Erlangen-Nürnberg, Erlangen, Germany <sup>2</sup>NITech Doctoral Global Academy, Nagoya Institute of Technology, Gokiso-cho, Showa-ku, Nagoya 466-8555, Japan \*E-mail: isa.spath@fau.de

Keywords: gel-casting, freeze-casting, alumina, porous ceramics

Well-established techniques for tailoring the microstructure and enhancing the properties of porous ceramics are freeze-casting and gelcasting, which offer a wide range of technological applications such as thermal insulation, filtration or biomedical implants.

These techniques were used to produce porous alumina samples with varying amount of macroporosity. Within the samples the amount of solid content, equivalent to the ceramic powder content was varied between 25 – 55 vol% and thus the porosity, compressive strength and thermal conductivity were investigated. In order to avoid the lamellar pore structure resulting from static freezing in the freeze-casting process, cooling down under continuous motion was also investigated. A porosity of 38% resulted in a compressive strength of 7 MPa for static freezing, whereas an increase to 54 MPa was observed for freezing under continuous motion. In addition, an increase of 1.45 W/mK was observed in the thermal conductivity of the porous alumina from 8.89 W/mK for static freezing to 10.34 W/mK using the continuous motion approach. Compared to geleasting, which is also a proven method for producing ceramics with porosities between 40 and 95%, the properties of the pore network can differ in terms of size, morphology and connectivity and freeze-casting. The mechanical and thermal properties of porous samples produced by the different methods are analysed and compared.
# **Rapid prototyping of ceramic filters via negative additive manufacturing**

<u>Vahid Nekouie</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Shaghayegh Ghanizadeh<sup>2</sup>, Jack Cornwal<sup>1</sup>, Casey Walsh<sup>1</sup>, Lydia Cross<sup>2</sup>, Paul Bingham<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Engineering and Mathematics, Sheffield Hallam University, Sheefild, S1 1WB, UK <sup>2</sup>The Manufacturing Technology Centre (MTC), Ansty Park, Coventry, CV7 9JU, UK \*E-mail: v.nekouie@shu.ac.uk

Keywords: gel casting, porous ceramics, additive manufacturing, ceramic filters

The work "Rapid prototyping of ceramic filters using negative additive manufacturing" was using an innovative route to fabricate ceramic parts of high complexity by combining polymer additive manufacturing to produce sacrificial moulds and gel casting of ceramic slurries followed by use of various sintering techniques including both pressure-less and pressureassisted techniques to optimise final characteristics of the ceramic parts. The moulds are removed through melting process or dissolving in water. The intended application for the manufactured ceramic components is for ceramic filters used in metal casting. These filters play a crucial role in the metal casting industry, as they help to remove impurities and ensure the production of high-quality metal products.

Gel casting is a colloidal forming technique that is relatively inexpensive, produces high yields with minimal defects, and has fast forming times. In this method, a ceramic suspension with organic monomers is poured into a mould which polymerizes in-situ to act as a binder. Depending on the gelling agent, the green body ideally should hold the mold cavity shape and be strong enough to handle for subsequent processing steps.

The work is also in line with Materials 4.0 scope, as it will help ceramic industry with faster manufacturing and testing of their new products/designs with the aim of moving toward mass production of those complex parts via indirect or direct AM technologies, with the latter being more readily scalable for high volume production, whilst still enabling relatively complex geometries, including functional grading, and keeping the ability to customise each part independently.

# Interaction of water with heteroatoms in zeolite framework by synchrotron X-ray spectroscopy

Maiko Nishibori<sup>1,2,3\*</sup>, Masashi Hodota<sup>3</sup>, Ginpei Tanaka<sup>3</sup>, Ryota Osuga<sup>4</sup>, Kakeru Ninomiya<sup>1,2,3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>International Center for Synchrotron Radiation Innovation Smart, Tohoku University, Sendai, Japan <sup>2</sup>Institute of Multidisciplinary Research for Advanced Materials Tohoku University, Sendai, Japan <sup>3</sup>Graduate School of Environmental Science Tohoku University, Sendai, Japan <sup>4</sup>Institute for Catalysis, Hokkaido University, Sapporo, Japan \*E-mail: maiko.nishibori.d8@tohoku.ac.jp

Keywords: zeolite framework, heteroatom, water, interaction, X-ray spectroscopy

Zeolites have a variety of catalytic properties, such as solid acidity, by controlling the framework structure, morphology, and substitution of heteroatom. Since the primary process in solid catalytic reactions is molecular adsorption, investigating the chemical state of heteroatoms during molecular adsorption is an essential issue in understanding the catalytic reaction of zeolite. In this study, the chemical state and local structure of the heteroatom (Fe) in the zeolite framework were analyzed by synchrotron X-ray spectroscopy, and the interaction of adsorbed water with Fe was discussed.

The Fe-containing MWW (Fe-MWW) type zeolite was synthesized by the mechanochemical (MC) method[1,2]. An amorphous precursor was prepared by ball-milling SiO<sub>2</sub> and  $\alpha$ -FeOOH powders. A mixed aqueous solution of N, N, N-trimethyl-1-adamantylammonium hydroxide, and hexamethylenimine was mixed with an amorphous precursor to prepare the gel. The prepared gel was hydrothermally treated and calcined to obtain Fe-MWW. Characterization of the Fe-MWW was performed using XRD, UV-vis, and BET. Fe *K*-edge and O *K*-edge X-ray absorption fine structure (XAFS) spectra were measured at SPring-8 BL01B1 and BL27SU, respectively.

Only peaks attributed to the MWW structure were observed in the XRD pattern of the synthesized sample, and peaks attributed to mononuclear Fe species were observed in the UV-vis. We judged that the MWW-type zeolites with Fe incorporated into the framework could be synthesized based on these results. The difference spectrum was obtained from the O *K*-edge XAFS spectra before and after annealing at 80 °C (Fig.1), and it was found to be similar to the XAFS spectrum of the ice type  $H_2O$  [3]. This suggests the presence of strongly hydrogen-bonded  $H_2O$  in Fe-MWW. The chemical state of the heteroatom (Fe) was traced by in situ XAFS measurement during heat treatment. Then, the spectral change with and without water showed reversible behavior, suggesting that adsorbed water strongly interacts with Fe in Fe-MWW zeolite.



Fig. 1 O K-edge XAFS spectra before and after heat treatment at 80°C and their difference spectrum

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by JSPS KAKENHI Grant Number JP 21H05011.

### References

K. Yamamoto, et al., Chem. Lett., 35, 570 (2006)., [2] R. Osuga, et al., J. Japan Pet. Inst., 65, 67 (2022).,
[3] J. Smith, R. Saykally, Chem. Rev., 117, 13909 (2017).

# Methylated silica xerogels as self-cleaning, multifunctional materials with bacteria-repelling properties for environmental protection and biomedical applications

#### Selay Sert Cok<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Zoltán Dudás<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Neutron Spectroscopy Department, HUN-REN Centre for Energy Research, Budapest, Hungary <sup>2</sup>Chemical Engineering Department, Ege University, İzmir, Türkiye \*E-mail: selay.sert.cok@ek.hun-ren.hu

Keywords: silica xerogels, hydrophobicity, oil adsorbents, bacteria-repelling ability

Hydrophobic silica xerogels (SXs) are sol-gel derived nanoporous materials synthesized via energy-efficient ambient pressure drying technique. Due to their highly developed porous network and water-repelling ability, they have been proven to be efficient as adsorbents and thermal insulators in environmental and energy-related applications. Besides that, the hydrophobic/superhydrophobic behavior of SXs can also impart some special side benefits to these materials such as "easy-to-clean" property due to the lotus effect or "bacteria-repellent" ability as a result of inhibition of biofilm formation on the material's surface. Considering recently emerging applications of silica-based materials in the biomedical field as biocompatible scaffolds, implantable devices, or drug carriers, developing SXs with enhanced bacterial anti-adherent activity based on superhydrophobicity stands as an attractive strategy that has been rarely reported before [1].

In this study, methyl modified hydrophobic SXs were developed as multifunctional adsorbents which not only act as oil/organic solvent sorbents but also possess additional properties such as self-cleaning and bacteria-repelling abilities. SXs were synthesized via a facile two-step sol-gel method involving co-condensation reactions of a methyl functional alkoxysilane (methyltriethoxysilane (MTES)) and a tetraalkoxysilane (tetraethylorthosilicate (TEOS)). The further methylation of the samples was satisfied via surface silvlation with a monofunctional silane after gelation. The impact of the application of post-gelation silylation and performing heat treatment at 200 °C after the drying stage on the hydrophobicity were investigated as process parameters. The physicochemical, textural, microstructural, and hygroscopic properties of the SXs were characterized by FTIR, SEM, N<sub>2</sub> sorption analyses, and contact angle measurements. The results have shown that increasing the degree of methyl substitution altered the morphology of SXs from a micro/mesoporous to a hierarchical macro/mesoporous nature and increased the size of the secondary silica particles. Applying silylation slightly increased the samples' hydrophobicity whereas post-drying heat treatment has not caused a significant impact on the hydrophobic behavior of the SXs. The samples obtained with a low density (<0.1 g/cm<sup>3</sup>), high porosity (>95 %), and enhanced hydrophobicity  $(\theta > 139^{\circ})$  were then tested on batch oil sorption set-up to reveal their adsorptive performance on the removal of several oils and organic solvents from wastewater. The sorption results confirmed their efficiency as adsorbents with high oil/organic solvent sorption capacity (15.2 g/g) and regeneration ability (up to 8 cycles). The xerogel with the highest hydrophobicity (150°) has also exhibited excellent self-cleaning behavior. Bacterial anti-adhesive properties of the SXs were also investigated via dip-inoculation in bacterial suspensions containing model bacteria E. coli and S. aureus. Bacterial growth on the xerogel surfaces was observed

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

via SEM analysis and results confirmed the drastic inhibition of the bacterial attachment on the superhydrophobic samples compared to hydrophilic SXs. In conclusion, methyl modified silica xerogels with superior hydrophobicity were found to be highly promising both as adsorbents in environmental remediation applications and as multifunctional hygienic materials for biomedical applications in the future.

#### References

Oh, J., Perez K., Kohli N., Kara V., Li J., Min Y., Castillo A., Taylor M., Jayaraman A., Zevallos L., Akbulut M., Hydrophobically-modified silica aerogels: Novel food-contact surfaces with bacterial antiadhesion properties, Food Control, Volume 52, 132–141, 2015.

# T3.5 Advanced Sensors for Energy, Environment and Health Applications

# Layered MBene-MoB for sensitive electrochemical detection of heavy metal ions Cd<sup>2+</sup>, Pb<sup>2+</sup>, Cu<sup>2+</sup> and Hg<sup>2+</sup>

### <u>Shudan Wei</u>\*, Girish M Kale\*, Xiaojun Lai

School of Chemical and Process Engineering, University of Leeds, LS2 9JT, Leeds, UK \*E-mail: pmswei@leeds.ac.uk; G.M.Kale@leeds.ac.uk

Keywords: MoAlB, MBene, etching, electrochemical sensor, heavy metal ions

The emerging transition metal boride layered nanomaterials, known as MBenes, have attracted considerable attention due to their remarkable electronic conductivity, stability, and diverse surface chemical properties. However, a comprehensive exploration of their synthesis techniques and electrochemical applications remains imperative. This study presents a novel approach involving the controlled etching of MoAlB in fluoride-free acidic/alkaline solutions. Under hydrothermal conditions, complete aluminum removal was achieved in dilute alkaline solutions, leading to the fabrication of pristine single/few-layer Mbene-MoB for the first time. In acidic media, etching rates reached a maximum of 33%. We elucidate the viable reactions in dilute acid and alkali etching at room temperature through thermodynamic and kinetic analyses. XRD refinement, tracking aluminum removal from 0% to 100%, unveiled transient metastable phases of MoAl<sub>1-x</sub>B (x<0.5) in the initial etching stages, evolving into relatively stable pure Mo<sub>2</sub>AlB<sub>2</sub> structures with 50% aluminum consumption, serving as a precursor to Mbene formation. The subsequent loss of aluminum resulted in a two-dimensional MBene-MoB structure. Density functional theory (DFT) calculations confirm excellent conductivity for MoAlB, MoAl<sub>1-x</sub>B (x=0~1), and MBene-MoB.

The MBene-MoB modified glassy carbon electrode (GCE) exhibits excellent detection limits for heavy metals, including divalent cadmium, lead, copper, and mercury, in water. Due to its unique multilayer structure and outstanding conductivity, it can detect concentrations below drinking water standards. In the future, we aim to extend its application to the simultaneous detection of various heavy metals and organic pollutants.



Figure 1 a) Crystal structures of MoAlB and Mo<sub>2</sub>AlB<sub>2</sub>, b) schematic diagram of the aluminum removal process from MoAlB.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the China Scholarship Council - University of Leeds Scholarship (202006130007) and the RSC Researcher Development and Travel Grant (D24-5857455197).

### Figures

Oral

# T3.6 Advanced Materials and Membrane Technologies for Sustainable Water Purification and Desalination Systems

# Application of ceramic membrane in advanced oxidation process (AOP) for removing contaminants of emerging concern (CECs) in wastewater

Seongjun Park, <u>Jun Young Kim</u>, Seok Hwan Jeon, Jaewon Lee, Youngnoh Kim, Jong-Oh Kim\*

Department of Civil and Environemtnal Engineering, Hanyang University, Seoul, South Korea \*E-mail: jk120@hanyang.ac.kr

Keywords: ceramic membrane, AOP, CECs, wastewater

Residual pharmaceuticals and perfluorinated compounds that are newly discovered in the water system are causing serious harm to humans and the ecosystem, and to this end, there is a growing movement in developed countries to legally regulate and dispose of these substances<sup>1</sup>. These substances have clear limitations in commonly applied biological treatments, and recently, various advanced oxidation processes have been proposed to be applied at the end of biological treatments. However, the indiscriminate oxidation of OH radicals generated in AOP has the disadvantage of making it difficult to apply organic membranes, which have excellently effecient for turbidity in treated water. We were to solve this drawback by using a ceramic membrane that is resistant to oxidation. Therefore, in this study, to evaluate the oxidation resistance of organic and ceramic membranes in ozone based AOP, ozonated water injected with ozone gas at a concentration of 10 g/m<sup>3</sup> was filtered through membranes for 5 days, respectively. The operated membranes were analyzed through field emission scanning electron microscopy (FESEM), energy dispersive spectrometer (EDS) and fourier transforminfrared (FT-IR) spectroscopy. Results showed more severe structural changes of the organic membrane surface. In addition, for the long-term effects of residual ozone on the ceramic membrane for 30 days, structural changes were evaluated using the same experimental methods at NaOCl 3000 mg/L having the same ORP with ozone 0.5 mg/L. Finally, based on the study of these structural changes, it was confirmed that the operation of a ceramic membrane containing residual ozone in real wastewater from a sewage treatment plant was improved through a significant delay in cleaning periods compared to the operation of a ceramic membrane in the absence of ozone.



after 24 hr after 120 hr after 24 hr after 120 hr Ceramic membrane Organic membrane Figure 1. FESEM image comparing ceramic membrane and organic membrane

CMCEE14 / 18–22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

| Membrane Material       | Ozone exposure time - | % elemental analysis |        |          |
|-------------------------|-----------------------|----------------------|--------|----------|
|                         |                       | Carbon               | Oxygen | Nitrogen |
| Polyacrylonitrile (PAN) | Control (0 hr)        | 58.7                 | 29.3   | 12.0     |
|                         | 24hr                  | 68.4                 | 4.5    | 27.1     |
|                         | 120hr                 | 68.9                 | 4.7    | 26.9     |

Table 1. EDS results showing element changes of organic membrane after ozone exposure

### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the Korean Environmental Industry and Technology Institute (KEITI) through the Aquatic Ecosystem Conservation Research Program funded by the Korean Ministry of Environment (MOE) (2021003040001).

### References

Mishra, R.K, Mentha, S.S. Misra, Y, Dwivedi, N, Water-Energy Nexus, Vol 5, pp 74-95.

## **T4 Cross-Cutting Materials Technologies**

### **T4.1 COMPUTATIONAL DESIGN AND MODELING**

## Characterization and simulation by discrete elements of the early sintering stages of silica-based ceramics shaping by additive manufacturing and uniaxial compaction

<u>Aya Benjira</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Damien Andre<sup>1</sup>, Guy Antou<sup>1</sup>, Alexandre Maitre<sup>1</sup>, Philippe Belleville<sup>2</sup>, Clément Laute<sup>2</sup>, Thierry Piquero<sup>2</sup>, Denis Rochais<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Univertité Limoges, CNRS, IRCER, UMR 7315, F-87000 Limoges, France <sup>2</sup>CEA, DAM, Le Ripault, F-37260 Monts, France \*E-mail: aya.benjira@unilim.fr

Keywords: silica, sintering, simulation, discrete elements, microstructure

The aim of this research is to perform discrete-element modeling of the sintering behavior of silica-based ceramics produced by additive manufacturing. These silica-based refractory structures are designed as thermal insulators for high temperature applications. Discrete-element modeling is developed to well understand sintering behavior of produced ceramics and to optimize sintering conditions, ultimately ensuring the quality and reproducibility of the manufactured parts. The development of this numerical tool is based on a detailed characterization of the material's sintering behavior and an in-depth understanding of material transport processes and driving forces. These forces affect granular rearrangement and interparticle bridge formation during the early stages of consolidation. It is essential to predict consolidation and densification kinetics by understanding the laws of micromechanical interaction between particles. These numerical developments will be carried out within the GranOO discrete-element calculation code [1].

A commercial amorphous silica powder has been selected. It exhibits spherical particles and a quasi-monodisperse size distribution around a mean value of a few µm. The first part of this work has been devoted to: finely characterize the raw powder; study its shaping by stereolithography and compare it to compaction by uniaxial pressing without additives; analyze and compare the thermal and sintering behavior of the raw materials obtained. The glass transition has been identified in the temperature range 880-960°C by thermogravimetry. No crystallization is detected up to 1300°C. Analyzes of measured shrinkage kinetics have allowed to verify a viscous flow densification mechanism over the selected temperature range and to estimate the associated apparent activation energy. The microstructure evolution during sintering has been finely characterized using FIB-SEM micrographs of samples sintered at different stages. The second part consists in adapting the solid phase sintering model available in the literature in order to be applied to the case of viscous flow sintering in the discrete element method. The reliability of the built model has been validated by comparison with experimental data. A good match is noticed at the macroscopic scale with dilatometric analyses. The effect of the shaping mode is analyzed on the evolution of the microstructure in the early stages of sintering (evolutions of particle shape, particle size distribution, size of

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

interparticle bridges and porous architecture). Figure 1 shows 3D representation of a pellet sintered at 1200°C at a rate of 10°C/min, the bridge size distribution is shown in color with a maximum size value of 30% of the particle radius. This oral presentation will focus on the second part of this work, dedicated to numerical aspects.

## Refecences

André, Damien, Charles, Jean-Luc, et Iordanoff, Ivan. 3D Discrete Element Workbench for Highly Dynamic Thermo-mechanical Analysis: GranOO. John Wiley & Sons, 2015.



Figure 1: 3D view of the sintered granular stack

# Effect of extrinsic and intrinsic defects on halide ion migration in Lead-Iodide perovskite

#### Pranjul Bhatt<sup>1\*</sup>, Abhishek Tewari<sup>1</sup>, Kanwar S Nalwa<sup>2</sup>, BRK Nanda<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Metallurgical and Materials Engineering, Indian Institute of Technology Roorkee, India

<sup>2</sup>Department of Sustainable Energy Engineering, Indian Institute of Technology Kanpur, India <sup>1</sup>Department Physics, Indian Institute of Technology Madras, India <sup>\*</sup>E-mail: pranjul b@mt.iitr.ac.in

Keywords: atomistic modelling, defects, ion migration, perovskite

Since the advent of discovery of halide perovskite, defect chemistry in Methylammonium Lead Iodine(MAPbI<sub>3</sub>) has played a significant role in determining the potential of this material towards photovoltaic applications. Various partial cation<sup>1</sup> and anion substitutions have been reported to study and suppress ion migration phenomenon and attempts have been in the direction to achieve a more stable perovskite structure. In the current work, force field based atomistic simulations are performed in GULP to understand the effect of Cs concentration on ionic migration in Methylammonium Lead Iodide. Nudged Elastic Band simulations were used to calculate the Iodine ion activation barrier varying the size of supercell to obtain different Cs concentrations. Iodine migration in CH<sub>3</sub>NH<sub>3</sub>PBI<sub>3</sub> is conventional vacancy hopping through immediate neighbouring positions<sup>2</sup>(figure 1a). The activation energy barrier of Iodine jumps which occur within the octahedral is found to increase in the doped Cs-MAPI(figure 1b) when compared with the un-doped one at different concentrations of Cs(x = 6.25%, 8.33%, 12.50%), thus ion migration is suppressed which is due to the favouble V<sub>1</sub>– defect binding(figure 1c) leading towards a more stable structure of perovskite. Experimental validation has been conducted for the Cs-doped perovskite films.

We also calculate the energetics of formation of various intrinsic defects namely Lead antisite, Lead interstitial, Methylammonium vacancy, Lead vacancy, and Iodine vacancy in MAPbI<sub>3</sub> through force field based atomistic simulations and first principles calculations<sup>3</sup>. Effect of these defects on halide ion migration is investigated. The creation of Iodine vacancy becomes relatively easier in the defected system when compared with pure MAPbI<sub>3</sub>, which is due to lesser breaking of bonds in the defected system and also the electrostatic attraction between the charged defects. Energetically favourable defect complexes are formed which cause binding of Iodine vacancy with these defects thus leading to a higher activation energy values of Iodine ion migration in the defected systems. First principle analysis of the charge distribution shows effective polarization near to the defect centre which causes defect-induced structural distortions. Interestingly, from the electronic structure calculations, we find that the defects do not perturb the valance and conduction band edge states and therefore, are not detrimental for the optoelectronic properties.



Figure 1. (a) Schematic picture of vacancy mediated ion migration process in perovskite. (b) Scatter plot of Iodine migration barriers as function of Cs concentration. Multiple point for a single concentration correspond to different ionic jumps and red filled circles correspond to the average value of migration barrier. (c) Binding energy per iodine vacancy for defect clusters of one  $Cs_{MA}$  and one to three  $V_I$ . Negative values indicate energetically favourable binding.

- 1. D. W. Ferdani, S. R. Pering, D. Ghosh, P. Kubiak, A. B. Walker, S. E. Lewis, A. L. Johnson, P. J. Baker, M. S. Islam and P. J. Cameron, *Energy Environ. Sci.*, 2019, **12**, 2264–2272.
- C. Eames, J. M. Frost, P. R. F. Barnes, B. C. O'Regan, A. Walsh and M. S. Islam, *Nat Commun*, 2015, 6, 7497.
- 3. 3 N. Liu and C. Yam, Phys. Chem. Chem. Phys., 2018, 20, 6800-6804.

# Compositional design and phase formation capability of multicomponent rare-earth disilicates via machine learning

<u>Yun Fan<sup>1</sup></u>, Yuelei Bai<sup>1\*</sup>, Bin Liu<sup>2\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>National Key Laboratory of Science and Technology on Advanced Composites in Special Environments and Center for Composite Materials and Structures, Harbin Institute of Technology, Harbin 150080, China <sup>2</sup>School of Materials Science and Engineering, Shanghai University, Shanghai 200444, China

\*E-mail: baiyl@hit.edu.cn; binliu@shu.edu.cn

Keywords: high entropy, stability, rare earth disilicate, environmental barrier coating

Rare earth disilicates  $(RE_2Si_2O_7)$  exhibit great potential for environmental barrier coating (EBC) application due to their excellent resistance to molten CaO-MgO-Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>-SiO<sub>2</sub>/water vapor, low thermal conductivity, and compatible thermal expansion coefficients with SiC/ SiC ceramic matrix composites substrates <sup>1-5</sup>. A crucial approach to design environmental barrier coatings involves incorporating multiple rare-earth (*RE*) components into  $\beta$ - and  $\gamma$ - $RE_{2}Si_{2}O_{7}$  for achieving multifunctional performance optimization. Nevertheless, the polymorphic phase presents significant challenges for the design of multicomponent RE disilicates. Here, a machine learning (ML) method based on decision fusion is developed to identify multicomponent RE disilicates, demonstrating remarkable accuracy in prediction. Well-trained ML models assess the phase formation capability of 118 unreported ( $RE1_{0.25}$  $RE2_{0.25}$ Yb<sub>0.25</sub>Lu<sub>0.25</sub>)<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub> and  $(RE1_{1/6}RE2_{1/6}RE3_{1/6}Gd_{1/6}$ Yb<sub>1/6</sub>Lu<sub>1/6</sub>)<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub>, further validated by first-principles calculations. Model visualization elucidates essential factors governing the formation of  $(RE1_{0.25}RE2_{0.25}Yb_{0.25}Lu_{0.25})_2Si_2O_7$ , such as the average radius of  $RE^{3+}$  and variations in different  $RE^{3+}$  combinations. On the other hand,  $(RE1_{1/6}RE2_{1/6}RE3_{1/6}Gd_{1/6}Yb_{1/6}Lu_{1/6})_2S$  $i_2O_7$  formation requires the consideration of the average mass and electronegativity deviation of  $RE^{3+}$ . This work integrates material-oriented ML methods with the formation mechanisms of multicomponent RE disilicates, facilitating the efficient design of superior materials with exceptional properties for EBC applications.

- 1. L.R. Turcer, N.P. Padture, Towards multifunctional thermal environmental barrier coatings (TEBCs) based on rare-earth pyrosilicate solid-solution ceramics, Scr. Mater. 154 (2018) 111–117.
- B. Liu, Y.C. Liu, C.H. Zhu, H.M. Xiang, H.F. Chen, L.C. Sun, Y.F. Gao, Y.C. Zhou, Advances on. strategies for searching for next generation thermal barrier coating materials, J. Mater. Sci. Technol. 35 (2019) 833–851.
- A.J. Fernandez-Carrion, M. Allix, A.I. Becerro, Thermal Expansion of Rare-Earth Pyrosilicates, J. Am. Ceram. Soc. 96 (2013) 2298–2305.
- Y. Xu, X.X. Hu, F.F. Xu, K.W. Li, Rare earth silicate environmental barrier coatings: Present status and prospective, Ceram. Int. 43 (2017) 5847–5855.
- Y.X. Luo, L.C. Sun, J.M. Wang, Z. Wu, X.R. Lv, J.Y. Wang, Material-genome perspective towards. tunable thermal expansion of rare-earth di-silicates, J. Eur. Ceram. Soc. 38 (2018) 3547–3554.

# Revealing ion velocity effect on ionization-induced recovery in defective $\rm KTaO_3$

### G. Velişa<sup>1\*</sup>, D. Iancu<sup>1</sup>, E. Zarkadoula<sup>2</sup>, Y. Tong<sup>3</sup>, Y. Zhang<sup>4,5</sup>, W.J. Weber<sup>4</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Horia Hulubei National Institute for Physics and Nuclear Engineering, Măgurele, Romania <sup>2</sup>Center for Nanophase Materials Sciences, Oak Ridge National Laboratory, Oak Ridge, TN, USA <sup>3</sup>Institute for Advanced Studies in Precision Materials, Yantai University, Yantai, Shandong, China <sup>4</sup>Department of Materials Science & Engineering, University of Tennessee, Knoxville, TN, USA <sup>5</sup>Energy and Environment Science & Technology, Idaho National Laboratory, Idaho Falls, ID, USA \*E-mail: gihan.velisa@nipne.ro

Keywords: KTaO<sub>3</sub>, defect analyses, defects simulation, velocity effect

Interest in ion beam modification of potassium tantalate (KTaO<sub>3</sub>) properties has rapidly expanded in the last decade<sup>1,2</sup>, fueled by the tunability of its optical and electronic properties through irradiation-induced defects<sup>3</sup>, which makes KTaO<sub>3</sub> a promising candidate for future optoelectronic and spintronic applications <sup>3,4</sup>. All these applications require effective control of the structural modification, but this is an extremely difficult task, since it demands indepth knowledge of the interactions of ions with the local defect states in the corresponding material and the resulting evolution of radiation damage<sup>5</sup>. In this regard, effects of electronic to nuclear energy losses  $(S_a/S_a)$  ratio on damage evolution in defective KTaO<sub>3</sub> have been investigated by irradiating pre-damaged single crystal KTaO<sub>3</sub> with intermediate energy O ions (6 MeV, 8 MeV and 12 MeV) at 300 K. By exploring these processes in pre-damaged KTaO<sub>3</sub> containing a fractional disorder level of 0.35, the ion channeling results demonstrate the occurrence of a precursory stage of damage production before the onset of damage annealing process in defective KTaO<sub>3</sub> that decreases with O ion energy. In addition, the reduction of disorder level is accompanied by the broadening of the disorder profiles into greater depth with increasing ion fluence, and enhanced migration is observed with decreasing O ion energy. Since  $S_e$  (~ 3.0 keV nm<sup>-1</sup>) is nearly constant at all 3 ion energies, the difference in behavior is a natural consequence of the "velocity effect". As consequence of the so-called "velocity effect", the S<sub>a</sub> is confined to a smaller volume in case of the low velocity ions leading to a higher energy density. Therefore, for equal values of Se, enhanced ionization-induced annealing process is expected for the smaller ion velocity/energy (i.e., 6 MeV O). The inelastic thermal spike calculation has further confirmed the existence of a velocity effect, not previously reported in KTaO<sub>3</sub> or very scarcely reported in other materials for which the existence of ionization-induced annealing has been reported.

#### Acknowledgments

G. Velişa and D. Iancu was supported by a grant of the Romanian Ministry of Education and Research, CNCS – UEFISCDI, project number PN-III-P4-ID-PCE2020-1379, within PNCDI III. The contributions of D. Iancu and G. Velişa to this work were also supported by the Research Programme Partnership in Priority Areas PNII MEN-UEFISCDI, contract PN 23210201. W. J. Weber was supported by the National Science Foundation under Grant No. DMR-2104228E. Y. Zhang was supported as part of the Laboratory Directed Research and Development Program at Idaho National Laboratory under the Department of Energy (DOE) Idaho Operations Office (an agency of the U.S. Government) Contract

- 1. Velişa, G. et al. Near-surface modification of defective KTaO3 by ionizing ion irradiation. J Phys D Appl Phys 54, 375302 (2021).
- 2. Iancu, D. et al. Revealing two-stage phase transition process in defective KTaO3 under inelastic interactions. Scr Mater 222, 115032 (2023).
- Gupta, A. et al. KTaO3—The New Kid on the Spintronics Block. Advanced Materials 2106481 (2022) doi:10.1002/ADMA.202106481

## T4.2 Additive Manufacturing & 3D Printing Technologies

# Feasibility of coupling novel rapid sintering technologies with additive manufacturing

# <u>Subhadip Bhandari</u><sup>1</sup>, Mattia Biesuz<sup>2</sup>, Vincenzo M. Sglavo<sup>2</sup>, Paolo Colombo<sup>1</sup>, Giorgia Franchin<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Industrial Engineering, University of Padova, Via Marzolo 9, 35131 Padova, Italy <sup>2</sup>Department of Industrial Engineering, University of Trento, Via Sommarive 9, 38122 Trento, Italy \*E-mail: subhadip.bhandari@phd.unipd.it

Keywords: additive manufacturing, debinding, sintering, rapid

Usually, ceramics are fabricated and consolidated by sintering powder compacts, but structures with complex geometries are difficult to produce due to limitations in the mould design. Additive manufacturing (AM) allows fabricating complex geometries with fewer constraints compared to the conventional fabrication techniques. On the other hand, it is becoming more evident that the bottleneck of these technologies is not represented by the printing process itself, but also by the slow thermal debinding and sintering, typically requiring several hours or days. In the recent years, ultrafast sintering techniques have gained popularity as a way to reduce the processing time and energy consumption of the ceramic industry.

In light of this, the discussion will concentrate on the outcomes that were accomplished via the use of innovative sintering procedures for the purpose of achieving quick debinding and sintering of additively manufactured components fabricated with different techniques. Additionally, the difficulties that were involved with the procedure will be discussed. In fact, this approach of shaping and sintering complex-shaped ceramics has the potential to provide an energy-efficient alternative to conventional techniques such as pressureless sintering, hot pressing, etc.; hence representing a small step in the direction of addressing the current energy crisis. Such a flexible, economically viable approach could be extended to a wide range of complex geometries and compositions.

#### Acknowledgments

Subhadip Bhandari acknowledges the CARIPARO foundation for the PhD scholarship.

# Advances in additively manufactured sodium-beta-alumina solid state electrolytes

### Athanasios Goulas\*, Sina Saremi-Yarahmadi<sup>1</sup>, Bala Vaidhyanathan

Department of Materials, Loughborough University, Loughborough, UK \*E-mail: a.goulas@lboro.ac.uk

Keywords: sodium-beta-alumina, additive manufacturing; 3D printing; ceramic electrolytes, energy storage

Additive manufacturing (AM), also known as 3D printing, has the potential to revolutionise battery production by offering precise control over material properties and enabling the creation of intricate geometries. This project investigates the use of AM to fabricate solid-state electrolyte structures using sodium beta-alumina ceramic oxides.

Two prominent AM techniques for ceramics – Direct Ink Writing (DIW) and Digital Light Processing (DLP) – were employed to create a variety of solid electrolyte structures. Highsolids-loading feedstocks with suitable rheological properties were developed specifically for each AM process.

The 3D-printed test structures, along with conventionally densified counterparts, underwent comprehensive characterisation using various techniques to evaluate their physical, structural, and electrochemical properties relevant to battery performance. This research aims to advance our understanding of AM's potential to improve battery technology.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was funded by UKRI research grant Rapid Manufacture of Solid-State Battery Structures by Additive Manufacturing and Flash Sintering (10007480) and the Midlands Advanced Ceramics for Industry 4.0 Strength in Places Fund (82148).

## Fabrication of 8-YSZ/LSM SOFC symmetric cells by 3D-printing

<u>I.M. Peláez Tirado</u><sup>\*</sup>, S. Tair, J.M. Ramos Fajardo, J. R. Marín Rueda, J. F. Valera Jiménez, J.C. Pérez Flores, M. Castro García, J. Canales Vázquez

DENERMAT, Renewable Energy Research Institute, University of Castilla-La Mancha, 02071 Albacete, Spain

\*E-mail: IsabelMaría.Pelaez@uclm.es

Keywords: electrolyte, cathode, symmetric cCells, 8-YSZ, LSM, 3D-printing, SOFCs

Fuel cell technologies are expected to substantially reduce oil dependency and hence the greenhouse gases emissions. Among the different types, Solid Oxide Fuel Cells (SOFCs) can be fed with different types of fuels exhibiting high energy efficiency, especially when high temperature exhaust gases are used for cogeneration or hybrid applications [1]. Currently, 3D-printing technologies offer several advantages compared to conventional manufacturing processes, including the development of alternative geometries to improve the volumetric and gravimetric energy density and optimise the Triple Phase Boundary (TPB), in addition to reduce the fabrication costs and waste disposal. Focusing on Fused Filament Fabrication (FFF) 3D printing, we have fabricated electroactive components for SOFCs to assess its potential application as alternative manufacturing procedure [2].

We have produced thermoplastic filaments the state-of-the-art electrolyte (YSZ) and cathode (LSM) [3].The rheological characterisation in the 180-220 °C temperature range, i.e. 3D printing range, revealed that the store modulus, G' is higher than loss modulus, G", the complex viscosity,  $\eta^*$ , increased with the temperature. Symmetric LSM-YSZ cells were fabricated using two alternative printing designs: first, sequential printing of LSM-C electrodes on both sides of the YSZ electrolyte, and second, one-step printing of LSM-C+YSZ+LSM+C layers in the search for improved interfacial adherence. Optimised debinding and co-sintering rendered high quality electrolyte-electrodes interfaces (Fig. 1). The 3D printed symmetrical cells exhibited  $R_s$  and  $R_p$  values of 0.26  $\Omega$ cm<sup>-1</sup>and 0.30  $\Omega$ cm<sup>2</sup> at 900 °C in air, respectively, close to the commonly accepted reference, i.e. 0.27  $\Omega$ cm<sup>-1</sup> and 0.4  $\Omega$ cm<sup>2</sup>[4].

#### Figure



Figure 1: Interface LSM/YSZ after co-sintering process.

### Acknowledgments

JCCM-FEDER SBPLY/19/180501/000240. UCLM 2021-GRIN-31341 and 2022-GRIN-34391.

- 1. K. C. Wincewicz et al. J Power Sources, vol. 140, no. 2, pp. 280–296, Feb. 2005.
- 2. I. M. Peláez-Tirado et al. J Eur Ceram Soc, 2024, doi: 10.1016/J.JEURCERAMSOC.2024.02.007.
- 3. J. Canales-Vázquez, ES2640930B1/WO2017191340A1, 2017.
- 4. X. Wang et al., *Coatings*, 12 (3), 2022.

# T4.3 Novel, Green, and Strategic Processing and Manufacturing Technologies

# Surface modifications of soda lime silicate glasses to achieve silky matte glass surfaces

### <u>Emrah Dölekçekiç</u>1\*, Acar Bertan Anğan<sup>2</sup>, Kerem Körpe<sup>3,</sup> Ömer Güneş<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Materials Science and Engineering, Eskişehir Technical University, Eskişehir, Türkiye <sup>2</sup>Institute of Graduate Programs, Eskişehir Technical University, Eskişehir, Türkiye <sup>3</sup>YORGLASS Inc., Bolu, Türkiye \*E-mail: edolekce@eskisehir.edu.tr

Keywords: soda lime glasses, silky matte glasses, wet coatings, surface roughness

Glass products are widely used in the automotive, white goods and construction fields. Among these, especially the glasses used in the white goods industry has gained importance today. A lot of research is conducted on resistance to staining with the development of touch panels. The degree of mattnes on the surface reduces staining caused by fingerprints. Today HF acid etching, sandblasting and other mechanical etching methods are the most commonly used surface mattification methods. Sandblasting methods reduce the mechanical properties because they modify the surface by scratching it. On the other hand acid etching method has many harms to humans and nature and waste generated after process. The aim of this study was surface modification with wet coating application. The method includes the stages of coating the prepared mixture on the surface and heat treatment. The most important contribution of this process is being environmentally friendly and eliminating the risk of diseases due to manufacturing process when we think of conventional routes like acid etching. This being more important day to day in this era. Another attractive point of this environmentally friendly process is its compatibility with manufacturing route. The working temperatures were close to tempering temperatures and the heat treatment process can be carried out in the tempering furnace. It doesn't require any extra steps which can increase the energy consumption and cost of the production. The working temperatures were close to tempering temperatures and the heat treatment process can be carried out in the tempering furnace.

As a result of the experimental studies, surface roughness, gloss measurement, Uv- Vis Transmission performance and SEM analyzes were applied to determine the related properties. According to the test results, the best results were obtained for talc mixtures after heat treatment at 625 °C for 1 hour. In addition, water solubility resistance of the layer on the surface after the applied method was evaluated by examining the effects of ultrasonic cleaning process on the surface roughness.

# Carbon contamination prevention during spark plasma sintering of transparent MgO and YAG

*Michal Sakajio<sup>1</sup>, Vadim Beilin<sup>1</sup>, Meirav Mann-Lahav<sup>1</sup>, Shai Zamir<sup>2</sup>, Gennady E. Shter<sup>1</sup>,* <u>*Gideon S. Grader*<sup>1\*</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>The Wolfson Department of Chemical Engineering, Technion-Israel Institute of Technology, Haifa, Israel <sup>2</sup>RAFAEL, Haifa, Israel \*E-mail: grader@technion.ac.il

Keywords: MgO, YAG, transparent ceramics, SPS

Optically transparent ceramics are essential for a variety of optical applications. Spark plasma sintering (SPS) enables rapid sintering at relatively low temperatures, which limits grain growth during densification and can improve transparency. Carbon contamination from graphite molds during SPS significantly affects the materials properties, especially their transparency. Here, we present two approaches that address this issue: 1) using LiF as a sintering aid and physical buffer against carbon contamination; 2) applying Ta and Mo foils as diffusion barrier against carbon.

Highly transparent MgO and YAG ceramics were prepared via SPS by optimal incorporation of LiF. The effect of LiF content on the microstructural and optical properties of MgO will be presented with emphasis on its function as a densification aid and an agent for minimizing residual carbon contamination. Fully dense MgO discs, 20 mm in diameter and 2 mm thick, with ~80% in-line transmission at 800 nm and >85% transmission in the infrared range (2–6  $\mu$ m), are attained. These results demonstrate outstanding transparency only 7% below the theoretical value. In addition, this work strengthens the understanding of LiF action mechanism during sintering as a lubricant and as a gas-phase buffer minimizing inward diffusion of carbonaceous gasses.

A second approach to minimize carbon contamination using metallic foils of tantalum and/or molybdenum adjacent to the samples will be discussed as well, and demonstrated on transparent YAG. These findings pave the way for fabrication of large, fully dense transparent MgO and YAG samples with nearly theoretical transparency.



Figure 1: Polished MgO discs sintered with different LiF concentrations of 0–0.5 wt % ( $\emptyset$  = 20 mm, H = 2 mm).

# Mechanical properties of cold sintered ceramics

<u>Abdullah Jabr</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Clive Randall<sup>2,3</sup>, Raul Bermejo<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Materials Science, Montanuniversitaet Leoben, Franz Josef-Strasse 18, A-8700 Leoben, Austria <sup>2</sup>Materials Science and Engineering Department, The Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA 16802, USA <sup>3</sup>Materials Research Institute, Millennium Science Complex, University Park, PA 16802, USA \*E-mail: abdullah.jabr@unileoben.ac.at

Keywords: cold sintering, strength, fracture toughness, scaling up, fractography

Among the different alternative low temperature sintering techniques, the cold sintering process (CSP) enables densification of ceramics at temperatures below 350°C. The process is driven by a chemo-mechanical effect activated by a compatible transient liquid phase and high pressure. This study aims at optimizing the processing conditions in CSP, taking into consideration the effect of liquid phase chemistry, heating rate and homogeneity of applied pressure on the density and structural integrity of cold sintered parts. A combination of biaxial bending and fractographic analyses were employed to identify macroscopic strength-limiting flaws. It was found that the strength of cold sintered samples can be remarkably compromised by improper processing conditions associated with temperature and/or pressure gradients related to insufficient tooling quality, resulting in delamination effects. The prevention of such defects is demonstrated by appropriate selection of the processing parameters in CSP, resulting in structurally reliable cold sintered ZnO samples with strengths exceeding 100 MPa. Based on these findings, scaling-up the CSP was successfully demonstrated– an important step toward its industrial implementation.

# Development of rice husk composite ceramic sphere with enhanced radiation heat transfer for high temperature

<u>Shenghao Liao</u>\*, Mituhiro Kubota, Seiji Yamashita, Hideki Kita

Department of Chemical Systems Engineering, Graduate school, Nagoya University, Japan \*E-mail: liao\_shenghao@yahoo.co.jp

**Keywords**: rice husk, ceramics, rapid heat storage and release, radiation heat transfer, regenerative burner systems

As global greenhouse effects become increasingly severe, a significant amount of carbon dioxide is produced annually, with the industrial sector contributing the largest share[1, 2]. Additionally, a considerable portion of energy generated during industrial production processes is not utilized effectively[3]. Consequently, the development of Thermal Energy Storage systems has become a focal point. Currently, mid to low temperature range applications have been extensively researched and explored. However, the study of high-temperature applications, specifically those involving storage temperatures exceeding 600°C, remains insufficient and faces numerous challenges. Therefore, Regenerative burner Systems have been gradually developed and applied. The capability of heating ambient air in a short time, and the advantage of energy saving through alternating heat storage and release states. The key to enhancing the efficiency of regenerative burners lies in the heat storage medium within the heat storage tank. Currently, alumina solid spheres are widely used, but there are still issues such as low total heat storage and heat storage density, as well as slow heat transfer rates, and low consumption is very necessary.

In pursuit of developing a cost-effective technology for rapid high-temperature heat storage and release, This study innovatively uses rice husk ash as the raw material to develop a rice husk composite ceramic (RHC) sphere thermal storage material, which is simple to prepare, has a greatly reduced cost and compared with conventional thermal storage materials used in commercial regenerative burner systems, such as SiC and Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> ceramic spheres, RHC demonstrates comparable rapid heat storage and release rates to SiC and is significantly faster than Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>. In addition, RHC exhibits an impressive radiation absorptivity of 0.93 in the 600-1200°C range, which is higher than the 0.85 of SiC ceramic spheres and 0.25 of Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> ceramic spheres. The distribution of high radiation absorptivity carbon and SiC particles within RHC is a key factor for its strong radiation properties, facilitating overall rapid heat storage and release through radiation heat transfer. This technology not only significantly enhances the efficiency of rapid heat storage and release from an industrial perspective, playing a role in energy saving and emission reduction, but also serves as an excellent example of recycling waste resources and advancing the development of a greener Earth.

#### References

- D.W. Kweku, O. Bismark, A. Maxwell, K.A. Desmond, K.B. Danso, E.A. Oti-Mensah, A.T. Quachie, B.B. Adormaa, Greenhouse effect: greenhouse gases and their impact on global warming, Journal of Scientific research and reports, 17 (2018) 1–9.
- A. Mikhaylov, N. Moiseev, K. Aleshin, T. Burkhardt, Global climate change and greenhouse effect, Entrepreneurship and Sustainability Issues, 7 (2020) 2897.
- P. Alvira, E. Tomás-Pejó, M. Ballesteros, M.J. Negro, Pretreatment technologies for an efficient bioethanol production process based on enzymatic hydrolysis: a review, Bioresource technology, 101 (2010) 4851–4861.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

## Lipopolysaccharide (LPS) on bacterial surface stabilizes ionic colloids and promotes biomineralization

Hao Xie<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Zechuan Gong<sup>2</sup>, Junhui Guo<sup>1,2</sup>, Qichang Li<sup>1</sup>, Zhengyi Fu<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>School of Chemistry, Chemical Engineering and Life Science <sup>2</sup>Institute of Aix-Marseille <sup>3</sup>State Key Laboratory of Advanced Technology for Materials Synthesis and Process, Wuhan University of Technology, Wuhan 430070, China \*E-mail: h.xie@whut.edu.cn

Keywords: lipopolysaccharide (LPS), biomineralization, ionic colloids, bacteria

Biomineralization is associated with a wide range of bacterial species. Mechanisms and applications of bacteria-induced biomineralization have been investigated in various fields. The formation of biominerals is templated and promoted by biomolecules under the control of chemical, physical, morphological and structural mechanisms. In aqueous solutions, metal ions can present in forms of single ions or ionic colloids. Brownian motion drives collisions between particles and facilitates colloidal formation. The surface of colloids electrostatically attracts oppositely charged ions to form a boundary of ionic atmosphere, or an electric double layer, which will exert repulsive forces toward similar particles and prevent colloids from aggregation. Biomineralization on bacterial surfaces is regulated by ionic colloids as follows: (1) ionic supersaturation results in colloidal formation; (2) ionic atmosphere rearranges are promoted by electrostatic interactions when colloids attach to negatively charged bacterial surfaces; (3) the colloidal structure is maintained in a thermodynamically unstable status that is easily interfered and results in precipitation (e.g., Ag<sup>+</sup>/Cl<sup>-</sup> colloids) or colloidal disintegration with the depletion of OH<sup>-</sup> (e.g., Fe<sup>3+</sup>/OH<sup>-</sup> colloids). Therefore, stabilizing ionic colloids is an important issue for biomineralization. Lipopolysaccharide (LPS) is the main and outermost component on the cell surface of Gram-negative bacteria. Ionic colloids with positively charged metal ions on the surface interact with negatively charged LPS, which prevents ionic colloids from aggregation as well as regulates the formation, deposition, and development of mineral crystals.

In the present study, interactions between LPS and various metal ions as well as ionic colloids (Ag<sup>+</sup>/Cl<sup>-</sup>, Fe<sup>3+</sup>/OH<sup>-</sup>) were evaluated, which showed that LPS increases the energy barrier for the collapse of ionic colloids and prevents ionic colloids from aggregation. The roles of LPS stabilized ionic colloids in inducing biomineralization were explored, which showed that reducing colloidal stability by increasing the ionic strength significantly inhibited biomineralization of ionic colloids. The molecular mechanism of LPS in affecting biomineralization of Ag<sup>+</sup>/Cl<sup>-</sup> colloids was further investigated by taking advantages of two LPS structural deficient mutants of *Escherichia coli* that were generated by impairing the expression of *waa*P or *wbb*H genes with CRISPR/Cas9 technology that induced deficient polysaccharide chain of O-antigen ( $\Delta wbb$ H) or phosphate groups of core oligosaccharide ( $\Delta waa$ P) in LPS structures. There were significant changes of the cell morphology and surface charge of the two mutants in comparing with that of wild type cells. LPS from  $\Delta waa$ P mutant showed increased  $\Delta H_{ITC}$  upon interacting with free Ag<sup>+</sup> ions than LPS from wild type cells or  $\Delta wbb$ H mutant, implying the binding affinity of LPS to Ag<sup>+</sup> ions is affected by the phosphate groups

in core oligosaccharide. LPS from  $\Delta wbbH$  mutant showed decreased endotherm ( $\Delta Q$ ) upon interacting with Ag<sup>+</sup>/Cl<sup>-</sup> colloids than LPS from wild type or  $\Delta waaP$  mutant cells, implying LPS polysaccharide chain structure is critical for stabilizing Ag<sup>+</sup>/Cl<sup>-</sup> colloids. Biomineralization of Ag<sup>+</sup>/Cl<sup>-</sup> colloids on  $\Delta wbbH$  mutant cell surface showed distinctive morphology in comparison with that of wild type or  $\Delta waaP$  mutant cells, which confirmed the critical role of O-antigen of LPS in biomineralization.

This study provides a novel insight into interactions between LPS and ions or ionic colloids in influencing biomineralization on bacterial cell surface.

### Acknowledgments

This work was financially supported by the National Natural Science Foundation of China (31771032, 51911530153).

- 1. Gong Z, Guo J, Li Q, Xie H. Lipopolysaccharide-stabilized ionic colloids induce biomineralization. Colloids Surf B Biointerfaces, 2022, 211:112331.
- 2. Gong Z, Guo J, Li Q, Xie H. Molecular mechanism of lipopolysaccharide (LPS) in promoting biomineralization on bacterial surface. Biochim Biophys Acta Gen Subj, 2023, 1867(3):130305.

A novel high-entropy  $(Y_{0.2}Gd_{0.2}Ho_{0.2}Er_{0.2}Yb_{0.2})_3Al_5O_{12}/Al_2O_3$  eutectic with outstanding crystallographic texture formation capability and CMAS corrosion resistance

#### Cui Zhou<sup>1,2</sup>, Luchao Sun<sup>1\*</sup>, Jingyang Wang<sup>1\*</sup>

Shenyang National Laboratory for Materials Science, Institute of Metal Research, Chinese Academy of Sciences, Shenyang, China

<sup>2</sup>School of Materials Science and Engineering, University of Science and Technology of China,

Shenyang, China

\*E-mail: lcsun@imr.ac.cn; jywang@imr.ac.cn

**Keywords**: high entropy eutectic ceramic, directional solidification, crystallograohic texture, CMAS corrosion resistance

Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>-based directionally solidified eutectic (DSE) ceramics have been regarded as promising structural materials for long-term service in ultrahigh temperature oxidizing environments due to their outstanding oxidation resistance and superior high-temperature mechanical properties. In this work, high-entropy Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>-based DSE ceramic was prepared using the optical floating zone melting method. And both crystallographic texture control and hightemperature corrosion ability are recognized as the critical issues in the exploration of potential DSEs. Here a new  $(Y_0,Gd_0,Ho_0,Er_0,Yb_0,)_3Al_5O_1/Al_2O_3$  ((5RE<sub>0.2</sub>)AG/Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>) DSE with excellent crystallographic texture formation capability and calcium-magnesium-aluminosilicate (CMAS) corrosion resistance was fabricated under the high entropy design conception. We prepared this DSE via optical floating zone and single-crystal  $(5RE_{0.2})AG$  and  $Al_2O_3$ phases are obtained within a growth distance of 15 mm, which is much shorter than those of single rare earth containing RE<sub>3</sub>Al<sub>5</sub>O<sub>12</sub>/Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> counterparts (typically  $\geq$ 80 mm). Besides, the true recession depth of  $(5RE_{0.2})AG/Al_2O_3$  is about 219.5  $\mu$ m after corroded by CMAS at 1500 °C for 200 h. The current results can cast light on new mechanisms and strategies to multilevel optimization to develop novel high-temperature structural materials with tailored microstructure and enhanced CMAS corrosion resistance ability.

## T4.4 Powder Processing Technology for Advanced Ceramics

# Synthesis of ZrB<sub>2</sub> rod crystals and exploration of their alignment behavior under strong magnetic field

### Zhibo Chen<sup>1,2</sup>, Tohru S. Suzuki<sup>1,2\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Nanoscience and Nanoengineering, Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan <sup>2</sup>Optical Ceramics Group, National Institute for Materials Science, Tsukuba, Japan \*E-mail: suzuki.tohru@nims.go.jp

Keywords: ZrB2 rod crystals, textured ceramic, strong magnetic field

Zirconium boride  $(ZrB_2)$  is an important ultra-high-temperature ceramic in the aviation and aerospace fields due to its low theoretical density, high melting point, hardness, and thermal and electrical conductivity. Poor fracture toughness is a critical deficiency which is the main issue of current research. In view of the prospective to enhance the performance of  $ZrB_2$  ceramics by tailoring microstructure, this study tried to fabricate textured ceramics by aligning rod-like  $ZrB_2$  grains using a strong magnetic field.

In this work, rod-like  $ZrB_2$  grains were prepared by a salt-assisted boro/carbothermal reduction technique using NaCl as flux. A comprehensive thermal analysis of raw materials composed of different boron and carbon sources as well as the morpologies of products illustrated the importance of interproduct  $B_2O_3$  to the anisotropic growth of  $ZrB_2$  crystals. Besides, the addition of NaCl decreased the synthesis temperature and improve the products morphology by introducing more liquid phase to reactants. X-ray diffraction and scanning electron microscopy confirmed that the heat-treatment temperature of 1550 °C and the addition of 50 wt.% NaCl were the most effective in the preparation of ZrB<sub>2</sub> grains with a high aspect ratio. The products have diameters and aspect ratios of approximately 1  $\mu$ m and 30, respectively, as shown in Fig.1a.

With the help of rod-like  $ZrB_2$  grains, submicron  $ZrB_2$  irregular grains were used as starting materials, polyethyleneimine (PEI) was employed as dispersant. A stable slurry with low viscosity was formulated by investigating different solvents, dispersant content, pH values, and solid loadings in details. Due to the hexagonal crystal structure and anisotropic magnetic susceptibilities along a, b and c axes ( $x_c > x_{a,b}$ ), rod-like  $ZrB_2$  grains in the slurry can rotate under strong magnetic field (12T), until the c axis parallel to the direction of magnetic field. After solidification and pre-treatment in cold isostatic pressing (CIP), highly c-axis oriented  $ZrB_2$  ultrahigh-temperature ceramic was quickly sintered by spark plasma sintering SPS, as shown in Fig.1b.

## Figures



Figure 1 (a) SEM image of  $ZrB_2$  rod crystals with 50 wt% NaCl; (b)XRD patterns of  $ZrB_2$  bulks with and without strong magnetic field.

## Effect of inert atmospheres on the resistance of graphite heater

#### Naoto Ohta

Global R&D Dept., Toyo Tanso Co., Ltd, Osaka, Japan E-mail: n.ohta@toyotanso.co.jp

Keywords: graphite heater, electrical resistivity, atmosphere control, energy saving

Graphite materials have been widely used as important industrial furnace parts to attain high temperature above 2000 °C. For example, graphitization furnace to produce anode powder for LIB is one of such furnaces using many graphite parts. In many cases, indirect heating system with graphite heater has been adopted to these furnaces.

It has been known that the intrinsic electrical resistivity of graphite shows monotonical increase with increasing temperature up to 3000 °C after reaching a minimum at around 500-1000 °C<sup>1</sup>).

Our group also revealed that the resistivity of graphite by direct heating system shows linear increase above 1000 °C, in which no reduction of resistivity up to 3000 °C was observed<sup>2</sup>). However, as shown in Fig. 1(a), a remarkable decrease in resistance of heater above 2500 °C has been observed for indirect furnace in Ar atmosphere<sup>3</sup>).



Fig. 1 Effect of furnace atmosphere on heater resistance during heating process: (a) Ar, (b)  $N_2$  and He atmosphere. Graphite material: IG-110U (Toyo Tanso Co. Ltd.) purified after machining under halogen gas flow at a high temperature

Resistance fading temperature depends on the pressure of Ar gas, fading shifts to high temperature side by increasing pressure, but the fading occurs apparently at lower temperature by lowering pressure. In addition, the reduction in resistance of the heater was accelerated by the presence of vapors which came from carbon parts/carbon materials loaded in the furnace.

On the other hand, as shown in Fig. 1(b), no such reduction behavior was observed in  $N_2$  and He atmosphere<sup>3</sup>). In He, much higher power was necessary to obtain the high temperatures close to 3000 °C steadily, however in  $N_2$ , heating up to 3000 °C with sufficient stabilities in temperature and power supply was possible for the present system<sup>4</sup>).

From these results, resistance reduction in Ar atmosphere above 2500 °C was supposed to be due to the formation of conduction path by ionized Ar, which could be accelerated by the coexistence of vaporized gases from carbon materials generated in the furnace during the heat treatment. The reduction of resistance was avoidable by mixing the appropriate amounts of He or N<sub>2</sub> in Ar, which may be important for energy saving of electricity for heating in the practical usage of furnace.

- 1. S. G. Bapat and H. H. Nickel, Carbon, 11, (1973) 323-327.
- 2. O. Yoshimoto et al., TANSO [No.268], (2015) 166-170 [in Japanese].
- 3. M. Okada et al., Carbon, 116, (2017) 737–743.
- 4. M. Okada et al., Carbon, 139, (2018) 700-708.

# Experimental considerations on selective gilling of two-component composite materials with attritor-type mill

<u>Yutaro Takaya<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Yuki Murata<sup>2</sup>, Chiharu Tokoro<sup>1,2</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Systems Innovation, Graduate School of Engineering, The University of Tokyo, Tokyo, Japan

<sup>2</sup>Department of Resources and Environmental Engineering, Graduate School of Creative Science and Engineering, Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan

\*E-mail: y-takaya@sys.t.u-tokyo.ac.jp

Keywords: selective grinding, attritor mill, composite material

In the recycling field, crushing and sorting technologies for composite materials are of great importance. Once selective grindding is achieved, it is possible to separate each component from the composite material in combination with classification operations. Despite these bachground, the conditions under which only certain components of the composite material can be ground are still unclear, and in the actual recycling field, conditions are often set by empirical rules. In this study, therefore, we conducted grinding experiments on glass mixed with metals and ceramics, and discussed the conditions under which selective grinding of glass can be achieved.

An attritor-type mill (POWDER LAB, Nippon Coke & Engineering Co., Ltd.) was used in our grinding experiments. The mill capacity was 180 ml and the total volume of material was adjusted to 40 ml. The agitation speed was 800 rpm and the grinding time was 10, 20, and 40 minutes. The samples were glass, steel, alumina, and lead. Glass was assumed to be the material to be ground and steel, alumina, and lead was assumed as simulated grinding media. All samples were prepared with spherical particles of 0.9-1.1 mm in diameter. Experiments were conducted with three combinations: glass and steel, glass and alumina, and glass and lead.

The results of the experiments showed that the most efficient grinding of glass proceeded in the glass-alumina combination, and about 70% of the glass was ground to a particle size of 0.5 mm or less. On the other hand, no progress was made in grinding alumina. In steel and lead, the glass grinding speed was significantly reduced, and the percentages of glass ground to 0.5 mm or less were about 20% and 10%, respectively. In addition, no steel or lead grinding/crushing occurred. Steel and lead balls avoided breakage by deforming due to metallic ductility, and for lead in particular, the surface was observed to deform significantly during the experiment.

The fact that even lead which has extremely low-hardness could make grinding of glass confirms that grinding process is not simply defined by the value of the Vickers hardness. In this presentation, we will discuss the conditions under which selective grinding of glass can be achieved by impact mitigation due to metal ductility and/or differences in impact time.

#### Acknowledgments

We are grateful to Kobe Steel, Ltd. for providing of sample.

# An investigation into the influence of Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> particulate morphology on processing conditions in industrial contexts

### Erin Valenzuela-Heeger\*, Jon Binner

Department of Metallurgy and Materials, University of Birmingham, Birmingham, UK \*E-mail: e.valenzuela@bham.ac.uk

Keywords: alumina, particle flow, rheology, rheological behaviour, industrial processing, statistical analysis

Alumina is a key material within the advanced ceramics field. It's chemical and thermal inertness ensure its valuable use within most industries globally. From it ultra-high purity and controlled microstructure allowing for IR transparency, to its uses within electrical components and as an emerging matrix material within aircraft engines.

The processes used to form alumina parts from powders, slurries and slips are varied and require a high degree of chemical engineering before components with the desired microstructure and properties can be achieved. The aim of this research was to highlight a factor commonly overlooked. Alumina particle size and its impact on processing is well studied, but the variation of particle shape and morphology is yet to be fully realised. The research aims to characterise key differences in morphologies were analysed for their dry and as standard flow properties via powder rheology and methods such as Angle of Repose. A statistical analysis was conducted on the morphology to allow for a quantifiable differentiation to accompany the qualitative data collected.

The powders were then subject to flow conditions that mimic various processes in industry while suspended within polymers used for processing alumina in the advanced ceramic industries. Key trends were detected via the analysis of their flow behaviours and a novel process for imaging the movement of the particles was conducted to allow for an understanding of the interesting flow behaviours seen.

This research establishes that alumina morphology alone influences the methods in which the powder can be processed into ceramic components and aims to allow for further work to be conducted on a comparison of alternative particle sizes in the future.

# Interparticle photo-cross-linkable Pickering emulsions for rapid processing of 3D-structured porous ceramics

### Yoshihiko Yamanoi<sup>1</sup>, Shogo Tsutaki<sup>1</sup>, Junichi Tatami<sup>2</sup>, Motoyuki Iijima<sup>2\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Graduate School of Engineering Science, Yokohama National University, Yokohama, Japan <sup>2</sup>Faculty of Enviroment and Information Sciences, Yokohama National University, Yokohama, Japan \*E-mail: iijima@ynu.ac.jp

Keywords: photocurable suspension, porous ceramics, 3D structring, stereolithography

Porous ceramics are indispensable materials applied for filters, heat exchangers, and catalyst supports because of their large accessible surface area, thermal insulation properties, and corrosion resistance. Three dimensional (3D) structuring of such porous ceramics, using photocurable suspensions, have recently attracted wide attention toward material property design based on on-demand shaping. However, most protocols suffered from long processing time for drying and debinding/sintering of the photocured bodies to avoid structural collapse.

In order to realize an efficient production of tailored porous ceramic components, here, we introduce our newly designed Pickering emulsion-based suspensions<sup>1-2)</sup> which can be photocured using reduced amounts of organic additives. Briefly, ceramic raw powder was dispersed into continuous-phase solvent with the aid of functionalized polyethyleneimine (PEI) as reactive polymer dispersant. After dissolving small amounts of acrylates with photo-radical initiators, the obtained suspension was vigorously mixed with dispersed-phase solvent. With an appropriate structural design of reactive polymer dispersants, flowable Pickering emulsions which can be photocured through interparticle photo-cross-linking reaction were successfully prepared. In this presentation, the effects of functionalized PEI structures on the flowing behavior, photo-responsiveness, and shaping (molding) properties of the designed interparticle photo-cross-linkable Pickering emulsions will be systematically discussed. Further, the 3D structuring of porous ceramics through digital light processing (DLP) printing of the designed Pickering emulsions and/or green machining of the photocured bodies will be demonstrated. Owing to the reduced amounts of organic additives used to form the photocured bodies, the 3D structured green components were processable through rapid heating for debinding/sintering without occurring any structural collapse.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by JST, PRESTO grant number JPMJPR22N1 and JSPS, KAKENHI grant number JP23KJ0984.

- 1. Y. Yamanoi, J. Tatami, M. Iijima, Adv. Powder Technol. 33 (2022) 103638.
- 2. Y. Yamanoi, J. Tatami, M. Iijima, Adv. Powder Technol. 34 (2023) 104240.

## T4.5 Advanced Materials, Technologies, and Devices for Electrooptical and Biomedical Applications

# Characteristics of MgGa<sub>2</sub>O<sub>4</sub> films grown by oxygen radicals assisted pulsed laser deposition

<u>Oixin Guo</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Junya Tetsuka<sup>1</sup>, Zewei Chen<sup>1</sup>, Makoto Arita<sup>2</sup>, Katsuhiko Saito<sup>1</sup>, Tooru Tanaka<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Electrical and Electronic Engineering, Synchrotron Light Application Center, Saga University, Saga 840-8502, Japan

<sup>2</sup>Department of Materials Science and Engineering, Faculty of Engineering, Kyushu University,

744 Motooka, Fukuoka 819-0395, Japan

\*E-mail: guoq@cc.saga-u.ac.jp

Keywords: ultrawide bandgap, MgGa2O4, pulsed laser deposition, oxygen radicals

Magnesium gallate (MgGa,  $O_4$ ), a ternary oxide semiconductor with an ultrawide bandgap of approximately 4.9 eV, is explored as a promising material for high-power electronic devices and deep ultraviolet (DUV) photodetectors. Galazka et al. successfully produced bulk Mg-Ga<sub>2</sub>O<sub>4</sub> single crystals and observed that MgGa<sub>2</sub>O<sub>4</sub> is a thermally stable at elevated temperatures [1]. Hou et al. employed metal organic chemical vapor deposition (MOCVD) to grow MgGa<sub>2</sub>O<sub>4</sub> films on sapphire substrate at a substrate temperature of 650°C, demonstrating the favrication of a DUV photodetector using the oxygen-annealed MgGa<sub>2</sub>O<sub>4</sub> film [2]. Pulsed laser deposition (PLD) is known for its efficacy in the low-temperature growth of films due to the relatively high kinetic energies of the ablated species [3]. In our previous experiments,  $MgGa_2O_4$  films were grown on (0001) sapphire substrates using PLD at various substrate temperatures [4]. Remarkably, (111) oriented MgGa<sub>2</sub>O<sub>4</sub> films were obtained at a low growth temperature of 200°C, surpassing the capabilities of other growth methods such as MOCVD. Photodetectors based on the MgGa,O<sub>4</sub> films grown at 500°C exhibited excellent peak responsivity around 220 nm, along with a high rejection ratio and reproducibility. However, films grown below 300°C exhibited poor crystal quality, resulting in photodetectors with no peak responsivity and a very low rejection ratio. To align with established Si based integrated circuits for novel optoelectronic applications, achieving a lower growth temperature is preferable. Oxygen radicals have been identified as effective assistant species for decreasing the growth temperature of thin films. Thus, the combination of PLD and oxygen radicals assistance proves to be a highly effective method for low-temperature film growth.

In this work, the MgGa<sub>2</sub>O<sub>4</sub> films were grown on (0001) sapphire substrate using oxygen radicals assisted PLD. A KrF excimer laser with a pulse of 2 Hz ablated a MgGa<sub>2</sub>O<sub>4</sub> ceramic target in the growth chamber, evacuated to  $5 \times 10^{-6}$  Pa with a turbo molecular pump before deposition. Oxygen radicals were generated by passing high purity oxygen gas into the plasma cell with an RF power of 300 W. The growth chamber was maintained at 0.1 Pa by controlling the flow rate of the oxygen with a mass flow controller. Fim thickness was determined by using a step profile analyzer, and structural properties were characterized by X-ray diffraction. Optical transmittance spectra were measured by a spectrophotometer. Our

Oral

cal... Oral

results demonstrate that (111) oriented  $MgGa_2O_4$  films can be obtained at a remarkably low growth temperature of 100°C, and the crystal quality of the films using oxygen radicals is significantly improved compared to films grown by conventional PLD.

- 1. Z. Galazka, D. Klimm, K. Irmscher, R. Uecker, M. Pietsch, R. Bertram, M. Naumann, M. Albrecht, A. Kwasniewski, R. Schewski, and M. Bickermann: Phys. Status Solidi A, 212 (2015) 1455.
- Q. Hou, K. Liu, D. Han, Y. Zhu, X. Chen, B. Li, L. Liu, and D. Shen: Applied Physics Letters, 120 (2022) 011101.
- 3. Q. Guo, K. Saito, T. Tanaka: ACS Applied Electronic Materials, 5 (2023) 4002.
- 4. Q. Guo, J. Tetsuka, Z. Chen, M. Arita, K. Saito, T. Tanaka: Optical Materials, 143 (2023) 114267.
## Photoluminescence and scintillation properties of Dy-doped GdVO<sub>4</sub> Single Crystals for X-ray detection

<u>Kensei Ichiba</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Kenichi Watanabe<sup>2</sup>, Takumi Kato<sup>1</sup>, Daisuke Nakauchi<sup>1</sup>, Noriaki Kawaguchi<sup>1</sup>, Takayuki Yanagida<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Division of Materials Science, Nara Institute of Science and Technology, Nara, Japan <sup>2</sup>Graduate School of Engineering, Kyushu University, Fukuoka, Japan \*E-mail: ichiba.kensei.if7@ms.naist.jp

Keywords: scintillator, radiation detection, photoluminescence

Scintillators can immediately convert incident ionizing radiation into UV–visible photons with low energy. Scintillators are coupled with photodetectors, which can convert the UV–visible photons into electric signals, to utilized for radiation detectors. The radiation detectors have been widely used in various applications, including medical, security, oil logging, non-destructive research in cultural objects. Since the performance of the radiation detectors mainly depends on the that of the equipped scintillators, new scintillators with better properties have been continuously developed.

 $GdVO_4$  is researched and utilized for a host material for phosphors and lasers because of high chemical and thermal stability [1]. In addition, since  $GdVO_4$  is relative high effect atomic number (55.9) and density (5.47 g/cm<sup>3</sup>), it has been also subject of researches as scintillators. Particularly, it has been reported that the light yield (*LY*) of the undoped  $GdVO_4$ is 12,000 photons/MeV [2]. In this study, in the purpose of further improvement of *LY*, we fabricated  $GdVO_4$  single crystals doped with  $Dy^{3+}$  ions, whose emission wavelength were well-matched with photodetectors such as Si-photodiode, and evaluated photoluminesce and scintillation properties.

Fig. 1 shows the scintillation spectra of the Dy-doped  $GdVO_4$  single crystals. Some emission lines were observed at 480, 570, and 660 nm. Such emission lines were due to the 4f–4f transitions of Dy<sup>3+</sup> ions [3]. In addition, a broad emission band was observed in the state of overlapping with the emission line at 480 nm. This emission band was due to the charge transfer from V<sup>5+</sup> ions to O<sup>2-</sup> ions inside [VO<sub>4</sub>]<sup>3-</sup> [3]. Fig. 2 shows the pulse height spectra of the Dy-doped GdVO<sub>4</sub> single crystals and Bi<sub>4</sub>Ge<sub>3</sub>O<sub>12</sub> (BGO) under  $\gamma$ -ray from <sup>137</sup>Cs. BGO was utilized for a reference sample with *LY* of 8,000 ph/MeV. All the samples showed the clear photoabsorption peak at 288 (0.05% Dy), 270 (0.1% Dy), 283 (0.5% Dy), 262 (1.0% Dy), 83 ch (BGO). From the comparison of the peak channel with BGO and the quantum efficiency of photodetector which takes the spectral shape and wavelength of scintillation spectra in account, the *LYs* were calculated by 34000 (0.05% Dy), 37000 (0.1% Dy), 48000 (0.5% Dy), 44000 (1.0% Dy). The *LY* of 0.5% Dy-doped GdVO<sub>4</sub> was the best value among the samples and 4 times higher than that of the undoped GdVO<sub>4</sub>[2].



Fig. 1 Scintillation spectra of Dy-doped GdVO4 single crystals.



Fig. 2 Pulse height spectra of Dy-doped GdVO4 single crystals and BGO under  $\gamma$ -ray from 137Cs.

- 1. M. Soharab et al., Appl. Phys. B, 125 84 (2019).
- 2. O. V. Voloshima et al., Nucl. Instrum. Methods Phys. Res., Sect. A, 664 299-303 (2012).
- 3. K. Ichiba et al., Jpn. J. Appl. Phys., 61 062006 (2022).

## Development of NIR emission phosphor for the anti-counterfeiting and certication materials

#### Sun Woog Kim<sup>\*</sup>, Tae Wook Kang

Oral

Advanced Materials Convergence R&D Division, Display Materials Center, Korea Institute of Ceramic Engineering and Technology, Jinju, South Korea \*E-mail: skim80@kicet.re.lr

Keywords: NIR emission, phosphor, certication material

Near-infrared (NIR) emissions are highly important in anti-counterfeiting, secret signals, medical, pharmaceutical, and agricultural industries. As counterfeiting technology for security materials develops, the importance of anti-counterfeiting and authentication technology increases, and new materials need to be developed. Recently, certification materials for waste plastic recycling and application products using eco-friendly Global Recycling Standard (GRS)-based materials are attracting attention. These anti-counterfeiting and certification materials can be applied as NIR materials with high efficiency, high thermal stability, and NIR-excitation to NIR-emission beyond existing UV-excitation.

Among the luminescence ions, Yb3+ has been widely used for developing NIR-emission phosphors due to the simple electronic structure with two multiplets: the 2F5/2 level in the excited state and 2F7/2 level in the ground state. In this study, therefore, we used Yb3+ as the luminescence ion to develop new NIR emission phosphor with high thermal stability for use in the anti-counterfeiting and certication materials. Yb<sup>3+</sup>-doped NIR phosphors were synthesized by the conventional solid-state reaction method. The NIR phosphors showed a broad NIR emission which was attributed to the  ${}^{2}F_{5/2} \rightarrow {}^{2}F_{7/2}$  transition of Yb<sup>3+</sup> ions in NIR region excitation. The excitation spectrum shows two bands in the UV and NIR regions. The thermal degradation behavior of NIR phosphors was measured up to 300 °C. As a result, the NIR phosphor showed excellent thermal stability and recovered close to 100% of the initial emission intensity at room temperature after cooling. Finally, it was confirmed that significant NIR emission to fiber products. These results suggest applicability to advanced anti-counterfeiting and certification applications.

### Figures



Fig. Emission spectra of Ca2ZrSi4O12:Yb3+ phosphor for excitation at 280 and 940 nm

### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the Technology Innovation Program (20021925, Development of Environment-Friendly Security Fiber and Application Products Using Near-Infrared Light Pigments Over 1000 nm) funded by the ministry of Trade Industry & Energy (MOTIE, Korea).

## Red to deep red luminescence of 3d transition metal ions in fluorine-doped lithium aluminates

<u>Yuta Matsushima</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Kazuma Ito<sup>1</sup>, Taiki Sasahara<sup>1</sup>, Yuki Kamada<sup>1</sup>, Hiroko Kominami<sup>2</sup>, Kazuhiko Hara<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Applied Chemistry, Chemical Engineering, and Biochemical Engineering, Yamagata University, Yonezawa, Japan

<sup>2</sup>Faculty of Engineering, Shizuoka University, Hamamatsu, Japan

<sup>3</sup>Research Institute of Electronics, Shizuoka University, Hamamatsu, Japan

\*E-mail: ymatsush@yz.yamagata-u.ac.jp

Oral

Keywords: 3d transition metal ions, deep red luminescence, fluorine, lithium aluminate

Luminescence in the red to near-infrared region between 640 and 2000 nm has attracted attention in applications such as medical diagnosis, health monitoring, agriculture, and night vision; the 3d transition metal ions  $Cr^{3+}$ ,  $Mn^{4+}$ , and  $Fe^{3+}$  can serve as luminescent centers for phosphors in such applications. The luminescence of these 3d transition metal ions is due to d-d transitions; the energy levels of the d orbitals and the probability of the transitions are significantly affected by the local symmetry around the center ion, so the luminescent depend on the combination of the luminescent center ion and the type of host material. We have recently reported phosphors based on fluorine-doped lithium aluminates [1-3]. According to the phase diagram [4], Li<sub>2</sub>O and Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> form several lithium aluminate compounds with different Li/Al ratios. We have focused on LiAlO<sub>2</sub> and LiAl<sub>5</sub>O<sub>8</sub> because they provide both octahedral and tetrahedral substitution sites for  $Cr^{3+}$ ,  $Mn^{4+}$ , and  $Fe^{3+}$  and can be good host materials for each of these cations. Fluorine doping was carried out on these lithium aluminates using LiF as the starting lithium source. Trace amounts of fluorine incorporated into the crystal lattice by substituting oxygen resulted in structural modifications, allowing various emissions in the red to deep red region.

**Figure 1** shows the luminescence of  $Mn^{4+}$ ,  $Cr^{3+}$ , and  $Fe^{3+}$  in LiAlO<sub>2</sub>. LiAlO<sub>2</sub> has several crystallographic polymorphs, and heating in the atmospheric conditions usually yields  $\alpha$ -LiAlO<sub>2</sub> or  $\gamma$ -LiAlO<sub>2</sub>.  $\gamma$ -LiAlO<sub>2</sub> is the high temperature form and has a crystal structure consisting of corner-sharing tetrahedra of AlO<sub>4</sub> and LiO<sub>4</sub>. In contrast,  $\alpha$ -LiAlO<sub>2</sub> has a crystal structure consisting of alternating stacks of edge-sharing AlO<sub>6</sub> and LiO<sub>6</sub> octahedral sheets.  $\alpha$ -LiAlO<sub>2</sub> forms at low temperatures below 600 °C and usually has low crystallinity, so this phase has not been used as a host material for phosphors. The introduction of fluorine stabilized  $\alpha$ -LiAlO<sub>2</sub> with high crystallinity above 800 °C, leading to the new application of this phase in phosphors (**Figure 1**).

We will present the realization of variations in luminescence in the red to deep red region by combining the luminescent center ions  $Mn^{4+}$ ,  $Cr^{3+}$ , and  $Fe^{3+}$  with the host materials lithium aluminates containing a trace amount of structural modifier (fluorine in this case).



Figure 1 Red to deep red luminescence of Mn<sup>4+</sup>, Cr<sup>3+</sup> and Fe<sup>3+</sup> in LiAlO<sub>2</sub>.

#### Acknowledgments

This work is in part based on KAKENHI (20K05658) and the Cooperative Research Project of Research Center for Biomedical Engineering.

- 1. H. Takahashi et al., J. Lumin. 182 (2017) 53.
- 2. R. Kobayashi et al., ECS Trans. 88 (2018) 225.
- 3. Y. Kamada et al., Materials 17 (2024) 338.
- 4. N.S. Kulkarni et al., J. Am. Ceram. Soc. 91 (2008) 4074

## Development of Er-doped Bi<sub>4</sub>Ge<sub>3</sub>O<sub>12</sub> single crystalline scintillators

<u>Kai Okazaki</u>\*, Daisuke Nakauchi, Takumi Kato, Noriaki Kawaguchi, Takayuki Yanagida

Division of Materials Science, Nara Institute of Science and Technology (NAIST), 8916-5 Takayama-Cho Ikoma, Nara 630-0192, Japan \*E-mail: okazaki.kai.of0@ms.naist.jp

Keywords: scintillator, single crystal, near-infrared photons

Scintillators are functional materials that immediately convert ionizing radiation such as Xand  $\gamma$ -rays into thousands of low-energy photons after absorbing the energy of radiations. Scintillators emitting visible photons have been mainly studied up to the present because conventional photodetectors such as photomultiplier tubes have high wavelength sensitivity at 400-600 nm. In recent years, near-infrared (NIR)-emitting scintillators have attracted attention owing to the development of detectors sensitive to the NIR region. With such progress, NIR-scintillators have been gradually developed for bio-imaging and high-dose field monitoring applications [1] owing to their high penetration power with low invasiveness to human soft tissues [2] and the ease to distinguish from Cherenkov light [3]. Despite the high demand of NIR scintillators from applications, the number of reports is still few compared to UV-visible scintillators. In this study, we aimed to explore candidates for scintillators emitting NIR photons that can be applied in practice. X- and  $\gamma$ -rays interaction probabilities of NIR scintillators were improved by using a heavy host material; thus, we focused on Bi- $_4$ Ge<sub>3</sub>O<sub>12</sub> (BGO). As a NIR luminescence center, Er was selected because it can emit photons at 1500–1600 nm owing to electric dipole-forbidden transitions between 4f orbitals [4]. Erdoped BGO single crystals were grown by the Floating zone method, and their photoluminescence and scintillation properties were investigated.

Figure 1 shows the scintillation spectra of Er-doped BGO. Broad emission peaks due to electronic transitions of  $Bi^{3+}$  were observed at 400–600 nm [5]. Sharp emission peaks appeared at 550 and 1550 nm. They originated from 4f–4f transitions of  $Er^{3+}$  [4]. Figure 2 shows the dose-rate relationships of Er-doped BGO. The vertical and horizontal axes were respectively scintillation outputs in NIR regions and irradiated dose rate. The lower detection limit was 6 mGy/h confirmed by all the prepared samples. The value was superior to those of Nd-doped BGO measured with the same setup [6].



Fig. 1. Scintillation spectra of Er-doped  $Bi_4Ge_3O_{12}$ .



Fig. 2. Dose-rate relationships of Er-doped Bi<sub>4</sub>Ge<sub>3</sub>O<sub>12</sub>.

- 1. E. Takada et al., J. Nucl. Sci. Technol., 36 (1999) 641.
- 2. Y.Y. Huang et al., Dose Response, 7 (2009) 358.
- 3. P.A. Čerenkov, Phys. Rev., 52 (1937) 378.
- 4. M.J. Weber and R.R. Monchamp, J. Appl. Phys., 44 (1973) 5495.
- 5. M. Pokhrel et al., J. Mater. Chem. C, 3 (2015) 11486.
- 6. K. Okazaki et al., J. Materi. Sci.: Materials in Electronics, 32 (2021) 21677.

## T4.6 MULTIFUNCTIONAL COATINGS FOR ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL APPLICATIONS APPLICATIONS

## Microstructural investigations on aerosol-deposited calcium cobaltite films revealing the outstandig thermoelectric properties and the deposition mechanism

## Daniel Paulus<sup>\*</sup>, Daniela Schönauer-Kamin, Ralf Moos

Department of Functional Materials, University of Bayreuth, Bayreuth, Germany \*E-mail: functional.materials@uni-bayreuth.de

**Keywords**: powder aerosol deposition, thermoelectric material, microstructure, misfit-layered oxides, film formation, deposition mechanism

Powder aerosol deposition (PAD) is a coating process that can be used to produce ceramic coatings at room temperature. In this process, powder aerosols generated in an aerosol generator are accelerated through a nozzle into a vacuum chamber. In the vacuum chamber, the ceramic particles hit a substrate and form a dense layer of a nanocrystalline ceramic.

This process works with most technical ceramics such as aluminum oxide or yttria-stabilized zirconia (YSZ). It is also possible to produce films of functional ceramics [1]. Examples are the cathode active material nickel manganese cobalt oxide (NMC), ion conductors such as sodium super ionic conducters (NASICON) or lithium lantanum zirconium oxide (LLZO), or thermoelectric materials bismuth telluride, copper-iron delafossite or the misfit-layered oxide calcium cobaltite  $Ca_3Co_4O_9$  (CCO)[2]. The latter are particularly notable for their very high deposition rate in the PAD process.

In this work, CCO powder is prepared via the mixed oxide route and films are produced by the powder aerosol deposition method. The microstructure of these films is investigated by scanning electron microscopy (SEM) and X-ray diffraction (XRD) and these results are correlated with the resulting thermoelectric properties (Seebeck coefficient and electrical conductivity).

The results show that the films do not have a typical PAD microstructure, but that the crystals are significantly larger and platelet-like shaped. XRD investigations confirma strong fiber texture of the PAD-CCO films.

The fiber texture is expressed in the fact that the vast majority of crystals are oriented with the [001] direction perpendicular to the substrate plane. This explains the comparatively high electrical conductivity and the comparatively high Seebeck coefficient of the CCO-PAD film investigated in-plane direction, as the electrical conductivity in CCO crystals in the (001) plane is many times higher than perpendicular to it.

Finally, considerations on the possible deposition mechanism for materials with layered and misfitted crystal structure are presented, through which the texture of the films is achieved.

541

### Acknowledgments

The authors are indebted to the department of metals and alloys (Prof. Uwe Glatzel) of the University of Bayreuth for providing the X-ray diffractometer and the Bavarian Polymer Institute (BPI) for the SEM measurements.

- D. Hanft, J. Exner, M. Schubert, T. Stöcker, P. Fuierer, R. Moos, An Overview of the Aerosol Deposition Method: Process Fundamentals and New Trends in Materials, J. Ceram. Sci. Technol. (Journal of Ceramic Science and Technology) 6 (2015) 147–182. https://doi.org/10.4416/JCST2015-00018
- A.C. Masset, C. Michel, A. Maignan, M. Hervieu, O. Toulemonde, F. Studer, B. Raveau, J. Hejtmanek, Misfit-layered cobaltite with an anisotropic giant magnetoresistance: Ca3Co4O9, Phys. Rev. B 62 (2000) 166–175. https://doi.org/10.1103/PhysRevB.62.166

## Challenges of metallic coatings from failure analysis perspective in automotive industry

### Simona Pop\*, Robert Grasin

Robert Bosch Ltd, Cluj-Napoca, Romania \*E-mail: simona-dorina.pop@ro.bosch.com

Keywords: Sn coating, electrochemical migration, intermetallic compounds, whiskers

Metallic coatings (e.g. Sn based) of design elements used in electronic control units (ECUs) built for automotive industry play an essential role with respect to their impact on the electrical functionality and performance. Depending on the environmental conditions, various challenges in terms of failure modes and processes occur either on coating surface, such as electrochemical migration (ECM) and whiskers growth or at coating interface like the growth of intermetallic compounds (IMCs). Under humidity conditions, the movement of metal ions between two electrods in an electrical field through moisture or any other liquid electrolyte can lead to ECM, which causes further different failure modes like corrosion/oxidation of metals and formation of dendrites and precipitates. On the other hand, whiskers, known as metallic protrusions that grow spontaneously on the coating surface during storage or use, do not require any electrical field for their growth, therefore they can not be confused with products of ECM. In contrast to whiskers and ECM, IMCs develop at the metallic interfaces (e.g. Cu/Sn, Ni/Sn) via diffusion processes of the atoms depending on different temperature conditions and time. For instance, IMCs growth leads to voids formation and micro-structural coarsening while an increased IMCs layer thickness results in an increased electrical resistance and consequently low currents flow. Thus, this work presents selective results with typical failures related in particular to Sn coatings of different design elements, which were characterized by means of optical microscopy, scanning electron microscopy (SEM) and energy dispersive spectroscopy (EDS) methods.

## Powder aerosol deposited $Na_3V_2(PO_4)_3/C$ composite cathode films for next generation of energy storage systems

<u>Mutlucan Sozak<sup>1\*</sup>, Sofie Knies<sup>2</sup>, Jaroslaw Kita<sup>1,</sup> Matteo Bianchini<sup>2</sup>, Ralf Moos<sup>1</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Functional Materials, University of Bayreuth, Bayreuth, Germany <sup>2</sup>Bavarian Center for Battery Technology (BayBatt), University of Bayreuth, Bayreuth, Germany \*E-mail: functional.materials@uni-bayreuth.de

Keywords: aerosol deposition, sodium vanadium phospate, post-lithium batteries

The increasing demand for lithium and the local distribution of its sources on the Earth crust led to drastically increased prices of its resources. Therefore, researchers worldwide are in search of low-cost alternatives to state-of-the-art Li-ion battery architectures. Sodium batteries with sodium vanadium phosphate (NVP) electrodes have gained attention as a promising solution due to affordability, structural stability, high ionic conductivity, and theoretical energy density.

Dense films of functional materials on a wide variety of substrates can be fabricated directly at room temperature by the so-called powder aerosol deposition (PAD) method. Therefore, this unique spray coating method enables the deposition of composite cathode active materials on current collectors ensuring a tight contact in a relatively short processing time.

In the current work, we synthesized NVP/C composited cathode powders using the mixed oxide technique. The calcined powders were characterized by X-ray diffraction analyses including Rietveld refinement. The carbon content of the synthesized powder was determined by thermo gravimetric analysis (TGA).

The powders with the desired phase were sprayed on aluminum substrates via PAD to serves as cathodes. In addition, for comparison, a part of the powder was used for producing tape-casted cathodes. Coin cells of both cathodes were assembled (using 1M NaPF6 in EC:EMC 30:70 wt.% as an electrolyte, Whatman GF/B as a separator, and Na metal as the anode) and their cycling performances were compared. The effect of annealing on the capacity of PAD-produced cathode films was also investigated.

Our results demonstrate the successful deposition of composite cathode active materials on aluminum substrates and provide a comparative study to conventional tape casting. This work may pave the way for an easier production of low-cost and high performance electrodes for post-lithium batteries.

## T4.7 MATERIALS FOR EXTREME ENVIRONMENTS: ULTRAHIGH TEMPERATURE CERAMICS (UHTCS) AND NANO-LAMINATED TERNARY CARBIDES AND NITRIDES (MAX PHASES) APPLICATIONS

## Atomic scale morphology of high-entropy metal carbides

Moon J. Kim<sup>1\*</sup>, Xiangyu Zhu<sup>2</sup>, Qingxiao Wang<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Materials Science and Engineering, University of Texas at Dallas, Richardson, USA <sup>2</sup>Texas Instruments Inc., Dallas, USA <sup>3</sup>Materials Science and Engineering, KAUST, Thuwal, Saudi Arabia <sup>\*</sup>E-mail: moonkim@utdallas.edu

Keywords: high-entropy, atomic-scale STEM characterization, MAX

Mixing multiple transition metals opened a new way to explore the attainable chemistries and led to the discovery of new properties of the MAX & MXene family. Compared with a single transition metal composition, multiple principal elements increased system configurational entropy and decreased the total free energy, stabilizing the material. It has been reported that high entropy (HE) MXene shows higher conductivity, charge storage capacity, and catalytic ability. Our latest result indicates that HE MAX has superior mechanical properties compared to single transition metal MAX. The unprecedented physicochemical properties are not only an 'average' result of a combination of multiple principal elements but also excess quantities owing to complex synergetic mechanisms among multiple principal elements, such as high mixing entropy, local lattice distortion, sluggish diffusion, and cocktail effect.

This work introduces the atomic-resolution scanning/transmission electron microscopy (S/TEM) characterization of HE MXene & MAX materials and provides fundamental information on structural & chemical configuration at the atomic scale. The STEM shows a hexagonal crystal structure of the MAX phase (Figure 1), and stress analysis indicates a strong correlation between lattice distortion and configurational entropy. Atomic resolution energy dispersive X-ray spectroscopy (EDS) mapping shows the detailed chemical arrangement of multiple transition metals. High-angle annular dark field (HAADF) Z-contrast imaging shows the top-down view of the HE MXene lattice and defect configuration. The apparent atoms exhibit a stochastic arranged variation in brightness, revealing the random multiple principal atomic occupancies. Our result promotes a deeper understanding of the complex mechanism among multicomponent HE MAX & MXene materials.



Figure 1. Atomic-resolution Z-contrast STEM images of HE-MAX (TiZrNbTa)2AlC.

### Acknowledgments

This work is partially supported by the Louis Beecherl Jr. Endowment funds.

## Influence of boron concentration on oxidation behavior of magnetron sputtered Hf-Al-B thin films

<u>Sameer Aman Salman</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Pauline Kümmerl<sup>1</sup>, Sebastian Lellig<sup>1,2</sup>, Devi Janani Ramesh<sup>1</sup>, Marcus Hans<sup>1</sup>, Daniel Primetzhofer<sup>3</sup>, Johann Michler<sup>2</sup>, Jochen M. Schneider<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Materials Chemistry, RWTH Aachen University, Kopernikusstr. 10, D-52074 Aachen, Germany <sup>2</sup>Empa, Swiss Federal Laboratories for Materials Science and Technology, Laboratory for Mechanics of Materials and Nanostructures, Feuerwerkerstr. 39, CH-3602 Thun, Switzerland <sup>3</sup>Department of Physics and Astronomy, Uppsala University, Lägerhyddsvägen 1, S-75120 Uppsala, Sweden

\*E-mail: salman@mch.rwth-aachen.de

Keywords: hafnium diboride, oxidation, coatings, magnetron sputtering

The isothermal oxidation behavior of single-phase solid solution Hf-Al-B coatings with compositions  $Hf_{0.13}Al_{0.23}B_{0.64}$  and  $Hf_{0.13}Al_{0.18}B_{0.69}$  at 700 °C for up to 8 h was studied. Both coatings were deposited using one compound  $HfB_2$  and  $AlB_2$  target along with an elemental Al target via direct current magnetron sputtering (DCMS). The power supplied to the latter was varied to change the B (and Al) concentration. While both films grew with columnar grains, the Bpoor film was under-dense at the column boundaries. The B-rich film was finer-grained and dense with no visible porosity, showing a 44% higher Young's modulus and 100% higher hardness compared to the B-poor film.

Despite the morphological differences, the oxidation behavior of both films was indistinguishable. Passivating, dense, and X-ray amorphous oxide scales of thicknesses  $33 \pm 9$  nm in the B-poor coating and  $31 \pm 9$  nm in the B-rich coating, formed after 8 h at 700 °C. The scales contained roughly 30 at.% Al, 20 at.% B and 10 at.% Hf, and the growth kinetics at 700 °C followed a sub-cubic rate.

The oxidation behavior at 700 °C contrasts with isostructural Ti-Al-B coatings<sup>[1]</sup>, in which overstoichiometric B concentrations lead to the formation of non-passivating oxide scales. The decelerated oxidation kinetics in overstoichiometric Hf-Al-B is attributed to the relatively limited thermal mobility at 700 °C of heavier Hf in comparison to Ti in the oxide scale, which also hinders the formation of crystalline phases.

## References

Kashani, Amir Hossein Navidi, et al. "Synthesis and oxidation behavior of Ti0. 35Al0. 65By (y= 1.7– 2.4) coatings." Surface and Coatings Technology 442 (2022): 128190.

## T4.8 Design, Processing, and Applications of Nanolaminated Ternary Transition Metal Carbides/Nitrides/Borides and MXenes and Mbenes

## Magnetocaloric properties of bulk Fe<sub>2</sub>AlB<sub>2</sub> synthesized by reactive hot isostatic pressing

### Hugo da Igreja<sup>1\*</sup>, Sophie Tencé<sup>2</sup>, Patrick chartier<sup>1</sup>, Sylvain Dubois<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institut Pprime, Université de Poitiers-CNRS-ENSMA, UPR 3346, Poitiers, France <sup>2</sup>Institut de Chimie de la Matière Condensée de Bordeaux, Pessac, France \*E-mail: hugo.da.igreja@univ-poitiers.fr

Keywords: Fe2AlB2, MAB phases, magnetocaloric effect, hot isostatic pressing, magnetic properties

This study outlines a new single-step synthesis of Fe<sub>2</sub>AlB<sub>2</sub> at 1150°C for 4 h using the hot isostatic pressing (HIPing) technique. The material is characterized using microscopy and XRD to be largely in single phase. The suggested metallographic etching (0.005 M NaOH + 0.01 m)M NaOCl solution) revealed the grain boundaries and enabled the vizualization of predominant equiaxial Fe<sub>2</sub>AlB<sub>2</sub> grains (~30 µm) alongside of a few unreacted boron particles and Al-rich zones located at grain boundaries. Magnetocaloric properties were assessed through isothermal magnetic field sweeps and heat capacity measurements, yielding similar results. The Gaussian fit of the average results of these two methods led in an impressive isothermal entropy change of 2.9 J/kg.K at 2 T and 6.8 J/kg.K at 5 T, with corresponding adiabatic temperature changes of 1.1 K and 2.8 K at 2 T and 5 T, respectively. Comparatively, the Fe<sub>2</sub>AlB<sub>2</sub> HIPed sample exhibited slightly lower results (~15%) than other synthesis reported in the literature. However, regarding studies lacking post-treatments (acid etching and annealing) or doping the outcomes are comparable. In a broader context, the values were reduced than those of well-known first-order transition (FOMT) giant magnetocaloric effect (GMCE) materials with  $T_c$  in the same range such as  $Gd_5Si_2Ge_2$  [1] and MnFe(P, Si, B) systems [2]. Moreover, considering the GMCE materials undergoing a second-order phase transition (SOMP) such as ErMn<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub> [3] and GdMnO<sub>3</sub> [4], again Fe<sub>2</sub>AlB<sub>2</sub> presented a weak performance. In this former case, however, the transition temperatures are far and less than room temperature (<160 K). Nevertheless, compared to other SOMT materials exhibiting transitions close to room temperature, the HIPed Fe<sub>2</sub>AlB<sub>2</sub> demonstrated equivalent values while boasting an abundant and costless chemical composition. Fe<sub>2</sub>AlB<sub>2</sub> stands out as a promising material for environmentally friendly magnetocaloric cooling due to its rare-earth-free composition and near room temperature second-order magnetic transition. Additionally, the HIPing method allows for a straightforward single-step synthesis process, shaping Fe<sub>2</sub>AlB<sub>2</sub> into its final form without additional manufacturing steps. These characteristics render the HIPed Fe<sub>2</sub>AlB<sub>2</sub> an appealing and cost-effective choice for magnetic refrigeration applications, offering enhanced energy efficiency and a simplified manufacturing process for future refrigeration technologies.

## Acknowledgments

The authors thank the Ministère de l'Enseignement Supérieur et de la Recherche and the French government program "Investissements d'Avenir" (EUR INTREE, reference ANR-18-EURE-0010 and LA-BEX INTERACTIFS, reference ANR-11-LABEX-0017-01).

- V.K. Pecharsky, Jr. Gschneidner K.A., Giant Magnetocaloric Effect in Gd5(Si2Ge2), Phys. Rev. Lett. 78 (1997) 4494–497. https://doi.org/10.1103/PhysRevLett.78.4494.
- F. Guillou, G. Porcari, H. Yibole, N. van Dijk, E. Brück, Taming the First-Order Transition in Giant Magnetocaloric Materials, Advanced Materials 26 (2014) 2671–2675. https://doi.org/10.1002/ adma.201304788
- L. Li, K. Nishimura, W.D. Hutchison, Z. Qian, D. Huo, T. NamiKi, Giant reversible magnetocaloric effect in ErMn2Si2 compound with a second order magnetic phase transition, Applied Physics Letters 100 (2012) 152403. https://doi.org/10.1063/1.4704155
- A.A. Wagh, K.G. Suresh, P.S.A. Kumar, S. Elizabeth, Low temperature giant magnetocaloric effect in multiferroic GdMnO3 single crystals, J. Phys. D: Appl. Phys. 48 (2015) 135001. https://doi. org/10.1088/0022-3727/48/13/135001

## Innovative synthesis approaches to prepare new solid-solution MAX phases

#### <u>Niels Kubitza<sup>1\*</sup></u>, Christina Birkel<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Chemistry, Technische Universität Darmstadt, 64287 Darmstadt, Germany <sup>2</sup>School of Molecular Sciences, Arizona State University, 85282 Tempe, USA \*E-mail: niels.kubitza@tu-darmstadt.de

Keywords: MAX phases, microwave heating, hybrid solid-state methods, (carbo)nitrides, magnetism

The world of MAX phases has rapidly evolved over the recent years and now comprises more than 340 different phases.<sup>1</sup> A big part of this number is represented by solid-solution MAX phases, which enable to specifically tune and influence the materials properties of the respective parent phases. However, still, most of the general synthesis approaches of MAX phase compounds are mainly based on traditional solid-state preparation techniques exhibiting significant drawbacks regarding their energy- and time efficiency. One promising approach to circumvent these drawbacks is to use microwave heating due to a direct interaction of the reactants with the electromagnetic radiation. This is exemplarily shown with the synthesis of a new *M*-site solid-solution system  $(V_{1,x}Cr_x)_2GaC$  ( $0 \le x \le 1$ ). Besides the synthesis, magnetic measurements have revealed that this system almost matches the Stoner criterion at x = 0.80. These findings provide a necessary starting point for the challenging synthesis of new magnetically ordered MAX phases.<sup>2</sup>

While carbide-based *M*-site solid-solution phases form the biggest part of the current reported solid-solution members, *X*-site solid-solution phases are a rare species. For instance, less than ten phases are represented by carbonitride MAX phases and less than twenty phases are nitrides in general. These low numbers can be related to a more demanding synthesis procedure due to the high stability and low diffusion rate of nitrogen-containing compounds. However, by combining non-conventional solid-state methods, such as the liquid ammonia method, or the so-called "urea-glass method", with conventional solid-state preparation techniques, it is possible to approach the field of nitrogen-containing MAX phases using an efficient two-step synthesis process.<sup>3</sup> This has enabled the synthesis of new materials such as  $V_2GaC_{1-x}N_x$ ,  $Cr_2GaC_{1-x}N_x$ , and  $V_2GeC_{1-x}N_x$ , respectively. Particularly, the latter example impressively shows how the nitrogen content in the MAX phase can specifically influence materials properties, such as magnetism or transport behavior, and thus strongly supports the potential of these types of materials.

#### Acknowledgments

This work has been supported by the Deutsche Forschungsgemeinschaft (DFG, German Research Foundation) within CRC/TRR 270 (Project-ID 405553726).

- 1. Dahlqvist, M.; Barsoum, M. W.; Rosen, J. MAX Phases Past, Present, and Future. *Mater. Today* **2023**, in press.
- Kubitza, N.; Xie, R.; Tarasov, I.; Shen, C.; Zhang, H.; Wiedwald, U.; Birkel, C. S. Microwave-Assisted Synthesis of the New Solid-Solution (V<sub>1-x</sub>Cr<sub>x</sub>)<sub>2</sub>GaC (0≤x≤1), a Pauli Paramagnet Almost Matching the Stoner Criterion for x = 0.80. *Chem. Mater.* 2023, *35* (11), 4427–4434.
- Kubitza, N.; Reitz, A.; Zieschang, A.-M.; Pazniak, H.; Albert, B.; Kalha, C.; Schlueter, C.; Regoutz, A.; Wiedwald, U.; Birkel, C. S. From MAX Phase Carbides to Nitrides: Synthesis of V<sub>2</sub>GaC, V<sub>2</sub>GaN, and the Carbonitride V<sub>2</sub>GaC<sub>1-x</sub>N<sub>x</sub>. *Inorg. Chem.* **2022**, *61* (28), 10634–10641.

## Comparative oxidation behavior of columnar and equiaxed Cr<sub>2</sub>AlC coatings

<u>Devi Janani Ramesh</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Marcus Hans<sup>1</sup>, Sameer Aman Salman<sup>1</sup>, Sebastian Lellig<sup>1,2</sup>, Daniel Primetzofer<sup>3</sup>, Johann Michler<sup>2</sup>, Jochen M. Schneider<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Materials Chemistry, RWTH Aachen University, Aachen, Germany

<sup>2</sup>Empa, Swiss Federal Laboratories for Materials Science and Technology, Laboratory for Mechanics of Materials and Nanostructures, Thun, Switzerland

<sup>3</sup>Department of Physics and Astronomy, Uppsala University, Uppsala, Sweden

\*E-mail: ramesh@mch.rwth-aachen.de

Keywords: MAX phase, oxidation, alumina, microstructure

The oxidation behavior of Cr,AlC coatings with columnar and equiaxed grain morphologies is studied. Synthesis of phase pure Cr<sub>3</sub>AlC coatings of identical thickness with distinct grain morphologies are carried out by magnetron sputtering. The coatings are oxidized in ambient air up to 990 °C and held for 1, 2 and 3 hours. The oxidation protocol includes a 33-minute transient oxidation phase during the initial heating of the furnace from room temperature to 990 °C. The oxide scale growth in the coatings with equiaxed grain morphology is observed to follow the parabolic law. A  $259 \pm 62$  nm thick oxide scale is measured after 3 h of oxidation. In contrast, coatings with a columnar structure exhibit accelerated oxide scale growth, resulting in the formation of a thicker oxide layer measuring  $535 \pm 107$  nm after 3 hours of oxidation, which is approximately twice as thick as that on equiaxed coatings. The difference in the oxidation behavior could be traced back to the varied oxide phase formation during the transient oxidation phase. In the equiaxed structured coatings, direct nucleation of the passivating  $\alpha$ -(Al,Cr)<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> occurs, and the further growth of the oxide is controlled by the oxygen diffusion via the oxide grain boundaries. In the case of columnar structured coatings, fast diffusion of Al facilitated by the short-circuit diffusion paths offered by the columnar grain boundaries leads to the formation of pure Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>2</sub> scale. During the transient oxidation, the pure Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> crystallizes into metastable alumina polymorphs, transforming to  $\alpha$ -Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> during the subsequent isothermal oxidation.

## T4.9 CERAMIC INTEGRATION TECHNOLOGIES FOR ENERGY AND Environmental Applications

## Design and integration of novel sodium-zinc batteries

### Andrea Baggio\*, Fabiana D'Isanto, Milena Salvo, Federico Smeacetto

Department of Applied Science and Technology - DISAT, Politecnico di Torino, Turin, Italy \*E-mail: andrea.baggio@polito.it

Keywords: joining, glass, glass-ceramic, high temperature, sodium-zinc batteries

The SOLSTICE project (European Union's Horizon 2020, grant agreement No 963599, www.solstice-battery.eu) has developed two different designs of Sodium-Zinc batteries. One design is composed of Solid Electrolyte Cells (SECs) based on the ZEBRA technology and operates at approximately 300°C. The other design is composed of All Liquid Cells (ALCs) which are expected to operate at around 600°C and to withstand corrosive environments. For both technologies, and high-temperature devices in general, sealing the cell pack is a challenging and crucial step. This presentation will focus on the process for designing, characterizing, and optimizing the sealing process for both configurations of Na-Zn cells. The potential of glass and glass-ceramic sealants in high-temperature and harsh environments will also be addressed.

In particular, for the SEC a modified commercial glass and an original silica-free glass were extensively characterized through thermal, chemical, and morphological analyses. The optimized compositions were then applied to join  $\alpha$ - and  $\beta$ -alumina components in the cells, resulting in a lower sealing process temperature compared to the state-of-the-art solution. The sealant deposition process has been automated through robocasting, and the ink recipe has been optimized for this process. The cell assembled using the designed solutions was tested under operating conditions.

Considering the ALC, where a metal-to-ceramic joining is foreseen, different glass ceramic solutions were considered, along with the surface modification of the metallic component, to enhance the compatibility with the glass ceramic sealants. Following the optimization of the sealing process, the initial cell prototypes were produced and submitted to both electrochemical characterization and post-mortem analysis.

### Acknowledgments

This work is part of the "SOLSTICE" project (Sodium-Zinc molten salt batteries for low-cost stationary storage) which received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation program under grant agreement No 963599.

## Ceramic to metal joining for high temperature oxygen separation membrane applications

<u>Stefano De La Pierre</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Francesco Da Prato<sup>1</sup>, Paolo Fedeli<sup>2</sup>, Angelo Cavaliere<sup>2</sup>, Andrea Cammi<sup>2</sup>, Alessandro Benelli<sup>1</sup>, Simone Anelli<sup>1</sup>, Federico Smeacetto<sup>1</sup>, Francesca Drago<sup>2</sup>, Monica Ferraris<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Politecnico di Torino, Department of Applied Science and Technology – DISAT, Torino, Italy <sup>2</sup>Ricerca sul Sistema Energetico S.p.A. – RSE, Materials and Generation Technologies Department (TGM), Milano, Italy <sup>\*</sup>E-mail: stefano.delapierre@polito.it

Keywords: joining, sealant, glass-ceramic, Oxygen Transport Membranes, ceramic, metal

The integration of Oxygen Transport Membranes (OTMs) in industrial processes can lead to energetic and economic advantages, but proof of concept membrane modules are highly necessary to demonstrate the feasibility of this technology.

This study identifies innovative materials to be used to join ceramics to metals, with a specific focus on joining materials for the integration of OTMs in metallic modules for high temperature applications.

Perovskite-based membranes have been selected for the oxygen separation, since they can ensure robustness, reliability and resistance in high temperature operation.

Glass-ceramic joining materials (or sealants) are widely employed in the energy production sector, as they avoid gas mixing and consequent device failure. The sealants are characterized by high gas tightness, thermo-chemical and thermo-mechanical compatibility with metallic and ceramic materials, as well as stability in the relevant operating conditions (800-950 °C, thousand hours).

The housing of the membrane component is a metallic case joined to the ceramic membrane employing custom developed glass-ceramic sealants, that exhibited a remarkable thermo-chemical compatibility both with metal and ceramic.

In this work is presented the development and high temperature characterization carried out on glass-ceramic sealants selected to join ceramic membranes (LSCF) to the metallic part.

First of all the glass ceramics have been produced and analyzed to evaluate their thermal properties as sealant materials for the application. Then glass-caramic pastes have been developed and tested, to be employed in a robocasting deposition technique. The robocasting deposition has been implemented to overcome some issues related to the slurry deposition of the sealant.

Furthermore the thermo-mechanical compatibility of the selected sealants, with the ceramic membrane and the metallic case, has been tested, after joining, with X-ray thermography analysis and SEM observation of the interfaces. In addition to this, the produced joints have been subjected to relevant condition ageing tests (800-950°C, 1 to 3 weeks) and microstructurally analyzed afterward. In the end, gas tightness tests of the joints, and scale-up to a final module configuration, have also been performed. As a conclusion, the selected glass-ceramic proved to be a good candidate to join ceramic membranes to metal case for Oxygen Transport Membrane applications.

### References

Drago, F. et al. Development of a Membrane Module Prototype for Oxygen Separation in Industrial Applications. Membranes 2022, 12, 167. https://doi.org/10.3390/membranes12020167

## T4.10 Environmental Friendly and Energy Efficient Manufacturing Routes for the Production Root Technology Applications

## Development of smart metal powder manufacturing system with an add-on module

Hyeonsik Kim<sup>1,2</sup>, Yongbum Kwon<sup>1,2</sup>, Inhee Cho<sup>1,2\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Korea National Institute of Rare Metals (KORAM), Incheon, South Korea <sup>2</sup>Korea Institute of Industrial Technology (KITECH), Incheon, South Korea \*E-mail: cdcih@kitech.re.kr

Keywords: Root technology, AI-based manufacturing, add-on modules, gas atomizing system

Korean goverment adressed the importance of advanced manufacturing platform utilizing artificial intelligence (AI) not only for enhancing the production efficiency, but also for reducing the expensive labor cost. Unfortunately, the Root industry, which supply a valuable products to the Korean industry i.e. Samsung Electronics, meets a great deal of challenges in digital transfromation due to its low budget for revolutionizing their own infrastructure. Among them, the gas atomizing system, which produces fine metal powder, suffered both low-efficieny and labor-intensive works due to its complex equipment. Particulary, the coarse and massive working condition in small and medium size company hinders the field workers to digitization of their process, thus the digitally recording know-how in operating steps remains to be unsolved. Ironically, as the equipment become more productive, their field work dependency became considerable, which fails to transforming into the next-generation manufactures.

Here, we suggested the digitiation process of gas atomizaing system by the sensors and add-on modules. The add-on modules, which is data collecting system, captured the step-bystep data logging by controlling their process, the operating condition has been successfully logged during operation. Furthermore, we also developed the on-line particle size analyzing (on-line PSA) system for in-situ production condition of the fine metal powder. Thus, the add-on modules, which collapsed both inputs(the preparation step) and outputs(metal powder diameters and variables etc.) process could be transformed into the AI-data sets in real-time condition, where the field workers forecasts and analyze their own operating condition. As an example, one company has been benefited from our works, showing their high accuracy by add-on modules data.

This experimental and theoretical research would pave the way not only for the customerdemand powder dimension in high quality, but also for the high-efficient and the profitable powder production in the relative industry.

## Innovative synthesis of hierarchical porous nano ceramic structures using organic template and maximization of active sites

Yong Jung Kwon

Functional Materials & Components R&D group, Korea Institute of Industrial Technology, Gangneung, Korea E-mail: kwonyj2@kitech.re.kr

Keywords: porous ceramic, hierarchical porous structure, active site

In this study, we present an innovative synthesis method for hierarchical porous nano ceramic structures using an organic template. Initially, utilizing naturally hierarchical porous structures of the organic template, ceramic thin films of sub-nanometer thickness are deposited onto the surface of the organic template using ALD (Atomic Layer Deposition) technique. Subsequently, atmospheric annealing decomposes the organic template while simultaneously forming nano-sized pores within the ceramic thin film of sub-nanometer thickness. This straightforward method enables the synthesis of hierarchical porous nano ceramic structures. The synthesized nanostructures were characterized using various analytical techniques, including X-ray diffraction (XRD), scanning electron microscopy (SEM), and transmission electron microscopy (TEM). The results indicate that the synthesized ceramic nanostructures exhibit hierarchical morphology with high crystallinity and purity.

Moreover, taking advantage of the exposed surfaces of the synthesized nanostructures, their catalytic properties were evaluated. The results demonstrate excellent catalytic properties with high sensitivity. The outstanding catalytic properties of the synthesized nanostructures are attributed to their hierarchical morphology, which provides a large surface area and a high number of active sites for target.

Overall, the results of this study showcase the potential of hierarchical porous nanostructures. The innovative synthesis method using organic templates offers a promising approach for the large-scale production of nanostructures with high exposed surface areas.

555

## Development of a single-step process for cemented carbide powder fabrication using self-propagating synthesis method with carbonization/ reduction

JaeJin Sim\*, YoungKwan Lee, GeeHyuk Lee, YongYeon You, MiHye Lee, DongHyun Lee

Korea National Institute of Rare Metal, Korea Institute of Industrial Technology, Incheon, South Korea \*E-mail: simjae@kitech.re.kr

**Keywords**: cemented carbides, self-propagating synthesis, metal carburation, metal reduction, ceramic powder

Selection of appropriate tool materials in manufacturing and machining is essential for enhancing product quality, increasing productivity, cost reduction, and achieving a more efficient competitiveness. Key requirements for tool materials include wear resistance, hardness, and high-temperature stability, which are crucial properties for tool performance. Therefore, WC-based cemented carbides are widely utilized, and WC-Co alloys (WC-Co, WC-TiC-Co, WC-TiC-TaC-Co) are predominantly used in cutting, excavation, and wear-resistant tools due to their mechanical properties. TaC is commonly used in WC-Co alloys as a particle growth inhibitor, offering high melting point, high strength, excellent electrical conductivity, and resistance to oxidation.

Self-propagating synthesis method was employed to manufacture WC and TaC materials. The self-propagating synthesis method utilizes the exothermic heat of reactants without external energy supply to form desired compounds in a short reaction time. This method offers advantages such as high purity of products, low production cost, simple process, and high thermal efficiency. Therefore, this study investigated the evaluation of properties and development of a single-step process for cemented carbide powder fabrication using selfpropagating synthesis method.

The raw materials used in this study included WO<sub>3</sub> with a purity of 98.15% and a particle size of 41.24  $\mu$ m, Ta with a purity of 98.88% and a particle size of 8.91  $\mu$ m, Mg as the reducing agent with a purity of 98% and a particle size of 35.66  $\mu$ m, and Black carbon as carbon source. Subsequently, the process of sample mixing, shaping, synthesis, and post-treatment was conducted to carry out the self-propagating synthesis process.

Prior to the self-propagating synthesis experiment, thermodynamic calculations such as adiabatic temperature and ignition temperature were performed using HSC Chemistry program. The experimental variables were set as the molar ratio of Black carbon for WC and the pressure of final product for TaC to examine their effects on the properties. WC monoclinic phase was confirmed under the condition of WO<sub>3</sub>+3Mg+3C after acid treatment, with a purity and particle size analyzed to be 96.59% and 12.24  $\mu$ m, respectively. TaC monoclinic phase was observed without post-treatment under the condition of Ta + C, with a purity and particle size analyzed to be 99.3% and 1.242  $\mu$ m, respectively, surpassing the properties of commercial powders. Both materials were manufactured to commercial powder level using the self-propagating synthesis method, which utilizes the metal carburation/reduction reaction as a single process.

## Polymer-Assisted Deposition of Al-doped ${\rm HfO}_2$ high-k Dielectric Thin Films

## Gyeongbae Park

Functional Materials and Components Group, Korea Institute of Industrial Technology, Gangneung, South Korea \*E-mail: gpark@kitech.re.kr

Keywords: polymer-assisted deposition, Al-doped HfO2, high-k, dielectric

As transistors scale down, demands for high-k dielectric materials have increased. Among various high-k dielectric materials,  $HfO_2$  have been considered as a promising material due to its large band gap, high dielectric constant, and excellent physical/chemical stability. Although several cost-effective solution-based deposition methods have been developed, their dielectric performances are inferior to those obtained by vacuum processes (e.g., atomic layer deposition, sputtering). This study demonstrates a solution-processed polymer-assisted deposition (PAD) of high-k Al-doped  $HfO_2$  thin films exhibiting remarkable dielectric properties. The PAD ensures the control of film thickness ( $\geq 3$  nm) and even Al distribution in the entire thin film. The key is HCl-mediated coordination of metal precursor and polymer. Thorough analysis on the structure and chemical composition of the dielectric layer is carried out. It is found that the phase transition from monoclinic phase to a mixture of tetragonal and amorphous phases results in excellent dielectric constant of 30.2 with a high areal capacitance (674 nF cm<sup>-2</sup> at 1.0 kHz), a low leakage current ( $3.3 \times 10^{-9}$  A cm<sup>-2</sup> at 2.0 MV cm<sup>-1</sup>), and a high breakdown voltage (7.7 V).

## Oxidation behavior of NdFeB magnet scraps under selective oxidation combined with roasting

#### Kwangsuk Park<sup>1\*</sup>, Bosung Seo<sup>1</sup>, Hyung-gi Park<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Korea Institute of Industrial Technology, Gangneung-Si, Gangwon-Do, 25440, South Korea \*E-mail: kpark63@kitech.re.kr

Keywords: NdFeB permanet magent, rare earth elements, recycling, selective oxidation, selective leaching

Since the advent of NdFeB magnets in 1984, their usage has prevailed in the field of permanent magnets by replacing existing Sm-Co permanent magnets due to their outstanding magnetic properties. In addition, big growth in electric vehicles and wind power industries has boosted their usage, concerning supply risk of rare earth elements such as Nd, Dy and Tb as Nd permanet magnets consume nearly 22 % of rare earth oxides produced all over world. However, the concentrated characteristic of REEs in the magnets, at leat 20 wt% REEs could solve the supply risk through recycling spent magnets.

In this study, special heat treatment, namely selective oxidation was introduced to make only REEs elements in the spent magnet oxidized. Based on Pourbaix diagram, Nd<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> and Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> preferred for the selective leaching and it is common to apply roasting in air to form these oxides, allowing the selective leaching. However, it is not easy for the simple roasting to get only Nd<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> and Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> system. If the temperature was not enough, Fe<sub>3</sub>O<sub>4</sub> would form, while the excessive temperature would cause  $NdFeO_3$ . The pre-formed  $Nd_2O_3$  by the selective oxidation would provide a chance to get the desired phase system for the selective leaching. So, for the pre-formed Nd<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, the oxdiation behavior during the selective oxidation was first analyzed. Only Nd oxide was sucessfully formed through the selective leaching, where the oxidation rate of the Nd element and resultant Nd oxide size were dependant on the temperature of the selective oxidation. The activation energy for the oxidation under the selective oxidation condition was lower than that under the roasting in air due to the absence of the barrier for oxygen diffusion. The selectively oxidized magnet, composed of the  $Nd_2O_3$ and metallic Fe, could withstand higher roasting temperature without the formation of Nd-FeO<sub>3</sub>. As a result, the desired phase system for the selective leaching could be obtained when the roasting at 660 °C was applied.





Fig. 1. (a) schematic illustrating possibility of selective oxidation for NdFeB magnet and (b) XRF patterns of crushed NdFeB magnet and selectively oxidized NdFeB magnet.

### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the Korea Institude of Energy Technology Evaluation and Planning(KETEP) grant funded by the Korea government(MOTIE) (No. 20217510100070).

Oral

## Recycling and refining of rare metals by using molten salt electrolysis

<u>Kyoung-Tae Park</u><sup>\*</sup>, Jae Hong Shin, Sunggue Heo, Namhun Kwon, Mihye Lee, Ro Woon Lee

Korea National Institute of Rare Metal, Korea Institute of Industrial Technology, Incheon, South Korea \*E-mail: ktpark@kitech.re.kr

Keywords: electorlysis, rare metal, rare earth, recycling, refining

In this study, molten salt electrolysis process for the recycling of rare metals and rare earth elements is introduced. Molten salt electrolysis is efficient for electrolyzing various elements and alloys with high ionization tendencies without the influx of oxygen, as it involves melting inert electrolyte salts at high temperatures. Leveraging these process characteristics, this study aim to extract and refine various rare metals and rare earth materials, such as secondary battery materials, titanium, and magnetic materials from scrap or oxides.

To refine the characteristics of off-grade titanium scrap, it was aimed to decrease the oxygen concentration by using a  $MgCl_2$  single molten salt process. When using Mg as a reducing agent, the oxygen removal rate is lower than that of high cost reducing agents such as Ca, La, and Y due to thermodynamic limitations. However, by continuously removing MgO from the reaction products through intended overvoltage electrolysis, it is confirmed oxygen removal efficiency exceeding the theoretical limit. Consequently, it was confirmed that oxygen levels was significantly decreased to 1000 ppm which corresponding to Grade 1 titanium.

For the recycling of large quantities of spent lithium-ion batteries from electric vehicles, lithium was recovered by using carbonate ( $K_2CO_3$ -Na<sub>2</sub>CO<sub>3</sub>) molten salt electrolysis. The waste cathode material, acting as the cathode, accepts electrons to be reduced to Li<sub>2</sub>O, while CO gas formed at the anode reacts to form Li<sub>2</sub>CO<sub>3</sub> within the molten salt. Leveraging the difference in solubility in water, Li<sub>2</sub>CO<sub>3</sub> was separated and recovered, yielding carbonate lithium with over 99% purity from spent lithium-ion battery cathode materials.

Rare earth element were extracted from NdFeB magnets using molten magnesium halides. Magnesium halide and spent NdFeB magnet reacted to produce rare earth halide, which is used as a raw material for the electrolysis process of REE metals. Based on thermodynamic calculation, magnesium fluoride were confirmed as an extraction reagent and binary halides compositions with alkali metal salts were selected in order to reduce the process temperature. The extraction was proceeded by reacting crushed spent NdFeB magnet with molten halides at temperatures of 900°C in an argon atmosphere. As a result, using the extracted of rare earth halide with alkali halides, neodymium with a purity of more than 99 wt% was obtained.

Various rare metals and rare-earth elements were recovered and refined through molten salt electrolysis processes. All processes were validated for the electrochemical tendencies through various analytical methods, and the characteristics of the final products were utilized to evaluate the efficiency of the molten salt electrolysis process.

## **3D** interconnected NaCl microstructures for sacrificial templates in the fabrication of porous film

<u>Zhiming Shen</u><sup>1</sup>, Yuya Takimoto<sup>1</sup>, Hideto Furuno<sup>1</sup>, Takeshi Fujihara<sup>2</sup>, Hong-Baek Cho<sup>3</sup>, Tadachika Nakayama<sup>1\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Extreme Energy-Density Research Institute, Nagaoka University of Technology, Nagaoka, Japan <sup>2</sup>National Institute of Technology, Anan College, Anan, Tokushima, Japan <sup>3</sup>Department of Materials Science and Chemical Engineering, Hanyang University, Ansan, South Korea \*E-mail: nky15@vos.nagaokaut.ac.jp

Keywords: sacrificial template, porous film, composite, self-assembly, electric field

The sacrificial template method, similar to the root technology of casting, is widely used in the preparation of porous films. It involves obtaining a material with a specific shape by removing a part of the mixed whole (template/model). The preparation of porous polyimide films typically involves using SiO<sub>2</sub> particles as sacrificial templates to disperse into the polyacyl acid solution. After acylation, the SiO<sub>2</sub> is removed by immersing the composite film in hydrogen fluoride, resulting in the formation of porous films. However, this sacrificial template method is environmentally unfriendly and the SiO<sub>2</sub> particles cannot be reused. To address these issues, a new environmentally friendly method for the preparation of porous films is presented in this study. The water-soluble compound NaCl is used as a sacrificial template. After it is dissolved in water, the NaCl can be recrystallised for further use, which greatly reduces the loss of NaCl and prevents pollution. The size and content of the pores can be controlled by adjusting the particle size and the amount of filler. However, if the filler concentration falls below a certain level, some of the filler becomes completely surrounded by the substrate and is unable to come into contact with the dissolution solution. This greatly restricts the use of the template method in the production of less porous films. In this study, we fabricated highly self-assembled 3D T-shaped NaCl microstructure composite films by controlling the location of NaCl in the polymer matrix through external AC electric field treatment. NaCl was arranged in chains along the direction of film thickness, and it selfassembled into a network structure on the surface. Even when the NaCl content was well below the percolation threshold, it could still be fully solubilized in water due to its aggregation on the surface, resulting in a porous film. The field of application of the sacrificial template method is extended by the electric field treatment method.



**Fig. 1.** T-shaped structure of 2 vol% NaCl/polymer composite film treated by AC 3 kV/mm electric field. Top and bottom surface (c) before and (d) after water treatment.

## One-pot room temperature synthesis of In<sub>3</sub>Sn/γ-Ga<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> core-shell nanoparticles via two-step sonication to EGaInSn alloy

### Toshiki Yamanaka, Yamato Hayashi\*, Hirotsugu Takizawa

Graduate School of Engineering, Department of Applied Chemistry, Tohoku University, Sendai, Japan \*E-mail: yamato.hayashi.b6@tohoku.ac.jp

Keywords: ultrasound, EGaInSn, core-shell, nanoparticles, room-temperature synthesis

**Introduction:**  $\gamma$ -gallium oxide (Ga<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>) is a wide-gap semiconductor showing catalytic activity, gas-sensing properties, and fluorescence. However, owing to its unstableness under high temperatures (>550 °C),  $\gamma$ -Ga<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> has been synthesized by a limited liquid phase method such as the hydrothermal method.

Our previous study has reported that metal-doped  $\gamma$ -Ga<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> nanoparticles can be synthesized by two-step sonication to the liquefied Ga–aluminum (Al) alloy at room temperature <sup>[1]</sup>. This ultrasound method is an easy and ecological process for synthesizing  $\gamma$ -Ga<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>-based nanomaterials, and this previous study indicates the redox potential of metals consisting of Ga-based alloy affects the oxidation behavior of that. Herein, the ultrasound-assisted oxidation behavior of the eutectic alloy of Ga, indium (In), and tin (Sn) was investigated (denoted as EGaInSn alloy). Because In (-0.338 V<sub>SHE</sub>) and Sn (-0.138 V<sub>SHE</sub>) have more positive redox potential than Ga (-0.560 V<sub>SHE</sub>), Al (-1.662 V<sub>SHE</sub>), one-pot room temperature synthesizing the nanocomposite materials of metals and  $\gamma$ -Ga<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> nanoparticles are expected by the ultrasound-assisted oxidation of EGaInSn alloy. From the perspective of a carbon-neutral society, non-thermal processing such as the ultrasound process for synthesizing inorganic nanomaterials is quite important because of its low energy loss, safety, and ease of handling.

**Method:** Ga, In, and Sn granules were mixed in a 300 mL flask heated at 100 °C, and EGaInSn melt (1 g) was obtained. After the flask was cooled to room temperature, degassed ethanol (50 mL) was added into the flask. The flask was sonicated (45 kHz, 100 W) for 24 h (emulsification step). N<sub>2</sub>H<sub>4</sub>•H<sub>2</sub>O was added into the flask, and the flask was sonicated (45 kHz, 100 W) for 24 h (oxidation step). The temperature of irradiated dispersion in the flask was maintained at 30 °C during sonication.

**Results and Discussion: Emulsification step** – Emulsified EGaInSn particles sonicated in ethanol showed only broadened XRD patterns, indicating EGaInSn particles were a liquid state. FE-SEM images showed EGaInSn particles has sub-micron diameter. Compared with pure Ga, miniaturization of EGaInSn alloy by sonication did not proceed. It is considered that the difference in surface tension, viscosity, and redox potential between pure Ga and EGaInSn affected the emulsification behavior of the liquefied alloy.

**Oxidation step** – After sonication in  $N_2H_4 \cdot H_2O$ , EGaInSn submicron particles were oxidized to  $\gamma$ -Ga<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, and In<sub>3</sub>Sn intermetallic compound was obtained (Fig.1). The results indicate only Ga of EGaInSn were preferentially oxidized to  $\gamma$ -Ga<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> by sonication in  $N_2H_4 \cdot H_2O$ . It is considered In<sub>3</sub>Sn precipitated with the decrease of Ga owing to the oxidation from Ga to  $\gamma$ -Ga<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>. The contrast of brightness observed in TEM image indicates that the obtained submicron particles had a core-shell structure of metal and oxide. STEM–EDX mapping (Fig.2) revealed the core particles contain In and Sn a lot, and the shell contains Ga a lot, indicat-

ing  $In_3Sn/\gamma$ -Ga<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> core-shell particles were synthesized by ultrasound-assisted oxidation of EGaInSn submicron droplets at room temperature. This ultrasound method can be a versatile method for synthesizing various  $\gamma$ -Ga<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>-based core-shell nanoparticles.



Fig.1 XRD patterns of  $\gamma$ -Ga<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> core-shell particles obtained after ultrasound-assisted oxidation of EGaInSn droplets.



Fig.2 STEM-EDX mapping of  $\gamma$ -Ga<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> core-shell particles obtained by oxidation of EGaInSn droplets.

## References

1. T. Yamanaka, Y Hayashi, H. Takizawa, Ultrason. Sonochem., 89, 106114 (2022)

## Concept and application of polycrystal Ag nanowire flexible transparent conductive film for sustainable development goals by organic precursor painting reduction method

## Yamato Hayashi

Department of Applied Chemistry, School of Engineering, Tohoku University, Sendai, Japan E-mail: yamato.hayashi.b6@tohoku.ac.jp

Keywords: silver nanowire, organic precursor, polycrystal silver, sustainable prosess

Ag nanowire transparent conductive film is one of alternatives to indium tin oxide films in the application of flexible touch panels. Ag nanowire transparent conductive composite film, which is prepared by depositing Ag nanowires onto a substrate, shows both high optical transparency and high electrical conductivity. The film can be easily prepared via liquid suspension, so it is said to have advantages as compared to Indium Tin Oxide transparent conductive film from the viewpoints of cost saving and applicability to large area substrate. Moreover, Ag nanowire transparent conductive film coated onto flexible polymer substrate shows good bending tolerance, it can be used in flexible devices, such as flexible display, lighting equipment, and so on. Generally, polyol method, which is performed in liquid phase, is used as a synthetic method of Ag nanowires. Although Ag nanowires with high aspect ratio and nanometer-sized diameter can be synthesized by this method, there are some problems on synthetic conditions, processes, cost and waste emission. Furthermore, Ag nanowires obtained by polyol method are single-crystalline solid wires. Although Ag nanowires with high aspect ratio and nanometer-sized diameter can be synthesized by this method, there are some problems on synthetic conditions, processes, and waste emission. Furthermore, Ag nanowires obtained by polyol method are single-crystalline solid wires. In general, it is necessary to apply Ag nanowires to complicated high temperature and high pressure annealing process to make connections among wires when transparent conductive film is prepared. Consequently, the overall process requires high cost and emits much waste.

To improve these problems, a novel method, painting and subsequent reduction of organic precursor, is proposed in this satud. In this method, needle-shaped organic precursor was fabricated by economy and ecology process (low cost, low environmental impact), and then Ag nanowire is simply obtained by splaying and reducing them to metallic Ag with retaining their needle-shaped morphology. By optimizing painting and reducing conditions of the precursor, preparation of highly transparent and conductive Ag nanowire transparent conductive film could be expected. Nanowire are not single crystal nanowire but polycrystal structure.



Figure. Comparison with conventional method in Ag TC film

This film can be easily prepared *via* liquid suspension, so it have advantages as compared to Indium Tin Oxide transparent conductive film from the viewpoints of cost saving and applicability to large area substrate. In addition, it doesn't require high temperature condition when reducing the precursor, that is, it can be applicable to low heat resistance materials, such as PET, PC, and so on. Anyone can easily make a flexible transparent conductive film by this process for SDGs.

- 1. K. Sugawara, Y. Hayashi, J. Fukushima H. Takizawa, Cryst. Res. Technol.. 50 (2015) 319.
- 2. Y. Hayashi, K. Fujita, I. Narita, M. Inoue, H. Takizawa, IEEE NANO 2016, Article number 7751502, (2016) 257.
- 3. K. Fujira, Y. Hayashi, J. Fukushima H. Takizawa, J. Ceram. Soc. Jpn. 127 (2019) 655.

## **T4.11 Hybrid and Bio-inspired Materials**

# Effect of interfacial Fe<sub>3</sub>O<sub>4</sub> nanoparticles on the microstructure and mechanical properties of textured alumina and utilizing the result to make hierarchical bioinspired ceramic composites

<u>Rohit Pratyush Behera</u><sup>1</sup>, Andrew Yun Ru Ng<sup>2</sup>, Zehui Du<sup>2,3</sup>, Chee Lip Gan<sup>2,3</sup>, Hortense Le Ferrand<sup>1,2\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>School of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering, Nanyang Technological University, 50 Nanyang avenue, Singapore 639798, Singapore

<sup>2</sup>School of Materials Science and Engineering, Nanyang Technological University, 50 Nanyang avenue, Singapore 639798, Singapore

<sup>3</sup>Temasek Laboratories, Nanyang Technological University, 50 Nanyang Drive, Singapore 637553, Singapore

\*E-mail: hortense@ntu.edu.sg

**Keywords**: crystallographic texture, magnetically assisted slip casting, ultrafast high-temperature sintering, crystallographic defects, strength, fracture, toughness, bioinspired microstructures

The recent texturing process of alumina employs magnetic fields to align alumina microplatelets coated with a small amount of  $Fe_3O_4$  [1,2]. After ultrafast high-temperature sintering (UHS), Fe atoms are found at the grain interfaces and within the grains, influencing the mechanical properties. Here, we compare the microstructure and mechanical properties of textured alumina prepared with and without  $Fe_3O_4$  and sintered using UHS or conventional sintering (CS). Microstructural analysis using electron backscattering diffraction (EBSD) indicates that  $Fe_3O_4$  induces crystallographic defects in the ceramic after UHS. Nanoindentation-induced fracture enlightens that the presence of  $Fe_3O_4$  in the UHS samples leads to plastic flow that increases the energy dissipation by 122 % compared to pristine samples. Overall, these crystallographic defects increase the flexural strength and fracture toughness by 16.3 and 75 % compared to pristine samples, reaching values of 287 MPa and 7 MPa.m<sup>0.5</sup>, respectively. This result is thus utilised to make hierarchical ceramic composites with bioinspired microstructures such as horizontal, periodic and graded, thus filling the design space for tuneable mechanical properties and saving the time and energy required for densification. These results could be leveraged to produce stronger, tougher ceramics with more complex designs in the future, with applications ranging from structural to biomedical.

## Acknowledgments

We acknowledge the financial support from the Ministry of Education of Singapore (proposal T2EP50122-0002) and the project number DSOCL 21115.

- H. Le Ferrand, F. Bouville, T.P. Niebel, A.R. Studart, Magnetically assisted slip casting of bioinspired heterogeneous composites, Nat Mater 14 (2015) 1172–1179. https://doi.org/10.1038/ nmat4419
- R.P. Behera, M.J.-H. Reavley, Z. Du, C.L. Gan, H. Le Ferrand, Ultrafast high-temperature sintering of dense and textured alumina, J Eur Ceram Soc 42 (2022) 7122–7133. https://doi.org/10.1016/j. jeurceramsoc.2022.08.014

## Electrospun piezoelectric patch enriched with smart drug nanocarriers for the functional regeneration of infarcted heart tissue

<u>Sonia Fiorilli</u><sup>1</sup>, Alice Benedetto Mas<sup>1</sup>, Jacopo Barberi<sup>1</sup>, Giorgia Montalbano<sup>1</sup>, Laura Coviello<sup>1</sup>, Sofia Sirolli<sup>2</sup>, Andrea Cafarelli<sup>2</sup>, Leonardo Ricotti<sup>2</sup>, Chiara Vitale-Brovarone<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Applied Science and Technolgy, Politecnico di Torino, Torino, Italy <sup>2</sup>The BioRobotics Institute, Scuola Superiore Sant'Anna, Viale R. Piaggio 34, 56025 – Pontedera (PI), Italy <sup>3</sup>The side of the state of t

\*E-mail: sonia.fiorilli@polito.it

Keywords: drug nanocarriers, organic-inorganic patch, heart regeneration, electrospinning

Cardiac diseases are the principal cause of death in the EU, and, among those, myocardial infarction (MI) impacts a significant portion of the total occurrences. After MI, a portion of the myocardium tissue is substituted by fibrous tissue showing very limited physiological functions, with consequent severe heart dysfunction [1]. The Horizon Europe REBORN project (*https://www.rebornproject.eu/project/*) aims to address this clinical need through the design of a novel implantable cardiac patch enabling the remodelling of functional heart tissue.

The overall idea relies on the development of a piezoelectric fibrous patch enabling the following multiple functions: *i*) provide electromechanical coupling to the myocardium *ii*) mimic the structure of the extracellular matrix for supporting myocytes, and *iii*) incorporate drug nanocarriers to provide *in situ* on-demand release of anti-inflammatory and anti-fibrotic agents in the most appropriate timeframe after the MI.

The present work aims at exploiting EPS coupled with a rotating drum collector for the fabrication of polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF) piezoelectric membranes with well-defined aligned nanofibres. To provide drug release according to defined spatiotemporal specifications, ultrasound (US) responsive mesoporous nanoparticles (MSNs) have been prepared and loaded with ibuprofen. To this aim, amino-modified-MSNs were grafted with sodium alginate (SA) and cross-linked with CaCl<sub>2</sub> solution to exploit the reversibility of coordination bonds between Ca<sup>2+</sup> and COO<sup>-</sup> grupos of SA [2].

Morphology (FESEM) size and zeta potential (DLS) of drug@MSN-SA were analysed, while FT-IR and TGA analysis confirmed the successful surface functionalisation and drug loading.

An *ad hoc* US system has been used to investigate the drug release upon highly controlled US stimulation and explore a broad range of US parameters (i.e. frequency, intensity).

The optimised SA-coated MSNs were incorporated into the electrospun patch, which was proved to retain well-aligned PVDF fibres and appropriate mechanical properties.


Figure 1: FESEM of drug@MSM-SA(left); methodology and rationale of REBOR project (center); electrospun PVDF containing (5%wt.) of drug@MSM-SA (right)

#### Acknowledgements

"Funded by the European Union. Views and opinions expressed are however those of the author(s) only and do not necessarily reflect those of the European Union or the European Health and Digital Executive Agency (HADEA). Neither the European Union nor the granting authority can be held responsible for them."

- 1. 2019 Report European Society of Cardiology (ESC)
- 2. Sabri, F., et al., (2018). Carbohydrate Polymers, 194, 61–68.

### **T4.12 GRAPHENE AND 2D MATERIALS**

# In-situ TEM study and fracture behavior characterization on 2D materials: from graphene to beyond

Bowen Zhang<sup>1,2</sup>, <u>Zhongquan Liao</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Xiaohui Liu<sup>2</sup>, David Bodesheim<sup>2</sup>, Arezoo Dianat<sup>2</sup>, André Clausner<sup>1</sup>, Birgit Jost<sup>1</sup>, Xinliang Feng<sup>1</sup>, Gianaurelio Cuniberti<sup>1</sup>, Ehrenfried Zschech<sup>2,3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Fraunhofer Institute for Ceramic Technologies and Systems, Dresden, Germany
<sup>2</sup>Technische Universität Dresden, Dresden, Germany
<sup>3</sup>Brandenburgische Technische Universität Cottbus – Senftenberg, Cottbus, Germany
\*E-mail: zhongquan.liao@ikts.fraunhofer.de

Keywords: in-situ TEM, 2D materials, fracture behavior, mechanical property

Two-dimensional (2D) materials, epitomized by graphene, have captivated researchers worldwide with their extraordinary peroperties as promising materials in electronics/optoelectronics, energy storage/conversion, etc. [1] However, the full potential of these materials can only be realized through a comprehensive understanding of their structure-property relationships at the nanoscale. In-situ transmission electron microscopy (TEM) is a technique where a TEM tool is used to unravel the intricate microstructure and dynamic behavior of materials in real time. The fast development in the microscopy instrumentation advances in-situ TEM into a fast-growing, increasing important and fascinating technique in various fields ranging from materials science to chemistry, biology, etc. [2] It provides crucial kinetic information on a material that cannot be obtained by conventional ex-situ methods. [3]

In depth understanding the mechanical behavior of 2D materials at the nanoscale is crucial for optimizing their performance and engineering novel applications. However, this is a very challenging task considering their extremely small sizes and thicknesses. In-situ TEM shows great superiority in this respect due to very high spatial resolution, but it normally requires delicate sample preparation and methodology development. Here, we present insitu mechanical testing inside a TEM tool to study several types of 2D materials including graphene, silicene and covalent organic framework (COF). The fracture behavior of studied 2D materials is oberserved in real time. Dedicated sample preparation and transfer methods are also provided.

### Figures



Figure 1. A suspended 2D COF testing sample on push-to-pull device (L, length; W, width).

- 1. K. Novoselov, et al. Science 2004, 306, 666–669.
- 2. H. Zheng, et al. MRS Bulletin 2015, 40, 12–18.
- 3. P. Li, et al. Materials Today 2021, 51, 247–272.

# Gamma irradiation effects on the synthesis and properties of 2D-and graphene-based materials and their application in electromagnetic interference shielding

<u>Dragana Marinković</u><sup>\*</sup>, Milica Budimir, Sladjana Dorontić, Anđela Stefanović, Mila Milenković, Duška Kleut, Dejan Kepić, Jovana Prekodravac, Biljana Todorović-Marković, Zoran Marković, Svetlana Jovanović

Vinca Institute of Nuclear Sciences-National Institute of the Republic of Serbia, University of Belgrade, Belgrade, Serbia \*E-mail: draganaj@vin.bg.ac.rs

Keywords: gamma radiation, EMI shielding, 2D materials, graphene-based materials

Electromagnetic interference (EMI) is a term representing such a phenomenon where one electromagnetic wave interferes with other waves, resulting in the degradation of electromagnetic signals. For the use in EMI shielding, the new material should be optical transparent, thin, elastic, durable, fexible, chemically stable, economically acceptable, produced by eco-friendly procedure, low-cost and resistive to moisture, in order to be applicable in the space and aircraft industry, motor vehicles, portable and wearable electronic devices. The unique and advantageou properties of graphene, such as large specific surface area, low density, aspect ratio and electrical conductivity, outstanding electrical conductivity, and ease of processability, make it as the best candidat from 2D-materials for application in various research areas of material science, chemistry and physics, condensed matter, nano-technology, chemical and electrical engineering and in medicine.

In recent years, there has been a growing interest in the application of gamma irradiation as a tool for a simple, eco-friendly, clean and easy method for structural modification and turning the physicochemical properties of different (nano)materials, as well as 2D-and graphenebased materials. This established non-contact process is used to create a reductive medium which is deemed simpler, purer and less harmful than conventional chemical reduction. As a radioactive source, a <sup>60</sup>Co gamma source was used in the gamma sterilization facility at the Vinča Institute. In order to study the possibility to improve optical properties, a lower doses of gamma irradiation up to 15 kGy on GQDs were done and after gamma irradiation the increase of photoluminescence was noticed. Due to their chemical properties, AgNWs create complex easily with GO and highly improve electrical conductivity and electromagnetic interference shielding efficiency. An increasing of E-potential values of gamma-irradiated GQDs compared with p-GQDs was due to a change in the amount of negatively charged functional groups during gamma irradiation in the presence of ethylenediamine, probably due to the lower number of carboxyl functional groups. [1] Gamma irradiation could highly improve graphene electromagnetic interference shielding behavior. The shielding efficiency of around 6.5 dB was measured for the r-GO free-standing film, while gamma-irradiated graphene in two different solvent, isopropyl alcohol and water, as oxidation and reduction media, will be additionaly measured.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the EU, Horizon Europe program, Coordination and Support Action, project Twinning for new graphene-based composites in electromagnetic interference shielding-GrInShield (No. 101079151), and by the Ministry of Science, Technological Development and Innovation of the Republic of Serbia [Grant Number 451-03-68/2023-14/200017].

#### References

S. Dorontic et al., Gamma-Ray-Induced Structural Transformation of GQDs towards the Improvement of Their Optical Properties, Monitoring of Selected Toxic Compounds, and Photo-Induced Effects on Bacterial Strains, *Nanomaterials* 12 (2022) 2714.

### T5 Technology, Society and Sustainability

# T5.1 GLOBAL INNOVATIONS IN BIOMATERIALS, BIOMANUFACTURING, AND BIOTECHNOLOGIES

# **Ball-on-three-balls strength testing of hydroxyapatite ceramics depending on the powder origin**

<u>Ľuboš Bača<sup>1,2\*</sup></u>, PeterPeciar<sup>3</sup>, Zdeněk Chlup<sup>4</sup>, Peter Veteška<sup>1</sup>, Juraj Úradníček<sup>5</sup>, Jozef Feranc<sup>6</sup>, Marián Janek<sup>1,7</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Inorganic Materials, Slovak University of Technology, Bratislava, Slovakia <sup>2</sup>Aerospace & Advanced Composites GmbH, Wiener Neustadt, Austria

<sup>3</sup>Institute of Process Engineering, Slovak University of Technology, Bratislava, Slovakia <sup>4</sup>Institute of Physics of Materials, Czech Academy of Sciences, Brno, Czech Republic <sup>5</sup>Institute of Applied Mechanics and Mechatronics, Slovak University of Technology, Bratislava, Slovakia

<sup>6</sup>Department of Plastics, Rubber and Fibres, Slovak University of Technology, Bratislava, Slovakia <sup>7</sup>Department of Physical and Theoretical Chemistry, Comenius University, Bratislava, Slovakia \*E-mail: lubos.baca@stuba.sk

Keywords: strength, hydroxyapatite, ball-on-three-balls, bioceramics, mechanical properties

Hydroxyapatite as the mineral occurring naturally in bones, it is an ideal replacement in situations where it is necessary to replace or supplement part of the bone. Although enormous scientific efforts have been made in recent decades to synthesize it by various methods and procedures, and many companies now produce pharmaceutical-grade hydroxyapatite or deficient hydroxyapatite powders for medical applications, they differ mainly in physical properties.

In this research, three different commercial hydroxyapatite powders were used to prepare the disk-shaped specimens sintered at 1300 °C for 1h, with parameters selected due to the best biocompatibility response during the cytotoxic testing. Specimens were used to determine mechanical properties under biaxial loading using B3B testing, which secures maximal stress distribution in the centre of the disk without edge effects. The strength of assintered bioceramic specimens was evaluated according to Weibull statistical fracture theory and showed variation not only depending on the bulk density but also on the origin of the powder. This effect shows the importance of powder characteristics such as grain size, grain size distribution, powder compressibility as well as flow functions.

### Acknowledgments

The financial support of Slovak Grant Agency VEGA (grant No. VEGA 1/0070/22, 1/0342/21) and of the Slovak Research and Development Agency under the Contracts no. APVV-21-0173 and the support by the project Advancing University Capacity and Competence in Research, Development and Innovation ("ACCORD") ITMS2014+:313021X329, co-financed by resources of European Regional Development Fund are greatly acknowledged.

# Development of antimicrobial composite coating incorporating AgNPs-decorated SiO<sub>2</sub> nanospheres in a polysilazane matrix

#### Francesca Gattucci\*, Marta Miola, Cristina Balagna

Department of Applied Science and Technology, Politecnico di Torino, Turin, Italy \*E-mail: francesca.gattucci@polito.it

Keywords: silver nanoparticles, coatings, polysilazane, antibacterial

Among global concerns about the spread of superbugs and viruses, new antimicrobial coatings have been explored to develop innovative solutions. One approach involves the synthesis of a composite coating comprising polymeric ceramic precursor and silica nanospheres decorated with silver nanoparticles (AgNPs-nSiO<sub>2</sub>). The method consists in two phases. Firstly, AgNPs-nSiO<sub>2</sub> are produced through a sol-gel synthesis process followed by heat treatment at 700°C. Subsequently, the so-obtained AgNPs decorated nSiO<sub>2</sub> are incorporated into a polymeric matrix to introduce silver as the antibacterial agent. The resulting coating is deposited on sodalime substrates.

Morphological, compositional and structural analysis confirmed the synthesis of AgNPs onto  $nSiO_2$  and quantified their concentration. The antibacterial properties of AgNPs decorated  $nSiO_2$  was also demonstrated through the inhibition test towards *Staphylococcus epidermidis*.

The dispersion of the AgNPs decorated  $nSiO_2$  into a polysilazane as a ceramic precursor (commercially known as Durazane 1800) successfully occurred and the so-obtained composite coating was characterized in terms of morphology, composition, structure and antibacterial properties. This research was made possible through the collaborative efforts of the MICS extended parnership within the Nanosustech project. The goal of this project is to innovate and create intelligent, eco-friendly nanostructured materials aimed at mitigating the impact of chemical pollutants and microbiological contaminants on indoor air quality.

#### Acknowledgments

This study was carried out within the MICS (Made in Italy – Circular and Sustainable) Extended Partnership and received funding from the European Union Next-GenerationEU (PIANO NAZIONALE DI RIPRESA E RESILIENZA (PNRR) – MISSIONE 4 COMPONENTE 2, INVESTIMENTO 1.3 – D.D. 1551.11-10-2022, PE00000004). This manuscript reflects only the authors' views and opinions, neither the European Union nor the European Commission can be considered responsible for them.

# Morphological and structural evaluation of conventional prepared calcium silicate ceramics from eggshell and silica gel

#### Maroua Houria Kaou<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Csaba Balázsi<sup>1</sup>, Katalin Balázsi<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Technical Physics and Materials Science, Centre for Energy Research, Budapest, Hungary <sup>2</sup>Doctoral School on Materials Sciences and Technologies, Óbuda University, Budapest, Hungary \*E-mail: maroua.houria.kaou@ek-cer.hu

Keywords: bioceramics, calcium oxide, eggshell, silica gel

Calcium silicate-based materials (CS) have attracted a lot of attention as promising materials for bio-applications, including dental restoration, drug carrier, tissue engineering, and bone repairing and regeneration, owing to their remarkable biocompatibility, bioactivity, and biodegradability properties. In general, CS materials can promote apatite formation on the surface upon implantation when they are connected to biological fluids in the form of ceramics, powders, and ceramic coatings. Nonetheless, the biological activity of calcium silicates is determined by their structure, which can be manipulated by a variety of factors including the sintering temperature, precursors, composition, porosity, and manufacturing technique. An increase in demand for synthetic bioactive materials has been marked by the increase in clinical demands and the population. Therefore, a new approach has been recently trending that adopts the use of natural wastes, as raw materials for the preparation of bioactive materials to overcome the issues regarded the high-cost manufacturing and diminish the chemical residuals remaining from the production process.

In the present talk, calcium silicates were successfully prepared using eco-friendly natural sources namely chicken eggshells and silica gel from desiccators. Upon the heat treatment in the air at 900 °C for 7-12h, the reaction of the extraction of calcium oxide (CaO) will occur. Whereas the silica (SiO<sub>2</sub>) has been prepared by ball milling. Different ratios have been produced, pressed in dry conditions, and then subjected to heat treatment in the air at 800 °C for 1h. An extensive set of analytical methods was used to determine the effect of the CaO/SiO<sub>2</sub> ratio on the evolution of the phase structures, morphology, and biological properties. Different phases and microstructures were observed for the variety compositions that resulted in high porous and melted composites.

- Kaou, Maroua H.; Furko, Monika ; Rachid, Ben Zine H.; Balazsi, Katalin; Balazsi, Csaba. Morphological and structural evaluation of spark plasma sintered calcium silicate ceramics. INTERNA-TIONAL JOURNAL OF APPLIED CERAMIC TECHNOLOGY, 13 p. (2024).
- Kaou, Maroua H.; Furkó, Mónika; Balázsi, Katalin; Balázsi, Csaba. Advanced Bioactive Glasses: The Newest Achievements and Breakthroughs in the Area. NANOMATERIALS 13: 16 Paper: 2287, 33 p. (2023).
- Kaou, Maroua H.; Horváth, Zsolt E.; Balázsi, Katalin; Balázsi, Csaba. Eco-friendly preparation and structural characterization of calcium silicates derived from eggshell and silica gel. INTERNA-TIONAL JOURNAL OF APPLIED CERAMIC TECHNOLOGY 20: 2 pp. 689–699., 11 p. (2023).

### **T5.2 GLOBAL YOUNG INVESTIGATOR FORUM**

# Elucidation of liberation mechanism of cathode active materials from lithium-ion battery cathode composite for direct recycling

Kento Izumi<sup>1</sup>, Ryo Miyazawa<sup>1</sup>, Yutaro Takaya<sup>1,2</sup>, Chiharu Tokoro<sup>1,2\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Resources and Environmental Engineering, Graduate School of Creative Science and Engineering, Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan <sup>2</sup>Department of Systems Innovation, Graduate School of Engineering, The University of Tokyo, Tokyo, Japan \*E-mail: tokoro@waseda.jp

Keywords: lithium-ion battery, recycle, DEM

Cathode active materials in LiBs (lithium-ion batteries) contain rare metals such as lithium, nickel, cobalt, and manganese. Since these metals have high scarcity value, their recycling is important issue<sup>1</sup>. Currently, a combination process of pyrometallurgy and hydrometallurgy is used for recovering of these rare metals. This is a process with high environmental impact due to the lengthy processes and the large amount of chemicals used. In recent years, investigation of direct recycle has been conducted to recover cathode active materials from spent LiBs and/or manufacturing scraps in manufacturing of new Li-ion batteries<sup>2</sup>. This process is environmental-friendly to require fewer steps and less energy than existing processes. To realize the direct recycling process, it is inevitable to liberate cathode active materials from the cathode composite via grinding process. Since cathode active materials are bonded by PVdF binder, it is difficult to liberate cathode active materials from the cathode composite by simple grinding. In addition, deteriorating during the grinding process should be avoided for regeneration of active materials.

In this study, we tried to liberate and to recover the cathode active materials from the cathode composite by using a stirred media mill. A stirred media mill is a machine for fine grinding with grinding media. In order to liberate cathode active materials, it is necessary to detach the active materials from PVdF binder. It is considered that surface grinding by tangential forces such as friction and shear forces generated in a stirred media mill was suitable for liberation because PVdF binder is bonded around active materials. Therefore, grinding conditions for surface grinding with large tangential energy and a large number of grinding media collisions were determined from DEM (Discrete Element Method) simulations. The simulation results showed that the optimal grinding conditions could be achieved by using different diameters of the media. Based on these simulation results, we conducted grinding experiments. In this experiment, the liberation was evaluated by weight fraction under 32  $\mu$ m. In case of using only  $\phi$ 10 grinding media, weight fraction under 32  $\mu$ m was 53 wt%. In case of using  $\phi 10$  and  $\phi 3$  grinding media, the fraction increased to 62 wt%. We discussed the liberation mechanism of cathode active materials from simulation and experiment results. In addition, we verified that the recovered cathode active materials was not altered via grinding process and was suitable for direct recycling. We believe that this liberation process is applicable not only for cathode active materials but also for various ceramic powder materials.

#### Acknowledgments

We are grateful to AESC Japan LTD. for providing cathode samples.

- 1. Chordia M., A. Nordelof, L. Ager-Wick Ellingsen, "Environmental life cycle implications of upscaling lithium-ion battery production", *The Int J Life Cycle Assess*, 26, 2021, 2024–2039.
- 2. Zhan R., T. Payne, T. Leftwich, K. Perrine, L. Pan, "De-agglomeration of cathode composites for direct recycling of Li-ion batteries", *Waste Manage.*, 105, 2020, 39–48.

### Antimicrobial/antiviral composite coatings via co-sputtering method

<u>Angelica Luceri</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Sergio Perero<sup>1</sup>, Rachele Francese<sup>2</sup>, Andrea Civra<sup>2</sup>, Manuela Donalisio<sup>2</sup>, David Lembo<sup>2</sup> Monica Ferraris<sup>1</sup>, Cristina Balagna<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Applied Science and Technology,Politecnico di Torino, Turin, Italy <sup>2</sup>Department of Clinical and Biological Sciences, University of Turin, S. Luigi Gonzaga Hospital, Turin, Italy \*E-mail: angelica.luceri@polito.it

Keywords: antibacterial, antiviral, coatings, silver nanoclusters

Recently, the rapid spread of the Coronavirus led to a drastic increase in respiratory illnesses; stringent lockdowns, and preventive measures were adopted worldwide to reduce the risks. This resulted in a global economic and health crisis, with numerous confirmed cases <sup>1</sup>. Studies demonstrated the ability of the SARS-CoV-2 virus to remain active on surfaces for varying periods of time, and its rapid transmission through contaminated surfaces, droplets, direct contact, and aerosols brought the attention of the scientific community to the use of antimicrobial and antiviral materials in everyday life <sup>2</sup>.

In this scenario, the european NanoBloc project will provide reliable antimicrobial, antifungal, and antiviral coatings through environmentally friendly technologies, suitable for numerous textiles and surfaces. The main goals of the interdisciplinary consortium of Nanobloc project would develop and industrially upscale new nanocoatings, guaranteeing effectiveness and durability, and to be applied to several final products, including porous filter materials, and high-traffic solid surfaces, textiles.

Research at Polito has focused his attention on the study and development of thin, flexible composite coatings made of glass or ceramic matrices, exhibiting antibacterial and antiviral properties due to the presence of well-dispersed silver nanoclusters embedded within them. These coatings were deposited using the co-sputtering technique, which is an environmentally friendly method suitable for all types of materials <sup>3</sup>. The coatings demonstrated a slow and gradual release of silver ions, capable of slowing down and inhibiting the proliferation of bacteria, fungi, and viruses, including respiratory syncytial and influenza viruses. Their good thermal stability allowed for thermal regeneration processes and sterilization, without compromising their bactericidal and virucidal effectiveness.

The project involves other technologies, including UV cured lacquers, sol-gel, and electrophoretic deposition, building upon prior successful work.

#### Figures



Figure1: Inhibition halo test of (a) unocated and (b) coated air filter

#### Acknowledgments

This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon Europe programme under grant agreement n. 101057597.

- 1. World Health Organization, WHO.
- 2. Liu, Jie, et al. "The duration of SARS-CoV-2 positive in the environments of quarantine rooms: a perspective analysis." Intl. Journal of Infectious Diseases (2021).
- 3. Ferraris, Monica, et al., "Method for the application of an antiviral coating to a substrate and relative coating", WO2019/082001, (2019).

### T5.6 FUNGLASS

### Enhanced shaping and functionalization of silicate bioceramics by the use of silicone precursors

Fulden Dogrul<sup>1</sup>, Paulina Ozog<sup>1</sup>, Dusan Galusek<sup>1</sup>, Hamada Elsayed<sup>2</sup>, Liliana Liverani<sup>2</sup>, Aldo R. Boccaccini<sup>2</sup>, <u>Enrico Bernardo<sup>2\*</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalized Glass, Trencin, Slovakia <sup>2</sup>Department of Industrial Engineering, University of Padova, Padova, Italy <sup>3</sup>Institute of Biomaterials, University of Erlangen-Nuremberg, Erlangen, Germany \*E-mail: enrico.bernardo@unipd.it

Keywords: biosilicate, akermanite, silicones, additive manufacturing

Silicone polymers emerge as very interesting precursors for silicate ceramics for bone tissue engineering applications. Being polymers, they may be shaped at nearly room temperature, by application of plastic-forming technologies, including modern additive manufacturing technologies. The specific chemistry allows for the obtainment of a relatively abundant ceramic residue, based on reactive amorphous silica. Finally, they are sensitive to the atmosphere, during heat treatment, so that pyrolysis in non-oxidative gasses (nitrogen, argon) may yield a SiOC residue, comprising nano-sized carbon domains embedded in silica-based matrix [1].

Silicate bioceramics derive from the interaction of silica with other oxides, such as Na<sub>2</sub>O, CaO, MgO: precursors of these oxides, in form of various salts, can be easily incorporated, as fillers, in silicone matrices. The homogeneous mixing generally favours the obtaiment of phase-pure crystalline silicates, upon heat treament (at 900-1200 °C), but some difficulties may arise from the release of large amount of gasseous byproducts (from both ceramic transformation of matrices and decomposition of fillers), causing internal stresses and favouring extensive cracking, and from kinetically unfavoured reactions. These paper tackles the engineering of formulations with alkali borates and phosphates, having a multiform impact. These additives, in fact, offer, upon thermal treatment, some liquid phase, in turn providing some stress relaxation and promoting ionic interdiffusion. Hydrated variants of these salts are even more interesting, since they undergo dehydration at low temperature (300-350 °C) and determine the homogeneous foaming of silicone-based mixtures, later transformed into highly porous ceramic foams [1]. As an alternative, highly porous scaffolds with non-stochastic porosity, may be easily obtained by direct ink writing or stereolithography (the latter exploiting the easy addition, in silicone-based mixtures, of photocurable acrylates) [2].

Na<sub>2</sub>O and CaO precursors, added with sodium phosphate, yield glass-ceramic products strictly resembling commercial Biosilicate® glass-ceramics [1]. CaO and MgO precursors, added with sodium phosphate or borate, yield akermanite (Ca<sub>2</sub>MgSi<sub>2</sub>O<sub>7</sub>) ceramics with B- or P-containing intergranular glass phase [3]. In all cases, cell viability tests indicate a lack of cytotoxicity; this is coupled with acellular *in-vitro* bioactivity, upon immersion in SBF, as well as antibacterial activity against *S. aureus* and *E. coli*. Carbon nano-inclusions, present for silicate synthesis in nitrogen atmosphere, do not cause any cytotoxic effect; on the contrary, they accelerate the dissolution and the formation of apatite, reasonably due to the

many silicate/carbon interfaces. The inclusions also determine an enhanced absorption of IR radiation, with remarkably fast heating above 60 °C, which could be exploited for disinfection of scaffolds [1].

- 1. F. Dogrul et al., Polymer-derived Biosilicate-C composite foams: Phase development and photothermal effect, Journal of the European Ceramic Society, 2021, 41, 380–388.
- 2. P. Ozog et al., Engineering of silicone-based blends for the masked stereolithography of biosilicate/ carbon composite scaffolds, Journal of the European Ceramic Society, 2022, 42, 6192–6198.
- 3. F. Dogrul et al., Assessment of in-vitro bioactivity, biodegradability and antibacterial activity of polymer-derived 3D printed åkermanite scaffolds, Open Ceramics, 2023, 15, 100413.

# Phase Transition of High Entropy Oxides (HEOs) during Spark Plasma Sintering

Avnee Chauhan<sup>1</sup>, Andreas Frickel<sup>2</sup>, Sabina Begand<sup>2</sup>, Mathias Herrmann<sup>3</sup>, Dušan Galusek<sup>1,4\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalized Glass, Alexander Dubček University of Trenčín, Študentská 2, 911 50 Trenčín, Slovakia

<sup>2</sup>Fraunhofer Institute for Ceramic technologies and systems, 07629 Hermsdorf, Germany

<sup>3</sup>Fraunhofer Institute for Ceramic technologies and systems, 01277 Dresden, Germany

<sup>4</sup>Joint Glass Centre of the IIC SAS, TnUAD and FChPT STU, Študentská 2, 911 50 Trenčín, Slovakia \*E-mail: dusan.galusek@tnuni.sk

Keywords: phase transformation, functional ceramics, high-entropy ceramic, spark plasma sintering

High entropy ceramic oxides (HEOs) have emerged as a cutting-edge frontier of advanced research in the field of materials science and engineering. These materials have generated considerable research interest because of their novel intrinsic properties and significant potential for application in various fields. In this study, single-phase high-entropy oxides with the composition ( $Y_{0.2}Ce_{0.2}RE_{0.2}Sm_{0.2}La_{0.2}$ )  $O_{2-\delta}$ , where RE= Dy, Pr, Gd was prepared by combustion synthesis. Through X-ray powder diffraction and scanning electron microscopy, both the phase composition and morphological characteristics of the powder and sintered ceramics were analyzed.

The synthesized powders were Spark plasma sintered (SPS) at temperatures ranging from 1200 °C to 1600 °C to achieve high density ceramics. Sintering above 1400 °C under vacuum and reducing conditions induced phase transformation of the densified HEOs. A close correlation between the phase transformations, oxygen depletion, and the ionic radii of  $Ce^{3+}$  and  $Ce^{4+}$  was demonstrated. In the reducing environment and elevated temperatures characteristic of SPS, the reduction of  $Ce^{4+}$  to  $Ce^{3+}$  results in the increase of the Ce ionic radius resulting in the stabilization of the monoclinic B- Phase. An annealing of the samples at 1200 °C in air resulted in, the reversible transformation back to cubic structure. The change in the oxidation state of Ce was confirmed by X-ray Photoelectron Spectroscopy (XPS).

#### Acknowledgments



This item is a part of dissemination activities of project FunGlass. This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 739566.

<u>G. Galleani</u><sup>1\*</sup>, J. Cao<sup>2</sup>, F. Scheffler<sup>2</sup>, R. Sajzew<sup>2,3</sup>, J. J. Velazquez<sup>1</sup>, Dušan Galusek<sup>1,4</sup>, L. Wondraczek<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Funglass Alexander Dubcek University of Trencín, Študentská 2, SK-911 50 Trencín, Slovakia <sup>2</sup>Otto Schott Institute of Materials Research, Friedrich Schiller University Jena, Fraunhoferstrasse 6, 07743, Jena, Germany

<sup>3</sup>Center of Energy and Environmental Chemistry, University of Jena, Philosophenweg 7a, 07743 Jena, Germany

<sup>4</sup>Joint Glass Centre of the IIC SAS, TnUAD, and FCHFT STU, Študentská 2, SK-911 50 Trencín, Slovakia

\*E-mail: gustavo.galleani@tnuni.sk

Keywords: glass-ceramic, photochromism, persistent luminescence, lanthanide, modulated luminescence, optical thermometry

There has been an increased attention on the development of smart materials with multifunctional photochromism (PC), luminescence modulation and persistent luminescence (PersL) due to their energy storage capability and great potential for data encryption<sup>1</sup>. Basically, in this kind of materials the information can be optically written-in and read out by stimulation of an external field such as thermal, optical, or mechanical stimulus, e.g. mechanoluminescence induced by ultrassound<sup>2</sup>. Among the suitable materials, optically activated glass-ceramics (GCs) have been widely recognised as promising candidates for optical thermometers, scintillators, and high-power solid-state lightning devices. However, most of GCs for optical applications have been based on crystallization of fluoride crystals in glasses, and the design and preparation of oxide GCs containing crystals that present persistent photoluminescence, mechanoluminescence, and photochromic properties remain challenging.

Novel optical materials with garnet structure represented by the formula  $A_3[B_2](C_3)O_{12}$  exhibit both PC and PersL with readily tunable emission. However, garnet materials with micro-sized powders or single crystals limit the suitable applications due to difficulties in processing, especially where the use of bulk materials is essential.

Here,  $Gd_3Sc_2Ga_3O_{12}$  garnet-based GCs were prepared by conventional melt-quenching and subsequent heat-treatment of the as-prepared gallogermanate glasses. Due to the high crystal volume fraction these GCs show long PersL and a high-contrast PC. A proper selection of dopants led to visible and near-infrared light emission covering the bio-window. As a proof of concept, a multi-modal optical information storage and read-out application was demonstrated with the simultaneous response of PersL and PC to temperature, optical, and ultrassound stimulation.

#### Acknowledgments

This work is a part of the activities of the FunGlass project. This project has received funding from the European Union Horizon 2020 Research and Innovation Program under Grant 739566.

- 1. Y. Ding, B. So, J. Cao, F. Langenhorst, L. Wondraczek, Advanced Optical Materials, 11, 17 (2023).
- 2. Y. Lifang, J. Yahong, Z. Daoyun, M. Zhongfei, X. Guanming, H. Yihua, ACS Sustainable Chemistry and Engineering, 8, 6543-6550 (2020).

# Multifunctional biodegradable nanocomposite coatings for corrosion control of magnesium alloys

<u>Aatif Ijaz</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Emilia Merino<sup>2</sup>, Amirhossein Pakseresht<sup>1</sup>, Alicia Durán<sup>2</sup>, Yolanda Castro<sup>2</sup>, Dušan Galusek<sup>1.3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalized Glass, Alexander Dubček University of Trenčín, Trenčín, Slovakia <sup>2</sup>Instituto de Cerámica y Vidrio (ICV-CSIC), Campus de Cantoblanco, Madrid, Spain <sup>3</sup>Joint Glass Centre of the IIC SAS, TnUAD, and FChPT STU, Trenčín, Slovakia

\*E-mail: aatif.ijaz@tnuni.sk

**Keywords**: corrosion protection, self-healing coatings, corrosion inhibitors, adhesion strength, corrosion monitoring, stimuli-responsive release, nanocarriers

Magnesium (Mg) is considered the lightest engineering material of the 21st century. The similarity of the mechanical properties of Mg alloys to those of human bones, along with their biocompatibility and biodegradability in biological systems, have established their applicability as bone implants. However, a high degradation rate accompanied by a large volume of hydrogen evolution and an increment of the pH causes premature fractures and wound-healing complications, which limit the clinical effectiveness of Mg-based implants. Functional composite coatings have been thus of great interest for enhancing the performance of Mg-based implants<sup>1,2</sup>. In this work, we developed an optimized stimuli-responsive self-healing composite coating by adding polydopamine-coated chitosan-loaded mesoporous bioglass nanoparticles (PD@Chi@MBG) to a polyurethane (PU) matrix, which allows substantially slower degradation of Mg alloys upon coating damage due to the adsorption of PD and chitosan on a Mg substrate. The nanocomposite coatings were homogenously coated on a Mg AZ31 alloy using a simple dip coating method at a controlled withdrawal rate. Scanning electron microscopy-energy-dispersive X-ray analysis, Fourier-transform infrared spectroscopy, X-ray diffraction and thermogravimetric analysis were used to evaluate the surface morphology, composition and distribution of PD@Chi@MBG in the PU matrix. Electrochemical and immersion tests were performed to investigate the biodegradation performance of AZ31 alloy with and without different surface coatings in simulated body fluids (SBF) at 37 °C. The nanocomposite-coated AZ31 Mg alloys exhibited a significantly lower degradation rate than the uncoated AZ31. These results suggest that biodegradable composite coatings have great potential for application in orthopedic implants.



Figure: Multifunctional biodegradable composite coating system and its working principle.

#### Acknowledgments



This item is a part of the dissemination activities of project FunGlass. This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation program under grant agreement No 739566. The authors also gratefully acknowledge the financial support from the VEGA 1/0242/23.

- 1. V.S. Yadav et al., Journal of Magnesium and Alloys, 2020.
- 2. N. I. Khaled et al., Progress in organic coatings, 2024.

# Monitoring the stability of therapeutic ions in SBF

<u>Hana Kaňková</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Lenka Buňová<sup>1</sup>, Anna Švančárková<sup>1</sup>, Dušan Galusek<sup>1,2</sup>, Dagmar Galusková<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>FunGlass, Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalized Glass, Alexander Dubček University of Trenčín, Študentská 2, 911 50 Trenčín, Slovakia

<sup>2</sup>Joint Glass Centre of the IIC SAS, TnUAD, and FChFT STU, Študentská 2, 911 50 Trenčín, Slovakia \*E-mail: hana.kankova@tnuni.sk

Keywords: SBF solution, long-term ion stability, chemical analysis

The work focuses on the analytical determination of ions used as therapeutic dopants in bioactive glasses and their chemical stability in the simulated body fluid (SBF). The long-term stability of Al, B, Ce, Cu, Ga, Sr, Y, Zn in SBF solution was investigated. The selected elements were added to the SBF solution at the concentrations of 0.5, 2.5 and 10 mg/L to monitor stability of dissolved ions after 1 hour, 7, and 14 days.

For Al, Ce, Y and Zn, the measured concentration was found to be significantly lower than the nominal values. Simultaneously with the decrease in the concentration of these ions, phosphorus and calcium were depleted from the solution. Elements which disappear from the SBF solution are most probably incorporated into the hydroxyapatite along with another phosphate salts precipitated in the solution.

#### Acknowledgments

This item is a part of dissemination activities of project FunGlass. This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 739566. The authors would like to acknowledge APVV 22-0062 project.

### Stabilization of cerium and neodymium in alkali-activated glass as a sustainable approach for nuclear waste management

#### Diana Lago<sup>1\*</sup>, Jozef Kraxner<sup>1</sup>, Dušan Galusek<sup>1,2</sup>, Enrico Bernardo<sup>3</sup>

 <sup>1</sup>FunGlass – Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalized Glass, Alexander Dubček University of Trenčín, Študentská 2, 911 50, Trenčín, Slovakia
 <sup>2</sup>Joint Glass Centre of the IIC SAS, TnUAD and FChFT STU, 911 50 Trenčín, Slovakia
 <sup>3</sup>Department of Industrial Engineering, University of Padova, Via Marzolo 9, Padova, 35131, Italy
 \*E-mail: diana.lago@tnuni.sk

Keywords: cerium, neodymium, alkali activation, nuclear waste management

The growing demand for sustainable energy sources capable of minimizing the generation of greenhouse gases leads to the search for environmentally responsible technologies. This implies considering the technical challenges related to immobilizing waste from the nuclear industry.

Vitrification is a well-known technology for immobilizing high-level radioactive waste [1]. However, this process has drawbacks, such as the volatility of certain radionuclides at the glass melting temperature, requiring complex gas treatment systems. Additionally, some radionuclides, including actinides, exhibit low solubility in the glass matrix [2]. The immobilization of cerium and neodymium is particularly interesting as these elements are present in the nuclear waste composition and are also used as a uranium and minor actinide surrogate, respectively [3].

In this work, a sustaintable approach to stabilize cerium and neodymium was explored by alkali activation of pharmaceutical boro-alumino-silicate glass using diluted solutions of sodium and potassium hydroxide. The glass powders were mixed with these solutions and mechanically stirred for 150 minutes prior to final consolidation at 40 °C over 7 days.

The integration of waste surrogates was carried out by establishing similarities with the conventional vitrification process. Cerium and neodymium, which are the chemical species present in the waste solution, were used as nitrates and calcined to transform them into a solid and stable waste, CeO, and Nd<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, respectively. Two different methods were used for incorporating each powder oxide. On one hand, CeO, was added to the glass powder before alkali activation, while Nd<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> was included in the slurry during the final stages of the alkali activation process. The bridging of adjacent particles facilitated by condensation reactions yielding Si-OH, B-OH, and Al-OH in the hydrated surface layers promoted the solidification of the glass powders [4] and the fixation of cerium and neodymium. The binding phases that result from chemical reactions in the system exhibit a remarkable level of stability, withstanding boiling water, with the exception of carbonate phases. Further densification of the blocks was achieved through viscous flow sintering at 700 °C. The waste form integrity was confirmed by boiling test, which showed that no glass particles were released into the liquid. The use of non-radioactive substitutes with similar physicochemical behavior to their radioactive analogs, combined with alkaline activation as a stabilization method, constitutes an important tool for mitigating potential environmental risks in nuclear waste management.

- Thorpe, C. L., Neeway, J. J., Pearce, C. I., Hand, R. J., Fisher, A. J.,... & Corkhill, C. L. (2021). Forty years of durability assessment of nuclear waste glass by standard methods. npj Materials Degradation, 5(1), 61.
- Weber, W. J., Navrotsky, A., Stefanovsky, S., Vance, E. R., & Vernaz, E. (2009). Materials science of high-level nuclear waste immobilization. MRS bulletin, 34(1), 46–53.
- 3. Charlton, H., Baldinozzi, G., & Patel, M. (2023). A review of the oxygen vacancy ordering in surrogate structures simulating Pu-based nuclear ceramics. Frontiers in Nuclear Engineering, 1, 1096142.
- Monich, P. (2018). Porous glass-ceramics from alkali activation and sinter-crystallization of mixtures of waste glass and residues from plasma processing of municipal solid waste. Journal of Cleaner Production, 188, 871–878.

# Robust visible light driven 3D $\alpha$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>/TiO<sub>2</sub> photocatalytic ceramic membrane from the utilization of brown mud waste for the degradation of Bisphenol derivatives in wastewater

Akansha Mehta<sup>1\*</sup>, Jozef Kraxner<sup>1</sup>, Enrico Bernardo<sup>3</sup>, Dusan Galusek<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>FunGlass, Alexander Dubcek University of Trencin, Studentska 2, 911 50 Trencin, Slovakia, <sup>2</sup>Joint Glass Centre of the IIC SAS, TnUAD, and FChFT STU, FunGlass, Alexander Dubcek

University of Trencin, Trenčín, Slovakia

<sup>3</sup>Department of Industrial Engineering (DII), University of Padova, Via Marzolo 9, 35131 Padova, Italy

\*E-mail: akansha.akansha@tnuni.sk

Keywords: brown mud, 3D photocatalytic membranes, wastewater treatment

During the production of alumina, brown mud (BM) is obtained as a waste material. This waste material contains a relatively high amount of  $Fe_2O_3$  along with other components such as  $Al_2O_3$ ,  $SiO_2$ ,  $Na_2O$ , CaO,  $TiO_2$ , etc. For every 1 ton of alumina production, approximately 1-1.5 tons of BM are produced.

In this study, a stepwise leaching process was first carried out to separate and purify the valuable elements by using the HCl. Pre-leaching in optimized conditions using 3 M HCl at room temperature for 3 hours removed 89 % of the calcium and solid silica and resulted in the dissolution of iron and aluminum with up to 90% efficiency. After precipitation, the product was characterized by XRD, which confirmed that hematite  $(\alpha$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>) was extracted successfully from the brown mud, and the formation of goethite ( $\alpha$ -FeOOH) was suppressed. The  $\alpha$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> rich brow mud was dispersed in the mixture of TiO<sub>2</sub> with EtOH to synthesize  $\alpha$ -Fe<sub>3</sub>O<sub>3</sub>/TiO<sub>2</sub> photocatalyst. The modification of TiO<sub>2</sub> had no effect on the band gap energy of BM in the  $\alpha$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>/TiO<sub>2</sub> catalyst and the photocatalyst preserved the narrow band gap of 2.5eV due to the contribution of the BM base. The as-prepared catalyst was further explored to fabricate 3D photocatalytic ceramic membrane with variable porosity (70-90%) by Lithoz-DLP based additive manufacturing technique. The α-Fe2O3/TiO2 membranes were tested for the degradation of Bisphenol in aqueous media. Due to a low electron transfer resistance and the enhanced carrier separation, the present membranes showed much better performance than brown mud or TiO<sub>2</sub>. The photocatalytic membranes also exhibited high anti-interference ability, negligible leaching, and a long-term stability during the photocatalysis process.

#### Acknowledgments

This paper is a part of the dissemination activities of project "FunGlass" (Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalized Glass). This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement no. 739566.

# Novel microspheres YAG:Eu used for the preparation of phosphor in glass

<u>Monika Michálková</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Marzieh Ghadamyari<sup>2</sup>, Milan Parchoviansky<sup>2</sup>, Robert Klement<sup>2</sup>, Jozef Kraxner<sup>2</sup>, Dušan Galusek<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>VILA – Joint Glass Centre of the IIC SAS, TnUAD, and FChPT STU, FunGlass, Trenčín, Slovakia
<sup>2</sup>Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalized Glass, Alexander Dubček University of Trenčín, Slovakia

\*E-mail: uachmimi@savba.sk

Keywords: PiG, viscous flow, YAG phosphor

White light-emitting diodes (WLEDs) are limited in high-power fields due to their poor thermal stability. To address this issue, spectral converters called phosphors-in-glass (PiG) are considered one of the most promising solutions. Among these, the  $Y_3Al_5O_{12}$ :Eu<sup>3+/2+</sup> phosphor embedded in a glass matrix was considered as one of the most efficient solutions. In this work, novel translucent YAG-PiGs are developed through preparation by viscous flow sintering at temperatures below 700°C.

The novel Eu<sup>3+/2+</sup> doped YAG partially crystallized glass microspheres were prepared using the sol-gel Pechini method and flame synthesis with subsequent treatment in the 10%H<sub>2</sub>/90%N<sub>2</sub> reducing atmosphere. The emission spectrum of the Eu<sup>3+/2+</sup> doped YAG microspheres exhibited a wavelength range spanning from 450 to 800 nm, which was ascribed to the broad emission bands of Eu<sup>2+</sup> ions arising from 4f<sup>6</sup>5d<sup>1</sup>  $\rightarrow$  4f<sup>7</sup>(<sup>8</sup>S<sub>7/2</sub>) transition.

To accommodate YAG:Eu phosphor, four different glass matrices with a refractive index similar to YAG (RI = 1.83) were employed:  $11.4SiO_2-24.3B_2O_3-35ZnO-5.3Li_2O-12La_2O_3-12WO_3$  (M1, RI = 1.8),  $20Bi_2O_3-20ZnO-60B_2O_3$  (M2, RI = 1.778),  $20Bi_2O_3-30ZnO-50B_2O_3$  (M3, RI = 1.779), and  $10Bi_2O_3-40ZnO-50B_2O_3$  (M4, RI = 1.73). TG/DTA analysis was used to determine the glass transition and crystallization temperatures as critical parameters for viscous flow sintering. The optical properties of all four types of PiGs after sintering were evaluated.



Figure 1.: SEM figure of Eu<sup>3+/2+</sup> doped YAG microspheres in Matrice 1 sintered in viscous flow.

#### Acknowledgements

The authors are very grateful to JECS Trust for the possibility of working at Empa, the Swiss Federal Laboratories for Materials Science and Technology. Part of the work in FunGlass was funded by the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation program under grant agreement No 739566. The authors also gratefully acknowledge the financial support from the Slovak Grant Agency of the Ministry of Education, Science, Research and Sport, and VEGA 1/0476/22, and the grant APVV 19-0010.

# Effect of layered architecture and residual stress on contact damage of transparent ceramics

<u>Ali Najafzadeh</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Ali Talimian<sup>2</sup> Abdullah Jabr<sup>3</sup>, Roman Papšík<sup>3</sup>, Daniel Drdlík<sup>4,5</sup>, Karel Maca<sup>4,5</sup>, Dušan Galusek<sup>1,2</sup>, Raúl Bermejo<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Joint Glass Centre of the IIC SAS, TnUAD and FChPT STU, Študentská 2, 91150 Trenčín, Slovakia
<sup>2</sup>Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalised Glass, Alexander Dubček University of Trenčín, Študentská 2, 91150 Trenčín, Slovakia
<sup>3</sup>Department of Materials Science, Montanuniversitaet Leoben, Franz Josef-Strasse 18, A-8700 Leoben, Austria
<sup>4</sup>CEITEC - Central European Institute of Technology, Brno University of Technology, Purkynova 123, Brno, Czech Republic
<sup>5</sup>Institute of Materials Science and Engineering, Brno University of Technology, Technicka 2, Brno, Czech Republic
\*Email: ali.najafzadeh@tnuni.sk

Keywords: layered ceramics, contact damage, crack resistance

Transparent polycrystalline ceramics (TPCs) are potential alternatives to glasses and single crystals used for protective display covers in personal electronics such as smartphones. However, due to the brittle nature of ceramic materials, TPCs are prone to surface damage, which deteriorates both the mechanical performance and optical transparency of ceramic materials. In the present work, we propose a strategy to enhance the contact damage resistance of spinel ceramics through combination with alumina layers. Contact damage resistance of MgAl<sub>2</sub>O<sub>4</sub> – Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> laminates and their corresponding monoliths was investigated under Hertzian indentation using acoustic emission. The results showed that the generation of compressive in-plane residual stresses within the samples depends on the deposition of MgAl<sub>2</sub>O<sub>4</sub> layers on the surface. While embedding Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> between MgAl<sub>2</sub>O<sub>4</sub> surface layers increased the load-bearing capability before crack initiation by ca. 70% compared to monolithic spinel, the laminar structure in which spinel was embedded between alumina layers exhibited a decrease in the crack initiation force, by ca. 25%, compared to monolithic alumina. The effects of elastic properties of the layers and non-linearities during loading were captured using finite element simulations and critically discussed.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was realized in FunGlass Centre founded from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 739566. The support provided by JECS Trust under contract 2022320, and the grant VEGA 2/0028/21 is gratefully acknowledged.

# Structural analysis of magnesium aluminosilicate glass-ceramics by high-temperature raman and xrd studies

#### Deepak Patil<sup>1\*</sup>, Ali Talimian<sup>2</sup>, Dusan Galusek<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalised Glass, Alexander Dubček University of Trenčín, Študentská 2, 91150 Trenčín, Slovakia

<sup>2</sup>Joint Glass Centre of the IIC SAS, TnUAD and FChPT STU, Študentská 2, 91150 Trenčín, Slovakia \*E-mail: deepak.patil@tnuni.sk

Keywords: MAS glass, HT-Raman, HT-XRD, bio-active glasses

Owning to their high mechanical and thermal stability, high chemical stability, and, most importantly, osteogenesis properties, magnesium aluminosilicate glass ceramics are of particular interest to applications such as bone cement, bone grafts, implant coatings, tooth filling materials, and even toothpastes<sup>1,2</sup>. Glass composition, structure, and thermal history are critical parameters in modifying the properties of MAS glass ceramics<sup>3</sup>. For example, the mechanical performance and properties of dental crowns made from MAS glass ceramics are influenced by the heat treatment program used for sinter-crystallization. Understanding the effects of thermal history on the structural evolution of MAS glass is thus essential to developing products with the desired properties.

In the present study, we have studied the structural evolution of Magnesium Aluminosilicate Glasses (MAS) as a function of temperature by HT-Raman and HT-XRD in addition to other techniques such as SEM and XPS. Also, the impact of bulk and surface crystallization of the glasses was studied using glass powders with various particle sizes, that is,  $< 25 \mu m$ , 25-40  $\mu m$ , 40-80  $\mu m$ , and 80-100  $\mu m$ ). The results are beneficial in designing the sintering regime and tailoring the final properties of MAS glass-ceramics.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was realized in FunGlass Centre funded from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation program under grant agreement No 739566. Financial support of this work by the grant VEGA 2/0028/21 is gratefully acknowledged.

#### References

- Karakuzu-Ikizler, B.; Terzioğlu, P.; Basaran-Elalmis, Y.; Tekerek, B. S.; Yücel, S. Role of Magnesium and Aluminum Substitution on the Structural Properties and Bioactivity of Bioglasses Synthesized from Biogenic Silica. *Bioact Mater* 2020, 5 (1), 66–73. https://doi.org/https://doi. org/10.1016/j.bioactmat.2019.12.007.
- Tripathi, H.; Rath, C.; Kumar, A. S.; Manna, P. P.; Singh, S. P. Structural, Physico-Mechanical and in-Vitro Bioactivity Studies on SiO2–CaO–P2O5–SrO–Al2O3 Bioactive Glasses. *Materials Science* and Engineering: C 2019, 94, 279–290. https://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.1016/j.msec.2018.09.041.
- Levelut, C.; Le Parc, R.; Faivre, A.; Champagnon, B. Influence of Thermal History on the Structure and Properties of Silicate Glasses. *J Non Cryst Solids* 2006, 352 (42), 4495–4499. https://doi.org/ https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jnoncrysol.2006.02.135.

Oral

# ZIF-8 metal organic framework (MOF)/Ti<sub>3</sub>C<sub>2</sub> MXene hybrid sheets for improvement of corrosion resistance of bio-based vanillin alcohol diglycidyl ether (DGEVA)-silica composite coatings

#### <u>Reza Samiee<sup>1\*</sup></u>, Aatif Ijaz<sup>1</sup>, Parisa Naghadian Moghaddam<sup>1</sup>, Milan Parchoviansky<sup>1</sup>, Alicia Duran<sup>2</sup>, Emilia Merino<sup>2</sup>, Dušan Galusek<sup>1,3</sup>, Yolanda Castro<sup>2</sup>, Amirhossein Pakseresht<sup>1</sup>

 <sup>1</sup>Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalized Glass, Alexander Dubček University of Trenčín, Trenčín, Slovakia
 <sup>2</sup>Instituto de Cerámica y Vidrio (CSIC), Campus de Cantoblanco, 28049, Madrid, Spain
 <sup>3</sup>Joint Glass Centre of the IIC SAS, TnUAD, and FChPT STU, Trenčin, Slovakia
 \*E-mail: reza.samiee@tnuni.sk

**Keywords**: nano-carrier,  $Ti_3C_2$  MXene, metal organic framework, smart self-healing, corrosion, biobased epoxy coating

Currently, 75% of global epoxy polymers rely on bisphenol A (BPA), a well-known reprotoxic substance. This not only represents environmental challenges but also hinders progress towards sustainable solutions. Our research focuses on changing this landscape by developing an environmentally benign alternative based on a green epoxy coating formulated with vanillin alcohol diglycidyl ether (DGEVA), a derivative of wood lignin. This innovative approach not only eliminates the reliance on BPA but also leverages the inherent properties of wood lignin to enhance barrier and adhesion properties, ultimately extending the lifespan of the coating through robust metal oxide-polymer bonds.

Based on this approach, the objective of the work focuses on further enhancing the performance of a composite coating prepared in our previous work. The incorporation of MXene nano-sheets as carriers for inhibitors would increase the overall efficacy of the coating. The critical aspect of our investigation lies in the functionalization of MXene surfaces through the in-situ growth of ZIF-8 (zeolitic imidazolate framework-8) nanoparticles. This intricate modification not only preserves the intrinsic properties of MXene nano-sheets but also adds additional functionalities, making it an ideal carrier for inhibitors in the composite coating. Electrochemical impedance spectroscopy (EIS) was applied to the reinforced intact coatings to evaluate their passive/active inhibition efficiency. The results obtained from the Nyquist diagrams indicated that the total resistance of the coating reinforced with ZIF8-modified MXene sheets was noticeably improved compared with the blank sample and the coatings containing only MXene or ZIF-8 nanoparticles.

#### Acknowledgments



This item is a part of the dissemination activities of project FunGlass. This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation program under grant agreement No 739566. The authors also gratefully acknowledge the financial support from the VEGA 1/0171/21 and VEGA 1/0242/23.

- H.Q. Pham, M.J. Marks, Epoxy Resins, in: Encyclopedia of Polymer Science and Technology, Wiley VCH, 2005: pp. 678–804. https://doi.org/10.1002/0471440264.
- M. Bondesson, J. Jönsson, I. Pongratz, N. Olea, J.P. Cravedi, D. Zalko, H. Håkansson, K. Halldin, D. Di Lorenzo, C. Behl, D. Manthey, P. Balaguer, B. Demeneix, J.B. Fini, V. Laudet, J.Å. Gustafsson, A CASCADE of effects of bisphenol A, Reproductive Toxicology. 28 (2009) 563–567.
- 3. M. Fache, B. Boutevin, S. Caillol, Vanillin, a key-intermediate of biobased polymers, Eur Polym J. 68 (2015) 488–502.

### Fullerene (C-60) embedded MOF glass composite

<u>Orhan Sisman<sup>1</sup></u><sup>\*</sup>, Beata Pecusova<sup>1</sup>, Peter Svancerek<sup>2</sup>, Anna Prnova<sup>2</sup>, Jose J. Velazquez<sup>1</sup>, Lothar Wondraczek<sup>3,4</sup>, Dusan Galusek<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalized Glass, TNUAD, 91150 Trencin, Slovakia <sup>2</sup>Joint Glass Centre of the IIC SAS, TnUAD and FChFT STU, TNUAD, 91150 Trencin, Slovakia <sup>3</sup>Otto Schott Institute of Materials Research, Friedrich Schiller University Jena, 07737 Jena, Germany <sup>4</sup>Center for Energy and Environmental Chemistry, Friedrich Schiller University Jena, 07737 Jena, Germany

\*E-mail: orhan.sisman@tnuni.sk

Keywords: MOF glass, fullerene, hybrid glass composite

The metal-organic-framework (MOF) glasses promise new horizons by easily extending the porosity limits of conventional porous glasses to microporous scale. There have been great effort to enhance the mechanical and chemical properties of melt-quenched ZIF glasses, the best MOF glass formers, by blending inorganic glass<sup>1</sup>, ionic liquids<sup>2</sup>, and polymers<sup>3</sup>. A similar strategy has been employed by embedding fullerene into ZIF-62 crystals to functionalize and improve the mechanical properties of ZIF-62 glass composites. Fullerene, a carbon allotrope with a diameter of approximately 7 Å, exhibits attractive characteristics due to its rich  $\pi$  electron nature<sup>4,5</sup>. Preliminary observations based on optical images (Fig. 1a), XRD data (Fig. 1b), FTIR, UV-Vis data of ZIF-62, C-60 and C-60@ZIF-62 crystals confirmed the presence of C-60 in ZIF-62. Differential Scanning Calorimetry (DSC) analysis (Fig. 1c) revealed a small reduction in the melting temperature by C-60 loading. To the best of our knowledge, the work resulted in preparation of a novel C-60@a<sub>g</sub>(ZIF-62) hybrid glass composition.



Figure 1.(a) Microscope images, (b) XRD profiles and (c) DSC profiles of ZIF-62 and C-60@ZIF-62.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

#### Acknowledgments

This item is part of the dissemination activities of the FunGlass project, received funding from the European Union Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 739566.

- 1. Castillo-Blas, C. *et al.* Interfacial Bonding between a Crystalline Metal–Organic Framework and an Inorganic Glass. *J. Am. Chem. Soc.* **145**, 22913–22924 (2023).
- Nozari, V.; Smirnova, O.; Tuffnell, J.M.; Knebel, A.; Bennett, T.D.; Wondraczek, L. Low-Temperature Melting and Glass Formation of the Zeolitic Imidazolate Frameworks ZIF-62 and ZIF-76 Through Ionic Liquid Incorporation. *Adv. Mater. Technol.* In Press, (2022).
- 3. Das, C. & Henke, S. Smoke in the MOF liquid. 22, 809–810 (2023).
- Kroto, H. W., Heath, J. R., O'Brien, S. C., Curl, R. F. & Smalley, R. E. C60: Buckminsterfullerene. *Nature* 318, 162–163 (1985).
- 5. Meirzadeh, E. et al. A few-layer covalent network of fullerenes. Nature 613, 71-76 (2023).

# Chemical strengthening of borosilicate glass: challenges, applications, and opportunities

#### <u>A. Talimian<sup>1</sup></u>, D. Galusek<sup>1,2</sup>, V.M. Sglavo<sup>3,4</sup>, L. Wondraczek<sup>5</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalised Glass, Alexander Dubcek University of Trencin, Trencin, Slovakia
<sup>2</sup>Joint Glass Centre of the IIC SAS, TnUAD and FChPT STU, Trencin, Slovakia
<sup>3</sup>Department of Industrial Engineering, University of Trento, Trento, Italy
<sup>4</sup>CNR-IFN, Photonics and Nanotecnologies Institute, Trento, Italy
<sup>5</sup>Otto Schott Institute of Materials Research, University of Jena, Jena, Germany E-mail: ali.talimian@tnuni.sk

Keywords: borosilicate glass, chemical strengthening, mechanical properties, wear

Specialty glass, and borosilicate glass in particular, plays a vital role in pharmaceutical packaging. The chemical stability of borosilicate glass enables the storage of medicines and drugs for a long time. However, glass is prone to surface damage at various stages of its lifetime, including production, packaging, transport, and shelf life, which dramatically reduces its mechanical durability. Therefore, developing glass products with improved resistance to surface damage and defects would be key to extending the use and shelf time of pharmaceutical packaging. In this presentation, the chemical strengthening of borosilicate glasses and its challenges and possibilities are reviewed. Different pharmaceutical glasses were subjected to conventional and electric field-assisted Na<sup>+</sup>/K<sup>+</sup> ion exchange by immersion in molten KNO<sub>3</sub> salt baths containing various amounts of impurities such as sodium and calcium. The ionexchanged glasses were characterized in terms of bending strength, hardness, resistance to indentation fracture, and wear behavior. The results show that the chemical composition of the salt bath greatly impacted the efficiency of chemical strengthening.  $Na^+/K^+$  ion exchange doubled the bending strength of borosilicate glasses; the exchange of smaller Na<sup>+</sup> ions in glass with larger  $K^+$  ions from the salt bath produces a compressive surface layer which increases the bending strength. In contrast, the results show that  $Na^+/K^+$  ion exchange has a negative impact on wear behavior and scratch resistance; this is accounted for by the reduction of glass free-volume due to the stuffing of larger  $K^+$  ions into the structure of glass.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was realized in FunGlass Centre funded from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 739566. Financial support of this work by VEGA 2/0028/21 is gratefully acknowledged.

# Multifunctional composite systems based on nanostructured magnetite anchored to SBA-15 as potential candidates for advanced materials technologies

<u>Zulema Vargas-Osorio</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Jorge González-Rodríguez<sup>2</sup>, Carlos Vázquez-Vázquez<sup>3</sup>, Yolanda Piñeiro<sup>3</sup>, Martin Michálek<sup>1</sup>, Gumersindo Feijoo<sup>2</sup>, María Teresa Moreira<sup>2</sup>, José Rivas<sup>3</sup>, Dušan Galusek<sup>1,4</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalized Glass, Alexander Dubček University of Trenčín, Študentská 2, 91150 Trenčín, Slovakia

<sup>2</sup>CRETUS Department of Chemical Engineering, Universidade de Santiago de Compostela, 15782 Santiago de Compostela, Spain

<sup>3</sup>Laboratory of Magnetism and Nanotechnology, Departments of Physical Chemistry, Faculty of Chemistry, and Applied Physics, Faculty of Physics, Universidade de Santiago de Compostela, 15782 Santiago de Compostela, Spain

<sup>4</sup>Joint Glass Centre of the Institute of Inorganic Chemistry Slovak Academy of Science, TnU AD and FChFT STU, TnU AD, Trenčín, Slovakia

\*E-mail: zulema.vargas@tnuni.sk

**Keywords**: multifunctional composite systems, SBA-15 mesoporous silica, magnetite nanoparticles, reusable magnetic catalyst

Nowadays there is a great demand for advanced multifunctional materials to provide effective solutions to several technological and scientific challenges associated with a variety of fields. Among the most in-demand fields are those related to biomedicine, environment, and energy. Therefore, the possibility of designing and developing a group of materials with the potential to be applied to a wide scope of problems related to those fields presents a significant advantage. Consequently, those composite systems that combine mesoporous silica particles with superparamagnetic iron oxide nanoparticles (SPIONs) are very promising candidates due to their versatility and tunability. Of particular interest are those based on SBA-15 rodshaped particles and Fe<sub>3</sub>O<sub>4</sub> nanoparticles, since both exhibit outstanding physicochemical and biological properties when studied separately. Combined, these components can serve as catalysts, sensors, adsorbents, scaffolds for tissue regeneration, theranostic platforms, and magnetic carriers. They offer protection to sensitive biological and technological molecules from degradation or harmful environmental conditions<sup>1,2</sup>. Accordingly, SBA-15 mesoporous silica has been shown to have exemplary chemical and hydrothermal stability, exhibiting 2D hexagonal symmetry with 3D pore connectivity constituted by a system of ordered cylindrical pore channels with diameter sizes in the mesoporous range interconnected by micropores. Furthermore, its surface reactivity due to the presence of a large number of silanol groups allows it to be modified with many different functional groups. For its part, the incorporation of SPIONs provides a new set of beneficial effects attributed to its nanoscale size and magnetic properties, creating a robust structure by reinforcing the mechanical properties of SBA-15. For environmental applications, its presence allows the composites to be used as recoverable Fenton and photo-Fenton catalysts to degrade pollutants in water bodies, which has become one of the main concerns of current societies<sup>3,4</sup>.

This work describes the characteristics of different SBA-15@ Fe<sub>3</sub>O<sub>4</sub> composites obtained from optimized synthesis procedures using various approaches and magnetic doping. The structural, textural, and magnetic characteristics, as well as the modification of the surface chemical composition, are discussed. The presentation also includes selected examples of their suitability as catalysts focused on the treatment and elimination of contaminants found in conventional wastewater.

#### Acknowledgments



This paper is a part of dissemination activities of project FunGlass. This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 739566. Financial support of this work by the grants VEGA 1/0057/23 and APVV-22-0036 is gratefully acknowledged.

- 1. J. Mater. Chem. B, 2017, 5, 9395–9404. DOI:10.1039/C7TB01963G
- 2. International Journal of Nanotechnology 2016, 13 (8), 648-658. DOI: 10.1504/IJNT.2016.079668.
- 3. Journal of Environmental Management 349 (2024) 119461. DOI:10.1016/j.jenvman.2023.119461
- 4. Nanomaterials 2021, 11, 2902. DOI:10.3390/nano11112902

# **Robocasted Boron-doped S53P4 bioactive scaffolds for bone tissue regeneration**

<u>Ertugrul Varlik</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Lenka Drotárová<sup>2</sup>, Si Chen<sup>1</sup>, Edgar B. Montufar<sup>2</sup>, Aldo R. Boccaccini<sup>3</sup>, Dušan Galusek<sup>1,4</sup> Martin Michálek<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalized Glass - FunGlass, Alexander Dubček University of Trenčín, Študentská 2, 911 50 Trenčín, Slovakia

<sup>2</sup>Central European Institute of Technology - CEITEC, Brno University of Technology, Purkyňova 123, 612 00, Brno, Czech Republic

<sup>3</sup>Institute of Biomaterials, Department of Material Science and Engineering, University of Erlangen-Nuremberg, 91058 Erlangen, Germany

<sup>4</sup>Joint Glass Centre of the IIC SAS, TnUAD, FChPT STU, Študentská 2, 911 50 Trenčín, Slovakia \*E-mail: ertugrul.varlik@tnuni.sk

Keywords: robocasting, scaffold, bioactive glass, bone tissue engineering

The incorporation of therapeutic ions, such as boron (B), into bioactive glass (BG), biologically enhances the performance of the system. This enables the fulfillment of specific requirements, including the stimulation of vascular endothelial growth factor (VEGF), which is essential for architectures that mimic natural bone structure. This study uses robocasting (direct-ink writing), an extrusion-based additive manufacturing (AM) technique, to craft three-dimensional (3D) scaffolds using a composite ink of B-doped S53P4-based BG and a gelatine-based binder. The B-doped S53P4 SiO,-Na,O-CaO-P,O, BG system was fabricated through water quenching and ground to a particle size of less than 40 µm. X-ray diffraction (XRD) and inductively coupled plasma-optical emission spectroscopy (ICP-OES) were utilized to analyse the system's fidelity for scaffold fabrication. When thermal processes are conducted at temperatures surpassing the crystallization onset, the amorphous phases within the structure of BGs undergo an undesired transformation into crystalline forms. This structural change negatively impacts the efficacy of the ions released from the glass, thereby inhibiting their biological activity. Therefore, scaffolds were sintered at the crystallization onset obtained from differential scanning calorimetry/thermogravimetry (DSC/TG) analysis, resulting in a shrinkage of around 30% in volume. Both heat-treated and non-heat-treated scaffolds were subjected to in-vitro simulated body fluid (SBF) solution for various periods (24h, 72h, 1, and 2 weeks) to confirm the hydroxyapatite-like crystal formation. The scaffolds were examined after immersion to SBF using scanning electron microscopy (SEM), XRD, and fourier transform infrared spectroscopy (FTIR) for the *in-vitro* bioactivity. Evaluating further structural integrity and mechanical behaviour, significantly will contribute to advancing our understanding of their potential applications in tissue engineering.

#### Acknowledgments



This item is a part of dissemination activities of project FunGlass. This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 739566. Financial support of this work by the grants VEGA 1/0057/23 and APVV-22-0036 is gratefully acknowledged.

### Cold-sintering of phosphor in glass (PiG) for solid state lighting

#### Junjie Zhao\*, Marzieh Ghadamyari, Ali Talimian, Dušan Galusek

Centre for Functional and Surface Functionalized Glass, TnU AD, Trenčín, Slovakia Joint Glass Centre of the IIC SAS, TnU AD and FChFT STU, TnU AD, Trenčín, Slovakia \*E-mail: junjie.zhao@tnuni.sk

Keywords: solid state lighting, silicate glass, phosphor, cold sintering

The widely used white light-emitting diode consists of InGaN chip and YAG:Ce<sup>3+</sup> phosphor dispersed in organic silicon. The silicone matrix is characteristic by a low thermal and chemical stability and is discolored after long-term exposure to high-power illumination [1, 2]. To solve this problem and meet the trend of high-power high-brightness wLED, multiple technical routes have been proposed. For example, the phosphor powder can be sintered on a ceramic plate, or a phosphor powder and silicate glass mixture can be sintered by viscous flow [3]. Both processes require sintering temperatures higher than 500 °C that can impair the phosphor properties and lead to photoluminescence quenching. Glass is considered a suitable substrate material to provide a chemically reliable and thermally stable environment for the phosphor. In previous studies, the possibilities of precipitating phosphor or rare earth doped crystals from glass were explored, but the luminescence properties were not satisfactory.

Cold sintering is an emerging technique that allows densification of ceramic powders under applied pressure and a comparably low temperature (< 350 °C). This technique also enables the sintering of silicate glass with random types and combinations of phosphors. In addition, with this technique, not only the selection of glass and phosphor, but also the color and device structure design can be flexible. In this presentation, as a first step of this research, we explore glass cold-sintering with low melting temperature flux, which, to the best of our knowledge, is used in the glass cold sintering for the first time. Starting from borosilicate glass, the influence of the glass formers and flux species / amount on cold sintering behavior was investigated. Preliminary results and lessons learned from the sintering process are presented.

#### Acknowledgments

This work is a part of the activities of the FunGlass project. This project has received funding from the European Union Horizon 2020 Research and Innovation Program under Grant 739566. The financial support of this work by the grants VEGA 2/0028/21, and APVV 19-0010 is gratefully acknowledged.

- Chen, D., Xiang, W., Liang, X., Zhong, J., Yu, H., Ding, M., Lu, H. and Ji, Z., 2015. Advances in transparent glass-ceramic phosphors for white light-emitting diodes—A review. *Journal of the European Ceramic Society*, 35(3), pp.859–869.
- Chung, W.J. and Nam, Y.H., 2020. A review on phosphor in glass as a high power LED color converter. ECS Journal of Solid State Science and Technology, 9(1), p.016010.
- He, M., Jia, J., Zhao, J., Qiao, X., Du, J. and Fan, X., 2021. Glass-ceramic phosphors for solid state lighting: a review. *Ceramics International*, 47(3), pp.2963–2980.
## POSTER

## T1 Ceramics for Energy Conversion, Storage, and Distribution Systems

### **T1.1 HIGH-TEMPERATURE FUEL CELLS AND ELECTROLYSIS**

## A study on recirculating hotbox design for a 10kW solid oxide electrolysis cell (SOEC) system

Hyung-Joon Bang\*, Tak-Hyoung Lim, Soo-Hyun Kim, Doowon Seo, Segi Byun

Hydrogen Energy Research Division, Korea Institute of Energy Research, Daejeon, South Korea \*E-mail: bang@kier.re.kr

**Keywords**: solid oxide electrolysis cell (SOEC), hydrogen production, hotbox, heat recovery, system efficiency

To enhance the efficiency of hydrogen production in Solid Oxide Electrolysis Cell (SOEC) systems operating at high temperatures, the development of hotbox systems with effective heat recovery functionalities is imperative. In this study, we analyzed the efficiency characteristics of a 10 kW SOEC system utilizing industrial waste steam as external heat sources and conducted the design of a hotbox maintaining stack temperatures within the SOEC system and featuring primary heat recovery for stack off-gas. To validate the stack model for system analysis, I-V tests were conducted on a stack with an active area of 100 cm<sup>2</sup>. Evaluation of a 22-layer SOEC stack operating at 700°C indicated a stack efficiency of 34.7 kW/kgH<sub>2</sub> at 40A current, with a hydrogen production rate of 0.36 Nm<sup>3</sup>/hr. Additionally, under high-current operating conditions, the same stack exhibited a stack efficiency of 43.6 kW/kgH<sub>2</sub> at 100A. Aspen HYSYS was used for the basic design of the SOEC system, and efficiency analysis was conducted based on the stack operating conditions, external steam supply temperature, and off-gas recirculating conditions. The design study shows that the system efficiency is influenced by the supply temperature of externally provided steam and the effectiveness of the heat exchanger, and that a stack off-gas recirculation system that receives 200°C steam can result in an SOEC system design with an efficiency of 81% or higher. In preparation for hotbox fabrication, a hotbox subsystem design was developed to supply steam through trim-heating from the off-gas of the stack after primary heat recovery. The study included the derivation of design specifications for the hot-BOP and an analysis of system efficiency. In order to design the insulation of the hotbox, incorporating steam supply piping, a thermal analysis model was developed. Analytical validation verified that insulation performance was effectively maintained, resulting in an average surface temperature of 47°C on five exterior insulation surfaces of the hotbox at a stack operating temperature of 700°C.

In conclusion, the hotbox design has been completed to ensure system efficiencies ranging from 56% to 78% during 10 kW stack operation, with external water supply temperature being a determining factor. Subsequent research will involve the integration of stack modules into the fabricated hotbox to validate hydrogen production efficiency within the hotbox system.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was conducted under the framework of Reseach and Development Program of the Korea Institute of Energy Research (C4-2402).

#### References

"New design and performance evaluation of 1 kW-class reversible solid oxide electrolysis-fuel cell stack using flat-tubular cells" Y.S. Choi et al. J.of Power Sources, Vol.542 (2022).

## Comprehensive investigation of LSCF degradation in varied aggressive atmospheric conditions for enhanced SOFC performance

<u>Ivan Kirillov</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Martin Juckel<sup>2</sup>, Egbert Wessel<sup>1,</sup> Norbert H. Menzler<sup>2</sup>, Michael Müller<sup>1</sup>, Robert Spatschek<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Energy and Climate Research (IEK), IEK-2: Structure and Function of Materials, Forschungszentrum Jülich GmbH, Jülich, Germany <sup>2</sup>Institute of Energy and Climate Research (IEK), IEK-1: Materials Synthesis and Processing, Forschungszentrum Jülich GmbH, Jülich, Germany \*E-mail: i.kirillov@fz-juelich.de

Keywords: SOFC, LSCF, degradation, aggressive atmosphere

Solid oxide fuel cells (SOFCs) epitomize a significant leap in clean energy conversion technologies, facilitating efficient and environmentally friendly electricity generation. The performance and durability of SOFCs crucially hinge on the electrode materials used. Among these,  $La_{0.58}Sr_{0.4}Co_{0.2}Fe_{0.8}O_{3.5}$  (LSCF), a perovskite material, is distinguished by its excellent electrical conductivity and operational stability, making it an ideal candidate for cathode applications. This study delves into the interactions of LSCF with a range of atmospheres containing HCl, CO<sub>2</sub>, and H<sub>2</sub>O over temperatures spanning 550 to 650 °C. The aim is to assess the material's resilience under conditions that simulate SOFC operation in poluted atmosphere.

The experimental results reveal that the full decomposition of LSCF, upon exposure to synthetic air containing 10% water vapor, 1% to 71% CO<sub>2</sub>, and HCl, results in the formation of several compounds, including  $SrCl_2(H_2O)_6$ , LaOCl, Fe<sub>3</sub>O<sub>4</sub>, and Co<sub>3</sub>O<sub>4</sub>, indicating a complex degradation process. The experimental evidence underlines that CO<sub>2</sub> presence alongside HCl does not perceptibly alter the LSCF microstructure, with HCl solely dictating the degradation process. Additionally, atmospheres comprising synthetic air with CO<sub>2</sub> concentrations ranging from 5% to 100%, and those containing synthetic air, 10% water vapor, and CO<sub>2</sub> from 5% to 90% were meticulously tested. In experiments involving synthetic air, CO<sub>2</sub>, with or without the presence of water vapor, the formation of strontium carbonate was observed. This is attributed to the reaction of strontium from LSCF with CO<sub>2</sub>. The presence of water vapor in these atmospheres significantly increased the amount of strontium carbonate formed as a result of the perovskite's degradation.

For post-experimental characterization of the LSCF samples, scanning electron microscopy (SEM), Energy-dispersive X-ray spectroscopy (EDS) and X-ray diffraction (XRD) were utilized. These methods provided in-depth insights into the microstructural changes and phase composition, shedding light on the degradation mechanisms. Significant physical transformations in the samples, such as pores emergence and surface whitening, were evident and validated through optical microscopy. The XRD analysis further supported the complete disintegration of LSCF after HCl exposure, while SEM and EDS showed perovskite degradation in  $CO_2$  containing atmosphere.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was done in the framework of the WirLebenSOFC project, which is supported by the Federal Ministry of Education and Research, Germany (FKZ 03SF0622B).

### Investigation of salt-material interaction in sea water electrolysis through solid oxide electrolyzer utilizing Ni-YSZ ceramic materials

Engy Zain<sup>\*</sup>, Jürgen Malzbender, Michael Müller, Robert Spatschek

Institute of Energy and Climate Research IEK-2, Forschungszentrum Jülich GmbH, 52425 Jülich, Germany

\*E-mail: e.zain@fz-juelich.de

Keywords: solid oxide electrolyzer, Ni-YSZ, sea water, sea salt

The utilization of solid oxide electrolyzer (SOE) technology holds significant promise for sustainable hydrogen production, offering a pathway towards clean energy solutions. According to the current state of the art, technical water electrolysis processes rely on water that is at least of drinking water quality. For this reason, there is a conflict between the use of treated water in electrolysis and as drinking water. Accordingly, process water or seawater should ideally be used directly to produce hydrogen. Therefore, this research emphasis on a thorough investigation into the interaction dynamics between sea water salts and the constituent materials of the SOE cell, particularly focusing on Ni-YSZ (Nickel-Yttria Stabilized Zirconia) ceramic materials.

In a first step, thermodynamic calculations utilizing FactSage software were performed to investigate what proportion of the impurities contained in sea water from various origins reaches the electrolyzer cell and in what form they are present either as gas impurity or salt deposit. Different percentages of aerosols formed in the vaporizer were considered to determine their effect on the amount and composition of salts deposited in the cell.

Furthermore, computational modelling provided invaluable insights into the thermodynamic aspects of salt-material interaction within the SOE cell. The modelling results highlight the tendency of magnesia (MgO) and calcium oxide (CaO) to substitute yttria ( $Y_2O_3$ ) within the yttria-stabilized zirconia (YSZ) lattice structure. This substitution phenomenon has most likely implications on the material's structural integrity and electrochemical performance.

In a second step, loosely pressed pellets consisting of a mixture of Ni-YSZ and the predicted salt composition as well as half cells (Ni-YSZ on YSZ) with salt deposit were annealed in a humid reducing atmosphere (52% H<sub>2</sub>O in Ar/4%H<sub>2</sub>) at 800 and 900 °C for 100 hours. Furthermore, salt-free pellets and half cell samples without deposit were annealed under the same conditions in an atmosphere saturated with respective salt vapours. The pellets were analysed by XRD and the half cells by optical microscopy and SEM.

Beside others, the experimental investigations reveal interesting results concerning the interaction between sulphur and nickel within the SOE cell. Such interactions are of great importance in understanding the operational behaviour and long-term stability of SOE systems.

Both, the experimental and modelling results will be presented and discussed. They contribute to a deeper understanding of the complex interactions between salt constituents and materials in SOE systems. By clarifying the mechanisms underlying salt-material interactions, this research paves the way for informed strategies aimed at enhancing the efficiency, durability, and overall performance of SOE technology in sea water electrolysis processes.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was done in the framework of the PRELUDE project, which is supported by the Federal Ministry of Education and Research of Germany (FKZ 03SF0650A).

Abbildung 3 Nickelsulfid nach dem Erstarren auf der Oberfläche der Elektrolysezelle.

## T1.5 NANOSTRUCTURED, AND HYBRID FUNCTIONAL MATERIALS FOR Energy and Sustainability

### Is it possible for naphthalimides to be a future organic battery?

<u>Delyana Marinova</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Silva Stanchovska, Yulian Zagranyarski<sup>2</sup>, Monika Mutovska<sup>2</sup>, Natali Simeonova<sup>2</sup>, Radostina Stoyanova<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of General and Inorganic Chemistry, Bulgarian Academy of Sciences, 1113 Sofia, Bulgaria <sup>2</sup>Faculty of Chemistry and Pharmacy, Sofia University "St. Kliment Ohridski", 1164 Sofia, Bulgaria \*E-mail: manasieva@svr.igic.bas.bg

**Keywords**: diselenolo-1,8-naphthalimides, cycling voltammetry, capacity testing, carbon-based electrolyte, ionic liquid-based electrolyte

Environmental pollution and the depletion of natural resources have always been essential problems that humanity strives to solve. With technological advancements and the rampant use of lithium-ion batteries in our daily lives, the need to look for more environmentally friendly and potentially cost-effective alternatives has come to the fore. Organic rechargeable batteries can be excellent successors to LIBs as next-generation energy storage systems due to organic design flexibility, environmental friendliness, etc.

This report presents the synthesis procedure of *peri*-substituted dichalcogen naphthalimides and their redox interaction with Li<sup>+</sup> ions. The compounds containing dithiolo- and diselenolo-bridge were investigated electrochemically by a cyclic voltammetry and galvanostatic method in carbon-based and ionic liquid-based electrolytes (Figure 1). The cyclingvoltammetry indicates that the Se-substituted compounds participate in *n*- and *p*-type redox reactions at about 2.0 V and above 4.0 V vs. Li/Li<sup>+</sup>, respectively. At lower potential, the Sesubstituted compounds are able to uptake up to 6 Li<sup>+</sup> ions, depending on the kind of electrolyte used. The results for Se-substituted compounds are compared with previously reported data for S-substituted ones [1].



Fig.1 The synthesis scheme (a), the first discharge curve in different electrolytes (b), and CV curves at 5 mV/s (c) and 0.2 mV/s (d) of naphthalene monoimides with *peri*-annulated diselenide bridge in an ionic liquid-based electrolyte.

#### Acknowledgments

The financial support from the National Science Fund of Bulgaria (Project KΠ-06-H69/1) is acknowledged. Part of the experiments was performed with equipment included in the National Center of Mechatronics and Clean Technologies, co-financed by the European Union through the European Regional Development Fund under grant agreement BG05M2OP001-1.001.

#### References

Mutovska M, Simeonova N, Stoyanov S, Zagranyarski Y, Stanchovska S, Marinova D., *Materials*, **2023**, 16(23), 7471.

## Multiscale confinement synthesis of nitrogen-rich molybdenum carbide for efficient hydrogen evolution reaction

#### Jingwen Sun<sup>\*</sup>, Liming Dai

Key Laboratory for Soft Chemistry and Functional Materials, Ministry of Education, Nanjing University of Science and Technology, Nanjing 210094, Jiangsu, China \*E-mail: Jingwen\_Sun@njust.edu.cn

**Keywords**: molybdenum carbide, hydrogen evolution reaction, multiscale confinement synthesis, valence band modulation, nitrogen doping

The molybdenum carbide  $(Mo_2C)$  has been regarded as one of the most cost-efficient and stable electrocatalyst for the hydrogen evolution reaction (HER) by the virtue of its Pt-like electronic structures <sup>[1-3]</sup>. However, the inherent limitation of high density of empty valence band significantly reduces its catalytic reactivity by reason of strong hydrogen desorption resistance [4-6]. Herein, we propose a multiscale confinement synthesis method (Figure 1) to design the nitrogen-rich Mo<sub>2</sub>C for modulating the band structure via decomposing the precoordination bonded polymer in a pressure-tight tube sealing system. Pre-bonded C/N-Mo in the coordination precursor constructs a micro-confinement space, enabling the homogeneous nitrogenization in-situ happened during the formation of Mo<sub>2</sub>C. Simultaneously, the evolved gases from the precursor decomposition in tube sealing system establish a macroconfinement environment, preventing the lattice N escape and further endowing a continuous nitridation. Combining the multiscale confinement effects, the nitrogen-rich Mo<sub>2</sub>C displays as high as 25 % N-Mo concentration in carbide lattice, leading to a satisfactory band structure. Accordingly, the constructed nitrogen-rich Mo<sub>2</sub>C reveals an adorable catalytic activity for HER in both alkaline and acid solution. It is anticipated that the multiscale confinement synthesis strategy presents guideline for the rational design of electrocatalysts and beyond.



Figure 1. Schematic representation of multiscale confinement pyrolysis strategy to prepare the nitrogenrich  $Mo_2C$ 

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

#### References

- H.C. Fu, X.H. Chen, B. Yang, Y.H. Luo, T. Li, X.H. Wang, Q. Zhang, X.L. Li, N.B. Li, H.Q. Luo, Appl. Catal. B-Eenviron. 332 (2023) 122739.
- Y.F. Ma, M. Chen, H.B. Geng, H.F. Dong, P. Wu, X.M. Li, G.Q. Guan, T.J. Wang, Adv. Funct. Mater. 30 (2020) 2000561.
- W. Liu, X.T. Wang, F. Wang, K.F. Du, Z.F. Zhang, Y.Z. Guo, H.Y. Yin, D.H. Wang, Nat. Commun. 12 (2021) 6776.
- 4. R. Kumar, Z. Ahmed, H. Kaur, C. Bera, V. Bagchi, Catal. Sci. Technol. 10 (2020) 2213.
- 5. Q. Gao, W. Zhang, Z. Shi, L. Yang, Y. Tang, Adv. Mater. 31 (2019) 1802880.
- 6. X.F. Lu, L. Yu, J. Zhang, X.W. Lou, Adv. Mater. 31 (2019) 1900699.

### Unlocking mechanocatalysis: exploring nanocrystalline BaTi<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub> in a centrosymmetric phase with anti-directional dipole layers

Shujun Zhang<sup>\*</sup>, Yumeng Du, Zhenxiang Cheng

Institute for Superconducting and Electronics Materials, University of Wollongong, Wollongong, Australia

\*E-mail: shujun@uow.edu.au

Keywords: mechanocatalysis, BaTi<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub>, nanocrystalline

Innovative phase of nano materials which break the traditional structural constraints are highly desirable, particular in the field of mechanocatalysis, offering versatile applications ranging from energy, healthcare and medical diagnosis and treatment. In this work, we successfully synthesized a distinct layered barium dititanate (BaTi<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub>) nanocrystals using a pHmodulated hydrothermal method. These nanocrystals exhibit outstanding hydrogen generation capability (1160  $\mu$ mol·g<sup>-1</sup>h<sup>-1</sup> in pure water) and demonstrate remarkable performance in organic dye degradation using ultrasonication, as demonstrated in Figure 1. The crystal structure of this newly discovered BaTi<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub> phase, was determined by a combination of synchrotron Powder Diffraction refinement and X-ray adsorption techniques, including X-ray Absorption Near Edge Structure (XANES) and Extended X-ray Absorption Fine Structure (EXAFS). Density Functional Theory calculations revealed that the newly-discovered Ba-Ti<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub> phase demonstrates dipole moments along the z-axis, distributed in an antiparallel direction within a single unit cell. These inherent dipoles induce a surface polarization and a ferroelectric-flexoelectric response under mechanical stimuli when the materials go to nano dimension. With a band alignment well-suitable for hydrogen and reactive oxygen species generation, this BaTi<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub> phase demonstrates promising potential for Mechanocatalysis. The discovery of this distinct phase not only enriches the material candidates for mechanocatalysis but also offers valuable insights that can guide the exploration of previously unexploited mechanocatalytic mechanisms with exceptional performance.



**Figure** 1. (left) Hydrogen evolution yield of  $BaTi_2O_5$  catalysts in pure water under ultrasonic irradiation. D1, D2 and D3 represent for the catalytic procedure conducted over three consecutive days using the same catalysts. The error bar is determined by the maximum difference observed among multiple trials conducted under the same experimental conditions; (right) Rhodamine B (RhB) dye degradation stability test plotted in decrease of dye concentration. (C0: original RhB dye concentration, and C1: degraded RhB concentration after catalysis with different time intervals).

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

## T1.6 Advanced Batteries and Supercapacitors for Energy Storage Applications

## Unlocking the reaction mechanism of anode-protected Aqueous Organic Zinc Ion Battery

#### <u>Dipen Biswakarma</u><sup>1</sup>, Subhankar Mandal<sup>1</sup>, Rekha Kumari<sup>2</sup>, Aninda J. Bhattacharyya<sup>1,2\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Solid State and Structural Chemistry Unit, Indian Institute of Science, Bangalore, India <sup>2</sup>Interdisciplinary Centre for Energy Research, Indian Institute of Science, Bangalore, India \*E-mail: anindajb@iisc.ac.in

Keywords: Aqueous Zinc Ion Batteries (AZIBs), redox-active organic cathode, anode protection

While non-aqueous Li-ion batteries are widely used in portable electronics and electric vehicles due to their high energy density and adaptability, the development of large-scale rechargeable Li-ion batteries will be constrained by cost and resource limitations. Aqueous rechargeable Zn-ion batteries (AZIBs) are emerging as promising alternatives to traditional Li-ion technology, offering higher safety, lower costs, and enhanced battery performance. AZIBs, particularly under ambient pH conditions, have the potential for large-scale applications due to natural abundance, low toxicity, low redox potential, and high specific capacity (~820.0 mAh g-1) of Zn. In contrast, conventional rechargeable batteries using inorganic electrode materials such as metal oxide and sulphides face operational challenges and are not environmentally friendly and cost-effective. Recently, there has been a growing interest in organic AZIBs due to their low cost, abundance, easily tunable redox chemistry, and structural flexibility. In this study, we have developed and synthesised novel n-type organicbased small redox active molecules, specifically 1,4,5,8-naphthalene diimide derivatives as cathodes for AZIBs. However, the challenges in AZIBs include adverse chemical side reactions leading to corrosion passivation, hydrogen evolution reaction (HER) at the anode side and dendrite formation. To address these challenges, we have modified the Zn-anode by appropriately coating it with Zn- phthalocyanine, which is highly conjugated metal porphyrin, effectively increasing the capacity and lifespan of cycling. In this work, we have investigated in detail the energy storage mechanisms and the coordination of solvated Zn-ion with redox motif (Carbonyl group). These studies will further aid in the comprehensive understanding of the function of organic AZIB and the design of efficient organic electrode materials.

#### References

- 1. Dunn, B.; Kamath, H.; Tarascon, J.-M. Science, 2011, 334, 928-935.
- Soundharrajan, V.; Sambandam, B.; Kim, S.; Mathew, V.; Jo, J.; Kim, S.; Lee, J.; Islam, S.; Kim, K.; Sun, Y.-K.; Kim J. ACS Energy Lett. 2018, 3, 2620–2640.
- Chen, J.; Zhu, Q.; Jiang, L.; Liu, R.; Yang, Y.; Tang, M.; Wang, J.; Wang, H.; GuTsuyoshi Takahashi, L.; Hamasaki, K.; Ueno, A.; Mihara, H. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2021, 60, 5794 –5799.
- 4. Cui, H.; Ma, L.; Huang, Z.; Chen, Z.; Zhi, C. Smart Mat. 2022, 3, 565-581.
- Buyukcakir, O.; Yuksel, R.; Begar, F.; Erdogmus, M.; Arsakay, M.; Lee, S. H.; Kim, S. O.; Ruoff, R. S. ACS Appl. Energy Mater. 2023, 6, 7672–7680.

## Fe-MIL-101 metal organic framework enhanced solid polymer electrolytes for high-performance Solid-State Lithium Metal Batteries

Ramesh Subramani<sup>1</sup>, Su-Yang Hsu<sup>1</sup>, Yu-Chun Chuang<sup>1</sup>, Liang-Ching Hsu<sup>1</sup>, Kueih-Tzu Lu<sup>1</sup>, Jin-Ming Chen<sup>1,2\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>National Synchrotron Radiation Research Center, Hsinchu, 30076, Taiwan

<sup>2</sup>Department of Electrophysics, National Yang Ming Chiao Tung University (NYCU), Hsinchu 30010, Taiwan

\*E-mail: jmchen@nsrrc.org.tw

**Keywords:** Solid-State Lithium Metal Batteries, metal organic framework, X-ray absorption spectroscopy, X-ray diffraction

Solid polymer electrolytes (SPEs) show tremendous potential for solid-state lithium metal batteries; however, challenges like low ionic conductivity and poor mechanical strength hinder their progress. This study integrates Fe-MIL-101 metal organic framework into a poly(vinylidene fluoride-co-hexafluoro propylene) (PVdF-HFP)-based SPE system to address these limitations. The integration of Fe-MIL-101 offers two critical benefits: 1) Interaction of inorganic Fe<sup>3+</sup> metal centers with PVdF-HFP enables fast Li<sup>+</sup> transport by increasing free Li<sup>+</sup> availability in the system through Lewis acid-base interactions. 2) Fe-MIL-101 significantly improves the mechanical strength of the SPE, boosting its structural integrity. Fe-MIL-101-integrated SPE enables excellent room temperature cycling stability in solidstate Li||LiFePO<sub>4</sub> (LFP) full cells, retaining ~91% capacity after 300 cycles and ~89% capacity after 400 cycles at 0.2 C. Advanced characteristic techniques like synchrotron-based *in-situ* X-ray diffraction, and X-ray absorption spectroscopy were employed to explore structural evolutions in the LFP cathode and the Fe-MIL-101-integrated SPE during cycling. Furthermore, improved room temperature electrochemical performance is demonstrated in solid-state LillLiNi<sub>0.6</sub>Mn<sub>0.2</sub>Co<sub>0.2</sub>O<sub>2</sub>(NMC622) batteries with Fe-MIL-101-integrated SPE, retaining 91.4% capacity after 175 cycles at 0.1 C. This work highlights the effectiveness of Fe-MIL-101 in enhancing the SPE properties, paving the way for the advancement of highperformance solid-state lithium metal batteries.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the National Science and Technology Council of the Republic of China (Grant No. NSTC 112-2112-M-A49-048)

#### References

J. M. Chen et. al., J. Mater. Chem. A (2024 (in press).

## Biowaste for electrodes: converting the biomass waste into a sustainable host for sodium-ion storage

<u>Mariya Kalapsazova</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Sonya Harizanova<sup>1</sup>, Ivan Uzunov<sup>1</sup>, Ivanka Stoycheva<sup>2</sup>, Bilyana Petrova<sup>2</sup>, Boyko Tsyntsarski<sup>2</sup>, Radostina Stoyanova<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of General and Inorganic Chemistry, Bulgarian Academy of Sciences, Sofia, Bulgaria <sup>2</sup>Institute of Organic Chemistry with Centre of Phytochemistry, Bulgarian Academy of Sciences, Sofia, Bulgaria

\*E-mail: maria\_l\_k@svr.igic.bas.bg; maria.kalapsazova@gmail.com

Keywords: biowaste, hard carbon, sodium-ion batteries, sustainable energy storage

Conversion of biowastes, obtained by households and bio-processing industries, into valuable materials is among the main aims of the waste management. Due to the high carbon content, biowastes can serve as excellent precursors for synthesizing important carbon materials such as activated carbon, graphene, soft carbons, etc.

Herein, we compare the Na-storage properties of biowaste-derived hard caprbons (bio-HCs) from spent coffee grounds (SCGs) and walnut shell waste (WS). The SCGs-derived carbons were prepared by a classical pyrolysis at 750, 1100 and 1300 °C, while pyrolysis and hydropyrolysis techniqniques were applied for the synthesis of WS-derived carbons. The effect of the synthesis procedure on the carbon micrstructure and porosity were examined. The electrochemical properties of bio-HCs were analysed in model Na-ion cells with carbonate-based sodium electrolyte. To quantify the Na-storage performance of bio-HCs, we determined four parameters: reversible specific capacity, first irreversible capacity, cycling stability and rate capability. Based on the above results, it is established that WS -derived carbons outperforms SCGs -analogues. Furhtermore, the best performed bio-HCs were used as negative electrodes in full sodium-ion cells with sodium transition-metal oxides as positive electrodes. The full-cells testing demonstrates that biowaste-derived hard carbons are a valuable material with potential applications for energy storage in sodium-ion batteries.

#### Acknowledgments

The authors thank for the financial support of the project BionN (КП-06-ПН-69/7 from 15.12.2022) for researching biowaste-derived carbon materials, as well as to the project CARiM (NSP Vihren, КП-06-Д B-6/16.12.2019) for full-cells experiments.

## Functionalized interfacial cover design toward pure silicon anode for high power density lithium-ion capacitor

#### <u>Min Ju O</u><sup>1</sup>, Kwang Chul Roh<sup>1\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Energy Storage Materials, Korea Institute of Ceramic Engineering & Technology, Jinju-Si, South Korea \*E-mail: rkc@kicet.re.kr

Keywords: lithium-ion capacitor, silicon anode, functionalized carbon coating layer, electrode failure

The lithium-ion capacitor, comprising a capacitor-type positive electrode and a battery-type negative electrode, was proposed to achieve high power and energy density. Nevertheless, integrating different charge storage mechanisms into a single cell naturally leads to a kinetic mismatch between the two electrodes, which limits the potential for high power densities. To address this issue, there is an emerging need for high-capacity anode materials that can reduce the thickness of the negative electrode. Silicon (Si), known for its high specific capacity, is considered a promising anode material for enhancing both energy and power density. However, the rapid capacity fading and increase in internal resistance due to volume changes during cycling make it difficult to use a pure Si anode. In this study, functional layers, comprised of functionalized herringbone-type carbon nanofibers, are applied to both sides of the electrode to protect it from Si degradation. The polar functional groups on the cover weakly interact with both the native oxide layer of the Si surface and the carboxyl groups of the binder, ensuring stable contact through repeated cycles. Furthermore, the conductive functional layer promotes uniform fluxes of Li ions and electrons, aiding in the formation of a stable solid electrolyte interphase layer. This study investigates the effects of this strategy on pure Si electrodes through surface morphology analysis, assessment of chemical interactions, and electrochemical testing. The approach holds the potential to overcome the degradation issues of Si electrodes, significantly contributing to the improvement of the power and energy density of lithium-ion capacitors.

#### Acknowledgments

This research was supported by National R&D Program through the National Research Foundation of Korea (NRF) funded by Ministry of Science and ICT (2021M3H4A3A02086100).

## Shuttle effect suppression in Lithium-Sulfur Batteries by simultaneous use of electrospun Nb<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub> nanofibers and bioderived carrageenan binder

<u>Ivan Shepa</u><sup>1</sup>, Dóra Zalka<sup>1,2</sup>, Dominika Capkova<sup>3,4</sup>, Erika Múdra<sup>1</sup>. Kateryna Nemesh<sup>1\*</sup>, Veronika Kuchárová<sup>5</sup>, Matej Balaž<sup>6</sup>, Alexandra Kovalcikova<sup>1</sup>, František Kromka<sup>1</sup>, Ján Dusza<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Materials Research, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Košice, Slovakia <sup>2</sup>Department of Condensed Matter Physics, Institute of Physics, Faculty of Science, P.J. Šafárik University, Košice, Slovakia

<sup>3</sup>Department of Physical Chemistry, Pavol Jozef Safarik University in Kosice, 041 54 Kosice, Slovakia

<sup>4</sup>Department of Chemical Sciences, Bernal Institute, University of Limerick, V94 T9PX Limerick, Ireland

<sup>5</sup>Institute of Experimental Physics, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Košice, Slovakia

<sup>6</sup>Institute of Geotechnics, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Košice, Slovakia

\*E-mail: knemesh@saske.sk

**Keywords:** nanofibers, needleless electrospinning, ceramic nanofibers, lithium-sulfur batteries, Nb<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub> nanofibers, carrageenan

This contribution describes the preparation along with the detailed characterization of Nb<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub> nanofibers and their application in lithium-sulfur batteries for the improvement of electrochemical performance. The utilization of reactive needle-less electrospinning allowed obtain, in a single step, pre-ceramic composite PAN/ Nb<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub> fibers, which were further transformed into porous ceramic Nb<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub> nanofibers via calcination. Thermogravimetric studies defined that calcination at 600 °C resulted in pure highly crystalline ceramic fibers without carbon residues. The fibrous morphology and mean diameter of the ceramic nanofibers were analyzed via scanning and electron microscopy. A surface area was determined through nitrogen adsorption measurements, while X-ray diffraction was utilized to confirm the crystallinity and phase composition of the calcined fibers – single T-phase Nb<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub>. Its performance in the cathode of lithium-sulfur batteries bound with bioderived carrageenan was defined through electrochemical tests, and the obtained results were compared to similar blank electrodes - without the Nb<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub> and one with commonly used PVDF binder. The initial discharge capacity of 0.1 C reached values of about 1300 mAh·g<sup>-1</sup> while showing the capacity retention of approx. 75% after 200 cycles. The presence of Nb<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub> nanofibers in the carbon cathode combined with the carrageenan binder inhibits the shuttle effect through polysulphide confinement, which originates from porosity and chemical trapping.

#### Acknowledgments

Funded by the EU NextGenerationEU through the Recovery and Resilience Plan for Slovakia under the project No. 09I03-03-V02-00013. This research was also funded by the Ministry of Defense of the Slovak Republic under the project No. SEMOD-EL76/49-11/2023, by the Operational Program Research and Development, co-financed by the European Regional Development Fund by the project "Research Centre of Advanced Materials and Technologies for Recent and Future Applications "PROMATECH" ITMS: 26220220186, and Slovak Grant Agency VEGA (project 2/0080/23).

#### T2 Ceramics for Energy Conservation and Efficiency

### **T2.1 Advanced Fiber Reinforced Composites for Turbine Engines**

## Novel Carbon fiber/PEEK-hybrid yarn based non-oxide ceramic matrix composite

<u>Melissa Moos</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Gregor Ohnemüller<sup>2</sup>, Nico Langhof<sup>1</sup>, Stefan Baz<sup>3</sup>, Claudia Möhl<sup>3</sup>, Olaf Reichert<sup>3</sup>, Stefan Schafföner<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Chair of Ceramic Materials Engineering, University of Bayreuth, Bayreuth, Germany <sup>2</sup>Chair Environmental Production Engineering, University of Bayreuth, Bayreuth, Germany <sup>3</sup>German Institutes of Textile and Fibre Research (DITF), Denkendorf, Germany \*E-mail: melissa.moos@uni-bayreuth.de

Keywords: hybrid yarn, PEEK, C/C-SiC, LSI-Process, ceramic matrix composites

Carbon fiber reinforced silicon carbide (C/C-SiC) is produced via the liquid silicon infiltration process. To maintain a C/C-SiC, three processing steps are necessary. Firstly, a carbon fiber reinforced polymer (CFRP) is manufactured, followed by a pyrolysis step under inert conditions at temperatures above 1000 °C. During pyrolysis, the matrix polymer is transformed into carbon, creating a porous carbon fiber reinforced carbon (C/C). Eventually, the C/C is siliconized under vacuum above 1420 °C, resulting in a C/C-SiC.

The properties of the C/C-SiC can be altered by the choice of polymer in the CFRP. Important factors to consider for a successful C/C-SiC fabrication are the fiber bundle infiltration with matrix polymer during CFRP manufacturing and the char yield of the polymer after pyrolysis. As state of the art, phenolic resins are used as CFRP matrix material, because of their high char yield above 60 %, their low viscosity, which results in a good fiber bundle infiltration, and their low cost. However, there are some drawbacks to using phenolic resin as polymer precursor material. Besides health issues and possible pore formation due to gas evolution, it is not possible to recycle phenolic resins and therefore use recycled resins as CFRP matrix polymer. The substitution of phenolic resins with thermoplastics such as PEEK can tackle these drawbacks. However, melt viscosity of PEEK is a lot higher than for phenolic resins, potentially resulting in a bad fiber bundle infiltration.

In this study, thermoplastic PEEK is used as CFRP precursor material. To ensure good fiber bundle infiltration, a short fiber hybrid yarn has been developed in cooperation with DITF Denkendorf. The fiber bundles of the yarn consist of C- and PEEK fibers. The yarn is warm pressed at about 400 °C to a CFRP. After that, it is pyrolyzed and infiltrated with silicon. Microstructural analyses prove a good fiber bundle infiltration in the CFRP, a low amount of silicon and a homogenous SiC-network in the C/C-SiC state. Additionally, the pore network of the C/C was studied, using  $\mu$ -CT and Hg-porosity, showing a fine and homogeneous crack network with a median pore diameter of 11.9  $\mu$ m. The low Si (11 vol. %) and high SiC content (26 vol. %) are confirmed using XRD for phase analyses. Additionally, three-point bending tests reveal a pseudo-ductile behavior with a Young's modulus of 28 ± 5 GPa, a

strain to failure of  $0.4 \pm 0.1$  % and a flexural strength of  $97 \pm 13$  MPa. Finally, SEM images from the fracture surface of the sample tested by bending tests were conducted. The images show pronounced fiber-pull out and crack deflection, explaining the high values of flexural strength and strain to failure due to energy dissipating effects. C/C-SiC ceramics produced via the hybrid-yarn LSI route therefore facilitate the C/C-SiC production in various aspects and display a promising candidate for future applications.

#### Acknowledgments

Special thanks to Jonas Riesner at Materials Engineering, University of Augsburg, for the  $\mu\text{-}CT$  measurements.

### T2.2 Advanced Ceramic Coatings for Power Systems

## Quaternary rare-earth oxide co-doped ZrO<sub>2</sub> as a promising thermal barrier coating for gas turbine engine

Hongyu Shen<sup>1</sup>, <u>Lu Wang</u><sup>2</sup>, Jie Zhang<sup>1\*</sup>, Jingyang Wang<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Shenyang National Laboratory for Materials Science, Institute of Metal Research, Chinese Academy of Sciences, Shenyang, China <sup>2</sup>Institute of Coating Technology for Hydrogen Gas Turbines, Liaoning Academy of Materials, Shenyang, China \*E-mail: jiezhang@imr.ac.cn

**Keywords**: thermal barrier coatings, Co-doped ZrO<sub>2</sub>, phase stability, mechanical properties, thermal conductivity

Thermal barrier coatings (TBCs) are crucial for improving the reliability and lifespan of gas turbine engine. This study presents a novel quaternary rare-earth oxide co-doped  $ZrO_2$ , termed 1La-xGd-2Yb-3.5YSZ, synthesized via solid-state reaction. A systematic study was conducted to investigate the effects of co-doping-induced lattice distortion on the composition of solid solution phases, high-temperature phase stability, sintering performance, as well as the mechanical and thermal properties. It has been found that the addition of  $Gd_2O_3$  effectively increased lattice distortion, improved phase stability, sintering resistance, mechanical properties, and reduced thermal conductivity. The results demonstrate the potential of the 1La-xGd-2Yb-3.5YSZ solid solution as a candidate material for thermal barrier coatings in gas turbines.

### T2.3 Engineering Ceramics: Advanced Processing, Properties, and Applications

## Correlating impedance phase angle variations to nanoparticle size changes in silicon dioxide colloids

#### Fei Cao<sup>1\*</sup>, Mi Wang<sup>2</sup>, Tim Hunter<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>School of chemical and processing engineering, University of Leeds, Leeds, UK <sup>2</sup>University of Leeds., Leeds, UK \*E-mail: pmfca@leeds.ac.uk

Keywords: nanoparticle size, phase angle, AD8302, four electrodes

In industrial applications, changes in the particle size of nanoparticles within a colloidal suspension can impact physical properties such as the thermal conductivity and solubility of the solution. In 2015, Zhao utilized electrochemical impedance spectroscopy (EIS) to measure the impedance properties of colloidal solutions with varying particle sizes and discovered a correlation between particle size and impedance phase angle(Zhao et al., 2015). This method of measurement using EIS provides a non-invasive alternative for nanoparticle sizing. The AD8302 is an integrated circuit for amplitude/phase measurement that can be applied to impedance measurements in the low-frequency range(Yihong et al., 2018). This experiment attempts to utilize the AD8302 and establish a miniature fluidic circulation measurement system based on the four-electrode method. Within this system, an ultrasonic oscillation rod is inserted into the colloidal solution to separate clusters of silicon dioxide nanoparticles at varying concentrations (0.1%wt-0.5%wt) through oscillation over a set duration, thereby inducing relative changes in particle size while ensuring that other physical properties of the solution remain unchanged. The AD8302 measurement system is responsible for inputting a sinusoidal signal with a frequency range of 1KHz-4MHz into the colloidal solution, thus measuring the relative changes in the phase angle/amplitude of the colloidal solution when the particle size of the silicon dioxide changes within the tested frequency range.

Additionally, a Zetasizer is used to measure the size of the silicon dioxide particles in the solution after each ultrasonic oscillation, in an effort to determine the relationship between particle size variation and relative changes in phase angle. This four-electrode measurement method based on the AD8302 system is non-invasive and cost-effective, and the establishment of a correlation between particle size changes and impedance phase angle variations will aid in the development of a new method for measuring particle size variations.

#### References

- 1. Yihong, S., & Zhang, Y. (2018). Design of an automatic impedance spectrum measuring system based on AD8302. doi: 10.11857/j.issn.1674-5124.2018.09.017
- Zhao, Y., & Wang, M. (2015). Experimental study on dielectric relaxation of SiO2 nano-particle suspensions for developing a particle characterization method based on electrical impedance spectroscopy. *Powder Technology*, 281, 200–213. doi: 10.1016/j.powtec.2015.04.070

## A metal-polymer self-lubrication composite based on PTFE and its prototype

#### Hyun-Ju Choi

Advanced Materials R&D Department, Korea Automotive Technology Institute, South Korea E-mail: hchoi@katech.re.kr

Keywords: bearings, tribology, self-lubricating, polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE)

In general, various bearings are mechanical elements which convert one motion into another motion and reduce friction between the moving machine elements. Among them, an oilless bearing widely used in various industrial applications provides its self-lubricating property, superior shock and impact load resistance as well. When developing prototypes of *PTFE/porous bronze sinter/steel backing*, it is necessary to examine the correlation such as the kinds of particle reinforcements, fillers, shapes and sizes in a polymer matrix.

Advances in tribology of metal-polymer self-lubrication composites based on PTFE are mainly discussed in this study. It reviews to analyze the advanced technology trends of lubricated/ non-lubricated commercial bearings on a dry film lubricant with polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE) and metal-polymer based dry bush components. Furthermore, we focused on the steel-backed bushings with PTFE based composites filled with various ceramic fillers (such as MoS<sub>2</sub>, BN, and Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>) and for this study developed an experimental apparatus (mainly under 3 MPa and up to 2,000 rpm) for analyzing the wear performance in dry sliding of the prototypes. All PTFE composite films coated on the metal have been carried out varying analysis of organic/ inorganic and microstructure by TGA, DSC, FT-IR, OM and FE-SEM/EDS. As a result, the coefficient of friction for solid PTFE bushings/ or bearings produced was slightly lower by maintaining the surface temperature of itself around 30°C, compared to the commercial products. Adding lubricants could improve the tribological performance of bearings and wear-resistant polymers. And lastly, emerging a few progressive techniques of solid lubricants composites are briefly reviewed and future research opportunities are discussed.

## The development status of SiC heating elements in Korea

<u>Young-Hoon Seong</u><sup>\*</sup>, In-Sub Han, Doo-Won Seo, Hyo-Jung Hwang, Seyoung Kim, Seulhee Lee

Hydrogen Convergence Materials Laboratory, Korea Institute of Energy research, Daejeon, South Korea \*E-mail: yhseong@kier.re.kr

Keywords: silicon carbide, heating element, extrusion, sintering

The urgent demand to reduce greenhouse gas emissions necessitates a transition to electrification processes or the use of zero-carbon fuels as substitutes for fossil fuels. Especially for achieving carbon neutrality in key energy-intensive industries such as the steel and petrochemical sectors, it is essential to shift from combustion-based heating methods using hydrocarbon fuels to renewable energy-based electric heating methods, alongside increasing the availability of renewable energy. Silicon carbide (SiC) resistance heating elements, offering long-term durability at a maximum heating temperature of 1600°C, are currently widely used in Korea, both for laboratory and industrial electric furnaces. However, there are no research cases on SiC heating element development in Korea, and no production companies domestically. Consequently, Korea relies entirely on imported products mainly from abroad (Sweden, Japan, China, India, etc.). Therefore, the development of domestic SiC heating element technology in Korea is imperative. This study aims to first compare and analyze the status and characteristics of SiC heating elements, followed by introducing the process of domestic SiC heating element development in Korea."



Development Process of SiC Heating Element at Korea Institute of Energy Technology Research: Extrusion Forming Process - Non-Deformable Roll Drying Process - Recrystallization Annealing Process - Heating Test (1000 °C)

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the Korea Institute of Energy Technology Evaluation and Planning(KETEP) and the Ministry of Trade, Industry & Energy(MOTIE) of the Republic of Korea(RS-2023-00234270).

## T2.5 Advanced Polymer Derived Ceramics (PDCs) and Related Materials for Energy Applications

## High-efficiency fabrication of SiC<sub>f</sub>/SiC composites by Gradated Concentration Polymer Infiltration and Pyrolysis (GC-PIP) method

#### Qiance Zhang<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Han Liu<sup>1</sup>, Tianlu Qiao<sup>1</sup>, Philip J. Withers<sup>1</sup>, Ping Xiao<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Henry Royce Institute, University of Manchester, Manchester, M13 9PL, UK <sup>2</sup>Department of Engineering Science, University of Oxford, Oxford, UK \*E-mail: p.xiao@manchester.ac.uk

Keywords: composite, fabrication, polymer-derived ceramics, processing

Silicon carbide fibre reinforced/silicon carbide matrix (SiC<sub>f</sub>/SiC) composites are promising candidates for applications such as accident tolerant fuel cladding for nuclear power reactors and receivers for Gen3 molten-salt concentrating solar power plants, thanks to their excellent high-temperature stability, high mechanical strength, outstanding oxidation/corrosion resistance, and stability under irradiation. In this work, a novel Gradated Concentration Polymer Infiltration and Pyrolysis (GC-PIP) method has been developed to achieve high-efficiency fabrication of SiC<sub>f</sub>/SiC composites with low porosity (<4% determined by X-ray  $\mu$ -CT scanning). In this approach the polycarbosilane/xylene concentrations is systematically varied, whereby three progressively concentrated precursor solutions were used during each infiltration of every PIP cycle. The gradated concentrations of precursors have been designed and optimised based on the calculation of flow rate and investigation on the wetting angles, viscosities, surface tensions and retained weights at different concentrations. Gradated-Concentration Infiltration strategy avoids blocking of the near surface pores at the start of the process due to the first low concentration treatment while ensuring the most efficient delivery of material through the later higher concentrations, efficiently filling intra-bundle pores.

Combining a Gradated-Concentration Infiltration strategy with pressure-free pyrolysis using an optimised heating programme, such Gradated Concentration Polymer Infiltration and Pyrolysis (GC-PIP) method can rapidly produce SiC<sub>f</sub>/SiC composites with densities higher than 94%. The resulting SiC matrix in composites was highly nano-crystalline, with a composition, crystallinity and Young's modulus similar to the 2<sup>nd</sup> Generation SiC fibres, surpassing other reported polycarbosilane-derived SiC matrices. No damage to the fibres or the interphase was observed after processing under pressure-free pyrolysis at 1300 °C. The resulting composite displayed enhanced mechanical properties under three-point bending, giving a tough fracture response with extensive crack deflection and long fibre pull-out. This novel method can be easily applied to other precursors and fibres, and is a promising approach to fabricating low porosity SiC<sub>f</sub>/SiC composites of diverse shapes with excellent mechanical properties.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by Henry Royce Institute for Advanced Materials via EPSRC [EP/R00661X/1, EP/S019367/1, EP/P025021/1, EP/P025498/1, EP/T02593X/1]. Prof. Ping Xiao acknowledges Royal Academy of Engineering and Rolls-Royce for appointment of Rolls-Royce/Royal Academy of Engineering Research Chair.

## **T3** Ceramics for Environmental Systems

### **T3.1 Photocatalysts for Energy and Environmental Applications**

## Control of surface defects in ALD-TiOx thin films for an improved photoelectrochemical performance

Myung-Jin Jung, Min-Ji Kim, Kwang-Ho Kim, Jaehyun Kim, Se-Hyuk Seo, Se-Hun Kwon\*

School of Materials Science, Pusan National University, Busan, South Korea \*E-mail: sehun@pusan.ac.kr

Keywords: amorphous titanium oxide, atomic layer deposition, defects

A proper control of defects in TiO<sub>2</sub> thin films is challenging work for enhancing the photoelectrochemical (PEC) efficiency in water splitting processes. Additionally, a deep understanding of how defects affect the PEC performance of TiO<sub>2</sub> thin films is of great interest for achieving better performance. Herein, therefore, an amorphous defective TiOx thin film was deposited on a Si wafer and a fluoride-doped tin oxide (FTO)–coated glass substrate via the ALD technique using TDMAT as a Ti precursor. The growth kinetics and crystal structures of ALD-TiOx thin films were carefully investigated. Then, the defect concentration was carefully evaluated using X-ray photoelectron spectroscopy (XPS) and electron spin resonance (ESR) spectroscopy. Moreover, the PEC parameters as well as PEC performance were systemically discussed according to the defect concentrations of TiOx thin films. Finally, a correlation between the defect concentration in TiOx films and their PEC activity was systematically determined.

## Progressive photocatalytic nanocomposites based on electrospun TiO<sub>2</sub> nanofibers modified with AgNPs obtained by green approach

<u>Kateryna Nemesh</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Ivan Shepa<sup>1</sup>, Erika Múdra<sup>1,</sup> Oksana Velgosová<sup>2</sup>, Veronika Kuchárová<sup>3</sup>, Matej Balaž<sup>4</sup>, Dáša Drenčáková<sup>4</sup>, Marek Vojtko<sup>1</sup>, František Kromka<sup>1</sup>, Maksym Lisnichuk<sup>1,5</sup>, Ján Dusza<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>The Institute of Materials Research of SAS, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Košice, Slovakia <sup>2</sup>Institute of Materials and Quality Engineering, Faculty of Materials Metallurgy and Recycling, Technical University of Košice, Slovakia

<sup>3</sup>Institute of Experimental Physics, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Košice, Slovakia

<sup>4</sup>Institute of Geotechnics, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Košice, Slovakia

<sup>5</sup>Department of Condensed Matter Physics, Institute of Physics, Faculty of Science, P.J. Šafárik University in Košice, Slovakia

\*E-mail: knemesh@saske.sk

Keywords: nanofibers, needleless electrospinning, ceramic materials, photocatalytic activity, Ag/TiO $_2$  nanofibers

This work describes the preparation and detailed characterization followed by the testing of the photocatalytic activity or ceramic TiO<sub>2</sub> nanofibers modified with AgNPs prepared by the green synthesis approach. Precursor TiO, preceramic fibers with different concentrations of AgNPs were prepared using reactive needle-less electrospinning. The obtained as-spun precursor fibers were subjected to heat treatment at two different temperatures 450 and 600°C and held for 60 minutes. For the electrospinning solution preparation, the polymer polyvinylpyrrolidone, titanium tetraisopropoxide, and acetic acid were used. Absolute ethanol served as the solvent for the system. Silver nanoparticles AgNPs were added from the pre-prepared concentrated solution at three different concentrations: undiluted -100 %, maximum load, diluted by half -50% of the maximum load, and diluted by a quarter -25% of the maximum load. The presence of AgNPs in the final ceramic TiO<sub>2</sub> nanofibers was confirmed through a combination of scanning and transmission electron microscopy. For the testing of the photocatalytic activity, the materials were crushed, and the prepared powder was dispersed in a solution of a model pollutant with a sufficient concentration to ensure reliable detection accuracy. Model pollutants were dyes of various chemical natures: cationic - Methylene Blue, anionic – Methyl Orange, and molecular – Reactive Black 5. Degradation of the model dyes was observed under 365 nm UV light irradiation.

#### Acknowledgement

Funded by the EU NextGenerationEU through the Recovery and Resilience Plan for Slovakia under the project No. 09I03-03-V02-00013. This research was also funded by the Ministry of Defence of the Slovak Republic under the project No. SEMOD-EL76/49-11/2023, by the Operational Program Research and Development, co-financed by the European Regional Development Fund by the project "Research Centre of Advanced Materials and Technologies for Recent and Future Applications "PROMATECH" ITMS: 26220220186, and Slovak Grant Agency VEGA (project 2/0080/23).

### T3.2 CERAMICS FOR CARBON CAPTURE AND STORAGE TECHNOLOGIES

### Complete combustion of methane using CeO<sub>2</sub>-SiO<sub>2</sub> based catalysts

Yeon-Bin Choi<sup>1</sup>, Sun Woog Kim<sup>2</sup>, Byungseo Bae<sup>1</sup>\*

<sup>1</sup>Advanced Resources Team, Yeongwol Industrial Promotion Agency, 21–28 Palgoe 1 nonggongdanji, Yeongwolgun 26240, South Korea

<sup>2</sup>Electronic Convergence Materials Division, Optic & Electronic Component Materials Center, Korea Institute of Ceramic Engineering and Technology, Jinju 52851, South Korea

\*E-mail: bsbae@yipa.or.kr

Keywords: catalyst, methane combustion, CeO2-SiO2, OSC, acid-base property

 $CH_4$  possesses a high warming potential over 20 times that of  $CO_2$ , and as a result, it currently accounts for ~18.6% of the total warming gas share [1]. Therefore, to achieve net-zero emissions, research is ongoing to suppress the emission of  $CH_4$  and  $CO_2$ . The catalytic combustion method has also been considered as an ideal technology to decompose  $CH_4$  gas because it achieves the combustion of  $CH_4$  gas to yield only water vapor and carbon dioxide, thereby avoiding the discharge of noxious  $NO_x$ , CO, and hydrocarbons [2]. It has been reported that the complete oxidation of  $CH_4$  could be achieved at 550 °C using systems wherein noble metals are supported on  $CeO_2$ – $ZrO_2$  (e.g., PdO/CeO\_2–ZrO\_2) [3]; this temperature is significantly lower than that required by the Pd/Al2O<sub>3</sub> system (i.e., 800 °C). However, it should be noted that the combustion of methane should be possible at more lowered operating temperature.

We have found that the introduction of SiO<sub>2</sub> into the CeO<sub>2</sub> promoter to enhance the acid– base properties and specific surface area of the catalyst. In addition, Bi2O<sub>3</sub> is introduced into the CeO<sub>2</sub>–SiO<sub>2</sub> promoter to improve the oxygen release and storage capacities, while  $\gamma$ -Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> is used as a support to increase the catalyst durability, and PdO is applied as an active species due to its high oxidation ability toward methane.

Figure 1 shows the temperature dependencies of methane combustion over PdO/CS<sub>(0.08)</sub>  $Bi_{(0.07)}/Al_2O_3$  catalysts (PdO/CSB/Al\_2O\_3). Here, the methane combustion test was carried out in a fixed-bed quartz reactor. The mixed gas was composed of 2.5 vol% CH<sub>4</sub> in air with a total flow rate of 200 mL/min (mass hourly space velocity = 120,000 L·kg<sup>-1</sup>·h<sup>-1</sup>) was supplied to the catalyst bed by using a mass flow controller. The outlet gas composition was analyzed using a gas chromatograph (GC, GC-8AIT, Shimadzu) with a TCD. The reaction temperature was increased from 150 to 500 °C in 50 °C intervals, and the methane conversion at each point was obtained after stabilization for 15 min. The introduction of SiO<sub>2</sub> and Bi<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> improved the catalytic activity owing to the increase of the oxygen storage capacity and acid-base property. By using PdO/ CSB/Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>, the complete methane combustion was achieved at 350°C, which is lower than the previous catalyst case (PdO/CeO<sub>2</sub>–ZrO<sub>2</sub>: 550 °C).

#### Acknowledgments

This research was financially supported by the Ministry of Trade, Industry and Energy, Korea, under the "World Class Plus Program (R&D, P177000004)" supervised by the Korea Institute for Advancement of Technology (KIAT).

#### References

- K. Murata, D. Kosuge, J. Ohyama, Y. Mahara, Y. Yamamoto, S. Arai, A. Satsuma, ACS Catal 10 (2019) 1381–1387.
- 2. B. Wang, S. A. Suazo, Y. P. Torres, E. Nikolla, Catal Today, 285 (2017) 147-158.
- 3. C. Bozo, N. Guilhaume, J.M. Herrmann, J. Catal., 203 (2001) 393.

## Investigation of the effect of magnetic field on CO<sub>2</sub> absorption using LiFeO<sub>2</sub> nanoparticles

Chun-Rong Lin<sup>\*</sup>, Ying-Zhen Chen, Tse-Yen Ting, Wen-Jing Chen, Yu-Qi Feng

Department of Applied Physics, National Pingtung University, Pingtung, Taiwan \*E-mail: crlinspin@gmail.com

Keywords: CO2 absorption, nanoparticles, thermogravimetric analysis, saturation magnetization

The global climate change caused by the increase in greenhouse gas  $(CO_2)$  emissions is due to the combustion of fossil fuels, mainly from automobiles and coal burning power plants. For high temperatures  $CO_2$  capture, the use of solid sorbents is being explored [1]. In this work, the LiFeO<sub>2</sub> nanoparticles (NPs) are used a catalyst during the absorption process.

The LiFeO<sub>2</sub> NPs were prepared by the combustion method. X-Ray diffraction (XRD) patterns of LiFeO<sub>2</sub> NPs show that the linewidth of the as-prepared samples is different than that of samples absorbed CO<sub>2</sub> gas, and the characteristic peaks shift to lower 2 $\theta$  which means the mean crystallite size of as-prepared sample is bigger than the sample after absorbed  $CO_2$  gas. The structure of these NPs is indexed to the cubic phase (JCPDS 70-2711). Thermogravimetric analysis (TGA) indicates that the absorption temperature of  $CO_2$  is range from T<sub>1</sub>=250 to  $T_2$ =500 °C. Vibrating sample magnetometer (VSM) measurements shows that the saturation magnetization and remanence of the LiFeO<sub>2</sub> NPs showed an increase in behavior when subjected to the CO<sub>2</sub> flow at 450 °C. The magnetism is due to the LiFeO<sub>2</sub> samples after CO<sub>2</sub> absorption produces the Li-doped spinel iron oxide or  $\gamma$ -Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> phases. Magnetization isothermal experiments [inset of Fig.1(c)] for different crystallite size of LiFeO<sub>2</sub> NPs performed at different temperatures before  $T_1$  and choice of some specific temperatures. Time-dependent data were processed taking one exponential model  $M(t) = A \exp(-k_1 t) + M_0$ . In addition to exponential model fit, rate constants were obtained under Eyring model to calculate the active-state enthalpy ( $\Delta H^*_1$ ), and Arrhenius equation to obtain the activation energy (E<sub>1</sub>). It is suggested that a magnetic CO2 gas detected sensor could be developed using this material. To clarify the impurity phases existed in the samples and their magnetic contributions, further studies of their electronic structure and micromagnetic structure by the X-ray photoelectron spectroscopy (XPS) and Mössbauer spectroscopy are underway.



Fig. 1 (a) X-Ray diffraction (XRD) patterns of LiFeO<sub>2</sub> NPs before and after CO<sub>2</sub> absorption for VSM and TGA measurements; (b) enlarged scale of (a); (c) TGA curve for the CO<sub>2</sub> absorption measurement of asprepared LiFeO<sub>2</sub> NPs, Inset: time-dependent magnetization and hysteresis curve recorded at 450 °C under CO<sub>2</sub> flow.

#### Acknowledgments

The authors thank the National Pingtung University, and National Science & Technology Council of Taiwan (Grants No. 111-2112-M-153-003-) for financial support.

#### References

J. Francisco, Fuel Processing Technology. 2020, 204, 106404.

# Synthesis and morphology control of spherical silica by sustainable reprecipitation method using ultrasound

<u>Ren Zushi</u>, Yamato Hayashi<sup>\*</sup>, Toshiki Yamanaka, Hirotsugu Takizawa

Department of Applied Chemistry, Tohoku University, Sendai, Japan \*E-mail: yamato.hayashi.b6@tohoku.ac.jp

Keywords: silica nanoparticle, sustainable process, ultrasound, reprecipitation method

*Introduction:* In this study, we developed a new method for colloidal silica synthesis which is called "reprecipitation method". In ordinary method for colloidal silica synthesis, alkoxide such as TEOS and TMOS or sodium silicate are used as raw materials. However, these raw materials have some disadvantages such as cost or removal process of impurities, so sustainable synthesis processes for colloidal silica are required. Then, we focused on hydrazine monohydrate and silicon metal as new raw materials. Hydrazine monohydrate is basic solution and solute silicon metal as silicic acid. We have found that ultrasound irradiation accelerates the dissolution of silicon into hydrazine monohydrate, resulting in a highly concentrated silicate solution. In this study, we tried to synthesize colloidal silica by adding poor solvent into this solution and decreasing solubility of silicic acid. In addition, to improve the monodispersity of the synthesized particles, the influence of ultrasound stirring was also investigated.

*Method:* Highly concentrated silicate solution was prepared by adding 0.15 g of silicon powder to 100 mL hydrazine monohydrate and dissolving it under ultrasound irradiation (50 kHz, 200 W at 20 °C). Then, to precipitate silica particles 50-70 vol.% methanol was added as a poor solvent into the precursor solution under ultrasound irradiation (100 kHz, 200W, 10 min. at 20 °C). Synthesized particles were analyzed using Field Emission-Scanning Electron Microscope (FE-SEM), Fourier Transform Infrared Spectroscopy (FT-IR) and X-ray diffraction (XRD).

*Results and Discussion:* From the results of XRD and FT-IR analysis, it was confirmed that amorphous silica was obtained through this procedure and 20-100 nm of spherical silica nanoparticles were observed in the FE-SEM analysis. Silica particles were expected to be produced by the decrease of the solubility of silicic acid associated with the addition of poor solvent into precursor solution. In the case of 50 vol.% methanol was added without ultrasound irradiation, non-uniform silica particles with average size of 63.3 nm and coefficient of variation ( $C_V$ ) of 44% were obtained. On the other hand, in the case of 100 kHz ultrasound was irradiated, uniform silica particles with average size of 22.6 nm and  $C_V$  value of 23 % were obtained. This shows that ultrasound irradiation contributes to particle homogenization and refinement. In this method, it is expected that the homogeneous decrease in solubility is an important factor to obtain uniform particles, so ultrasound stirring caused the production of more uniform particles by efficiently promoting mixing of the solution than no-irradiation, particles with an average diameter of 74.1 nm and a  $C_V$  value of 15 % were obtained, indicating that the particle sizes can be controlled by the amount of poor solvent (Fig.1).

633

This reprecipitation method is expected to be a sustainable synthesis method because shapecontrolled and high-purity silica particles can be easily obtained at room temperature from ordinary silicon powder.



Fig.1 Overview of reprecipitation method and the SEM image of the synthesized particles (MeOH 70 vol.%)

## T3.3 GEOPOLYMERS, INORGANIC POLYMER CERAMICS AND SUSTAINABLE Composites

## Zinc Ion exchanged geopolymer derived from sodium geopolymer and comparison of their thermal behavior

#### Ilknur Kara

Department of Elementary Education, Anadolu University, Eskisehir, Türkiye \*E-mail: ilknurkara@anadolu.edu.tr

Keywords: geopolymer, sodium, zinc, ion-exchanged, sintering

In this study, sodium based geopolymer with about 1:1:2 NaO:Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>:SiO<sub>2</sub> molar ratio was synthesized by using metakaolin and sodium hydroxide solution. The synthesized geopolymer was subjected to an ion exchange process in an aqueous solution containing zinc ions. Almost complete ion exchange took place between Na<sup>2+</sup> and Zn<sup>2+</sup>. Thermal behavior of the sodium geopolymer and the Zn-exchanged geopolymer was followed by optical dilatometer and TG-DTA analysis. The sodium geopolymer crystallizes to nepheline at the early stages of sintering, which precludes further densification. On the other hand, the Zn-exchanged geopolymer starts sintering at about 50 °C lower temperature and sinters to a nearly full density before gahnite crystallization takes place. The dense Zn-exchanged geopolymer body contains extensive gahnite crystallization with sizes finer than 30 nm embedded in an amorphous matrix.

#### Acknowledgments

Dr.Berkay Yazirli is gratefully acknowledged for his help for characterization studies.

## **Refractory ceramics for the aluminium foundries:** Novel perspectives for greater process and product sustainability

<u>Stefano Pezzoli</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Giulio Savelli<sup>2</sup>, Gian Luca Chiarello<sup>2</sup>, Maurizio Sala<sup>3</sup>, Stefano Pierpaolo Marcello Trasatti<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Environmental Science and Policy, University of Milan, Milan, Italy <sup>2</sup>Department of Chemistry, University of Milan, Milan, Italy <sup>3</sup>Foundry Ecocer S.r.l., Milan, Italy <sup>\*</sup>E-mail: stefano.pezzoli@unimi.it

Keywords: ceramic, refractory, aluminium, sustainability, chemistry, analysis

Since the beginning of time creativity, intelligence, and consciousness have helped mankind developing a more convenient World. The mastery of metallurgy was a transformative leap for humanity which promoted the production of revolutionized tools and weapons. In the simplest terms, humans developed the first metallurgical techniques around 6000 B.C. by putting a start on the timeline of metallurgical advancements which spans several millennia. One of the metals that has the potential to change the global metallurgical industry is aluminium (Al). The exponential evolution of aluminium production over the past decades reflects its increasing importance, and future projections anticipate an 80% increase in demand by the year 2050<sup>[11]</sup>. Indeed, infinite recyclability, reduction of production costs, and eco-compatibility combined with extreme versatility of the metal make aluminium foundries sustainability-conscious and cutting-edge.

Castable refractory ceramics play a crucial role in the aluminium production process, allowing the transportation of molten Al from the furnace to the casting station. The key aspects of this ceramics involve high-temperature, thermal shock, chemical, and mechanical resistance as well as shape adaptability, durability and insulating properties. In order to test the materials, several analysis techniques are usually employed. Thermal Gravimetric Analysis (TGA) and Differential Scanning Calorimetry (DSC) allow the study of the thermal profile of materials which is a key element because of the contact between the ceramic and molten Al. Strength testing are also crucial as ceramics are subjected to high mechanical stresses. Finally, extensive studies of both surface and bulk chemical composition allow the determination of erosion/corrosion resistance.

In this work, BN-doped ternary SiO<sub>2</sub>-Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>-CaO ceramics were synthetized and characterized to evaluate the physicochemical properties of the materials. SiO<sub>2</sub>-Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>-CaO composite is a well-known system which is able to meet many demands<sup>[2]</sup>. Inductively Coupled Plasma-Optical Emission Spectrometry (ICP-OES) analysis allowed an insight into the chemical composition confirming the theoretical values of the major elements derived from calculations on raw materials, *i.e.*, 33.4 ± 0.5 % Si (*vs* theoretical 35.0%), 7.2 ± 1.8 % Al (*vs* theoretical 9.0%) and 5.0 ± 1.2 % Ca (*vs* theoretical 5.1%). Scanning Electron Microscopy (SEM) analysis provided morphological and structural information of the samples showing the heterogeneity of the synthetized ceramics which consisted of a calcium aluminosilicate matrix in which fragments of silica and BN were dispersed. Moreover, porosity of materials as a function of calcination was highlighted. X-Ray Diffraction (XRD) technique revealed the presence of both amorphous and crystalline phases. Interestingly, XRD analyses before

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

and after a heat treatment were similar, although the calcinated material showed a loss of water-related phases, *i.e.*, aluminium hydroxide (*nordstrandite*) and calcium aluminium hydroxide hydrate. This phenomenon has already been observed<sup>[3]</sup> and ascribed to water loss which changes crystalline lattice.

Finally, a MatLab project for calculating heat losses during the effective utilization of the ceramics was created to meet the need for improved product sustainability combined with the possibility of creating uniqueness, whose purpose is to lead to products and processes customization.

#### References

- 1. Circular Aluminium Action plan. Available online on http://www.european-aluminium.eu/.
- 2. H. Mao et al. J. Am. Ceram. Soc. 89 (2006) 298.
- 3. N. M. Reza et al. Iran J. Chem. Chem. Eng. 26 (2007) 19.

## Development of nanocomposite material synthesis and fatigue life evaluation method

#### Chang Su Woo<sup>1\*</sup>, Hyun Sung Park<sup>1</sup>, Sang Hee Choi<sup>2</sup>, Jin Hyuk Kim<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Nano Mechanics, Korea Institute of Machinery & Materials, Daejeon, South Korea <sup>2</sup>Research & Development Center, TSR Co. Ltd., Gumi, South Korea \*E-mail: cswoo@kimm.re.kr

Keywords: nanocomposite, environment friendly material, naoclay, mechanical property, fatigue life

Rubber components have been widely used in industry as anti-vibration components for many years. These subjected to fluctuating loads, often fail due to the nucleation and growth of defects or cracks. To prevent such failures, it is necessary to understand the fatigue failure mechanism and evaluate the fatigue life for rubber components. For these reasons, not only the rubber component manufacturers but also their customers like automotive makers perform a series of strict fatigue test on the components such as component fatigue tests and driving fatigue tests. The fatigue lifetime prediction on the rubber components. A design of rubber components against fatigue failure is one of the critical issues to prevent the failures during the operation. Therefore, fatigue lifetime prediction and evaluation are the key technologies to assure the safety and reliability of rubber components.

In this study, we developed rubber material that is environment-friendly and superior in mechanical property using rubber-clay nanocomposites. Acrylonitrile butadiene rubber (NBR) was used as rubber in combination; ZnO and stearic acid were used as vulcanization activators; and 3C was used as an additive; sulfur of purity 99.9% was used as a vulcanizing agent; TT and CZ were used as vulcanization accelerators; and carbon black, clay, and nanoclay were used as reinforced compound. Polymer layered silicate was made by the melted intercalation method in which polymers in the melted state were inserted between silicate layers. We performed static and dynamic tests of rubber-clay nanocomposite synthesized by inserting nano-filler between silicate layers at the high temperature of  $+70 \sim +100^{\circ}$ C, and verified that their mechanical properties were superior to the existing rubber material. In addition, a new method was developed to estimate fatigue lifetime of rubber parts in a short period in the initial stage of design, assuming that the fatigue damage parameter was Green-Lagrange strain generated at the weak points of parts. As results of estimation of fatigue durability, it was verified that the fatigue lifetime obtained by fatigue tests on actual engine mounts and the expected lifetime relatively match. With the results of finite element analysis of rubber parts using the fatigue lifetime estimation method suggested in this study, the lifetime can be estimated without fatigue tests on rubber components. Therefore, we can save development time and expense and achieve good quality and reliability of rubber components.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by national Grant No. 20022506.

#### References

- 1. Tomas, A.J., 1994, Development of Fracture Mechanics for Elastomers, Rubber Chemistry and Technology, Vol. 67, pp. 50–60.
- Lake, G.J., 1995, Fatigue and Fracture of Elastomers, Rubber Chemistry and Technology, Vol. 68, pp. 435–460. Kim, J. H., Jeong, H. Y., 2005, A Study on the Material Properties and Fatigue Life of Natural Rubber with Different Carbon Blacks, Internal Journal of Fatigue, Vol. 27, pp. 263~272.
- 3. Andre, N., Cailletaud, G. and Piques, R., 1999, Haigh Diagram for Fatigue Crack Initiation Prediction of Natural Rubber Components, Kautschuk Und Gummi dunstoffe, Vol. 52, pp. 120~123.
- 4. Yamaguchi, H. & Nakagawa M., 1993, Fatigue Test Technique for Rubber materials of Vibration Insulator, International polymer Science and Technology, vol. 20, p 64–69.
- 5. Alshuth, T. & Abraham F., 2002, Parameter Dependence and Prediction of Fatigue life of Elastomers products, Rubber Chem. & Technology, vol. 75 pp. 635–642.

## T3.5 Advanced Sensors for Energy, Environment and Health Applications

### Electrochemical aptasensors for SARS-CoV-2 spike protein detection

<u>Renáta Oriňaková</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Jana Shepa<sup>2</sup>, Ivana Šišoláková<sup>2</sup>, Nikola Jašňáková<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Centre of Polymer Systems, University Institute, Tomáš Baťa University in Zlín, Zlín, Czech Republic

<sup>2</sup>Institute of Chemistry, Faculty of Science, P. J. Šafárik University in Košice, Košice, Slovakia \*E-mail: orinakova@utb.cz

Keywords: COVID-19, electrochemical detection, aptasensor, screen-printed carbon electrode

Sensitive diagnostics of various pathogens represent a key tool, especially in the case of a pandemic like COVID-19. The development of fast, sensitive, portable, and selective sensors is important for the prevention of the spread of such diseases. That is why special attention is paid to electrochemical sensors, which represent a quick, simple, and portable solution [1]. Currently, there are 3 diagnostic techniques used in the clinical diagnosis of COVID-19 infection: 1) antibody testing, 2) nucleic acid detection, and 3) aptamer testing. Mentioned tests are based on fluorescence polymerase chain reaction or isothermal nucleic acid and display several disadvantages such as complicated sample preparation, necessary presence of trained personnel, and time-consuming detection [2]. For the fabrication of electrochemical sensors screen-printed carbon electrodes are used. These electrodes are usually modified by various nanomaterials or biomolecules to enhance their sensitivity and selectivity [3].

In this work, the electrochemical aptasensor for SARS-CoV-2 detection was developed. Screen-printed carbon electrodes modified by streptavidin (SPCE-str) molecules were obtained from Metrohm DropSens company. Thereafter, SPCE-str electrodes were modified by a specific aptamer with sequence - [Btn]TATCCAGAGTACGCAGCACCGACCTTGT-GCTTTGGGAGTGCTGGTCCAAGGGCGTTAATGGACA, obtained from Sigma Aldrich.

Modified electrodes were studied via electrochemical impedance spectroscopy (EIS), and differential pulse voltammetry (DPV). After the aptamer addition, the shape of Nyquist diagrams changed, the second semicircle could be observed. The change indicates the second phase interface creation, which confirms aptamer attachment on the electrode surface. After the addition of spike protein, the semicircle diameter increases, which indicates the increase in charge transfer resistance. The increase in charge transfer resistance is related to spike protein bonding to the aptamer molecule. If spike presence is related to the increase in the charge transfer resistance, it could be assumed that the current will decrease with the increasing concentration of the spike protein. The current response decreases with increasing concentration. The linear range window was between 2  $\mu$ M to 20 nM, with a sensitivity of 0.011  $\mu$ A/ $\mu$ M. For interference study, the bovine serum albumin is usually used for interference influence consideration. The current response was several times lower in comparison to spike like protein current response. So, the studied electrochemical aptasensor represents very promising candidate for SARS-CoV-2 spike protein detection.
#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the Slovak Research and Development Agency (project PP-COV-ID-20-0036) and by the NATO Science for Peace and Security Programme under grant id G6106.

- 1. Z. Rahmati, M. Roushani, H. Hosseini, H. Choobin, Bioelectrochemistry, 146 (2022) 108106.
- Y. Xie, Q. Li, J. Chen, W. Yue, Z. Xia, M. Zeng, Y. He, Y. Zhao, X. Luo, Sensors and Actuators B: Chemical, 394 (2023) 134470.
- M. Adeel, K. Asif, F. Alshabouna, V. Canzonieri, Md. M. Rahman, S. Ali Ansari, F. Güder, F. Rizzolio, S. Daniele, Biosensors and Bioelectronics: X, 12 (2022) 100256.

### **T4 Cross-Cutting Materials Technologies**

### **T4.1 COMPUTATIONAL DESIGN AND MODELING**

# Bandstructure modulation and molecular adsorption properties of Zirconia nanoparticles: A large-scale electronic structure study

<u>Kexin Chen<sup>1</sup></u>, William Dawson<sup>2</sup>, Takahito Nakajima<sup>2</sup>, Aulia Sukma Hutama<sup>3</sup>, Keisuke Kameda<sup>1</sup>, Sergei Manzhos<sup>1</sup>, Manabu Ihara<sup>1\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>School of Materials and Chemical Technology, Tokyo Institute of Technology, Tokyo, Japan
<sup>2</sup>RIKEN Center for Computational Science, Kobe, Japan
<sup>3</sup>Department of Chemistry, Universitas Gadjah Mada, Yogyakarta, Indonesia
\*E-mail: mihara@chemeng.titech.ac.jp

Keywords: nanoparticle, adsorption, computation

Zirconia-based materials find wide utilization in solid oxide fuel cells.<sup>[1]</sup> Interactions between Zirconia surfaces and molecules play a crucial role in these applications. Nanomaterials provide promising candidates to modulate electronic structures and enhance electrode surface properties. However, current understanding of small molecule adsorption behavior on Zirconia nanoparticles in function of particle size remains limited. We will present a comparative analysis based on first principles and semiempirical calculations of CO adsorption properties of ZrO, nanoparticles ranging in size from a few tens to a thousand atoms, to understand nanosizing effects of their surface adsorption properties at electronic structure-based level. The order(N) density functional theory (DFT)<sup>[2]</sup> and semi-empirical density functional-based tight-binding (DFTB)<sup>[3]</sup> computational methods are combined to strike a balance between computational cost and accuracy. The band structure of the nanoparticles, which proves sensitive to stoichiometry, exerts a significant influence on molecular adsorption behavior. Notably, nanoparticles can exhibit intrinsic as well as p- and n-doped characteristics corresponding to O-rich or O-poor conditions. The n-type particles display heightened reactivity for the adsorption of CO molecules with pronounced electron transfer from Zirconia to the adsorbed molecules. Additionally, a diminishing trend in surface adsorption activity as the nanoparticle size increases has been identified, which suggests a good potential of optimizing and adjusting the surface properties of Zirconia nanoparticles.



Figure (A). Schematic illustration of Zirconia nanoparticle models; (B). Modulation of band structures and adsorption performance by oxygen deficiencies.

#### Acknowledgments

We gratefully acknowledge *the Digital Research Alliance of Canada* for computational resources, *Tokyo Tech Gap Fund Program* and *InfoSyEnergy Collaborative Research Grant* for financial support.

- 1. M. Ihara et al., Solid State Ionics 175 [1-4], 51 (2004).
- 2. L. E. Ratcliff et al., J. Chem. Phys., 152, 194110 (2020).
- 3. A. S. Hutama et al., ACS Omega 6 [31], 20530 (2021).

# Develop of PVB laminated glass model for Head Injury Criterion-based collision safety analysis

<u>YuHyeong Jeong<sup>1,2</sup></u>, Kyucheol Jeong<sup>1,2</sup>, Wonjoo Lee<sup>1,2</sup>, Jinsung Kim<sup>3</sup>, Seung-Ho Ahn<sup>3</sup>, Jonghun Yoon<sup>1,2\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Mechanical Engineering Design, Hanyang University, Ansan-si, South Korea <sup>2</sup>BK21 FOUR ERICA-ACE Center, Hanyang University, Ansan-si, South Korea <sup>3</sup>Railroad Accident Research Department, Korea Railroad Research Institute, Uiwang-si, South Korea \*E-mail: yooncsmd@gmail.com

Keywords: PVB laminated glass, analysis model, Head Injury Criterion, ball drop test

The laminaged glass consists of a structure in which glass-synthetic resin film-glass is bonded, and in the event of a collision with the laminated glass, the synthetic resin film is bonded to the glass, preventing debris from being scattered and preventing secondary damage. Due to these characteristics, PVB laminated glass is mostly used for the front of the car and the front of the railway. Most of the front glass uses PVB laminated glass to prevent glass fragments from splashing and reduce impact during a collision between pedestrians and the front of the railway vehicle, and unlike cars with a bonnet part, the railway vehicle has the characteristic of a direct collision with the front glass. In the case of automobiles, leg models, head models, and human piles are used to evaluate the speed of collision and pedestrian safety through the amount of change in the hood in front of the vehicle, and various scenarios are used to promote pedestrian safety and legislate related laws. Also, the collision with metal parts other than bonded glass, such as bumper and hood on the front of the vehicle, will occur first, and the collision with PVB bonded glass will occur later, so it is expected to show a different trend from the collision scenario of road mixed driving railways. In this paper, the PVB laminated glass model is proposed which includes the experimental material properties and ball drop test results. The mechanical tests of PVB film with respect to the various strain rates were performed to get precise material model of PVB layer in laminated glass. The experimental tests to measure Head Injury Criterion was conducted, which is called ball drop test, in different impact speed. The time-acceleration results in different impac speed was extracted from the experimental tests and it was compared with the analysis data which has same boundary conditions with real experimental conditions. A numerical material model in LS-DYNA was used to match the impact acceleration and Head Injury Criterion. Numerical fitting model for high-strain rate mechanical properties of PVB film was calculated and applied in the analysis model.

#### Poster

#### Figures



Analysis model of ball drop test and verification process

- 1. Xihong Zhang et al., The Mechanical Properties of Polyvinyl Butyral(PVB) at High Strain Rate, Construction and Building Materials (2015).
- 2. Yong Peng et al., Finite Element Modeling of Crash Test Behavior for Windshield Laminated Glass, International Journal of Impact Engineering (2013).

Takuma Okamoto<sup>1</sup>, Anastassia Sorkin<sup>2</sup>, Keisuke Kameda<sup>1</sup>, Manabu Ihara<sup>1\*</sup>, Hao Wang<sup>2\*</sup>, <u>Sergei Manzhos<sup>1\*</sup></u>

<sup>1</sup>School of Materials and Chemical Technology, Tokyo Institute of Technology, Tokyo, Japan <sup>2</sup>Department of Mechanical Engineering, National University of Singapore, Singapore \*E-mail: mihara@chemeng.titech.ac.jp; mpewhao@nus.edu.sg; manzhos.s.aa@m.titech.ac.jp

Keywords: grain boundary, molecular dynamics, microstructure, titanium dioxide

Microstructures of ceramics have significant effects on their mechanical, electronic and transport properties. Computational studies of microstructural elements, in particular grain boundaries (GB), are typically limited to individual postulated grain boundaries. Moreover, experimental studies of GB often use the bicrystal approach which effectively does the same. There is need for models that account for the natural distribution of grain sizes, GB types, and other features such as amorphous interlayers, in order to achive a more realistic understanding of effects of microstructural features on mechanical properties including plasticity, on ion transport, and on banstructure changes induced by the presence of GB – properties important for applications in batteries, fuel cells, solar cells, and precision optics.

We produce models of grainy structures of titania by large-scale molecular dynamics  $(TiO_2)$  with up to 4 million atoms. Computational heat treatment is adjusted to obtain different average grain sizes. While even in such large-scale, by the standards of atomistic simulations, the grains are nano- rather than micrometer sized (the obtained grains are on the order of 10 nm), the procedure is 'nature-like' and obtains a distribution of key microstructural features including grain sizes and of grain boundaries that can be used for a more realistic modeling of effects of microstructure on material properties.

We demonstrate how the obtained structures can be used to study the effects of grain boundaries on mechanical properties including plasticity and fracture, ion insertion, and electronic proprties. While mechanical properties are computabel with force field MD, DFTB (density functional tight binding) is used to compute the effects of GB on the electronic structure in several thousand-atom scaled models (Fig. 1). The grainy models we produced are available from the authors upon request.

#### Poster

#### Figures



Fig. 1. Left to right: an example of a grainy structure with about 500,000 atoms, An example of a stress strain curve comparing plastic response of ideal crystalline rutile  $\text{TiO}_2$  and a grainy structure with an average grain size on the order of 10 nm. The PDOS of grain boundary with an amorphous interlayer.

#### Acknowledgments

This work is supported by the JST Mirai Program, Fugaku Small Scale Project program, Singapore A\*STAR, and Singapore Ministry of Education Academic Research Funds.

# Effects of Interfacial Segregation on Solubility and Morphology in Doped ZnO

Navya Yaday<sup>1\*</sup>, Abhishek Tewari<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Metallurgical and Materials Engineering, Indian Institute of Technology Roorkee, Uttarakhand - 247667, India <sup>2</sup>Mehta Family School of Data Science and Artificial Intelligence, Indian Institute of Technology Roorkee, Uttarakhand 247667, India \*E-mail: n\_yadav@mt.iitr.ac.in

Keywords: thermoelectric ZnO, grain boundary engineering, codoping, complexions, nominal solubility

Grain boundary (GB) segregation of dopants in polycrystalline ZnO is a pivotal factor, in reducing its thermal conductivity while preserving its electrical prowess [1,2]. Employing a Multiobjective Genetic Algorithm-driven force-field-based atomistic modeling approach, the study delves into the role of GB dopant concentration on complexion transitions across five special twin GBs of ZnO. However, to establish the correlation between GB structure and macroscopic properties, a pivotal bridge between GB segregation and nominal dopant concentration must be established. Thus, a sophisticated phenomenological model steps in, seamlessly weaving the link between GB concentration and the nominal dopant concentration [3].

This model intricately calculates the nominal solubility of dopants, delicately tracing its evolution with the grain size of polycrystalline ZnO, validated with the experimental data available in the literature. Furthermore, the nominal concentration limit for achieving the single-layer GB complexions, which is most effective in suppressing grain growth during sintering, was also calculated.



Figure: (a) Nominal Solubility of single and codoped systems for different grain sizes, (b) Segregation energy v/s dopant concentration plots of Al-Mg codoped for 50 configurations.

#### References

- P. Jood, R.J. Mehta, Y. Zhang, G. Peleckis, X. Wang, R.W. Siegel, T. Borca-Tasciuc, S.X. Dou, G. Ramanath, Al-Doped Zinc Oxide Nanocomposites with Enhanced Thermoelectric Properties, Nano Lett. 11 (2011) 4337–4342.
- S.I. Nunes, R.C. Bradt, Grain Growth of ZnO in ZnO-Bl2O3 Ceramics with Ai2O3 Additions, J. Am. Ceram. Soc. 78 (1995) 2469–2475.
- W.C. Mackrodt, P.W. Tasker, Segregation Isotherms at the Surfaces of Oxides, J. Am. Ceram. Soc. 72 (1989) 1576–1583.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

### T4.2 Additive Manufacturing & 3D Printing Technologies

### Additive manufacturing of advanced ceramic filter structures

<u>Parvathi Vasudevan</u><sup>\*</sup>, Annapoorani Ketharam, Thanos Goulas, Aravind Kundumani, Baschar Ozkan, Sina-Serami, Bala Vaidhyanathan

Department of Materials, Loughborough University, Loughborough, LE11 3TU, UK Email: p.vasudevan@lboro.ac.uk

**Keywords:** additive manufacturing, microwave hybrid sintering, robocasting, advanced ceramics, filters

Advanced ceramics with designed porosity have a multitude of applications into the realm of customized filters in the automotive, aerospace, and space industries. Complex porous structures face consistency of pore sizes and their design inaccuracy issues in conventional methods of manufacturing and this could be overcome by additive manufacturing (AM) techniques. Also AM methods result in less wastage of materials compared to conventional subtractive manufacturing. While AM techniques like direct ink writing (DIW) and stereolithography (SLA) ensure the required dimensional accuracy of the printed component, critical aspects like the structural and mechanical properties of the 3D printed ceramics are determined by its sintering process, which is also considered as the most energy intensive step in the production stages.

In this study, we have attempted to compare the processing and properties of 3D printed Alumina and Yttria stabilized Zirconia (YSZ) ceramics with designed porosity using direct ink writing (DIW), fused filament fabrication (FFF) and Digital Light Projection (DLP) methods, sintered using conventional (radiant power heating) and microwave assisted sintering methodologies. The sintered samples were analysed for density, microstructure, surface roughness, shrinkage, hardness, and toughness. Industrial standard testing of filtration efficiency was performed on the 3D printed filters and the results compared with conventionally manufactured components.

#### Acknowledgments

The authors acknowledge the funding support from United Kingdom Research and Innovation (UKRI) Strength in Places Fund (SIPF).

### T4.3 Novel, Green, and Strategic Processing and Manufacturing Technologies

# Improvement in powder injection molding process with addition of cellulose nanofibers

#### Satoshi Kobayashi\*, Toshiko Osada

Department of Mechanical Systems Engineering, Tokyo Metropolitan University, Hino, Japan \*E-mail: koba@tmu.ac.jp

Keywords: powder injection molding, cellulose nanofiber, debinding, sintering

We intended to suppress the deformation during debinding and sintering of the part with addition of cellulose nanofibers (CNF) to the binder. The materials used were SUS316L powder with average powder diameter 6 mm. The CNF contents are selected as 0, 0.5 and 1 mass%.

Figure 1 shows the results of bending test of green and solvent-debound compacts. The addition of CNF improves the bending strength of the debound compacts and is effective in improving handling.

Figure 2 shows the results of in situ deflection tests during sintering. The addition of CNF suppressed the deformation of the sintered compact. All sintered compacts show densities of more than 95%. The carbon content of the sintered compact was less than 0.03%, satisfying the SUS316L standard.



Figure 1 Bending tests results of green and solvent-debound compacts.



Figure 2 Deflection of the specimens during sintering.

### **T4.4 Powder Processing Technology for Advanced Ceramics**

# Improvement of fracture toughness of B<sub>4</sub>C-based ceramics reinforced by carbon nanotubes, nanofibres and graphene nanoplatelets

#### Juraj Szabó\*, Viktor Puchý

Institute of Materials Research, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Watsonova 47, 04001, Košice, Slovakia \*E-mail: jszabo@saske.sk

Keywords: spark plasma sintering, carbon nanotubes, fibers, graphite nanoplates

In the present work, different high hardness nanocomposite materials have been synthesized using  $B_4C$  ceramics as a matrix with the aim to develop materials for next generation bulletproof vests. For this application,  $B_4C$  is one of the most promising candidates due to its excellent physical properties such as high thermal stability and high hardness. Despite these attractive properties,  $B_4C$  has a low fracture toughness, which is needed to be improved. In the present work,  $B_4C$ -based nanocomposites reinforced with carbon nanotubes (CNTs), nanofibers (CNFs) and graphene nanoplatelets (GNPs) were designed and sintered by spark plasma sintering technique. The fracture toughness of the samples was investigated by both indentation method and 3-point bending test. The obtained fracture toughness values exhibited a significant improvement compared to monolithic  $B_4C$  ceramics.

#### Acknowledgements

This research was supported by the Slovak Grant Agency for Science via the project(s) APVV-22-0493, and by the Slovak Academy of Sciences via the project(s): IMPULZ IM-2022-67.

# Preparation of zinc oxide/silica composite hollow spherical particles by spray drying

#### Takeshi Toyama<sup>\*</sup>, Hiroto Okumura, Akari Ban

Department of Materials and Applied Chemistry, College of Science and Technology, Nihon University, Tokyo, Japan \*E-mail: touyama.takeshi@nihon-u.ac.jp

Keywords: spray-drying, zinc oxide, silica, composite powder, microcapsule, UV absorption

Zinc oxide (ZnO) powder is used as a UV absorber in cosmetics, and its form changes the sensation of the product. Recently, hollow spherical particles have attracted attention as a cosmetic materials. Spray drying is an industrial process used to produce spherical particles. Spray drying is a method for obtaining hollow spherical particles by spraying an aqueous solution containing a dissolved component into a dryer at approximately  $100^{\circ}$ C, while maintaining the shape of the sprayed droplets. However, these compounds is insoluble in water. In our previous study, we found that ZnO dissolved as soluble  $Zn(HCO_3)_2$  when  $CO_2$  was blown into the suspension. Furthermore, we have found that spray-drying this  $Zn(HCO_3)_2$  solution can produce spherical hollow particles of basic zinc carbonate  $(2ZnCO_3 \cdot 3Zn(OH)_2 \cdot H_2O, BZC)$ . However, when the BZC was heated to form ZnO, it broke down because of the volume change caused by dehydration and decarboxylation, and hollow spherical particles composite hollow spherical particles by adding silica, which reinforced the hollow spherical structure of the spraying solution.

Tetraethoxysilane (TEOS) was added to 1 dm<sup>3</sup> of deionized water with 0–5 cm<sup>3</sup> of TEOS, and CO<sub>2</sub> gas was blown in for 1 h to hydrolyze the TEOS to form a silica solution. Next, ZnO was suspended in the resulting silica solution (0.1 mass%), dissolved by blowing with CO<sub>2</sub> gas for 2 h, and filtered to obtain an aqueous  $Zn(HCO_3)_2/H_4SiO_4$  solution. The resulting solution was spray-dried at a spray-drying temperature of 100°C and an atmozing pressure of 200 kPa to obtain hollow spherical particles of the precursor BZC. The precursor hollow spherical particles were calcined up to 400°C to obtain ZnO/SiO<sub>2</sub> composite spherical hollow particles.

Spherical hollow particles of  $1-3 \mu m$  in diameter could be obtained by spray-drying from solutions with or without TEOS. When the precursor particles were heated, the particles without TEOS broke down, and hollow spherical particles were not obtained. However, adding TEOS resulted in ZnO/SiO<sub>2</sub> composite hollow spherical particles that maintained their shape. Figure 1 shows the average compressive strength of a single hollow spherical particle obtained by changing the amount of TEOS added using a microhardness tester that can test the compressive strength of one particle under a microscope to evaluate the strength of the particles. Without TEOS, the hollow spherical particles would not exist because of breakdown, but the addition of TEOS increased the compressive strength of the particles to a maximum of 20 MPa when 3 cm<sup>3</sup> of TEOS was added. The UV absorption capacity of the hollow spherical particles obtained by changing the TEOS content was investigated by UV-Vis measurements. The ZnO reagent used for comparison did not absorb light in the visible

light range but was observed to absorb ultraviolet light below 390 nm. By contrast, the ZnO/ $SiO_2$  composite particles with TEOS showed the same UV absorption capacity as the ZnO reagent, but the UV absorption capacity tended to decrease as the TEOS addition increased.



Figure 1 Compression strength of one hollow spherical particle obtained by changing the amount of added TEOS.

#### Acknowledgments

This study was supported by JSPS KAKENHI (grant number: JP21K04680).

# Optimization of iron ore grinding method to secure high-grade iron ore as raw material for hydrogen ironmaking

Kazumi Yoshiya<sup>1</sup>, Kosuke Hashimoto<sup>1</sup>, Yutaro Takaya<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Chiharu Tokoro<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Systems Innovation, Graduate School of Engineering, The University of Tokyo, Tokyo, Japan

<sup>2</sup>Department of Resources and Environmental Engineering, Graduate School of Creative Science and Engineering, Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan

\*E-mail: y-takaya@g.ecc.u-tokyo.ac.jp

Keywords: hydrogen ironmaking, iron ore, crushing, mineral liberation

Carbon dioxide emissions from steelmaking account for 14% of Japan's total emissions. Therefore, it is inevitable to reduce the amount of carbon dioxide emission toward carbon nuetral society in steel making industry. Now hydrogen steelmaking, in which hydrogen is used for reducing agent of iron ore, has been attracting attention because this method does not release carbon dioxide during the reduction process. In the reduction process with hydrogen, shaft furnace will be used. After reducing, ore is melted in an electric arc furnace and impurities are removed as slag. Since an electric arc furnace has a lower impurity removal potential than a blast furnace, to secure the ore with low impurity for hydrogen ironmaking is important. In addition, because the reduction reaction with hydrogen is endothermic, there are concerns that a shaft furnace may experience powdering (the phenomenon in which iron pellets are broken into small pieces and become powdery) and product sticking (the phenomenon in which pellets become lumpy and clogged) due to temperature decrease. To prevent these problems, it is necessary to prepare the raw ores with high Fe-grade (over 67 wt%) and with low impurity amount.

Since high-grade iron ore that meets these requirements is scarce, and the average grade of iron ore that Japan mainly imports (Australia, Brazil) is much lower than 67 wt%. Therefore, we need to develop an beneficiation process to remove impurities (gangue minerals such as quartz) and low-grade iron mineral (goethite) for utilizing low grade iron ores in hydrogen ironmaking.

In order to improve the grade of iron ore through the beneficiation process, it is necessary to grind iron ore to the appropriate size and to liberate hematite (recovery target) efficiently. In this study, we tried to establish an appropriate grinding method in which grinding at the mineral boundary of hematite, goethite, and gangue minerals proceeds selectively with low energy. We conducted the grinding experiment of iron ores with ball mills, roll crushers, and jaw crushers, and calculated the degree of liberation of hematite and goethite for each grain size fraction of the ground samples. In addition, modeling breakage experiments with single ore grain were also conducted to investigate the detailed mechanism of mineral liberation proceed. Based on the experimental results, an optimal combination of grinding methods was determined based on the energy efficiency and achieved degree of liberation. As a result, the degree of liberation of hematite ground by ball mill exceeded that by roll crusher and jaw crusher. The results of modeling experiments showed that impact force has an advantage over compressive force for promoting the degree of liberation. Finally we concluded that coarse grinding to an average particle diameter of 3 mm using a roll crusher followed by secondary grinding using a ball mill is the optimum grinding method of iron ore for promoting the liberation of hematite.

#### Acknowledgments

This paper is based on results obtained from a project, JPNP21019, subsidized by the New Energy and Industrial Technology Development Organization (NEDO).

### T4.5 Advanced Materials, Technologies, and Devices for Electrooptical and Biomedical Applications

# Development of a saliva cortisol biosensor with an interdigitated electrode platform with barium titanate nanoparticles

#### Marylene Rosa, Juliano A. Chaker\*

<sup>1</sup>Faculdade de Ceilândia, Universidade de Brasília, Brasília, Brasil \*E-mail: chaker@gmail.com

Keywords: biomedical application, cortisol, titanium nanoparticles, mesoporous

This research is focused on measuring cortisol levels in saliva samples through the use of mesoporous titanium oxide and complex impedance spectroscopy. A gold interdigitated electrode (IDE) platform, composed of semiconducting mesoporous barium titanate oxide nanoparticles (TiBaO3), was created. Albumin was linked to the mesoporous surface particles as a surface anti-binder agent to enhance the specificity of cortisol binding in complex samples. In the assembly of the electrochemical cell, the IDE served as a base for the TiBaO3 power deposits. Various standard cortisol analytical samples were prepared and evaluated at a steady voltage of 5 mV, producing a nominal current of 40 nA at 1 kHz. The complex impedance was recorded using a sinusoidal input voltage within the frequency range of 1000 Hz to 10 kHz. Data processing was carried out using Principal Component Analysis (PCA). The method was able to detect cortisol levels as low as 40 nanograms per milliliter. Ongoing research aims to apply this technique to quantify cortisol in complex human saliva samples.

#### Figures



Figure 1. Schematic diagram of the biosensor system. (a) comb-like lines of the micro-electrode, (b) crosssectional view of the schematic diagram of the IDE-TiBaO3 mesoporous nanoparticles, and (c) photograph of the biosensor.

#### Acknowledgments

Fundação de Amparo a Pesquisa doDistrito Federal -FAPDF.

Kazuya Takimoto<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Hiroyasu Sone<sup>1</sup>, Hiroaki Furuse<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Kitami Institute of Technology, Kitami, Hokkai-do, Japan <sup>2</sup>National Institute for Materials Science, Tsukuba, Ibaraki, Japan \*E-mail:d3237100036@std.kitami-it.ac.jp

Keywords: ceramics, optical materials, fluorapatite

Advantages of transparent ceramics such as excellent thermal properties comparative to those of single crystals, ease of size enlargement and composites, are promising for high-power solid-state laser materials. Since there are many laser materials with non-cubic crystal structure for single crystal, it is fascinating to achieve transparent non-cubic ceramics.

The magnitude of grain boundary scattering due to birefringence is proportional to the difference in refractive index at the grain boundary  $\Delta n$ , the size of the crystal grains *d*, and is also inversely proportional to the square of the wavelength of light  $\lambda$  [1]. The first laser operation of non-cubic ceramics was achieved by reducing  $\Delta n$  from Nd-doped fluorapatite (Ca<sub>10</sub>(PO<sub>4</sub>)<sub>6</sub>F<sub>2</sub>: FAP) [2]. In contrast, we have tried to achieve non-cubic laser ceramics by reducing *d*, and Nd-doped FAP and S-FAP (Sr<sub>10</sub>(PO<sub>4</sub>)<sub>6</sub>F<sub>2</sub>) showed lasing at 1.0 mm wavelength range [3,4]. However, their efficiency is less than 10%, thus there is still needs to be improved.

In this study, we conducted a study to improve the efficiency in the 1.0 mm wavelength range by varying the output coupler reflectivity. Figure 1 shows an experimental setup and the laser output characteristics of the Nd:FAP ceramics. The cavity length was approximately 1 mm by a flat dichroic mirror (DM) and a flat output coupler (OC). A continuous wave (CW) 60 W fiber-coupled laser-diode (LD) was used as a pump source. As a result, we confirmed laser oscillation at a wavelength of 1063 nm for the Nd:FAP, with a maximum slope efficiency for the absorbed pump power exceeding 10% when the OC reflectance was 92.5%.



Figure 1. (a)An experimental setup and (b) laser output power of Nd:FAP ceramics as a function of the absorbed pump power. Inset shows the typical lasing spectrum.

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

- 1. R. Apetz and M. P. B. van Bruggen, J. Am. Ceram. Soc. 86(3), 480-486 (2003).
- 2. J. Akiyama, Y. Sato, and T. Taira, Appl. Phys. Express 4(2), 022703 (2011).
- 3. H. Furuse, N. Horiuchi, and B. N. Kim, Sci. Rep. 9(1), 10300 (2019).
- 4. H. Furuse, Y. Mochizuki, D. Kato, K. Morita, B. N. Kim, and T. S. Suzuki, Scr. Mater. 241, 115811(2024).

# T4.6 MULTIFUNCTIONAL COATINGS FOR ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL APPLICATIONS APPLICATIONS

# Microstucture and mechanical properties of carbon containing high entropy alloy films

#### <u>Klára Hajagos-Nagy</u><sup>1\*</sup>, György Zoltán Radnóczi<sup>1</sup>, Nguyen Q. Chinh<sup>2</sup>, György Radnóczi<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>HUN-REN Centre of Energy Research, Budapest, City, Hungary <sup>2</sup>Department of Materials Physics, ELTE Eötvös Loránd University, Budapest, Hungary \*E-mail: nagy.klara@ek.hun-ren.hu

Keywords: high-entropy alloy composites, transmission electron microscopy, nanoindentation

High-entropy alloy (HEA) carbon composites exhibit improved mechanical properties compared to HEAs. The structure and properties of HEA-C films change significantly with carbon content. At low carbon content, a solid solution is formed, then, as carbon content increases, carbide precipitates appear, and finally, with a further increase in carbon content, a pure carbon phase also appears (graphite or amorphous carbon) [1]. Carbide formation strongly depends on the composition of the alloy, whether strong carbide forming elements are present. In this study, we investigate the mechanism of carbon incorporation into the CoCrCuFeNi alloy as a function of the carbon content. Furthermore, we correlate the growth and microstructure of the layers with mechanical properties. We deposited HEA-C films by DC magnetron sputtering. The power of the HEA target was kept at a fixed value (150 W), while the power of the carbon target changed from 0-300 W. For comparison we deposited a HEA nitride film by adding nitrogen to the sputtering gas.

HEA nitride and pure HEA films (top two layers) have columnar structure. Both are single-phase films, made up of non-stoichiometric HEA nitride and fcc metallic HEA phase, respectively. In contrast, all films containing carbon have two-phase structure. The grains do not extend from the substrate to the top of the layer showing that a minority phase hindered their growth. With increasing carbon deposition rate the grains become smaller indicating the increase of the ratio of the minority phase. Electron diffraction patterns revealed the crystalline phase is fcc metallic HEA and the minority phase does not add reflections to the diffraction patterns. This implies it is an amorphous phase, persumably amorphous carbon. Nanoindentation measurements showed the changes of hardness with carbon content. The hardness of all carbon containing films are approximately one and a half times higher (~14-16 GPa) than the hardness of pure HEA film (10.5 GPa), while the HEA nitride film was almost twice as hard (~19 GPa) as the pure HEA one.

#### Figures



Structure of HEA nitride film and HEA-C films with varying carbon content on cross-sectional TEM image.

#### Acknowledgments

This work is supported by the project VEKOP-2.3.3-15-2016-00002 of the European Structural and Investment Funds and the Hungarian Academy of Sciences, grant number K143216.

#### References

U. Jansson, E. Lewin; Thin Solid Films, 688 2019.

# Oxidation resistance of AlTiSiN/TiSiN medium entropy ceramic coatings

<u>Marián Palcut</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Patrik Šulhánek<sup>1</sup>, Libor Ďuriška<sup>1</sup>, Paulína Babincová<sup>1</sup>, Martin Sahul<sup>1</sup>, Ľubomír Čaplovič<sup>1</sup>, Martin Kusý<sup>1</sup>, Ľubomír Orovčík<sup>2</sup>, Štefan Nagy<sup>2</sup>, Leonid Satrapinskyy<sup>3</sup>, Marián Haršáni<sup>4</sup>, Ivona Černičková<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Materials Science, Faculty of Materials Science and Technology in Trnava, Slovak University of Technology in Bratislava, Trnava, Slovakia <sup>2</sup>Institute of Materials and Machine Mechanics, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Bratislava, Slovakia <sup>3</sup>Department of Experimental Physics, Faculty of Mathematics, Physics and Informatics, Comenius University in Bratislava, Bratislava, Slovakia <sup>4</sup>STATON, Ltd., Turany, Slovakia \*E-mail: marian.palcut@stuba.sk

Keywords: corrosion, oxidation, nitride, PVD

Cutting tools are often exposed to significant thermal and mechanical stresses during operation. The stresses may lead to a considerable underperformance and decrease of lifetime. The cutting tools, however, can be protected by depositing a hard surface layer on the metallic substrate [1]. The coating can improve the mechanical properties of the tool, including hardness, wear, and friction resistance. Furthermore, it can also improve the thermal stability and oxidation resistance, thereby prolonging the service lifetime. In the present work, medium entropy ceramic AlTiSiN/TiSiN coatings were deposited on a high-speed steel substrate using physical vapor deposition (PVD, [2]). The layers were deposited onto a high-speed steel substrate using PLATIT  $\pi 80 + DLC$  with LARC® (lateral rotating cathode) technology. The ceramic coatings were prepared by cathodic arc evaporation of Al and Ti-Si alloy sources. The PVD was performed in a flowing nitrogen atmosphere. The as-deposited coatings consisted of three layers: the TiSiN adhesive layer with the thickness of about 50 nm, the middle AlTiSiN layer ( $\sim$ 3µm) and the top TiSiN layer ( $\sim$ 1.5 µm). The coatings were subsequently oxidized at 700–1000 °C in air. TiO<sub>2</sub> and SiO<sub>2</sub> were the main oxidation products identified at all annealing temperatures. At 1000 °C, however, Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> was additionally observed. It was found that Al diffused from the AlTiSiN layer to the surface, where it reacted with oxygen and formed Al<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>. The corrosion mechanism is discussed and implications for the high temperature oxidation resistance of ceramic nitride coatings are provided.

#### Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the Slovak Research and Development Agency (APVV-20-0124) and by the Grant Agency VEGA (1/0345/22, 1/0389/22, and 1/0531/22).

#### References

- A. Aditharajan, N. Radhika and B. Saleh: Recent advances and challenges associated with thin film coatings of cutting tools: a critical review, Transactions of the Institute of Metal Finishing 2023, 101(4), pp. 205–221, https://doi.org/10.1080/00202967.2022.2082154
- P. Šulhánek, L. Ďuriška, M. Palcut, P. Babincová, M. Sahul, Ľ. Čaplovič, M. Kusý, Ľ. Orovčík, Š. Nagy, L. Satrapinskyy, M. Haršáni, I. Černičková: Influence of Isothermal Annealing on Microstructure, Morphology and Oxidation Behavior of AlTiSiN/TiSiN Nanocomposite Coatings. Nanomaterials 2023, 13, 474. https://doi.org/10.3390/nano13030474

CMCEE14 / 18-22 August 2024 / Budapest, Hungary

# T4.7 MATERIALS FOR EXTREME ENVIRONMENTS: ULTRAHIGH TEMPERATURE CERAMICS (UHTCS) AND NANO-LAMINATED TERNARY CARBIDES AND NITRIDES (MAX PHASES) APPLICATIONS

### Microstructure, hardness and indentation fracture resistance of dual-phase high-entropy ultrahigh temperature ceramics

<u>Sara Ines Moussaoui</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Annamária Naughton Duszová<sup>2</sup>, Monika Hrubovčáková<sup>2</sup>, Tamás Csanádi<sup>2</sup>, Marek Vojtko<sup>2</sup>, Márk Windisch<sup>3,4</sup>, Péter Pinke<sup>1</sup>, Ján Dusza<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Materials Science, Obuda University, Budapest, Hungary <sup>2</sup>The Institute of Materials Research. Slovak Academy of Sciences, Košice, Slovakia <sup>3</sup>Bay Zoltán Nonprofit Ltd. for Applied Research, Budapest, Hungary <sup>4</sup>Department of Materials Physics, Eötvös Loránd University, Budapest, Hungary \*E-mail: moussaoui.saraines@uni-obuda.hu

Keywords: dual-phase high-entropy ceramics, microstructure, nanoindentation, mechanical properties

Dual-phase high-entropy ultrahigh temperature ceramics were prepared using a two-step spark plasma sintering (SPS) process at a maximum temperature of 2100°C, with a sintering time of 5 minutes and an applied pressure of 70 MPa. The resulting material consists of a hexagonal high-entropy boride (HEB) phase and a cubic high-entropy carbide (HEC) phase. The microstructure, deformation, and fracture characteristics of the material were studied using scanning electron microscopy (SEM), EBSD, and EDX analyses.

To measure the hardness of the individual phases, nanoindentation was applied using a Berkovich diamond tip and continuous stiffness measuring (CSM) mode with a maximum depth of 150 nm. Indents were arranged in  $10 \times 10$  arrays with a distance of 6 µm between them. Vickers hardness testing was also performed with indentation loads of 9.8 N and 49 N for microhardness and indentation fracture toughness measurement.

The average grain size of the HEC and HEB phases were measured to be cca. 2  $\mu$ m and 3  $\mu$ m, respectively. The nanohardness of the HEC and HEB phases were found to have mean values of 40.4 GPa and 43.1 GPa, respectively. The microhardness of the material was measured to be 21.73±1.36 GPa and the indentation fracture toughness was 6.04±0.93 MPam<sup>0.5</sup>.

### Ablation resistance of titanium diborate based composites derived from Ti-Si or Ti-Al intermatallic systems

<u>Zbigniew Pędzich</u><sup>1\*</sup>, Dawid Kozień<sup>1</sup>, David Salamon<sup>2</sup>, Peter Tatarko<sup>3</sup>, Pawel Nieroda<sup>1</sup>, Leszek Chlubny<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>AGH University of Krakow, Department of Ceramics and Refractory Materials, 30 Mickiewicza Av., 30-059 Krakow, Poland
<sup>2</sup>Brno University of Technology, Central European Institute of Technology, Purkyňova 464/118, 61200 Brno, Czech Republik
<sup>3</sup>Slovak Academy of Sciences, Institute of Inorganic Chemistry, Department of Ceramics, 9 Dúbravská cesta, 845 36 Bratislava, Slovakia
\*Email: pedzich@agh.edu.pl

Presented results of studies concern ablation resistance of  $\text{TiB}_2$ -TiC-SiC composites made of  $B_4C$ , C and intermetallic compounds via reactive sintering by the means of SPS technique. Intermetallics from two systems were used Ti-Si (TiSi, TiSi<sub>2</sub>, or Ti<sub>5</sub>Si<sub>3</sub>) and Ti-Al (Ti<sub>3</sub>Al, TiAl, and TiAl<sub>3</sub>). Composites were sintered at the temp. range of 1000-1700°C. Density was determined using Archimedes' method. Phase compositions were studied utilizing Panalytical/Philips X'Pert Pro MD XRD diffractometer. X-ray absorption spectroscopy (XAS) measurements were performed at PIRX beamline of the Solaris National Synchrotron Radiation Centre, Krakow, Poland. Ablation resistance was tested using an oxyacetylene flame at 1800°C. Material was exposed for flame during 60 s. Ablated surfaces were examined using a confocal microscope (Lext OLS 3100, Olympus) to determine the depth of the ablation zone. The linear ablation rate of the material was determined. Microstructure and chemical composition of ablated surfaces were examined by the means of SEM/EDS method (Thermo Scientific Scios 2). Generally, investigated composites showed good resistance for ablation. In individual cases this resistance significantly exceeded values of commercially available materials.

#### Acknowledgments

This research was supported by the National Center for Research and Development - Programme LIDER XIII; Grant No. 0024/L-13/2022.

# T4.8 Design, Processing, and Applications of Nanolaminated Ternary Transition Metal Carbides/Nitrides/Borides and MXenes and Mbenes

### On the journey towards complex MAX phase solid-solutions

Isabel Huck<sup>1\*</sup>, Christina Birkel<sup>1,2</sup>, Niels Kubitza<sup>1</sup>, Sanja Jankovic<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Chemistry, TU Darmstadt, Germany <sup>2</sup>School of Molecular Science, Arizona State University, Tempe, USA \*E-mail: isabel.huck@tu-darmstadt.de

Keywords: MAX phases, solid-solutions, non-conventional synthesis approaches, medium entropy alloys, X-ray diffraction

In the last years, the family of MAX phases has been growing rapidly to more than 300 different compounds. Roughly half of those are represented by solid-solution phases, which increase the compositional diversity and adjustability of the resulting properties tremendously. In this development, phases with solid-solutions on the X-site are considerably underrepresented and only few phases possess solid-solutions on more than one crystal site at a time.<sup>[1]</sup>

By introducing additional elements in solid-solutions on all three crystal sites, a novel triple-solid-solution MAX phase following the type  $(M_{1-x}M'_x)_2(A_{1-y}A'_y)(X_{1-z}X'_z)$  can be synthesized. While carbides can be readily synthesized from the respective elements, the synthesis of nitrides and carbonitrides requires the use of precursors due to the gaseous nature and high stability of elemental nitrogen. To incorporate nitrogen into the structure, binary nitride precursors have been synthesized via non-conventional microwave-assisted synthesis approaches. The subsequent synthesis of complex MAX phases is finalized by conventional heat treatment but can be substituted by microwave heating.

First experiments in the system V-Ti-Ga-Ge-C-N proof the existence of those phases and refined lattice parameters show how the atom size of the implemented elements distort the crystal structure. Based on recent work of our group highlighting the potential of compounds in the system V-Cr-Ga-Ge-C-N,<sup>[2]</sup> I will also discuss preliminary results of complex solid-solution MAX phases in this system. These indicate interesting developments on the journey towards long-range magnetic ordered MAX phases.

#### Acknowledgments

Supported by the German Research Foundation (DFG project-ID 501386284).

- 1. M. Dahlqvist, M. W. Barsoum, J. Rosen, Materials Today 2023, DOI 10.1016/j.mattod.2023.11.010.
- N. Kubitza, R. Xie, I. Tarasov, C. Shen, H. Zhang, U. Wiedwald, C. S. Birkel, *Chemistry of Materials* 2023, 35, 4427–4434.

### T4.9 CERAMIC INTEGRATION TECHNOLOGIES FOR ENERGY AND Environmental Applications

# Comprehensive analysis of telluroborate glasses doped with Nd<sup>3+</sup> rare earth ions: Exploring the thermal, structural, optical and physical characteristics

#### <u>Nitiksha Sharma</u><sup>\*</sup>, Samay Singh Meena, Beena Bhatia

Department of Physics, Jai Narain Vyas University, Jodhpur, Rajasthan, Pin Code –342005, Rajasthan, India \*E-mail: bhardwajhimani412@gmail.com

Keywords: DSC, FTIR, Raman, optical properties and radiative properties

In the present study, Nd<sup>3+</sup> rare earth ion-doped telluroborate glass samples were synthesized using melt quenching techniques. The glass compositions were (50-x) B<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>·20TeO<sub>2</sub>·15Mg<sub>2</sub>  $CO_3$ :15K<sub>2</sub> $CO_3$ :xNd<sub>2</sub> $O_3$  (where x = 0, 0.5, 1, 1.5, 2 and 2.5 mol %). The samples were characterized through various techniques, including XRD, DSC, FTIR, Raman, Optical absorption, photoluminescence, and decay curve analysis. All samples exhibited an amorphous nature in the XRD spectra. The DSC thermograms revealed the thermal behavior, while FTIR and Raman spectroscopy confirmed the coexistence of trigonal  $BO_3$  and tetrahedral  $BO_4$  units. The optical absorption spectra were recorded at room temperature in wavelength range 180 nm to 1000 nm. The near infrared emission spectra recorded with 808nm laser diode excitation for different concentrations of Nd<sup>3+</sup> ions and the emission for the  ${}^{4}F_{3/2} \rightarrow {}^{4}I_{11/2}$  transition at 1060 nm found to be high intense. Optical absorption spectra indicated an increase in band gap energy with dopant concentration. Judd-Ofelt  $\Omega_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda = 2,4,6$ ) intensity parameters were determined and spectroscopic parameters like spontaneous radiative transition probability, fluorescence branching ratio and emission cross-section were calculated. The study investigated the impact of Nd<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub> concentration on physical parameters such as optical dielectric constant, polaron radius, interatomic separation, molar refraction, and metallization criterion. Results showed an increase in density, molar volume, and refractive index with higher Nd<sub>2</sub>O<sub>2</sub> concentration, leading to more non-bridging oxygen in the glass matrix. In conclusion, this study provides insights into the potential applications of Nd<sup>3+</sup> doped telluroborate glass in advanced optical and photonic devices, contributing to the field of glass science and materials engineering.

# T4.10 Environmental Friendly and Energy Efficient Manufacturing Routes for the Production Root Technology Applications

# Insights into metal-oxide interactions for enhanced water electrolysis catalyst design via computational approaches

#### Byung-Hyun Kim

Department of Chemical and Molecular Engineering, Hanyang University ERICA, Ansan, South Korea E-mail: bhkim00@hanyang.ac.kr

Keywords: computational design, density functional theory, water electrolysis, electrocatalysts

As global efforts intensify to replace fossil fuels with sustainable energy technologies such as next-generation photovoltaics, wind energy, energy storage systems, electric vehicles, and hydrogen-based solutions including production, storage, and fuel cells, renewable energy technologies, particularly water electrolysis and fuel cells, are of paramount importance in this energy transition. Despite extensive research, the development of more active and durable water electrolysis catalysts remains a key challenge. The primary strategies for improving electrocatalyst performance are either to increase the intrinsic activity of known materials or to discover new materials. However, the dynamic nature of structural changes during electrocatalytic reactions complicates the understanding of structure-property relationships. Computational materials science has become an indispensable tool to explore and establish these relationships, thereby contributing to the development of materials with improved or new functions. This trend is evident in the increasing number of new energy materials innovations resulting from computational research, highlighting its critical role in renewable energy research.

In my presentation, I will discuss our recent findings on the improved catalytic performance of hybrid catalysts consisting of metal nanoparticles on metal oxide supports. Using a combination of density functional theory calculations, comprehensive electrochemical analyses, and operando X-ray absorption spectroscopy, we have found that the presence of oxygen vacancies in the oxide support plays a critical role in lowering the charge transfer energy. This allows for improved charge transfer both between the metal nanoparticles and the oxide support, and between the hybrid catalyst and the electrolyte. Our research highlights the importance of understanding the interactions between metal nanoparticles and metal oxide supports, and provides an innovative direction for the design of highly efficient electrocatalysts.

- 1. M. Kim, J. Park, H. Ju, J. Y. Kim, H.-S. Cho, C.-H. Kim, B.-H. Kim, and S. W. Lee, Energy & Environmental Science 14, 3053 (2021).
- N. T. T. Thao, K. Kim, J. H. Ryu, B.-S. An, A. K. Nauak, J. U. Jang, K.-H. Na, W.-Y. Choi, G. Ali, K. H. Chae, M. Akbar, K. Y. Chung, H.-S. Cho, J. H. Park, B.-H. Kim, and H. Han, Advanced Science 10, 2207695 (2023).